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09: 17 1 9:17 a.m, Thursday, Cctober 19, 2017, Salt Laigge .
2 City, Uah.
3
4 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Good norning, everyone.
09: 17 5 Let's go on the record please. This is the tinme and
6 place noticed for an interimrates hearing in the matter
7 of application of Community Water Conpany for approval
8 of general rate increase and special charge for nmajor
9 plant upgrade slash repair. That is conm ssion docket
09: 17 10  nunmber 17-098-01. M nane is Mchael Hammer. [|'mthe
11 commssion's designated presiding officer for this
12 hearing. Let's go ahead and take appearances, please,
13  beginning with the applicant.
14 MR ATWATER  Thank you, Your Honor. Justin
09: 17 15 Atwater appearing on behalf of Conmunity Water Conpany.
16 M5. LEWS: Emly Lewis, and |' m appeari ng on
17  behalf of Comunity Water Conpany.
18 MR WH TE: Larry \Wite appearing on behal f of
19 Community Water Conpany.
09:18 20 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Just for ny edification, are
21 all three of you appearing in capacities as attorneys or
22 are sone of you officers?
23 MR ATWATER So |'m appearing as an attorney on
24  Dbehalf of the applicant. M. Lewis is as well. She's
09: 18 25 entering her appearance this norning for the first tine.
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And M. White is the chief executive officer of TCFC

Finance Co. which is the ultimte parent of the
appl i cant.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.

M5. SCHM D. Good norning, Patricia E. Schmd with
the Utah Attorney Ceneral's office on behalf of the Uah
Division of Public Uilities. Wth me at counsel table
are the Divisions's witnesses, M. WIIliam Duncan and
M. Gary Snith.

MR SAVACE: Scott Savage on behalf of Plat B&D
Homeowner s Associ ati on.

MR LANGE: Terry Lange. |'mthe president of the
board of Red Pine -- on behalf of Red Pine. [|'mhere as
an intervenor.

M5. MLLER Leanne MIler. | am president of the
H dden Creek HOA. |'man intervenor also.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Are there any other parties
in the roon?

M5. SCHM D. There is one on the phone.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Sorry. \Wo do we have on the
phone? M. Anendola -- pardon me. M. Anendola, are
you on the phone?

MR AMENDOLA: Yes, | am |'man intervenor with
17098 on behal f of Red Pine and H dden Creek HOA

THE HEARI NG OFFI CERE M. Lang, you and
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M. Anendol a, you represent or are here on behalf of the

sane entity; is that right?

MR LANGE: That's correct.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  All right. Before we begin
wth the applicant's presentation of its evidence, are
there any prelimnary matters? |'maware of a notion to
strike that was filed early this norning. Wuld you
like to take that up now?

M5. SCHM D:.  Yes.

MR ATWATER | think so as well, but before we do,
there is just a few other itens that | want to address
so that we can set the stage for the proceeding if
that's okay. And one of themjust sinply relates to the
direct testinony that was filed by the applicant. There
were two testinonies that were filed in connection with
the direct testinony. One was fromne and one was from
M. Kevin Larson with the engineering firmof Bowen
Collins. M. Larson is unable to nmake it today. He had
a preplanned vacation with his famly. So in his place
Tina Canpbell is here with us. She is a partner of that
engi neering firmand worked very closely with Kevin.

She may not have all of the answers that Kevin could
provi de, but she's very well versed in the materials
that were prepared by M. Larson. So she's here on his

behal f.
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Regarding nmy testinony, inasnmuch as there is a

potential issue with an attorney representing an
applicant in an adm nistrative hearing and al so being a
wi tness, we've decided to ask M. Wite to replace ne as
the individual providing that direct testinony.

And so we would submit to the comm ssion this
norning that the testinmony that was submtted by ne,
Justin Atwater, on behalf of the conpany, be adopted as
the testinmony of M. Larry White, chief executive
of ficer of TCFC Finance Co., the ultimte parent of the
appl i cant

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Do you intend to cal
Ms. Campbell and M. Wiite today and ask themto attest
to the voracity of the docunents you' re asking themto
adopt ?

MR ATWATER We will do so. W intend to submt
those as testinony so we will do so. W don't
anticipate asking Ms. Canpbell to restate what's in the
testinony, but for her to testify to the voracity, yes.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  All right. Any objection?

M5. SCHM D:. No objection to the substitution. |[|'d
just like to note that whether or not the testinony
shoul d be admtted wll of course be determ ned when the
testinony is noved into evidence.

THE HEARING OFFICER. O course | viewthis as nore
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1 of a disclosure issue, but | don't think it's a rage
2 substantive one.

3 MS. SCHMD: | viewit as a disclosure issue as

4  well.

5 MR ATWATER  Thank you.

6 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Anyt hing el se, M. Atwater?
7 MR ATWATER:  No.

8 THE HEARING OFFICER: Did any intervenors have a

9 problemwith M. Atwater's proposal ?

10 MR SAVACGE: No objection.

11 MR. LANGE: No objection.

12 M5. MLLER  No objection.

13 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you. Then we'll nove
14 to the notion to strike. M. Atwater, do you have

15 anything to say on behal f of your notion?

16 MR ATWATER. Did everyone have a chance to | ook at
17 the neno that was filed earlier this norning?

18 MR SAVACE: Five mnutes ago.

19 MR ATWATER. And | apol ogi ze for that.
20 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Not to m slead you into
21 [ aunching into an argunent on the nerits of a notion, |
22 really just want to get the parties' position on whether
23 we should take it up at this point, or whether it would
24  be better to address |ater.
25 MR. ATWATER  Yeah. So ny thoughts on this --
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09: 23 1 really struggle frankly with the idea whether or no?a?? °
2 should be a notion to strike or sinply an objection to
3 the testinmony. And our intention in filing the notion
4 was to nerely make it clear why we are here, and the
09: 23 5 pur pose for the proceeding, and to focus the efforts of
6 what we're here to speak on and to not include
7 extraneous information that may not be relevant to that.
8 And so for nme | don't know that it's inportant
9 necessarily that we discuss whether they be stricken
09: 23 10 today, but | do want it to be focused in a way that
11 allows us to acconplish the purpose we're here.
12 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Ms. Schm d?
13 M5. SCHMD: As there is a pending notion, |
14 believe it should be addressed today. | appreciate the
09: 23 15 fact that counsel for the conmpany has given us notice --
16 albeit brief -- of its intentions. | think that
17 resol ving the issue today, with argunment and with a
18 comm ssion decision, will allow the hearing to proceed
19 in a nore orderly manner. The Division is ready to
09: 24 20 address the notion today.
21 MR. SAVACGE: | have no objection either way. This
22 is Scott Savage. One of the focuses of the notion to
23 strike or the submission that | nade to the conm ssion,
24 | notice that they nove to strike all of the exhibits to
09: 24 25 ny alternative proposal, which includes their
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_ _ __ Page 10
application. That was one of ny exhibits they noved to

strike. And they noved to strike the June 15 update to
the conm ssion which is referenced in their application.
But | -- so | think they have used a shotgun instead of
ariflein focusing on these things, and | would like to
have nore tine to carefully examne their notion and
conpare ny testinony to the application. But if it is
the comm ssion's desire to go forward, | can go forward
ri ght now.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you, M. Savage.

MR. LANGE: Terry Lange. | have no objection in
moving forward with it at this time.

M5. MLLER | have no objection noving forward
wthit at this tine.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  All right. M. Atwater, it
sounds like the parties want to address the notion now,
and I'mfine with that. So I'll give you a few m nutes
if youd Iike to argue on behalf of the notion's nerits.

MR ATWATER Geat. Thank you. So as stated in
the witten notion, rule 12-F of Utah rules of civil
procedure and Ut ah code annotated 634206, all ows
conmi ssion to exclude evidence that is irrelevant,
immaterial or unduly repetitious. The basis for
striking or seeking a request to strike the paragraph

suggested in the notion, incorporate all three of those
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_ . Page 11
elements. Not only are they immterial, and don't

advance the interest of the public service comm ssion,
but also repetitive. And | think what M. Savage
mentioned just a nonent ago is illustrative of that
point. W weren't striking them because we didn't think
they were relevant. However, they're repetitious,

al ready provided by the conmpany and not necessary to be
duplicative of what's already before the conmm ssion.

W feel it's very inportant regarding the idea of
irrel evance and uni nportance to restate the purpose for
why we're here, and to make it very clear that the
efforts of the conpany have been genui ne, have been very
sincere. And we're here to determ ne whether or not
there is a reasonable rate available to the conpany to
bal ance the conpeting interests of both the public, in
recei ving adequate supply of water, but also the
pecuni ary interest of the conpany, the financial
interest of the conpany and its ability to operate.
That's why we're here today. W felt very obviously and
clearly that the provisions that are asking to be
stricken fromthe record do nothing to advance that
purpose. And that's why we've asked that they be
stricken so that we can focus the efforts. So that the
testinony of the intervenors does not neander. | think

| used the word hijack the proceeding for ulterior
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, : _ Page 17
notives and ulterior purposes. Rather we'd just like to

be very focused and clear on what we're trying to
acconplish. And that's the gist of the notion.
QG herwi se we rest on the statenent

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you, M. Atwater. Ms.
Schmi d?

M5. SCHM D: Thank you. The Division objects to
the notion to strike and believes that the notion should
be denied. By statute, the conm ssion is charged with
setting just, reasonable end rates that are in the
public interest. As part of that, the regulated utility
must conme before the comm ssion and present evidence.

An integral part of the process is the fact that parties
are permtted to intervene and present their own
evi dence.

Part of the determi nation that the conmm ssion nakes
when picking rates, is making sure that the rates are
just, reasonable and in the public interest, as | said
before. As such, the regul ated conpany's actions are
appropriate for scrutiny. The scrutiny that a regul ated
conpany's actions receive is based upon a prudent
standard. Not quoting directly, but a prudent standard
is the standard action that a reasonable utility woul d
do in the sane circunstance, knowi ng the sane facts, at

the sane time as the subject public utility. As such,
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_ Page 13
the statenments sought to be stricken and the associ ated

exhibits are relevant and are necessary to the

conm ssion's full and fair process. The conm ssion --
the Division is not asserting that the comm ssion should
step into the managenent shoes of the conpany, but
shoul d i nstead exam ne the prudence of the conpany's
deci si on.

In addition, the Division objects to the
characterization of the provisions sought to be stricken
as being for ulterior notives and ulterior purposes.
The Division believes that is inappropriate and has not
been proven. The standard for admtting evidence in an
adm ni strative proceeding is generally less strict than
in traditional courts. The standard has been, |
believe, relevant information or information that |eads
to relevant information that is adm ssible.

| think that the subject paragraphs fulfill that
duty. | also believe that they are not immterial,

i mpertinent, repetitive or scandalous. | believe that
they serve a purpose. | believe that they help set the
stage for the conpany's actions. | think that the
conpany's past actions are integral to the

determ nation, particularly as they pertain to its
request for interimrates and the special assessnent.

Wth that the Division urges the comm ssion to reject
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1 the notion. rage 4
2 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you, Ms. Schmid.

3 M. Savage?

4 MR SAVACE: Thank you, Your Honor. |'ll address

5 just ny alternative proposal and direct testinony and

6 the notion to strike as it pertains to it. This

7 evidence is not irrelevant. It is not immterial. It

8 is not repetitious. |It's not scandalous. It is

9 directly relevant to the interimrate that we're here to
10  discuss today.

11 For exanple, we are here today to determ ne whether
12 or not the conm ssion should award an i medi ate -- an

13 immediate interimrate increase of $1,103 for each of

14 the 502 water users to pay for this tank. In the

15 application, the applicant has stated, paragraph 18,

16 without this assessnment to cover the debt service and

17 repaynent, the conpany has been unable to denonstrate to
18 potential lenders a clear path of repaynent. In

19 paragraph 20 of their application, conpany expl ored
20 mul tiple financing options for the tank, but none that
21 would be available and satisfy to sufficiently neet the
22 needed tinme frane for the construction. That's what
23 they have pled, and that franes the issues for why we're
24  here and why they're asking for an i medi ate $1, 100
25 assessnent.
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. . : Page 15
In nmy testinony which they noved to strike, | point

out several occasions, even witten letters signed by
M. Larry Wiite on behalf of the ultimte parent, TCFC,
where they have stated that they have secured financing
for the tank fromthe parent that's M. Wite's conpany.
That directly conflicts with their representation to the
conm ssion that no financing is available, the only way
to pay for this tank is the draconian neasure of
assessing every user $1,100, and conming up with the
$500, 000 in 15 days on the backs of the water users.

Addr essi ng what the conpany has said before in ny
testinony, this is information that was directly given
to me by the conpany. It was directly given in another
update to the public service comnmssion. And to strike
that testinony would do a disservice and be unjust and
i nappropriate in this particular circunstance.

The conpany also in their application refers to al
of the efforts they' ve nmade on paragraph 11. For
exanmpl e, conpany has conti nued productive dial ogue with
its custoners. Custonmers have been instrunental
Paragraph 12 of their application, the update -- 2017
update letter was sent to all custoners. The update
letter is incorporated in the application and I include
it as an exhibit, not to be redundant, but for the

conveni ence of the hearing examner to have what |'m
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referring to in nmy testinony be attached to that

testi nony so you don't have to search for it.

In addition, they also discuss as a result of the
tank val ue, the conpany's inposed a conplete restriction
on outdoor water, and go on to say that there is no
nmeans to renedy the situation other than inposing a
conpl ete cessation of use of water -- irrigation water.

In ny testinony they noved to be stricken, | point
out that was not the case. That we worked hard as users
to cone up with a plan where sone Iimted irrigation
wat er coul d be done, and the conpany conpletely rejected
it. They don't tell the commi ssion that. And that
their application is contrary to the facts that are
stated in ny testinony. They say the funds can only be
satisfied by single charge upon the customers in
paragraph 20. That's not true. They have stated they
have secured financing. | think it's inportant in ny
testinony that | point out the background, and what has
been stated to these custoners that they refer to in
their application as having various neetings wth.

And they have stated that their intent -- the
intent of TCFCis to get out of the water business and
divest itself of CWC. And that they have proposed a
means of doing that with Summt Water. And that was

dependent upon getting out fromunder the jurisdiction
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of the Public Service Conm ssion. Wen that failed, the

further discussion with the customers ceased and the --
this application was fil ed.

| point out in the testinony they noved to be
stricken, that the conpany was requested on nunerous
occasions in June that it seek Public Service Conmm ssion
rate increase to cover the failed tank. That they
shoul d be proceeding in that manner instead of trying to
get the custoners to agree to a sale to -- or to a
transfer to Summt Water that woul d | eave the custoners
with no ability to control the decisions of Summt
Water, and woul d take the conmpany out fromjurisdiction
of the Public Service Conm ssion so we woul d have no
governnent agency with the authority to revi ew
assessnments or proposed increases and rates or expenses
i mposed by this -- Summt Water's new y proposed
cor poration.

That is not irrelevant. That's what happened.
That's what brought us here. They should have sued --
or pursued this matter before the Public Service
Comm ssion in May or June. They told us that they
couldn't do that because it would take 240 days. The
heari ng exam ner knows that's not true. W're here
today on a 45-day tine frame to have an interimrate

increase to start paying for that tank. That tank could
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have been brought before the attention of the Public

Servi ce Conm ssion 45 days after it failed in April.
And instead we're here in Cctober which is the date in
their statenents that they now nove to be stricken.
Their very statenents to the custoners that this tank
had to be i mediately replaced, and if it went forward
with the conpany funding that it would be replaced by
Cct ober.

Vell, it's not replaced by Gctober. And | think
all of this is germane to the interimrate increase we
have here. | think it's inportant to give the hearing
exam ner and the comm ssion the full background of what
has been said to the custoners, what has been done. And
| have testified to that information in ny statenent by
direct testinmony that | was a witness to. There are
sone conclusions in ny presentation, but that's not
unusual in direct testinony in a rate matter. And they
are conclusions that | think are reasonabl e inferences
as to why the conpany has done certain things. And |
chal l enge the conpany to establish that those inferences
are incorrect, that they have proceeded in this manner
and waited this long. Because their desire was to get
out fromunder Public Service Conm ssion jurisdiction,
and proceeding with an interimrate increase to fix this

failed tank, would conplicate their effort to extricate
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1 thenselves fromthe supervision of the Public Service

2  Comm ssion.

3 There is nothing wong with presenting that

4 testinmony. |It's not irrelevant it's not immaterial.

5 It's not even scandalous. And | take unbrage at there

6 being some ulterior nmotive. |I'mhere for the statenents

7 1've made in ny presentation, to have an alternative way

8 to fund that tank, and an alternative way to -- other

9 than an inmediate interimrate increase -- to start

10 repaying the $38.6 mllion loan that hasn't even funded

11 yet, for which no paynents wll be due until January of

12 2019. Sorry | took that long but -- | probably could

13 have made it briefer if |I had nore tinme to review all of

14 this material.

15 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you, M. Savage. M.

16 Lange?

17 MR. LANGE: Yes. So none of ny testinony has been

18 put forth in the notion to be struck. However, | think

19 that the testinony in general that they wish to have

20 stricken is very pertinent to setting the stage of the

21 history fromthe custoner's point of view of how things

22  have transpired and whether or not they've influenced, |

23  guess, prudent or inprudent decisions on the part of

24  Community Water to nove forward.

25 Qur biggest concern is the lack of capacity, i.e.,
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the failed tank at this point intime. And we really

want to have that tank done sooner than later. | nean,

| wish they were working on it today quite frankly. But
they're not. This has been held off. W're very upset
by this and don't understand the reasons why it hasn't
gone forward the way they said it would be going
forward. So consequently, | think that this notion to
be stricken, this information, this testinony, should be
deni ed.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you. And Ms. Ml ler?

M5. MLLER | also object to ny testinony to be
stricken. | believe that the comrents speak to the
i nportance of noving forward very expeditiously to get a
new tank built. As we've heard before, we've had
prom ses that it was going to nmove forward and those
prom ses haven't been kept. And it's also inportant for
t he custoners to understand what |level of reliability
exists in the system W need to know what type of
energency plan for water service mght be put in place
if there is another failure.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you. And | shoul d have
asked earlier, | was presum ng since you are present
that you woul d be H dden Creek HOA' s representative
today, and that M. Anendola m ght be functioning as a

wtness. So |'ve been referring to you when | have a
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guestion in your capacity as being here to represent the

HOA. Should | be referring to M. Amendola or is that
okay?

M5. MLLER That's fine.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Anything el se from you,

M. Atwater?

MR ATWATER. Does M. Anmendola want to say
anyt hi ng?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: My point was, we just heard
on behal f of --

M5. MLLER OCh, I'mnot addressing M. Anendola's
testinony or objection to his testinony. |'msorry.
di d not understand that.

MR SAVACE: They've noved to strike his testinony
too, M. Amendol a's.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CERE M. Anendola is here on
behal f of Red Pine?

MS. MLLER Red Pine HOA. But |'m Hi dden Creek

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Lange is here on behal f
of Red Pine, right?

MR LANGE: He's representing both Red Pine and
H dden Creek.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER: W' ||l go ahead and give

M. Anmendol a an opportunity to speak then.
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1 MR. AMENDOLA: My turn, Your Honor? rage 22
2 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yes.

3 MR AMENDOLA: Yes, | will be very brief. [|'mout
4 of towmn and | don't have the benefit of all the

5 docunents in front of me, but | would |like to say that

6 first and forenpost, in no way are we trying to hijack

7 this proceeding. And in no way are the owners that |

8 represent seeking to provide or work fromulterior

9 notives in this case. To the contrary, we have sinply
10 provided a historical count of the things that have

11 happened since md-April when the tank fail ed.

12 W al so wanted to docunment that the conpany has

13 acknow edged the severity of the situation and the need
14 to nove forward quickly with ulterior or -- alternate
15 funding. They informed us on different occasions that
16 there was alternate funding secured and work was novi ng
17 forward on the tank with the hope of having this tank
18 function yet this fall. And finally, | would offer that
19 their request for a one-tinme funding or assessment of
20 $1,100 is obviously burdensonme to all the custoner base,
21 but in an effort to try and nove this issue forward and
22 get this tank -- the work on the tank underway, we
23 basically offered up an alternate nethod of paynent that
24  woul d reinburse the conpany very simlarly to what one
25 of their original offers was, you know, two, three
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1 nont hs ago. rage 3
2 So not only are we trying -- not trying to hijack

3 the procedures, we are actually trying to facilitate and
4 expedite work on this tank. W don't want to go into

5 wnter conditions without a tank, and if we are forced

6 to, we want to nmake sure that we can reduce the tine

7 period before this tank comes on if it even has to cone
8 oninthe early spring. But we have all provided

9  background information and an alternative funding

10 nmechanismthat we think should be acceptable to get this
11 project noving forward. Thank you.

12 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you, M. Anmendol a.

13 MR ATWATER If | may just spend one nore mnute
14 in response to the other parties' statenents. | want to
15 nmake it very clear that the conpany, the applicant in no
16 way is suggesting that the intervenors not participate.
17 We are very appreciative of the information they've

18 provided to help and the assistance that they've given
19 all along the way. That's very clear and we want you to
20 know that, that this position to strike had nothing to
21 do with whether or not we want you to participate. Wat
22 it deals with is whether or not the comm ssion should
23 consider all of that background information when
24  determ ning whether or not the rate requested is just
25 and reasonable. W believe it's not relevant for that
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purpose. W believe it's relevant clearly, the history

of what's gone on here is very relevant to where the
conpany is today. And we don't dispute that. And
apologize if it canme across that way. Wat we're sinply
stating is that as the conm ssion considers the
application, that all of this additional information
that may provide background and may be useful, not be
consi dered when determ ning whether or not the rate
neets the requirenents of the statute, being just and
reasonable and fair to the public and to the conpany's

i nterest.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Thank you, M. Atwater. At
this point the commssion is disinclined to grant the
notion to strike the portions of the witten testinony
filed by the witnesses at issue. So the notion is
deni ed. That being said, all parties and their counsel
retain the right to object to any testinony that m ght
be presented during the hearing today.

MR ATWATER So to clarify, do we need to object
every tine testinony is nmade or can | nmake a bl anket
objection to their testinmony wth respect to those
par agraphs at the outset?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  You can elect -- | nean, you
can elect to represent your client how you wish. It

woul d probably be nore efficient if you nmake the bl anket
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obj ecti on.

MR ATWATER So | just want to submt to the
conm ssion in that regard that the notion in itself
actual |y makes the bl anket objection to those
provi sions, those paragraphs that were asked to be
stricken and we just restate that objection here in the
heari ng.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Understood. Are you prepared
to call your first witness, M. Atwater?

MR ATWATER W are. And so in the spirit of
hi story, and how inportant it is for this, the applicant
would like to call M. Larry Wiite as a witness before
the comm ssion. As stated before, M. Larry Wite is
the chief executive officer of TCFC Fi nance Co. which he
will explaininalittle nmore detail. Qur approach to
this testinony, if the conmssion will allow, is to
allow M. Wiite to nake open statenents, rather than
necessarily asking questions. | would think it's
i mportant that he provide the conpany's history in
response to the testinony that was just accepted by the
conm ssion, and other statenents that have been nade by
the DPU and the intervenors.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  That's certainly fine.
M. Wiite, do you mnd taking the stand?

MR VWH TE: Sure.
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1 (Larry Wiite is sworn in as a witness.) rage o
2 MR WHITE So first of all, | want to nake it

3 clear that I'"'mnot a | awer, |'ve never been involved in
4 an entity that has an interaction with a Public Service
5 Conm ssi on or oversight such as this. So this is all

6 very newto ne. Wthout going into the entire

7  background and history of Community Water, let's go back
8 tothe entity that is the sole nmenber of Community \Water
9 which is ASC Utah. That entity acquired a nunber of

10 assets which included Community Water in 1998. The

11  Talisker Corporation acquired ASCU in 2008. And Varde
12 Partners which was a private equity firmbased in

13 Mnneapolis, Mnnesota invested in certain Canyon's

14 related assets in Park Gty in 2010. 1In 2013, the

15 Talisker nmenmber was renoved as the managi ng nmenber of

16 that entity, and Varde was inserted and TCFC Fi nance was
17 created. That's the history.

18 Alittle bit about Varde Partners. Varde is a

19 private equity firmbased in Mnneapolis. Its investors
20 are primarily pension funds, state pension funds,

21 coll ege endowrents and nonprofit agencies |ike Boy's

22  Town, for exanple, who was Varde's very first investor,
23 and the Annie E. Casey Foundation who basically provides
24  services to the poorest of the poor, to people who are
25 not caught in the social services net. That's the basis
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of the various funds that Varde manages.

There has been a | ot of conversation about this
loan. So the way that private equity firms work is that
they promse a preferred return to their investors. For
Varde, the promse to the investors is a 13 percent
basis in a preferred return. That neans that before
anyt hi ng el se happens, the investors have to get that
kind of return. Their expectation, consistent with al
private equity firms, is that their returns would be in
the 17 or 18 to 22 percent range.

The nature of those funds, and the way that
non-profits operate, is that they actually use those
funds to -- or a portion of themto do all of their
nonprofit acts. So for endownents it's to -- for
col | ege endowrents, it's to provide schol arships for
peopl e who can't afford. In the case of Annie E Casey
Foundation, they're conducting their services around the
city of Baltinore and el sewhere. So that's the nature
of the funds that back TCFC, just so you're aware where
t he noney cones from

THE HEARING OFFICER: |I'msorry to interrupt you
W are live streamng this hearing today and it is
currently a public proceeding. So to the extent you may
be concerned about confidential information -- | know

many of the exhibits filed in this case were filed as
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1 confidential -- you should be aware that this we afgge “°
2 stream ng.

3 THE WTNESS: This is all public information. So

4 it's inportant to understand that in the context of how
5 we operate. So the nature of this -- because there have
6 been all sorts of questions about this and I'mtrying to
7 clarify -- so that sole nenber of Community Water is ASC
8 Utah. The sole nmenber of ASC Utah is TCFC. The owner

9 of TCFCis an interimof what goes back to the private
10 equity firm So that's the nature of our funding. So
11 again, our understanding is that -- and there have been
12 a nunber of attenpts to have a rate case come before the
13 Public Service Conm ssion. That's based on the fact

14 that for 30 years or nore the custoners of this conpany
15 were paying $12 a nonth and the systemwas allowed to

16 deteriorate.

17 Last year there was a rate case that cane before

18 this comm ssion, and the result of that was that the

19 rate was increased to roughly $30 a nonth per customner
20 pl us usage. Just to give you an idea of conparison to
21 the other regional water conpanies, |'ma Summt Wter
22 customer. | livein Park City. M nonthly rate is $88
23 a nmonth. The average custonmer with Muntain Regional
24 which is the other large regional water conpany is $120
25 a nonth,
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At the sane tine that this rate case was brought

back in July or August of 2016, there was a request for
infrastructure inprovenments because half the nmeters in
Conmunity Water don't work. W are aware then of a
nunber of deficiencies based on a study that was done by
Bowen Col lins that evaluated the entire system Bowen &
Collins is a water engineering conpany. They eval uated
the entire system W are aware there was a nunber of
deficiencies. So part of that rate case was to request
nmeters, pressure valves, and other parts of the system
that were known to be failing.

Throughout this process our desire has been to
transfer this conpany into responsible hands that is a
| arger operating water conmpany. So just to give you an
i dea, Summit Water has roughly 5,000 custoners, Mountain
Regi onal has roughly 8,000 custoners, Comunity Water
has 500. So it clearly costs nore per custoner to
operate a very small conpany than it does to spread
t hose costs over a |arge nunber of custoners.

W have net with the custoners a nunber of tines,
trying to figure out a way to transfer this responsibly.
W' ve tal ked about setting up a nonprofit custoners
would own, but it has to be managed by a responsible
maj or water conpany. They don't have the capacity anong

the custoners thenselves to be able to manage this kind
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of operation.

So we did offer back in July -- after the tank
failed we did offer to provide a neans by which we could
replace the tank. So there are two separate issues
here. The first is the replacenent was nore i medi ate
when the tank failed, which is the larger of the two
wat er tanks, and could not be repaired. It had been
repaired a nunber of tinmes. Probably 40 years old. W
did offer a financing nmechani sm back then based on the
custoners volunteering a hundred -- it would have to be
a hundred percent of the custoners volunteering to repay
the cost of the tank over tine.

What we were told by that condo association, the
representatives here, is they could not guarantee that
their customers would pay. They had no mechanismto go
back and guarantee that their custoners would pay.
Therefore, fromour standpoint and to ny board and
executive conmttee, | couldn't tell themthat the
repaynment of their funding of this water tank coul d be
guaranteed to them So consequently, it was then that
we deci ded we needed to cone before the Public Service
Conmmi ssion and establish this rate case.

It's al so ny understanding that we cannot -- that
Community Water cannot arbitrarily -- even in the case

of an energency such as the failure of the tank or the
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1 need for replacenent water -- charge the custonerspﬁ%$e31
2 just because an enmergency has happened. So if we needed
3 supplenmental water, for exanple, we have that capacity

4 to conme fromSunmt Water, but we have no capacity to

5 charge for the water that we're receiving because it

6 comes at a nuch greater rate than our source water,

7 which is well and service water.

8 So we now have a situation where the infrastructure
9 of Comunity Water is clearly failing. W have known

10 this over tinme, and yet every attenpt that we've nmade to
11 try and rectify it, has been thwarted either through

12 this process with the department of utilities or through
13 the custoners. And so we have tried to do this in the
14  nost cost effective manner possible, which would be to
15 turn the systemover to Summt Water, which is a

16  nonprofit nutual water conpany. W've also had

17  discussions with Muntain Regional which is a nunicipal
18 water conpany. They have generally a higher cost of

19 operations so it would cost the customers nore. W' ve
20  had conversations with both of them
21 Through the efforts of Emly Lewis, we have secured
22 a loan based on the Bowen & Collins' study -- a |oan
23 fromthe state which is federally fund based to correct
24 all of the known deficiencies in the water system W
25 originally included the tank, the failed tank, in that
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cost.

However, given that we were not close to being able
to settle on that |oan, and because of the paraneters of
the | oan which require that we not spend any hard costs
prior to the |loan closing, neaning we could not order
the tank, we couldn't bid the tank. The requirenents of
that | oan because of Davis Bacon and other federal
requirements, require that the | oan be closed first, and
that we bid all of the conponents and conply with Davis
Bacon before any noney coul d be spent, hard costs could
be spent. W could spend noney on engi neering, but we
coul d not spend any hard costs on the tank. That's the
reason we decided to separate the cost of the tank from
t he proposed | oan.

So it was clear when we could not get consensus of
the custonmers for a unani nmous consent to the -- to a
speci al assessnent to repair the tank at the tinme that
we needed to cone back through this formal process and
make application of the Public Service Comm ssion. That
takes time to prepare. So you know that the subm ssion
has roughly a thousand pages of material that has to be
subm tted. The cost of every one of these applications
is roughly $50,000 in engineering and legal tine that
has to get passed through the custoners.

So we nmade application in this case for both a
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speci al assessnment as well as for preparing for the [oan

cl osing, which could happen in spring, that woul d then
repair the entire system The cost just for the tank
bet ween now and the spring, or whenever it's going to be
installed is roughly five to $600,000 -- call it

$550, 000. The cost of just the engineering and | egal
work in order to prepare for the closing of the loan to
repair the rest of the systemis another $500,000. If
we don't get this rate situation straightened out, this
system-- the entire comunity water systemw Il fail.
It's on the verge of that now. It's very clear and
peopl e have been in denial, | think, for decades that
the condition of the systemwas deteriorating. That's
why we're before you today.

MR ATWATER. | have a few questions for you, M.
Wihite. Thank you for your statenent.

Q The first question is, M. Savage suggested
earlier today and in the testinmony that was accepted by
t he comm ssion today, that the reason for waiting to
file the rate case until Septenber was because we did
not want to thwart the effort of the conpany in
conveying it to a nonprofit entity. |Is that the reason
for delaying? And if not, would you explain again for
the record the reason for waiting until Septenber to

file the rate case increase?
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A. It had nothing to do with that. W were on a

parallel path to try and rectify the deficiencies in the
wat er systemas well as to transfer the entire entity to
a responsi bl e managenent conpany.

The issue at hand is that it is not appropriate for
Summt Water customers, a nutual water conpany wth
sharehol ders, to assunme the liabilities of Comunity
Water, either as it exists today with all the
deficiencies in the systemor with a 3 mllion dollar
loan in place to correct all those deficiencies. And so
that's why we try -- we enbarked on an attenpt to set up
a nonprofit entity which would receive the | oan and t hat
Summt Water would then nmanage. That was what was
proposed at the tine.

There are a variety of conplications of that in
terns of control, whose in control of, you know, the
deci sions, where to spend noney and how the system gets
repaired. So that has not been resolved. That's why we
chose a parallel path to cone back to the Public Service
Conm ssion and ask for the rate increases, to nake sure
t hat whoever is investing that noney, whether it's Varde
investing that noney on behalf of its investors or the
| oan investnent that is comng fromthe state agency,
make sure there is a mechanismto pay them back

Because nobody invests noney or nakes | oans w t hout
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know ng how it's going to get paid back. Does that

answer your question?

Q Yes. Thank you. You also testified that your
private equity firm named Varde Partners becane invol ved
wth ASC Utah in approximtely 2013.

A. So the original investnment was nmade in Talisker
in 2010 and then assumed the managi ng nmenber position in
2013, June of 2013.

Q Okay. | believe it's inportant for you to
di scuss the tinme frane between 2010 and today, and why
now we have the information that we have as a conpany
and why you are taking the steps you're taking today
verses in 2010.

A. So again | was not -- | did not join Varde
until February of 2014 so | don't know what happened,
you know, prior to that time. | just know when the
investnent was nade. And | can only tell you what has
happened since |'ve been involved. And | cane on board
| argely because of this project, to manage this. At the
tinme we had consultants that had taken over the
accounting and the day-to-day nmanagenent. W eventually
replaced that with full tine staff, and I was asked to
come here and run it in May or March of 2016.

So | can only tell you what's happened since ny own

personal involvenent. And that there have been severa
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attenpts at devel oping rate cases which are conplicated

and expensive to cone before this body. And that
several of them have been thwarted or abandoned because
of their conplexity. The first one that finally cane
and was conpl eted was just about a year ago. So |
believe it was October, a year ago, when the rate case
was approved. It was approved only for operational
costs, not for infrastructure costs. And | can tell you
that the operational costs that were approved is

i nsufficient because the conmpany is currently running

wi t hout any managenent. Keep in mnd that we have never
charged any overhead, that this entity operates out of
TCFC s offices with our accounting services provided for
free, managi ng services provided for free.

And even with that the conmpany is currently
running, first nine nonths of this year, at $112, 000
deficit. So without -- just in it's general operating
costs without any infrastructure costs, $112, 000
deficit. If we were to add a sinple 9,000 dollar a
nont h managenent fee which would be mnimal to cover the
cost of managenent, that would go up to close to
$200, 000. So $193,000 deficit so far this year.

| can tell you fromjust the engineering we spent
$36,000 to date just on the tank replacenent, just on

t he engi neering and planning. W spent $10,000 to date
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1 on the rate study. $13,000 -- this is to date neaning
2 this year -- on the loan, preparing for the |oan. And
3 another $6,000 on easenments where the infrastructure

4 exists, but does not have property easenents and needs

5 to be perfected in order to establish the rights of the

6 system

7 Q So a followup question I think everybody wants

8 to know. Wiy did you acquire Comunity Water?

9 A So it was just part of the asset. | can't tell
10  you why ASCU acquired Community Water or whether it cane
11 along with the other holdings that they acquired, but
12 all of the holdings were acquired then by Talisker and
13 basically inherited in the subsequent acquisitions.

14 Q So it's your understanding that it wasn't
15 necessarily an expectation that this would be a high
16 return conpany that would allow for your investors to
17 achieve the return that they normally require?
18 MR SAVAGE: CWC?
19 MR. ATWATER:  Correct.
20 THE WTNESS: It was not acquired as an individua
21 asset for that purpose.
22 MR ATWATER (kay. G eat.
23 Q Wuuld you please provide an update as to the
24  status of the newtank -- the current status that's in
25 progress?
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1 A.  So we've done an eval uation on the new tank.

2 Summit Water has been instrunmental in evaluating,

3 searching for tank providers, evaluating the right kind

4 of tank in order to replace the one that failed. And we

5 could nove forward on ordering that tank as soon as we

6 have the noney to do so.

7 In terms of its installation time, where this tank

8 is located is, for anybody that's famliar with the

9 Canyons Resort, it's a ski resort, this tank and the

10 snmaller tank are | ocated on easenent |and which is up

11  "ludraw' which is a ski run. So if it isn't replaced

12 within a certain tinme period, as soon as it starts

13 snowing it's inaccessible by trucks and equi prent.

14 So at this point in time, as soon as the path to

15 repaynment or paynent of the tank is clear, the tank

16 could be ordered. It will take roughly three to four

17 nont hs in manufacturing and transportation, and probably

18 six weeks to actually install and becone operational.

19 At this point, the earliest that that could occur

20 would be in the spring of 2018, as soon as the path is

21 clear to the site where the tank, the wells and the

22 conpanion tank exist. So | would think that froma

23 timng standpoint, it's likely in a best case scenario

24 to be May or June of 2018.

25 Q Thank you. [It's appropriate and necessary for
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me to ask you if you certify and adopt the testinony of
Justin Atwater submtted with the direct testinony of
t he conpany as being true and accurate?

A.  Yes, | do.

Q You adopt that testinony as your own?

A. | do.

Q Thank you.

MR. ATWATER:  Your honor, the application has two
requests as has been noted. One for a special increase
related to the tank and one for a general increase
related to &M and infrastructure. There are very
detai |l ed di scussions to be had regarding both of those.
M. Wite has adopted the testinony that |'ve provided
whi ch includes details regarding both of those things.
We don't feel that it's necessary to read that in today
unl ess the conm ssion feels inclined for us to do so.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  No. The conmi ssion's rules
expressly allow parties to adopt summati ons so that we
don't have to do that. Your witness is welcone to do so
and of course he may be subject to cross-exam nation on
any topic covered.

MR ATWATER G eat. Thank you. The other
question | have for the commssion is, wll the
appl i cant have an opportunity at sonme point to provide

statenents outside of its wtnesses?
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2 MR. ATWATER:  Correct.
3 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Any objection to that?
4 M5. SCHM D: No objection.

10: 09 5 MR SAVACGE: No objections.
6 MR. LANGE: No objections.
7 MR ATWATER Geat. Then at this tinme we have no
8 further questions for M. Wite.
9 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you. Ms. Schm d?

10: 10 10 M5. SCHMD: 1Is M. Atwater going to nove for the
11 admission of the testinony adopted by M. Wite?
12 MR ATWATER. Thank you. | nove to admt the
13 testinmony of M. Wite.
14 M5. SCHM D: No objection.

10: 10 15 MR. SAVACE: No objection.
16 MR. LANGE: No objection.
17 M5. MLLER  No objection.
18 MR. AMENDOLA:  None.
19 THE HEARING OFFICER: It's admtted. Go ahead.

10: 10 20 MS5. SCHM D: The Division has sone
21 cross-exam nation questions for M. Wite, but because
22 M. Wite's testinony ranged far nore broadly than the
23 testinony submtted by M. Atwater, the Division would
24 like a fewmnutes to reviewits prepared

10: 10 25 cross-exam nation questions to see what can be stricken.
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Could the D vision have 15 mnutes? This is not ny

normal practice to ask for a delay and | submt that
request in that nature.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER° Any objection to a 15-mnute
recess?

MR. SAVACGE: No objection.

MR ATWATER: No obj ecti on.

THE HEARING OFFICER  We'll be in recess until
10: 30. Thank you.

M5. SCHM D. Thank you.

(Interruption in proceedings.)

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Let's go back on the record
pl ease. Ms. Schmd, | believe we ended with you.

M5. SCHMD:. Yes. | do have sone questions for
M. Wiite, if he could be called to the stand.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Okay. M. White, would you
pl ease return to the stand. You're still under oath,
Sir.

M5. SCHM D

Q Good norni ng.

A. Good norni ng.

Q Is this your first experience in a regulatory
setting?

A It is.

Q How I ong have you worked on the investnent
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2 A. For three and a half years.

3 Q What is your background before that?

4 A. Real estate devel opnent.

5 Q | have some questions, and sone of these may be
6 alittle bit redundant because of what you testified to,
7 but I want the comm ssion to have precise facts on the
8 record so |'mgoing to ask them

9 You mentioned Talisker. Talisker bought American
10  Ski Conpany; is that correct?

11 A. Correct.

12 Q Is it correct that Varde Partners in 2010

13 invested in the Canyons?

14 A. Correct.

15 Q Is it correct that Canyons at that tinme was

16 owned at least in part by Talisker Corporation?

17 A. | don't know whether -- it wasn't Talisker

18 Corporation. It was probably a single purpose entity.
19 MR SAVACE: You said a single what?
20 THE WTNESS:. Single purpose entity. Mst assets
21 are held by a single purpose entity.
22 MR SAVACE: A subsidiary of Talisker, is that what
23  you nean?
24 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  You'll have your chance,
25 M. Savage.
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1 MR SAVACGE: | just couldn't hear. That's mh?a °
2 interrupted you.

3 M5. SCHM Dt

4 Q So are you unfamliar then with the invol venent
5 if any of Talisker in Community Water and TCFC?

6 A. | don't know what -- if you're asking nme

7 what -- do | know what Talisker did during that period

8 of tinme, | don't.

9 MR ATWATER May | object to the relevance of the
10  question.

11 M5. SCHM D. The witness brought it up in his

12 direct. W have established that the history of the

13 corporation and that the conpany is very inportant. As
14 part of his testinony here today, M. Wite tal ked about
15 how the conpany had -- and I'Il| paraphrase because these
16 weren't his direct words -- fallen into disrepair and

17 needed sone substantial inprovenents. Al ong those

18 lines, | amtrying to determ ne what know edge if any

19 Varde corporation -- Varde Partners had when it acquired
20 the conpany. | believe that that is relevant as it

21 pertains to not only the past managenent of the conpany,
22 but also the current nanagenent.

23 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  And | was experiencing sone
24 cross-talk so I"'mnot sure | conpletely heard the

25 question being objected to. WIIl you remnd me of it?
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M5. SCHM D: Yes, | asked about his know edge o

Tal i sker with American Ski Conpany and with Community
Wat er Conpany. Also, in addition | believe that
Talisker is in bankruptcy and I want to establish on the
record, to the extent that he knows if that bankruptcy
affects Community Water. And as a managi ng partner, |
believe that Varde Partners would |ikely be aware of

t hat .

MR ATWATER. May | respond to that. W' re okay
wth that question. |If that's the intent of the
question, | can nmake that -- ask M. Wite that
guestion. W're okay with that.

M5. SCHMD:. | have a series of questions.

MR ATWATER. But if it's your intention to
determ ne whet her or not the conpany -- M. Wite in
particular -- knows anything about the bankruptcy and of
Tal i sker's inpact on the conpany, you could ask those
questi ons.

M5. SCHM D. That would be up to the adm nistrator.

MR. ATWATER. W don't object. Excuse ne.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: | understand for purposes of
the question that was just restated to ne -- |
understand that objection to be withdrawn and we'l|
proceed.

MS. SCHM D
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Q Oay. So M. Wite -- and this is a slightly

different question, but it's along the same lines -- is
Tal i sker or a subsidiary of Talisker currently involved
in CAC or TCFC, to your know edge?

A. A Talisker entity is still a mnority partner,
a non-managing mnority partner in the entity.

MR ATWATER In which entity?

THE WTNESS:. | couldn't tell you, but it's in the
Canyons investnment entity.

MS. SCHM D:

Q Gkay. To your know edge, do you know if
Talisker is currently in bankruptcy?

A.  To ny know edge, Talisker is not in bankruptcy.

Q Gkay. That elimnates that |ine of questions.
Thank you.

A. But to clarify, to answer your real question
is that there are certain other Talisker assets outside
of the Canyons which were in bankruptcy and to our
knowl edge are now owned by Wells Fargo bank.

Q Because Wlls Fargo bank initiated a bankruptcy
proceedi ng agai nst Talisker; is that correct?

A. R ght. But those assets have nothing to do
w th the Canyons, they're not related to TCFC or to
Conmmuni ty Water Conpany.

Q Thank you. That was very helpful. So it was
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2010 when Varde Partners went through -- and |I'm going
to m spronounce it -- "flara" -- "plara" --
A. No. | don't know when "flara" was created.

Q Okay. So Varde Partners invested in the
Canyons; correct?

A. Correct.

Q As part of that investnment, was CAC and TCFC

brought into the -- I'Il just call it the famly of
assets -- pertaining to Varde Partners?
A. | believe that those were already part of the

assets that were invested in, but | wasn't there at that
time so | can't testify to that.

Q You've had experiences as an investnment banker
for several years you said. |n your experience as an
i nvest nent banker, is it comon for an entity prior to
purchasing an interest to do a due diligence
i nvestigation?

A.  Generally conmmon.

Q Wuld that due diligence investigation include
generally a |l ook at the bal ance sheets of a conpany

that's going to be acquired?

A. | told you that | wasn't around at the time and
"' mnot --
Q I'masking in general

A.  Your generality does not nake any difference.

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www. | i tigationservices.com



http://www.litigationservices.com

10: 36

10: 36

10: 36

10: 36

10: 37

10: 37

HEARI NG DOCKET NO. 17-098-01 - 10/19/2017

1 \What happened happened. rage af
2 Q Are you refusing to answer the question?

3 A. No. I'msaying to you that -- you know, in

4 general, yes. But | cannot testify as to what was

5 investigated at the time the investnent was nmade. And |
6 think it's irrelevant frankly. W are where we are

7 today and the investnent needs to be made now in fixing
8 this system That's all that matters. Seriously, it's
9 all that matters.

10 M5. SCHM D: (Objection. The witness is being

11 argunentative wth counsel.

12 MR ATWATER (bjection to the |line of questioning.
13 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: | agree that the exam nation
14  has beconme argunentative. | think that M. White may
15 have msinterpreted the question. As | understood it,
16 M. Schm d was aski ng general questions about

17 M. Wiite's knowl edge and experience as a professional,
18 and not particulars as to what transpired in this case.
19 Are you satisfied at this point with the responses
20 you've been given, Ms. Schm d?
21 MS. SCHM D: No.
22 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Then we' |l proceed. Please
23 pause, M. Wite, after the question is asked so if
24 M. Atwater w shes to object he has an opportunity to do
25  so.
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1 MR. ATWATER. And | do want to object to the

2 question on the ground of relevance. And also M. Wite
3 never testified that he was an investnent banker. The

4 question Ms. Schm d asked hi mwas how many years have

5 you spent in investnent banking. And | think his

6 interpretation when he said three years was his

7 involvenment with the conpany, not investnent banking.

8 He does not purport to be an expert on investnent

9 banking and never stated as such.

10 MR SAVACE: njection. Speaking objection

11 MR ATWATER  Therefore it's irrelevant. He does
12 not have the knowl edge to answer that question.

13 M5. SCHMD: | think I can ask a question -- couple
14 guestions that will finish this |ine of questioning, and
15 | believe that the questions are relevant and | believe
16 that | probably can ask them and have them answered in a
17 shorter tine than what we have spent objecting.

18 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  For the sake of a clear

19 record, because we've had sone objections that haven't
20 been ruled on, they're all overruled. The testinony
21 wll stand as it's been transcribed and we will proceed.
22 MS. SCHM D
23 Q Okay. M. Wite, you have experience in
24 i nvest nent banking; is that correct?
25 A. | don't even know what the definition of that
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is. So | have experience in investnents.

Q You have experience with Varde Partners?

A. | do.

Q You also served as a real estate developer; is
that correct?

A. | have in the past.

Q Is it common that due diligence would be
perforned as part of an acquisition of say a real estate
devel opnent ?

A It is.

Q Along that lines, would the profit and | oss
statenents and bal ance sheets |ikely be exam ned?

A If they're avail able.

Q Gkay. Those are all mnmy questions on that |ine.
Just one second. You've testified about the |oan
application and process with the Division of Drinking
Water; is that correct?

A Yes. 1've referred toit, yes.

Q Were you involved in the decision to seek a
| oan from DDWP

A Yes.

Q Have you been involved in the processing and
application of that?

A. Cenerally, yes.

Q Wre you famliar with what was included in the

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www. | i tigationservices.com



http://www.litigationservices.com

10: 39

10: 40

10: 40

10: 40

10: 40

10: 41

HEARI NG DOCKET NO. 17-098-01 - 10/19/2017

Page 50

1 loan initially?

2 A. It was based on the Bowen and Collins' study.

3 Q As part of that do you know if the tank was

4  included?

5 A. In the original application it wasn't. It was

6 added when the tank failed.

7 Q Do you know if funds for the treatnment plant

8 were included in the original application?

9 A | believe so.

10 Q And is it your testinony that funds associated

11 wth the tank replacenent had been withdrawn fromthe

12 | oan request?

13 A. | don't know whether they' ve been formally

14 wthdrawn or not, but froma timng standpoint and a

15 practical standpoint, we discussed and have pursued that

16 as a separate matter. Because it woul d have del ayed the

17 construction and inplenentation of the tank. | don't

18 believe it's been formally withdrawn fromthe | oan

19 request yet.

20 Q If it has not been withdrawn and if the loan is

21 approved, then noney for the tank would be included in

22 the loan?

23 A. It could be. But that also neans that the tank

24 would not |ikely be constructed until 2019.

25 Q I'll nove to that right now then. So you
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1 testified about the tank process in general, and |

2 didn't take detailed notes so | can't renmenber the exact
3 dates. So I'll ask you now. \Wen did the tank fail?
4 A | believe it failed in May of this year.

5 Q O 20172

6 A, Yes.

7 Q Sowas it in April or May?

8 A It was sonetine in the spring of this year.

9 don't renenber the exact date.

10 Q Has a replacenent tank been ordered?

11 A. 1t has not.

12 Q Have studies been conducted to determ ne what
13 replacenment tank should be ordered?

14 A. They have.

15 Q And those studies were conducted by Summt

16 Water; is that correct?

17 A.  Yes. And by Bowen & Collins. By both.

18 Q And by Bowen & Collins. Do you have any idea
19 howlong it takes fromthe tinme that a tank is ordered
20 until a tank suitable for installation is deposited at
21 the site?
22 A. It takes roughly four nonths.
23 Q So the tank hasn't been ordered yet?
24 A. It hasn't. There is no noney to order the
25  tank.
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Q That's another |ine of questioning. W'IIl get

there in a bit. Wen does the site for tank placenent
becone i naccessi bl e?

A. Probably depends upon snow. Depends upon the
season. Likely | ate Novenber.

Q \Wen does the site becone accessi bl e agai n?

A.  Again, it depends upon snow and season and when
it melts. But likely My.

Q Likely May. 1Is there additional site
preparation work that is required before the tank woul d
be pl aced?

A. There is. And that was part of the study. One
of the reasons the tank failed is that the foundation of
t he previous tank was inadequate. And it has to be
taken out. So part of the study that we did was to
actually do soil borings and design a new concrete
foundation for the new tank

Q Is that design conpl eted?

A It is.

Q Has any construction work begun tearing out the
ol d foundation?

A.  No.

Q Has any construction work began dismantling the
ol d tank?

A. Yes. The old tank was di smantl ed and renoved.
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1 Q Has any construction operations been initiated
2 for the new foundation?

3 A, No. Not yet. Just the design.

4 Q Do you know if the materials have been ordered?
5 A No. It's all subject to the ability to pay.

6 Q One option that has been discussed in addition
7 toaloan fromDDWis a |oan fromthe parent

8 corporation. Are you famliar with that?

9 A.  Yes.

10 Q Currently is that an option for the conpany?

11 A | can't tell you that. Because | don't know.
12 At the time that we | ooked at the voluntary repaynent,
13 it was. | have not requested it recently and that's why
14 in the subm ssion we requested for a special assessnent
15 for the entire cost of the tank. | can't tell whether a
16 | oan woul d be avail able today or not.

17 Q Have you withdrawn the | oan request?

18 A It wasn't a formal request so there wasn't a

19 witten request.
20 Q Gkay. You also tal ked about a proposed
21 transfer to Summt Water Distribution Conpany, and that
22 Summt Water has participated in certain investigatory
23 matters such as what tank shoul d be ordered; is that
24 correct?
25 A.  Yes.
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Q What currently is the relationship between CAC,

t he conpany, and Sunmit Water Distribution Conpany?

A Summit Water Distribution Conpany has been
managi ng Comunity Water for as far as | know 20 years
or nore,.

Q And Summit Water is paid to do that; is that

correct?
A.  Yeah.
Q Is it correct that CWC is still pursuing a

transfer of the conpany and its assets in sone formto
Summt Water Distribution Conpany?

A | would say that it is pursuing a nanagenent
agreenent. As | explained before, the -- Community
Water is currently a liability. That liability cannot
be transferred to the ownership or the sharehol ders of
Summit Water. And so what's been discussed is setting
up Community Water as a nonprofit and have it nanaged
under a managenent agreement with Summt Water. That's
what has been pursued.

Q So the assets would be maintained in that
separate newy fornmed conpany?

A. Correct.

Q |Is the replacenent of the tank a prerequisite
to Summt Water Distribution Conpany taking over the

managenent in total of CAC as it would exist in that new
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conpany?

A.  Yes.

Q So let's nove to the regulatory world. And
this is your first regulatory proceedi ng | understand.
But it's an exciting world and we're happy to be in it
and we're glad that you joined us.

So would it surprise you to know that a public
utility has the duty to provide reasonable -- sorry --
to provide adequate service to its custoners?

A. It would not surprise ne, no.

Q Wuld it surprise you that that obligation is
i ndependent of the conpany's financial status?

A. That would greatly surprise ne because | don't
under stand how a conpany operates w thout the
appropriate financial capacity to pay its bills.

Q Is it your understanding -- and | believe you
testified to this -- that a regulated utility can cone
in and ask for a rate increase?

A. Coul d you repeat the question.

Q Is it your understanding -- and | believe you
testified to this -- that a regulated utility can cone
in and ask for a rate increase?

A.  Yes.

Q W talked a little bit about that. Wuld it

surprise you that in 2014 Community Water Conpany filed
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a rate case?

A Wuld it surprise ne? No.

Q Wuld it surprise you that the application was
ordered inconplete by the conm ssion?

A.  No.

Q Wuld it surprise you that CWC filed a rate
case in July of 20157

A.  No.

Q Wuld it surprise you that in Decenber of 2015
the water conpany filed a notice of intent to dismss
t he application?

A.  No.

Q Wuld it surprise you that the reason was that
t he conpany had becone aware of information that m ght
allowit to neet its revenue requirenment wthout
I ncreasing rates?

MR. ATWATER: (bjection. Relevance.

M5. SCHM D. Again, | believe this is pertinent
because it explains how we are where we are.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Overrul ed.

THE WTNESS: Yes, that would surprise ne.

MS. SCHM D

Q Wuld it surprise you that in Decenber of 2015
there was an order of dismssal in the rate case?

A.  Again, | have no know edge of that but --
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Q You referenced that there has been a recent

rate case. Wwuld it surprise you that the Comm ssion
ordered the Division of Public Uilities, not the
conpany, to file that rate case?

A.  No.

Q You tal ked about the Division thwarting
Community Water's efforts to inprove its system Al ong
those Iines | have just a few questions.

Wuld it surprise you that it is the duty of the
public utility to prove that a rate increase is needed?

A. No. | suppose it wouldn't surprise ne.

Q Wuld it surprise you that the burden of proof
I's on the conpany to nake that?

A. No, it would not surprise ne.

M5. SCHM D. Those are all ny questions. Thank
you.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER° M. Savage?

MR. SAVACGE: Thank you, Your Honor.

Q M. Wite, I'd like to focus initially on the
proposal that was made to the custoners in neetings
concerning a schedule for repaynent for the tank. Do
you understand what |'mtal king about?

A.  Unh-huh.

Q Wuld you tell us what the proposal was that

needed a hundred percent approval fromthe custoners?
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1 A.  So the proposal was to cover a speci al

2 assessnent necessary to replace the failed tank.

3 Q Wasn't that paynent over tine?

4 A Yes, it was over tine.

5 Q And wasn't it approximately $50 a nonth or

6 sonmething for 12 nonths or nore?

7 A. | don't recall what the nunber was, but the

8 noti on was that whatever the cost of it would be, $450-,
9  $500,000 would be divided by the custoner base over a
10 12-nonth peri od.

11 Q So it wowuld be paid in 12 installnments over a
12  12-nmonth peri od?

13 A.  Yes.

14 Q And wasn't it also presented that this would be
15 paid off, this 12-nonth | oan before the $3.6 million

16 | oan needed servicing?

17 A. In the original proposal that was the notion.
18 Q Okay. And you're telling us that you believed
19 at the tinme that it would be possible -- before you had
20 these neetings it would be possible to get all 502 users
21 to agree to that?
22 A. No. Wat -- the custoners that we net with we
23  asked whether they would voluntarily go along with the
24  special assessnent if we had unani nbus consent. It was
25 our understanding -- at least nmy understanding -- a |ay
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person's understanding that we did not need Public

Servi ce Conm ssion approval for that. So that's why we
sought the unani nous consent of the custoner base for
t hat speci al assessnent.

Q Ckay. You've just answered what woul d have
been ny next question. It was your understanding at the
time that you needn't cone to the Public Service
Comm ssion if you could get a hundred percent of the
custonmers to agree to a 12-nmonth | oan payoff of the
$450, 000, $500, 000 tank?

A. It was ny understanding that if we got
unani nous consent for a special assessnent regardl ess of
the terns, that we did not need to come to a public
service conm ssion. That was ny understanding. That's
why we nade the request.

Q Did you have support fromthe representatives
of the custoners at that neeting for that proposal?

A, W did not.

Q Wy not?

A. Because we were told that associations could
not guarantee that their constituents or owners woul d
pay.

Q Dd that surprise you?

A, Yes. M know edge since |'ve devel oped

condom niunms in general, condom ni um associ ati on
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docunents and byl aws allow for the associations to nmake

sure that if there are special assessnents, particularly
for infrastructure or emergencies, that they' re all owed
to charge their owners and ensure to pay them

Q Wren't there 50 or so honeowners that were not
i n condom ni um associ ati ons who were al so custoners who
woul d need to consent?

A. | don't know what the split is, but roughly
70 percent or nore of the Community Water custoner base
i s condom ni uns.

Q Yeah. But you needed a hundred percent, and
with what you just stated, 30 percent woul d be people
t hat were not in condom nium associ ations, individual
owners? Pardon?

A \Wat's your point?

Q You would need their consent as well?

A. Correct. But we didn't have the consent of the
condo owners so what difference does it nake?

Q No. No. You're saying -- which one of us did
not agree to try to get our condom ni um associations to
support --

A.  Hi dden Creek was one.

Q Pardon?

A. Hi dden Creek was one. It was specifically

stated in the neeting that the condo associations did
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not have the capacity to guarantee paynents by owners.

Q At that neeting?

A. At that neeting.

Q Right. But didn't they express an interest in
pursuing that and trying to get a loan of that type with
an agreenent fromthe honmeowners?

A. There was interest in pursuing it, but there
was no concl usi on.

Q Al right. And there was a series of neetings
about this issue, was there not? Two, three?

A. There were nmultiple neetings with custoners.
Yes, we've had nmultiple neetings with custoners.

Q And you said you went to your executive
commttee on -- | guess the conpany's board that owns
CWC? Was that the organi zation you went to?

A. | already explained what the ownership
structure of OWC is.

Q Okay. Who's the direct owner?

A.  ASC U ah

Q Ckay. Wen you just told us a mnute ago -- a
few m nutes ago that you went to the board and told --
or your executive conmttee of the board and told them
that you could not get a hundred percent agreenment of
t he custoners so forget about the |oan, was that the

board of ASC Ut ah?
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There is no board of ASC U ah.

So who did you go to?

> O >

To the executive commttee of TCFC Fi nance.

Q Okay. And |I've seen TCFC Finance and TCFC
Are they the sane entity?

A, Yes.

Q So does TCFC Fi nancial own ASC U ah?

A. So | already explained the structure. The sole
menber of CWC is ASC Utah. The sole nenber of ASC Ut ah
i's TCFC Fi nance.

Q You are in what position for those two
entities?

A. | amthe CEO of TCFC.

Q And do you have a position wth ASC Ut ah?

A, No.

Q And when you told us earlier that Talisker had
an interest in Talisker acquired by Varde and | ater
Varde took controlling interest, is that TCFC Fi nanci al
or is that another step up the | adder?
| believe it's TCFC Fi nance.

That Varde has an interest in and now control s?
Yes.
Is that V-A-R D E?

Yes.

o >» O > O »F

Thank you. So now when you went to the
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executive commttee of TCFC Fi nancial, how many people

are in that executive conmttee?

A Two.

Q And what is your title with respect to that
conm ttee?

A. | have no title of that commttee.

Q Soit's a two-person comittee?

A Yes.

Q And that's a commttee nade up of board nmenbers
of TCFC?

A. It's an executive committee that consists of
two peopl e.

Q Al right. || understand that. Are they both
board nenbers?

A | can't answer your question in ternms of --
again, I'mnot a lawer. | don't know the structure.

Q You don't know if you were a board nenber?

A. | know I'mnot a board nenber.

Q \Wo appointed the commttee of two?

A.  Again, you're asking questions that | can't

Q Al right. You were the CEO?
A. | amthe CEO of TCFC.
Q GCkay. D d you appoint sonebody else to be with

you on this commttee?
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A. | did not.

Q Wien you went to this conmttee of you and one
ot her person and told them --

MR ATWATER  (bjection to the question, Your
Honor. He suggested that M. VWite was on the commttee

whi ch - -

THE HEARING OFFICER: | think it msstates the
testinony. | agree with you
MR SAVACE:

Q Are you on the comm ttee?

A. | amnot.
Q I'msorry. | msunderstood. Wen you went to
t he two-person conmittee and -- at that point in tine

was it planned that TCFC woul d provide the funding for
t he energency repl acenment of the tank before you went to
t henf

A Wll, | can't say that we had a specific source
of where the funding would conme from but we knew that
we coul d provide the funding.

Q Gkay. And had you had a neeting with this
comm ttee before neeting with the custoners of TCFC
about needi ng a hundred percent agreenent?

A. W have regular neetings so that was certainly
expressed to them

Q No, I'mtrying to get the timng of this. Dd
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this commttee know that you needed a hundred percent

approval for a 12-nonth assessnent of the owners when
you first talked to the conmttee about TCFC providi ng
noney to provide this tank?

A. The commttee knew that there needed to be a
source of repaynent.

Q Okay. D d they know about what you've |ater
told us was a need for a hundred percent agreenent?

A. | don't recall whether that was expressed to
themexplicitly or not.

Q How long after the tank failed did you first
have conversations with this commttee about TCFC
funding a short term /| oan?

A. Probably within a nonth.

Q At that tine did you talk to the conmttee
about an alternative of applying to the public services
conm ssion for an interimrate increase to fund that?

A, W did not.

Q Had you ever talked to them about that unti
| et's say Septenber 1st of 20177

A. Yes. The decision was made after that neeting
that we needed to pursue Public Service Comm ssion
approval because we did not have the approval of the
honmeowners or the custoners.

Q Isn't it true that you al so attached anot her
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1 condition to the users, that being that they would agree
2 to the transfer of ownership to Summit and agree to

3 Summit seeking -- support Summit's efforts to get out

4  fromunder Public Service Conm ssion supervision?

5 A.  So part of the conversation and the

6 conversation for a long time, as you well know, has been
7 attenpting to transfer Comunity Water custoners over to
8 Summt Water. It was the request of the Comunity \Water
9 custoners that that happen.

10 Q Wll, it's also what TCFC want ed?

11 A.  Mitual agreenent. Seens |ike it should be

12 easy, does it not?

13 Q |Is the answer yes? That's also what TCFC

14  wanted?

15 A Yes.

16 Q Okay. And wasn't it the condition of noney

17 fromthe parent, TCFC, to fund this short-termloan to
18 replace the tank -- wasn't it a condition that a vast

19 mmjority of the users agree to the transfer of the
20 conpany to a conpany control by Sunmt Water and seek
21 and support Summt Water in an attenpt to get out from
22  under Public Service Conm ssion supervision?
23 A.  So we discussed a process by which Comunity
24 \Water would get transferred to the managenent of Sunmm t
25 Water. |'ve already said that we've already di scussed
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t he process by which that woul d take pl ace.

Q You haven't answered ny question.

A. | don't know the answer to your question.

Q Wasn't a condition placed upon the noney com ng
fromSummt -- fromTCFC -- the noney comng to replace
the tank -- wasn't a condition placed on that that the
custoners woul d support a transfer of the -- of CAC to
Summt Water and Sunmt Water getting out fromunder --
or CWC getting out fromunder public service control?
That's a yes or no. Wasn't that a condition?

A. W discussed a nunber of provisions by which we
woul d process towards an end goal of repairing the
system including the tank, and transferring the assets
to the custoners with Summt Water managenent. That's
what we di scussed.

Q Transferring it to the customers w thout the
custoners being able to vote for the magjority of the
board of that new conpany; is that correct? Wsn't that
t he proposal ?

A.  There were many di scussions about how to nmanage
t he conpany.

MR ATWATER. May | help reframe the question. |
think maybe a different question would help. 1Is that
okay?

MR. SAVAGE: Yeah.
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MR. ATWATER. So what he's trying to determne Is

woul d TCFC have | oaned the tank funds to Comunity Water
had Conmunity WAter's custonmers not agreed to becone
Summ t Water.

THE WTNESS: There were no specific, you know,
terns of the |loan that were discussed. It was an idea
to try and advance qui ckly the repl acenent of the tank.
That's all it was. And it was coincidental to the
conversation about how to conplete the rest of the
infrastructure, close on the |oan, get it under the
appropri ate managenent of Sunmmt Water. That's what was
going on at the tine.

MR ATWATER So there was no expressed condition?

THE WTNESS: Not that | recall

MR, SAVACE:

Q \Wien you went to your executive committee, did
you talk to them about the desire of TCFC to do a deal
with Sunmt Water with the support of the custoners?

A, Yes.

Q And did you report back to themthat that was
al so sonething that the custoners did not support?

A.  W've had those conversations, yes.

Q Wuld you recommend that sane comm ttee
tonorrow, that it fund a short-termloan to pay for the

tank if this comm ssion orders an energency interimrate
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increase with a streamof inconme of say 12 nonths to

repay that loan with interest?

A. Again, it depends on the specific conditions,
but in general, yes, | could recomend that.

Q Al right. Thank you. And that would be
wi t hout any deal with Sunmt Water?

A.  That woul d be independent of any deal wth
Summ t Water.

Q Okay. Now the --

A But it would also be in -- with the intent of
also repairing the rest of the system Because it
doesn't do any good just to replace a single tank when
the rest of the systemis failing, and when there were
no neters, you know, to half the custoners, in order to
recover the cost of the water that's being used.

Q | understand that. But we'll get to that
|ater. You said that as of this nonent, Community
Vater, OAC, is what? 72,000 in the red?

A. Wth no fees, yes. Wth no overhead all ocated,
yes.

Q Andisn't it true that in the history of OAC
that you've been aware of, the bulk of its noney cones
inin the sunmer as revenue?

A. | couldn't tell you exactly the incone curve,

but that's generally when the highest use is.
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Q Sure. People are watering their |awns?

A. Correct.

Q And that's a nmuch higher use than indoor use
during the winter; correct?

A. Correct.

Q Andisn't it a fact that you inposed -- C\C
should say -- inposed a restriction that nobody water
their lawns this sunmer?

A. That's correct.

Q And isn't that why there is $112,000 deficit?

A. | don't think that there is any relationship
bet ween t hose two things.

Q Okay. You don't think there is any
rel ati onshi p between receiving revenue and not receivVving
revenue you woul d have ot herw se recei ved and not being
in the red?

A. | think that there is a direct relationship
bet ween the noney that's being spent on engi neering and
| egal fees to prepare for rate cases and prepare for the
repairs that need to be made to the system

Q You said there have been $36,000 in engi neering
fees for this tank al ready; correct?

A. Correct.

Q W paid for that?

A. There is $30,000 that are currently in accounts
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payabl e.

Q Wi is going to pay for that?

A. That's a good question.

Q \Wose paid what has been paid? Has TCFC paid
anyt hi ng?

A. So not directly. So TCFC nakes | oans to
Communi ty Water.

Q Ckay. To cover deficits?

A. To cover deficits, correct.

Q And that also would be the type of structure
that woul d be done in this instance if TCFC chose to
fund the tank replacement with a guaranteed stream of
incone fromthe Public Service Conm ssion?

A. Wth a guaranteed streamof incone fromits
cust oners.

Q Yeah. But | nean ordered by the Public Service

Comm ssi on?

A. Correct.
Q You indicated that -- well, let's back up. [I'm
still not clear as to who bought what. Wen was -- D d

ASC Utah to your know edge own CWC before Talisker
becane involved in the Canyons?

A. | wasn't around at that tine so | have no idea
of the legal structure.

Q Do you have any know edge as to who owned
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Conmunity Water before Talisker acquired an interest in

t he Canyons?

A.  Again ny understanding is that ASCU owned
Conmunity Water, but | wasn't around at the tine. |
don't know that as fact.

Q And then when was it that Talisker purchased an
interest in the Canyons?

A, In 2008.

Q 2008. And at that tine did it acquire
indirectly Community Water?

A. Again, to ny know edge, that was part of the
asset base, but | wasn't around at the tinme so | can't
tell you how the structure worked.

Q Do you know of any change in the structure
since or prior to the structure you just told us about?

A, I'mnot aware, no.

Q Is it your understanding that TCFC when it
acquired ASC, acquired the conpany of Conmunity Water?

A.  Again, | don't know what the transaction was
that took place. But it's ny understanding that
Community Water were part of the assets of the
i nvest ment .

Q Rght. But it was a conpany that was
purchased, not just the assets of it. You didn't buy

the punp and the tanks and the irrigation |ines.
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1 Talisker bought Conmunity Water, the conpany? rage 13
2 A 1've already testified to the fact | don't know
3 how that transaction was structured.

4 Q Okay. Wen did you first becone involved?

5 A. | becane involved in February of 2014.

6 Q And as of February 2014, TCFC owned the conpany
7 COWC, not just its assets?

8 MR. ATWATER. (njection. [It's been stated that

9 TCFC owned ASC Ut ah.

10 MR SAVAGE:

11 Q Okay. Well, indirectly owed the conpany. ASC
12 owned the water conpany; is that correct?

13 A. 1've already explained the structure.

14 Q Yeah, but I"'minterested in making it clear for
15 the record that Talisker, an entity controlled by

16  Talisker, acquired the conpany and not just the assets
17 of the conpany?

18 A. And |'ve already testified that | don't know

19 how the conpany was acquired.
20 Q Gkay. So you don't know if the conpany was
21 acquired or just its assets were acquired?
22 A 1've already answered your question.
23 Q And it is you don't know?
24 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  It's asked and answered.
25 Let's nove on
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MR. SAVAGE: You don't know, correct?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Asked and answered. Let's
move on.

MR, SAVAGE:

Q Now you stated in your direct testinony that
peopl e have been in denial about the dil api dated
condition of the Comunity Water infrastructure. Do you
recall that testinony?

A. | do.

Q \Wo are the peopl e?

A You.

Q So you're blami ng the custoners for the
condition of the conpany's infrastructure?

MR ATWATER  (bj ection. Relevance.

MR SAVACE: That's what he just said.

THE WTNESS: |'m not blam ng anybody.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  The objection is sustained.
It's argunmentative. |If you could restate your question
in away that would be nore constructive to the issues
at hand, that woul d be hel pful.

MR, SAVAGE:

Q Al right. In saying the people have been in
denial, you said ne. By ne, did you nean just nme or do
you nean the users, the custoners?

A. So in all these conversations which you know
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1 very well, because you' ve attended all these and SB% %n75
2 at length -- in all of our attenpts to try and resol ve

3 these issues and tal k about the infrastructure

4 deficiencies and ways of trying to rectify them the

5 custonmers have been nore interested in what they're

6 paying per nonth and trying to, you know, maintain that
7 at the |l owest possible |level versus, you know,

8 under stand, engage in and agree to a paynent nethod to

9 repair the system

10 And every single one of these cases you've objected
11 to. The last case you objected to. You're objecting to
12 this one. |In every case the customers have -- and you
13 as representatives of your associations -- have objected
14 to the rate case.

15 Q | don't want to be argunentative, but | think
16 |'ve made an alternative proposal. |'mobjecting to the
17 conpany's proposal for howthis is paid. You're

18 interpreting that as neaning the people who object to

19 the anmpbunt of the rate increase or how the rate increase
20 is to be acconplished, that those are people that are
21 trying to keep the systemin a dilapidated condition.
22 |s that your belief?
23 A No. M testinony is that they're trying to
24  keep their rates as | ow as possi ble and they're not
25 acknow edging what it actually costs to repair the
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1 system W have an engi neering study which Fran

2 Anendol a and others have questioned the validity of, and

3 we don't really have to do that. W don't really have

4 to make all those changes to the treatnent systemto

5 make it work. We can get by with less. And all these

6 conversations are an attenpt to thwart our ability to

7 run this conmpany appropriately and nmake the repairs that

8 are necessary to have it function properly.

9 Q And you've said as you just stated now, every

10 attenpt has been thwarted; correct?

11 A. That's what | said.

12 Q Andisn't it true that since you becane

13 involved, this is the first rate case that has been

14 filed by Community Water for a capital inprovenment other

15 than the one that they noved to dismss in 20167

16 A Again, I'mnot -- as | testified before, | was

17 not surprised about the previous rate cases in terns of

18 attenpts, but as | was aware that there had been

19 attenpts before, again to ny involvenent this is the

20 first tinme that we have brought one forward and brought

21 all the evidence necessary to nake the case.

22 Q Okay. So to your know edge this is the first

23 time that a rate case for a capital inprovenent has been

24  Dbrought forward?

25 A. | don't know whether there have been previous
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1 cases brought forward for capital inprovenents. rage 1
2 Q | asked your know edge.

3 A. | wasn't involved in any of the previous rate
4  cases.

5 Q To your know edge, this is the first one?

6 MR ATWATER. (Cbjection. The record is clear on

7 this issue.

8 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: He said "Yeah, | have no

9 know edge" and you're asking himagain if he did.

10 (Objection is sustained for the record.

11 MR, SAVACE:

12 Q Do you recall me suggesting in May or June that
13 you ought to go on a parallel track and file a rate case
14 for interimrate case to cover this failed tank at the
15 same tine you were trying to work a deal with Sunmt

16 Wat er ?

17 A | don't recall that.

18 Q Do you recall me proposing a rotational

19 watering systemto allowus to try to nmaintain our
20 | andscaping with sonme mnimal water w thout endangering
21 the capacity of the remaining tank?
22 A. | do recall you requesting that.
23 Q And that was rejected, was it not?
24 A It was.
25 Q Nowisn't it true in the Sunmt WAter proposa
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1 for this, you said a nmutual conpany that the cust orr%gr]% ®

2 were owned as part of the discussions -- isn't it true

3 that the proposed new conpany that woul d take over CWC,

4 that the -- that Sunmt Water would own all of the class

5 one stock and the users would be issued class two stock?

6 MR ATWATER.  (bjection. Relevance.

7 MR. SAVACGE:

8 Q Do you recall that?

9 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Overrul ed.

10 THE W TNESS:. There have been a nunber of

11 di scussi ons about how to structure this so that the

12 liabilities of Community Water did not extend to Sunmt

13 Water, but that the conpany be allowed to be managed in

14 a professional manner by a conpany who was used to doing

15 it.

16 MR, SAVACE:

17 Q And ownership and control by vote. Wsn't it

18 true that the only proposal that we saw was that Sunmt

19 Water would own all of the class one stock?

20 A. There have been several proposals in ternms of

21 how to structure this. |[|'ve already expl ained what the

22 intention of the structure is.

23 Q | want to know the ownership and who gets the

24 vote.

25 A.  There has been nothing settled about the -- it
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was one proposal .

Q Right. Wat was that proposal? C ass one
stock and class two stock, wasn't it?

A.  The proposal was for the managenent of the
conpany that would be controlled by Summt Water.

MR ATWATER.  (bjection. Relevance.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Overrul ed.

MR, SAVACE:

Q And Summit Water would have control of the --
electing the mpjority of the board of the remaining
conpany?

A.  That was one proposal.

Q That's the only one that's been made to the
user, isn't it?

A 1've explained that it's been a process to cone
up with a viable neans to transfer the conpany into
pr of essi onal owner shi p.

Q Isn't that the only one that's been presented?

A 1've explained that it's been a process to cone
up with the viable neans to transfer the conpany into
pr of essi onal owner shi p.

Q And has there been in any of those proposals a
proposal that would allow the users to control the
nunber of board nenbers?

A. |t has been di scussed.
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Q Has that been proposed to the users?

A. It has been discussed, but it has not been
proposed to the users.

Q W has it been discussed between? You and
Summ t Water?

A. D scussed between ne and Sunmt Water and our
counsel

Q | don't want to know about discussions with
your counsel. So just so we're clear on the record,
when you say there is a proposal for a -- for the
owners -- for the users to take over ownership of the
conpany, that has been a discussion between you and
Summt Water?

A.  And our counsel, yes.

Q Okay. Does Summit Water require -- as a
condition to being an owner in that new conpany, does it
require as a condition that the new conpany not be under
Public Service Conm ssion control?

A, Sunmt Water is not under Public Service
Commi ssion control. It's a non-profit sharehol der owned
conpany.

Q You didn't answer ny question.

AL So yes, it's arequirement if it was to be
transferred to their nmanagenent that it not be under

public service control
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Q Thank you.

A O | should say oversight run.

Q Do you recall anybody on behalf of TCFC or
Summt Water or CAC in one of these neetings stating
that it would conplicate a deal wth Sunmt Water to
apply to the Public Service Comm ssion for an energency
loan to fix this tank?

A.  No.

Q Ckay. You don't recall Emly Lewi s saying
sonething like that?

A.  No.

Q Isn't it true that you represented to the
custoners that proceeding before the Public Service
Conmi ssi on a speci al assessnment will take a m ni num of
120 days and nore reasonably 240 days?

A. It was our understanding after repeated
requests through Emly Lew s, that there was no
provi sion for an emergency assessment or an energency
rate increase. That the -- that whatever the
application process is, that there was no provision for,
you know, an energency request or an emergency, you
know, special assessnment or rate increase. That it
needed to take its full course of roughly 240 -- that
every rate increase or every rate case whether it be

speci al assessnment or rate case, that it took 240 days.
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Q And yet we're here today in |ess than 45 days?

A. This is only the beginning of this case. This
is not the conclusion of this case. This case will go
on. As ny understanding and as a | ayperson and a
| awyer, that this will go on. That this is only the
first part of this and that the subsequent part of the
hearing can | ast up to 240 days.

Q For adjustnents to the interimrate?

A I'mnot going to opine as to --

THE HEARI NG OFFI CERE M. Savage -- you don't need
to answer that. M. Savage, let's go ahead and nove on
fromthis line of questioning. W know what the process
i s here.

MR, SAVAGE:

Q Anyhow, you represented 240 days in your --

A.  That was ny understandi ng and remai ns ny
under st andi ng today.

Q Okay. That's all | have. Thank you, sir.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Lange?

MR LANGE: | have no questions for M. Wite at
this point in tine.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you. And Ms. Ml ler?

M5. MLLER Yes, | have a couple of things.

Q M. Wite, you testified that H dden Creek HOA

coul dn't guarantee repaynent of an assessnent for the
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1 tank. Wuld you be surprised to understand that in fact
2 our anmended condom nium decl aration requires that we

3 have -- first obtain a majority of the project's

4 ownership interest before we can make a one-tinme special
5 assessnent, but that a nonthly paynment plan would not be
6 a problemfor us to pass on to our owners?

7 A.  Yes, that would be a surprise.

8 Q Well, that in fact is the current case with our
9 condom ni um decl aration

10 A.  That was never expressed to us.

11 Q Wll, maybe you didn't listen to us. Let ne
12 ask you another question. Do you recall a request for
13 docunentation to support denial of the rotational

14 irrigation? 1In other words, a request for system

15 nodeling that shows that the system cannot support

16 rotational irrigation during the summer nonths to keep
17 our | andscaping alive.

18 A So let's explain that. The renaining tank,

19 which also is 40 years old, and could fail at any tine
20 is roughly 225,000 gallons. At the time that the |arger
21 of the two tanks failed, we asked the fire departnent to
22 come out and inspect the tank and tell us how nuch
23 needed to be held in reserve in order to keep an
24  adequate supply of water in the event of fire or
25 enmergency. It was half the tank's capacity. On advice
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1 of counsel we determ ned that we shoul d not aIIowPage o
2 irrigation and put that out to all -- gave notice to al
3 the custoners that we would not be able to provide the

4 irrigation water for this sutmmer. W did that as a life
5 safety manager and on the advice of counsel, that we

6 would put honmes and lives in peril if we allowed

7 irrigation that potentially drew that tank down bel ow

8 the halfway mark, roughly $110,000 to $115, 000 gal | ons.
9 That actually happened fairly recently when

10 apparently sone electrical swtch was triggered on the
11  well, and the tank was drawn down bel ow t hat energency
12 level. But on advice of counsel and to notice of all

13 the custoners with full explanation as to why, we said
14 no irrigation for this summer. And a nunber of the

15 homeowners, including M. Savage, violated that and

16 irrigated anyway.

17 Q So you're telling me you did not have an

18 engineering study done to nodel the systemto know how
19 nuch excess capacity mght be retained in the tank while
20 still retaining fire safety?

21 A. W did have that know edge. W had --

22 Q No, | asked you if you had an engi neeri ng nodel
23 done of the systemthat denonstrated how nuch excess

24  capacity was left in the tank?

25 A. W did not have an engi neering nodel done. W
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knew how nmuch the tank held. W knew how much the

customers used and we knew how nmuch, based on the fire
conpany, we needed to retain in the tank.

Q Right. So you took a guess at how nuch -- the
fact that there wasn't any water available for
irrigation?

A. | think I've already explained it. It was not
a guess.

Q Okay. So it was an educated guess?

A. | think I've already answered your question.

Q So what is the plan if the current tank fails
before the new tank is installed?

A.  So we have the capacity that the systemis
hooked up. Meaning there are pipes connecting the
systemto Summit Water system The problemwth that is
that if we draw water, and we recently did draw water
fromSummt Water in order to fill the tank back up
after the well was tenporarily out of conm ssion, it was
di scovered that the tank was drawn down below its -- the
necessary fire reserve capacity, and we filled it back
up with Summt Water.

The problemis that -- again, ny understanding --
so our cost of water fromSunmt is a high. It's like
an energency cost of water. And we have no way of

passi ng that cost through to our custoners, again,
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1 wthout Public Service Conm ssion approval. That'za%§ o
2 under st andi ng.

3 M5. MLLER That's all ny questions. Thank you

4 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you. And | believe a

5 representative fromall of the HOAs and intervenors

6 present, has already had an opportunity to ask

7  cross-exam nation questions. It seens redundant and a

8 [ittle unorthdox to allow M. Anendola an additiona

9 opportunity, but 1'll allowit if there is no objections
10 from counsel and he wi shes to do so.

11 MR. ATWATER: | have no objection

12 M5. SCHMD: | have no objection

13 MR SAVACGE: No objection.

14 MR. LANGE: No objection.

15 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Anendol a, do you have any
16 questions for the w tness?

17 MR. AMENDOLA: Just a couple, and | have to tel

18 you | didn't have the luxury of hearing many of the

19 responses by M. Wite just because the signal is not
20 very good.
21 Q M. Wite, during the July 17 neeting that was
22 held at your offices, do you recall just basically
23  unani nous support for nmoving forward with replacing the
24  tank expressed by the custoners?
25 A. | think I've already testified to this. It was
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our understanding that the custonmers were not capabl e of

gi vi ng unani nous consent because they couldn't collect
fromowners. This is specific to the condo
associations. So ny understanding fromthat neeting is,
no, we did not have unani nous consent. W could not get
unani nous consent, and therefore we could not have a
speci al assessnent agreed to by the customers. And
that's when we nade the decision that we needed to go on
the parallel path of pursuing Public Service Conmm ssion
approval .

Q Let ne clarify ny question. | think you're
respondi ng to unani mous support to attain funding by the
HOA associ ati ons because they needed tinme. But for the
people that were in that neeting, wasn't there unani nous
support for the need to nove forward with replacing the
tank i medi atel y?

A. It was certainly unani nous acknow edgnent t hat
we needed to nove forward with replacing the tank, but
there was no nethod of paying for it or if the conpany
was to loan -- if TCFC was to |oan the noney to CWC to
repl ace the tank, there was no ensured nethod of
recovering that loan without -- | should say w thout
com ng back to the --

THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'msorry. You guys can't

speak over each other. Let's go ahead and al | ow

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www. | i tigationservices.com



http://www.litigationservices.com

11: 30

11: 30

11: 30

11: 30

11: 31

11: 31

HEARI NG DOCKET NO. 17-098-01 - 10/19/2017

© o0 ~N o o b~ w N

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N OO0 0o b~ wWw N +—» O

_ . . Page 88
M. Anmendola to phrase his question and M. \Wite can

respond.

MR. AMENDOLA: One ot her question | have is that
back in the 1609 rate case, do you recall the Red Pine
and Hi dden Creek comments that were submtted that
basically requested that nore noney be approved to

upgrade the water treatnent plant and acknow edgnment of

the ill-maintained condition of the plant?
A. | do not.
MR AMENDOLA: Okay. That's all | have. Thank you

very nmuch for the opportunity.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you very much
M. Anmendola. M. Atwater, any redirect?

MR. ATWATER: Just one. Thank you.

Q M. Wite, in response to the questioning,
bel i eve, of Ms. Schmd and M. Savage, you stated that
an affiliate loan may be available to fund a repl acenent
of the tank on certain terns and conditions. Do you
have any purview as to what those terns and conditions
m ght be specifically -- economc terns in terns of rate
of return, tine frame of return?

A.  So we have not had any further discussion with
our executive commttee about what the ternms m ght be,
so | don't have the specifics of that. W've not nade

that request at this point in tine because this case was
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specific to special assessnent to replace the tank

i Mmediately. So | don't have any such terns. |'ve not
further discussed it with executive commttee at this
poi nt .

Q Thank you. Just one followup. You testified
earlier that the promsed rate of return to your
I nvestors -- or Varde's investors is approxi mately
13 percent. |Is it your anticipation that the rate of
return would be in that ballpark or would it be
sonething different?

A. Again, the way that the funds are set up,
that's the mnimumpronise to the investors. So it's
called a preferred rate of return to the investors. So
that would be the mnimal rate that woul d be expected
for any further | oan or investnent.

Q So let me just rephrase and get your
confirmation. To the extent there is an affiliate |oan
available to fund the tank, the mnimumrate of return
required by that investnent commttee would be
13 percent?

A. That's likely, but |I can't predict what it is
that they would determ ne, but that would be likely the
m ni mum

MR. ATWATER: Thank you.

MR LANGE: My | ask a question?
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1 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Any obj ection?

2 MR ATWATER  No.

3 MR, LANCE:

4 Q So M. Wite, wth the rate of return for Varde
5 at 13 percent, is that for each one of its individual

6 interests? O in other words, is the return for

7 Community Water predicated on 13 percent, and say the

8 return on investnent for other interests at the Canyons
9 canme in at 23 percent or whatever it mght be? Are we
10 | ooking at an overall gl obal aspect of 13 percent, or do
11 we have to pay 13 percent -- or do you have to pay 13
12 percent precisely to Community Water?

13 A So I've already testified to the fact 1've not
14  had that conversation with our executive commttee, so
15 can't answer your question.

16 Q WIIl you be having a conversation to clarify
17 that?

18 A. Depends on the outcone of this hearing.

19 MR LANGE: Thank you. That's all the questions
20 have.
21 THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right. Anything else,
22 M. Atwater?
23 MR ATWATER No. Thank you
24 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: | just have a coupl e,
25 M. Wite.
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My understanding is that CAC was interested

initially in pursuing funding for the tank through the
Division of -- the departnent of water? DDW Help ne
out .

THE WTNESS: Division of Drinking Water.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you -- as you referred

toit --

THE WTNESS: That's correct.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER:  -- and later elected to --
perhaps not formally -- but has elected at this tine not

to pursue funding for the tank with that noney?

THE WTNESS: So for clarification we pursued
funding of the tank directly through the special
assessnent because of tim ng and because of cost.
Because the nature -- again, ny understanding of the
loan, is that we could not front costs even in deposit
for the tank prior to closing the loan. And that if it
cane under the | oan provisions, we would have to wait
until the loan was closed, then get bids on, you know,
frommultiple sources, and then wait for that period of
time. It likely would have driven the costs up for the
tank and del ayed the tinme period, which is why we
pursued a different nmeans of funding the tank.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  (Ckay. Aside fromthe funding

fromthe Division of Drinking Water and the [oan from
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t he parent conpany that we've discussed, did the conpany

pursue any other financing options for the tank from any
ot her financier?

A No, sir. W don't believe that that's a
comrercially viable -- meaning going to a bank? There
are no -- when a conpany is under water froma financial
standpoi nt and froman infrastructure standpoint, it's
not a comercially financable transacti on.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Did the conpany explore
whet her there were other public financing options
avai | abl e except for the Division of Drinking Water?

THE WTNESS:. Yes. Emly Lewis can testify to
that. We pursued numerous public financing on both the
federal and state level, which is how we sourced this
particular |oan, and thought that it was the best
solution for the conpany. The [owest interest rate,
| ongest term And so in terns of, again, cost to the
customer in the end, that it was the nost efficient from
a cost standpoint.

And one ot her, you know, elenment of this, just so
you understand, in ternms of the timng, we initially --
when Em ly originally discovered this |oan opportunity
and we made application to it, it was before the tank
failed. And at that tine we thought that the | oan could

cl ose sonetine in the sunimmer. And as we got further
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intoit, further into the application, it gets nore and

nore conplicated. So we didn't fully understand all the
provi sions and requirenents of the loan. So as we
continued -- so it's our understanding now that we have
to have full engineering. |In other words, we have to
invest in all of the engineering costs to repair the
systemup front before the |loan can close and be able to
submt that.

So consequently, the period of closing that |oan
becane | onger and longer. |It's now projected at April
at the earliest. So that was part of our decision in
terns of separating or pursuing a different route to
replace the tank rather than wait for that |loan to
close. So as both a cost and tine consideration.

Q Did you consider or discuss with your parent
conpany whet her any short-term bridge financing m ght be
avai | abl e through the parent conpany pendi ng event ual
nore permanent financing through the DDWP

A.  So again, our understanding is that we could
not use the DDWIloan for any infrastructure that was put
into place prior to the loan closing. That was part of
the conplication. It can't replace. W tried that. W
asked them They can't replace infrastructure that is
put into place prior to the |oan closing because it

doesn't follow Davis Bacon and ot her federa
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1 requi rements for bidding. rage o4
2 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Right. | wondered whether it
3 mght be possible to fragment the project or sonething.

4  Perhaps you could use a bridge loan to get going. It

5 sounds |ike these questions mght be better suited for

6 another witness which | think I'm about to hear and I'm
7 happy to wait.

8 THE WTNESS:. Again, the answer to your question is
9 that we could pursue sone internal financing mechanism
10 if the nethod of repaynment was cl ear and approved, which

11 is why we're here.
12 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Ckay.
13 M5. LEWS: Just to clarify, the Division of
14 Drinking Water requires that you have a repaynent
15 structure in place before you can close on the |oan. So
16 for that we are pursuing the parallel track of either
17 having a Summt Water or Conmunity Water non-profit
18 structure be the repaynent structure for a public
19 service commission rate increase. So it is -- to close
20 on the loan you need to prove you have a repaynent
21 structure. So that woul d been a hindrance in any kind
22  of bridge.
23 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you. And you intend to
24  testify; right?
25 M5. LEWS: | can.
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11: 38 1 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  You do not intend to teZ???y%§
2 MR. AMENDOLA: Your Honor, can | have a follow up
3 question on the |oan?
4 THE HEARI NG OFFICER:  No. Let's wait a m nute.

11: 38 5 What you essentially provided was testinony. So if
6 you want to nake a statenent, we need to put you under
7 oath. | think that woul d be appropriate.
8 M5. SCHMD: | amconcerned if Ms. Lewms testifies
9 as a witness while also serving as counsel .

11: 38 10 MR ATWATER Wuld it be possible to include that
11 in our closing statenent?
12 M5. SCHM D:. That's not evidence either. Perhaps
13 we could take a break and perhaps M. Wite's nmenory
14  coul d be refreshed.

11: 39 15 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Well, | want the w tness who
16 is nost qualified -- please let me finish -- | want the
17 wtness who is nost qualified to speak to these matters
18 to testify to them And it's up to OAC whether or not
19 it wants its counsel to testify. M understanding is

11: 39 20 that Ms. Lews's role is perhaps nore of a corporate
21 transactional counsel. | defer to the conpany whet her
22 they want to call that w tness.
23 MR ATWATER. Sure. W're not concerned by the
24  same concern that Ms. Schm d expressed at this |evel

11: 39 25 Especially in the interimhearing. So we would be
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1 perfectly fine calling Ms. Lewis as a W tness. rage 99
2 MR SAVACE: | don't know the normal practice for
3 Public Service Comm ssion, but in court an attorney

4 cannot argue a case if they are a witness. But other

5 than that there is nothing stopping --

6 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: | understand that. That's

7 why | don't have a problemnecessarily with Ms. Lew s

8 testifying because of M. Atwater's representing --

9 MR SAVACE: M. Atwater will know if she tries to
10 argue, I'Il object.

11 THE HEARING OFFICER: | think I'll conclude ny

12 questions for M. White. [|'Il allow M. Atwater to

13 decide whether he wants Ms. Lewis to take the stand,

14 nmake a statenent she just felt conpelled to nake on the
15 record or not. That of course will subject her to

16 cross-examination. | just can't allow counsel to nake
17 statenents of fact and accept them as evi dence w t hout
18 being sworn to testify.

19 MR ATWATER  Ckay.

20 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  You're excused, M. Wite.
21 MR ATWATER: We're inclined to call Ms. Lew s, but
22  we would like to call Ms. Canpbell prior to calling

23 M. Lewis if that woul d be okay.

24 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Absolutely. You can present
25 your evidence in whatever order you prefer.
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MR ATWATER  So the applicant calls Ms. Tena

Canmpbel |, engineer with Bowen & Collins, engineering
firm to the stand.

(Tena Canpbell is sworn in as a wtness.)

MR ATWATER  Thank you, Ms. Canpbell, for
at t endi ng.

Q As a prelimnary nmatter, | need to ask you, do
you certify as true the testinony of M. Keith Larson

who is a partner in Bowen & Collins and a partner of

yours?
A. | do.
Q | have just a few questions to you

MR ATWATER In addition to the direct testinony
provided by M. Larson, | also do want to clarify for
t hose that cross-exam ne Ms. Canpbell that the
information in M. Larson's testinony regardi ng ERUs and
ot her calculations are clear in the record, and
Ms. Canpbell may not have a direct know edge to all of
t hose questions. And to the extent they may not be able
to be answered today, we will do so as pronptly as
possi ble just so that you're aware. She did not
participate directly in the creation of the rate nodel.
Q So ny first question for you, M. Canpbell
relates to -- first of all, what was your firm engaged

to do wth respect to the failed tank?
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A.  So upon having | ooked at the system previously

t hrough the master planning process, we were engaged,
being famliar with the system to |look at the failed
tank to hel p assess options for replacenent, being the
sanme style and type that's there or an alternative that
woul d be -- function the sane, but be just as cost
effective and nmake the system whol e agai n.

So we worked with Summt Water and their staff to
eval uat e above ground steel tanks, welded or bolted,
determ ned what suppliers m ght supply such a tank, and
what the timng of that mght be. W also were engaged
to provide a foundation design to support whi chever tank
was chosen to replace the existing tank.

Q Thank you. Do you recall the tinme frame, nonth
when you were engaged to provide that |evel of service?

A It was alnost imediately upon failure. W
were brought in to help consult with the style of the
tank and the feasibility of replacing it.

Q Thank you. And can you testify as to the
current condition or state of the work regarding the
t ank?

A.  The existing tank has been renoved. The
exi sting foundation that was there, which was m ni num
has been renoved. So there is a bare ground site there

right now. The supplier of the tank has been engaged
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and has prepared sone shop drawi ngs for the new tank.

We are in the process of review and coment on
t hose shop drawings to make it so that it is feasible to
construct. Bowen Collins has prepared a foundation
desi gn based upon the prelimnary shop drawings with
revi si on expected upon revision to the shop draw ngs.

But we've al so used that design that we've conpleted so
far for prelimnary bids on constructing that foundation
on-site.

Q Thank you. Have you had any conversations wth
the Division of Drinking Water regarding the
availability of the loan relative to construction of the
t ank?

A, Yes. Just this week they had asked ne is there
a possibility of putting the tank in the | oan as was
originally asked upon the energency situation. At that
time, | did tell themhow far along we were with the
supplier and bids on the foundation, and that it would
be difficult, and maybe not very advantageous, to try
and roll that back into the | oan because we woul d have
to start over with conpetitive bids of the tank
supplier. And that woul d change our design of the
foundation to be with whichever tank nmet that criteria.

Q Thank you. And if | may just take a quick

diversion to the general rate increase which has not
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11: 45 1 really been discussed today, but this nmay be the FZ%? P
2 chance we have to have you on the stand. Your report in
3 large part provides the evidence and information for
4 substantiating those rates?
11:45 5 A Yes.
6 Q And could you just describe the process that
7 Bowen & Col lins enploys generally in determ ning when
8 engaged to prepare a water rate study what that process
9 looks like?
11: 45 10 A Well, typically we do analysis of the water
11 system There is a few different options you can
12 choose. This particular one is one that we used to
13 existing water use for our basis of calculating the
14 rate. Wirking with the water systemon historic use,
11: 46 15 that type of thing, to prepare the rate that we could
16 come up with. Industry standard is typically to
17 calculate it based on use, which drags us to the ERU
18 calculation that people are tal king about. That's
19 really an equivalent residential use, again, based on
11: 46 20 historical use.
21 Q Thank you. And how do you determ ne the cost
22 or the estimate cost of infrastructure to be replaced?
23  Because your report does, in fact, include estimates of
24 infrastructure that need repl acenent.
11: 46 25 A.  So our cost estimates fromthe master planning
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process are based on our experience with simnlar

projects and simlar clients and our engi neering
standards and principals that we've used to prepare
t hose esti mates.

MR. ATWATER: Thank you. No further questioning.
Thank you.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Ms. Schm d?

M5. SCHMD:. | may have mssed it, but did
M. Atwater nove?

MR ATWATER. | wll do so now.

M5. SCHMD. W often -- all of us often forget
this part so --

MR. ATWATER. W nove to submt the testinony of
Ms. Tena Canpbell into the record of evidence.

M5. SCHM D. The Division does not object except
notes that since Ms. Canpbell is not prepared to be
subject to the ERU i ssues, that evidence -- while |
don't think it will cone up in the D visions'

di scussion -- would possibly not be adm ssible as there
IS not a sponsoring witness for that part here. But
again, it's not going to conme up in the D visions

di scussi on.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER° Understood. | think the
problem M. Atwater, is you said you noved to admt

this witness's testinony, but you're really noving to
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admt the witten testinony filed by a witness who Is

not present; correct?

MR ATWATER  That is correct.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  And this witness isn't
prepared to testify to all the contents of all that
witten testinony?

MR ATWATER He is not here today to testify to
t he contents.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  And this witness isn't
prepared to testify to the content either; right?

MR ATWATER. Ms. Canpbel | ?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Ri ght.

MR ATWATER | think she could testify generally
to that testinony. | think what both Ms. Canpbell and
M. Larson would do, however, is just restate what is in
their witten testinony. So | think it is worthwhile.
And Ms. Campbell can potentially determ ne whether or
not she's capable, but it is worthwhile for us to see if
she is capabl e of answering those questions.

THE HEARING OFFICER: If there is no objection to
the adm ssion of the filed witten testinony -- Yes, M.
Savage?

MR SAVACE: Yes, | object to the portions of the
witten testinmony of M. Larson pertaining to ERUs

because we do not have an opportunity to cross-exam ne
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him and it's been stated to us that Ms. Canpbell is not

prepared to address in any detail the ERUs either. So |
object to the portions of M. Larson's testinony dealing
wi th ERUs.

M5. SCHM D:. The Division concurs as previously
stated in that objection.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER M. Atwater?

MR. ATWATER. So what | would say is Ms. Canpbell
is prepared to testify to those issues. And if her
answer is not responsive, | think that the conm ssion
should determ ne at that tinme whether or not it's
appropri ate.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  How about this. Hearsay is
adm ssible in a proceeding before the comm ssion. W
can't exclude evidence solely on the basis that it's
hearsay. We'll go ahead and admt the prefiled witten
testinony into the record, and note that Ms. Canpbell is
not prepared to testify to all of its contents; is that
sufficient?

M5. SCHM D:  Yes.

MR. ATWATER. Thank you.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Ckay. We'll proceed.

M5. SCHMD:. | have just a couple of questions.

Q | heard you say that the engineering study

contains estimtes based on Bowen Col |ins experience
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with simlar projects for simlar clients based on Bowen

Col I'ins general standards and principals. Is that a
fair restatement?

A. Correct.

Q Sois it true that the engineering study does
not include precise recently acquired bids for each
project proposed by the engineering study?

A. Correct.

M5. SCHM D: Those are all ny questions. Thank
you.

MR. SAVACGE: | have no questions.

MR LANGE: | have a couple of questions concerning
ERUs so | can kind of wap ny head around the
understanding of all that.

So I"'mtrying to educate nyself through this whole
process too, as | think a ot of us are.

So it's ny understanding ERUs nore or |ess cane
about because of inequality between single-famly hones
and maybe highrises or sonething like that, or
multiple-famly dwellings. And that the basis for ERUs
is predicated on the fact that nost of a given clientele
custoner base -- perhaps on average -- maybe the nedi an,
what ever, consisted of single-famly honmes. Do you
understand ny question? Wuld you agree with that?

A. The basis of an ERUis to convert historical
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use to an equivalent residential unit, yes.

Q So is ny understanding, what | presented so far

to you -- ny understanding of it; is that correct?
A. | believe you said the majority of the custoner
base is single-famly hones. | don't think that is true

in this case.

Q GCkay. | had read that soneplace. And ny only
point is the majority of the custoners here are not
single-famly hone?

A. Correct.

Q They are all HOAs consisting of owners, of
course -- 440, approxi mtely 502 customer base.

MR LANGE: Okay. Well, thank you for that.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER:  Ms. M ler?

M5. MLLER | have no questi ons.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you. M. Anendol a, do
you have any questions?

MR. AMENDOLA: | just have one question of
Ms. Canpbel | .

Ms. Canpbell, originally the ERUs were cal cul ated
at 404 in, | think, the draft study. |In the direct
testinmony fromM. Atwater, if you added up the nunbers
inthe table it was 401, | believe. And in the rest of
the direct testinony by M. Atwater and the final

report, the ERUs were estimated at 453. Can you give ne
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alittle background in how those changes were arrived

at?

A. Unfortunately, | personally was not involved in
t hose specific calculations so | can't speak to why the
change was nade.

MR ATWATER. May | state that the testinmony of the
conpany and of M. Larson is that there are 453 ERUs.
The record is clear on that. And if it's not clear |'l]
make it clear.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Do you confirm M. Canpbell?

THE WTNESS: Yes.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Anendol a, anything el se?

MR. AMENDOLA: No. Thank you very nmuch. Thank
you, Ms. Canpbel |l

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Ckay. It's noon. W' ve been
back about 90 m nutes fromour break. Wuld the parties
like to break for lunch now or proceed?

MR ATWATER  Your Honor, may | have two redirect
questions?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: | apol ogi ze. O course.

MR, ATWATER:

Q So Ms. Schm d asked you about the fact that
there are no hard bids with your estimate. Have you
ever made an estimate on infrastructure regarding a

wat er plant in the past?
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A. Yes.

Q And do you have any idea how accurate the
estimate was in those cases?

A. Typically when we do engi neering estimtes, we
w Il choose a technology and work with a supplier to
cone up with prelimnary nunbers. So our previous
experience on treatnent plants is there is a |evel of
contingency built into the nunber. But we are fairly
close to comng up with a nunber that will nake sense
and you can budget to it.

Q And did you enploy that sane process --

A.  Yes.

Q ~-- for our analysis? Are you aware -- why
woul d Bowen Col | ins not have just obtained bids? Wy is
t hat not possible as part of this process?

A It is difficult to get a contractor to provide
a detailed bid to you when you have nothing for themto
bid to. So at the time of our master plan, we had
concepts of what needs to be done and that's where we
estimate what those are going to cost. Once the design
is conplete and we have detail ed plans and engi neered
drawi ngs, that's when you go out to a contractor and you
get a detailed bid nunber. So we cannot obtain those
and contractors likely will never provide those on, you

know, an up high in the sky idea. They need to have it
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defined. They need to have it engineered. They need to

have an industry standard to put nunbers to.

Q Thank you. Specifically with respect to the
Division of Drinking Water | oan, you've previously
stated that -- maybe it was you. Let nme ask you the
question. Wen are bids avail abl e under that |oan
subject to the federal requirements?

A, As | understand it for this particular project,
they would Iike to have hard bids for contractors in
hand before closing the loan. So that requires us to
engi neer the projects, put themout for conpetitive bids
at Davis Bacon wages to get those final bid nunbers and
then that is what they fund the |l oan on at D vision of
Drinking Water.

MR ATWATER. Ckay. Thank you.

M5. SCHM D:. May | have pernmission to ask one or
per haps two recross questions based upon the redirect?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yes.

M5. SCHM Dt

Q Is it your understanding that the proceeding
here today before the Public Service Commssion is a
separate proceeding fromthe application for a | oan
before the Division of Drinking Water?

A. It is nmy understanding that they are separate.

M5. SCHM D: Thank you. That's ny only question.
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MR. SAVAGE: And | have a question also if | may.

Q You said that the master plan -- there's
concepts of what needs to be done and then design plans.
Do you recall that testinony?

A Yes.

Q \What stage is the planning that you' ve done for
CAC that would relate to the interimrates for general
capital inprovenents? |I|s that a concept plan?

A At this point it's still a concept plan. W
have recently been engaged by contract to start the
design process for the |loan projects and we are just
barely getting that going. W' ve done sone site
surveying and a few other prelimnary things, but final
designs are not prepared at this tinme so those nunbers
are based on estimates.

Q Okay. So just sol'mclear. So for the
interimrate increase for general capital inprovenents,
that's still just at the estinmated concept stage?

A. Correct.

Q D d you call those nunbers high in the sky just
a mnute ago?

A. No, | said the idea of the design was concept
and that contractors won't bid concept high in the sky
desi gn.

Q And we are at the concept stage?
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11: 58 1 A. W are currently at the concept stage. rage 10
2 MR SAVACE: Thank you. Nothing further.
3 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Any fol l owup, M. Atwater?
4 MR ATWATER No. Thank you.
11: 58 5 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Wbul d you like to call your
6 next witness before we break for lunch and 1'Il allow
7 the other parties to weigh in on the question.
8 MR ATWATER  So does the conmm ssion feel that
9 M. Lewis needs to testify still with regards to
11: 58 10 questions it has with regard to the | oan?
11 THE HEARING OFFICER:  No. It wasn't ny intention
12 to express an interest on the part of the commssion to
13 examne Ms. Lewis. | think I inappropriately assuned
14  when she junped in that she intended to testify and |
11: 58 15 thought | would save ny questions for her.
16 MR SAVACE: | think right now the question is are
17 we going to lunch.
18 MR ATWATER  Yeah, I'mtrying to determ ne whether
19 | have any nore w tnesses.
11:59 20 MR, SAVACE: Ckay.
21 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Wil e you're talking
22 together, do the other parties have any position on
23  whether we should break at this tinme?
24 M5. SCHM D: | would support a break at this tine.
11:59 25 THE HEARI NG OFFICER:  Then |I'Il allow you to think
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1 about it over the break, M. Atwater. | m ght hasgg% e
2 fewnore questions for M. Wiite to the extent Ms. Lewi s
3 is not going to testify. So we'll proceed with one or

4 the other when we get back and nove to the Division's

5 case. W'I|l be in recess until 1:05.

6 M5. SCHM D. Thank you

7 (I'nterruption in proceedings.)

8 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Back on the record then.

9 Wl cone back everyone.

10 M. Atwater, when we adjourned for -- pardon ne --
11 recessed for lunch you were going to consult with

12 M. Lewi s and your client and determ ne whether or not
13 Ms. Lewis is going to testify.

14 MR. ATWATER. Yes, Ms. Lewis is prepared to testify
15 in this matter.

16 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Wbul d you like to call her

17 now?

18 MR ATWATER. Yes. The applicant calls Ms. Emly
19 Lewis to the stand to provide testinmony in this matter.
20 (Emly Lewis is sworn in as a witness.)
21 MR ATWATER
22 Q M. Lewis, would you pl ease describe for the
23  conm ssion your engagenent and involvenent with the
24  wat er conpany.
25 A. Certainly. | work for a private law firm here
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1 inthe city, Cydesdale and Sessions. | ama matg?g?ab}z
2 attorney which is ny primary field of practice. | was
3 retained by TCFC under the managenent of Larry Wite's
4  predecessor, TomJolley, in 2015 -- probably | ate 2015.
5 Since that point in time we have assisted TCFC in a

6 variety of water matters, including Community Water

7  Conpany matters. And they span from helping with

8 previous rate cases -- |'ve not really been involved in
9 this rate case nuch at all, but also a |ot of background
10 information. W' ve done a fair anount of work for TCFC
11 to understand what the water assets of Comunity Water
12 Company are. W've retained engineers to | ook at the
13 well assets and do well reports. W have | ooked at the
14 various contracts to determ ne their standing.

15 Extensive amount of water work for the conpany.

16 Q So |l just want to ask the question on your |ast
17 statenent there. You indicated that you have provided
18 extensive work for the conpany. And can you give us

19 nmaybe a bit nore context as to when you were engaged

20 initially for the conpany and your invol venment through
21 the process. | guess we're speaking commencing in 2014
22 which is when the current managenent becane invol ved.

23 A So we were retained -- | want to say |ike

24  Cctober 2015. So about two years ago. And we've been
25 involved since then. Wen we first cane in on
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1 Cctober '15 under the -- Tom Joll ey was at that trﬁ%et%t?
2 director. At that point in tinme the conpany was in the
3 mddle of its second rate case in 2015. The previous

4 rate case that had been filed in 2014 was issued

5 inconplete by the comm ssion, which is true because

6 the -- Varde had not yet taken -- had just taken over

7 and had not done a |lot of work to figure out what the

8 problens with the conpany were. And at that point in

9 time hired Bowen Collins to do the master study.

10 In 2015 when we cane on, we discussed a variety of
11 options for how to address the infrastructure problens
12 wth the conpany, but also the ongoing desire to have an
13  ownership change from TCFC to another entity who is nore
14 suited to run the water conpany.

15 In the 2015 case, we nmade the decision to wthdraw
16 the case because at that point in tine we were pursuing
17  discussions, both prelimnary discussions with

18 potentially Muntain Regional, with Sutmt, and al so at
19 that point in tinme potentially form ng a nutual water
20 conpany for the custoners that would be an alternative
21 to public -- So we were |looking at a variety of
22 alternatives for the conpany.
23 And so in 2015, we withdrew the public service
24 conm ssion rate case. At that point in tine, the public
25 service conmm ssion asked that we keep them apprized of
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_ _ _ Page 114
what we were doing. So we've had conmunications with

the Division of Public Uilities after that rate case
was W thdrawn. And then we -- our efforts turned to the
unfortunately unfruitful, in terns of making a nutual

wat er conpany or transitioning to Conmunity Water, to
Mount ai n Regi onal or Summt.

At that time in 2016, Division filed their rate
case which was a nmai ntenance and operations case and we
hel ped extensively in that matter.

Q Let ne ask you specifically about sone of the
matters that you were engaged in and the |evel of work.
So the testinony today fromthe Division -- excuse ne --
fromthe intervenors so far, the testinony -- the
suggestions have been so far that the conpany has not
done sufficient diligence, and the conpany has negl ected
its duties and responsibilities as a public utility.

In addition to all of the things that you've just
di scussed and that you' ve been engaged to do for the
conpany, are there any other instances where you have
seen a conpany involved in pursuing a path toward a
reasonabl e resol uti on?

A. Yeah. | think the nost -- the primary matter
t hat woul d probably resolve is securing financing for
the i nprovenents. And so after the conclusion of the

2016 rate increase which was limted to a rate that was
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sufficient for sinply mai ntenance and operations, even

t hough we did request sone additional anobunt of nobney to
fund a neter package so we could replace neters, that
was denied. W determ ned that the condition of the
conpany was in such a dire state that we needed to find
alternative funding. So at that point in tinme we | ooked
into finding funding sources on the private and public
mar ket s.

And that's when we decided to reapply for the state
revol ving fund | oan through the D vision of Drinking
Water. And we were always very open with the custoners
and the Division of Public Utilities about that process.
It's a very low interest rate loan. W had approval at
3.09 percent. It's rare it find noney that cheap. W
also with that had the expertise of the Division of
Drinking Water working with us. So a lot of my tine was
spent doing that as well.

Q Wiy do you think the -- why did the conpany
choose to go with the Division of Drinking Water | oan
versus any other possibility?

A. One of the problens that we -- one of the
i ssues that we wanted to address as pronptly as possible
was the fact that the systemwas an inportant addition
as denonstrated by the failure of the tank. So one of

our thoughts was that we would apply for funding and see
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if we could get the funding. And then we would find a

paynment restructure path through either transitioning to
a nutual water conpany format -- nost |ikely through
Summt or through the Public Service Conm ssion -- and |
had many di scussions with Mark Long about this process
as well. But nmaking sure that our |oan request woul d be
sonething that would ultimately be acceptable to the
Public Service Commission in asking for infrastructure

i mprovenents that woul d be appropriate to be covered in
a public service rate increase. And if we were able to
get out from underneath, Public Service Conm ssion
oversi ght would be repaid through assessnents and a

mut ual wat er conpany.

Q So you nentioned that you had conversations
with Mark Long. Wo was Mark Long?

A. Mark Long was the prior Division of Public
Utilities' technical assistant -- | don't know --
engineer. He had a very constructive relationship with
the Division of Public Uilities throughout the I ast
several rate cases. And | think that their expertise
has been very helpful. This is a unique scenario, so we
want to nmake sure that we were being transparent and
comuni cative with our regul atory agencies.

Q MWas it your understanding that the Division of

Public Uilities reconmended pursuing the | oan as a
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13:10 1 viable option for funding? rage L
2 A Yes.
3 MR ATWATER. | have no further questions.
4 THE WTNESS: | would like to nake just a
13:10 5 clarification statement fromour earlier coments. |
6 think one of the big issues that has been m ssing a
7 little bit in this discussion is that the first dom no
8 for getting funding for the D vision of Drinking Wter
9 loan is proving to the Division of Drinking Water a
13:11 10 structure of repaynent. And that's been the primry
11 focus for the conpany, once the | oan was approved, is
12 securing a restructuring of payment. And we have nade
13 great efforts to try and have that happen on a nutual
14 water conpany's side and a rate under a nutual water
13:11 15 conmpany if they were able to get custonmer consent to
16 switch to a nutual water conpany.
17 And what we're here today on the parallel path is
18 to find the repaynent structure for the Public Service
19 Comm ssion for that funding. And the loan will not be
13:11 20 closed until there is a repaynent structure under either
21  scenario.
22 MR ATWATER. No further questions.
23 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you. Ms. Schm d?
24 M5. SCHM D. Yes. Good afternoon. This is a very
13:11 25 unusual situation cross-exan ning sonmeone who has been
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retained for the conpany as an attorney, but who is

appearing here today as a witness for the conpany, not
an attorney. That said | have sonme questions and |']|
start.

Q Is noney for the tank replacenent currently in
the | oan application?

A. Presently the |loan is approved for
$3.6 mllion. That includes the $425,000 line item
assessment for the take that is approved by the board of
Drinking Water. Subsequent to the approval of the |oan
and on May 12th of this year, we've had discussions with
Julie Kobely at the Division of Drinking Water and have
removed the $425,000 line itemto try and fund the tank
t hrough a separate process that woul d be nore expedi ent
and cheaper for the custoners.

Q Your testinony conflicts with what | think I
heard the previous conpany witness say. | believe the
previ ous conpany w tness said the tank anount was still
in the | oan?

A Yes, it is. $3.6 mllion is our approved
amount and that includes noney for the tank. W' ve had
subsequent di scussi ons because the | oan process is that
you apply obviously. You apply on the best nunbers you
have avail abl e, which are nostly based on bids. And for

our case are based on estimates by Bowen & Collins as
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well as statenents from Summt Water Distribution

Conpany on sone mnor items. The loan is approved for
the total anount.

After that you have a | oan cl osing process period
where the | oan nunbers of which you applied for are
confirmed with hard bids. And so we have a nunber
approved for the tank, but our discussions prior to --
after the approval with Julie was to renove the tank
And then the final approved nunber that's closed is
going to be less than what was approved.

Q Wiy was the tank renoved or why is the tank
going to be renoved fromthe | oan?

A W initially discussed renoving the tank from
the loan for two specific reasons. First, we had hoped
to have a transition of the conpany to a nutual water
conpany that would be nore responsive to a speci al
assessnment, and we woul d be able to fund the tank
t hrough special assessnents under the nutual water
conpany. That was our hope.

Second -- and the point for that being is that
under standi ng the nature and the energency nature of the
tank, we wanted to find the nost expedi ent method
possible to get the tank built and functioning. Second,
the Division of Drinking Water | oan has a nunber of

federal requirenents including the Davis Bacon act, the
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1 m nority business act. It has a conpetitive bidz?%% He
2 process. That adds about 20 percent cost to anything
3 that you do. And so we were trying to keep the tank
4 | oan cost as |ow as possible to -- renoving it fromthe
5 Di vision of Drinking Water process and reduce the | oan
6 anmount -- or reduce the anount of the tank project.
7 Q Were you here when M. Wite testified about
8 what we'll just call the expected return of the Varde
9 group?
10 A. | was here, yes.
11 Q Do you recall that that was a m ni num of
12 13 percent?
13 A. | don't have general know edge of how the
14  conpany works, but | recall that M. Wite testified
15 that the mninmumrepaynent was about -- or preferred
16 m nimumreturn was 13 percent.
17 Q \What is the interest rate on the D vision of
18 Drinki ng Water | oan?
19 A, 3.009.
20 Q And the termof that |oan?
21 A It's a 20-year loan. Pretty sure it's 3.009.
22 Q Subject to check?
23 A. Subject to check.
24 Q In any event it's much cheaper than --
25 A.  Mich cheaper than 13 percent.
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Q Thank you. You read ny mind. 1Is it true that

the conpany is not precluded fromtrying to conply with
t hose federal requirenments such as the Bacon act, the
mnority act, and things like that?

A. W could voluntarily do those things, but I
don't know why we woul d.

Q Sorry. In the process of achieving the |oan
So the conpany could still try and conply with those
things for the | oan?

A.  For the tank project?

Q Yes.

A It would -- at this point in time the tank
project is far enough along in the process that it
would -- we've already bid -- nmy understanding is -- and
Tena Canpbell would really be the better person to speak
to this -- but for us to now reincorporate the tank
project into the Division of Drinking Water | oan would
require us to reduce several steps that would take a
fair amount of time for us to do like refitting. It
woul d require us to do a | ot of work.

The conpany has al ways been sincerely desirous of
getting this project done as fast as possible. So we've
done a lot of work on the tank already. To
re-incorporate that tank project into the D vision of

Drinki ng Water process wuld take a | arge anount of tine
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and effort and expense that would be duplicative.

Q Let's turn nowto the rate case that was --
resulted in an order in 2016 granting a rate increase.
Are you famliar wth that case? Do | have ny dates
right?

A | amfamliar with that case. It's the
unort hodox nature of this testinony.

Q You characterized that as a mai ntenance and
operations case; is that correct?

A. That is how |l would characterize it.

Q D d the conpany have the opportunity to include
ot her expenses such as salaries and things in its sought
after increase?

A | think it's very inportant to clarify that the
2016 public service comm ssion case was initiated by the
Division of Public Uilities. So therefore, we were not
the applicant in that case. And so we had the
opportunity through our direct testinmony and through
that case to include actual costs of which we tried to
include in ternms of mnor -- not necessarily large
capital -- but mnor systeminprovenents. And we tried
to include themthrough various data requests and
t hrough anmendnents to our direct testinony.

Q You're not testifying that because the conpany

wasn't the applicant, it had no duty to show that the
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13:18 1 rates resulting fromthat case would be just, reazg%gb}%?
2 and in the public interest, are you?
3 A. No, no. |I'mjust stating that at the tine the
4 conpany was preparing -- a little context m ght be
13:19 5 helpful. So when we stopped doing the rate case in
6 2015, the intent was because we were trying to get our
7 ducks in arowto figure out a way to inprove the
8 system to transfer ownership, and to nove the conpany
9 out of TCFC ownership, and to get the system working.
13:19 10 And so when the 2016 rate case was initiated, you
11 know, we were obviously active participants and wanted
12 to make sure that we had a rate that, you know, was
13 sufficient. But it was not a rate case that we cane
14  prepared for or ready to have it be a capital rate case
13:19 15 like the one we've filed at this point in tinme.
16 Q Could the conpany have filed a rate case at
17 that point in 20167
18 A It could, but at that point intinme we were
19 trying -- our ultimate goal is to | eave public services
13:19 20 comm ssion oversight. Because this is a small conpany
21 and it's an ill fit for this particular process. So at
22 that point in time our energies were focused to try and
23 find a way to transfer the conpany to another fornmat.
24 Q Is it still the conpany's desire to | eave the
13:20 25 regulatory unbrella held by the Public Service
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Comm ssi on? g

A, W believe that a different format would be
nore responsive to the needs of this particular company
considering the |arge amount of infrastructure
i nprovenents that are needed, the unknowns of the
conpany, and the general smaller size. Each time -- the
way -- and also the dil api dated condition of the conpany
and the lack of funds.

It's very burdensone to cone before the conm ssion
every tine that there is a tank failure or a well
failure. And we feel like a nutual water conpany or
anot her format woul d be nore responsive to both customer
needs and system i nprovenents.

Q In a nmutual water conpany, is it guaranteed
that every custoner will have a vote equal to every
other custonmer? O is it true that some custoners, |ike
the animals in George Owell's 1984, are nore equal to
ot hers?

A, Al mutual water conpanies are defined by the
articles and bylaws. So it would depend on how each
conpany is designed. Generally, the factors that
determ ne nmutual water conpany's ownership, if you're a
shar ehol der you own a proportionate anount of assets of
t he conpany. How your voting is structured is dependent

on how the conpany is forned.
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Q Are you famliar with the structure of Summt

Water Distribution Conpany?

A. Cenerally so.

Q Does Sunmt Water Distribution Conpany have
different classes of shares?

A, Summit Water conpany does have different
cl asses of shares.

Q Are the votes ascribed to each class of shares
i denti cal ?

A. Yes. And | believe that in a nonprofit code
t hey nust be so. So you have equal voting. Each class
must be treated -- shareholders in each class nust be
treated the sane. Different classes can be treated
differently dependi ng on how the byl aws of the conpany
are structured.

Q Soif |I owned say 14,000 A shares of stock, |
coul d outvote soneone el se who had one share of B stock
or Cstock in Summt, based on your know edge?

A. M understanding is that Summt -- it's the
voting structure is limted to B shares and A shares are
voting shares. But C and D shares are not voting.

Q Ckay. You talked a little bit about the |oan
application process and your discussions with M. Long.
As an attorney, are you aware of the standard of proof

that is required for the conm ssion to base a decision
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1 on regarding rates? rage 128
2 A Yes. And | think that -- | think that this is
3 an inportant point. And | also want to clarify what

4 we're here today as today -- today is an interimrate

5 case. So the process is neant to be -- this is an

6 interimstep where -- ny understanding is going to be it
7 wll be trued up at the end of the final rate case, so

8 the burden of proof is on the applicant. | understand

9 that.

10 Q Do you understand that docunentation sufficient
11 for a loan application may not be sufficient evidence

12 for the Public Service Comm ssion upon which to base a
13  decision?

14 A | believe it would be sufficient for an interim
15 case.

16 Q That is your legal opinion?

17 A. That is our hope today. So nmy understanding is
18 | think that this is where the situation for this

19 particular conpany is a little bit unorthodox. The

20 matter is that for -- we're under now the auspices of

21 several separate state entities. W're working

22 concurrently with the Division of Drinking Water, wth
23 the Public Service Conm ssion, Division of Public

24 Uilities, and all of our custoners who are their own

25 regulatory entities. Sonetinmes they wield great power.
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At the end of the day, pragmatically we all share the

sane goal of trying to fix the system and trying to fix
it in an environment that is not necessarily conducive
to neeting that goal in an expedited manner.

And so at this point in tinme, what the conpany has
done is it's provided the best information as possible
as it is today with the hope that we can run the
Di vision of Drinking Water | oan process and the Public
Servi ce Conm ssion process concurrently to get the
information ultinmately needed by both.

M5. SCHM D. Those are all ny questions. Thank
you. This was very unusual

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Savage?

MR SAVACE: Thank you, Your Honor.

Q M. Lewis, you attended all of the neetings
with the custoners -- representatives of the custoners
t hat we' ve been tal king about; correct?

A. | believe so.

Q Isn't it true that at |east one of those
neetings you presented a proposal for a period of nonths
to pay off the tanks that would be paid off before any
need to start paying for the $3.6 nillion | oan?

A.  We've had several discussions about how to
finance the tank project and the capital inprovenents.

And generally those di scussions have included paying off
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the tank loan prior to the Division of Drinking Water's

debt service -- You know, we need to restructure
paynent for that.

Q Before January of 2019?

A If we are able to secure a rate that the
Division of Drinking Water finds sufficient as to be
repaynment of the |oan, and we are able to close the | oan
this April, the first paynent on the loan will be in
2019. At this point in time, that being said, those
dates may change dependi ng on what -- how the
construction goes and how the process plays out.

Q Al right. Can you tell us what the proposa
you recall nmaking for these two assessnents or interim
energency rate increase as well for the tank and one to
start paying off the loan. Just tell us what you told

t he wat er users.

A. In early June we had a neeting with the water
users. The tank failed in md-April. W had several
conmuni cations by mail that are -- portions of which are

included in your testinmony. And then we had a public
neeting early June to discuss the solutions that we had
cone up with, of which one was, as | stated, our goal
was and still is to try and find a better format for
this conpany of noving to Summt or a nutual water

conpany. And repaynent of the loan for the repaynent
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1 would be -- for the tank project would be -- the F??%tlzg
2 chunk would be -- it would be earlier. And then the

3 repaynment on the Division of Drinking Water woul d be

4  subsequent to that.

5 Q Was that to be -- with respect to the tank, was
6 that to pay off a loan fromthe parent of CAC to

7 immediately replace the tank?

8 A. So the TCFC has fl oated several proposals, but
9 the proposal | think you're alluding to is that we had
10 stated that the parent conmpany woul d provide a | oan.

11  That being said, you know, nmaybe this should have been
12 nore clearly stated, that that | oan is contingent upon
13 having a repaynent structure. And then that would have
14  gone first under a period of 18 nonths. The proposal is
15 an 18-nonth | oan.

16 Q How nuch per nonth, do you recall?

17 A. In terns of per person paynent?

18 Q Yeah.

19 A. | don't recall how nmuch per person

20 Q But it was an anount of noney that would retire
21 $450, 000?

22 A Yes. At that point intinme it was a $450, 000
23 | oan.

24 Q Eighteen nonths?

25 A, Yeah.
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13:28 1 Q And it would be paid off before the Ioanpﬁgikgﬁ)
2 off for paynments of the 3.6 mllion?
3 A.  Qur goal was to create as little -- our goal
4 was to create the nost consistency possible. So it
13:28 5 worked out serendipitously if we structured repaynent of
6 the tank loan to dovetail with the paynents to the
7 Division of Drinking Water | oan, water rates woul d
8 remain relatively the sane for custoners and there
9 wouldn't be a |large debt or increase and that was our
13: 29 10  goal.
11 Q Does it stick in your mnd it was about a $50
12 increase over the existing rate? Sonmething like $95 or
13  sonet hi ng?
14 A.  That woul d make sense to ne.
13:29 15 Q So what you're telling us is that the proposal
16 was that there woul d be a short-termincrease of the
17 water rates up to a total $95 base rate until the tank
18 was -- noney for the tank was paid back to the parent;
19 correct?
13:29 20 A.  That was one of our proposals, yes.
21 Q And then that woul d be hopefully done before
22 the sane anmpbunt of noney kicked in to retire debt over
23 20 years fromthe -- for the $3.6 mllion?
24 A Yes. | nmean, this is all subject to -- these
13:29 25 were estimates and not final nunbers.
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1 Q | understand. But the goal and the propgg%? o
2 was essentially that it would be something Iike a $95
3 base rate that would stay the sane after the md-1|oan
4  kicked in?

5 A. That's also why we're asking for our general

6 rate case now as we'd |ike to have consistency with our
7 rates.

8 Q And the noney for the tank was to cone fromthe
9 parent conpany?

10 A. At that point in tinme, yes, that was our

11 proposal in June.

12 Q \Wat was the interest rate on that |oan?

13 A. At that point in tine, | believe it was to

14  match the Division of Drinking Water | oan.

15 Q 3.39 percent? Not 13?

16 A. That is true. But as we said that was a

17 proposal .

18 Q And who nmakes -- well, let ne back up. | can
19 show you these docunents, but I'mjust going to -- in
20 front of ne the June 12, 2017 comunication to the

21  custoners of CWC. Do you recall that?

22 A.  Yes.

23 Q By the way, did you review that before it went
24 out ?

25 A.  Yes.
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13:30 1 Q Andit's signed by M. Larry Wite, but Egge e
2 signs as chief executive officer, TCFC Fi nance Conpany
3 and as manager of ASC Uah LLC, is that correct?
4 A. | don't have that information to speak to
13:31 5 Larry's -- | nean if it says that on the paper, yes.
6 \Wether or not that's an accurate statenment of his
7 titles, | don't know.
8 Q Wll, that's not ny question
9 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Savage, do you have a
13:31 10 copy of what you're reading to the witness fronf
11 MR. SAVAGE: No. But | could give her mne. [|'m
12 sorry. | didn't have copies of it. | didn't know we
13 were going through this.
14 THE WTNESS: Me neither.
13:31 15 MR- SAVACE: Do we need to mark it as an exhibit?
16 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Do you want to introduce it?
17 MR SAVACGE: |It's already attached as Exhibit B to
18 ny statement so I'll refer to it that way.
19 M5. SCHMD: Could we go off the record for just
13:31 20 one nonent ?
21 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Certainly. Let's go off the
22  record.
23 (I'nterruption in proceedi ngs.)
24 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Do you want to go back on the
13:32 25 record, M. Savage?

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www. | i tigationservices.com


http://www.litigationservices.com

13:32

13:32

13:32

13: 33

13: 33

13: 33

HEARI NG DOCKET NO. 17-098-01 - 10/19/2017

1 MR, SAVAGE: Yes. rage 19s
2 Q I'll show you now what's been nmarked as Exhi bit
3 B to your statenent, and can you identify that docunent?
4 A, Yes.

5 Q \Wiat is it?

6 A.  Throughout the conpany's tenure under 20144,

7 it's one of our goals to have constant comunicati on and
8 transparency with our custonmers. This is one of those

9 letters that was going to i nform custoners about a

10 variety of issues. You know, one is the continued tank
11 failure and irrigation restrictions and then fundi ng

12 options for that. Two, an update on the Division of

13 Drinking Water | oan and conpany transfer.

14 Q And it's signed by M. Larry Wiite?

15 A.  As chief executive officer, TCFC Co., LLC

16 manager ASC Utah. So he is the -- yes.

17 Q In your experience in dealing with this

18 conmpany, is he the person that makes the decisions for
19 Community Water?

20 MR ATWATER  (bjection. The docunent that's being
21 referenced does not state what is being suggested. It
22 states --

23 MR SAVACE: |'ve got a question pending.

24 MR, ATWATER:  Sorry.

25 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  You're objecting. You're
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1 saying the question msstates the evidence?
2 MR. ATWATER:  Correct.
3 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Wl |, the wi tness just
4 conferred it's stated correctly.
5 MR ATWATER | object to the response.
6 THE WTNESS: | think it's unclear about how this
7 title is stated what exact role Larry is playing in
8 ternms of managenent.
9 MR SAVACE: That's what I'mtrying to find out.
10 MR ATWATER TCFC is the manager of ASC Ut ah.
11 That's what it says.
12 MR SAVACE: And he's also -- | see what you're
13 saying. But he's the chief executive officer of TCFC?
14 MR, ATWATER. Ri ght.
15 THE W TNESS: Yes.
16 MR SAVACE
17 Q Is he signing as a manager of ASC? Do you know
18 if he is a manager of ASC?
19 A. | believe that his testinony woul d be the best
20 for this. | don't feel qualified.
21 Q But anyway, it appears to you that he's signing
22 on behalf of ASC who is the nmanager of TCFC and as a
23 chief executive officer of TCFC, is that correct?
24 MR ATWATER  The reverse.
25 MR, SAVAGE:
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1 Q OCkay. W'Il reverse it; is that correclta%gel135
2 don't really care. I'mjust trying to get to what he
3 does.

4 A. ASC Uah is the manager of TCFC and he is the
5 CEO of TCFC.

6 MR SAVACE: That's what | thought | just said.

7 MR ATWATER. No, it's reversed. | think

8 M. Wite's testinony is consistent with that.

9 THE HEARI NG OFFICER: | think the docunent can

10 speak for itself. At this point we can probably nove
11 on.

12 VR, SAVACE:

13 Q At this point, I do not really care. He's not
14 signing as any officer or enployee of CAC, is that

15 correct?

16 A. He's not signing as C\C

17 Q The parent controls this conpany, does it not?
18 A.  Yes.

19 Q And M. Wite nmakes the key deci sions?
20 A. My understanding is he does. | do not know
21 what the corporate structure is behind him | feel
22 unconf ortabl e answering corporate structure questions
23 for where he falls in.
24 Q Fromwhat you've observed, he's the guy that
25 nmakes the decisions for OAC, is he not?
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13:35 1 A.  Fromwhat |'ve observed, Larry Wite nakggge +o0
2 decisions for CWC. Wether or not he is the only voice
3 who nakes those decisions, | do not know.
4 Q The other voices would al so be TCFC voi ces or
13:35 5 ASC or Varde voices?
6 A. In the corporate famly, vyes.
7 Q So the parent and the string of parents --
8 well, we've already said they control the conpany. Do
9 vyou recall we discussed -- you and | as early as June or
13: 36 10 rmaybe even in May -- that an alternative to trying to
11 get everybody to agree to a rate increase not going
12 through the PSC, that an alternative would be to apply
13 to the PSC for an interiminmedi ate rate increase to
14  cover the tank?
13: 36 15 A. The PSC is always available for us to go to in
16 terms of our rate increase. The decision nade was that
17 we were going to discuss -- it's always been an option
18 and hence why we are here today -- it's also an
19 expensive option and I think that we as a conpany were
13: 36 20 hopeful that we could find a format to transfer the
21 conpany to a nutual water conpany or other format and
22 not need a PSC rate case which is an expensive drawn out
23 process. That did not cone to be, and hence we filed a
24 rate case in Septenber
13:37 25 Q And that was M. Wite's decision?
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A Utimately, yes. | would say.

Q So it was the decision of the parent to not
imediately file for the PSC for the reasons you j ust
stated, but instead to try to do sone deal with Sunmt
and the users. And it was his decision to finally file
for the rate increase in Septenber?

MR ATWATER  Obj ection. Argunentative.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Sustained. It was conpound.
Maybe you can break it down.

MR SAVACE: Yeah, it's compound.

Q MWas it his decision to postpone filing for a
rate increase to cover the tank?

A.  There were many, nmany conversations that cane
to that conclusion fromseveral voices, both from
counsel, both discussions with Sunmt Water Distribution
Conpany or discussions with the custoners.

Q Who nmde the decision?

A Utimately |I guess it would be M. Wite, but |
think that it was a | ong drawn out process to get to
t hat point.

Q | understand the process. |I'mjust trying to
| ook at who controls this conpany and who deci des
whet her or not to fund it. Was it also his decision
that gave you -- or M. Atwater the decision to go ahead

and file for this rate increase in Septenber?

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www. | i tigationservices.com



http://www.litigationservices.com

13: 38

13: 38

13: 38

13:39

13:39

13: 39

HEARI NG DOCKET NO. 17-098-01 - 10/19/2017

© o0 ~N o o b~ w N

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N OO0 0o b~ wWw N +—» O

_ _ Page 138
A. Once it becane clear nuch earlier than

Sept enber that the conpany woul d not be able to
transition to a tinmely manner to a nutual water conpany,
we began preparing in preparations for this rate case.
W ultimtely were in a position where we could do so in
Sept enber after several weeks of preparing and
collecting rate docunents.

Q W nade the decision to go ahead?

A M. Wite.

Q You were present when the proposed structure
for what's been called a nutual conpany was presented to
the representatives of the custoners?

A.  Yes.

Q And do you recall if there were two cl asses of
stock being proposed, class one and class two?

A. W had an open discussion with our custoners
about what kind of corporate structure would best neet
their needs as well as the needs of Sunmmit Water
Di stribution Conpany, who was the operator of the
system

We di scussed having two classes of stock. One for
a use stock. That would be a general custoner stock.
And one for a stock that would be held by Sunmt Water
Di stribution Conpany so that they could have sone

control in the managenent of the conpany of which they
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1 were operating. rage 199
2 Q Did you say sole control?

3 A.  Sone control.

4 Q Sone control. D dn't they have total control

5 of the proposal?

6 A. This was a draft proposal for discussion.

7 Q In the draft proposal, wasn't it proposed they
8 had total control and they could elect the majority of

9 the board?

10 A.  The underlying principle was that we wanted to
11 find a structure that provided Sunmmt the autonony to

12 make | arge decisions on the conpany they operate, and

13 they would be able to make those decisions in a tinely
14  and expeditious manner. So the class of stock that gave
15 them sone nanagenent control was an option to do so.

16 Q But it gave them nmanagenent control ?

17 A.  But not sole ownership of the conpany.

18 Q That's true. But the other owners could only
19 vote for a mnority of the board?

20 A. W had discussed several formats for what the
21 board woul d t ake.

22 Q I'mjust dealing with the one that was

23 presented to the custonmers at one of these neetings.

24  That one was a class one stock that only Sunmt would

25 own, and it would vote for a majority of the board. The
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user, the custoner, would have class two stock and coul d

only vote for the mnority of the board?

A.  And | believe that although that structure was
di scussed, the concerns of the conpany -- of the
custoners are nediated by the fact that they would have
voting powers on certain issues such as raising the
managenment fees. And so it was not a sol e managenent,
but it was an active di scussion about how to neet the
needs both of Summt as the operator and as the custoner
as participants.

Q | appreciate your explanation, but you didn't
answer my question. Wsn't that proposal, the only one
presented to the custonmers -- didn't that propose class
one stock would be owned only by Summt and Summt coul d
vote for majority of the board, and all the custoners
could do with their stock would be vote for a mnority
of the board?

A.  The corporate bylaws were structured that way,
but the managenent agreenent provided for greater
custoner participation.

Q MWasn't that the proposal of the ownership of
t he conpany presented to the custoners?

A. It was a proposal we discussed, but it was
nodified by -- it just --

MR ATWATER  Objection. Asked and answered.
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13:41 1 THE HEARING OFFICER: | think it has been asig%ea%%I
2 answered, and | wonder how material this is to the
3 decisions that we need to make today. |If M. Savage has
4 a question or two to wap up, that's fine. But | think
13:41 5 we should nove on to nore substantive issues before us
6 inthis interimrate hearing.
7 MR. SAVACGE:
8 Q In fairness, that neeting broke up, did it not,
9 wth there being sone discussion that there would be an
13: 42 10 effort to get back to the custonmers with sone
11 nodi fication that would give thema controlling vote on
12 certain key issues?
13 A.  Yes.
14 Q D d that ever happen?
13:42 15 A. W have now fully formed corporate bylaws and
16 articles, nmanagenent agreenent, a subscription agreenent
17 and terns and conditions ready to present to the
18 custoners.
19 Q But it hasn't been presented yet?
13:42 20 A W are waiting for -- to see -- once this rate
21 case becane a little bit npbre contentious, we were
22 waiting to kind of see what the -- what the result of
23 the rate case was going to be, to see if that was an
24 effort worth continuing.
13:42 25 Q Does Sunmt still require in any transfer of
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ownership to it of the control of CAC -- do they still

require as a condition to that deal that the conpany get
out from under Public Service Comm ssion supervision?

A, Presently it's structured to be Conmunity Water
Conpany nonprofit stand al one conpany that will be
mai ntained on its own. And Summt Distribution Conmpany
wi Il be the manager and operator of the conpany with an
intention to nove the conpany to Sunmt at the end of
the Division of Drinking Water | oan repaynent peri od.

Q You didn't answer ny question. Do they stil
want to get out fromunder the supervision of the Public
Servi ce Commi ssi on?

A Summt Water Distribution Conpany, |I'mnot a
representative of that conpany and don't fee
confortabl e conpletely answering on their behalf. But
ny understanding is that their intention is to remain a
nmut ual wat er conpany of which they would |ike to have
any -- and do not want to have a conponent of the
conpany be publicly regul ated.

Q D d you understand that the custoners or the
representatives of the custoners at this final neeting
opposed what was presented, as a conpany they woul d not
be able to vote for majority of the board nenbers, did
not have a say in key decisions, and that M. Wite

said, "Well then, TCFC is not going to put any nore
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noney in the conpany"?

A.  The conclusion of the nmeeting with the
custoners was that we would go back and we would try and
neet custonmer demands and design a conpany that net
their needs and a managenent agreenent that net their
needs. And hence we did. And we nade a very nice
conpany. And the reality of the finances of continuing
t he conpany without a rate increase or an assessnent
t hrough a nutual water conpany that's adequate to cover
cost and capital infrastructure, is that it's a conmpany
| osi ng noney. Hence why we are here today to have an
interimrate case to increase our cost so we can nake
needed i nprovenents.

Q Have you | ooked at the books enough to know
that the conpany is |osing noney because it put a ban on
outside irrigation?

A. | do not have know edge to answer t hat
questi on.

Q So you don't know why the conpany is |osing
noney?

A. | have | ooked at the rate nodel of the revenue
we'd need to perform-- to have the conpany performat a
capacity that provides adequate water service, and they
are far in excess of the current rates.

Q Do you know why the conmpany is |osing noney?
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You just said they're losing noney, that's why we're

here today. Do you know why? What inpact is the ban on
irrigation?

A | believe it's a historical problemon the ban
of irrigation water. The sunmary is not going to be
indicative of the total financial picture of the
conpany.

Q But is it indicative of why the conpany is
| osi ng noney today?

A, I'msure revenues were decreased from decreased
irrigation, but | don't think that's a particularly
rel evant question for what we're doi ng now.

Q Well, you said it was. You said that's why
we're here today. | want to know what you know. Do you
know why the conmpany is | osing noney today?

A. W don't collect enough revenue.

Q Do you know why you don't collect enough
revenue?

A. Because our PSC rates are insufficient to cover
our costs and our need for capital inprovenent.

Q Well, your PSC rates include tiers of water
usage? Do you know if you're really getting to those
tiers of that irrigation?

A. W also don't have any neters to neasure the

wat er comng into our system
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Q Answer ny question.

MR ATWATER.  (Cbj ection; argunentative.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Restate your question
M. Savage.

MR, SAVACE:

Q W also have approved rates for increasing
gal l ons used -- increasing rate per gallon ultimtely.
And do you know that those rates, those increased tiers
are not even being approached because there is no
irrigation?

A. The rate of structure currently to have a base
rate that shoul d cover our basic costs w thout
consi derations of volunme. That basic rate -- base rate
in the opinion of the conpany is insufficient currently
to cover our costs and not going to cover future costs.

So while volune does play a neasure in the anmount
of nmoney and revenue the conpany takes in, the base rate
is really intended to be the operating cost of the
conmpany. And at the last rate hearing we went from $36
in our base rate to $30 in our base rate. And so we
understand that -- or are recommended 36 to 30. The
base rates really is a bulk of how we nmake a | ot of the
needed costs to cover conpany costs which is irrel evant
to usage.

Q Have you read ny subm ssion to the conm ssion?
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2 Q Are you aware of what | proposed as an

3 alternative to pay for the tank?

4 A | am but it would be better for you to present
5 that.

6 Q Wwell, I think it's $50 a nonth for each 500

7 users for 12 nonths which would be well nore than

8 $500, 000, and then that be paid off before any rate

9 increase to start paying off the $3.6 mllion loan. So
10 that representation to you, is that significantly

11 different fromwhat the conpany was proposing during our
12  neetings?

13 A, It's not significantly different. The issue is
14 atimng issue. Right nowthe current problemis that
15 there's no -- there is very little operating revenue for
16 us to pay for the needed engineering and ot her costs

17 needed to conplete the Division of Drinking Water | oan,
18 to complete the needed capital inprovenents in place.

19 So while in June that may have been a very good way
20 to go about things, nowthat we're in Cctober and the

21 transition to a nutual water conpany did not cone to be,
22 there may be a better format to neet the timng needs of
23 what we're doing.

24 Q And do you understand that ny proposal woul d be
25 just like your representation to the users that the

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www. | i tigationservices.com



http://www.litigationservices.com

13: 48

13: 49

13: 49

13: 49

13: 49

13:50

HEARI NG DOCKET NO. 17-098-01 - 10/19/2017

Page 147

1 bridge | oan woul d cone fromthe parent conpany that

2 M. Wite is the executive officer of?

3 A. | believe that the fundamental issue is we just

4 need a proven rate repaynent structure for either a

5 Dbridge loan, the Division of Drinking Water | oan. Any

6 noney from outside sources we get, we just need a proven

7 rate of repaynent. And if there is a sufficient rate

8 approved by the Public Service Conm ssion that woul d

9 allow us to have repaynent of our |oans, then | think

10 that the conpany woul d be, you know, anenable to that.

11 That's our goal. That's what we want.

12 Q By the conpany you nean the parent M. Wite's

13 the chief executive of?

14 A | can't speak for M. VWite, but ny

15 understanding that that is true. W're |looking for a

16 repaynment structure.

17 Q And "we", you're tal king about both on behal f

18 of CAC and its parent?

19 A | don't feel confortable talking -- | don't

20 feel qualified to speak to whether or not that would be

21 appropriate for the parent conpany. But | think CAC

22 just is looking for repaynment structure.

23 Q | appreciate your candor on CWC' s desire to get

24 out fromunder public service conm ssion's authority and

25 | want to ask you about that. Isn't it true that the
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1 conpany has stated -- conpany representatives havgage e

2 stated in your presence and even you stated that it was

3 deened that it would conplicate the deal with Sunmt

4 \Water for the conpany to apply for energency rate

5 increase to cover the tank back in June?

6 A | believe this is an inportant point to

7 clarify. The conpany has always been diligent in trying

8 tofind away to get this tank built and operating. The

9 issue is just finding a nmethod of repayment, whether it

10 be a TCFC | oan, whether it be a D vision of Drinking

11 Water loan, the issue is finding a nethod of repaynent.

12 And the conpany has explored several options to do that,

13 which has been a transfer and which has been a public

14 service conm ssion filing. So parallel paths.

15 We are here on public service conmm ssion's side

16  because the timng becane apparent that the other path

17 wasn't going to work, and we needed to get funding in

18 place or repaynent structure in place.

19 Q Has the conpany stated that it was concerned

20 that applying to the comm ssion would conplicate

21 concluding its deal wth Summt Water?

22 A. One of our initial concerns and it's still a

23 concern is the timng of which a Public Service

24 Comm ssion rate process takes. This is an interim

25 hearing. And a larger rate hearing is still going to
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t ake many weeks and nonths to go forward. Qur hope and

intent was to get custoner support to transfer to a

nmut ual water conpany in a shorter period of tine to have
a rate structure under the share assessnents of a nutua
wat er conpany in place to repay | oans.

That did not happen so we are here under the public
service conmi ssion's -- the considerations are still the
same. |It's still a conplicated process. It's a long
conpl i cat ed process.

Q And matters pending under the Public Service
Conm ssi on would conplicate finishing the deal with
Summt Water?

A. They're parallel paths.

Q Wre they parallel or did you wait unti
Septenber to file before the conm ssion when we needed
t hat tank desperately being under construction in June,
July and August ?

A. W needed a rate repaynent structure and that's
what we've been doing. W' ve been trying to figure that
out through a nutual water conpany or through the Public
Service Conm ssion. And once we determ ned that a
nmut ual wat er conmpany was not going to be the nost
expedient way to do that, we filed for the Public
Service Conm ssion. W took several weeks to get our

paperwork together and we filed in Septenber. |
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1 don't -- we're here and we couldn't be here any ?%1%? elr50
2 than we are anyway because we woul dn't have had any

3 information to provide to the Public Service Conmm ssion
4 without that tinme anyway.

5 Q Sois it fair to say it was not exactly

6 paral |l el ?

7 A, We're working in unison.

8 Q Pardon?

9 A. W're working in unison. The point is being
10 that it also took us sonme tine to get the information
11 that we needed collected to get to the Public Service
12 Conmi ssi on.

13 Q And it was the parent's decision through

14 M. Larry White to wait until Septenber 13th to apply
15 for a rate increase that woul d cover repaynent of the
16 | oan for this tank?

17 A Utimtely.

18 Q Yes? Right? You have to answer.

19 A.  Yes.

20 MR. SAVACE: That's all | have. Thank you very
21 much.

22 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER Thank you, M. Savage.

23 M. Lange?

24 MR. LANGE: Yes. | have one question, Emly.

25 Q So you're pretty know edgeabl e about the | oan
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13:53 1 application; correct? rage ISt
2 A, Yes.
3 Q The Division of Drinking Water. So | have in
4 front of nme, this is part of the conpany's testinony

13:53 5 here. There was a scoring table. The |loan had a score
6 of financial points. | believe it's called 26. And ny
7 question would be if it scored higher, would that
8 sonehow [ower the interest rate or affect the terns of
9 the | oan?

13:54 10 A. So the Division of Drinking Water -- and | may
11 not state this exactly correctly -- has a priority |ist
12 system where they | ook at the deficiencies of a project,
13 and that will determ ne what the -- how they prioritize
14  giving | oan funds.

13: 54 15 They al so have a medi um adj usted gross income
16 netric which depends on where you live in the state,
17 whether or not you apply for grants. W scored very
18 high on the deficiencies so we were a priority list --
19 we were higher on their priority list in terns of their

13:54 20 priority for funding. Due to the ZIP Code in which the
21 conpany is located, we did not qualify for any grants
22 based on nedi an adjusted gross incone netric.
23 Q So the point of ny question here is category
24 three called project funding contributed by the

13:55 25 applicant, has a scoring systemof zero points to 17
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1 poi nts.

2 And the application here shows that there was no --

3 OWC was apparent -- applicant here was | ess than

4 2 percent of projected funds. So I'mcurious if we were

5 to take, for instance, the possibility of the loan from

6 the parent conpany to cover the tank, that we'd probably

7 see 10 percent of the projected funds, maybe closer to

8 15 percent. That woul d add sonewhere between 11 to --

9 or 14 points on which would change the score from26 to

10 maybe 40 or 37. So with that kind of a score would

11 there have been perhaps a |lower interest rate or nore

12 favorable | oan?

13 A. | think that the terms of the |oan are

14 absolutely the nost favorable that we were going to get.

15 | do not think they're going to issue anything | ower

16 than what we received, and I think it's inportant to

17 remenber the timng of which things happened. W

18 applied for the loan in February or March and the tank

19 failed in April. So when we submtted our initial

20 application, the tank had not yet failed. The tank

21 failed in April and the | oan was approved in May. And

22 so the -- | don't -- the timng wouldn't have worked out

23 well. The timng wouldn't have worked to have

24 included --

25 Q But ny question is nore directed to -- granted
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you got the nost favorable rates based upon your score

here. Had the score been higher 11 or 14 points, would
you have gotten or would you get even nore favorable
rates?

A.  That would be a decision that woul d be nade
based by the Division of Drinking Water. That being
said, you would al so be paying 13 percent or whatever it
is on TCFC | oans.

Q I'monly concerned with this particular |oan
and the rates and how this particular scoring system
affects the rates.

A.  That woul d have been a Division of Drinking
Water decision. M belief is that | asked every single
way possible to get us the lowest interest rate and to
get us the nost grant noney possible, and | was assured
by the Division of Drinking Water that this was the best
we could get. And | think it's very good for our needs.

MR LANGE: Thank you. That's all the questions I
have.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Ms. Ml er?

M5. MLLER | have no additional questions.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you. | have a few
M. Atwater, would you |like to reserve your redirect
until after | ask nmy questions?

MR ATWATER  Yes. Thank you.
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1 THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'I| infer, M. LemAS,P??%n}54
2 one of your responses to a question earlier about

3 ultimately truing up the interimrates, you understand
4 thisis aninterimrate hearing?

5 THE WTNESS. Right.

6 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  And there will be anot her

7 hearing in April to determine if the rates should be

8 going forward. And you used the term"true up" so |

9 take it you understand the rates are potentially to be
10  refunded?

11 THE WTNESS: Yes.

12 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Based on your know edge of

13 the conpany's books and accounts, will it have

14 sufficient cash to refund the custoners noney shoul d an
15 adverse determ nation be made in April?

16 THE WTNESS: That is a good question. | don't

17 know the answer to that. | think it will depend on what
18 the ultinmate rate we receive here is. |If there is an
19 adequate reserve that we could -- potentially could

20 refund people sonme noney fromit. Qur intent is

21 hopefully to not have that happen. But | don't know the
22 answer to that.

23 THE HEARI NG OFFICER:  Well, to the extent the

24  comm ssioner granted CWC' s request with respect to the
25 special charge on the tank and assessed the full fee of
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a thousand and change on the custoners, would CAC be in

any position to refund that noney in April to the
custoners?

THE WTNESS: | don't believe that -- in terns of
repaying themthe lunp sumto get their thousand dollars
back?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Right. Repaying all the
noney that was coll ected under that provision of the
interimloan?

THE WTNESS: Well, | believe that noney woul d be
going to pay for the tank.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: R ght.

THE W TNESS: Yeah

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  So the noney woul d not be
avai |l able to be refunded?

THE WTNESS: No. It would not be available to be
ref unded because it would be going to pay for tank costs
t hat are being spent.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  And you did, | thought, an
excellent job of describing the DDWI| oan process. At
least | feel | understand it better than | did before.
But I mght want you to repeat yourself a little bit.

So you said that the CWC applied for the DDW I oan
in April; is that correct?

THE W TNESS: The application was due in March
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THE HEARI NG OFFICER. It was due in March?

THE WTNESS:  Unh- huh.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  And was there a line itemto
replace the failed tank, it just hadn't failed yet?

THE WTNESS: No. So the original |oan application
requests are for a two-part project. So the first part
project was a replacenment of transm ssion and
distribution lines, a pressure reducing valve and neter
conponent. And then a second -- and that's the first
package. And then the second package is a water
treatnent plan replacenent. So those are the two --
those are the line itens initially included in the |oan
request .

Wien the tank failed in April, we adm nistratively
asked the Division to include a line itemrequest for
the tank to present to the board of Drinking Water, and
the |l oan was finally approved including noney for the
tank. W took that noney back out subsequently to
address the two issues | addressed earlier for
expedi ency and cost purposes to try and fund the tank
not through the Division of Drinking Water | oan.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  What's the projected closing
date for the DDWIloan as it stands today?

THE WTNESS:. As it stands right nowit's nost

i kely going to be April.
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THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Non-specified date in April?

THE WTNESS: No. W're -- honestly a |arge
conponent of it hinges on this hearing.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER | see.

THE WTNESS: W cannot -- one of the conditions of
closing the loan is having a rate repaynment structure.
And until we can either prove through either a share
assessnent structure or through a Public Service
Commi ssi on approved rate increase, we cannot close on
the loan and that nmoney will no | onger be available to
us.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Wbul d inserting a request for
funds to pay for the failed tank back into the DDWI oan
del ay that closing date?

THE WTNESS: Yes. It would also increase the
cost. So the problemwith inserting it back in is that
we're just too far along in the process. Particularly
so that the Division of Drinking Water |oan requires a
conpetitive bid process, whereas taking out of the |oan
we are able to directly go to a contractor and directly
go to an engineering firmto do the designs. If we are
to put it back in the D vision of Drinking Water |oan
process, we'd have to scrap all that and put it out to
conpetitive bid.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  So what's your best estimate
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of how long the | oan would be delayed if you were to do

t hat ?

THE WTNESS: |If we were to put it back into the
loan, | don't -- | can't say. It would really be just
duplicative efforts is what it would be. And ultimtely
the custoners are going to bear the cost of the conpany.
So we'd be hesitant to do that because it would be
duplicating efforts for the custonmers as well.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Let's assune for the sake of
argunment that all the costs were deened acceptabl e.

What woul d the del ay be?

THE WTNESS: |'mnot quite sure, but | probably
woul d -- but we probably would just roll it into the
| oan and have it close in April as well. See the --
we'd roll it into the loan, so we'd just follow the sane

tracks, package A, package B, and it woul d probably
be -- just becone package C of the loan so that it would
close in April.

The problemis that it would still put us -- it
would still put us with a late sunmer conpl etion date.
Wiereas if we keep it separate, we're hoping for an
early summer conpletion date, and the custoners' primary
concern is their irrigation water

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Because under the DDW

financing for the replacement tank you can't order it
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14: 03 1 until the loan cl oses; correct? rage Y
2 THE W TNESS: Exactly.
3 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  And you estimated it woul d be
4 a late sunmmer conpletion?
14: 03 5 THE WTNESS. That's when we were intending to end
6 nost of our construction and --
7 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Those are all ny questions.
8 Thank you. M. Atwater?
9 MR, ATWATER
14: 03 10 Q So it has cone up a few tinmes in questioning
11  why the conpany decided to restrict irrigation --
12 outdoor irrigation. Can you explain.
13 A. Certainly. So when the tank failed in April --
14 One, | think it's inportant to recogni ze on the record
14: 04 15 if this has not yet been discussed, we've had anple
16 discussions with the custoners about alternatives for
17 the tank. W' ve tal ked about bl adders. W' ve talked
18 about all kinds of ways to try and get continued water
19 through the conpany. And at the end of the day, the
14: 04 20 cost and the tinme was to just try and repl ace
21 i medi ately the tank.
22 And so at that point in tinme, we are operating our
23 one primary water tank. And with -- in consultation
24 wth the Summt County Fire Departnent, it was
14: 04 25 determned that that tank was inadequate to support
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14: 04 1 i ndoor watering, outdoor watering, and maintain aPage o0
2 mninmumthreshold for fire protections.
3 And so we nade the decision that an irrigation
4 restriction and watering restriction was allowed for
14: 04 5 under our tariff during an energency condition, and that
6 we would restrict outdoor watering to maintain that
7 mninumfire suppression of quantity in the tank.
8 Q Had you wanted to renove the restriction, did
9 the conpany have water to allow for the restriction to
14: 05 10 be lifted?
11 A, Was there anple water to --
12 Q Correct.
13 A 1 don't think -- I don't think I know the
14  answer to that.
14: 05 15 Q Solet ne ask it in a different way. D d the
16 conpany have to pay for water from Summt Distribution
17 Conpany?
18 A.  So there was discussion about providing
19 irrigation water through Sunmt -- providing irrigation
14: 05 20 water through Summt Water Distribution Conpany. This
21 was problematic for two reasons. First, it's nmuch nore
22 expensive to hire Sunmt WAater conservation -- or to
23  higher -- to buy Summt Water and so that cost would
24 have been -- we woul d have been unable to pass it al ong
14: 05 25 to the custoners at their current rate. So that extra
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cost woul d have been assuned by the conpany.

Second, Sunmit was unwilling to provide irrigation
wat er because they've already put their customers under
a conservation rate which is intended to have them
reduce their water consunption. So providing extra
water for irrigation purposes did not fall into their
managenent structure of how they wanted to nmanage their
wat er resour ces.

Q So had the company, the applicant, wanted to
rai se revenues in order to pay for expenses, it did not
have the ability to lift its irrigation restriction
because it didn't have water and the water from Sunm t
Water was not available; is that true?

A.  True.

Q There has also been a big line of questioning
t oday about why the conpany did not pursue this hearing
until Septenber. Have you ever been involved in a rate
case hearing for a public utility other than for
Conmunity Water?

A.  No, | have not.

Q Have you been involved in one previously on
Conmunity Water?

A.  Yes, | have.

Q How long does it take to prepare for a rate

case?
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1 A It takes a substantial amount of tine. And |

2 believe that's also reflected in the 2014, turning our

3 application back as inconplete, in that it takes a

4  substantial anount of time. And that's also one of the

5 reasons why we've applied for this interimrate hearing

6 is that we need hard engineering. It takes tinme to do

7 that.

8 Q And so instead -- or as a parallel path, the

9 conpany chose to do as you testified, which is seek

10 other methods of finding funds for the conpany, which is

11 conpletely permssible and all owed by the code?

12 A, Yes.

13 Q M. Savage asked you a question about the

14  decision making of the conpany and who was responsibl e

15 for that decision nmaking. Are you aware that with the

16 company's direct testinony, there was filed an

17 administrative services agreenent between ASC Utah and

18 the conpany?

19 A. | believe so.

20 Q Okay. | just want to note that for the record,

21 and the services that are required and provided

22 thereunder, it's that agreenent whereby the decisions

23  were made?

24 A.  Unh-huh.

25 Q Okay. | do want to ask a few questions
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1 regarding the loan just quickly. rage 169
2 So far as your testinony has been today the -- if

3 the tank, $525,000, is included in the Division of

4 Drinking Water |oan, the loan can still close in April?
5 The cost of the tank -- I"'msorry. 1'lIl do one at a

6 time.

7 A. Yes. W can include the tank in the Division
8 of Drinking Water loan. It would -- but the tineline of
9 the tank would also then parallel the tineline of the
10 other project conponents. So April.

11 Q So the loan can close in April?

12 A.  Uh-huh.

13 Q Wen can the tank be fully functional if it is
14  funded in April?

15 A If it's funded in April, | believe it would put
16 us towards the back end of summer. But really the

17 engineers would be a better witness for that.

18 Q Is it possible that waiting until April to

19 engage in bidding and redesigning, constructing --

20 because | believe M. Wiite testified earlier that it's
21 athree to four-nonth process. And so if it's April,

22 and we start that process in April -- My, June, July,
23  August, Septenber potentially -- and if we have

24 conditions that don't allow for it, it is conceivable
25 that the tank would not be constructed until 2019?
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1 A If we had an early wnter. | do want toPage o
2 clarify the bidding process occurs as part of the |oan

3 closing. You need to do the bidding process. The large
4 hiccup is that we aren't allowed to expend noney on the
5 actual construction outlays until the |Ioan is closed.

6 So we'd not be able to actually purchase the tank until
7 the loan is closed. And that's the biggest problem

8 because then that initiates the construction deadline

9 fromny understandi ng.

10 Q Geat. Thank you for clarifying. It's also

11  your testinony that the cost of the tank woul d increase
12 by roughly 10 percent?

13 A. Perhaps twenty percent. So the |oan request

14 for the tank originally when we included it after the

15 tank failure in April was a $450,000 line item So the
16 500 -- and since then tank costs have gone up. So ny

17  understanding of conversations from Sunmt Water

18 Distribution representatives, nostly M ke Fol kman and

19 Dave Fuller is that the bidding process is expensive and
20 it would increase costs by about 20 percent.
21 Q So we would be | ooking at a $650, 000 | oan at
22  3.39 percent payable over 20 years with the tank
23 potentially not being constructed until 20197
24 A. Potentially, yes.
25 MR ATWATER No further questions.
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14:10 1 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER Thank you. W therI(::Ja ee165
2 anything el se from CWC?
3 MR. ATWATER. No. That rests our wtness' case.
4 We do want to reserve the right to make a cl osing
14:11 5 st at enent .
6 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Understood. Thank you,
7 Ms. Lew s.
8 Ms. Schm d?
9 M5. SCHM D. May we have a five-m nute break?
14:11 10 THE HEARING OFFICER.  Yes. W'IIl be in recess
11 until 2:20. Thank you.
12 (Interruption in proceedings.)
13 M5. SCHMD. The Division would like to call
14 M. WIIiam Duncan.
14: 18 15 (WIlliamDuncan is sworn in as a wtness.)
16 M5. SCHM D
17 Q Good afternoon.
18 A. Good afternoon. |Is ny mcrophone on?
19 MR. GARY SM TH.  Yes.
14:18 20 M5. SCHM D
21 Q Please state your full name, business address,
22 title and enployer for the record.
23 A MW nane is WIIliam Duncan. |'mthe manager of
24  the tel ecormunication and water section of the U ah
14: 18 25 Division of Public Uilities. Business address, 160
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East, 300 South, fourth floor.

Q In connection with your enploynent by the
Di vi sion, have you participated in this case?

A, Yes.

Q Could you please briefly describe what actions
you or your staff -- because you' re a manager -- has
taken in this case.

A, Yes. After receiving the application, we net
t oget her and seeing that there was a request for interim
rates, we imedi ately set about trying to determ ne what
we could recommend. And in conjunction with that, we
went to Conmunity Water Conpany on Septenber 25th, |
think -- there were three of us -- and reviewed various
records, invoices relating to the costs of the conpany.

After the scheduling conference, we issued one data
request to try and get nore information in an effort to
determne if we could conme up with a rate that we could
support .

Q In connection with your enploynent and with
your work for the Division in this case, did you prepare
and cause to be filed your direct testinony marked for
identification as DPU Exhibit 1 which was filed on
Oct ober 13th, 2017?

A Yes.

Q Do you have any changes or corrections to that
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t esti nony? J

A.  Yes, | do.

Q The Division has passed out to the parties and
has placed on the hearing officer's table corrected
pages and a list that shows the corrections that need to
be made -- that need to be nmade. Wth that, M. Duncan,
coul d you please explain why corrections need to be
made?

A Yes. After filing our direct testinony, we
conducted further research about the tank, the storage
tank in question, and determ ned that it should probably
be classified as a distribution reservoir under NARUC
accounting codes. For those not famliar wth NARUC
it's the National Association of Regulatory Uility
Commi ssi oners, which is account code 330. Rather than a
col l ecting and i npoundi ng reservoir which is NARUC
account 305.

Q Is the depreciable Iife different for those two
account s?

A. Yes. The depreciable life for a distribution
reservoir is 30 years. In ny direct testinony | had
used a 50-year depreciable life and those rates are
prescribed by conmm ssion rule R746 dash 332.

Q In connection with the reclassification of the

appl i cabl e account for the water tank, nunbers in your
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1 testinony change? rage 108
2 A.  Yes, they did.

3 Q Could you please wal k us through those -- and
4 again this has been presented to counsel and has been

5 placed on the hearing officer's table.

6 A, Yes. On page five line 80, change 10,500 to

7 17,500. And change 50 to 30 to recogni ze the 30-year

8 depreciable life. Page five line 81, change 46,680 to
9 53,680. Online six -- page six line 88, change $7.73
10 to $8.89. And on line 89, change $46,680 to $53, 680.

11 And then lastly on page eight |line 124, change again

12 $7.73 to $8. 89.

13 Q Wth those corrections, if | asked you the sanme
14 questions that are set forth in your prefiled testinony,
15 would your answers today be the same as they were when
16 the testinmony was filed with the comm ssioner?

17 A Yes.

18 MS. SCHMD: Wth that, the D vision noves for the
19 entry into evidence of DPU exhibit nunmber 1.0, direct
20 testinony of M. WIIliam Duncan as corrected here today.
21 MR. ATWATER. No obj ecti on.
22 MR SAVACGE: No objection.
23 MR. LANGE: No objection.
24 M5. MLLER No objection.
25 THE HEARING OFFICER: It's admtted
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SCHM D:

MVS.
Q M. Duncan, do you have a sunmmary?

A.  Yes, | do.

Q Also, the scheduling order permtted |ive
rebuttal. Do you have anything in that context?

A. Not that |I'maware of right now.

Q Okay. Please proceed.

A. The Division of Public Uilities is a posed
one-time assessnment or any other short-term assessnent
regardi ng cost recovery for replacenment of the failed
tank. The D vision believes the recovery of any cost
shoul d reasonably match the expected Iife of an asset
being placed in public service. |In this case, the asset
in question, a storage tank has a depreciable |ife of 30
years.

During the course of that 30 years, the Division
expects a substantial nunber of custoners will nove out
and new custonmers will nove in. Some will likely stay
several years, while others will be short-term
occupants, requiring the current generation of custoners
to provide cost recovery imediately, will create an
i nter-generational inequity.

An inter-generational inequity exists when one
generation of custoners incurs the cost of an asset or

expense, while another generation of customers receives
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the benefit provided by that. Cost utility regulation

has a | ong history of well established practices of
provi ding cost recovery for investment in
infrastructure.

Cost recovery is acconplished through capitalizing
a new asset and receiving a reasonable rate of return.
The Division views the addition of this new storage tank
no differently. The Division believes Comunity Wter
shoul d secure financing, build a storage tank,
capitalize the asset and have cost for recovery included
in rates. These practices ensure that the utility
custoners pay only for the benefits they receive during
the tinme period they receive service fromthe utility.

For this reason, the Division believes that the
one-time assessnment is not in the public interest and
opposes the one-time assessnent for the storage tank
replacenment. This conpletes ny summary.

M5. SCHM D. Thank you. M. Duncan i s now
avai l abl e for cross-exam nati on questions and questions
fromthe hearing officer.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: We'll start with M. Atwater.

MR ATWATER  Thank you.

Q M. Duncan, you stated in your testinony -- or
you suggest, | should say, and you just stated that the

conpany shoul d procure investor funds to pay for the
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14: 26 1 tank immediately? rage 172

2 A.  Yes, they should. They should do their own

3 financing, whether it's funding frominvestors or

4 funding fromthe lending institution.
14: 26 5 Q Are you aware personally of any options

6 available to the conpany outside of the options that

7  have been supported and di scussed today?

8 A. No, |'mnot aware.

9 Q Have you ever had a public utility conmpany the
14: 26 10 size of Community Water need funds in this manner?

11 A. | cannot recall. | can recall one special

12 assessment, but it was not an assessnment for capital

13  needs.

14 Q And how did they obtain funding for that?
14: 27 15 A.  They applied to the conm ssion.

16 Q No outside funding, no outside |oan, no

17  investor funds?

18 A. No. It was fromthe custoners.

19 Q Okay. Do you believe it's in the public's best
14:27 20 interest to potentially |ose an additional irrigation

21 season by waiting to have the tank constructed?

22 A.  No, | believe that the conmpany shoul d nove

23 ahead as quickly as possible.

24 Q Gkay. And without funds, how do you propose or
14: 27 25 how do you suggest the conpany nove forward?
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. Page 1/2
A Well, | would propose, as stated in ny

testinony, that the conm ssion issue an order that

all ows for cost recovery upon conpletion of the tank
whenever that is. And dependi ng upon such things as the
final cost of the tank and the financing packages used.

Q But no suggestion as to where the funding would
conme fron?

A No. [It's not our job to try and help or try
and manage the conpany or point themto different
fundi ng sources. That's a conpany deci sion.

Q So availability of funds, timng and
availability of funds, is irrelevant to your
recommendat i on?

A. No. Timng and availability of funds is
relevant. You should -- | think the conpany should
pursue fundi ngs as soon as possi bl e, whether through DDW
or other sources.

Q Do you believe the conpany has pursued
adequat el y avail able funds or potential funding sources?

A | don't know. | only know that they pursued
DDWfunds. And in the application it tal ks about
potential |enders. | don't know who those potenti al
| enders are.

Q Ckay. Let ne rephrase this a little bit. |If

t he conm ssion were to approve your proposal, which is a
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repaynent -- a cost recovery over 30 years?

A.  Unh-huh.

Q The presunption that the conpany woul d nake in
that regard would be that it would be -- the only funds
available to it would be the DDWIloan. And if that were
the case, the potential of not constructing the tank in
2018 is great. And if we assume --

M5. SCHM D. Objection. This is a conpound
question and | believe counsel is testifying.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER:  It's sustained. |If you want
to break up your question that woul d be hel pful.

M5. SCHM D: Thank you

MR, ATWATER:  Sure.

Q If you had a choice of recommending to the
conm ssion construction of the tank in 2018 at a hi gher
i nredi ate cost to the custoners versus construction of
the tank in 2019 at a |ower cost to the customers, what

woul d your reconmendati on be?

A. Hi gher and |ower are relative. | nean, you're
tal ki ng much hi gher and nmuch lower? | don't think I can
answer that question until | see, you know, what the

difference is.
Q Let ne rephrase the question. Wat's nore
i nportant then? Finances or having water inmmediately or

as soon as possible?
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1 M5. SCHM D. (Objection. | think that the duf?%g %}4
2 the Division of Public Uilities while broad, do not

3 enconpass naki ng managenent deci sions for the conpany.

4 And with that | object to the question

5 THE HEARING OFFICER: | did not really hear an

6 evidentiary basis for the objection. I'mfine with

7 M. Duncan answering to the extent he has an answer.

8 THE WTNESS: Could you repeat the question

9 MR ATWATER:

10 Q Sure. If you had a choice in your

11 reconmmendati on of having a higher cost financially to
12 the custoners with the immedi ate resolution to the | ack
13 of water versus a |ower cost, but a delayed receipt of
14  water, what woul d your recommendati on be?

15 A.  You know, | can't answer. | don't know. 1'd
16 have to |l ook at what the relative difference in the

17 costs are.

18 Q Okay. And we believe that is before the

19 commission, that it's avail able.
20 A. But I'mjust hearing higher and lower. [|'m not
21 heari ng nunbers.
22 Q Ckay. So Ms. Lewis testified that if the tank
23 is included in the DDWI| oan, the total cost of the tank
24  woul d be $650, 000 approximately, so it's an additional
25 $125,000. The tank potentially would not be constructed
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until 2019. The interest rate would be 3.39 percent

verses if the conpany were to build the tank i mediately
on its fastest track, the cost of the tank woul d be
$525, 000 at sone rate between 3.39 and 13 percent?

A. Ckay. The way you structured the question
makes it sound like it's not only faster, but |ower cost
if it's done in 2018.

Q | agree

A So | would say the |l ower the cost and the
faster you could do it, the better.

Q Geat. Thank you. | do have questions, a few
questions about your witten testinony.

A ay.

Q Wth your witten testinony you included
Exhibit 2.1 which was redacted in part?

A.  That was not a part of ny testinmony. That was
part of M. Smth's testinony.

Q Okay. I'Il reserve it for him

Have you ever had a situation before the conmm ssion
where a public utility was not able to receive funds
after exploring all options w thout approval of the
conm ssion or prior to approval of the conm ssion?

A. State that again, please.

Q So the Division of Drinking Water | oan, one of

the conditions to receive those funds in closing is that
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there be an approved rate sufficient to cover debt

servi ce and repaynent of principal?

A. Correct.

Q Have you ever had a situation before the
conmmi ssi on where that was the case?

A. | have not. [|'msure there's been sone in the
conmmi ssion -- in our agency, but not in ny particular
cases that |'ve handl ed.

Q Does the Division of Public Uilities
understand that to be the case for this matter?

A Yes. | think it was in ny testinony that you
need -- the Division of Drinking Water needs a repaynent
approval before they can nove ahead with the | oan, and
that's why we put in our testinony that we would |ike
the conmi ssion to approve a rate that is sufficient.
Now sufficient is going to depend on the cost -- the
final actual cost of the tank and the financing that's
used.

Q Okay. Thank you. In your experience --
shifting gears to the general increase. |n your
experience, has there ever been a situation where you' ve
had to recommend or not reconmend a rate increase where
t he proof and evidence of the rate increase was based
upon estimates of an engi neer?

A. No. Not in ny experience.

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www. | i tigationservices.com



http://www.litigationservices.com

14: 34

14: 35

14: 35

14: 36

14: 36

14: 36

HEARI NG DOCKET NO. 17-098-01 - 10/19/2017

© o0 ~N o o b~ w N

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N OO0 0o b~ wWw N +—» O

_ _ Page 177
Q And have you ever had a situation where

approval of the rate is based upon | oan requirenents?

A, Yes.

Q Do you mnd describing that for us, if you
remenber ?

A. Yes. | was involved in a case with a
t el ecommuni cati ons conpany al nost ten years ago that
they had certain | oan covenants that they had to neet.
And they were in financial distress and they had to neet
t hese | oan covenants on a |loan they'd taken out. So we
based an interimrate on financial covenants.

Q Okay. | have no further questions.

A ay.

Q Maybe | have one. So just to reiterate your
recommendation, is this still your recomendation, given
t he proceedi ngs today, that the conpany sonehow find
| oan -- or sonehow find funds and then recover those
costs over a 30-year period?

A, Yes.

Q Do you believe that that is a business decision
or is that --

A. No. That's a regulatory principle, not a
busi ness deci sion. A business can make deci sions on
their owmn. W try and nake recommendati ons based on

wel | - est abl i shed principl es.
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Q ay. And as a followup to that question,

based on the proceedi ngs today and based on the previous
question | had for you, do you feel l|ike the Division of
Drinking Water loan is the nost appropriate nethod of

f undi ng?

A | can't say that it's the nost appropriate. |
can say that it's a very, very good interest rate. But
whet her it's the nost appropriate, | don't know what
else is out there in the financial markets.

Q Even at the risk of losing another irrigation
season?

A Well, | thought we just established that it was
a | ower cost and qui cker response based on using the
Drinki ng Water | oan.

Q No. | think it was the reverse. And | guess
the issue I'mtrying to get at is, if the Division of
Drinking Water loan is the procedure which has a cl ose
recovery period to the 30-year period you're suggesting,
t hey roughly match up.

A.  Unh- huh.

Q If the loan that M. White suggested is
potentially available -- based on certain conditions is
avail able -- that one of the conditions of that |oan
presumabl y woul d not be repaynent over 20 years or 30

years, for that matter?
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1 A.  I'munclear on what | oan he's proposing F%%? ik

2 mght be avail able.

3 M5. SCHMD:. njection. Calls for speculation from

4 the wtness.

5 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Wiy don't you clarify your

6 question, M. Atwater. Sustai ned.

7 MR. ATWATER: Yeah

8 Q So the question is, | guess M. Wite testified

9 earlier today and we've been tal king all day about the

10 idea of an affiliate loan in the anmount of $525, 0007?

11 A.  Uh- huh.

12 Q M. Wite also testified that there would be

13 conditions that would match his investors' funds to

14 repay that loan. Do you recall that?

15 A Yes.

16 Q In addition to the interest rate, there would

17 be a repaynment period that would be nmuch shorter than 20

18 years. |In fact, it's been stated today that that was

19 sonmewhere between 12 and 18 nont hs.

20 A As | state in ny sunmary that we woul d be

21 opposed to a short-term assessnent. |t doesn't

22 reasonably match the asset |ife to the repaynent peri od.

23 So an 18-nonth loan or 12-nonth, it does not match a

24  30-year investnent.

25 Q Okay. And that's great. | hope that clarifies
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1 the point. The point is that the cheaper nore

2 beneficial option is not avail able based on your

3 testi nony?

4 M5. SCHM D: Objection. | think that "not

5 avai l abl e" is vague.

6 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Sustained. | thought it

7 m sstated the testinony. |If you'd |like to rephrase

8 that's fine.

9 MR ATWATER:
10 Q If the $525,000 affiliate loan is nade with a
11 repaynent period of 18 nonths --
12 A, Kkay.
13 Q -- can you conpany repay that | oan based on
14 your recomendati on?
15 M5. SCHM D: (Objection. That calls for facts not
16 in evidence. The conpany has -- it appears different
17 ways to finance, and | do not know that the conpany's
18 recovery through its custoners is the only neans of
19 recovering noney to pay a debt. | don't know and I
20 don't think anyone here knows.
21 THE WTNESS: WII| you repeat the question?
22 MR, ATWATER  Sure. |If | renenber the question.
23 Q If the agreed repaynent period for the
24 affiliate loan is 12 nonths or 18 nonths --
25 A.  Ckay.
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1 Q -- would your recommendation provide thepage e
2 conpany the ability to repay that |oan?

3 A. | believe the Divisions's position wuld be

4 that an 18-nonth [oan presents the same inequity that we
5 have wth an i medi ate repaynent, that you have inter-

6 generational inequality, where custoners -- the

7 immediate custonmers pay for a service that they may not
8 use for very long. And subsequent customers cone in two
9 years later and get the benefit of sonmebody that's nade
10 that paynent.

11 Q And the foll owup question would be, the

12 Division of Drinking Water loan is a 20-year repaynment
13  period?

14 A. Correct.

15 Q Your cost recovery is a 30-year period. Wuld
16  your recomendation be sufficient to repay the Division
17 of Drinking Water | oan?

18 A. | think the 20-year |oan nore reasonably

19 matches a 30-year depreciation.

20 Q But still --

21 A, Still not exactly, but it's nore reasonabl e.

22 It's a closer match.

23 MR ATWATER Geat. Thank you.

24 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Are you finished,

25 M. Atwater?
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1 MR ATWATER  Yes. Thank you. rage 182
2 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Savage?

3 MR SAVAGE: No questions.

4 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Lange?

5 MR. LANGE: Yes. |'ve got a couple of questions

6 here, M. Duncan.

7 Q So if the custoner base, maybe through its

8 intervenors, felt that a shorter tine period -- even

9 though there isn't an equity there -- was a nore

10 responsible answer to getting this tank -- because there
11 is an imedi ate need for the tank -- and a new owner 20
12 years fromnow was not suffering or potentially could

13 suffer fromwe -- what we can suffer fromhere in the

14 short term-- so if the customer base through the

15 intervenors suggested a shorter time period, would you
16 fight us onthat? O |I'mnot sure |'m phrasing that

17 quite right. But would you disagree with us on what we
18 are willing to do?

19 A. | think that the Division's position would be
20 the sane, but | think that if you have a desire for that
21 type of loan then you should make that argunent with the
22  conm ssi on.

23 Q Well, | guess nmaybe at some |evel, perhaps

24 we'll do that. But right now we're trying to figure out
25 how to get some noney going right away for the tank.

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www. | i tigationservices.com



http://www.litigationservices.com

14: 43

14: 43

14: 43

14: 43

14: 43

14: 44

HEARI NG DOCKET NO. 17-098-01 - 10/19/2017

1 Li ke today -- rage 188
2 A. | agree.

3 Q -- or when the conm ssion nakes a decision. So
4 I'mfine appealing to the comm ssion on this. Then so
5 beit.

6 A, Unh- huh.

7 Q But again | just want -- | guess you're telling
8 me that you would not agree with what we woul d want ?

9 A. | would state that we have our position and our
10 position is that the repaynent period should closely

11 match the asset |ife.

12 MR LANGE: GCkay. | understand. Thank you very

13  nuch.

14 THE HEARI NG OFFICER:  Ms. M ler?

15 M5. MLLER | have no comments or questions.

16 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Ms. Schmid, woul d you prefer
17 | ask nmy questions before you redirect?

18 M5. SCHM D:. Yes, please.

19 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Duncan, based on reading
20 your testinony, | inferred that you or other individuals
21  who work at the Division have had comuni cations with

22 individuals at DDW is that correct?

23 THE W TNESS: W have.

24 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Who has been involved in

25 those communi cati ons?
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THE WTNESS: Mself and M. Smth and Mark Long.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Has DDW nade any
representations to you or to anyone el se at the Division
to your know edge concerning the availability of funds
to finance the replacenent of the failed tank?

THE W TNESS: Yes.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  And what were the content of
t hose representations?

THE WTNESS: They were very close to what
Ms. Lewis testified to just a few m nutes ago, that they
could still put funding for the tank back into the |oan,
but it would require that they backtrack and take
sone -- and do sone steps that they had not done when
pursui ng an outside -- you know, getting bids from--
without following all the federal regulations so it
woul d be a del ay.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Do you have any opinion as to
whet her the representations we've heard from ot her
Wi t nesses today concerning CAC s ability to order the
tank or otherw se begin preconstruction work before | oan
cl osing are accurate?

THE WTNESS: | would say that they are generally
accurate. And confirmwhat we' ve tal ked about with
Drinki ng Water.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  So DDW has confirned to you
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or others at the Division that the construction cannot

be -- pardon ne -- preconstruction work cannot begin
prior to closing?

THE WTNESS: That is correct.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Do you have an opinion as to
whether CWC' s estimate that the tank will take
approxi mately four nonths for manufacture is accurate?

THE WTNESS:. | don't have an opinion on that.

THE HEARING OFFICER:  So in light of everything you
know about the case, as we sit here today do you have an
opi nion as to whether financing through DDWremains a
feasible alternative?

THE WTNESS: | believe it renains feasible,
al though | can see that Community Water woul d have to
act quickly to backtrack and do sone of the steps that
they did not do. So it's feasible, |I think, and it's --
as has been testified to it's a very good interest rate.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. Let's change tracks
and assune for a nonment that the Conm ssion were
inclined to agree with the Division wth respect to its
recommendation on the failed water tank. | believe your
testi nony suggests that the order in this interimrate
proceedi ngs shoul d provide sone sort of authorization
that would satisfy DDWthat it would be assured of

repaynment; is that accurate?
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THE WTNESS: Yes. That's accurate. But in

addition to DDW in the application -- Drinking Water's

application in paragraph 18, it said w thout assessnents
to cover the debt service and repaynent, the conpany has
been unable to denonstrate to potential |enders a clear

path of repaynent. So | think it should not only apply

to DDW but maybe other | enders that they may have

tal ked to.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Understood. And one sort of
specific question, if we go to page five of your
corrected testinony which was handed out earlier today,
begi nning on line 75, the question reads, "Does the
Division have an estimate of the additional revenue
required to recover the cost of rebuilding the failed
wat er tank."

THE WTNESS: Correct.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  You state, "Yes, based on the
i nvest ment of $525, 000 and | oan repaynent conditions of
20 years at 3.39 percent, the | oan repaynent would be
$3,000 -- pardon nme -- $3,015." On an annual basis you
go on to explain that's $36,180. Then you go on to
conmbi ne an annual depreciation expense of $17,500 per
year; right?

THE WTNESS: Correct.

THE HEARING CFFICER: Is it consistent with genera
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1 rate making principles to allow for recovery -- bgg eut?7
2 The nonthly repaynent here of $3,000 -- | mean $3, 015

3 includes both the principle and interest paynent;

4 correct?

5 THE W TNESS:  Yes.

6 THE HEARING OFFICER: Is it consistent with

7 generate rate making principles to allowa utility to

8 recover the principle on its debt and al so depreciate

9 that asset in the sane year?

10 A. | don't know.

11 THE HEARING OFFICER: | don't have any further

12 questions. Thank you. M. Schm d?

13 M5. SCHM D: No redirect.

14 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you, M. Duncan.

15 Ms. Schm d, do you have anot her witness?

16 MS. SCHMD: W do. The Division would like to

17 call M. Gary Smth as its next w tness.

18 (Gary Smith is sworn in as a w tness.)

19 M5. SCHM Dt
20 Q Good afternoon.
21 A.  Good afternoon
22 Q | believe this is the first tine you' ve had the
23 opportunity to testify before a regulatory body; is that
24 correct?
25 A. That is correct.
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Q Here we go. Welcome. M. Smith, could you

pl ease state your full nanme, title, enployer and
busi ness address for the record?

A My nane is Gary Smth. And |I'menpl oyed by the
Division of Public Uilities, state of Uah. M address
is 160 East 300 South, fourth floor, Salt Lake Cty,

Ut ah.

Q In connection wth your enploynent by the
Di vi sion, have you participated on behalf of the
Division in this docket?

A. | have.

Q Did you prepare and cause to be filed what has
been premarked for identification as DPU exhi bit number
2.0, the direct testinmony of Gary Smith filed on
Cct ober 13th, 20172

A, Yes.

Q Do you have any changes or corrections to that
testi nony?

A. | do not.

Q If | were to ask you today the sane questions
that are contained in the prefiled testinony, would your
answers today be the same as those contained in the
prefiled testinony?

A.  Yes, they would.

Q Wth that, the Division noves for the adm ssion
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into evidence of DPU exhi bit nunber 2.07?

MR. ATWATER  No obj ecti on.

MR SAVAGE: No objection.

MR. LANGE: No objection.

M5. MLLER  No objection.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER:  It's adnmitted.

M5. SCHM D: Thank you

Q M. Smth, the procedural schedule permts live
rebuttal and Conmi ssion practice allows traditionally
W tnesses to present a summary. Wuld you pl ease
proceed?

A | would. In rebuttal, I'd just Iike to note
that the Division only has records that it receives from
the source. W received an annual report which is
required to be filed by the utility conpanies that we
over see.

According to 2015, the nunbers, the operating
nunmbers that we see for the conmpany, they were positive.
There was actually a surplus. 1In 2016, there was
reported to us a deficiency. The rate increase that
happened in 2016 took effect so the paynent of that
started at the first of this year. The annual anount
for that, just on the base rate al one, was nore than
sufficient to cover the deficit that was covered in '16.

| only say that to give you an indication of where we're
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at .

Now t hat doesn't include anything to do with the
tier grades and the inconme that would come fromthat.

But that's what the Division has been presented to it.
And since then the Division, in an effort to evaluate

t he conpany request for an interimrate increase,
conducted a focused on-site review of the conpany
records on Septenber 25th, 2017 and filed its first data
request on Cctober 4th, 2017.

As detailed in ny direct testinony dated
Cctober 13, '"17, the information and the rate increase
as presented by the conpany requires further
clarification and resolution of the noted
i nconsi stencies identified in ny Exhibit 2.1. Due to
t hese inconsistencies, the Division is not able to
determ ne whet her the conpany's interimrate increase as
proposed is just, reasonable and in the public's
interest. Therefore, the Division recommends the
conm ssi on not approve an interimrate as presently
proposed.

M5. SCHM D. Thank you. M. Smth is now avail abl e
for cross-exam nation questions and questions fromthe
hearing officer.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Atwater?

MR ATWATER  Thank you.
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1 Q M. Smth, you nentioned that the only rage 232
2 information -- financial information available to you is
3 that which was filed with the Division of Drinking

4 \Water; is that correct?

5 A. W only have information provided -- wait.

6 Q Excuse ne. The annual reports that were filed,
7 | apol ogi ze.

8 A, WAit. You nentioned the D vision of Drinking

9 Water, didn't you?

10 Q Sorry. | neant to refer to the annual reports.
11 A. Well, on an annual basis -- | nean, on an

12 ongoing basis unless we have a rate case, of course

13 there is that additional information that we request and
14  obtain.

15 Q Did you receive additional financia

16 information fromthe conpany in connection with the

17  application?

18 A, Yes, we did.

19 Q Is that information consistent with the filings
20 of the annual reports?
21 A, Actually, | would -- it's too hard to
22 determne. | nmean, we have spent an enornous anount of
23 time trying to reconcile the nunbers in the audit or
24  annual report to the nunbers in the invoices received.
25 So it has been a chall enge.
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Q In your first stated request, did the conpany

answer all of your questions?

A.  They provided sone information, but we were
still evaluating whether or not, you know, it conpletely
answer s everyt hi ng.

Q In your data request did you include

i nformati on about the inconsistencies?

A. In our -- we requested additional information
which -- but since that tinme and with the remaining
portion of the filing we becane aware that -- the
Di vi sion becane aware of a -- potential inconsistencies

and concerns with what expenses that a conpany actually

has.
Q \Were these deficiencies in amounts or title?
A Well, we were nade aware of the contract
that -- when we first net on Septenber 25th, we were

presented with sone information about the structure of

t he conpany and how the enpl oyees were paid and what was
consi dered included within the conpany's structure,
including an allocation of people's tine. W were not
made aware of a contractual agreenent until the filing.
And that was -- it was news to us and it's unclear for
us to determne what is covered under that as opposed to
t he ot her agreenents which a conpany has.

Q Have you reviewed the amounts due and payabl e
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under the adm nistrative services agreenent versus the

amounts al l ocated by the conpany prior to your know edge
of that agreenent?

A.  Wiich agreenent are you referring to?

Q The one that you just referred to, the
adm ni strative services agreenent that you becane aware
of in the response?
Ckay.

Let nme reask that question.

> O >

Yes.

Q So this docunent, it was filed under
confidentiality and so I won't discuss the nunbers of
t hat agreenent.

However, ny question for you is, did you conpare
t he anount payable on a nonthly basis under that
agreenent to the historical amount paid by or allocated
to the conpany for adm nistrative overhead?

A W took time to conpare on a nonthly basis what
was proposed under both. Both with the enpl oyees’
al l ocation and al so under the agreenent, yes.

Q And did you notice any material differences
bet ween the two?

A.  Yes. W could not reconcile the two.

Q The nunbers didn't reconcile?

A.  According to what we could tell, they did not.
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Q And were the anounts material, the

irreconcil abl e anmounts?

A.  They could be, yeah. | nean --

Q Are there any other inconsistencies or
deficiencies that you noted in the application that make
it inpossible for you to make a recommendati on?

A.  The bulk of -- well, the inconsistencies that
we di scovered are included in nmy Exhibit 2. 1.

Q Can we go through each of then?

A If you'd like.

Q Geat. Exhibit 2.1, page 1-B2, OAC w || pay

Summt Water Distribution. There is a contract between

Summt Water Distribution and Conmunity Water -- it's
been wel| established -- a certain anmount on a nonthly
basis. It's all been redacted. Your question -- your

statenent, your inconsistency, is that the anount
actually paid to Sunmt Water does not match the anount
under contract?

A. That is correct.

Q Does the conpany provide any explanation as to
why it's not the sanme?

A. W have not received any information.
Did you request that information?

We have not.

O > O

Did you read the | anguage of the contract with
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Summt Water Distribution Conpany?

A W did, yes.

Q Is the base anobunt that's payable on a nonthly
basis the only anmount that's payabl e under that
agreenent ?

A. No. That is not the ampbunt. There are other
t hings dealing with water supply.

Q So it's conceivable that the additional anount
that was payable to Summit Water Distribution Conpany in
excess of the base anount coul d have been for other
services provided under that --

A. | would have a hard tinme believing that because
we al so received other information or other invoices
specifically outlining that it was not -- it was supply
of water. So there was a definite delay issue between
what we could tell was the nonthly under the contractua
obligation to pay for the managerial services as opposed
to supply of water, yeah.

Q Thank you. That was not my question. The
agreenent that we're referring to with Summt Water
Distribution Conpany allows or permts the conpany to
ask Summt Water Distribution to provide additional
services in enmergency situations, in repair situations
and ot her circunstances that are not covered by the base

anmount .
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A, Ckay.

Q Is it conceivable that the additional anounts
paid to Summt Water Distribution are for those services
that are not paynent for water nor the base rate?

M5. SCHMD:. njection. Calls for specul ation.
It's beyond the scope of his testinony.

THE WTNESS: | will say that --

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Let ne rule on the objection.
It does call for speculation, but I'"'mgoing to allow it
because | think this line of questioning has sonme nerit
and | want to see where it goes. So it's overrul ed.

THE W TNESS: What brought it nostly to our
attention is that there was no difference between the
i nvoice received for the anount -- they were the sane
identical for each nonth. There was no breakout for
where that total came from and the anounts were exactly
the same. So it appeared to us, which requires nore
clarification, that potentially the contractual anount
was not the -- was not justifiable.

Q So you're suggesting that potentially there is
an anmendnent ?

M5. SCHM D: (Objection. Calls for specul ation.

THE WTNESS: | wouldn't have any -- that's not
what | said.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Sust ai ned.
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MR ATWATER:

Q Is it relevant to you in your recomendation
that the amounts paid to Summit Water Distribution
Conpany are different than what the contractual
agreenent states?

A |I'msorry. Say that again.

Q Is it relevant to your reconmmendation or |ack
thereof that the amobunt paid to Summt Water
Distribution is different than a contractual anmount?

A. Well, it's concerning to us because it raises
t he question of, you know, what other costs are being
treated properly as well.

Q Do you recall the discrepancy -- the anmount of
t he di screpancy between the paynents under the contract
and the anmounts that were paid?

A. | do.

Q Was it a material anount?

A Is it material. Well, | nmean, it could be,
yes.

Q Inpactful to the rate?

A. If this was the only one, that would be one
thing. But in addition to all the others, yes, it is.

Q Okay. Thank you. The next inconsistency is a
correct one, and we appreciate you pointing it out in

the adm ni strative services agreenent between the
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conpany and ASC Utah. There is a reference to a paynent

that is payable for adm nistrative services. That
contract, in your testinobny, as you point out states
that that is payable on a nonthly basis. And you
suggest that that should be payabl e on an annual basis
in equal nonthly installnments. 1Is that your testinony?

A. It appeared to us, because of the references in
ot her docunents, that this was incorrect and given the
amount we woul d --

Q In other information provided to you
specifically the rate nodel that was an exhibit to the
application, howdid it characterize that amunt? Was
it an annual or a nonthly anmount?

A. | believe it's identified as an annual anount.

Q Thank you. Do you believe that that clears up
t he inconsi stency?

A.  Yes.

Q Thank you.

A.  Although | do recomend redraft and resubmttal
to us of that corrected docunent.

Q Al right. Your third inconsistency, the daily
operati on and mai nt enance expenses of Conmunity Water
Conpany have been subsidi zed by affiliate |loans. That's
fromthe testinony of the conpany, that statenent.

Your issue with that is that it's unclear fromthat
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1 statenent that the conpany has any outstandi ng | oans

2 wthits affiliates. And you are correct, the financial

3 statements that have been submitted to the conpany do

4 not reflect outstandi ng payabl es and bal ances owed by

5 Community Water to any of its affiliates.

6 A My | clarify?

7 Q Sure.

8 A.  So you're saying that the conpany has no -- or

9 does have outstanding | oans?

10 Q That is correct. The testinony of the conpany

11 is that there are outstanding | oans.

12 A, Ckay. Are you aware that under a rate case and

13 going back to 2014, that those | oans shoul d have been

14 identified?

15 Q Sure. And maybe a bit of an accounting

16  discussion here would help. Otentines in accounting

17 software, it is referred to as an inner-conpany

18 transaction. And they're not necessarily always kept on

19 the books and records of the conpany. And the conpany

20 has with it today, and would like to submt into

21 evi dence, two exhibits. The first exhibit is referred

22 to as "Subsidi zed Expenses Payabl e" by Community Water

23 toits affiliates. [|'Il hand this out and then describe

24 it.

25 M5. SCHMD: | object. | do not believe there has
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not been a foundation laid for those exhibits, and am

not sure that M. Smith can provide that foundation as
he is not the conmpany w tness.

THE HEARING OFFICER: | think that's likely a
meritorious objection, but I haven't even seen it yet so
can we take a | ook at what you want to offer and then
we' || discuss it.

M5. SCHMD:. O course.

MR ATWATER I'Ill bring you both, so I don't have
to stand up twice. Just to counsel?

THE HEARING OFFICER: |1'd like a copy as well,
pl ease. Thank you.

MR. ATWATER  Should I give it to everybody?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yes.

M5. SCHM D: Havi ng exam ned the docunents that
were passed out to me, | renew and restate the objection
that | previously made.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER: M. Smith, have you seen
t hese docunents before?

THE WTNESS: | didn't get one now and | haven't
seen it before.

M5. SCHM D: He needs one.

MR ATWATER Not if there is an objection.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Well, M. Atwater, |I'm

skeptical about a line of questioning asking this
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15: 06 1 witness to testify as to the contents of these rage <ot
2 docunents. Not only because he has not reviewed them
3 but because no witness has attested to their voracity.
4 If you' d like to reserve this question or |line of
15: 06 5 questioning for M. Smth and recall the witness to | ay
6 sonme foundation, | think we can do that. But | think
7 that would be nore appropriate than having this w tness
8 testify to these docunents he's not famliar wth.
9 MR ATWATER | can do that. | can reserve sone
15: 06 10 time to recall a wtness. My | proceed?
11 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Absol utely.
12 MR. LANGE: Page one of three, page three of three,
13 but there is no page two of three.
14 M5. SCHMD: It's on --
15:07 15 MR ATWATER We'|l get back to it.
16 M5. SCHMD: Isn't it on the flip side?
17 MR. LANGE: No, no.
18 M5. SCHMD: It's on the flip side of mne.
19 MR, ATWATER
15: 07 20 Q So M. Smth, do you have any -- what is your
21 background in financial or accounting, if any?
22 A. | have spent nore than 20 years in the finance
23 industry. The last 13, | nmade municipal [oans. So |
24  Dbelieve | have a good standing.
15: 07 25 Q | do too. Have you ever heard of an
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1 inner-conpany table? rage <o
2 A Yes.

3 Q Wuld you describe what that is for us?

4 A. One part of the conpany nmakes another -- well,
5 it's actually between two affiliates usually -- makes

6 inner-departnment -- inner-conpany |loans. So they'l|

7 make a loan to the other division of the conpany. But

8 usually that's reflected in their annual reports.

9 Q Are you famliar with the consolidation

10 process?

11 A. Wiy don't you describe it.

12 Q Are you famliar with the consolidation

13 process?

14 A.  Wien you say consolidation process, what do you
15 mean?

16 Q Financial consolidation?

17 A. Right. So you take two affiliates and comnbine
18 them

19 Q Sois it conceivable that affiliate | oans would
20 not appear on financial statenments if they're
21  consol i dated?
22 M5. SCHM D: (Objection. Calls for specul ation.
23 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Overruled. W' ve just
24  established that M. Smth has sone expertise in this
25 area and he's being asked his opinion.
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THE W TNESS: Ask ne again.

MR ATWATER

Q Is it conceivable that if financials are
consolidated, affiliate |oans and payabl es woul d not
show up on those financial statenents?

A.  On which conpany?

Q Either.

A. Either conpany. So you're saying -- | guess
anything i s possible.

Q Is it common practice when conpanies are
consolidated that the elimnating entries renove
i nner - conpany transactions?

A. My background is not in corporate finance and
so | have to say that that part of the expertise would
probably be left to sonebody el se.

Q Okay. Thank you. Your next inconsistency
noted -- in the conpany's direct testinony they state
that the additional O&M requested in the application
whi ch are nom nal are all expenses either not understood
or subsidized at the tinme of the 2016 approval.

Your inconsistency is that it's unclear fromthis
statement that the nom nal addition to operation and
mai nt enance woul d account for the level of interim
increase in the rate the conpany has requested. An

interimadjustment to rate should reflect the
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denonstrated operation and mai nt enance needs of the

conpany and not its plans for future capital
i mprovemnents.

Wul d you explain what the inconsistency is there?

A Well, in part of it, it says that the costs are
nomnal. |In other words, a small change in operation
and mai ntenance. And so yet you just -- the request
going from$30 to -- I'"mnot sure exactly what -- but
the nearest we can tell, $42 is probably nore than
nom nal

Q Soline 44 in the testinony is referring to the
i ncrease in O&M charge only?

A.  According to what we understood, that's
correct. That's how we understood it.

Q And you just referred to capital charges which
woul d not be Q&WP

A. To clarify, because the interimrate is for --
is to evaluate what the needs of the conpany to operate
are. And we understand that there are capital needs,
however, the interimrate wouldn't necessarily account
for that because a lot of that is still unknown.

Q Wat additional information would the Division
need to nake that --

A.  \Wat additional information do we need to

eval uate the capital needs. That your question?
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Q No. This particular itemrefers to the O%

i ncrease from 2016 which was the original approval, the
2016 rate case.

Is it okay if | provide a little context because
you were not around then? So in 2016 the conm ssion
approved an &M rate whi ch has been di scussed today.

And the testinony is that that rate was not sufficient,
and that's why we're here again today, which includes
not only capital which is separate fromny question, but
also a slight nomnal increase in the O&M 2016 approval .

So ny question is what information was not provided
to allow the Division to eval uate whet her that nom nal
i ncrease --

A Wll, alot of clarity was not provided. So
it's hard to eval uate what exactly the needs are when a
| ot of these outstanding itens -- and maybe you could
separate themout individually -- but collectively they
pose a real obstacle for us to evaluate the exact needs
of the conmpany.

Q I'll rephrase -- or |I'll reask the question. |
don't believe it was answered. \Wat additional
informati on woul d the Division need in order to answer
t he question of whether they're reasonable that wasn't
al ready provi ded?

A Well, alot of what we found is within the two
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agreenents especially, we're not sure what covers at
and how nuch that is. 1In addition to that, there are
just outstanding itenms that -- we would probably submt

anot her data request to obtain that information on.

Q So unfortunately this is the interimhearing,
and this is a very inportant matter for the conpany.
And had the Division nmade that data request previously
to have been provided -- Wy didn't the Division --

MS5. SCHM D: (Objection; argunentative.

MR ATWATER

Q Wy did the Division not nmake --

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Overrul ed to the extent
M. Atwater asked why did the Division not -- previously
not request the informtion.

THE WTNESS:. As you know, we're on a very short
time frame to do that. And we actually have spent an
enormous amount of tinme going through trying to figure
out what exactly has changed from 2016 to 2017 that
woul d be enough to justify a rate increase.

MR ATWATER

Q Are you aware that the conmm ssion accepted the
application as conpl ete?

A. That is on a -- the acceptance of it being
conpl ete nmeans that you have provided the list of itens

onthat. So it's a checklist. Now the review of that

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www. | i tigationservices.com



http://www.litigationservices.com

15:14

15:14

15:15

15:15

15:15

15:16

HEARI NG DOCKET NO. 17-098-01 - 10/19/2017

Page 207

1 obviously can't take place at that nonent, so there is

2 no different -- there is no direct |ineation between

3 being a conplete file and being an accurate description

4 that is understood by the recipient.

5 Q Is it your testinony that the statute does not

6 allow you sufficient time to evaluate and request

7 appropriate data?

8 A. Gven what we have and the tine franme invol ved

9 wththat, it would be one thing if it was just a few

10 things to figure out, but there are a nunber of itens

11 that we just can't -- we can't reconcile the nunbers and

12 the things which we've been given, and we're going

13  through those now.

14 Q R ght.

15 A. That's the purpose of this.

16 Q Are you aware that this is the only hearing for

17 the interimrate increase?

18 A | am

19 Q Did you not think that was inportant to request

20 that of the conpany prior to this hearing?

21 A It is, but also -- yes, it is.

22 Q GCkay. Mving on. The testinony of Keith J.

23  Larson, Cctober 6th, 2017. The conpany has additi onal

24 information since filing the application regarding

25 reserves, systemprofit, and certain O&M costs. In
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1 order to ensure the financial viability of the

2 conpany and to avoid system shutdown --

3 (I'nterruption in proceedings.)

4 MR. ATWATER. This is the testinony of Keith J.

5 Larson, COctober 6th, 2017. The conpany has additi onal

6 information since filing the application regarding

7 reserve systemprofit and certain O& costs in order to
8 ensure the financial viability of the conpany and to

9 avoid future system shutdown, the nodifications in the
10 update are critical to the conpany and its custoners.

11 Your response to that is it is unclear what

12 information the conpany has since filing the

13 application. The only additional information the

14 Di vision has received fromthe conpany was included in
15 the Divisions's first data request response. |t appears
16 that this additional information nay have rel evance in
17 evaluating the conpany's financial requirenents. |In the
18 absence of the information the Division cannot support
19 increases placed upon it.
20 In M. Larson's testinony, he submtted an updated
21 rate nodel and an update to the master plan for the
22  conpany, which included all the information that support
23 the rate that he suggested be revised. D d you see that
24  information?
25 A.  Yes.
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Q So what additional information does the

Di vi sion need to eval uate?

A. \Wat is the conpany requesting as an interim
rate. That's the question.

Q M. Larson's testinony states that fairly
clearly.

A Ckay. It differs than in your prior
application.

Q That is correct.

A.  So what is the change?

Q So the changes are noted on his rate nodel and
t hose changes -- what |'masking is, what additional
i nformati on does the Division need other than what it
al ready has to understand what those changes are?

A Wll, it's one thing to provide details on
nunbers, but how those nunbers fit within the conpany
and their operations would take sone tinme. Just because
sonebody submts nunbers doesn't nean that it's a clear
i ndi cati on of what the needs of the conmpany are.

Q Have you reviewed the conpany's direct
testinony regarding the terns and conditions of the
Di vision of Drinking Water |oan?

A. Have | reviewed -- ask ne again.

Q The conpany's direct testinony where it

di scusses the terns and conditions of the Division of
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15:19 Drinking Water |oan -- rage <10
A, Yes.
Q ~-- are there any discussion of reserves in that
testi nony?
15:19 A. There are.

Are you aware that that |oan requires reserves?
Yes.

And are you aware of the anounts?

© o0 ~N o o b~ w N

Q
A
Q
A. | don't have them handy, but | am aware that

15:19 10 t here are anounts.

11 Q They're at your disposal?
12 A Right.
13 Q And that is what is included in M. Larson's

14 testinony is the additional reserves required by that

15: 19 15 loan, and it's stated otherwise in the testinony?
16 A.  But apparently the nunbers that you're
17 requesting may be lower. |It's unclear exactly what your

18 rate increase change is.

19 Q In the amounts?
15:19 20 A. I n the anounts.
21 Q It's unclear because it's different or it's

22 uncl ear because you don't understand thenf

23 A Well, both.

24 Q So maybe we shoul d open them and figure out why
15: 20 25 they're unclear. Do you have a copy of --
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1 A | do not. | apologize. | do not have an%%y211
2 of that.

3 Q | didn't think I printed them Maybe | did.

4 MR ATWATER  May | approach

5 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yes.

6 MR ATWATER This is the witten direct testinony
7 of Keith J. Larson adopted today and sworn to by Tena

8 Canpbel | of Bowen & Collins. [It's on page eight and

9 filtering over to page nine.

10 THE WTNESS: |'msorry. Could you -- which one is
11 it? This is Bowen Collins?

12 MR ATWATER. This is the update, yes.

13 Q So you have in front of you the update that was
14 included in M. Larson's testinony, and you suggested

15 that that is confusing to you. Can you describe why the
16 rate requested there is confusing?

17 A. The basis of this rate goes back to the ERU

18 units and how that's derived. And an interimrate

19 increase is not the proper forumto change rate

20 structure. So it's hard to take these nunbers and try
21 to convert theminto what the base rate and the base

22 rate structure currently is.

23 Q So that is a different question, which is fine,
24  but the question relative to what you deened an

25 inconsistency which we had know edge of before this
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1 wthout a data request was that you could not tell from
2 that what was being requested.

3 I's that still your stance irrespective of ERUs?

4 A Wll, if you' re proposing a base rate, why the
5 change from18 to 19? |Is that -- why would those two

6 nunbers be different? Are you proposing a separate rate
7 i ncrease?

8 Q W're proposing what is prepared and pl aced

9 before the Division, together with the testinony of

10 M. Larson. |It's all we need.

11 A, (Ckay.

12 Q Okay. The next itemis in reference to Keith
13 J. Larson's testinony, page five line 64. Contractual
14 water system mai ntenance. This represents the anount

15 paid to Sunmt Water Distribution Conpany. This

16 includes salaries, testing and | ab equi pment, water

17 sanpling, system nmaintenance, office supplies, telephone
18 and payroll tax and other m scell aneous expenses.

19 Your inconsistency with that statenent is the above
20 appears to address only the conpany's 2004 Water System
21 Service Agreement with Summt Water. However, the itens
22 listed appear to be itens covered in the adm nistrative
23 services agreenent, the new agreenment that's been
24 referred to today between the conpany and ASCU, LLC with
25 an effective date of January 2, 2017.
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Summt's role and ASCU s role in connection with

t he conpany's 2004 agreenent and the new agreenent are
uncl ear. Likew se, the proposed cost and benefit

i ncluding any reall ocation of expenses of the new
agreenent remain unclear. And the remainder of that
shoul d be redacted regardi ng anounts.

Q Again, you testified earlier that you have read
bot h of those agreenents?

A. | have.

Q And in your recollection, what services does
Summt Water provide under that agreenent?

A It provides the managenent of the water system
and an energency basis supply of water.

Q And no discussion of admnistrative functions?

A. | don't recall that, but not to the level of
their payroll and so forth. None of those itens, office
supplies, tel ephone payroll, taxes and such, were not
part of that agreement from our understandi ng.

Q Sorry. Can you restate that. There was a
negative in there that may have thrown ne.

A, Sorry. The itens referenced -- that you
referenced, the office supplies, telephones, payrolls,
taxes and so forth, were not lineated in the agreenent.
And so those kinds of things were actually |ineated out

in the new agreenent. And so the way this was
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1 presented, it was unclear. It seened to have crozg%% e
2 over the two agreenents.

3 Q So you're understanding of the agreenents based
4 on your testinony is that ASC Utah and Sunmt Water

5 Distribution are providing duplicative services to the

6 conpany and both charging for it?

7 A. That is a potential.

8 Q And again, back to the question of the anmpbunt

9 payabl e under the adm nistrative services agreenent and
10 the services provided under the adm nistrative services
11 agreenent. How closely do they match the prior

12 al l ocations of salaries, office expense, |ease expense,
13 insurance expense, and other itens that were previously
14  broken out in the base year and prior years? Do you

15 have any recollection of that?

16 A | do. W actually took tine to try to evaluate
17 that, and we found that the agreenent seened to cover

18 that. It would be quite an increase actually. And I

19 can't recall those nunbers right now, | guess, but it

20  was a substantial amount to have an inpact on your rate.
21 Q So the base -- the rate nodel with the base

22 year of 2016, shows an approxi mate amount of $90, 000

23 payable or allocated for those adm nistrative services.
24  The anmpunt payabl e under the adm ni strative services

25 agreement in sonme cases would not be a material increase
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1 fromthat. But we've discussed today that there are

2 certain costs that were not known or that were being

3 subsidized. Is it that that increase would cover those
4  subsidies or costs that were unknown in prior years?

5 A. You're asking if the rate increase --

6 Q Just the anount payabl e under the

7 administrative services agreenent relative to what was
8 previously allocated by the conpany for adm nistrative
9 services. Is the difference -- you said there was a

10 substantial increase -- is that difference justifiable
11 by potential subsidies or anounts that were previously
12 unknown?

13 A | would -- | don't have that information so |
14  woul d be specul ating.

15 Q Okay. And have you ever had a rate case with a
16 public utility -- No. The answer is no. | already know
17 that. Wiy am| asking that question.

18 Have you had any experience with managi ng a snal
19 conpany?
20 A. Wth managing a small conpany?
21 Q O the finances of a small conpany?
22 A.  Not that would pertain to this, no.
23 Q Okay. Any idea what typical overhead costs
24 would be for a small conpany?
25 A. | would be guessing.
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1 Q Oay. Is it possible that the two agreeﬁ%%?5216
2 do not cross over, and that, in fact, the services that
3 are provided are conpletely independent?

4 A Is it possible. | would guess so. But just in
5 reading the docunent, it did not include those services.
6 Q Wich docunent?

7 A. The first agreenent from 2004.

8 Q Did not include those services?

9 A. Correct.

10 Q And the new docunent does?

11 A. Yes. It matched nore wth those, yes.

12 Q Wuld that not suggest that they are different?
13 A I'msorry. Mybe |I said that wong. | said

14 that backwards. Excuse ne. The new agreenent incl uded
15 what appeared to be those expenses for the conpany,

16  which nmakes sense in the framework of what the agreenent
17 I S.

18 The other -- which this is referring to in 2004,

19 that agreenent, | can't see where -- you know, you woul d
20 have office supplies, telephone, payrolls, taxes, and so
21 forth with the managenent agreenent. That is for a

22 total amount regardl ess of kind of what happens unl ess
23 an energency.

24 Q Sothat is correct, and | think the record is
25 clear on that point. The two agreenents address two
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conpl etely separate services w thout cross-over

A.  So are you saying that this is a typographica
error?

Q No, no, no. Wuat I'msaying is that it's not
an inconsi stency.

A Ckay.

Q Okay. W'Ill nove on. Page four, |ine 54,
chemcals. This Iine was renoved -- this is the
testinony of Keith Larson -- this line itemwas renoved
i nasmuch as the conpany does not anticipate using the
treatnent plant going forward. You note that that's an
uncl ear inconsistent statenment because M. Larson's
testi nony al so suggests that the Division of Drinking
Water | oan requests $523,000 for repair of the water
treat ment plant.

And your inconsistency is correctly stated. Wy
did the Division not include this in its first data
request or subsequent data request when it became aware
of the inconsistency?

A. W received this after our data request.

Q Wy did the D vision not nmake a subsequent data
request ?

A.  Probably due to tinme constraint.

Q Oay. D dthe Dvision investigate any further

the analysis provided by M. Larson to determ ne whet her

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www. | i tigationservices.com



http://www.litigationservices.com

15: 30

15: 30

15: 30

15:31

15:31

15:31

HEARI NG DOCKET NO. 17-098-01 - 10/19/2017

© o0 ~N o o b~ w N

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N OO0 0o b~ wWw N +—» O

. . Page 218
or not chem cals were actually included under a

different line itenf
A.  \Wat is the purpose of your question?
Q The purpose of ny question is that the
chem cal s are indeed included.
A.  That brought nore inconsistency because that
sane person said that they were not going to be
i ncl uded.
Q So had you done nore investigation or requested

t he conpany, could you have found that out before today?

A Gventimng, | don't know.
Q Page four, line 60, the need for services. The
line item-- excuse ne -- is contractual services

accounting. The need for the services represented by
this line itemis unclear with the new agreenent and the
conpany's agreenment with Summt Water seened to provide
simlar services. In your opinion, is there a
di fference between adm nistrative services and
accounting services?

A. It depends on who you're talking to. | would
guess -- what is the title of the agreenent?

Q Admnistrative services agreenent.

A, Right.

Q Is it conceivable that there are independent

accounting fees such as tax preparation, audit fees,
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1 that nmay not be covered by an adm ni strator? rage <19
2 A. Correct.

3 Q Thank you. Page five, line 75, admnistrative
4  expenses. The need for expenses represented by this

5 line itemis unclear with the new agreenent and the

6 conpany agreenent with Sunmt \Water seens to cover

7 simlar expenses.

8 I's it conceivable that there are adm nistrative

9 expenses that are direct expenses that are not covered
10 by services provided by a nmanager or an adm nistrator?
11 A. Wiy woul d there be an agreenent that woul d

12 enconpass that on two different aspects of the conpany?
13 Q Do companies have licensing fees, annual filing
14 fees, corporate filing fees, things of that nature that
15 are deened adm nistrative that woul d not be covered by
16 an admnistrator typically?

17 A. | would have to direct your question to the

18 draft of that whether that was nmeant to be in that

19 agreenment or not.
20 Q Could the Division have asked that question
21 bef ore t oday?
22 A. Due to time constraint, | don't know the answer
23 to that.
24 Q Thank you. And finally page five, line 77,
25 custoner information, nmanagenent system postage and
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15: 32 1 mai ling, winter transportati on and access expense?ag%hézo
2 need for expense represented by this line itemis
3 unclear with the new agreenment and the conpany's
4 agreenment with Summt Water covering simlar expenses.
15: 33 5 Same question.
6 A Well, given what we understand, the needs of
7 the conmpany and howit's potentially run, and the
8 agreenents, | would find it hard to find those outside
9 of those agreenments. Wuldn't you?
15: 33 10 Q So if you read the agreenent -- and again, it's
11 confidential -- it's a services agreenent, not a
12 goods -- not an expense agreenent. And it does discuss
13 this, direct expenses are expenses that the conpany pays
14 in addition and apart fromthe adm nistrative services
15: 33 15 fee.
16 A. So they're paying for themtw ce?
17 Q No. They're paying for the admnistrator to
18 lick the envelope and put it in the mail.
19 A, Ckay.
15: 33 20 Q But they're also paying for the envel ope and
21 stanp separate and apart.
22 A. So you're saying that that's an addition to
23 page five, line 64, where it says -- where it refers
24  back to the 2004 agreenent? W just discussed in that
15: 34 25 that there was these services including --
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15: 34 1 Q Correct. |It's the services portion of tﬁg?? e
2 The administrator will handl e those portions, but the
3 company is still responsible for paying the hard costs
4 associated with it?
15: 34 5 A (Ckay.
6 Q The administrator is not responsible to pay for
7 the managenent system it operates the nanagenent
8 syst enf
9 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Was that a question? Do you
15: 34 10 agree?
11 THE WTNESS:. That is a possibility, yes.
12 MR, ATWATER:
13 Q You would not be surprised?
14 A. | would hope that the conpany woul d be prudent
15: 34 15 inthe way it runs its business so to avoid extra costs.
16 So if you're proposing is this a prudent way, | don't
17  know.
18 MR ATWATER  Thank you.
19 MR SAVACGE: No questions.
15:35 20 MR LANGE: No questions.
21 THE HEARING OFFICER:  |I'mnot sure M. Atwater is
22  finished.
23 M5. SCHM D: | thought he was. |'msorry.
24 MR. ATWATER: Thank you.
15: 35 25 M. Wite has to | eave, and so you suggest ed
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] ] Page 2227
previously that we could put the witness on the stand

regarding the exhibits that | handed out. | was
wondering if we could do that now.

MS. SCHMD: M. Smth also has to leave. So to
the extent that we could nake this an expeditious
process, that would be appreciated. But again,

M. Smith is available for the duration of the hearing
as a w tness shoul d be.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: |Is there any objection to
M. Smth's testinony being interrupted so that
M. Wite can take the stand for a few nonents to
authenticate the rebuttal exhibit?

MR LANGE: No objection.

MR. SAVACGE: No objection.

M5. SCHM D: No objection.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you. M. Smith, you're
excused for now.

MR ATWATER | call M. Larry Wite to the stand.

(M. Larry Wiite returns to the stand.)

THE HEARI NG OFFICER: M. Wiite you're still under
oat h.

THE W TNESS: Thank you. | apol ogi ze, Your Honor.
So yesterday was ny nother-in-law s 90th birthday. |
m ssed her birthday so | could be at this hearing. |

have adjusted ny flight, which is at 5:00 o' clock, in
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order to get back to the East Coast for her birthday

party tonmorrow. M wife is already not happy with ne
for mssing her birthday, and will be even nore unhappy
wth nme if | don't make it back in time for tonorrow.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: W wi sh you the best of |uck.

THE WTNESS: O herwise, |1'd be happy to stay here
for the duration.

MR, ATWATER:

Q So M. Wite, |I've handed you two exhibits that
have al so been handed out to the parties. These
exhibits provide -- the first exhibit --

MR SAVACE: Could we have a nunber for this?

MR ATWATER  [Exhi bit Nunber 1 would be the exhibit
titled, "Subsidized Expenses Payable."” And Exhibit 2
we'll call the docunent titled, "G Account Ledger Wth
Detail."

THE HEARING OFFICER: And | will note on ny copy
that | don't have a page two. | have page one, a bl ank
back, and a page three.

MR ATWATER  Were you the one that got the three
pages?

M5. SCHMD:. | am Wuld you like us to take a
smal | break and the Division could nmake copies so
everyone has all the pages?

MR ATWATER So | woul d suggest that the sum on
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1 page three is really what we're going to talk aboﬁ?ge %%ﬁ
2 fact, we could renmove the first two-pages.

3 M5. SCHMD: | object to having an inconplete

4 exhibit.

5 MR ATWATER Then | will renove the first two

6 pages.

7 M5. SCHMD: | object to having an inconplete

8 exhibit and | would object to it being used to

9 cross-exam ne.

10 THE HEARING OFFICER: It is a ledger. So | think
11 to the extent the conpany seeks to admt it, it is

12 appropriate to reproduce it inits entirety as it was
13 intended to be. So we can recess for a few nonments
14 while it's copied. Thank you for making copies. WII
15 five mnutes suffice?

16 M5. SCHM D: Yes. Thank you

17 (A recess is taken.)

18 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Back on the record. M.

19 Schmd, thank you for providing these copies.
20 M. Atwater, ['Il turn themover to you.
21 MR. ATWATER: Thank you
22 Q M. Wite, are you famliar with the docunent
23 in front of you titled interimhearing Exhibit 1,
24 " Subsidi zed Expenses Payabl e"?
25 A | am
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15: 45 1 Q \Wat does this docunent represent? rage €25
2 A So this is basically an allocation of
3 administrative tinme and expenses for the past years that
4  TCFC enpl oyees have expended on dealing with Comunity
15: 45 5 Water as constructed by our accounting firm
6 Q Thank you. Does this docunent fairly represent
7 the tinme spent and the costs associated with Comunity
8 \Vater?
9 A | would say if anything it's probably
15: 45 10 understated. But yes.
11 Q Wuld you el aborate?
12 A Well, just, you know, the amount of tine that
13 it's taken to manage Community Water particularly
14  through these processes is just enornmous. And so |
15: 45 15 would say that if anything it's probably understated in
16 terns of the anmount of time that's been spent on
17 preparing for these cases and trying to fix this issue.
18 Q Soto followthat line of questioning and to
19 further substantiate this, are you able to nake
15: 46 20 appropriate business decisions based on the current
21 status?
22 A. | can tell you that we've had -- |'ve been on
23  nunerous conference calls where our advisers, Emly,
24 Bowen & Collins, and representatives of the Departnent
15: 46 25 of Public Uilities, where we have asked for their
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15: 46 1 advice of howto get through this process, and th2393e226
2 said we can't advise you on that.
3 And they said several tines today that they
4 can't -- or that they're not making business decisions
15: 46 5 and businesses can make their own decisions. Businesses
6 can nake decisions on their owm. That's a quote. |
7 think it's pretty clear fromthis process that we can't
8 make deci sions on our own. W're subject to all of the
9 scrutiny, and we have no capacity to nmake decisions on
15: 47 10 our own and that's why we're here. | nmean that's -- it
11  should be clearly evident that we can't naeke deci sions
12 on our own.
13 So, you know, | ask your advice. Is it in the
14  public's best interest that the risk to the systemis
15: 47 15 far greater than irrigation -- whether people can keep
16 their lawns and trees, you know, green next year.
17 THE HEARING OFFICER: It's not appropriate for ne
18 to give you advice, sir, and | thought the w tness was
19 called sinply to authenticate the exhibits.
15: 47 20 M5. SCHMD: As he is discussing nore, | will have
21 a line of cross on this, please.
22 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. Pl ease proceed.
23 MR. ATWATER  Are you done with the question?
24 THE W TNESS: Yes, |'m done.
15: 47 25 MR ATWATER

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www. | i tigationservices.com


http://www.litigationservices.com

15: 47

15: 48

15: 48

15: 48

15: 48

15: 48

HEARI NG DOCKET NO. 17-098-01 - 10/19/2017

© o0 ~N o o b~ w N

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N OO0 0o b~ wWw N +—» O

Page 227
Q Gkay. The anmounts on the sheet that we just

di scussed, [Exhibit 1, are they included, to your
know edge, on the financial statements? O are these in
fact the inner-conpany anounts that we spoke of earlier
that do not show on the financials?

A So if you're referring to the account |edger --

Q No. Sorry. This allocation here.

M5. SCHMD:. |Is that the single sheet?

MR ATWATER. That's the single sheet.

Q Are these the inner-conpany anmounts that we
were discussing earlier with M. Smth?

A, Yes.

Q Thank you. We would nove to submt this
Exhi bit 1, "Subsidi zed Expenses Payable" into the record
for discussion.

M5. SCHMD: | have a few questions pertaining to
its admssibility, if | may.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  You'd like to voir dire the
W tness on the exhibit?

M5. SCHM D: Thank you. Yes.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Go ahead.

M5. SCHM D

Q Could you please tell nme where in the conpany's
testinony | can find the information that is present in

Exhibit 1 and the information that is -- the single
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1 page, and where | can find the information that is
2 present in Exhibit -- what ['Il call 2, the --
3 MR ATWATER  (bjection. This was discussed in M.
4 Smth's testinony that it was not included because it
5 was consolidated.
6 MS. SCHMD: That's all | wanted to know.
7 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Do you want an answer from a
8 wtness of fact?
9 MS. SCHMD: | would like that, please.
10 THE W TNESS:  Your question agai n?
11 M5. SCHM D
12 Q M questionis, please direct ne to the part of
13 the conpany's testinony which reflects the nunbers in
14 Exhi bit 1, the single sheet of nunbers, passed out by
15 your counsel, and Exhibit 2, the nultiple page sheet,
16  passed out by your counsel.
17 AL So | don't believe that they were in the --
18 MS. SCHM D. Thank you.
19 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Does any ot her counsel have
20 any questions with respect to the exhibits?
21 MR. SAVACGE: Not with respect to the exhibits, but
22 | think what's pending is the adm ssibility and I have
23  no questions.
24 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you for rephrasing ny
25 question. |s there an objection then to the
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15:50 1 admssibility of the exhibit? rage 229
2 M5. SCHMD: | do not object to the admissibility
3 of the exhibit.
4 MR. SAVACE: No objection.

15:50 5 MR LANGE: No objection.
6 M5. MLLER  No objection.
7 THE HEARI NG OFFICER: M. Atwater, to be clear, are
8 you noving for its adm ssion?
9 MR ATWATER Yes. W nove to submt.

15:50 10 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Then this exhibit, hearing
11 Exhi bit 1, Subsidized Expenses Payable, is admtted as
12 hearing [Exhibit 1.
13 (Wher eupon the docunent referred to is marked by
14 the reporter as EXH BIT 1.)

15:50 15 MR ATWATER  Thank you.
16 Q M. Wite, |ooking at the docunent entitled G
17  Account Ledger Wth Detail, are you famliar with this
18 docunent ?
19 A | am

15:50 20 Q \What is this?
21 A. So this is what | asked our accounting partner,
22 controller, to give ne just to give us a tracking as to
23 what the current cash status of Community Water is.
24 Q Does this accurately and fairly represent the

15:51 25 status?
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1 A. To the best of nmy know edge, yes. rage e38
2 MR ATWATER. Thank you. Those are all ny

3 questions for the w tness.

4 THE HEARI NG OFFICER: D d you nove for the

5 adm ssion of the exhibit?

6 MR ATWATER. | can. Do you want to have him

7 questioned first or nove first?

8 THE HEARING OFFICER: Only if they have questions.
9 M5. SCHMD: | believe that he already testified
10 that the nmulti-page exhibit was not present in the

11 testinony previously filed.

12 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Not wi t hstandi ng that point,
13 you don't object to the exhibit being admtted?

14 M5. SCHMD: | do not object to the exhibit having
15 had ny question answered.

16 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  |s there any other objection?
17 MR. SAVAGE: No.

18 M5. MLLER  No objection.

19 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Then the exhi bit handed out
20 by M. Atwater entitled at the top G. Account Ledger
21 Wth Detail is admtted as hearing Exhibit 2.
22 (Wher eupon the docunent referred to is marked by
23 the reporter as EXHBIT 2.)
24 MR. ATWATER. | have no further questions of
25 M. Wite.
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Page 231
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  You're excused, M. Wite.

M5. SCHMD: | have some questions for him His
testinony right now went beyond the nere facts of the
nunbers on the admtted exhibits, so | have sone
guestions for him

Q M. Wite, did you say that a regul at ed
busi ness cannot nake decisions on its owm? |Is that a
fair paraphrase of your testinony?

A. What | said is that it's clear that we're not
abl e to nmake business decisions on our own. That it's
subject to input -- in this entity -- publicly regul ated
entity that we're not capable of making decisions on our
own. We have to cone for approvals to various state
agenci es.

Q Is it correct, however, to say that the conpany
can make busi ness decisions on its own, but the recovery
part is what is determ ned by the Public Service
Commi ssi on?

A | can't tell you that | understand the process
wel | enough to answer your question. \Wat | can tell
you is that what we've endeavored to do is hire the best
consultants we can find, dyde Snow which is a water
counsel specialist, and Bowen Collins, and with the
advice of Summt Water who has been managing this system

for many, many years.
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Q Is it true that the conpany has the

responsibility to make sure that all pertinent
information is in its application?

MR ATWATER  (bjection. Asks for an opinion.

M5. SCHMD: | will reply that he nmakes deci sions
on behal f of the conpany and was involved, | believe, in
the application process and is a witness in this

pr oceedi ng.

THE HEARING OFFICER:  1'll overrule the objection
with respect to the line of questioning. | just noticed
the hour is getting late, and | hope -- we haven't even

all owed the intervenors an opportunity to present any
evidence yet. So if we can expedite questioning that
m ght be extraneous to the issues that are directly at
hand in this proceeding, | think that would be in
everyone's best interest. But | will overrule the
objection and allow Ms. Schmd to ask the question.

M5. SCHM D: Could the reporter please read the
question back?

(The record is read by the reporter.)

THE WTNESS: | would say certainly it is. But as
you know, these applications are extrenely conplicated
by the volunme that was submtted. And so if sonething
was omtted, | apologize. But to the best of our

ability we are trying to get through this process to
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make this conpany work.

MS. SCHM D

Q And it's the conpany's responsibility |ikew se
to make sure that the information in the application is
accurate; is that right?

A | guess it would be.

M5. SCHM D. Those are all mny questions.

MR, SAVACE:

Q M. Wite, are you aware of a Utah statute that
requires every public utility shall furnish, provide,
and mai ntain such service, instrumentalities, equipnment
and facilities, as will pronote the health, safety,
confort and convenience of its patrons, and wll in all
respects be adequate, efficient, just and reasonabl e?
Anybody ever tell you about that Utah statute?

A, No.

Q And you said "we've" been nmanagi ng the system
for many years?

A. No, | said Sutimt Water has been nmanagi ng the

system for many years.

Q You said "we". Wo did you nean when you said
we?

A \Wat | neant to say is that Summt Water --
when | said -- when | was listing the nunber of people

t hat we had engaged in conversation --
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M5. SCHM D: Sorry. Could you please ask the

witness to speak into the mcrophone? | have some
difficulty hearing.

THE WTNESS. Wat | said was that the conpany had
engaged nultiple experts, including Summt Water, that
had been mangi ng the conpany for several years.

MR, SAVAGE

Q So you don't think CAC has been managi ng t he
conpany as a public utility with obligations under the
statutes of the state of Utah?

A. | can't answer. You're asking a |egal opinion
and | can't answer your question.

Q Fair enough. And you said "our" controllers
gave you this information on Exhibit 2. Wo did you
mean by "our"?

A. TCFC -- it would be TCFC s control. OWC has no
direct enployees. Conmmunity Water Conpany has no direct
enpl oyees.

Q You're in effect the chief executive officer of
both TCFC and CWC?

A. No, |'mnot.

Q \What are you?

A | clearly stated this.

MR ATWATER  Asked and answer ed.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER. That's sustained. It's been
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asked and answer ed.

MR SAVAGE:

Q There are no enpl oyees of CWC?

A.  No.

Q You neke the final decisions for CWC?

MR ATWATER  Asked and answered. Objection.

THE HEARING OFFI CER:  It's sustained. This is a
line of questioning that we've been spent quite a bit of
tinme on already.

MR SAVACE: |I'msorry, Your Honor, |'mjust trying
to set up a question. I'll nove to the question

Q |Exhibit 2 you have it in front of you there,

t he | edger?

A, Yes.

G., does that nean general |edger?

A.  I'mnot an accountant.

Q And you don't know what that neans, G.?

A, No.

Q Okay. |Is this an account |edger for TCFC?

A No, it's not.

Q | look at the top where it says Account Ledger
Wth Detail. Do you see that upper left?

A. | see that.

Q Right under it it says, TCFC, Inc.

A.  That woul d be the conpany that produced the
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2 Q Okay. So this would -- in your -- as you sit
3 here today, do you think this is part of the TCFC
4 | edger?

15: 58 5 A. | can't answer your question
6 Q But it is a breakout that the TCFC controller
7 gave you of the cost of water and contract |abor and
8 other expenses for COAC?
9 A. For the first nine nonths of this year.

15: 58 10 Q Okay. And did you have any reason to doubt
11 that those are carried actually on the books of TCFC?
12 A. | don't know how they're carried on the books.
13 Q So you don't even know if they're separate
14  books?

15: 58 15 A. There are separate books. W have separate
16  books for Comunity Water Conpany. So that's what |
17 asked for was the basic cash position of Comunity \Water
18 Company for the first nine nonths of this year.
19 Q And this was printed out?

15: 58 20 A. That's right.
21 Q Going to [Exhibit 1, I think I understand the
22 first one. |Is that Stacy Wlson's salary?
23 A. Correct.
24 Q And how did you get to the percent --

15:59 25 33 percent? |Is that the time you think she devoted to
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1 Community Water? rage e3
2 A 1've already given testinony to the fact that |
3 think that underestinmates the tinme she spent on

4  Community Water.

5 Q But that's time for Community Water, not the

6 other way around?

7 Never mnd. You think that -- let ne back up.

8 She's an enpl oyee of TCFC, correct?

9 A.  Correct.

10 Q And she's paid a salary by TCFC?

11 A. That's correct.

12 Q And on this sheet you're telling us that

13 sonmebody has estinmated 33 percent of her tinme, which you
14 think is an underestimtion, is devoted to Comunity

15  \Water?

16 A. That's correct.

17 Q W determned the 33 percent that's on this
18 exhibit?

19 A. It was an estinate.

20 Q By who?

21 A. W don't punch a tinme clock.

22 Q \Wio nade it?

23 A It was nmade by -- internally inside the

24 conpany.

25 Q Do you know?
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1 A It was an estinate. rage 258
2 Q Do you know who nade it?

3 A. It was an estimate. | don't know who nade it.
4 Q You've testified under oath that you think that
5 estimate is | ow?

6 A | sit in an office right next to Stacy. |

7  observed the amount of tine that she spends on the phone
8 and that she spends on billings, including with you and
9 other customers, and so that's nmy estimation. It is an
10 underestimate of the tinme that she spends on Comunity
11 Wat er .

12 Q You missed nmy point. | understand that. But
13 you haven't told ne who came up with the estinmate of 33
14 percent.

15 A | can't tell you that.

16 Q Okay. You're authenticating this docunent and
17 you can't tell us that?

18 A. 1've said what | have to say.

19 Q Okay. The next entry seens to be

20 admnistrative allocation, 50,000, consistent every

21 year. AmI reading that correctly?

22 A.  You are.

23 Q And you think that's an underestimtion al so?
24 A. This is, | believe, an allocation to accounting
25 time and other tinme spent by our other enpl oyees on
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Comunity Water matters.

Q Oher TCFC enpl oyees?

A. Correct.

Q Do you know who deci ded on $50, 000 each year?

A. Again, it was an estimate by our accounting
depart nent.

Q Somebody in the accounting departnent?

A Yes.

Q And you don't know who?

A.  Likely Rebecca Christiansen.

Q GCkay. | don't understand the burden. Wat's
that entry nean?

A.  That would be the insurance and ot her
I ncidental s of enpl oynent.

Q Oay. So aml reading this correctly then,
that the 50,000, you're assuming that all of those are
salaries and there would be this burden of enpl oynent
taxes and things like that on it?

A. Correct.

Q The off-site legal. | don't understand Omi
10 percent. \What does that nean?

A. So this is of the amount that we pay to our
I n-house counsel, Justin Atwater. |It's a percentage of
our tine that's allocated to Community Water. Again, a

gross underestinmate of the tinme he spends at Comunity
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2 Q \Were do you get the term QOmi?

3 A. That's the nanme of his conpany.

4 MR SAVACE: kay. That's all | have. Thank you,
5 sir

6 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Lange?

7 MR LANGE: | have no questi ons.

8 M5. MLLER And | have no questions either. Thank
9 you.

10 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Anyt hing el se from you,

11 M. Atwater?

12 MR. ATWATER:  No.

13 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  You' re excused.

14 M. Lange.

15 THE W TNESS: Thank you very nuch for your tine. |
16 appreciate it.

17 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  So returning to our regularly
18 schedul ed heari ng.

19 Ms. Schmd would you like to recall your w tness?
20 M5. SCHMD: Yes, | would please. M. Smth could
21 you please take the wtness stand again.

22 (M. Smith returns to the witness stand.)

23 THE HEARING CFFICER: M. Smith, you're still under
24  oath.

25 THE W TNESS: (kay.
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THE HEARING OFFI CER: In terns of our exam natl on,

where were we?
MR ATWATER | believe | had conpl eted.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Ckay. M. Savage?

MR. SAVACGE: | have no questions.
MR LANGE: | have no questi ons.
M5. MLLER | have no questions either. Thank

you.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Ms. Schm d?

M5. SCHM D: | have sone redirect questions, but |
would like to reserve them if |I may, until after you
have asked yours.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: | don't have any.

M5. SCHM D. kay.

Q This will be very brief. So M. Smth, do you
recall M. Atwater's |line of questions about what the
Division did and did not do and about questions the
Division did not ask of the conpany?

A, Yes.

Q Do you understand that the purpose of today's
hearing is to determ ne whether a regulated public
utility should receive the requested interimrate
I ncrease?

A Yes.

Q Do you understand that the interimrate process
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by its nature is on a truncated and expedited tine
schedul e?

A, Yes.

Q Do you understand that the process for the
interimrate hearing is nmuch less than the full 240 days
awarded the tinme to determne final rates and for the
conmm ssion to nmake its decision?

A Yes.

Q Do you understand that the words prinma facie
mean -- translated fromthe Latin -- at first |ook?

A Yes.

Q Do you understand that the conpany has the
burden of proof to show that the rates requested
including the interimrate are appropriate?

A, Yes.

Q Do you understand that it is not the
Divisions's duty to determ ne what information the
conpany submits with its application, but it is the
conpany's duty to prepare a full and conplete
application?

A Yes.

Q So based on that, is it still your testinony
today that the conpany has failed to prove, using the
prima facie standard on its face, that its interimrate

request is reasonable and should be granted?
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1 A I'msorry. Say that again. rage £as
2 Q Okay. | was going quite quickly. Is it your
3 testinony today that the conpany has failed to prove

4 that the interimrate increase it requested has not been
5 proven by the evidence the conpany has submtted?

6 A, Yes.

7 M5. SCHM D: Thank you. Those are all ny redirect
8 questions.

9 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you, M. Smth.

10 MS. SCHMD:. M. Smth also has an obligation.

11 Coul d he pl ease be excused for the remainder of the

12 hearing? He can stay if necessary, but if he could be
13 excused it would be appreciated.

14 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: | have no objection to his
15 departure. Does anyone el se?

16 MR ATWATER  No obj ecti on.

17 MR. SAVACGE: No objection.

18 MR. LANGE: No objection.

19 M5. MLLER  No objection.
20 M5. SCHM D:. The Division has nothing further.
21  Thank you.
22 THE HEARI NG OFFICER:  All right. M. Savage.
23 MR SAVACE: Thank you, Your Honor.
24 (E. Scott Savage is sworn in as a witness.)
25 THE WTNESS: | have a couple of corrections in ny
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alternative proposal and direct testinony, and it seens

i ke nmy cal culator wasn't working very well, but on page
five, paragraph 12, | tal ked about a fine inposed in the
second paragraph of $600. |It's actually $1500. And
then starting on page 12 where | present ny alternative
proposal for retainment of a loan for the failed tank,
was using the $50 per nonth that was proposed in the
neetings that | went to. And it was for 18 nonths
instead of 12. And that generates $450,000. And $50
per nmonth for 12 nonths woul d not generate the noney
that is estimated to be the cost of replacing the tank.
If you want it for 12 nonths, it would take $90 a nonth
for the 500 users for 12 nonths, or $60 a nonth for 18
nonths to generate enough noney to pay the current price
for the tank. | nove for the admi ssion into evidence of
ny alternative proposal and sworn direct testinony at
this tine.

M5. SCHM D: No objection.

MR ATWATER. So the applicant previously objected
and the notion was discussed. It renews its objections
set forth in that notion -- excuse ne -- does not renew
t he notion, renews the objection.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Overrul ed. Thank you.
They're adm tted.

THE WTNESS: The last thing | want to nention,
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it's kind of been lost in the interesting journey we've

had in finding out the fact that TCFCis in fact CAC
But one of the things | want to nake sure, if this -- if
the Public Service Comm ssion were to inpose an interim
rate for the general capital inprovenents, the proposal
for how the HOAs are to be billed and how that noney is
to be collected is patently unfair.

As | read their proposal, they would send one bill
for exanple, to Plat B& for all of the water usage of
all 30 homeowners, and all of the water usage for the
irrigation. And then it would be up to Plat B&D, the
HOA, to separately bill the nmenbers, the honmeowners in
its organi zation, and collect that noney so that it
could then pay the nonthly bill. That's transferring,
of course, the accounting collection and adm nistrative
costs fromthe utility to the customers, and woul d pl ace
them at a di sadvantage, vis a vis, the individual
honeowners, and it | eaves open the question as to what
happens if one of ny 30 honeowners doesn't pay their
water bill. Does that nmean all 30 get their water shut
of f.

It should be -- it should be a collective allocated
and the tiers should all be done the way it is presently
bei ng done for the operational expense rate increase,

which is the 30 individual honeowners are bill ed
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separately for their own separate use by the utility.

And then 1/30th of the irrigation water, which goes

t hrough two separate neters, not the individual
honmeowners' individual neters, but there is two separate
meters for all of the sprinkling water for the whole

ar ea.

The present rate requires that the honeowners
associ ation not be billed for that water, but 1/30th of
t he amount of that water isn't added to the bill of each
of the individual homeowners. And for consistency, the
met hodol ogy should be the sane for the operational rate
that we have in place and any rate for capital
I nprovenents.

So with that additional clarification of what 1've
stated, | would also like to state that I'min conplete
agreenent with M. Duncan's testinmony. | recognize the
inter-generational inequity of not paying off a |loan for
this tank over the |life of the tank. | think that is
the proper way to do it.

| have tried to assist M. VWiite who left, and OAC
and TCFC, by supporting and offering an alternative plan
that is very simlar to the one they were proposing to
the users or the customers of a $60 a nonth short-term
tenporary rate increase for 18 nonths, or a $90 rate

increase for 12 nonths to repay the loan, to nake it
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easier for CWC to get noney from an outside bank, a

l ending institution, or its parent, to be able to
i medi ately get funds available to get this tank
replaced. That being said | open nyself up to
cross-exam nation if anybody has any.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: W'l | start with M.

At wat er .
MR, ATWATER:
Q Thank you. | think | just have one.
A ay.

Q So you stated that you support M. Duncan's
testi nony and --

A. No, | said | agree with his overall general
statenent that there is an inter-generational problemif
a capital inprovenent is not repaid over the life of the
capital inprovenment. |If we repay -- we pay for this
tank in 18 nonths, being the present users, that neans
|'mgiving a benefit to some future honeowner that they
won't have to pay for it. And | recognize that. And I
think he's correct in his typical nmethodol ogy.

Q But you still stand by your alternate proposa
as revised in your testinony today?

A.  Yes.

MR. ATWATER: Thank you.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Anyt hing el se?
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MR, ATWATER  No. rage <48
M5. SCHM D:. No questions.

MR LANGE: No questions.

M5. MLLER No questions.

MR. SAVACGE: Any questions, Your Honor?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  No. Thank you, M. Savage.

THE W TNESS: (kay.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Lange.

(Terry Lange is sworn in as a wtness.)

MR LANGE: So | have testinony filed and posted on
t he docket, and | just want to basically go over that
and have that be admtted along with the testinony of
Fran Anendol a on behalf of Red Pine. He's not here now.
| want to have his testinony admtted also. So | nove
to have that done.

MR ATWATER So | object -- sorry Terry. So |
renew ny objection with respect to the provisions of
M. Fran Amendol a's testinony as di scussed earlier.

M5. SCHMD:. And | will object to the adm ssion of
M. Anmendol a's testinony since he is not present to be
Cross-exam ned.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yeah. That's a reasonabl e
objection. To the extent that M. Atwater is reserving
his objection with respect to M. Lange's filed

testinony, it's overruled. But we can't admt
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M. Anendola's testinobny as sworn evidence here in this

heari ng today w thout himbeing here to attest to its
voracity or being subject to cross-exam nation.

THE WTNESS:. Understood. GCkay. So in ny
testinony | tal k about a couple of different things
whi ch Scott Savage has nentioned. So Red Pine, we're
concerned about the practice of taking -- at Red Pine,
60 currently individually netered owners and putting out
one single collect bill for that. W don't think that's
right. There is no way to really collect that noney
fromthe HOA really legally fromit's CC&Rs. The HOA
has no | egal authority to collect that nmoney as such,
nor does it have the legal authority to collect property
taxes on behalf of Summt County, for instance. So it's
very simlar to that.

So we don't agree with this collective billing on
t hat .

As far as the tank and the separation of the tank
fromthe general rate increase, we're in favor of having
a shortened tinme frane. We realize, of course, there
isn't an equity in that. But we're going to accept that
because right now nmy house is on fire so-to-speak and,
you know, | want water to put the flanmes out. So just
to kind of put that in very sinple terns, so a shortened

time frane that the conmm ssion would see fit to
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aut hori ze, whether it be 12 nonths, 18 nonths maybe, but

the point here is to collect noney up front to get this
tank put in and do so on a very fast basis. W really

can't afford to go through another irrigation season

without irrigating. It's affecting property val ues.
It's affecting sales. [It's just affecting the m ndset
of the people who live there. |It's very difficult to

deal with that. And why prolong that for another season
and bring it into the year 2019 if we could cure that
early in the year 2018.

So it's just a matter of taking the nunbers for
that tank and dividing it by the custoners, and not the
ERUs, and assessing that over an appropriate time frame.

O course | recognize that, you know, the
Divisions's wanting to spread that cost out because it's
very equal to do that over the life of the product. And
| fully understand that, but in this case | think the
conm ssion should weigh in on the imredi ate needs, you
know, right now, here and now, and to cone up with
sonething there that's going to make this tank happen
sooner than later

I'mtalking literally nonths that this thing -- if
it could be shortened up by 5, 6, 7, 8 nonths, it should
be done that way. |It's very, very inportant and | can't

stress that enough. But that's ny testinony.
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1 THE HEARI NG OFFICER. M. Atwater, any cross?

2 MR ATWATER. One question | should have asked of

3 M. Savage, but | think it will be helpful for you to

4  provide.

5 You nentioned in your testinmony that you are the

6 president of the Red Pine HOA;, is that correct?

7 A. That's correct.

8 Q And what percentage of the custoner base does

9 Red Pine HOA represent?

10 A So let me give you a little overall oversight

11 here of the entire canpus as such. So Red Pine consists

12 of 200 chal ets, one bedroom and two bedroons. |t

13 consists of 60 townhones, which happen to be

14 individually netered, whereas the chalets are a shared

15 nmeter. And there is also an independent nonprofit

16 organi zation called the Red Pine C ubhouse as such which

17 functions and serves the needs of all 260 owners.

18 So | amthe president of the Red Pine Chalets. |

19 have the authorization for the townhonmes to represent

20 them They have their own HOA as such. And so they

21 have their own, | guess, budgets. Their own dues

22 collection based upon their needs. And the cl ubhouse

23 has its own dues based upon its needs. And collectively

24 together we contribute on a proportional basis to the

25 needs of the rec center and -- the recreation center and
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what its needs are. So hopefully that explains.

Q So in the aggregate you described, that
represents what percentage of the custoner base? Is it
greater than 50? So 260 of 5007

A. | see what you're saying. So we have 260 --
et me figure that out.

MR SAVACE: More than 50.

THE WTNESS: Right. Alittle bit nore. 503.

MR ATWATER:

Q 503.

A It's 51.886.

Q And is your testinony that's provided today and
witten that has been submitted, on behalf of that
51 percent?

A. That's correct.

MR ATWATER. Ckay. Thank you.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Ms. Schm d?

M5. SCHM D: No questions.

MR SAVACGE: No questions.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER: Ms. M ler?

M5. MLLER | do have one question. | probably
shoul d have asked the sane question of M. Savage.

Q Wuld it be correct to state that when
custoners receive their own nonthly bill, that's a nore

effective tool to pronote conservation than to have just
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1 a lunp sumprovided on their HOA bill? rage 53
2 A. | think as an individual owner sees his own

3 bill and decides whether or not it's within his

4 paraneters to pay it, if he's happy with it or if he

5 should do sonething to conserve water so he woul d pay

6 less so-to-speak. It's easier to do it on the

7 individual basis than it is on a collective because when
8 you have a collective as such, it's been ny experience

9 that you tend to ignore those little subtleties of what
10 can be done. And you tend to |ose the -- what shall

11 say -- the ability to nmanage that. So you start to |ose
12 some interest in -- you just wind up accepting whatever
13  happens. And so anyhow, it's kind of a roundabout

14 answer, but | believe that | have answered your

15 question.

16 Q Yeah, you did. | would think that that would
17 be a good tool for the conpany to pronote rather than

18 take it away is ny point | guess. You don't want to

19 conbine everybody's bill?
20 A Well, if | may al so suggest this. | |ooked at
21 sonme nunbers for the Red Pine Townhones, and the usage
22 for 2016, and it ranges fromzero up to an
23 astronomically |large number. And fromlooking at a
24 medi an standpoint or an arithnetic neans standpoint,
25 you've got one half of the custoner base supporting the
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additional water used by the second half of the custoner
base. And is that fair and equitable? | don't really
think so

If I was only using $10,000 gallons a year, and now

| ' m expected to subsidize sonmeone who i s using

275 gallons a year. Because it's -- according to a
single bill, you're going to take the entire bill and
divide it by 60 people -- and this is as far as demand

goes. Everybody right now has their own base rate. But
as far as demand goes, if you're not using water why pay
for somebody el se who is using their own water. That's

ny take.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you, M. Lange. One
question fromne. You nentioned your hone being on
fire. | interpret that as neaning that the | andscapi ng
around your chalet -- is it -- that you live in?

THE WTNESS. Well, yeah. |It's pretty desol ate.
And nore to point out, | have an i medi ate need ri ght
here right now. WAl king barefoot on glass would al so be
a good cause to have shoes, for instance.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Just so | understand the
lifestyle inpact that the custoners are experiencing,
it's primarily with respect to their inability to
irrigate their | andscapi ng?

THE WTNESS: That's correct. And we've had sone
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reports back fromvery dissatisfied people who were

under contract to sell their units, and when a

per specti ve buyer now |l earns that, hey, there is no
water going on and it's all upinthe air, and it's
going to be unsettled for how | ong, and rates are going
to go up, they pull out of the deal. And that causes
harm t oo

MR. SAVACE: My | also address that because there
is another aspect. There is a significant fire hazard.
W have 20 acres of weeds that the county has set aside
as permanent open space. It's not nowed. And those
weeds go right up to the edge of our property which used
to be green and verdant. And now we have brown ti nder
bet ween the weeds and the field behind us and our
houses. And we have dry trees. So there is a distinct
fire hazard being posed as well as the aesthetics.

And the fact we're | osing noney. W have had trees
killed because of this. Fortunately none of our big
ones have died yet, but we have | ost sone trees as well
as the lawn being conpletely dry.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you, M. Savage. To
preserve the procedural integrity, | have nothing el se
for M. Lange.

Does anyone el se have anything for M. Lange?

MR. ATWATER:  No.
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THE HEARING OFFICER: |'Ill go ahead and | et

M. Savage's statenent just now stand in his capacity as
a witness today. Anybody el se have any questions?

M5. SCHM D: No questions.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Ms. M ler

(Leanne MIller is sworn in as a wtness.)

MR, ATWATER:  Your Honor, may | restate ny
objection fromearlier testinony regarding the testinony
of Ms. Leanne Mller?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yes.

THE WTNESS: GCkay. So | do request that ny
testinony be admtted into evidence and I do not have
any additional comments to add.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Any ot her objections?

M5. SCHMD: | would just like to clarify that M.
MIler prepared the testinony and that she's swearing to
it as her testinony here today.

THE WTNESS: Yes, | did prepare this testinony,
and as president of the H dden Creek HOA, |'m submtting
it on their behalf.

M5. SCHM D. Thank you. Wth that | have no
obj ecti on.

MR SAVACE: No objection.

MR. LANGE: No objections.

THE HEARING OFFICER: It's admtted. Thank you
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Sorry. M. MIller, did you wish to nake any prepared

statenent or make any remarks?

THE WTNESS: No, | do not.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Anyone have any cross-
exam nation for Ms. Mller?

MR ATWATER

Q So I have the sane question | had for Terry
which is, you are the president of the H dden Creek HOA?

A. That's correct.

Q And what percentage of the custoner pool does
H dden Creek represent on an approxi mate basis?

A, W have 130 units so that's about 26 percent of
t he 503 custoners.

Q And your testinony today is on behalf of a
representative of that 26 percent?

A. That's correct.

Q Thank you.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Ms. Schm d?

M5. SCHM D:. No questions.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Savage?

MR. SAVACE: No questions.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Lange?

MR LANGE: No questions.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  And | don't have anyt hi ng.
Thank you, Ms. Ml ler.
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1 | believe that concludes the presentation of the
2 evidence. There has been sone expressed interest in

3 havi ng sonme tinme for concluding argunent. M. Atwater,
4 do you know about how many mnutes you'll require for
5 t hat ?

6 MR. ATWATER. Seven. Wbuld that be okay?

7 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Ms. Schm d?

8 M5. SCHMD: | will take |less than seven.

9 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Savage?

10 MR, SAVACGE: Seven.

11 MR. LANGE: No nore than two.

12 M5. MLLER Less than two.

13 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER That is at nmaxi mum no nore
14 than 25 minutes, so we can handle it.

15 Wul d you all like a short recess before we

16 commence oral argunent?

17 M5. SCHM D. The Division does not require a short
18 recess.

19 MR. ATWATER: Does the scheduling conference
20 contenpl ate public coments in this hearing?
21 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  No.
22 M5. SCHMD:. Not for the interimrate hearing.
23 MR ATWATER: | don't think we need a recess then.
24 | just wanted to be sure of that.
25 MR SAVAGE: | do not need a recess.
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16: 27 1 MR. LANGE: No recess. rage &9
2 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Sounds like there is no
3 interest in a recess.
4 M. Atwater, please proceed.
16: 27 5 MR ATWATER So we appreciate the tinme that
6 everyone spent today and we appreciate the efforts of
7 all truly in getting us this far, and acknow edge t hat
8 it's ateameffort. There is no way that this works for
9 anybody unl ess everybody cones together and hel ps sol ve
16: 27 10 the problens at Community Water.
11 As was nentioned in Ms. Lews's testinony, we are
12 here before the comm ssion on an interimhearing basis
13 for an interimrate increase. And | just want to
14 reiterate what the code 57 -- excuse ne -- 547124A3
16: 28 15 states, evidence presented at the hearing held pursuant
16 to this subsection need not enconpass all the issues
17 that may be considered in a rate case hearing held
18 pursuant to subsection 2-D, but shall establish an
19 adequate prima facie showing that the interimrate
16: 28 20 increase is justified. W feel |ike the conpany has
21  done that.
22 The conm ssion has the balancing act quite frankly
23 here, and it's exacerbated by the fact that this public
24 utility is very small and insignificant. This
16: 28 25  proceedi ng woul d have been nuch easier if our nanme was
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Rocky Mountain Power, but it's not. So the bal ancing

act between the concept of providing adequate water on a
tinmely basis to the public versus protecting the

pecuni ary interest and financial interest of the conpany
is critical. And the Supreme Court of the United
States, the 14th amendnent, the 15th anendnent makes it
very clear that it would be a taking otherwi se if that
bal anci ng act was not perforned.

W feel alittle bit that -- not this proceeding
necessarily, but that the scale appears to tilt largely
in favor of the public concern, which is clearly an
i mportant concern, but so is the financial interest of
t he conpany as its constitutional right to own its
private property and that the governnment cannot take
that private property w thout substantial -- excuse
me -- wthout just conpensation.

In addition, we are tal king about -- there has been
alot of talk today, | tried to avoid it with ny notion
to strike, but was unsuccessful. And | renewed that,
and | respect the opinion of the comm ssion for allow ng
it. But there was a |lot of talk that was all owed today
about the circunstances and the histories of why we're
here. And | think it's inportant. |'mglad that we
were able to talk about it. Everybody was able to see

why we're here. But never once has the conpany ever
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all owed any of its custonmers to go without culinary

water. It has a backup plan. It's expensive but its
custoners will not go without culinary water.

Have they gone without irrigation water for sone
time? Yes. But the conpany has never let its custoners
go without the ability to drink, flush toilets and do
ot her things which are really inportant. And we
understand that duty and responsibility.

It's been detailed in the multiple testinonies
t oday about all the things the conpany has done. The
conpany has not sat on its hands with its nmanagenent.
They have done significant lifting, expending
significant dollars, especially for a conpany of this
size. Tone it's remarkable, frankly, the effort that
t hi s managenent team has put forth in order to provide
for the custoners, and remarkable the effort the
custonmers have put in to make this work. 1It's no snal
feat. | just wanted to acknow edge that.

| do want to specifically in the last mnute, |
think that | have, address the tank, and reiterate what
our positionis. | think it's clear that the one-tine
assessnment is not favored. And | hope the conm ssion
under st ands why we requested that in order to fund the
tank imedi ately and give the custonmers the irrigation

wat er that they've been requesting to save their |awns
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and their trees.

We cannot, however, under any circumnstances,
endorse themas the Division of Public Utilities has
suggested. It is just far too long. W risk the chance
of 1 osing another season of irrigation. And we would
rat her support the position supported by the intervenors
provi ded today.

And then regarding the general request, we feel
l'i ke there has been sufficient evidence to understand
the interimrate provided. And that that evidence is
included not only in today's testinony, but nore
importantly in the application. |f the application is
read very carefully, it's sophisticated, but it comes

froma very reputable engineering firmthat we' ve spent

t housands of dollars on -- the conpany has spent
t housands of dollars on. 1It's no mstake. It's no
accident. It wasn't thrown together over night. And it

does provide anple evidence to allow for an interimrate
increase, and the information required to nake a
determnation is fully available. Thank you, Your
Honor .

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  One fol |l owup question,
M. Atwater.

In your viewis the record clear that if the

conmm ssion were inclined to adopt M. Savage, M. Lange
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or Ms. MIller's proposal, and allow a special charge to

bond or finance the replacenment tank to be anortized
over 12 or 18 nonths, can you tell me or represent to ne
that you're sure the conpany coul d obtain financing on

t hose terns?

MR ATWATER. So what | can represent is as
M. Savage anended his testinony here today, that to the
extent the comm ssion accepts the dollar anount
requested, so the $525,000 for the tank -- and that it
be repaid over a short enough period of tinme -- and |
think | understood M. Wiite to indicate that a 12-nonth
period -- that would be fine. The question we still
have is the rate of return. Wether it's the
3. 39 percent under the Division of Drinking Water | oan
or whether it's sonething greater.

And that would have to be one thing that woul d need
to be clarified or taken back to a potential funding
source to determne the rate.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Ckay. Thank you,

M. Atwater.

Ms. Schmi d?

M5. SCHM D: Thank you. As a regulated public
utility, Community Water Conpany has certain rights and
certain obligations. Its rights are that it is subject

to Public Service Conm ssion jurisdiction currently that
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provi des oversi ght and a nmeans of recovering reasonabl e
and proven expenses -- an opportunity to recover those
reasonabl e and proven expenses. |Its responsibilities as

a regul ated public utility are that Community Water nust
provide -- and | quote now from54-3-1 -- "service that
will be in all respects adequate, efficient, just and
reasonabl e. "

Conmmunity Water conmes before you today seeking a
one-time special assessnment and an interimrate increase
to its general rates. Conmunity Water has not shown
that its evidence supports a finding to -- a finding
that interimrates, either to the general rate increase
or for the special assessnent, are justified.

The standard is low. It's a prima facie standard.
But even that standard hasn't been net by the conpany.
The Division has gone through a great deal of effort in
trying to understand the conpany's application. Just as
much as if it were the application of a |arger conpany.

And on that note | will note that Conmunity Water
is one of the |arger water conpanies. Frequently water
conpani es have only 35, 40 or even fewer connections.

So Comunity Water is sophisticated by conparison.

Communi ty Water nonetheless has failed to prove its
case that the interimrate and the special assessnent

are justified. The Division is concerned with the
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1 inter-generational inequities that would result fromthe
2 special assessment. The Division is concerned that the
3 conpany seens to be abdicating its responsibility to run
4 its conpany, and instead is shifting that responsibility
5 to the Division.

6 The conpany has stated that the Division has

7 thwarted the efforts of the conpany to provide

8 reasonabl e service. That is not so. The conpany

9 determines and has set its own course, and any failure
10 of the conpany to prove on a prinma facie standard that
11 the interimrates are not justified and the speci al

12 assessnent is not justified rests with the conpany, not
13 with the Division. Thank you.

14 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you, M. Schm d.

15 Does the Division have any recomendati on of any remedy
16 the PSC has jurisdiction to provide or any action it

17 m ght take to alleviate the problens being experienced
18 by the custoners, aside fromdenying the instant

19 request ?
20 M5. SCHM D: Yes. The Conm ssion has the ability
21 to approve settlenents which are put before it by one or
22 nore -- by two or nore parties. For exanple, one renedy
23 the comm ssion could have is that if the parties
24 submtted a settlenent seeking approval of the
25 interim-- sorry -- of the special assessnent on the 12
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to 18-nonth basis, the D vision perhaps |ikely would not

object to that as it would be a settlement. And
settl ements can be approved by the Conm ssion.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you, Ms. Schm d.

M5. SCHM D. Thank you

THE HEARI NG OFFI CERE M. Savage.

MR SAVACE: Yes. W're going to accordingly
address all of the other issues, but the critical issue
to nme is making sure we imedi ately get funding fromthe
parent conpany, quote, unquote, for this tank. And |
think as -- sone people may have wondered why | was
asking a lot of the questions | did, but I think we've
establ i shed unequivocally that A Comunity Water has
the duty that Ms. Schmd just pointed out, and that they
have been derelict in that duty, and derelict in that
duty since they were required by TCFC

M. Larry Wiite says he thinks it's the custoners
fault that the infrastructure of CACis in a bad state
of repair. It isn't. It's the CWC s duty to be able to
provi de adequate water.

As Ms. Schm d just pointed out, section 54-31 al so
says that they shall furnish such service,
instrunentalities, equipnment and facilities, as wll
pronote the safety, confort and even convenience of its

patrons. And instead they've gone years, after
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representing in 2014 or 2015 that the systemwas in dire

straits, and even years ago saying this tank was of
concern. And waiting after the tank failed for several
nonths to even apply to the Comm ssion for anything to
do about it.

And we now know that was all done by its parent.
|'mnot sure thereis a CWC. |I'mnot sure there is a
Community Water. It has no enployees. Its decisions
are ultimately made by M. Wite who doesn't even |i st
hi msel f as having any position with the utility,
Community Water. He lists hinself as the chief
executive officer of the parent corporation. It is the
parent conpany that is funding the shortfalls of
Conmunity Water. It is the parent conpany that has the
accounting on its accounting system Not CAC's. W
| ook at the general |edger for TCFC and it has the
| edger entries for Conmmunity Water.

They have -- he testified as to, | think I
nmenti oned, any shortfalls that TCFC covers it. This
whol e problem-- and there is also statutes to say it's
acrinme for an individual to aid and abet a utility if
they're not conplying with its duty that Ms. Schm d j ust
read.

Certainly TCFCif not the alter ego in this

ci rcunstance, has aided and abetted and even directed
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the operation of this public utility that has put us in

this situation. And |I'm happy to not go down that road
if TCFC and M. Atwater are willing to agree that the
parent will put up the noney that's needed short termif
the users agree to have a short-termrepaynent, even
with the long-terminequities of doing that. That's a
fine conprom se with ne.

But if not, the Public Service Conm ssion has the
authority to order TCFC to do this. Fund this noney,
get this damtank operational, get it in place, and
let's get going onit. As to the general -- we have no
i dea about the ERUs. W have no idea how nmuch noney
they're actually going to need fromthe 3.6 mllion
dollar fund. W don't know how nuch the burden is going
to be for these capital inprovenents. W don't know
whet her or not they're all needed now, or if sone of
them can be deferred. They seemto say, well, we can
get the noney, 3.6 mllion, let's use it all up. But
then they say, no, we're not going to use it all up.

But then it sounds like they're going to nake sure the
entire systemis a spanking clean essentially brand-new
system

These are all the kinds of things that the
supervision of the Division are essential to look into

and make sure that the custoners are not being
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16: 42 1 overcharged by the structure of any |oan or any cggg?a%GQ
2 inprovenent, any repaynent. It hasn't been addressed in
3 any way shape or form adequate for interim
4 consideration. And nore inportantly, as | stated in ny
16: 42 5 testinony, there is no need to do it because the |oan
6 doesn't require a dollar to be repaid until January of
7 2019.
8 So | think it's just a no-brainer that there is no
9 adequate showing for proceeding with an interimrate
16: 42 10 increase to cover the general capital expenditures. |
11 mentioned in ny testinony -- and I'd just allude to it
12 again -- that if we were to |l ook at that, we've got to
13 |l ook at how the HOAs are being -- proposed to be
14 treated, vis-a-vis individual honmeowners, and nmake sure
16: 43 15 those are fair and equitable treatments. Wth that, |
16 appreciate the examners tine and will rest ny case.
17 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you, M. Savage.
18 M. Lange.
19 MR. LANGE: VYes.
16: 43 20 Q Just as far as a general rate increase goes --
21 and | said this in ny testinony -- going froma
22  connected custoner right now -- 503 custoners -- to an
23 ERU system of 400 and sone, is kind of |ike changing
24 horses mdstream so to speak. | think that stands in
16: 43 25 the way of actually even approving an interimrate case
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1 as far as a general rate case goes. And | think it"s

2 very difficult. Al those things have to be figured out
3 before you could even inpose an interimrate. But as

4 far as the tank goes, that is definitely nunber one on

5 ny list. It's nunber one on Red Pine's list. And I

6 believe it's nunber one on the other HOAs too.

7 And custoner base as a whole, that needs to be

8 addressed. | think that the settlenent thing -- a

9 settlenment has to be done prior to an approval and we

10  should work out some kind of a settlenent. But this

11 thing needs to be funded and to go forward forthwith, as
12 quickly as possible.

13 THE HEARING OFFICER: Ms. Ml er

14 M5. MLLER Okay. So Hi dden Creek understands and
15 supports a need for immediate replacenment of the storage
16 tank, and | personally support the construction in the
17 Bowen & Collins' study. W don't expect a free ride,

18 but we do need to reach a reasonabl e nonthly paynent

19 plan. And | would support entering into a settl enment
20 agreenent if we could get a nonthly rate over 12 to 18
21 nont hs that is reasonabl e.
22 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.
23 M. Atwater, as the applicant I'll offer you the
24 last word if you want to exercise it.
25 MR ATWATER | think | will. Just one mnute if |
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1 may.

2 Again | want to thank everybody for participating

3 in the process, but | amtroubled by the fact that there
4 is a lot of discussion about the company ignoring duties
5 and that it's the only duty and the only issue that the
6 Conm ssion is bal anci ng.

7 | believe the record is very clear that the conmpany
8 has gone wel |l above and beyond its duty, and that

9 everyone needs to renmenber that the pecuniary and

10 financial interests of the conpany are paramount. |If

11 the conpany cannot pay its bills independent of its

12 affiliates, it cannot be forced to do so by the

13 Comm ssion. That's a constitutional right. And | just
14 want that to be very clear for everybody, that there is
15 a balancing act. [It's not one-sided. And that is --

16 it's extrenely inportant. None of us can be forced to
17 give up our own property rights. That's the liberty of
18 living in this country, and it's certainly applicable in
19 this case. Thanks.
20 THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you, M. Atwater. |[f
21 there is nothing from anyone el se, we are adjourned.
22 M5. SCHM D. Thank you
23 MR ATWATER  Thank you.
24 MR. SAVAGE: Thank you.
25 MR LANGE: Thank you.
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) ss

|, Anmanda M Murray, CSR 8981, RPR, do hereby

decl ar e:

That the above foregoing

( ) pages contain a full, true and correct

transcription of the proceedings.

| further declare that | have no interest in the

event of the action.

| declare under penalty of perjury under the | aws
of the State of Uah that the foregoing is true and

correct.

W TNESS ny hand this 31st day of

Cct ober, 2017.

way/

Amanda M Miurray, CSR 8981, RP
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“Interim Hearing Exhibit 1 - Subsidized Expenses Payable

2014 2015 2016 2017
Salaries:
S. Wilson 40,000 42,000 44,000 47,500
% of time 33% 33% 33% 33%
13,333 14,000 14,667 15,833
Admin allocation 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
63,333 64,000 64,667 65,833
Burden 9,500 9,600 9,700 9,875
Adjusted salaries 72,833 73,600 74,367 75,708
Outside Legal:
Omni (10%) - 8,800 13,200 21,780
Allocation of OH 72,833 82,400 87,567 97,488 340,288

PH{, [ Deft.
ExhibitNo._} 1D,
Amanda Murray, CSR 8981 RPR
Date:_\ O -14 -7
Witness:
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 1        9:17 a.m., Thursday, October 19, 2017, Salt Lake

 2        City, Utah.

 3

 4        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Good morning, everyone.

 5   Let's go on the record please.  This is the time and

 6   place noticed for an interim rates hearing in the matter

 7   of application of Community Water Company for approval

 8   of general rate increase and special charge for major

 9   plant upgrade slash repair.  That is commission docket

10   number 17-098-01.  My name is Michael Hammer.  I'm the

11   commission's designated presiding officer for this

12   hearing.  Let's go ahead and take appearances, please,

13   beginning with the applicant.

14        MR. ATWATER:  Thank you, Your Honor.  Justin

15   Atwater appearing on behalf of Community Water Company.

16        MS. LEWIS:  Emily Lewis, and I'm appearing on

17   behalf of Community Water Company.

18        MR. WHITE:  Larry White appearing on behalf of

19   Community Water Company.

20        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Just for my edification, are

21   all three of you appearing in capacities as attorneys or

22   are some of you officers?

23        MR. ATWATER:  So I'm appearing as an attorney on

24   behalf of the applicant.  Ms. Lewis is as well.  She's

25   entering her appearance this morning for the first time.
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 1   And Mr. White is the chief executive officer of TCFC

 2   Finance Co. which is the ultimate parent of the

 3   applicant.

 4        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.

 5        MS. SCHMID:  Good morning, Patricia E. Schmid with

 6   the Utah Attorney General's office on behalf of the Utah

 7   Division of Public Utilities.  With me at counsel table

 8   are the Divisions's witnesses, Mr. William Duncan and

 9   Mr. Gary Smith.

10        MR. SAVAGE:  Scott Savage on behalf of Plat B&D

11   Homeowners Association.

12        MR. LANGE:  Terry Lange.  I'm the president of the

13   board of Red Pine -- on behalf of Red Pine.  I'm here as

14   an intervenor.

15        MS. MILLER:  Leanne Miller.  I am president of the

16   Hidden Creek HOA.  I'm an intervenor also.

17        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Are there any other parties

18   in the room?

19        MS. SCHMID:  There is one on the phone.

20        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Sorry.  Who do we have on the

21   phone?  Mr. Amendola -- pardon me.  Mr. Amendola, are

22   you on the phone?

23        MR. AMENDOLA:  Yes, I am.  I'm an intervenor with

24   17098 on behalf of Red Pine and Hidden Creek HOA.

25        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Lang, you and
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 1   Mr. Amendola, you represent or are here on behalf of the

 2   same entity; is that right?

 3        MR. LANGE:  That's correct.

 4        THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Before we begin

 5   with the applicant's presentation of its evidence, are

 6   there any preliminary matters?  I'm aware of a motion to

 7   strike that was filed early this morning.  Would you

 8   like to take that up now?

 9        MS. SCHMID:  Yes.

10        MR. ATWATER:  I think so as well, but before we do,

11   there is just a few other items that I want to address

12   so that we can set the stage for the proceeding if

13   that's okay.  And one of them just simply relates to the

14   direct testimony that was filed by the applicant.  There

15   were two testimonies that were filed in connection with

16   the direct testimony.  One was from me and one was from

17   Mr. Kevin Larson with the engineering firm of Bowen

18   Collins.  Mr. Larson is unable to make it today.  He had

19   a preplanned vacation with his family.  So in his place

20   Tina Campbell is here with us.  She is a partner of that

21   engineering firm and worked very closely with Kevin.

22   She may not have all of the answers that Kevin could

23   provide, but she's very well versed in the materials

24   that were prepared by Mr. Larson.  So she's here on his

25   behalf.
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 1        Regarding my testimony, inasmuch as there is a

 2   potential issue with an attorney representing an

 3   applicant in an administrative hearing and also being a

 4   witness, we've decided to ask Mr. White to replace me as

 5   the individual providing that direct testimony.

 6        And so we would submit to the commission this

 7   morning that the testimony that was submitted by me,

 8   Justin Atwater, on behalf of the company, be adopted as

 9   the testimony of Mr. Larry White, chief executive

10   officer of TCFC Finance Co., the ultimate parent of the

11   applicant

12        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Do you intend to call

13   Ms. Campbell and Mr. White today and ask them to attest

14   to the voracity of the documents you're asking them to

15   adopt?

16        MR. ATWATER:  We will do so.  We intend to submit

17   those as testimony so we will do so.  We don't

18   anticipate asking Ms. Campbell to restate what's in the

19   testimony, but for her to testify to the voracity, yes.

20        THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Any objection?

21        MS. SCHMID:  No objection to the substitution.  I'd

22   just like to note that whether or not the testimony

23   should be admitted will of course be determined when the

24   testimony is moved into evidence.

25        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Of course I view this as more

0008

 1   of a disclosure issue, but I don't think it's a

 2   substantive one.

 3        MS. SCHMID:  I view it as a disclosure issue as

 4   well.

 5        MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.

 6        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Anything else, Mr. Atwater?

 7        MR. ATWATER:  No.

 8        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Did any intervenors have a

 9   problem with Mr. Atwater's proposal?

10        MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.

11        MR. LANGE:  No objection.

12        MS. MILLER:  No objection.

13        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Then we'll move

14   to the motion to strike.  Mr. Atwater, do you have

15   anything to say on behalf of your motion?

16        MR. ATWATER:  Did everyone have a chance to look at

17   the memo that was filed earlier this morning?

18        MR. SAVAGE:  Five minutes ago.

19        MR. ATWATER:  And I apologize for that.

20        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Not to mislead you into

21   launching into an argument on the merits of a motion, I

22   really just want to get the parties' position on whether

23   we should take it up at this point, or whether it would

24   be better to address later.

25        MR. ATWATER:  Yeah.  So my thoughts on this -- I
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 1   really struggle frankly with the idea whether or not it

 2   should be a motion to strike or simply an objection to

 3   the testimony.  And our intention in filing the motion

 4   was to merely make it clear why we are here, and the

 5   purpose for the proceeding, and to focus the efforts of

 6   what we're here to speak on and to not include

 7   extraneous information that may not be relevant to that.

 8        And so for me I don't know that it's important

 9   necessarily that we discuss whether they be stricken

10   today, but I do want it to be focused in a way that

11   allows us to accomplish the purpose we're here.

12        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Schmid?

13        MS. SCHMID:  As there is a pending motion, I

14   believe it should be addressed today.  I appreciate the

15   fact that counsel for the company has given us notice --

16   albeit brief -- of its intentions.  I think that

17   resolving the issue today, with argument and with a

18   commission decision, will allow the hearing to proceed

19   in a more orderly manner.  The Division is ready to

20   address the motion today.

21        MR. SAVAGE:  I have no objection either way.  This

22   is Scott Savage.  One of the focuses of the motion to

23   strike or the submission that I made to the commission,

24   I notice that they move to strike all of the exhibits to

25   my alternative proposal, which includes their
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 1   application.  That was one of my exhibits they moved to

 2   strike.  And they moved to strike the June 15 update to

 3   the commission which is referenced in their application.

 4   But I -- so I think they have used a shotgun instead of

 5   a rifle in focusing on these things, and I would like to

 6   have more time to carefully examine their motion and

 7   compare my testimony to the application.  But if it is

 8   the commission's desire to go forward, I can go forward

 9   right now.

10        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Savage.

11        MR. LANGE:  Terry Lange.  I have no objection in

12   moving forward with it at this time.

13        MS. MILLER:  I have no objection moving forward

14   with it at this time.

15        THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Mr. Atwater, it

16   sounds like the parties want to address the motion now,

17   and I'm fine with that.  So I'll give you a few minutes

18   if you'd like to argue on behalf of the motion's merits.

19        MR. ATWATER:  Great.  Thank you.  So as stated in

20   the written motion, rule 12-F of Utah rules of civil

21   procedure and Utah code annotated 63G4206, allows

22   commission to exclude evidence that is irrelevant,

23   immaterial or unduly repetitious.  The basis for

24   striking or seeking a request to strike the paragraph

25   suggested in the motion, incorporate all three of those
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 1   elements.  Not only are they immaterial, and don't

 2   advance the interest of the public service commission,

 3   but also repetitive.  And I think what Mr. Savage

 4   mentioned just a moment ago is illustrative of that

 5   point.  We weren't striking them because we didn't think

 6   they were relevant.  However, they're repetitious,

 7   already provided by the company and not necessary to be

 8   duplicative of what's already before the commission.

 9        We feel it's very important regarding the idea of

10   irrelevance and unimportance to restate the purpose for

11   why we're here, and to make it very clear that the

12   efforts of the company have been genuine, have been very

13   sincere.  And we're here to determine whether or not

14   there is a reasonable rate available to the company to

15   balance the competing interests of both the public, in

16   receiving adequate supply of water, but also the

17   pecuniary interest of the company, the financial

18   interest of the company and its ability to operate.

19   That's why we're here today.  We felt very obviously and

20   clearly that the provisions that are asking to be

21   stricken from the record do nothing to advance that

22   purpose.  And that's why we've asked that they be

23   stricken so that we can focus the efforts.  So that the

24   testimony of the intervenors does not meander.  I think

25   I used the word hijack the proceeding for ulterior
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 1   motives and ulterior purposes.  Rather we'd just like to

 2   be very focused and clear on what we're trying to

 3   accomplish.  And that's the gist of the motion.

 4   Otherwise we rest on the statement

 5        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Atwater. Ms.

 6   Schmid?

 7        MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  The Division objects to

 8   the motion to strike and believes that the motion should

 9   be denied.  By statute, the commission is charged with

10   setting just, reasonable end rates that are in the

11   public interest.  As part of that, the regulated utility

12   must come before the commission and present evidence.

13   An integral part of the process is the fact that parties

14   are permitted to intervene and present their own

15   evidence.

16        Part of the determination that the commission makes

17   when picking rates, is making sure that the rates are

18   just, reasonable and in the public interest, as I said

19   before.  As such, the regulated company's actions are

20   appropriate for scrutiny.  The scrutiny that a regulated

21   company's actions receive is based upon a prudent

22   standard.  Not quoting directly, but a prudent standard

23   is the standard action that a reasonable utility would

24   do in the same circumstance, knowing the same facts, at

25   the same time as the subject public utility.  As such,
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 1   the statements sought to be stricken and the associated

 2   exhibits are relevant and are necessary to the

 3   commission's full and fair process.  The commission --

 4   the Division is not asserting that the commission should

 5   step into the management shoes of the company, but

 6   should instead examine the prudence of the company's

 7   decision.

 8        In addition, the Division objects to the

 9   characterization of the provisions sought to be stricken

10   as being for ulterior motives and ulterior purposes.

11   The Division believes that is inappropriate and has not

12   been proven.  The standard for admitting evidence in an

13   administrative proceeding is generally less strict than

14   in traditional courts.  The standard has been, I

15   believe, relevant information or information that leads

16   to relevant information that is admissible.

17        I think that the subject paragraphs fulfill that

18   duty.  I also believe that they are not immaterial,

19   impertinent, repetitive or scandalous.  I believe that

20   they serve a purpose.  I believe that they help set the

21   stage for the company's actions.  I think that the

22   company's past actions are integral to the

23   determination, particularly as they pertain to its

24   request for interim rates and the special assessment.

25   With that the Division urges the commission to reject
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 1   the motion.

 2        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Ms. Schmid.

 3   Mr. Savage?

 4        MR. SAVAGE:  Thank you, Your Honor.  I'll address

 5   just my alternative proposal and direct testimony and

 6   the motion to strike as it pertains to it.  This

 7   evidence is not irrelevant.  It is not immaterial.  It

 8   is not repetitious.  It's not scandalous.  It is

 9   directly relevant to the interim rate that we're here to

10   discuss today.

11        For example, we are here today to determine whether

12   or not the commission should award an immediate -- an

13   immediate interim rate increase of $1,103 for each of

14   the 502 water users to pay for this tank.  In the

15   application, the applicant has stated, paragraph 18,

16   without this assessment to cover the debt service and

17   repayment, the company has been unable to demonstrate to

18   potential lenders a clear path of repayment.  In

19   paragraph 20 of their application, company explored

20   multiple financing options for the tank, but none that

21   would be available and satisfy to sufficiently meet the

22   needed time frame for the construction.  That's what

23   they have pled, and that frames the issues for why we're

24   here and why they're asking for an immediate $1,100

25   assessment.
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 1        In my testimony which they moved to strike, I point

 2   out several occasions, even written letters signed by

 3   Mr. Larry White on behalf of the ultimate parent, TCFC,

 4   where they have stated that they have secured financing

 5   for the tank from the parent that's Mr. White's company.

 6   That directly conflicts with their representation to the

 7   commission that no financing is available, the only way

 8   to pay for this tank is the draconian measure of

 9   assessing every user $1,100, and coming up with the

10   $500,000 in 15 days on the backs of the water users.

11        Addressing what the company has said before in my

12   testimony, this is information that was directly given

13   to me by the company.  It was directly given in another

14   update to the public service commission.  And to strike

15   that testimony would do a disservice and be unjust and

16   inappropriate in this particular circumstance.

17        The company also in their application refers to all

18   of the efforts they've made on paragraph 11.  For

19   example, company has continued productive dialogue with

20   its customers.  Customers have been instrumental.

21   Paragraph 12 of their application, the update -- 2017

22   update letter was sent to all customers.  The update

23   letter is incorporated in the application and I include

24   it as an exhibit, not to be redundant, but for the

25   convenience of the hearing examiner to have what I'm
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 1   referring to in my testimony be attached to that

 2   testimony so you don't have to search for it.

 3        In addition, they also discuss as a result of the

 4   tank value, the company's imposed a complete restriction

 5   on outdoor water, and go on to say that there is no

 6   means to remedy the situation other than imposing a

 7   complete cessation of use of water -- irrigation water.

 8        In my testimony they moved to be stricken, I point

 9   out that was not the case.  That we worked hard as users

10   to come up with a plan where some limited irrigation

11   water could be done, and the company completely rejected

12   it.  They don't tell the commission that.  And that

13   their application is contrary to the facts that are

14   stated in my testimony.  They say the funds can only be

15   satisfied by single charge upon the customers in

16   paragraph 20.  That's not true.  They have stated they

17   have secured financing.  I think it's important in my

18   testimony that I point out the background, and what has

19   been stated to these customers that they refer to in

20   their application as having various meetings with.

21        And they have stated that their intent -- the

22   intent of TCFC is to get out of the water business and

23   divest itself of CWC.  And that they have proposed a

24   means of doing that with Summit Water.  And that was

25   dependent upon getting out from under the jurisdiction
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 1   of the Public Service Commission.  When that failed, the

 2   further discussion with the customers ceased and the --

 3   this application was filed.

 4        I point out in the testimony they moved to be

 5   stricken, that the company was requested on numerous

 6   occasions in June that it seek Public Service Commission

 7   rate increase to cover the failed tank.  That they

 8   should be proceeding in that manner instead of trying to

 9   get the customers to agree to a sale to -- or to a

10   transfer to Summit Water that would leave the customers

11   with no ability to control the decisions of Summit

12   Water, and would take the company out from jurisdiction

13   of the Public Service Commission so we would have no

14   government agency with the authority to review

15   assessments or proposed increases and rates or expenses

16   imposed by this -- Summit Water's newly proposed

17   corporation.

18        That is not irrelevant.  That's what happened.

19   That's what brought us here.  They should have sued --

20   or pursued this matter before the Public Service

21   Commission in May or June.  They told us that they

22   couldn't do that because it would take 240 days.  The

23   hearing examiner knows that's not true.  We're here

24   today on a 45-day time frame to have an interim rate

25   increase to start paying for that tank.  That tank could

0018

 1   have been brought before the attention of the Public

 2   Service Commission 45 days after it failed in April.

 3   And instead we're here in October which is the date in

 4   their statements that they now move to be stricken.

 5   Their very statements to the customers that this tank

 6   had to be immediately replaced, and if it went forward

 7   with the company funding that it would be replaced by

 8   October.

 9        Well, it's not replaced by October.  And I think

10   all of this is germane to the interim rate increase we

11   have here.  I think it's important to give the hearing

12   examiner and the commission the full background of what

13   has been said to the customers, what has been done.  And

14   I have testified to that information in my statement by

15   direct testimony that I was a witness to.  There are

16   some conclusions in my presentation, but that's not

17   unusual in direct testimony in a rate matter.  And they

18   are conclusions that I think are reasonable inferences

19   as to why the company has done certain things.  And I

20   challenge the company to establish that those inferences

21   are incorrect, that they have proceeded in this manner

22   and waited this long.  Because their desire was to get

23   out from under Public Service Commission jurisdiction,

24   and proceeding with an interim rate increase to fix this

25   failed tank, would complicate their effort to extricate
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 1   themselves from the supervision of the Public Service

 2   Commission.

 3        There is nothing wrong with presenting that

 4   testimony.  It's not irrelevant it's not immaterial.

 5   It's not even scandalous.  And I take umbrage at there

 6   being some ulterior motive.  I'm here for the statements

 7   I've made in my presentation, to have an alternative way

 8   to fund that tank, and an alternative way to -- other

 9   than an immediate interim rate increase -- to start

10   repaying the $38.6 million loan that hasn't even funded

11   yet, for which no payments will be due until January of

12   2019.  Sorry I took that long but -- I probably could

13   have made it briefer if I had more time to review all of

14   this material.

15        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Savage. Mr.

16   Lange?

17        MR. LANGE:  Yes.  So none of my testimony has been

18   put forth in the motion to be struck.  However, I think

19   that the testimony in general that they wish to have

20   stricken is very pertinent to setting the stage of the

21   history from the customer's point of view of how things

22   have transpired and whether or not they've influenced, I

23   guess, prudent or imprudent decisions on the part of

24   Community Water to move forward.

25        Our biggest concern is the lack of capacity, i.e.,
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 1   the failed tank at this point in time.  And we really

 2   want to have that tank done sooner than later.  I mean,

 3   I wish they were working on it today quite frankly.  But

 4   they're not.  This has been held off.  We're very upset

 5   by this and don't understand the reasons why it hasn't

 6   gone forward the way they said it would be going

 7   forward.  So consequently, I think that this motion to

 8   be stricken, this information, this testimony, should be

 9   denied.

10        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  And Ms. Miller?

11        MS. MILLER:  I also object to my testimony to be

12   stricken.  I believe that the comments speak to the

13   importance of moving forward very expeditiously to get a

14   new tank built.  As we've heard before, we've had

15   promises that it was going to move forward and those

16   promises haven't been kept.  And it's also important for

17   the customers to understand what level of reliability

18   exists in the system.  We need to know what type of

19   emergency plan for water service might be put in place

20   if there is another failure.

21        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  And I should have

22   asked earlier, I was presuming since you are present

23   that you would be Hidden Creek HOA's representative

24   today, and that Mr. Amendola might be functioning as a

25   witness.  So I've been referring to you when I have a
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 1   question in your capacity as being here to represent the

 2   HOA.  Should I be referring to Mr. Amendola or is that

 3   okay?

 4        MS. MILLER:  That's fine.

 5        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Anything else from you,

 6   Mr. Atwater?

 7        MR. ATWATER:  Does Mr. Amendola want to say

 8   anything?

 9        THE HEARING OFFICER:  My point was, we just heard

10   on behalf of --

11        MS. MILLER:  Oh, I'm not addressing Mr. Amendola's

12   testimony or objection to his testimony.  I'm sorry.  I

13   did not understand that.

14        MR. SAVAGE:  They've moved to strike his testimony

15   too, Mr. Amendola's.

16        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Amendola is here on

17   behalf of Red Pine?

18        MS. MILLER:  Red Pine HOA.  But I'm Hidden Creek

19   HOA.

20        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Lange is here on behalf

21   of Red Pine, right?

22        MR. LANGE:  He's representing both Red Pine and

23   Hidden Creek.

24        THE HEARING OFFICER:  We'll go ahead and give

25   Mr. Amendola an opportunity to speak then.
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 1        MR. AMENDOLA:  My turn, Your Honor?

 2        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes.

 3        MR. AMENDOLA:  Yes, I will be very brief.  I'm out

 4   of town and I don't have the benefit of all the

 5   documents in front of me, but I would like to say that

 6   first and foremost, in no way are we trying to hijack

 7   this proceeding.  And in no way are the owners that I

 8   represent seeking to provide or work from ulterior

 9   motives in this case.  To the contrary, we have simply

10   provided a historical count of the things that have

11   happened since mid-April when the tank failed.

12        We also wanted to document that the company has

13   acknowledged the severity of the situation and the need

14   to move forward quickly with ulterior or -- alternate

15   funding.  They informed us on different occasions that

16   there was alternate funding secured and work was moving

17   forward on the tank with the hope of having this tank

18   function yet this fall.  And finally, I would offer that

19   their request for a one-time funding or assessment of

20   $1,100 is obviously burdensome to all the customer base,

21   but in an effort to try and move this issue forward and

22   get this tank -- the work on the tank underway, we

23   basically offered up an alternate method of payment that

24   would reimburse the company very similarly to what one

25   of their original offers was, you know, two, three
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 1   months ago.

 2        So not only are we trying -- not trying to hijack

 3   the procedures, we are actually trying to facilitate and

 4   expedite work on this tank.  We don't want to go into

 5   winter conditions without a tank, and if we are forced

 6   to, we want to make sure that we can reduce the time

 7   period before this tank comes on if it even has to come

 8   on in the early spring.  But we have all provided

 9   background information and an alternative funding

10   mechanism that we think should be acceptable to get this

11   project moving forward.  Thank you.

12        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Amendola.

13        MR. ATWATER:  If I may just spend one more minute

14   in response to the other parties' statements.  I want to

15   make it very clear that the company, the applicant in no

16   way is suggesting that the intervenors not participate.

17   We are very appreciative of the information they've

18   provided to help and the assistance that they've given

19   all along the way.  That's very clear and we want you to

20   know that, that this position to strike had nothing to

21   do with whether or not we want you to participate.  What

22   it deals with is whether or not the commission should

23   consider all of that background information when

24   determining whether or not the rate requested is just

25   and reasonable.  We believe it's not relevant for that
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 1   purpose.  We believe it's relevant clearly, the history

 2   of what's gone on here is very relevant to where the

 3   company is today.  And we don't dispute that.  And I

 4   apologize if it came across that way.  What we're simply

 5   stating is that as the commission considers the

 6   application, that all of this additional information

 7   that may provide background and may be useful, not be

 8   considered when determining whether or not the rate

 9   meets the requirements of the statute, being just and

10   reasonable and fair to the public and to the company's

11   interest.

12        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Atwater.  At

13   this point the commission is disinclined to grant the

14   motion to strike the portions of the written testimony

15   filed by the witnesses at issue.  So the motion is

16   denied.  That being said, all parties and their counsel

17   retain the right to object to any testimony that might

18   be presented during the hearing today.

19        MR. ATWATER:  So to clarify, do we need to object

20   every time testimony is made or can I make a blanket

21   objection to their testimony with respect to those

22   paragraphs at the outset?

23        THE HEARING OFFICER:  You can elect -- I mean, you

24   can elect to represent your client how you wish.  It

25   would probably be more efficient if you make the blanket
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 1   objection.

 2        MR. ATWATER:  So I just want to submit to the

 3   commission in that regard that the motion in itself

 4   actually makes the blanket objection to those

 5   provisions, those paragraphs that were asked to be

 6   stricken and we just restate that objection here in the

 7   hearing.

 8        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Understood.  Are you prepared

 9   to call your first witness, Mr. Atwater?

10        MR. ATWATER:  We are.  And so in the spirit of

11   history, and how important it is for this, the applicant

12   would like to call Mr. Larry White as a witness before

13   the commission.  As stated before, Mr. Larry White is

14   the chief executive officer of TCFC Finance Co. which he

15   will explain in a little more detail.  Our approach to

16   this testimony, if the commission will allow, is to

17   allow Mr. White to make open statements, rather than

18   necessarily asking questions.  I would think it's

19   important that he provide the company's history in

20   response to the testimony that was just accepted by the

21   commission, and other statements that have been made by

22   the DPU and the intervenors.

23        THE HEARING OFFICER:  That's certainly fine.

24   Mr. White, do you mind taking the stand?

25        MR. WHITE:  Sure.
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 1        (Larry White is sworn in as a witness.)

 2        MR. WHITE:  So first of all, I want to make it

 3   clear that I'm not a lawyer, I've never been involved in

 4   an entity that has an interaction with a Public Service

 5   Commission or oversight such as this.  So this is all

 6   very new to me.  Without going into the entire

 7   background and history of Community Water, let's go back

 8   to the entity that is the sole member of Community Water

 9   which is ASC Utah.  That entity acquired a number of

10   assets which included Community Water in 1998.  The

11   Talisker Corporation acquired ASCU in 2008.  And Varde

12   Partners which was a private equity firm based in

13   Minneapolis, Minnesota invested in certain Canyon's

14   related assets in Park City in 2010.  In 2013, the

15   Talisker member was removed as the managing member of

16   that entity, and Varde was inserted and TCFC Finance was

17   created.  That's the history.

18        A little bit about Varde Partners.  Varde is a

19   private equity firm based in Minneapolis.  Its investors

20   are primarily pension funds, state pension funds,

21   college endowments and nonprofit agencies like Boy's

22   Town, for example, who was Varde's very first investor,

23   and the Annie E. Casey Foundation who basically provides

24   services to the poorest of the poor, to people who are

25   not caught in the social services net.  That's the basis
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 1   of the various funds that Varde manages.

 2        There has been a lot of conversation about this

 3   loan.  So the way that private equity firms work is that

 4   they promise a preferred return to their investors.  For

 5   Varde, the promise to the investors is a 13 percent

 6   basis in a preferred return.  That means that before

 7   anything else happens, the investors have to get that

 8   kind of return.  Their expectation, consistent with all

 9   private equity firms, is that their returns would be in

10   the 17 or 18 to 22 percent range.

11        The nature of those funds, and the way that

12   non-profits operate, is that they actually use those

13   funds to -- or a portion of them to do all of their

14   nonprofit acts.  So for endowments it's to -- for

15   college endowments, it's to provide scholarships for

16   people who can't afford.  In the case of Annie E. Casey

17   Foundation, they're conducting their services around the

18   city of Baltimore and elsewhere.  So that's the nature

19   of the funds that back TCFC, just so you're aware where

20   the money comes from.

21        THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'm sorry to interrupt you.

22   We are live streaming this hearing today and it is

23   currently a public proceeding.  So to the extent you may

24   be concerned about confidential information -- I know

25   many of the exhibits filed in this case were filed as
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 1   confidential -- you should be aware that this we are

 2   streaming.

 3        THE WITNESS:  This is all public information.  So

 4   it's important to understand that in the context of how

 5   we operate.  So the nature of this -- because there have

 6   been all sorts of questions about this and I'm trying to

 7   clarify -- so that sole member of Community Water is ASC

 8   Utah.  The sole member of ASC Utah is TCFC.  The owner

 9   of TCFC is an interim of what goes back to the private

10   equity firm.  So that's the nature of our funding.  So

11   again, our understanding is that -- and there have been

12   a number of attempts to have a rate case come before the

13   Public Service Commission.  That's based on the fact

14   that for 30 years or more the customers of this company

15   were paying $12 a month and the system was allowed to

16   deteriorate.

17        Last year there was a rate case that came before

18   this commission, and the result of that was that the

19   rate was increased to roughly $30 a month per customer

20   plus usage.  Just to give you an idea of comparison to

21   the other regional water companies, I'm a Summit Water

22   customer.  I live in Park City.  My monthly rate is $88

23   a month.  The average customer with Mountain Regional

24   which is the other large regional water company is $120

25   a month.
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 1        At the same time that this rate case was brought

 2   back in July or August of 2016, there was a request for

 3   infrastructure improvements because half the meters in

 4   Community Water don't work.  We are aware then of a

 5   number of deficiencies based on a study that was done by

 6   Bowen Collins that evaluated the entire system.  Bowen &

 7   Collins is a water engineering company.  They evaluated

 8   the entire system.  We are aware there was a number of

 9   deficiencies.  So part of that rate case was to request

10   meters, pressure valves, and other parts of the system

11   that were known to be failing.

12        Throughout this process our desire has been to

13   transfer this company into responsible hands that is a

14   larger operating water company.  So just to give you an

15   idea, Summit Water has roughly 5,000 customers, Mountain

16   Regional has roughly 8,000 customers, Community Water

17   has 500.  So it clearly costs more per customer to

18   operate a very small company than it does to spread

19   those costs over a large number of customers.

20        We have met with the customers a number of times,

21   trying to figure out a way to transfer this responsibly.

22   We've talked about setting up a nonprofit customers

23   would own, but it has to be managed by a responsible

24   major water company.  They don't have the capacity among

25   the customers themselves to be able to manage this kind
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 1   of operation.

 2        So we did offer back in July -- after the tank

 3   failed we did offer to provide a means by which we could

 4   replace the tank.  So there are two separate issues

 5   here.  The first is the replacement was more immediate

 6   when the tank failed, which is the larger of the two

 7   water tanks, and could not be repaired.  It had been

 8   repaired a number of times.  Probably 40 years old.  We

 9   did offer a financing mechanism back then based on the

10   customers volunteering a hundred -- it would have to be

11   a hundred percent of the customers volunteering to repay

12   the cost of the tank over time.

13        What we were told by that condo association, the

14   representatives here, is they could not guarantee that

15   their customers would pay.  They had no mechanism to go

16   back and guarantee that their customers would pay.

17   Therefore, from our standpoint and to my board and

18   executive committee, I couldn't tell them that the

19   repayment of their funding of this water tank could be

20   guaranteed to them.  So consequently, it was then that

21   we decided we needed to come before the Public Service

22   Commission and establish this rate case.

23        It's also my understanding that we cannot -- that

24   Community Water cannot arbitrarily -- even in the case

25   of an emergency such as the failure of the tank or the
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 1   need for replacement water -- charge the customers more

 2   just because an emergency has happened.  So if we needed

 3   supplemental water, for example, we have that capacity

 4   to come from Summit Water, but we have no capacity to

 5   charge for the water that we're receiving because it

 6   comes at a much greater rate than our source water,

 7   which is well and service water.

 8        So we now have a situation where the infrastructure

 9   of Community Water is clearly failing.  We have known

10   this over time, and yet every attempt that we've made to

11   try and rectify it, has been thwarted either through

12   this process with the department of utilities or through

13   the customers.  And so we have tried to do this in the

14   most cost effective manner possible, which would be to

15   turn the system over to Summit Water, which is a

16   nonprofit mutual water company.  We've also had

17   discussions with Mountain Regional which is a municipal

18   water company.  They have generally a higher cost of

19   operations so it would cost the customers more.  We've

20   had conversations with both of them.

21        Through the efforts of Emily Lewis, we have secured

22   a loan based on the Bowen & Collins' study -- a loan

23   from the state which is federally fund based to correct

24   all of the known deficiencies in the water system.  We

25   originally included the tank, the failed tank, in that
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 1   cost.

 2        However, given that we were not close to being able

 3   to settle on that loan, and because of the parameters of

 4   the loan which require that we not spend any hard costs

 5   prior to the loan closing, meaning we could not order

 6   the tank, we couldn't bid the tank.  The requirements of

 7   that loan because of Davis Bacon and other federal

 8   requirements, require that the loan be closed first, and

 9   that we bid all of the components and comply with Davis

10   Bacon before any money could be spent, hard costs could

11   be spent.  We could spend money on engineering, but we

12   could not spend any hard costs on the tank.  That's the

13   reason we decided to separate the cost of the tank from

14   the proposed loan.

15        So it was clear when we could not get consensus of

16   the customers for a unanimous consent to the -- to a

17   special assessment to repair the tank at the time that

18   we needed to come back through this formal process and

19   make application of the Public Service Commission.  That

20   takes time to prepare.  So you know that the submission

21   has roughly a thousand pages of material that has to be

22   submitted.  The cost of every one of these applications

23   is roughly $50,000 in engineering and legal time that

24   has to get passed through the customers.

25        So we made application in this case for both a

0033

 1   special assessment as well as for preparing for the loan

 2   closing, which could happen in spring, that would then

 3   repair the entire system.  The cost just for the tank

 4   between now and the spring, or whenever it's going to be

 5   installed is roughly five to $600,000 -- call it

 6   $550,000.  The cost of just the engineering and legal

 7   work in order to prepare for the closing of the loan to

 8   repair the rest of the system is another $500,000. If

 9   we don't get this rate situation straightened out, this

10   system -- the entire community water system will fail.

11   It's on the verge of that now.  It's very clear and

12   people have been in denial, I think, for decades that

13   the condition of the system was deteriorating.  That's

14   why we're before you today.

15        MR. ATWATER:  I have a few questions for you, Mr.

16   White.  Thank you for your statement.

17        Q.  The first question is, Mr. Savage suggested

18   earlier today and in the testimony that was accepted by

19   the commission today, that the reason for waiting to

20   file the rate case until September was because we did

21   not want to thwart the effort of the company in

22   conveying it to a nonprofit entity.  Is that the reason

23   for delaying?  And if not, would you explain again for

24   the record the reason for waiting until September to

25   file the rate case increase?
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 1        A.  It had nothing to do with that.  We were on a

 2   parallel path to try and rectify the deficiencies in the

 3   water system as well as to transfer the entire entity to

 4   a responsible management company.

 5        The issue at hand is that it is not appropriate for

 6   Summit Water customers, a mutual water company with

 7   shareholders, to assume the liabilities of Community

 8   Water, either as it exists today with all the

 9   deficiencies in the system or with a 3 million dollar

10   loan in place to correct all those deficiencies.  And so

11   that's why we try -- we embarked on an attempt to set up

12   a nonprofit entity which would receive the loan and that

13   Summit Water would then manage.  That was what was

14   proposed at the time.

15        There are a variety of complications of that in

16   terms of control, whose in control of, you know, the

17   decisions, where to spend money and how the system gets

18   repaired.  So that has not been resolved.  That's why we

19   chose a parallel path to come back to the Public Service

20   Commission and ask for the rate increases, to make sure

21   that whoever is investing that money, whether it's Varde

22   investing that money on behalf of its investors or the

23   loan investment that is coming from the state agency,

24   make sure there is a mechanism to pay them back.

25   Because nobody invests money or makes loans without
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 1   knowing how it's going to get paid back.  Does that

 2   answer your question?

 3        Q.  Yes.  Thank you.  You also testified that your

 4   private equity firm named Varde Partners became involved

 5   with ASC Utah in approximately 2013.

 6        A.  So the original investment was made in Talisker

 7   in 2010 and then assumed the managing member position in

 8   2013, June of 2013.

 9        Q.  Okay.  I believe it's important for you to

10   discuss the time frame between 2010 and today, and why

11   now we have the information that we have as a company

12   and why you are taking the steps you're taking today

13   verses in 2010.

14        A.  So again I was not -- I did not join Varde

15   until February of 2014 so I don't know what happened,

16   you know, prior to that time.  I just know when the

17   investment was made.  And I can only tell you what has

18   happened since I've been involved.  And I came on board

19   largely because of this project, to manage this.  At the

20   time we had consultants that had taken over the

21   accounting and the day-to-day management.  We eventually

22   replaced that with full time staff, and I was asked to

23   come here and run it in May or March of 2016.

24        So I can only tell you what's happened since my own

25   personal involvement.  And that there have been several
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 1   attempts at developing rate cases which are complicated

 2   and expensive to come before this body.  And that

 3   several of them have been thwarted or abandoned because

 4   of their complexity.  The first one that finally came

 5   and was completed was just about a year ago.  So I

 6   believe it was October, a year ago, when the rate case

 7   was approved.  It was approved only for operational

 8   costs, not for infrastructure costs.  And I can tell you

 9   that the operational costs that were approved is

10   insufficient because the company is currently running

11   without any management.  Keep in mind that we have never

12   charged any overhead, that this entity operates out of

13   TCFC's offices with our accounting services provided for

14   free, managing services provided for free.

15        And even with that the company is currently

16   running, first nine months of this year, at $112,000

17   deficit.  So without -- just in it's general operating

18   costs without any infrastructure costs, $112,000

19   deficit.  If we were to add a simple 9,000 dollar a

20   month management fee which would be minimal to cover the

21   cost of management, that would go up to close to

22   $200,000.  So $193,000 deficit so far this year.

23        I can tell you from just the engineering we spent

24   $36,000 to date just on the tank replacement, just on

25   the engineering and planning.  We spent $10,000 to date

0037

 1   on the rate study.  $13,000 -- this is to date meaning

 2   this year -- on the loan, preparing for the loan.  And

 3   another $6,000 on easements where the infrastructure

 4   exists, but does not have property easements and needs

 5   to be perfected in order to establish the rights of the

 6   system.

 7        Q.  So a follow-up question I think everybody wants

 8   to know.  Why did you acquire Community Water?

 9        A.  So it was just part of the asset.  I can't tell

10   you why ASCU acquired Community Water or whether it came

11   along with the other holdings that they acquired, but

12   all of the holdings were acquired then by Talisker and

13   basically inherited in the subsequent acquisitions.

14        Q.  So it's your understanding that it wasn't

15   necessarily an expectation that this would be a high

16   return company that would allow for your investors to

17   achieve the return that they normally require?

18        MR. SAVAGE:  CWC?

19        MR. ATWATER:  Correct.

20        THE WITNESS:  It was not acquired as an individual

21   asset for that purpose.

22        MR. ATWATER:  Okay.  Great.

23        Q.  Would you please provide an update as to the

24   status of the new tank -- the current status that's in

25   progress?
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 1        A.  So we've done an evaluation on the new tank.

 2   Summit Water has been instrumental in evaluating,

 3   searching for tank providers, evaluating the right kind

 4   of tank in order to replace the one that failed.  And we

 5   could move forward on ordering that tank as soon as we

 6   have the money to do so.

 7        In terms of its installation time, where this tank

 8   is located is, for anybody that's familiar with the

 9   Canyons Resort, it's a ski resort, this tank and the

10   smaller tank are located on easement land which is up

11   "ludraw" which is a ski run.  So if it isn't replaced

12   within a certain time period, as soon as it starts

13   snowing it's inaccessible by trucks and equipment.

14        So at this point in time, as soon as the path to

15   repayment or payment of the tank is clear, the tank

16   could be ordered.  It will take roughly three to four

17   months in manufacturing and transportation, and probably

18   six weeks to actually install and become operational.

19        At this point, the earliest that that could occur

20   would be in the spring of 2018, as soon as the path is

21   clear to the site where the tank, the wells and the

22   companion tank exist.  So I would think that from a

23   timing standpoint, it's likely in a best case scenario

24   to be May or June of 2018.

25        Q.  Thank you.  It's appropriate and necessary for
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 1   me to ask you if you certify and adopt the testimony of

 2   Justin Atwater submitted with the direct testimony of

 3   the company as being true and accurate?

 4        A.  Yes, I do.

 5        Q.  You adopt that testimony as your own?

 6        A.  I do.

 7        Q.  Thank you.

 8        MR. ATWATER:  Your honor, the application has two

 9   requests as has been noted.  One for a special increase

10   related to the tank and one for a general increase

11   related to O&M and infrastructure.  There are very

12   detailed discussions to be had regarding both of those.

13   Mr. White has adopted the testimony that I've provided

14   which includes details regarding both of those things.

15   We don't feel that it's necessary to read that in today

16   unless the commission feels inclined for us to do so.

17        THE HEARING OFFICER:  No.  The commission's rules

18   expressly allow parties to adopt summations so that we

19   don't have to do that.  Your witness is welcome to do so

20   and of course he may be subject to cross-examination on

21   any topic covered.

22        MR. ATWATER:  Great.  Thank you.  The other

23   question I have for the commission is, will the

24   applicant have an opportunity at some point to provide

25   statements outside of its witnesses?
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 1        THE HEARING OFFICER:  A concluding argument?

 2        MR. ATWATER:  Correct.

 3        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any objection to that?

 4        MS. SCHMID:  No objection.

 5        MR. SAVAGE:  No objections.

 6        MR. LANGE:  No objections.

 7        MR. ATWATER:  Great.  Then at this time we have no

 8   further questions for Mr. White.

 9        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Ms. Schmid?

10        MS. SCHMID:  Is Mr. Atwater going to move for the

11   admission of the testimony adopted by Mr. White?

12        MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.  I move to admit the

13   testimony of Mr. White.

14        MS. SCHMID:  No objection.

15        MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.

16        MR. LANGE:  No objection.

17        MS. MILLER:  No objection.

18        MR. AMENDOLA:  None.

19        THE HEARING OFFICER:  It's admitted.  Go ahead.

20        MS. SCHMID:  The Division has some

21   cross-examination questions for Mr. White, but because

22   Mr. White's testimony ranged far more broadly than the

23   testimony submitted by Mr. Atwater, the Division would

24   like a few minutes to review its prepared

25   cross-examination questions to see what can be stricken.
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 1   Could the Division have 15 minutes?  This is not my

 2   normal practice to ask for a delay and I submit that

 3   request in that nature.

 4        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any objection to a 15-minute

 5   recess?

 6        MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.

 7        MR. ATWATER:  No objection.

 8        THE HEARING OFFICER:  We'll be in recess until

 9   10:30.  Thank you.

10        MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.

11        (Interruption in proceedings.)

12        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Let's go back on the record

13   please.  Ms. Schmid, I believe we ended with you.

14        MS. SCHMID:  Yes.  I do have some questions for

15   Mr. White, if he could be called to the stand.

16        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Mr. White, would you

17   please return to the stand.  You're still under oath,

18   sir.

19        MS. SCHMID:

20        Q.  Good morning.

21        A.  Good morning.

22        Q.  Is this your first experience in a regulatory

23   setting?

24        A.  It is.

25        Q.  How long have you worked on the investment
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 1   banker or the investment funding side of things?

 2        A.  For three and a half years.

 3        Q.  What is your background before that?

 4        A.  Real estate development.

 5        Q.  I have some questions, and some of these may be

 6   a little bit redundant because of what you testified to,

 7   but I want the commission to have precise facts on the

 8   record so I'm going to ask them.

 9        You mentioned Talisker.  Talisker bought American

10   Ski Company; is that correct?

11        A.  Correct.

12        Q.  Is it correct that Varde Partners in 2010

13   invested in the Canyons?

14        A.  Correct.

15        Q.  Is it correct that Canyons at that time was

16   owned at least in part by Talisker Corporation?

17        A.  I don't know whether -- it wasn't Talisker

18   Corporation.  It was probably a single purpose entity.

19        MR. SAVAGE:  You said a single what?

20        THE WITNESS:  Single purpose entity.  Most assets

21   are held by a single purpose entity.

22        MR. SAVAGE:  A subsidiary of Talisker, is that what

23   you mean?

24        THE HEARING OFFICER:  You'll have your chance,

25   Mr. Savage.
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 1        MR. SAVAGE:  I just couldn't hear.  That's why I

 2   interrupted you.

 3        MS. SCHMID:

 4        Q.  So are you unfamiliar then with the involvement

 5   if any of Talisker in Community Water and TCFC?

 6        A.  I don't know what -- if you're asking me

 7   what -- do I know what Talisker did during that period

 8   of time, I don't.

 9        MR. ATWATER:  May I object to the relevance of the

10   question.

11        MS. SCHMID:  The witness brought it up in his

12   direct.  We have established that the history of the

13   corporation and that the company is very important.  As

14   part of his testimony here today, Mr. White talked about

15   how the company had -- and I'll paraphrase because these

16   weren't his direct words -- fallen into disrepair and

17   needed some substantial improvements.  Along those

18   lines, I am trying to determine what knowledge if any

19   Varde corporation -- Varde Partners had when it acquired

20   the company.  I believe that that is relevant as it

21   pertains to not only the past management of the company,

22   but also the current management.

23        THE HEARING OFFICER:  And I was experiencing some

24   cross-talk so I'm not sure I completely heard the

25   question being objected to.  Will you remind me of it?
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 1        MS. SCHMID:  Yes, I asked about his knowledge of

 2   Talisker with American Ski Company and with Community

 3   Water Company.  Also, in addition I believe that

 4   Talisker is in bankruptcy and I want to establish on the

 5   record, to the extent that he knows if that bankruptcy

 6   affects Community Water.  And as a managing partner, I

 7   believe that Varde Partners would likely be aware of

 8   that.

 9        MR. ATWATER:  May I respond to that.  We're okay

10   with that question.  If that's the intent of the

11   question, I can make that -- ask Mr. White that

12   question.  We're okay with that.

13        MS. SCHMID:  I have a series of questions.

14        MR. ATWATER:  But if it's your intention to

15   determine whether or not the company -- Mr. White in

16   particular -- knows anything about the bankruptcy and of

17   Talisker's impact on the company, you could ask those

18   questions.

19        MS. SCHMID:  That would be up to the administrator.

20        MR. ATWATER:  We don't object.  Excuse me.

21        THE HEARING OFFICER:  I understand for purposes of

22   the question that was just restated to me -- I

23   understand that objection to be withdrawn and we'll

24   proceed.

25        MS. SCHMID:
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 1        Q.  Okay.  So Mr. White -- and this is a slightly

 2   different question, but it's along the same lines -- is

 3   Talisker or a subsidiary of Talisker currently involved

 4   in CWC or TCFC, to your knowledge?

 5        A.  A Talisker entity is still a minority partner,

 6   a non-managing minority partner in the entity.

 7        MR. ATWATER:  In which entity?

 8        THE WITNESS:  I couldn't tell you, but it's in the

 9   Canyons investment entity.

10        MS. SCHMID:

11        Q.  Okay.  To your knowledge, do you know if

12   Talisker is currently in bankruptcy?

13        A.  To my knowledge, Talisker is not in bankruptcy.

14        Q.  Okay.  That eliminates that line of questions.

15   Thank you.

16        A.  But to clarify, to answer your real question,

17   is that there are certain other Talisker assets outside

18   of the Canyons which were in bankruptcy and to our

19   knowledge are now owned by Wells Fargo bank.

20        Q.  Because Wells Fargo bank initiated a bankruptcy

21   proceeding against Talisker; is that correct?

22        A.  Right.  But those assets have nothing to do

23   with the Canyons, they're not related to TCFC or to

24   Community Water Company.

25        Q.  Thank you.  That was very helpful.  So it was
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 1   2010 when Varde Partners went through -- and I'm going

 2   to mispronounce it -- "flara" -- "plara" --

 3        A.  No.  I don't know when "flara" was created.

 4        Q.  Okay.  So Varde Partners invested in the

 5   Canyons; correct?

 6        A.  Correct.

 7        Q.  As part of that investment, was CWC and TCFC

 8   brought into the -- I'll just call it the family of

 9   assets -- pertaining to Varde Partners?

10        A.  I believe that those were already part of the

11   assets that were invested in, but I wasn't there at that

12   time so I can't testify to that.

13        Q.  You've had experiences as an investment banker

14   for several years you said.  In your experience as an

15   investment banker, is it common for an entity prior to

16   purchasing an interest to do a due diligence

17   investigation?

18        A.  Generally common.

19        Q.  Would that due diligence investigation include

20   generally a look at the balance sheets of a company

21   that's going to be acquired?

22        A.  I told you that I wasn't around at the time and

23   I'm not --

24        Q.  I'm asking in general.

25        A.  Your generality does not make any difference.
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 1   What happened happened.

 2        Q.  Are you refusing to answer the question?

 3        A.  No.  I'm saying to you that -- you know, in

 4   general, yes.  But I cannot testify as to what was

 5   investigated at the time the investment was made.  And I

 6   think it's irrelevant frankly.  We are where we are

 7   today and the investment needs to be made now in fixing

 8   this system.  That's all that matters.  Seriously, it's

 9   all that matters.

10        MS. SCHMID:  Objection.  The witness is being

11   argumentative with counsel.

12        MR. ATWATER:  Objection to the line of questioning.

13        THE HEARING OFFICER:  I agree that the examination

14   has become argumentative.  I think that Mr. White may

15   have misinterpreted the question.  As I understood it,

16   Ms. Schmid was asking general questions about

17   Mr. White's knowledge and experience as a professional,

18   and not particulars as to what transpired in this case.

19        Are you satisfied at this point with the responses

20   you've been given, Ms. Schmid?

21        MS. SCHMID:  No.

22        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Then we'll proceed.  Please

23   pause, Mr. White, after the question is asked so if

24   Mr. Atwater wishes to object he has an opportunity to do

25   so.
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 1        MR. ATWATER:  And I do want to object to the

 2   question on the ground of relevance.  And also Mr. White

 3   never testified that he was an investment banker.  The

 4   question Ms. Schmid asked him was how many years have

 5   you spent in investment banking.  And I think his

 6   interpretation when he said three years was his

 7   involvement with the company, not investment banking.

 8   He does not purport to be an expert on investment

 9   banking and never stated as such.

10        MR. SAVAGE:  Objection.  Speaking objection.

11        MR. ATWATER:  Therefore it's irrelevant.  He does

12   not have the knowledge to answer that question.

13        MS. SCHMID:  I think I can ask a question -- couple

14   questions that will finish this line of questioning, and

15   I believe that the questions are relevant and I believe

16   that I probably can ask them and have them answered in a

17   shorter time than what we have spent objecting.

18        THE HEARING OFFICER:  For the sake of a clear

19   record, because we've had some objections that haven't

20   been ruled on, they're all overruled.  The testimony

21   will stand as it's been transcribed and we will proceed.

22        MS. SCHMID:

23        Q.  Okay.  Mr. White, you have experience in

24   investment banking; is that correct?

25        A.  I don't even know what the definition of that

0049

 1   is.  So I have experience in investments.

 2        Q.  You have experience with Varde Partners?

 3        A.  I do.

 4        Q.  You also served as a real estate developer; is

 5   that correct?

 6        A.  I have in the past.

 7        Q.  Is it common that due diligence would be

 8   performed as part of an acquisition of say a real estate

 9   development?

10        A.  It is.

11        Q.  Along that lines, would the profit and loss

12   statements and balance sheets likely be examined?

13        A.  If they're available.

14        Q.  Okay.  Those are all my questions on that line.

15   Just one second.  You've testified about the loan

16   application and process with the Division of Drinking

17   Water; is that correct?

18        A.  Yes.  I've referred to it, yes.

19        Q.  Were you involved in the decision to seek a

20   loan from DDW?

21        A.  Yes.

22        Q.  Have you been involved in the processing and

23   application of that?

24        A.  Generally, yes.

25        Q.  Were you familiar with what was included in the
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 1   loan initially?

 2        A.  It was based on the Bowen and Collins' study.

 3        Q.  As part of that do you know if the tank was

 4   included?

 5        A.  In the original application it wasn't.  It was

 6   added when the tank failed.

 7        Q.  Do you know if funds for the treatment plant

 8   were included in the original application?

 9        A.  I believe so.

10        Q.  And is it your testimony that funds associated

11   with the tank replacement had been withdrawn from the

12   loan request?

13        A.  I don't know whether they've been formally

14   withdrawn or not, but from a timing standpoint and a

15   practical standpoint, we discussed and have pursued that

16   as a separate matter.  Because it would have delayed the

17   construction and implementation of the tank.  I don't

18   believe it's been formally withdrawn from the loan

19   request yet.

20        Q.  If it has not been withdrawn and if the loan is

21   approved, then money for the tank would be included in

22   the loan?

23        A.  It could be.  But that also means that the tank

24   would not likely be constructed until 2019.

25        Q.  I'll move to that right now then.  So you
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 1   testified about the tank process in general, and I

 2   didn't take detailed notes so I can't remember the exact

 3   dates.  So I'll ask you now.  When did the tank fail?

 4        A.  I believe it failed in May of this year.

 5        Q.  Of 2017?

 6        A.  Yes.

 7        Q.  So was it in April or May?

 8        A.  It was sometime in the spring of this year.  I

 9   don't remember the exact date.

10        Q.  Has a replacement tank been ordered?

11        A.  It has not.

12        Q.  Have studies been conducted to determine what

13   replacement tank should be ordered?

14        A.  They have.

15        Q.  And those studies were conducted by Summit

16   Water; is that correct?

17        A.  Yes.  And by Bowen & Collins.  By both.

18        Q.  And by Bowen & Collins.  Do you have any idea

19   how long it takes from the time that a tank is ordered

20   until a tank suitable for installation is deposited at

21   the site?

22        A.  It takes roughly four months.

23        Q.  So the tank hasn't been ordered yet?

24        A.  It hasn't.  There is no money to order the

25   tank.

0052

 1        Q.  That's another line of questioning.  We'll get

 2   there in a bit.  When does the site for tank placement

 3   become inaccessible?

 4        A.  Probably depends upon snow.  Depends upon the

 5   season.  Likely late November.

 6        Q.  When does the site become accessible again?

 7        A.  Again, it depends upon snow and season and when

 8   it melts.  But likely May.

 9        Q.  Likely May.  Is there additional site

10   preparation work that is required before the tank would

11   be placed?

12        A.  There is.  And that was part of the study.  One

13   of the reasons the tank failed is that the foundation of

14   the previous tank was inadequate.  And it has to be

15   taken out.  So part of the study that we did was to

16   actually do soil borings and design a new concrete

17   foundation for the new tank.

18        Q.  Is that design completed?

19        A.  It is.

20        Q.  Has any construction work begun tearing out the

21   old foundation?

22        A.  No.

23        Q.  Has any construction work began dismantling the

24   old tank?

25        A.  Yes.  The old tank was dismantled and removed.
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 1        Q.  Has any construction operations been initiated

 2   for the new foundation?

 3        A.  No.  Not yet.  Just the design.

 4        Q.  Do you know if the materials have been ordered?

 5        A.  No.  It's all subject to the ability to pay.

 6        Q.  One option that has been discussed in addition

 7   to a loan from DDW is a loan from the parent

 8   corporation.  Are you familiar with that?

 9        A.  Yes.

10        Q.  Currently is that an option for the company?

11        A.  I can't tell you that.  Because I don't know.

12   At the time that we looked at the voluntary repayment,

13   it was.  I have not requested it recently and that's why

14   in the submission we requested for a special assessment

15   for the entire cost of the tank.  I can't tell whether a

16   loan would be available today or not.

17        Q.  Have you withdrawn the loan request?

18        A.  It wasn't a formal request so there wasn't a

19   written request.

20        Q.  Okay.  You also talked about a proposed

21   transfer to Summit Water Distribution Company, and that

22   Summit Water has participated in certain investigatory

23   matters such as what tank should be ordered; is that

24   correct?

25        A.  Yes.
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 1        Q.  What currently is the relationship between CWC,

 2   the company, and Summit Water Distribution Company?

 3        A.  Summit Water Distribution Company has been

 4   managing Community Water for as far as I know 20 years

 5   or more.

 6        Q.  And Summit Water is paid to do that; is that

 7   correct?

 8        A.  Yeah.

 9        Q.  Is it correct that CWC is still pursuing a

10   transfer of the company and its assets in some form to

11   Summit Water Distribution Company?

12        A.  I would say that it is pursuing a management

13   agreement.  As I explained before, the -- Community

14   Water is currently a liability.  That liability cannot

15   be transferred to the ownership or the shareholders of

16   Summit Water.  And so what's been discussed is setting

17   up Community Water as a nonprofit and have it managed

18   under a management agreement with Summit Water.  That's

19   what has been pursued.

20        Q.  So the assets would be maintained in that

21   separate newly formed company?

22        A.  Correct.

23        Q.  Is the replacement of the tank a prerequisite

24   to Summit Water Distribution Company taking over the

25   management in total of CWC as it would exist in that new
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 1   company?

 2        A.  Yes.

 3        Q.  So let's move to the regulatory world.  And

 4   this is your first regulatory proceeding I understand.

 5   But it's an exciting world and we're happy to be in it

 6   and we're glad that you joined us.

 7        So would it surprise you to know that a public

 8   utility has the duty to provide reasonable -- sorry --

 9   to provide adequate service to its customers?

10        A.  It would not surprise me, no.

11        Q.  Would it surprise you that that obligation is

12   independent of the company's financial status?

13        A.  That would greatly surprise me because I don't

14   understand how a company operates without the

15   appropriate financial capacity to pay its bills.

16        Q.  Is it your understanding -- and I believe you

17   testified to this -- that a regulated utility can come

18   in and ask for a rate increase?

19        A.  Could you repeat the question.

20        Q.  Is it your understanding -- and I believe you

21   testified to this -- that a regulated utility can come

22   in and ask for a rate increase?

23        A.  Yes.

24        Q.  We talked a little bit about that.  Would it

25   surprise you that in 2014 Community Water Company filed
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 1   a rate case?

 2        A.  Would it surprise me?  No.

 3        Q.  Would it surprise you that the application was

 4   ordered incomplete by the commission?

 5        A.  No.

 6        Q.  Would it surprise you that CWC filed a rate

 7   case in July of 2015?

 8        A.  No.

 9        Q.  Would it surprise you that in December of 2015

10   the water company filed a notice of intent to dismiss

11   the application?

12        A.  No.

13        Q.  Would it surprise you that the reason was that

14   the company had become aware of information that might

15   allow it to meet its revenue requirement without

16   increasing rates?

17        MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  Relevance.

18        MS. SCHMID:  Again, I believe this is pertinent

19   because it explains how we are where we are.

20        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Overruled.

21        THE WITNESS:  Yes, that would surprise me.

22        MS. SCHMID:

23        Q.  Would it surprise you that in December of 2015

24   there was an order of dismissal in the rate case?

25        A.  Again, I have no knowledge of that but --
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 1        Q.  You referenced that there has been a recent

 2   rate case.  Would it surprise you that the Commission

 3   ordered the Division of Public Utilities, not the

 4   company, to file that rate case?

 5        A.  No.

 6        Q.  You talked about the Division thwarting

 7   Community Water's efforts to improve its system.  Along

 8   those lines I have just a few questions.

 9        Would it surprise you that it is the duty of the

10   public utility to prove that a rate increase is needed?

11        A.  No.  I suppose it wouldn't surprise me.

12        Q.  Would it surprise you that the burden of proof

13   is on the company to make that?

14        A.  No, it would not surprise me.

15        MS. SCHMID:  Those are all my questions.  Thank

16   you.

17        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Savage?

18        MR. SAVAGE:  Thank you, Your Honor.

19        Q.  Mr. White, I'd like to focus initially on the

20   proposal that was made to the customers in meetings

21   concerning a schedule for repayment for the tank.  Do

22   you understand what I'm talking about?

23        A.  Uh-huh.

24        Q.  Would you tell us what the proposal was that

25   needed a hundred percent approval from the customers?
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 1        A.  So the proposal was to cover a special

 2   assessment necessary to replace the failed tank.

 3        Q.  Wasn't that payment over time?

 4        A.  Yes, it was over time.

 5        Q.  And wasn't it approximately $50 a month or

 6   something for 12 months or more?

 7        A.  I don't recall what the number was, but the

 8   notion was that whatever the cost of it would be, $450-,

 9   $500,000 would be divided by the customer base over a

10   12-month period.

11        Q.  So it would be paid in 12 installments over a

12   12-month period?

13        A.  Yes.

14        Q.  And wasn't it also presented that this would be

15   paid off, this 12-month loan before the $3.6 million

16   loan needed servicing?

17        A.  In the original proposal that was the notion.

18        Q.  Okay.  And you're telling us that you believed

19   at the time that it would be possible -- before you had

20   these meetings it would be possible to get all 502 users

21   to agree to that?

22        A.  No.  What -- the customers that we met with we

23   asked whether they would voluntarily go along with the

24   special assessment if we had unanimous consent.  It was

25   our understanding -- at least my understanding -- a lay
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 1   person's understanding that we did not need Public

 2   Service Commission approval for that.  So that's why we

 3   sought the unanimous consent of the customer base for

 4   that special assessment.

 5        Q.  Okay.  You've just answered what would have

 6   been my next question.  It was your understanding at the

 7   time that you needn't come to the Public Service

 8   Commission if you could get a hundred percent of the

 9   customers to agree to a 12-month loan payoff of the

10   $450,000, $500,000 tank?

11        A.  It was my understanding that if we got

12   unanimous consent for a special assessment regardless of

13   the terms, that we did not need to come to a public

14   service commission.  That was my understanding.  That's

15   why we made the request.

16        Q.  Did you have support from the representatives

17   of the customers at that meeting for that proposal?

18        A.  We did not.

19        Q.  Why not?

20        A.  Because we were told that associations could

21   not guarantee that their constituents or owners would

22   pay.

23        Q.  Did that surprise you?

24        A.  Yes.  My knowledge since I've developed

25   condominiums in general, condominium association
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 1   documents and bylaws allow for the associations to make

 2   sure that if there are special assessments, particularly

 3   for infrastructure or emergencies, that they're allowed

 4   to charge their owners and ensure to pay them.

 5        Q.  Weren't there 50 or so homeowners that were not

 6   in condominium associations who were also customers who

 7   would need to consent?

 8        A.  I don't know what the split is, but roughly

 9   70 percent or more of the Community Water customer base

10   is condominiums.

11        Q.  Yeah.  But you needed a hundred percent, and

12   with what you just stated, 30 percent would be people

13   that were not in condominium associations, individual

14   owners?  Pardon?

15        A.  What's your point?

16        Q.  You would need their consent as well?

17        A.  Correct.  But we didn't have the consent of the

18   condo owners so what difference does it make?

19        Q.  No.  No.  You're saying -- which one of us did

20   not agree to try to get our condominium associations to

21   support --

22        A.  Hidden Creek was one.

23        Q.  Pardon?

24        A.  Hidden Creek was one.  It was specifically

25   stated in the meeting that the condo associations did
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 1   not have the capacity to guarantee payments by owners.

 2        Q.  At that meeting?

 3        A.  At that meeting.

 4        Q.  Right.  But didn't they express an interest in

 5   pursuing that and trying to get a loan of that type with

 6   an agreement from the homeowners?

 7        A.  There was interest in pursuing it, but there

 8   was no conclusion.

 9        Q.  All right.  And there was a series of meetings

10   about this issue, was there not?  Two, three?

11        A.  There were multiple meetings with customers.

12   Yes, we've had multiple meetings with customers.

13        Q.  And you said you went to your executive

14   committee on -- I guess the company's board that owns

15   CWC?  Was that the organization you went to?

16        A.  I already explained what the ownership

17   structure of CWC is.

18        Q.  Okay.  Who's the direct owner?

19        A.  ASC Utah.

20        Q.  Okay.  When you just told us a minute ago -- a

21   few minutes ago that you went to the board and told --

22   or your executive committee of the board and told them

23   that you could not get a hundred percent agreement of

24   the customers so forget about the loan, was that the

25   board of ASC Utah?
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 1        A.  There is no board of ASC Utah.

 2        Q.  So who did you go to?

 3        A.  To the executive committee of TCFC Finance.

 4        Q.  Okay.  And I've seen TCFC Finance and TCFC.

 5   Are they the same entity?

 6        A.  Yes.

 7        Q.  So does TCFC Financial own ASC Utah?

 8        A.  So I already explained the structure.  The sole

 9   member of CWC is ASC Utah.  The sole member of ASC Utah

10   is TCFC Finance.

11        Q.  You are in what position for those two

12   entities?

13        A.  I am the CEO of TCFC.

14        Q.  And do you have a position with ASC Utah?

15        A.  No.

16        Q.  And when you told us earlier that Talisker had

17   an interest in Talisker acquired by Varde and later

18   Varde took controlling interest, is that TCFC Financial

19   or is that another step up the ladder?

20        A.  I believe it's TCFC Finance.

21        Q.  That Varde has an interest in and now controls?

22        A.  Yes.

23        Q.  Is that V-A-R-D-E?

24        A.  Yes.

25        Q.  Thank you.  So now when you went to the
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 1   executive committee of TCFC Financial, how many people

 2   are in that executive committee?

 3        A.  Two.

 4        Q.  And what is your title with respect to that

 5   committee?

 6        A.  I have no title of that committee.

 7        Q.  So it's a two-person committee?

 8        A.  Yes.

 9        Q.  And that's a committee made up of board members

10   of TCFC?

11        A.  It's an executive committee that consists of

12   two people.

13        Q.  All right.  I understand that.  Are they both

14   board members?

15        A.  I can't answer your question in terms of --

16   again, I'm not a lawyer.  I don't know the structure.

17        Q.  You don't know if you were a board member?

18        A.  I know I'm not a board member.

19        Q.  Who appointed the committee of two?

20        A.  Again, you're asking questions that I can't

21   answer.

22        Q.  All right.  You were the CEO?

23        A.  I am the CEO of TCFC.

24        Q.  Okay.  Did you appoint somebody else to be with

25   you on this committee?
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 1        A.  I did not.

 2        Q.  When you went to this committee of you and one

 3   other person and told them --

 4        MR. ATWATER:  Objection to the question, Your

 5   Honor.  He suggested that Mr. White was on the committee

 6   which --

 7        THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think it misstates the

 8   testimony.  I agree with you.

 9        MR. SAVAGE:

10        Q.  Are you on the committee?

11        A.  I am not.

12        Q.  I'm sorry.  I misunderstood.  When you went to

13   the two-person committee and -- at that point in time

14   was it planned that TCFC would provide the funding for

15   the emergency replacement of the tank before you went to

16   them?

17        A.  Well, I can't say that we had a specific source

18   of where the funding would come from, but we knew that

19   we could provide the funding.

20        Q.  Okay.  And had you had a meeting with this

21   committee before meeting with the customers of TCFC

22   about needing a hundred percent agreement?

23        A.  We have regular meetings so that was certainly

24   expressed to them.

25        Q.  No, I'm trying to get the timing of this.  Did
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 1   this committee know that you needed a hundred percent

 2   approval for a 12-month assessment of the owners when

 3   you first talked to the committee about TCFC providing

 4   money to provide this tank?

 5        A.  The committee knew that there needed to be a

 6   source of repayment.

 7        Q.  Okay.  Did they know about what you've later

 8   told us was a need for a hundred percent agreement?

 9        A.  I don't recall whether that was expressed to

10   them explicitly or not.

11        Q.  How long after the tank failed did you first

12   have conversations with this committee about TCFC

13   funding a short term loan?

14        A.  Probably within a month.

15        Q.  At that time did you talk to the committee

16   about an alternative of applying to the public services

17   commission for an interim rate increase to fund that?

18        A.  We did not.

19        Q.  Had you ever talked to them about that until

20   let's say September 1st of 2017?

21        A.  Yes.  The decision was made after that meeting

22   that we needed to pursue Public Service Commission

23   approval because we did not have the approval of the

24   homeowners or the customers.

25        Q.  Isn't it true that you also attached another
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 1   condition to the users, that being that they would agree

 2   to the transfer of ownership to Summit and agree to

 3   Summit seeking -- support Summit's efforts to get out

 4   from under Public Service Commission supervision?

 5        A.  So part of the conversation and the

 6   conversation for a long time, as you well know, has been

 7   attempting to transfer Community Water customers over to

 8   Summit Water.  It was the request of the Community Water

 9   customers that that happen.

10        Q.  Well, it's also what TCFC wanted?

11        A.  Mutual agreement.  Seems like it should be

12   easy, does it not?

13        Q.  Is the answer yes?  That's also what TCFC

14   wanted?

15        A.  Yes.

16        Q.  Okay.  And wasn't it the condition of money

17   from the parent, TCFC, to fund this short-term loan to

18   replace the tank -- wasn't it a condition that a vast

19   majority of the users agree to the transfer of the

20   company to a company control by Summit Water and seek

21   and support Summit Water in an attempt to get out from

22   under Public Service Commission supervision?

23        A.  So we discussed a process by which Community

24   Water would get transferred to the management of Summit

25   Water.  I've already said that we've already discussed
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 1   the process by which that would take place.

 2        Q.  You haven't answered my question.

 3        A.  I don't know the answer to your question.

 4        Q.  Wasn't a condition placed upon the money coming

 5   from Summit -- from TCFC -- the money coming to replace

 6   the tank -- wasn't a condition placed on that that the

 7   customers would support a transfer of the -- of CWC to

 8   Summit Water and Summit Water getting out from under --

 9   or CWC getting out from under public service control?

10   That's a yes or no.  Wasn't that a condition?

11        A.  We discussed a number of provisions by which we

12   would process towards an end goal of repairing the

13   system, including the tank, and transferring the assets

14   to the customers with Summit Water management.  That's

15   what we discussed.

16        Q.  Transferring it to the customers without the

17   customers being able to vote for the majority of the

18   board of that new company; is that correct?  Wasn't that

19   the proposal?

20        A.  There were many discussions about how to manage

21   the company.

22        MR. ATWATER:  May I help reframe the question.  I

23   think maybe a different question would help.  Is that

24   okay?

25        MR. SAVAGE:  Yeah.
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 1        MR. ATWATER:  So what he's trying to determine is

 2   would TCFC have loaned the tank funds to Community Water

 3   had Community Water's customers not agreed to become

 4   Summit Water.

 5        THE WITNESS:  There were no specific, you know,

 6   terms of the loan that were discussed.  It was an idea

 7   to try and advance quickly the replacement of the tank.

 8   That's all it was.  And it was coincidental to the

 9   conversation about how to complete the rest of the

10   infrastructure, close on the loan, get it under the

11   appropriate management of Summit Water.  That's what was

12   going on at the time.

13        MR. ATWATER:  So there was no expressed condition?

14        THE WITNESS:  Not that I recall.

15        MR. SAVAGE:

16        Q.  When you went to your executive committee, did

17   you talk to them about the desire of TCFC to do a deal

18   with Summit Water with the support of the customers?

19        A.  Yes.

20        Q.  And did you report back to them that that was

21   also something that the customers did not support?

22        A.  We've had those conversations, yes.

23        Q.  Would you recommend that same committee

24   tomorrow, that it fund a short-term loan to pay for the

25   tank if this commission orders an emergency interim rate
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 1   increase with a stream of income of say 12 months to

 2   repay that loan with interest?

 3        A.  Again, it depends on the specific conditions,

 4   but in general, yes, I could recommend that.

 5        Q.  All right.  Thank you.  And that would be

 6   without any deal with Summit Water?

 7        A.  That would be independent of any deal with

 8   Summit Water.

 9        Q.  Okay.  Now the --

10        A.  But it would also be in -- with the intent of

11   also repairing the rest of the system.  Because it

12   doesn't do any good just to replace a single tank when

13   the rest of the system is failing, and when there were

14   no meters, you know, to half the customers, in order to

15   recover the cost of the water that's being used.

16        Q.  I understand that.  But we'll get to that

17   later.  You said that as of this moment, Community

18   Water, CWC, is what?  72,000 in the red?

19        A.  With no fees, yes.  With no overhead allocated,

20   yes.

21        Q.  And isn't it true that in the history of CWC

22   that you've been aware of, the bulk of its money comes

23   in in the summer as revenue?

24        A.  I couldn't tell you exactly the income curve,

25   but that's generally when the highest use is.
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 1        Q.  Sure.  People are watering their lawns?

 2        A.  Correct.

 3        Q.  And that's a much higher use than indoor use

 4   during the winter; correct?

 5        A.  Correct.

 6        Q.  And isn't it a fact that you imposed -- CWC I

 7   should say -- imposed a restriction that nobody water

 8   their lawns this summer?

 9        A.  That's correct.

10        Q.  And isn't that why there is $112,000 deficit?

11        A.  I don't think that there is any relationship

12   between those two things.

13        Q.  Okay.  You don't think there is any

14   relationship between receiving revenue and not receiving

15   revenue you would have otherwise received and not being

16   in the red?

17        A.  I think that there is a direct relationship

18   between the money that's being spent on engineering and

19   legal fees to prepare for rate cases and prepare for the

20   repairs that need to be made to the system.

21        Q.  You said there have been $36,000 in engineering

22   fees for this tank already; correct?

23        A.  Correct.

24        Q.  Who paid for that?

25        A.  There is $30,000 that are currently in accounts
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 1   payable.

 2        Q.  Who is going to pay for that?

 3        A.  That's a good question.

 4        Q.  Whose paid what has been paid?  Has TCFC paid

 5   anything?

 6        A.  So not directly.  So TCFC makes loans to

 7   Community Water.

 8        Q.  Okay.  To cover deficits?

 9        A.  To cover deficits, correct.

10        Q.  And that also would be the type of structure

11   that would be done in this instance if TCFC chose to

12   fund the tank replacement with a guaranteed stream of

13   income from the Public Service Commission?

14        A.  With a guaranteed stream of income from its

15   customers.

16        Q.  Yeah.  But I mean ordered by the Public Service

17   Commission?

18        A.  Correct.

19        Q.  You indicated that -- well, let's back up.  I'm

20   still not clear as to who bought what.  When was -- Did

21   ASC Utah to your knowledge own CWC before Talisker

22   became involved in the Canyons?

23        A.  I wasn't around at that time so I have no idea

24   of the legal structure.

25        Q.  Do you have any knowledge as to who owned
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 1   Community Water before Talisker acquired an interest in

 2   the Canyons?

 3        A.  Again my understanding is that ASCU owned

 4   Community Water, but I wasn't around at the time.  I

 5   don't know that as fact.

 6        Q.  And then when was it that Talisker purchased an

 7   interest in the Canyons?

 8        A.  In 2008.

 9        Q.  2008.  And at that time did it acquire

10   indirectly Community Water?

11        A.  Again, to my knowledge, that was part of the

12   asset base, but I wasn't around at the time so I can't

13   tell you how the structure worked.

14        Q.  Do you know of any change in the structure

15   since or prior to the structure you just told us about?

16        A.  I'm not aware, no.

17        Q.  Is it your understanding that TCFC when it

18   acquired ASC, acquired the company of Community Water?

19        A.  Again, I don't know what the transaction was

20   that took place.  But it's my understanding that

21   Community Water were part of the assets of the

22   investment.

23        Q.  Right.  But it was a company that was

24   purchased, not just the assets of it.  You didn't buy

25   the pump and the tanks and the irrigation lines.
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 1   Talisker bought Community Water, the company?

 2        A.  I've already testified to the fact I don't know

 3   how that transaction was structured.

 4        Q.  Okay.  When did you first become involved?

 5        A.  I became involved in February of 2014.

 6        Q.  And as of February 2014, TCFC owned the company

 7   CWC, not just its assets?

 8        MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  It's been stated that

 9   TCFC owned ASC Utah.

10        MR. SAVAGE:

11        Q.  Okay.  Well, indirectly owned the company.  ASC

12   owned the water company; is that correct?

13        A.  I've already explained the structure.

14        Q.  Yeah, but I'm interested in making it clear for

15   the record that Talisker, an entity controlled by

16   Talisker, acquired the company and not just the assets

17   of the company?

18        A.  And I've already testified that I don't know

19   how the company was acquired.

20        Q.  Okay.  So you don't know if the company was

21   acquired or just its assets were acquired?

22        A.  I've already answered your question.

23        Q.  And it is you don't know?

24        THE HEARING OFFICER:  It's asked and answered.

25   Let's move on.
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 1        MR. SAVAGE:  You don't know; correct?

 2        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Asked and answered.  Let's

 3   move on.

 4        MR. SAVAGE:

 5        Q.  Now you stated in your direct testimony that

 6   people have been in denial about the dilapidated

 7   condition of the Community Water infrastructure.  Do you

 8   recall that testimony?

 9        A.  I do.

10        Q.  Who are the people?

11        A.  You.

12        Q.  So you're blaming the customers for the

13   condition of the company's infrastructure?

14        MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  Relevance.

15        MR. SAVAGE:  That's what he just said.

16        THE WITNESS:  I'm not blaming anybody.

17        THE HEARING OFFICER:  The objection is sustained.

18   It's argumentative.  If you could restate your question

19   in a way that would be more constructive to the issues

20   at hand, that would be helpful.

21        MR. SAVAGE:

22        Q.  All right.  In saying the people have been in

23   denial, you said me.  By me, did you mean just me or do

24   you mean the users, the customers?

25        A.  So in all these conversations which you know
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 1   very well, because you've attended all these and spoken

 2   at length -- in all of our attempts to try and resolve

 3   these issues and talk about the infrastructure

 4   deficiencies and ways of trying to rectify them, the

 5   customers have been more interested in what they're

 6   paying per month and trying to, you know, maintain that

 7   at the lowest possible level versus, you know,

 8   understand, engage in and agree to a payment method to

 9   repair the system.

10        And every single one of these cases you've objected

11   to.  The last case you objected to.  You're objecting to

12   this one.  In every case the customers have -- and you

13   as representatives of your associations -- have objected

14   to the rate case.

15        Q.  I don't want to be argumentative, but I think

16   I've made an alternative proposal.  I'm objecting to the

17   company's proposal for how this is paid.  You're

18   interpreting that as meaning the people who object to

19   the amount of the rate increase or how the rate increase

20   is to be accomplished, that those are people that are

21   trying to keep the system in a dilapidated condition.

22   Is that your belief?

23        A.  No.  My testimony is that they're trying to

24   keep their rates as low as possible and they're not

25   acknowledging what it actually costs to repair the
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 1   system.  We have an engineering study which Fran

 2   Amendola and others have questioned the validity of, and

 3   we don't really have to do that.  We don't really have

 4   to make all those changes to the treatment system to

 5   make it work.  We can get by with less.  And all these

 6   conversations are an attempt to thwart our ability to

 7   run this company appropriately and make the repairs that

 8   are necessary to have it function properly.

 9        Q.  And you've said as you just stated now, every

10   attempt has been thwarted; correct?

11        A.  That's what I said.

12        Q.  And isn't it true that since you became

13   involved, this is the first rate case that has been

14   filed by Community Water for a capital improvement other

15   than the one that they moved to dismiss in 2016?

16        A.  Again, I'm not -- as I testified before, I was

17   not surprised about the previous rate cases in terms of

18   attempts, but as I was aware that there had been

19   attempts before, again to my involvement this is the

20   first time that we have brought one forward and brought

21   all the evidence necessary to make the case.

22        Q.  Okay.  So to your knowledge this is the first

23   time that a rate case for a capital improvement has been

24   brought forward?

25        A.  I don't know whether there have been previous
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 1   cases brought forward for capital improvements.

 2        Q.  I asked your knowledge.

 3        A.  I wasn't involved in any of the previous rate

 4   cases.

 5        Q.  To your knowledge, this is the first one?

 6        MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  The record is clear on

 7   this issue.

 8        THE HEARING OFFICER:  He said "Yeah, I have no

 9   knowledge" and you're asking him again if he did.

10   Objection is sustained for the record.

11        MR. SAVAGE:

12        Q.  Do you recall me suggesting in May or June that

13   you ought to go on a parallel track and file a rate case

14   for interim rate case to cover this failed tank at the

15   same time you were trying to work a deal with Summit

16   Water?

17        A.  I don't recall that.

18        Q.  Do you recall me proposing a rotational

19   watering system to allow us to try to maintain our

20   landscaping with some minimal water without endangering

21   the capacity of the remaining tank?

22        A.  I do recall you requesting that.

23        Q.  And that was rejected, was it not?

24        A.  It was.

25        Q.  Now isn't it true in the Summit Water proposal
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 1   for this, you said a mutual company that the customers

 2   were owned as part of the discussions -- isn't it true

 3   that the proposed new company that would take over CWC,

 4   that the -- that Summit Water would own all of the class

 5   one stock and the users would be issued class two stock?

 6        MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  Relevance.

 7        MR. SAVAGE:

 8        Q.  Do you recall that?

 9        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Overruled.

10        THE WITNESS:  There have been a number of

11   discussions about how to structure this so that the

12   liabilities of Community Water did not extend to Summit

13   Water, but that the company be allowed to be managed in

14   a professional manner by a company who was used to doing

15   it.

16        MR. SAVAGE:

17        Q.  And ownership and control by vote.  Wasn't it

18   true that the only proposal that we saw was that Summit

19   Water would own all of the class one stock?

20        A.  There have been several proposals in terms of

21   how to structure this.  I've already explained what the

22   intention of the structure is.

23        Q.  I want to know the ownership and who gets the

24   vote.

25        A.  There has been nothing settled about the -- it
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 1   was one proposal.

 2        Q.  Right.  What was that proposal?  Class one

 3   stock and class two stock, wasn't it?

 4        A.  The proposal was for the management of the

 5   company that would be controlled by Summit Water.

 6        MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  Relevance.

 7        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Overruled.

 8        MR. SAVAGE:

 9        Q.  And Summit Water would have control of the --

10   electing the majority of the board of the remaining

11   company?

12        A.  That was one proposal.

13        Q.  That's the only one that's been made to the

14   user, isn't it?

15        A.  I've explained that it's been a process to come

16   up with a viable means to transfer the company into

17   professional ownership.

18        Q.  Isn't that the only one that's been presented?

19        A.  I've explained that it's been a process to come

20   up with the viable means to transfer the company into

21   professional ownership.

22        Q.  And has there been in any of those proposals a

23   proposal that would allow the users to control the

24   number of board members?

25        A.  It has been discussed.
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 1        Q.  Has that been proposed to the users?

 2        A.  It has been discussed, but it has not been

 3   proposed to the users.

 4        Q.  Who has it been discussed between?  You and

 5   Summit Water?

 6        A.  Discussed between me and Summit Water and our

 7   counsel.

 8        Q.  I don't want to know about discussions with

 9   your counsel.  So just so we're clear on the record,

10   when you say there is a proposal for a -- for the

11   owners -- for the users to take over ownership of the

12   company, that has been a discussion between you and

13   Summit Water?

14        A.  And our counsel, yes.

15        Q.  Okay.  Does Summit Water require -- as a

16   condition to being an owner in that new company, does it

17   require as a condition that the new company not be under

18   Public Service Commission control?

19        A.  Summit Water is not under Public Service

20   Commission control.  It's a non-profit shareholder owned

21   company.

22        Q.  You didn't answer my question.

23        A.  So yes, it's a requirement if it was to be

24   transferred to their management that it not be under

25   public service control.
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 1        Q.  Thank you.

 2        A.  Or I should say oversight run.

 3        Q.  Do you recall anybody on behalf of TCFC or

 4   Summit Water or CWC in one of these meetings stating

 5   that it would complicate a deal with Summit Water to

 6   apply to the Public Service Commission for an emergency

 7   loan to fix this tank?

 8        A.  No.

 9        Q.  Okay.  You don't recall Emily Lewis saying

10   something like that?

11        A.  No.

12        Q.  Isn't it true that you represented to the

13   customers that proceeding before the Public Service

14   Commission a special assessment will take a minimum of

15   120 days and more reasonably 240 days?

16        A.  It was our understanding after repeated

17   requests through Emily Lewis, that there was no

18   provision for an emergency assessment or an emergency

19   rate increase.  That the -- that whatever the

20   application process is, that there was no provision for,

21   you know, an emergency request or an emergency, you

22   know, special assessment or rate increase.  That it

23   needed to take its full course of roughly 240 -- that

24   every rate increase or every rate case whether it be

25   special assessment or rate case, that it took 240 days.
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 1        Q.  And yet we're here today in less than 45 days?

 2        A.  This is only the beginning of this case.  This

 3   is not the conclusion of this case.  This case will go

 4   on.  As my understanding and as a layperson and a

 5   lawyer, that this will go on.  That this is only the

 6   first part of this and that the subsequent part of the

 7   hearing can last up to 240 days.

 8        Q.  For adjustments to the interim rate?

 9        A.  I'm not going to opine as to --

10        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Savage -- you don't need

11   to answer that.  Mr. Savage, let's go ahead and move on

12   from this line of questioning.  We know what the process

13   is here.

14        MR. SAVAGE:

15        Q.  Anyhow, you represented 240 days in your --

16        A.  That was my understanding and remains my

17   understanding today.

18        Q.  Okay.  That's all I have.  Thank you, sir.

19        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Lange?

20        MR. LANGE:  I have no questions for Mr. White at

21   this point in time.

22        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  And Ms. Miller?

23        MS. MILLER:  Yes, I have a couple of things.

24        Q.  Mr. White, you testified that Hidden Creek HOA

25   couldn't guarantee repayment of an assessment for the
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 1   tank.  Would you be surprised to understand that in fact

 2   our amended condominium declaration requires that we

 3   have -- first obtain a majority of the project's

 4   ownership interest before we can make a one-time special

 5   assessment, but that a monthly payment plan would not be

 6   a problem for us to pass on to our owners?

 7        A.  Yes, that would be a surprise.

 8        Q.  Well, that in fact is the current case with our

 9   condominium declaration.

10        A.  That was never expressed to us.

11        Q.  Well, maybe you didn't listen to us.  Let me

12   ask you another question.  Do you recall a request for

13   documentation to support denial of the rotational

14   irrigation?  In other words, a request for system

15   modeling that shows that the system cannot support

16   rotational irrigation during the summer months to keep

17   our landscaping alive.

18        A.  So let's explain that.  The remaining tank,

19   which also is 40 years old, and could fail at any time

20   is roughly 225,000 gallons.  At the time that the larger

21   of the two tanks failed, we asked the fire department to

22   come out and inspect the tank and tell us how much

23   needed to be held in reserve in order to keep an

24   adequate supply of water in the event of fire or

25   emergency.  It was half the tank's capacity.  On advice
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 1   of counsel we determined that we should not allow

 2   irrigation and put that out to all -- gave notice to all

 3   the customers that we would not be able to provide the

 4   irrigation water for this summer.  We did that as a life

 5   safety manager and on the advice of counsel, that we

 6   would put homes and lives in peril if we allowed

 7   irrigation that potentially drew that tank down below

 8   the halfway mark, roughly $110,000 to $115,000 gallons.

 9        That actually happened fairly recently when

10   apparently some electrical switch was triggered on the

11   well, and the tank was drawn down below that emergency

12   level.  But on advice of counsel and to notice of all

13   the customers with full explanation as to why, we said

14   no irrigation for this summer.  And a number of the

15   homeowners, including Mr. Savage, violated that and

16   irrigated anyway.

17        Q.  So you're telling me you did not have an

18   engineering study done to model the system to know how

19   much excess capacity might be retained in the tank while

20   still retaining fire safety?

21        A.  We did have that knowledge.  We had --

22        Q.  No, I asked you if you had an engineering model

23   done of the system that demonstrated how much excess

24   capacity was left in the tank?

25        A.  We did not have an engineering model done.  We
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 1   knew how much the tank held.  We knew how much the

 2   customers used and we knew how much, based on the fire

 3   company, we needed to retain in the tank.

 4        Q.  Right.  So you took a guess at how much -- the

 5   fact that there wasn't any water available for

 6   irrigation?

 7        A.  I think I've already explained it.  It was not

 8   a guess.

 9        Q.  Okay.  So it was an educated guess?

10        A.  I think I've already answered your question.

11        Q.  So what is the plan if the current tank fails

12   before the new tank is installed?

13        A.  So we have the capacity that the system is

14   hooked up.  Meaning there are pipes connecting the

15   system to Summit Water system.  The problem with that is

16   that if we draw water, and we recently did draw water

17   from Summit Water in order to fill the tank back up

18   after the well was temporarily out of commission, it was

19   discovered that the tank was drawn down below its -- the

20   necessary fire reserve capacity, and we filled it back

21   up with Summit Water.

22        The problem is that -- again, my understanding --

23   so our cost of water from Summit is a high.  It's like

24   an emergency cost of water.  And we have no way of

25   passing that cost through to our customers, again,
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 1   without Public Service Commission approval.  That's my

 2   understanding.

 3        MS. MILLER:  That's all my questions.  Thank you.

 4        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  And I believe a

 5   representative from all of the HOAs and intervenors

 6   present, has already had an opportunity to ask

 7   cross-examination questions.  It seems redundant and a

 8   little unorthdox to allow Mr. Amendola an additional

 9   opportunity, but I'll allow it if there is no objections

10   from counsel and he wishes to do so.

11        MR. ATWATER:  I have no objection.

12        MS. SCHMID:  I have no objection.

13        MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.

14        MR. LANGE:  No objection.

15        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Amendola, do you have any

16   questions for the witness?

17        MR. AMENDOLA:  Just a couple, and I have to tell

18   you I didn't have the luxury of hearing many of the

19   responses by Mr. White just because the signal is not

20   very good.

21        Q.  Mr. White, during the July 17 meeting that was

22   held at your offices, do you recall just basically

23   unanimous support for moving forward with replacing the

24   tank expressed by the customers?

25        A.  I think I've already testified to this.  It was
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 1   our understanding that the customers were not capable of

 2   giving unanimous consent because they couldn't collect

 3   from owners.  This is specific to the condo

 4   associations.  So my understanding from that meeting is,

 5   no, we did not have unanimous consent.  We could not get

 6   unanimous consent, and therefore we could not have a

 7   special assessment agreed to by the customers.  And

 8   that's when we made the decision that we needed to go on

 9   the parallel path of pursuing Public Service Commission

10   approval.

11        Q.  Let me clarify my question.  I think you're

12   responding to unanimous support to attain funding by the

13   HOA associations because they needed time.  But for the

14   people that were in that meeting, wasn't there unanimous

15   support for the need to move forward with replacing the

16   tank immediately?

17        A.  It was certainly unanimous acknowledgment that

18   we needed to move forward with replacing the tank, but

19   there was no method of paying for it or if the company

20   was to loan -- if TCFC was to loan the money to CWC to

21   replace the tank, there was no ensured method of

22   recovering that loan without -- I should say without

23   coming back to the --

24        THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'm sorry.  You guys can't

25   speak over each other.  Let's go ahead and allow
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 1   Mr. Amendola to phrase his question and Mr. White can

 2   respond.

 3        MR. AMENDOLA:  One other question I have is that

 4   back in the 1609 rate case, do you recall the Red Pine

 5   and Hidden Creek comments that were submitted that

 6   basically requested that more money be approved to

 7   upgrade the water treatment plant and acknowledgment of

 8   the ill-maintained condition of the plant?

 9        A.  I do not.

10        MR. AMENDOLA:  Okay.  That's all I have.  Thank you

11   very much for the opportunity.

12        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you very much,

13   Mr. Amendola.  Mr. Atwater, any redirect?

14        MR. ATWATER:  Just one.  Thank you.

15        Q.  Mr. White, in response to the questioning, I

16   believe, of Ms. Schmid and Mr. Savage, you stated that

17   an affiliate loan may be available to fund a replacement

18   of the tank on certain terms and conditions.  Do you

19   have any purview as to what those terms and conditions

20   might be specifically -- economic terms in terms of rate

21   of return, time frame of return?

22        A.  So we have not had any further discussion with

23   our executive committee about what the terms might be,

24   so I don't have the specifics of that.  We've not made

25   that request at this point in time because this case was
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 1   specific to special assessment to replace the tank

 2   immediately.  So I don't have any such terms.  I've not

 3   further discussed it with executive committee at this

 4   point.

 5        Q.  Thank you.  Just one follow-up.  You testified

 6   earlier that the promised rate of return to your

 7   investors -- or Varde's investors is approximately

 8   13 percent.  Is it your anticipation that the rate of

 9   return would be in that ballpark or would it be

10   something different?

11        A.  Again, the way that the funds are set up,

12   that's the minimum promise to the investors.  So it's

13   called a preferred rate of return to the investors.  So

14   that would be the minimal rate that would be expected

15   for any further loan or investment.

16        Q.  So let me just rephrase and get your

17   confirmation.  To the extent there is an affiliate loan

18   available to fund the tank, the minimum rate of return

19   required by that investment committee would be

20   13 percent?

21        A.  That's likely, but I can't predict what it is

22   that they would determine, but that would be likely the

23   minimum.

24        MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.

25        MR. LANGE:  May I ask a question?
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 1        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any objection?

 2        MR. ATWATER:  No.

 3        MR. LANGE:

 4        Q.  So Mr. White, with the rate of return for Varde

 5   at 13 percent, is that for each one of its individual

 6   interests?  Or in other words, is the return for

 7   Community Water predicated on 13 percent, and say the

 8   return on investment for other interests at the Canyons

 9   came in at 23 percent or whatever it might be?  Are we

10   looking at an overall global aspect of 13 percent, or do

11   we have to pay 13 percent -- or do you have to pay 13

12   percent precisely to Community Water?

13        A.  So I've already testified to the fact I've not

14   had that conversation with our executive committee, so I

15   can't answer your question.

16        Q.  Will you be having a conversation to clarify

17   that?

18        A.  Depends on the outcome of this hearing.

19        MR. LANGE:  Thank you.  That's all the questions I

20   have.

21        THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Anything else,

22   Mr. Atwater?

23        MR. ATWATER:  No.  Thank you.

24        THE HEARING OFFICER:  I just have a couple,

25   Mr. White.
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 1        My understanding is that CWC was interested

 2   initially in pursuing funding for the tank through the

 3   Division of -- the department of water?  DDW?  Help me

 4   out.

 5        THE WITNESS:  Division of Drinking Water.

 6        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you -- as you referred

 7   to it --

 8        THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

 9        THE HEARING OFFICER:  -- and later elected to --

10   perhaps not formally -- but has elected at this time not

11   to pursue funding for the tank with that money?

12        THE WITNESS:  So for clarification we pursued

13   funding of the tank directly through the special

14   assessment because of timing and because of cost.

15   Because the nature -- again, my understanding of the

16   loan, is that we could not front costs even in deposit

17   for the tank prior to closing the loan.  And that if it

18   came under the loan provisions, we would have to wait

19   until the loan was closed, then get bids on, you know,

20   from multiple sources, and then wait for that period of

21   time.  It likely would have driven the costs up for the

22   tank and delayed the time period, which is why we

23   pursued a different means of funding the tank.

24        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Aside from the funding

25   from the Division of Drinking Water and the loan from
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 1   the parent company that we've discussed, did the company

 2   pursue any other financing options for the tank from any

 3   other financier?

 4        A.  No, sir.  We don't believe that that's a

 5   commercially viable -- meaning going to a bank?  There

 6   are no -- when a company is under water from a financial

 7   standpoint and from an infrastructure standpoint, it's

 8   not a commercially financable transaction.

 9        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Did the company explore

10   whether there were other public financing options

11   available except for the Division of Drinking Water?

12        THE WITNESS:  Yes.  Emily Lewis can testify to

13   that.  We pursued numerous public financing on both the

14   federal and state level, which is how we sourced this

15   particular loan, and thought that it was the best

16   solution for the company.  The lowest interest rate,

17   longest term.  And so in terms of, again, cost to the

18   customer in the end, that it was the most efficient from

19   a cost standpoint.

20        And one other, you know, element of this, just so

21   you understand, in terms of the timing, we initially --

22   when Emily originally discovered this loan opportunity

23   and we made application to it, it was before the tank

24   failed.  And at that time we thought that the loan could

25   close sometime in the summer.  And as we got further
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 1   into it, further into the application, it gets more and

 2   more complicated.  So we didn't fully understand all the

 3   provisions and requirements of the loan.  So as we

 4   continued -- so it's our understanding now that we have

 5   to have full engineering.  In other words, we have to

 6   invest in all of the engineering costs to repair the

 7   system up front before the loan can close and be able to

 8   submit that.

 9        So consequently, the period of closing that loan

10   became longer and longer.  It's now projected at April

11   at the earliest.  So that was part of our decision in

12   terms of separating or pursuing a different route to

13   replace the tank rather than wait for that loan to

14   close.  So as both a cost and time consideration.

15        Q.  Did you consider or discuss with your parent

16   company whether any short-term bridge financing might be

17   available through the parent company pending eventual

18   more permanent financing through the DDW?

19        A.  So again, our understanding is that we could

20   not use the DDW loan for any infrastructure that was put

21   into place prior to the loan closing.  That was part of

22   the complication.  It can't replace.  We tried that.  We

23   asked them.  They can't replace infrastructure that is

24   put into place prior to the loan closing because it

25   doesn't follow Davis Bacon and other federal
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 1   requirements for bidding.

 2        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Right.  I wondered whether it

 3   might be possible to fragment the project or something.

 4   Perhaps you could use a bridge loan to get going.  It

 5   sounds like these questions might be better suited for

 6   another witness which I think I'm about to hear and I'm

 7   happy to wait.

 8        THE WITNESS:  Again, the answer to your question is

 9   that we could pursue some internal financing mechanism

10   if the method of repayment was clear and approved, which

11   is why we're here.

12        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.

13        MS. LEWIS:  Just to clarify, the Division of

14   Drinking Water requires that you have a repayment

15   structure in place before you can close on the loan.  So

16   for that we are pursuing the parallel track of either

17   having a Summit Water or Community Water non-profit

18   structure be the repayment structure for a public

19   service commission rate increase.  So it is -- to close

20   on the loan you need to prove you have a repayment

21   structure.  So that would been a hindrance in any kind

22   of bridge.

23        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  And you intend to

24   testify; right?

25        MS. LEWIS:  I can.
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 1        THE HEARING OFFICER:  You do not intend to testify?

 2        MR. AMENDOLA:  Your Honor, can I have a follow-up

 3   question on the loan?

 4        THE HEARING OFFICER:  No.  Let's wait a minute.

 5        What you essentially provided was testimony.  So if

 6   you want to make a statement, we need to put you under

 7   oath.  I think that would be appropriate.

 8        MS. SCHMID:  I am concerned if Ms. Lewis testifies

 9   as a witness while also serving as counsel.

10        MR. ATWATER:  Would it be possible to include that

11   in our closing statement?

12        MS. SCHMID:  That's not evidence either.  Perhaps

13   we could take a break and perhaps Mr. White's memory

14   could be refreshed.

15        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Well, I want the witness who

16   is most qualified -- please let me finish -- I want the

17   witness who is most qualified to speak to these matters

18   to testify to them.  And it's up to CWC whether or not

19   it wants its counsel to testify.  My understanding is

20   that Ms. Lewis's role is perhaps more of a corporate

21   transactional counsel.  I defer to the company whether

22   they want to call that witness.

23        MR. ATWATER:  Sure.  We're not concerned by the

24   same concern that Ms. Schmid expressed at this level.

25   Especially in the interim hearing.  So we would be

0096

 1   perfectly fine calling Ms. Lewis as a witness.

 2        MR. SAVAGE:  I don't know the normal practice for

 3   Public Service Commission, but in court an attorney

 4   cannot argue a case if they are a witness.  But other

 5   than that there is nothing stopping --

 6        THE HEARING OFFICER:  I understand that.  That's

 7   why I don't have a problem necessarily with Ms. Lewis

 8   testifying because of Mr. Atwater's representing --

 9        MR. SAVAGE:  Mr. Atwater will know if she tries to

10   argue, I'll object.

11        THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think I'll conclude my

12   questions for Mr. White.  I'll allow Mr. Atwater to

13   decide whether he wants Ms. Lewis to take the stand,

14   make a statement she just felt compelled to make on the

15   record or not.  That of course will subject her to

16   cross-examination.  I just can't allow counsel to make

17   statements of fact and accept them as evidence without

18   being sworn to testify.

19        MR. ATWATER:  Okay.

20        THE HEARING OFFICER:  You're excused, Mr. White.

21        MR. ATWATER:  We're inclined to call Ms. Lewis, but

22   we would like to call Ms. Campbell prior to calling

23   Ms. Lewis if that would be okay.

24        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Absolutely.  You can present

25   your evidence in whatever order you prefer.
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 1        MR. ATWATER:  So the applicant calls Ms. Tena

 2   Campbell, engineer with Bowen & Collins, engineering

 3   firm, to the stand.

 4        (Tena Campbell is sworn in as a witness.)

 5        MR. ATWATER:  Thank you, Ms. Campbell, for

 6   attending.

 7        Q.  As a preliminary matter, I need to ask you, do

 8   you certify as true the testimony of Mr. Keith Larson

 9   who is a partner in Bowen & Collins and a partner of

10   yours?

11        A.  I do.

12        Q.  I have just a few questions to you.

13        MR. ATWATER:  In addition to the direct testimony

14   provided by Mr. Larson, I also do want to clarify for

15   those that cross-examine Ms. Campbell that the

16   information in Mr. Larson's testimony regarding ERUs and

17   other calculations are clear in the record, and

18   Ms. Campbell may not have a direct knowledge to all of

19   those questions.  And to the extent they may not be able

20   to be answered today, we will do so as promptly as

21   possible just so that you're aware.  She did not

22   participate directly in the creation of the rate model.

23        Q.  So my first question for you, Ms. Campbell,

24   relates to -- first of all, what was your firm engaged

25   to do with respect to the failed tank?
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 1        A.  So upon having looked at the system previously

 2   through the master planning process, we were engaged,

 3   being familiar with the system, to look at the failed

 4   tank to help assess options for replacement, being the

 5   same style and type that's there or an alternative that

 6   would be -- function the same, but be just as cost

 7   effective and make the system whole again.

 8        So we worked with Summit Water and their staff to

 9   evaluate above ground steel tanks, welded or bolted,

10   determined what suppliers might supply such a tank, and

11   what the timing of that might be.  We also were engaged

12   to provide a foundation design to support whichever tank

13   was chosen to replace the existing tank.

14        Q.  Thank you.  Do you recall the time frame, month

15   when you were engaged to provide that level of service?

16        A.  It was almost immediately upon failure.  We

17   were brought in to help consult with the style of the

18   tank and the feasibility of replacing it.

19        Q.  Thank you.  And can you testify as to the

20   current condition or state of the work regarding the

21   tank?

22        A.  The existing tank has been removed.  The

23   existing foundation that was there, which was minimum,

24   has been removed.  So there is a bare ground site there

25   right now.  The supplier of the tank has been engaged
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 1   and has prepared some shop drawings for the new tank.

 2        We are in the process of review and comment on

 3   those shop drawings to make it so that it is feasible to

 4   construct.  Bowen Collins has prepared a foundation

 5   design based upon the preliminary shop drawings with

 6   revision expected upon revision to the shop drawings.

 7   But we've also used that design that we've completed so

 8   far for preliminary bids on constructing that foundation

 9   on-site.

10        Q.  Thank you.  Have you had any conversations with

11   the Division of Drinking Water regarding the

12   availability of the loan relative to construction of the

13   tank?

14        A.  Yes.  Just this week they had asked me is there

15   a possibility of putting the tank in the loan as was

16   originally asked upon the emergency situation.  At that

17   time, I did tell them how far along we were with the

18   supplier and bids on the foundation, and that it would

19   be difficult, and maybe not very advantageous, to try

20   and roll that back into the loan because we would have

21   to start over with competitive bids of the tank

22   supplier.  And that would change our design of the

23   foundation to be with whichever tank met that criteria.

24        Q.  Thank you.  And if I may just take a quick

25   diversion to the general rate increase which has not
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 1   really been discussed today, but this may be the last

 2   chance we have to have you on the stand.  Your report in

 3   large part provides the evidence and information for

 4   substantiating those rates?

 5        A.  Yes.

 6        Q.  And could you just describe the process that

 7   Bowen & Collins employs generally in determining when

 8   engaged to prepare a water rate study what that process

 9   looks like?

10        A.  Well, typically we do analysis of the water

11   system.  There is a few different options you can

12   choose.  This particular one is one that we used to

13   existing water use for our basis of calculating the

14   rate.  Working with the water system on historic use,

15   that type of thing, to prepare the rate that we could

16   come up with.  Industry standard is typically to

17   calculate it based on use, which drags us to the ERU

18   calculation that people are talking about.  That's

19   really an equivalent residential use, again, based on

20   historical use.

21        Q.  Thank you.  And how do you determine the cost

22   or the estimate cost of infrastructure to be replaced?

23   Because your report does, in fact, include estimates of

24   infrastructure that need replacement.

25        A.  So our cost estimates from the master planning
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 1   process are based on our experience with similar

 2   projects and similar clients and our engineering

 3   standards and principals that we've used to prepare

 4   those estimates.

 5        MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.  No further questioning.

 6   Thank you.

 7        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Schmid?

 8        MS. SCHMID:  I may have missed it, but did

 9   Mr. Atwater move?

10        MR. ATWATER:  I will do so now.

11        MS. SCHMID:  We often -- all of us often forget

12   this part so --

13        MR. ATWATER:  We move to submit the testimony of

14   Ms. Tena Campbell into the record of evidence.

15        MS. SCHMID:  The Division does not object except

16   notes that since Ms. Campbell is not prepared to be

17   subject to the ERU issues, that evidence -- while I

18   don't think it will come up in the Divisions'

19   discussion -- would possibly not be admissible as there

20   is not a sponsoring witness for that part here.  But

21   again, it's not going to come up in the Divisions'

22   discussion.

23        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Understood.  I think the

24   problem, Mr. Atwater, is you said you moved to admit

25   this witness's testimony, but you're really moving to
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 1   admit the written testimony filed by a witness who is

 2   not present; correct?

 3        MR. ATWATER:  That is correct.

 4        THE HEARING OFFICER:  And this witness isn't

 5   prepared to testify to all the contents of all that

 6   written testimony?

 7        MR. ATWATER:  He is not here today to testify to

 8   the contents.

 9        THE HEARING OFFICER:  And this witness isn't

10   prepared to testify to the content either; right?

11        MR. ATWATER:  Ms. Campbell?

12        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Right.

13        MR. ATWATER:  I think she could testify generally

14   to that testimony.  I think what both Ms. Campbell and

15   Mr. Larson would do, however, is just restate what is in

16   their written testimony.  So I think it is worthwhile.

17   And Ms. Campbell can potentially determine whether or

18   not she's capable, but it is worthwhile for us to see if

19   she is capable of answering those questions.

20        THE HEARING OFFICER:  If there is no objection to

21   the admission of the filed written testimony -- Yes, Mr.

22   Savage?

23        MR. SAVAGE:  Yes, I object to the portions of the

24   written testimony of Mr. Larson pertaining to ERUs

25   because we do not have an opportunity to cross-examine
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 1   him, and it's been stated to us that Ms. Campbell is not

 2   prepared to address in any detail the ERUs either.  So I

 3   object to the portions of Mr. Larson's testimony dealing

 4   with ERUs.

 5        MS. SCHMID:  The Division concurs as previously

 6   stated in that objection.

 7        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Atwater?

 8        MR. ATWATER:  So what I would say is Ms. Campbell

 9   is prepared to testify to those issues.  And if her

10   answer is not responsive, I think that the commission

11   should determine at that time whether or not it's

12   appropriate.

13        THE HEARING OFFICER:  How about this.  Hearsay is

14   admissible in a proceeding before the commission.  We

15   can't exclude evidence solely on the basis that it's

16   hearsay.  We'll go ahead and admit the prefiled written

17   testimony into the record, and note that Ms. Campbell is

18   not prepared to testify to all of its contents; is that

19   sufficient?

20        MS. SCHMID:  Yes.

21        MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.

22        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  We'll proceed.

23        MS. SCHMID:  I have just a couple of questions.

24        Q.  I heard you say that the engineering study

25   contains estimates based on Bowen Collins experience
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 1   with similar projects for similar clients based on Bowen

 2   Collins general standards and principals.  Is that a

 3   fair restatement?

 4        A.  Correct.

 5        Q.  So is it true that the engineering study does

 6   not include precise recently acquired bids for each

 7   project proposed by the engineering study?

 8        A.  Correct.

 9        MS. SCHMID:  Those are all my questions.  Thank

10   you.

11        MR. SAVAGE:  I have no questions.

12        MR. LANGE:  I have a couple of questions concerning

13   ERUs so I can kind of wrap my head around the

14   understanding of all that.

15        So I'm trying to educate myself through this whole

16   process too, as I think a lot of us are.

17        So it's my understanding ERUs more or less came

18   about because of inequality between single-family homes

19   and maybe highrises or something like that, or

20   multiple-family dwellings.  And that the basis for ERUs

21   is predicated on the fact that most of a given clientele

22   customer base -- perhaps on average -- maybe the median,

23   whatever, consisted of single-family homes.  Do you

24   understand my question?  Would you agree with that?

25        A.  The basis of an ERU is to convert historical
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 1   use to an equivalent residential unit, yes.

 2        Q.  So is my understanding, what I presented so far

 3   to you -- my understanding of it; is that correct?

 4        A.  I believe you said the majority of the customer

 5   base is single-family homes.  I don't think that is true

 6   in this case.

 7        Q.  Okay.  I had read that someplace.  And my only

 8   point is the majority of the customers here are not

 9   single-family home?

10        A.  Correct.

11        Q.  They are all HOAs consisting of owners, of

12   course -- 440, approximately 502 customer base.

13        MR. LANGE:  Okay.  Well, thank you for that.

14        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Miller?

15        MS. MILLER:  I have no questions.

16        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Mr. Amendola, do

17   you have any questions?

18        MR. AMENDOLA:  I just have one question of

19   Ms. Campbell.

20        Ms. Campbell, originally the ERUs were calculated

21   at 404 in, I think, the draft study.  In the direct

22   testimony from Mr. Atwater, if you added up the numbers

23   in the table it was 401, I believe.  And in the rest of

24   the direct testimony by Mr. Atwater and the final

25   report, the ERUs were estimated at 453.  Can you give me
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 1   a little background in how those changes were arrived

 2   at?

 3        A.  Unfortunately, I personally was not involved in

 4   those specific calculations so I can't speak to why the

 5   change was made.

 6        MR. ATWATER:  May I state that the testimony of the

 7   company and of Mr. Larson is that there are 453 ERUs.

 8   The record is clear on that.  And if it's not clear I'll

 9   make it clear.

10        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Do you confirm, Ms. Campbell?

11        THE WITNESS:  Yes.

12        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Amendola, anything else?

13        MR. AMENDOLA:  No.  Thank you very much.  Thank

14   you, Ms. Campbell.

15        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  It's noon.  We've been

16   back about 90 minutes from our break.  Would the parties

17   like to break for lunch now or proceed?

18        MR. ATWATER:  Your Honor, may I have two redirect

19   questions?

20        THE HEARING OFFICER:  I apologize.  Of course.

21        MR. ATWATER:

22        Q.  So Ms. Schmid asked you about the fact that

23   there are no hard bids with your estimate.  Have you

24   ever made an estimate on infrastructure regarding a

25   water plant in the past?
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 1        A.  Yes.

 2        Q.  And do you have any idea how accurate the

 3   estimate was in those cases?

 4        A.  Typically when we do engineering estimates, we

 5   will choose a technology and work with a supplier to

 6   come up with preliminary numbers.  So our previous

 7   experience on treatment plants is there is a level of

 8   contingency built into the number.  But we are fairly

 9   close to coming up with a number that will make sense

10   and you can budget to it.

11        Q.  And did you employ that same process --

12        A.  Yes.

13        Q.  -- for our analysis?  Are you aware -- why

14   would Bowen Collins not have just obtained bids?  Why is

15   that not possible as part of this process?

16        A.  It is difficult to get a contractor to provide

17   a detailed bid to you when you have nothing for them to

18   bid to.  So at the time of our master plan, we had

19   concepts of what needs to be done and that's where we

20   estimate what those are going to cost.  Once the design

21   is complete and we have detailed plans and engineered

22   drawings, that's when you go out to a contractor and you

23   get a detailed bid number.  So we cannot obtain those

24   and contractors likely will never provide those on, you

25   know, an up high in the sky idea.  They need to have it
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 1   defined.  They need to have it engineered.  They need to

 2   have an industry standard to put numbers to.

 3        Q.  Thank you.  Specifically with respect to the

 4   Division of Drinking Water loan, you've previously

 5   stated that -- maybe it was you.  Let me ask you the

 6   question.  When are bids available under that loan

 7   subject to the federal requirements?

 8        A.  As I understand it for this particular project,

 9   they would like to have hard bids for contractors in

10   hand before closing the loan.  So that requires us to

11   engineer the projects, put them out for competitive bids

12   at Davis Bacon wages to get those final bid numbers and

13   then that is what they fund the loan on at Division of

14   Drinking Water.

15        MR. ATWATER:  Okay.  Thank you.

16        MS. SCHMID:  May I have permission to ask one or

17   perhaps two recross questions based upon the redirect?

18        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes.

19        MS. SCHMID:

20        Q.  Is it your understanding that the proceeding

21   here today before the Public Service Commission is a

22   separate proceeding from the application for a loan

23   before the Division of Drinking Water?

24        A.  It is my understanding that they are separate.

25        MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  That's my only question.
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 1        MR. SAVAGE:  And I have a question also if I may.

 2        Q.  You said that the master plan -- there's

 3   concepts of what needs to be done and then design plans.

 4   Do you recall that testimony?

 5        A.  Yes.

 6        Q.  What stage is the planning that you've done for

 7   CWC that would relate to the interim rates for general

 8   capital improvements?  Is that a concept plan?

 9        A.  At this point it's still a concept plan.  We

10   have recently been engaged by contract to start the

11   design process for the loan projects and we are just

12   barely getting that going.  We've done some site

13   surveying and a few other preliminary things, but final

14   designs are not prepared at this time so those numbers

15   are based on estimates.

16        Q.  Okay.  So just so I'm clear.  So for the

17   interim rate increase for general capital improvements,

18   that's still just at the estimated concept stage?

19        A.  Correct.

20        Q.  Did you call those numbers high in the sky just

21   a minute ago?

22        A.  No, I said the idea of the design was concept

23   and that contractors won't bid concept high in the sky

24   design.

25        Q.  And we are at the concept stage?
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 1        A.  We are currently at the concept stage.

 2        MR. SAVAGE:  Thank you.  Nothing further.

 3        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any followup, Mr. Atwater?

 4        MR. ATWATER:  No.  Thank you.

 5        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Would you like to call your

 6   next witness before we break for lunch and I'll allow

 7   the other parties to weigh in on the question.

 8        MR. ATWATER:  So does the commission feel that

 9   Ms. Lewis needs to testify still with regards to

10   questions it has with regard to the loan?

11        THE HEARING OFFICER:  No.  It wasn't my intention

12   to express an interest on the part of the commission to

13   examine Ms. Lewis.  I think I inappropriately assumed

14   when she jumped in that she intended to testify and I

15   thought I would save my questions for her.

16        MR. SAVAGE:  I think right now the question is are

17   we going to lunch.

18        MR. ATWATER:  Yeah, I'm trying to determine whether

19   I have any more witnesses.

20        MR. SAVAGE:  Okay.

21        THE HEARING OFFICER:  While you're talking

22   together, do the other parties have any position on

23   whether we should break at this time?

24        MS. SCHMID:  I would support a break at this time.

25        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Then I'll allow you to think
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 1   about it over the break, Mr. Atwater.  I might have a

 2   few more questions for Mr. White to the extent Ms. Lewis

 3   is not going to testify.  So we'll proceed with one or

 4   the other when we get back and move to the Division's

 5   case.  We'll be in recess until 1:05.

 6        MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.

 7        (Interruption in proceedings.)

 8        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Back on the record then.

 9   Welcome back everyone.

10        Mr. Atwater, when we adjourned for -- pardon me --

11   recessed for lunch you were going to consult with

12   Ms. Lewis and your client and determine whether or not

13   Ms. Lewis is going to testify.

14        MR. ATWATER:  Yes, Ms. Lewis is prepared to testify

15   in this matter.

16        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Would you like to call her

17   now?

18        MR. ATWATER:  Yes.  The applicant calls Ms. Emily

19   Lewis to the stand to provide testimony in this matter.

20        (Emily Lewis is sworn in as a witness.)

21        MR. ATWATER:

22        Q.  Ms. Lewis, would you please describe for the

23   commission your engagement and involvement with the

24   water company.

25        A.  Certainly.  I work for a private law firm here

0112

 1   in the city, Clydesdale and Sessions.  I am a water law

 2   attorney which is my primary field of practice.  I was

 3   retained by TCFC under the management of Larry White's

 4   predecessor, Tom Jolley, in 2015 -- probably late 2015.

 5   Since that point in time we have assisted TCFC in a

 6   variety of water matters, including Community Water

 7   Company matters.  And they span from helping with

 8   previous rate cases -- I've not really been involved in

 9   this rate case much at all, but also a lot of background

10   information.  We've done a fair amount of work for TCFC

11   to understand what the water assets of Community Water

12   Company are.  We've retained engineers to look at the

13   well assets and do well reports.  We have looked at the

14   various contracts to determine their standing.

15   Extensive amount of water work for the company.

16        Q.  So I just want to ask the question on your last

17   statement there.  You indicated that you have provided

18   extensive work for the company.  And can you give us

19   maybe a bit more context as to when you were engaged

20   initially for the company and your involvement through

21   the process.  I guess we're speaking commencing in 2014

22   which is when the current management became involved.

23        A.  So we were retained -- I want to say like

24   October 2015.  So about two years ago.  And we've been

25   involved since then.  When we first came in on
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 1   October '15 under the -- Tom Jolley was at that time the

 2   director.  At that point in time the company was in the

 3   middle of its second rate case in 2015.  The previous

 4   rate case that had been filed in 2014 was issued

 5   incomplete by the commission, which is true because

 6   the -- Varde had not yet taken -- had just taken over

 7   and had not done a lot of work to figure out what the

 8   problems with the company were.  And at that point in

 9   time hired Bowen Collins to do the master study.

10        In 2015 when we came on, we discussed a variety of

11   options for how to address the infrastructure problems

12   with the company, but also the ongoing desire to have an

13   ownership change from TCFC to another entity who is more

14   suited to run the water company.

15        In the 2015 case, we made the decision to withdraw

16   the case because at that point in time we were pursuing

17   discussions, both preliminary discussions with

18   potentially Mountain Regional, with Summit, and also at

19   that point in time potentially forming a mutual water

20   company for the customers that would be an alternative

21   to public --  So we were looking at a variety of

22   alternatives for the company.

23        And so in 2015, we withdrew the public service

24   commission rate case.  At that point in time, the public

25   service commission asked that we keep them apprized of

0114

 1   what we were doing.  So we've had communications with

 2   the Division of Public Utilities after that rate case

 3   was withdrawn.  And then we -- our efforts turned to the

 4   unfortunately unfruitful, in terms of making a mutual

 5   water company or transitioning to Community Water, to

 6   Mountain Regional or Summit.

 7        At that time in 2016, Division filed their rate

 8   case which was a maintenance and operations case and we

 9   helped extensively in that matter.

10        Q.  Let me ask you specifically about some of the

11   matters that you were engaged in and the level of work.

12   So the testimony today from the Division -- excuse me --

13   from the intervenors so far, the testimony -- the

14   suggestions have been so far that the company has not

15   done sufficient diligence, and the company has neglected

16   its duties and responsibilities as a public utility.

17        In addition to all of the things that you've just

18   discussed and that you've been engaged to do for the

19   company, are there any other instances where you have

20   seen a company involved in pursuing a path toward a

21   reasonable resolution?

22        A.  Yeah.  I think the most -- the primary matter

23   that would probably resolve is securing financing for

24   the improvements.  And so after the conclusion of the

25   2016 rate increase which was limited to a rate that was
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 1   sufficient for simply maintenance and operations, even

 2   though we did request some additional amount of money to

 3   fund a meter package so we could replace meters, that

 4   was denied.  We determined that the condition of the

 5   company was in such a dire state that we needed to find

 6   alternative funding.  So at that point in time we looked

 7   into finding funding sources on the private and public

 8   markets.

 9        And that's when we decided to reapply for the state

10   revolving fund loan through the Division of Drinking

11   Water.  And we were always very open with the customers

12   and the Division of Public Utilities about that process.

13   It's a very low interest rate loan.  We had approval at

14   3.09 percent.  It's rare it find money that cheap.  We

15   also with that had the expertise of the Division of

16   Drinking Water working with us.  So a lot of my time was

17   spent doing that as well.

18        Q.  Why do you think the -- why did the company

19   choose to go with the Division of Drinking Water loan

20   versus any other possibility?

21        A.  One of the problems that we -- one of the

22   issues that we wanted to address as promptly as possible

23   was the fact that the system was an important addition

24   as demonstrated by the failure of the tank.  So one of

25   our thoughts was that we would apply for funding and see
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 1   if we could get the funding.  And then we would find a

 2   payment restructure path through either transitioning to

 3   a mutual water company format -- most likely through

 4   Summit or through the Public Service Commission -- and I

 5   had many discussions with Mark Long about this process

 6   as well.  But making sure that our loan request would be

 7   something that would ultimately be acceptable to the

 8   Public Service Commission in asking for infrastructure

 9   improvements that would be appropriate to be covered in

10   a public service rate increase.  And if we were able to

11   get out from underneath, Public Service Commission

12   oversight would be repaid through assessments and a

13   mutual water company.

14        Q.  So you mentioned that you had conversations

15   with Mark Long.  Who was Mark Long?

16        A.  Mark Long was the prior Division of Public

17   Utilities' technical assistant -- I don't know --

18   engineer.  He had a very constructive relationship with

19   the Division of Public Utilities throughout the last

20   several rate cases.  And I think that their expertise

21   has been very helpful.  This is a unique scenario, so we

22   want to make sure that we were being transparent and

23   communicative with our regulatory agencies.

24        Q.  Was it your understanding that the Division of

25   Public Utilities recommended pursuing the loan as a
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 1   viable option for funding?

 2        A.  Yes.

 3        MR. ATWATER:  I have no further questions.

 4        THE WITNESS:  I would like to make just a

 5   clarification statement from our earlier comments.  I

 6   think one of the big issues that has been missing a

 7   little bit in this discussion is that the first domino

 8   for getting funding for the Division of Drinking Water

 9   loan is proving to the Division of Drinking Water a

10   structure of repayment.  And that's been the primary

11   focus for the company, once the loan was approved, is

12   securing a restructuring of payment.  And we have made

13   great efforts to try and have that happen on a mutual

14   water company's side and a rate under a mutual water

15   company if they were able to get customer consent to

16   switch to a mutual water company.

17        And what we're here today on the parallel path is

18   to find the repayment structure for the Public Service

19   Commission for that funding.  And the loan will not be

20   closed until there is a repayment structure under either

21   scenario.

22        MR. ATWATER:  No further questions.

23        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Ms. Schmid?

24        MS. SCHMID:  Yes.  Good afternoon.  This is a very

25   unusual situation cross-examining someone who has been
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 1   retained for the company as an attorney, but who is

 2   appearing here today as a witness for the company, not

 3   an attorney.  That said I have some questions and I'll

 4   start.

 5        Q.  Is money for the tank replacement currently in

 6   the loan application?

 7        A.  Presently the loan is approved for

 8   $3.6 million.  That includes the $425,000 line item

 9   assessment for the take that is approved by the board of

10   Drinking Water.  Subsequent to the approval of the loan

11   and on May 12th of this year, we've had discussions with

12   Julie Kobely at the Division of Drinking Water and have

13   removed the $425,000 line item to try and fund the tank

14   through a separate process that would be more expedient

15   and cheaper for the customers.

16        Q.  Your testimony conflicts with what I think I

17   heard the previous company witness say.  I believe the

18   previous company witness said the tank amount was still

19   in the loan?

20        A.  Yes, it is.  $3.6 million is our approved

21   amount and that includes money for the tank.  We've had

22   subsequent discussions because the loan process is that

23   you apply obviously.  You apply on the best numbers you

24   have available, which are mostly based on bids.  And for

25   our case are based on estimates by Bowen & Collins as
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 1   well as statements from Summit Water Distribution

 2   Company on some minor items.  The loan is approved for

 3   the total amount.

 4        After that you have a loan closing process period

 5   where the loan numbers of which you applied for are

 6   confirmed with hard bids.  And so we have a number

 7   approved for the tank, but our discussions prior to --

 8   after the approval with Julie was to remove the tank.

 9   And then the final approved number that's closed is

10   going to be less than what was approved.

11        Q.  Why was the tank removed or why is the tank

12   going to be removed from the loan?

13        A.  We initially discussed removing the tank from

14   the loan for two specific reasons.  First, we had hoped

15   to have a transition of the company to a mutual water

16   company that would be more responsive to a special

17   assessment, and we would be able to fund the tank

18   through special assessments under the mutual water

19   company.  That was our hope.

20        Second -- and the point for that being is that

21   understanding the nature and the emergency nature of the

22   tank, we wanted to find the most expedient method

23   possible to get the tank built and functioning.  Second,

24   the Division of Drinking Water loan has a number of

25   federal requirements including the Davis Bacon act, the
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 1   minority business act.  It has a competitive bidding

 2   process.  That adds about 20 percent cost to anything

 3   that you do.  And so we were trying to keep the tank

 4   loan cost as low as possible to -- removing it from the

 5   Division of Drinking Water process and reduce the loan

 6   amount -- or reduce the amount of the tank project.

 7        Q.  Were you here when Mr. White testified about

 8   what we'll just call the expected return of the Varde

 9   group?

10        A.  I was here, yes.

11        Q.  Do you recall that that was a minimum of

12   13 percent?

13        A.  I don't have general knowledge of how the

14   company works, but I recall that Mr. White testified

15   that the minimum repayment was about -- or preferred

16   minimum return was 13 percent.

17        Q.  What is the interest rate on the Division of

18   Drinking Water loan?

19        A.  3.09.

20        Q.  And the term of that loan?

21        A.  It's a 20-year loan.  Pretty sure it's 3.09.

22        Q.  Subject to check?

23        A.  Subject to check.

24        Q.  In any event it's much cheaper than --

25        A.  Much cheaper than 13 percent.
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 1        Q.  Thank you.  You read my mind.  Is it true that

 2   the company is not precluded from trying to comply with

 3   those federal requirements such as the Bacon act, the

 4   minority act, and things like that?

 5        A.  We could voluntarily do those things, but I

 6   don't know why we would.

 7        Q.  Sorry.  In the process of achieving the loan.

 8   So the company could still try and comply with those

 9   things for the loan?

10        A.  For the tank project?

11        Q.  Yes.

12        A.  It would -- at this point in time the tank

13   project is far enough along in the process that it

14   would -- we've already bid -- my understanding is -- and

15   Tena Campbell would really be the better person to speak

16   to this -- but for us to now reincorporate the tank

17   project into the Division of Drinking Water loan would

18   require us to reduce several steps that would take a

19   fair amount of time for us to do like refitting.  It

20   would require us to do a lot of work.

21        The company has always been sincerely desirous of

22   getting this project done as fast as possible.  So we've

23   done a lot of work on the tank already.  To

24   re-incorporate that tank project into the Division of

25   Drinking Water process would take a large amount of time
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 1   and effort and expense that would be duplicative.

 2        Q.  Let's turn now to the rate case that was --

 3   resulted in an order in 2016 granting a rate increase.

 4   Are you familiar with that case?  Do I have my dates

 5   right?

 6        A.  I am familiar with that case.  It's the

 7   unorthodox nature of this testimony.

 8        Q.  You characterized that as a maintenance and

 9   operations case; is that correct?

10        A.  That is how I would characterize it.

11        Q.  Did the company have the opportunity to include

12   other expenses such as salaries and things in its sought

13   after increase?

14        A.  I think it's very important to clarify that the

15   2016 public service commission case was initiated by the

16   Division of Public Utilities.  So therefore, we were not

17   the applicant in that case.  And so we had the

18   opportunity through our direct testimony and through

19   that case to include actual costs of which we tried to

20   include in terms of minor -- not necessarily large

21   capital -- but minor system improvements.  And we tried

22   to include them through various data requests and

23   through amendments to our direct testimony.

24        Q.  You're not testifying that because the company

25   wasn't the applicant, it had no duty to show that the
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 1   rates resulting from that case would be just, reasonable

 2   and in the public interest, are you?

 3        A.  No, no.  I'm just stating that at the time the

 4   company was preparing -- a little context might be

 5   helpful.  So when we stopped doing the rate case in

 6   2015, the intent was because we were trying to get our

 7   ducks in a row to figure out a way to improve the

 8   system, to transfer ownership, and to move the company

 9   out of TCFC ownership, and to get the system working.

10        And so when the 2016 rate case was initiated, you

11   know, we were obviously active participants and wanted

12   to make sure that we had a rate that, you know, was

13   sufficient.  But it was not a rate case that we came

14   prepared for or ready to have it be a capital rate case

15   like the one we've filed at this point in time.

16        Q.  Could the company have filed a rate case at

17   that point in 2016?

18        A.  It could, but at that point in time we were

19   trying -- our ultimate goal is to leave public services

20   commission oversight.  Because this is a small company

21   and it's an ill fit for this particular process.  So at

22   that point in time our energies were focused to try and

23   find a way to transfer the company to another format.

24        Q.  Is it still the company's desire to leave the

25   regulatory umbrella held by the Public Service
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 1   Commission?

 2        A.  We believe that a different format would be

 3   more responsive to the needs of this particular company

 4   considering the large amount of infrastructure

 5   improvements that are needed, the unknowns of the

 6   company, and the general smaller size.  Each time -- the

 7   way -- and also the dilapidated condition of the company

 8   and the lack of funds.

 9        It's very burdensome to come before the commission

10   every time that there is a tank failure or a well

11   failure.  And we feel like a mutual water company or

12   another format would be more responsive to both customer

13   needs and system improvements.

14        Q.  In a mutual water company, is it guaranteed

15   that every customer will have a vote equal to every

16   other customer?  Or is it true that some customers, like

17   the animals in George Orwell's 1984, are more equal to

18   others?

19        A.  All mutual water companies are defined by the

20   articles and bylaws.  So it would depend on how each

21   company is designed.  Generally, the factors that

22   determine mutual water company's ownership, if you're a

23   shareholder you own a proportionate amount of assets of

24   the company.  How your voting is structured is dependent

25   on how the company is formed.
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 1        Q.  Are you familiar with the structure of Summit

 2   Water Distribution Company?

 3        A.  Generally so.

 4        Q.  Does Summit Water Distribution Company have

 5   different classes of shares?

 6        A.  Summit Water company does have different

 7   classes of shares.

 8        Q.  Are the votes ascribed to each class of shares

 9   identical?

10        A.  Yes.  And I believe that in a nonprofit code

11   they must be so.  So you have equal voting.  Each class

12   must be treated -- shareholders in each class must be

13   treated the same.  Different classes can be treated

14   differently depending on how the bylaws of the company

15   are structured.

16        Q.  So if I owned say 14,000 A shares of stock, I

17   could outvote someone else who had one share of B stock

18   or C stock in Summit, based on your knowledge?

19        A.  My understanding is that Summit -- it's the

20   voting structure is limited to B shares and A shares are

21   voting shares.  But C and D shares are not voting.

22        Q.  Okay.  You talked a little bit about the loan

23   application process and your discussions with Mr. Long.

24   As an attorney, are you aware of the standard of proof

25   that is required for the commission to base a decision

0126

 1   on regarding rates?

 2        A.  Yes.  And I think that -- I think that this is

 3   an important point.  And I also want to clarify what

 4   we're here today as today -- today is an interim rate

 5   case.  So the process is meant to be -- this is an

 6   interim step where -- my understanding is going to be it

 7   will be trued up at the end of the final rate case, so

 8   the burden of proof is on the applicant.  I understand

 9   that.

10        Q.  Do you understand that documentation sufficient

11   for a loan application may not be sufficient evidence

12   for the Public Service Commission upon which to base a

13   decision?

14        A.  I believe it would be sufficient for an interim

15   case.

16        Q.  That is your legal opinion?

17        A.  That is our hope today.  So my understanding is

18   I think that this is where the situation for this

19   particular company is a little bit unorthodox.  The

20   matter is that for -- we're under now the auspices of

21   several separate state entities.  We're working

22   concurrently with the Division of Drinking Water, with

23   the Public Service Commission, Division of Public

24   Utilities, and all of our customers who are their own

25   regulatory entities.  Sometimes they wield great power.
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 1   At the end of the day, pragmatically we all share the

 2   same goal of trying to fix the system, and trying to fix

 3   it in an environment that is not necessarily conducive

 4   to meeting that goal in an expedited manner.

 5        And so at this point in time, what the company has

 6   done is it's provided the best information as possible

 7   as it is today with the hope that we can run the

 8   Division of Drinking Water loan process and the Public

 9   Service Commission process concurrently to get the

10   information ultimately needed by both.

11        MS. SCHMID:  Those are all my questions.  Thank

12   you.  This was very unusual.

13        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Savage?

14        MR. SAVAGE:  Thank you, Your Honor.

15        Q.  Ms. Lewis, you attended all of the meetings

16   with the customers -- representatives of the customers

17   that we've been talking about; correct?

18        A.  I believe so.

19        Q.  Isn't it true that at least one of those

20   meetings you presented a proposal for a period of months

21   to pay off the tanks that would be paid off before any

22   need to start paying for the $3.6 million loan?

23        A.  We've had several discussions about how to

24   finance the tank project and the capital improvements.

25   And generally those discussions have included paying off
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 1   the tank loan prior to the Division of Drinking Water's

 2   debt service --  You know, we need to restructure

 3   payment for that.

 4        Q.  Before January of 2019?

 5        A.  If we are able to secure a rate that the

 6   Division of Drinking Water finds sufficient as to be

 7   repayment of the loan, and we are able to close the loan

 8   this April, the first payment on the loan will be in

 9   2019.  At this point in time, that being said, those

10   dates may change depending on what -- how the

11   construction goes and how the process plays out.

12        Q.  All right.  Can you tell us what the proposal

13   you recall making for these two assessments or interim

14   emergency rate increase as well for the tank and one to

15   start paying off the loan.  Just tell us what you told

16   the water users.

17        A.  In early June we had a meeting with the water

18   users.  The tank failed in mid-April.  We had several

19   communications by mail that are -- portions of which are

20   included in your testimony.  And then we had a public

21   meeting early June to discuss the solutions that we had

22   come up with, of which one was, as I stated, our goal

23   was and still is to try and find a better format for

24   this company of moving to Summit or a mutual water

25   company.  And repayment of the loan for the repayment
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 1   would be -- for the tank project would be -- the first

 2   chunk would be -- it would be earlier.  And then the

 3   repayment on the Division of Drinking Water would be

 4   subsequent to that.

 5        Q.  Was that to be -- with respect to the tank, was

 6   that to pay off a loan from the parent of CWC to

 7   immediately replace the tank?

 8        A.  So the TCFC has floated several proposals, but

 9   the proposal I think you're alluding to is that we had

10   stated that the parent company would provide a loan.

11   That being said, you know, maybe this should have been

12   more clearly stated, that that loan is contingent upon

13   having a repayment structure.  And then that would have

14   gone first under a period of 18 months.  The proposal is

15   an 18-month loan.

16        Q.  How much per month, do you recall?

17        A.  In terms of per person payment?

18        Q.  Yeah.

19        A.  I don't recall how much per person.

20        Q.  But it was an amount of money that would retire

21   $450,000?

22        A.  Yes.  At that point in time it was a $450,000

23   loan.

24        Q.  Eighteen months?

25        A.  Yeah.
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 1        Q.  And it would be paid off before the loan kicked

 2   off for payments of the 3.6 million?

 3        A.  Our goal was to create as little -- our goal

 4   was to create the most consistency possible.  So it

 5   worked out serendipitously if we structured repayment of

 6   the tank loan to dovetail with the payments to the

 7   Division of Drinking Water loan, water rates would

 8   remain relatively the same for customers and there

 9   wouldn't be a large debt or increase and that was our

10   goal.

11        Q.  Does it stick in your mind it was about a $50

12   increase over the existing rate?  Something like $95 or

13   something?

14        A.  That would make sense to me.

15        Q.  So what you're telling us is that the proposal

16   was that there would be a short-term increase of the

17   water rates up to a total $95 base rate until the tank

18   was -- money for the tank was paid back to the parent;

19   correct?

20        A.  That was one of our proposals, yes.

21        Q.  And then that would be hopefully done before

22   the same amount of money kicked in to retire debt over

23   20 years from the -- for the $3.6 million?

24        A.  Yes.  I mean, this is all subject to -- these

25   were estimates and not final numbers.
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 1        Q.  I understand.  But the goal and the proposal

 2   was essentially that it would be something like a $95

 3   base rate that would stay the same after the mid-loan

 4   kicked in?

 5        A.  That's also why we're asking for our general

 6   rate case now as we'd like to have consistency with our

 7   rates.

 8        Q.  And the money for the tank was to come from the

 9   parent company?

10        A.  At that point in time, yes, that was our

11   proposal in June.

12        Q.  What was the interest rate on that loan?

13        A.  At that point in time, I believe it was to

14   match the Division of Drinking Water loan.

15        Q.  3.39 percent?  Not 13?

16        A.  That is true.  But as we said that was a

17   proposal.

18        Q.  And who makes -- well, let me back up.  I can

19   show you these documents, but I'm just going to -- in

20   front of me the June 12, 2017 communication to the

21   customers of CWC.  Do you recall that?

22        A.  Yes.

23        Q.  By the way, did you review that before it went

24   out?

25        A.  Yes.
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 1        Q.  And it's signed by Mr. Larry White, but he

 2   signs as chief executive officer, TCFC Finance Company

 3   and as manager of ASC Utah LLC; is that correct?

 4        A.  I don't have that information to speak to

 5   Larry's -- I mean if it says that on the paper, yes.

 6   Whether or not that's an accurate statement of his

 7   titles, I don't know.

 8        Q.  Well, that's not my question.

 9        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Savage, do you have a

10   copy of what you're reading to the witness from?

11        MR. SAVAGE:  No.  But I could give her mine.  I'm

12   sorry.  I didn't have copies of it.  I didn't know we

13   were going through this.

14        THE WITNESS:  Me neither.

15        MR. SAVAGE:  Do we need to mark it as an exhibit?

16        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Do you want to introduce it?

17        MR. SAVAGE:  It's already attached as Exhibit B to

18   my statement so I'll refer to it that way.

19        MS. SCHMID:  Could we go off the record for just

20   one moment?

21        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Certainly.  Let's go off the

22   record.

23        (Interruption in proceedings.)

24        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Do you want to go back on the

25   record, Mr. Savage?
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 1        MR. SAVAGE:  Yes.

 2        Q.  I'll show you now what's been marked as Exhibit

 3   B to your statement, and can you identify that document?

 4        A.  Yes.

 5        Q.  What is it?

 6        A.  Throughout the company's tenure under 20144,

 7   it's one of our goals to have constant communication and

 8   transparency with our customers.  This is one of those

 9   letters that was going to inform customers about a

10   variety of issues.  You know, one is the continued tank

11   failure and irrigation restrictions and then funding

12   options for that.  Two, an update on the Division of

13   Drinking Water loan and company transfer.

14        Q.  And it's signed by Mr. Larry White?

15        A.  As chief executive officer, TCFC Co., LLC,

16   manager ASC Utah.  So he is the -- yes.

17        Q.  In your experience in dealing with this

18   company, is he the person that makes the decisions for

19   Community Water?

20        MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  The document that's being

21   referenced does not state what is being suggested.  It

22   states --

23        MR. SAVAGE:  I've got a question pending.

24        MR. ATWATER:  Sorry.

25        THE HEARING OFFICER:  You're objecting.  You're
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 1   saying the question misstates the evidence?

 2        MR. ATWATER:  Correct.

 3        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Well, the witness just

 4   conferred it's stated correctly.

 5        MR. ATWATER:  I object to the response.

 6        THE WITNESS:  I think it's unclear about how this

 7   title is stated what exact role Larry is playing in

 8   terms of management.

 9        MR. SAVAGE:  That's what I'm trying to find out.

10        MR. ATWATER:  TCFC is the manager of ASC Utah.

11   That's what it says.

12        MR. SAVAGE:  And he's also -- I see what you're

13   saying.  But he's the chief executive officer of TCFC?

14        MR. ATWATER:  Right.

15        THE WITNESS:  Yes.

16        MR. SAVAGE:

17        Q.  Is he signing as a manager of ASC?  Do you know

18   if he is a manager of ASC?

19        A.  I believe that his testimony would be the best

20   for this.  I don't feel qualified.

21        Q.  But anyway, it appears to you that he's signing

22   on behalf of ASC who is the manager of TCFC and as a

23   chief executive officer of TCFC; is that correct?

24        MR. ATWATER:  The reverse.

25        MR. SAVAGE:
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 1        Q.  Okay.  We'll reverse it; is that correct?  I

 2   don't really care.  I'm just trying to get to what he

 3   does.

 4        A.  ASC Utah is the manager of TCFC and he is the

 5   CEO of TCFC.

 6        MR. SAVAGE:  That's what I thought I just said.

 7        MR. ATWATER:  No, it's reversed.  I think

 8   Mr. White's testimony is consistent with that.

 9        THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think the document can

10   speak for itself.  At this point we can probably move

11   on.

12        MR. SAVAGE:

13        Q.  At this point, I do not really care.  He's not

14   signing as any officer or employee of CWC; is that

15   correct?

16        A.  He's not signing as CWC.

17        Q.  The parent controls this company, does it not?

18        A.  Yes.

19        Q.  And Mr. White makes the key decisions?

20        A.  My understanding is he does.  I do not know

21   what the corporate structure is behind him.  I feel

22   uncomfortable answering corporate structure questions

23   for where he falls in.

24        Q.  From what you've observed, he's the guy that

25   makes the decisions for CWC, is he not?
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 1        A.  From what I've observed, Larry White makes

 2   decisions for CWC.  Whether or not he is the only voice

 3   who makes those decisions, I do not know.

 4        Q.  The other voices would also be TCFC voices or

 5   ASC or Varde voices?

 6        A.  In the corporate family, yes.

 7        Q.  So the parent and the string of parents --

 8   well, we've already said they control the company.  Do

 9   you recall we discussed -- you and I as early as June or

10   maybe even in May -- that an alternative to trying to

11   get everybody to agree to a rate increase not going

12   through the PSC, that an alternative would be to apply

13   to the PSC for an interim immediate rate increase to

14   cover the tank?

15        A.  The PSC is always available for us to go to in

16   terms of our rate increase.  The decision made was that

17   we were going to discuss -- it's always been an option

18   and hence why we are here today -- it's also an

19   expensive option and I think that we as a company were

20   hopeful that we could find a format to transfer the

21   company to a mutual water company or other format and

22   not need a PSC rate case which is an expensive drawn out

23   process.  That did not come to be, and hence we filed a

24   rate case in September.

25        Q.  And that was Mr. White's decision?
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 1        A.  Ultimately, yes.  I would say.

 2        Q.  So it was the decision of the parent to not

 3   immediately file for the PSC for the reasons you just

 4   stated, but instead to try to do some deal with Summit

 5   and the users.  And it was his decision to finally file

 6   for the rate increase in September?

 7        MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  Argumentative.

 8        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Sustained.  It was compound.

 9   Maybe you can break it down.

10        MR. SAVAGE:  Yeah, it's compound.

11        Q.  Was it his decision to postpone filing for a

12   rate increase to cover the tank?

13        A.  There were many, many conversations that came

14   to that conclusion from several voices, both from

15   counsel, both discussions with Summit Water Distribution

16   Company or discussions with the customers.

17        Q.  Who made the decision?

18        A.  Ultimately I guess it would be Mr. White, but I

19   think that it was a long drawn out process to get to

20   that point.

21        Q.  I understand the process.  I'm just trying to

22   look at who controls this company and who decides

23   whether or not to fund it.  Was it also his decision

24   that gave you -- or Mr. Atwater the decision to go ahead

25   and file for this rate increase in September?
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 1        A.  Once it became clear much earlier than

 2   September that the company would not be able to

 3   transition to a timely manner to a mutual water company,

 4   we began preparing in preparations for this rate case.

 5   We ultimately were in a position where we could do so in

 6   September after several weeks of preparing and

 7   collecting rate documents.

 8        Q.  Who made the decision to go ahead?

 9        A.  Mr. White.

10        Q.  You were present when the proposed structure

11   for what's been called a mutual company was presented to

12   the representatives of the customers?

13        A.  Yes.

14        Q.  And do you recall if there were two classes of

15   stock being proposed, class one and class two?

16        A.  We had an open discussion with our customers

17   about what kind of corporate structure would best meet

18   their needs as well as the needs of Summit Water

19   Distribution Company, who was the operator of the

20   system.

21        We discussed having two classes of stock.  One for

22   a use stock.  That would be a general customer stock.

23   And one for a stock that would be held by Summit Water

24   Distribution Company so that they could have some

25   control in the management of the company of which they

0139

 1   were operating.

 2        Q.  Did you say sole control?

 3        A.  Some control.

 4        Q.  Some control.  Didn't they have total control

 5   of the proposal?

 6        A.  This was a draft proposal for discussion.

 7        Q.  In the draft proposal, wasn't it proposed they

 8   had total control and they could elect the majority of

 9   the board?

10        A.  The underlying principle was that we wanted to

11   find a structure that provided Summit the autonomy to

12   make large decisions on the company they operate, and

13   they would be able to make those decisions in a timely

14   and expeditious manner.  So the class of stock that gave

15   them some management control was an option to do so.

16        Q.  But it gave them management control?

17        A.  But not sole ownership of the company.

18        Q.  That's true.  But the other owners could only

19   vote for a minority of the board?

20        A.  We had discussed several formats for what the

21   board would take.

22        Q.  I'm just dealing with the one that was

23   presented to the customers at one of these meetings.

24   That one was a class one stock that only Summit would

25   own, and it would vote for a majority of the board.  The
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 1   user, the customer, would have class two stock and could

 2   only vote for the minority of the board?

 3        A.  And I believe that although that structure was

 4   discussed, the concerns of the company -- of the

 5   customers are mediated by the fact that they would have

 6   voting powers on certain issues such as raising the

 7   management fees.  And so it was not a sole management,

 8   but it was an active discussion about how to meet the

 9   needs both of Summit as the operator and as the customer

10   as participants.

11        Q.  I appreciate your explanation, but you didn't

12   answer my question.  Wasn't that proposal, the only one

13   presented to the customers -- didn't that propose class

14   one stock would be owned only by Summit and Summit could

15   vote for majority of the board, and all the customers

16   could do with their stock would be vote for a minority

17   of the board?

18        A.  The corporate bylaws were structured that way,

19   but the management agreement provided for greater

20   customer participation.

21        Q.  Wasn't that the proposal of the ownership of

22   the company presented to the customers?

23        A.  It was a proposal we discussed, but it was

24   modified by -- it just --

25        MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  Asked and answered.
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 1        THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think it has been asked and

 2   answered, and I wonder how material this is to the

 3   decisions that we need to make today.  If Mr. Savage has

 4   a question or two to wrap up, that's fine.  But I think

 5   we should move on to more substantive issues before us

 6   in this interim rate hearing.

 7        MR. SAVAGE:

 8        Q.  In fairness, that meeting broke up, did it not,

 9   with there being some discussion that there would be an

10   effort to get back to the customers with some

11   modification that would give them a controlling vote on

12   certain key issues?

13        A.  Yes.

14        Q.  Did that ever happen?

15        A.  We have now fully formed corporate bylaws and

16   articles, management agreement, a subscription agreement

17   and terms and conditions ready to present to the

18   customers.

19        Q.  But it hasn't been presented yet?

20        A.  We are waiting for -- to see -- once this rate

21   case became a little bit more contentious, we were

22   waiting to kind of see what the -- what the result of

23   the rate case was going to be, to see if that was an

24   effort worth continuing.

25        Q.  Does Summit still require in any transfer of
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 1   ownership to it of the control of CWC -- do they still

 2   require as a condition to that deal that the company get

 3   out from under Public Service Commission supervision?

 4        A.  Presently it's structured to be Community Water

 5   Company nonprofit stand alone company that will be

 6   maintained on its own.  And Summit Distribution Company

 7   will be the manager and operator of the company with an

 8   intention to move the company to Summit at the end of

 9   the Division of Drinking Water loan repayment period.

10        Q.  You didn't answer my question.  Do they still

11   want to get out from under the supervision of the Public

12   Service Commission?

13        A.  Summit Water Distribution Company, I'm not a

14   representative of that company and don't feel

15   comfortable completely answering on their behalf.  But

16   my understanding is that their intention is to remain a

17   mutual water company of which they would like to have

18   any -- and do not want to have a component of the

19   company be publicly regulated.

20        Q.  Did you understand that the customers or the

21   representatives of the customers at this final meeting

22   opposed what was presented, as a company they would not

23   be able to vote for majority of the board members, did

24   not have a say in key decisions, and that Mr. White

25   said, "Well then, TCFC is not going to put any more
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 1   money in the company"?

 2        A.  The conclusion of the meeting with the

 3   customers was that we would go back and we would try and

 4   meet customer demands and design a company that met

 5   their needs and a management agreement that met their

 6   needs.  And hence we did.  And we made a very nice

 7   company.  And the reality of the finances of continuing

 8   the company without a rate increase or an assessment

 9   through a mutual water company that's adequate to cover

10   cost and capital infrastructure, is that it's a company

11   losing money.  Hence why we are here today to have an

12   interim rate case to increase our cost so we can make

13   needed improvements.

14        Q.  Have you looked at the books enough to know

15   that the company is losing money because it put a ban on

16   outside irrigation?

17        A.  I do not have knowledge to answer that

18   question.

19        Q.  So you don't know why the company is losing

20   money?

21        A.  I have looked at the rate model of the revenue

22   we'd need to perform -- to have the company perform at a

23   capacity that provides adequate water service, and they

24   are far in excess of the current rates.

25        Q.  Do you know why the company is losing money?
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 1   You just said they're losing money, that's why we're

 2   here today.  Do you know why?  What impact is the ban on

 3   irrigation?

 4        A.   I believe it's a historical problem on the ban

 5   of irrigation water.  The summary is not going to be

 6   indicative of the total financial picture of the

 7   company.

 8        Q.  But is it indicative of why the company is

 9   losing money today?

10        A.  I'm sure revenues were decreased from decreased

11   irrigation, but I don't think that's a particularly

12   relevant question for what we're doing now.

13        Q.  Well, you said it was.  You said that's why

14   we're here today.  I want to know what you know.  Do you

15   know why the company is losing money today?

16        A.  We don't collect enough revenue.

17        Q.  Do you know why you don't collect enough

18   revenue?

19        A.  Because our PSC rates are insufficient to cover

20   our costs and our need for capital improvement.

21        Q.  Well, your PSC rates include tiers of water

22   usage?  Do you know if you're really getting to those

23   tiers of that irrigation?

24        A.  We also don't have any meters to measure the

25   water coming into our system.
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 1        Q.  Answer my question.

 2        MR. ATWATER:  Objection; argumentative.

 3        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Restate your question,

 4   Mr. Savage.

 5        MR. SAVAGE:

 6        Q.  We also have approved rates for increasing

 7   gallons used -- increasing rate per gallon ultimately.

 8   And do you know that those rates, those increased tiers

 9   are not even being approached because there is no

10   irrigation?

11        A.  The rate of structure currently to have a base

12   rate that should cover our basic costs without

13   considerations of volume.  That basic rate -- base rate

14   in the opinion of the company is insufficient currently

15   to cover our costs and not going to cover future costs.

16        So while volume does play a measure in the amount

17   of money and revenue the company takes in, the base rate

18   is really intended to be the operating cost of the

19   company.  And at the last rate hearing we went from $36

20   in our base rate to $30 in our base rate.  And so we

21   understand that -- or are recommended 36 to 30.  The

22   base rates really is a bulk of how we make a lot of the

23   needed costs to cover company costs which is irrelevant

24   to usage.

25        Q.  Have you read my submission to the commission?
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 1        A.  I have, but not in great detail.

 2        Q.  Are you aware of what I proposed as an

 3   alternative to pay for the tank?

 4        A.  I am, but it would be better for you to present

 5   that.

 6        Q.  Well, I think it's $50 a month for each 500

 7   users for 12 months which would be well more than

 8   $500,000, and then that be paid off before any rate

 9   increase to start paying off the $3.6 million loan.  So

10   that representation to you, is that significantly

11   different from what the company was proposing during our

12   meetings?

13        A.  It's not significantly different.  The issue is

14   a timing issue.  Right now the current problem is that

15   there's no -- there is very little operating revenue for

16   us to pay for the needed engineering and other costs

17   needed to complete the Division of Drinking Water loan,

18   to complete the needed capital improvements in place.

19        So while in June that may have been a very good way

20   to go about things, now that we're in October and the

21   transition to a mutual water company did not come to be,

22   there may be a better format to meet the timing needs of

23   what we're doing.

24        Q.  And do you understand that my proposal would be

25   just like your representation to the users that the
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 1   bridge loan would come from the parent company that

 2   Mr. White is the executive officer of?

 3        A.  I believe that the fundamental issue is we just

 4   need a proven rate repayment structure for either a

 5   bridge loan, the Division of Drinking Water loan.  Any

 6   money from outside sources we get, we just need a proven

 7   rate of repayment.  And if there is a sufficient rate

 8   approved by the Public Service Commission that would

 9   allow us to have repayment of our loans, then I think

10   that the company would be, you know, amenable to that.

11   That's our goal.  That's what we want.

12        Q.  By the company you mean the parent Mr. White's

13   the chief executive of?

14        A.  I can't speak for Mr. White, but my

15   understanding that that is true.  We're looking for a

16   repayment structure.

17        Q.  And "we", you're talking about both on behalf

18   of CWC and its parent?

19        A.  I don't feel comfortable talking -- I don't

20   feel qualified to speak to whether or not that would be

21   appropriate for the parent company.  But I think CWC

22   just is looking for repayment structure.

23        Q.  I appreciate your candor on CWC's desire to get

24   out from under public service commission's authority and

25   I want to ask you about that.  Isn't it true that the

0148

 1   company has stated -- company representatives have

 2   stated in your presence and even you stated that it was

 3   deemed that it would complicate the deal with Summit

 4   Water for the company to apply for emergency rate

 5   increase to cover the tank back in June?

 6        A.  I believe this is an important point to

 7   clarify.  The company has always been diligent in trying

 8   to find a way to get this tank built and operating.  The

 9   issue is just finding a method of repayment, whether it

10   be a TCFC loan, whether it be a Division of Drinking

11   Water loan, the issue is finding a method of repayment.

12   And the company has explored several options to do that,

13   which has been a transfer and which has been a public

14   service commission filing.  So parallel paths.

15        We are here on public service commission's side

16   because the timing became apparent that the other path

17   wasn't going to work, and we needed to get funding in

18   place or repayment structure in place.

19        Q.  Has the company stated that it was concerned

20   that applying to the commission would complicate

21   concluding its deal with Summit Water?

22        A.  One of our initial concerns and it's still a

23   concern is the timing of which a Public Service

24   Commission rate process takes.  This is an interim

25   hearing.  And a larger rate hearing is still going to
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 1   take many weeks and months to go forward.  Our hope and

 2   intent was to get customer support to transfer to a

 3   mutual water company in a shorter period of time to have

 4   a rate structure under the share assessments of a mutual

 5   water company in place to repay loans.

 6        That did not happen so we are here under the public

 7   service commission's -- the considerations are still the

 8   same.  It's still a complicated process.  It's a long

 9   complicated process.

10        Q.  And matters pending under the Public Service

11   Commission would complicate finishing the deal with

12   Summit Water?

13        A.  They're parallel paths.

14        Q.  Were they parallel or did you wait until

15   September to file before the commission when we needed

16   that tank desperately being under construction in June,

17   July and August?

18        A.  We needed a rate repayment structure and that's

19   what we've been doing.  We've been trying to figure that

20   out through a mutual water company or through the Public

21   Service Commission.  And once we determined that a

22   mutual water company was not going to be the most

23   expedient way to do that, we filed for the Public

24   Service Commission.  We took several weeks to get our

25   paperwork together and we filed in September.  I

0150

 1   don't -- we're here and we couldn't be here any faster

 2   than we are anyway because we wouldn't have had any

 3   information to provide to the Public Service Commission

 4   without that time anyway.

 5        Q.  So is it fair to say it was not exactly

 6   parallel?

 7        A.  We're working in unison.

 8        Q.  Pardon?

 9        A.  We're working in unison.  The point is being

10   that it also took us some time to get the information

11   that we needed collected to get to the Public Service

12   Commission.

13        Q.  And it was the parent's decision through

14   Mr. Larry White to wait until September 13th to apply

15   for a rate increase that would cover repayment of the

16   loan for this tank?

17        A.  Ultimately.

18        Q.  Yes?  Right?  You have to answer.

19        A.  Yes.

20        MR. SAVAGE:  That's all I have.  Thank you very

21   much.

22        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Savage.

23   Mr. Lange?

24        MR. LANGE:  Yes.  I have one question, Emily.

25        Q.  So you're pretty knowledgeable about the loan
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 1   application; correct?

 2        A.  Yes.

 3        Q.  The Division of Drinking Water.  So I have in

 4   front of me, this is part of the company's testimony

 5   here.  There was a scoring table.  The loan had a score

 6   of financial points.  I believe it's called 26.  And my

 7   question would be if it scored higher, would that

 8   somehow lower the interest rate or affect the terms of

 9   the loan?

10        A.  So the Division of Drinking Water -- and I may

11   not state this exactly correctly -- has a priority list

12   system where they look at the deficiencies of a project,

13   and that will determine what the -- how they prioritize

14   giving loan funds.

15        They also have a medium adjusted gross income

16   metric which depends on where you live in the state,

17   whether or not you apply for grants.  We scored very

18   high on the deficiencies so we were a priority list --

19   we were higher on their priority list in terms of their

20   priority for funding.  Due to the ZIP Code in which the

21   company is located, we did not qualify for any grants

22   based on median adjusted gross income metric.

23        Q.  So the point of my question here is category

24   three called project funding contributed by the

25   applicant, has a scoring system of zero points to 17
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 1   points.

 2        And the application here shows that there was no --

 3   CWC was apparent -- applicant here was less than

 4   2 percent of projected funds.  So I'm curious if we were

 5   to take, for instance, the possibility of the loan from

 6   the parent company to cover the tank, that we'd probably

 7   see 10 percent of the projected funds, maybe closer to

 8   15 percent.  That would add somewhere between 11 to --

 9   or 14 points on which would change the score from 26 to

10   maybe 40 or 37.  So with that kind of a score would

11   there have been perhaps a lower interest rate or more

12   favorable loan?

13        A.  I think that the terms of the loan are

14   absolutely the most favorable that we were going to get.

15   I do not think they're going to issue anything lower

16   than what we received, and I think it's important to

17   remember the timing of which things happened.  We

18   applied for the loan in February or March and the tank

19   failed in April.  So when we submitted our initial

20   application, the tank had not yet failed.  The tank

21   failed in April and the loan was approved in May.  And

22   so the -- I don't -- the timing wouldn't have worked out

23   well.  The timing wouldn't have worked to have

24   included --

25        Q.  But my question is more directed to -- granted
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 1   you got the most favorable rates based upon your score

 2   here.  Had the score been higher 11 or 14 points, would

 3   you have gotten or would you get even more favorable

 4   rates?

 5        A.  That would be a decision that would be made

 6   based by the Division of Drinking Water.  That being

 7   said, you would also be paying 13 percent or whatever it

 8   is on TCFC loans.

 9        Q.  I'm only concerned with this particular loan

10   and the rates and how this particular scoring system

11   affects the rates.

12        A.  That would have been a Division of Drinking

13   Water decision.  My belief is that I asked every single

14   way possible to get us the lowest interest rate and to

15   get us the most grant money possible, and I was assured

16   by the Division of Drinking Water that this was the best

17   we could get.  And I think it's very good for our needs.

18        MR. LANGE:  Thank you.  That's all the questions I

19   have.

20        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Miller?

21        MS. MILLER:  I have no additional questions.

22        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  I have a few.

23   Mr. Atwater, would you like to reserve your redirect

24   until after I ask my questions?

25        MR. ATWATER:  Yes.  Thank you.
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 1        THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'll infer, Ms. Lewis, from

 2   one of your responses to a question earlier about

 3   ultimately truing up the interim rates, you understand

 4   this is an interim rate hearing?

 5        THE WITNESS:  Right.

 6        THE HEARING OFFICER:  And there will be another

 7   hearing in April to determine if the rates should be

 8   going forward.  And you used the term "true up" so I

 9   take it you understand the rates are potentially to be

10   refunded?

11        THE WITNESS:  Yes.

12        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Based on your knowledge of

13   the company's books and accounts, will it have

14   sufficient cash to refund the customers money should an

15   adverse determination be made in April?

16        THE WITNESS:  That is a good question.  I don't

17   know the answer to that.  I think it will depend on what

18   the ultimate rate we receive here is.  If there is an

19   adequate reserve that we could -- potentially could

20   refund people some money from it.  Our intent is

21   hopefully to not have that happen.  But I don't know the

22   answer to that.

23        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Well, to the extent the

24   commissioner granted CWC's request with respect to the

25   special charge on the tank and assessed the full fee of
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 1   a thousand and change on the customers, would CWC be in

 2   any position to refund that money in April to the

 3   customers?

 4        THE WITNESS:  I don't believe that -- in terms of

 5   repaying them the lump sum to get their thousand dollars

 6   back?

 7        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Right.  Repaying all the

 8   money that was collected under that provision of the

 9   interim loan?

10        THE WITNESS:  Well, I believe that money would be

11   going to pay for the tank.

12        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Right.

13        THE WITNESS:  Yeah.

14        THE HEARING OFFICER:  So the money would not be

15   available to be refunded?

16        THE WITNESS:  No.  It would not be available to be

17   refunded because it would be going to pay for tank costs

18   that are being spent.

19        THE HEARING OFFICER:  And you did, I thought, an

20   excellent job of describing the DDW loan process.  At

21   least I feel I understand it better than I did before.

22   But I might want you to repeat yourself a little bit.

23        So you said that the CWC applied for the DDW loan

24   in April; is that correct?

25        THE WITNESS:  The application was due in March.
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 1        THE HEARING OFFICER:  It was due in March?

 2        THE WITNESS:  Uh-huh.

 3        THE HEARING OFFICER:  And was there a line item to

 4   replace the failed tank, it just hadn't failed yet?

 5        THE WITNESS:  No.  So the original loan application

 6   requests are for a two-part project.  So the first part

 7   project was a replacement of transmission and

 8   distribution lines, a pressure reducing valve and meter

 9   component.  And then a second -- and that's the first

10   package.  And then the second package is a water

11   treatment plan replacement.  So those are the two --

12   those are the line items initially included in the loan

13   request.

14        When the tank failed in April, we administratively

15   asked the Division to include a line item request for

16   the tank to present to the board of Drinking Water, and

17   the loan was finally approved including money for the

18   tank.  We took that money back out subsequently to

19   address the two issues I addressed earlier for

20   expediency and cost purposes to try and fund the tank

21   not through the Division of Drinking Water loan.

22        THE HEARING OFFICER:  What's the projected closing

23   date for the DDW loan as it stands today?

24        THE WITNESS:  As it stands right now it's most

25   likely going to be April.
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 1        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Non-specified date in April?

 2        THE WITNESS:  No.  We're -- honestly a large

 3   component of it hinges on this hearing.

 4        THE HEARING OFFICER:  I see.

 5        THE WITNESS:  We cannot -- one of the conditions of

 6   closing the loan is having a rate repayment structure.

 7   And until we can either prove through either a share

 8   assessment structure or through a Public Service

 9   Commission approved rate increase, we cannot close on

10   the loan and that money will no longer be available to

11   us.

12        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Would inserting a request for

13   funds to pay for the failed tank back into the DDW loan

14   delay that closing date?

15        THE WITNESS:  Yes.  It would also increase the

16   cost.  So the problem with inserting it back in is that

17   we're just too far along in the process.  Particularly

18   so that the Division of Drinking Water loan requires a

19   competitive bid process, whereas taking out of the loan

20   we are able to directly go to a contractor and directly

21   go to an engineering firm to do the designs.  If we are

22   to put it back in the Division of Drinking Water loan

23   process, we'd have to scrap all that and put it out to

24   competitive bid.

25        THE HEARING OFFICER:  So what's your best estimate
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 1   of how long the loan would be delayed if you were to do

 2   that?

 3        THE WITNESS:  If we were to put it back into the

 4   loan, I don't -- I can't say.  It would really be just

 5   duplicative efforts is what it would be.  And ultimately

 6   the customers are going to bear the cost of the company.

 7   So we'd be hesitant to do that because it would be

 8   duplicating efforts for the customers as well.

 9        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Let's assume for the sake of

10   argument that all the costs were deemed acceptable.

11   What would the delay be?

12        THE WITNESS:  I'm not quite sure, but I probably

13   would -- but we probably would just roll it into the

14   loan and have it close in April as well.  See the --

15   we'd roll it into the loan, so we'd just follow the same

16   tracks, package A, package B, and it would probably

17   be -- just become package C of the loan so that it would

18   close in April.

19        The problem is that it would still put us -- it

20   would still put us with a late summer completion date.

21   Whereas if we keep it separate, we're hoping for an

22   early summer completion date, and the customers' primary

23   concern is their irrigation water.

24        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Because under the DDW

25   financing for the replacement tank you can't order it
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 1   until the loan closes; correct?

 2        THE WITNESS:  Exactly.

 3        THE HEARING OFFICER:  And you estimated it would be

 4   a late summer completion?

 5        THE WITNESS:  That's when we were intending to end

 6   most of our construction and --

 7        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Those are all my questions.

 8   Thank you.  Mr. Atwater?

 9        MR. ATWATER:

10        Q.  So it has come up a few times in questioning

11   why the company decided to restrict irrigation --

12   outdoor irrigation.  Can you explain.

13        A.  Certainly.  So when the tank failed in April --

14   One, I think it's important to recognize on the record

15   if this has not yet been discussed, we've had ample

16   discussions with the customers about alternatives for

17   the tank.  We've talked about bladders.  We've talked

18   about all kinds of ways to try and get continued water

19   through the company.  And at the end of the day, the

20   cost and the time was to just try and replace

21   immediately the tank.

22        And so at that point in time, we are operating our

23   one primary water tank.  And with -- in consultation

24   with the Summit County Fire Department, it was

25   determined that that tank was inadequate to support
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 1   indoor watering, outdoor watering, and maintain a

 2   minimum threshold for fire protections.

 3        And so we made the decision that an irrigation

 4   restriction and watering restriction was allowed for

 5   under our tariff during an emergency condition, and that

 6   we would restrict outdoor watering to maintain that

 7   minimum fire suppression of quantity in the tank.

 8        Q.  Had you wanted to remove the restriction, did

 9   the company have water to allow for the restriction to

10   be lifted?

11        A.  Was there ample water to --

12        Q.  Correct.

13        A.  I don't think -- I don't think I know the

14   answer to that.

15        Q.  So let me ask it in a different way.  Did the

16   company have to pay for water from Summit Distribution

17   Company?

18        A.  So there was discussion about providing

19   irrigation water through Summit -- providing irrigation

20   water through Summit Water Distribution Company.  This

21   was problematic for two reasons.  First, it's much more

22   expensive to hire Summit Water conservation -- or to

23   higher -- to buy Summit Water and so that cost would

24   have been -- we would have been unable to pass it along

25   to the customers at their current rate.  So that extra
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 1   cost would have been assumed by the company.

 2        Second, Summit was unwilling to provide irrigation

 3   water because they've already put their customers under

 4   a conservation rate which is intended to have them

 5   reduce their water consumption.  So providing extra

 6   water for irrigation purposes did not fall into their

 7   management structure of how they wanted to manage their

 8   water resources.

 9        Q.  So had the company, the applicant, wanted to

10   raise revenues in order to pay for expenses, it did not

11   have the ability to lift its irrigation restriction

12   because it didn't have water and the water from Summit

13   Water was not available; is that true?

14        A.  True.

15        Q.  There has also been a big line of questioning

16   today about why the company did not pursue this hearing

17   until September.  Have you ever been involved in a rate

18   case hearing for a public utility other than for

19   Community Water?

20        A.  No, I have not.

21        Q.  Have you been involved in one previously on

22   Community Water?

23        A.  Yes, I have.

24        Q.  How long does it take to prepare for a rate

25   case?
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 1        A.  It takes a substantial amount of time.  And I

 2   believe that's also reflected in the 2014, turning our

 3   application back as incomplete, in that it takes a

 4   substantial amount of time.  And that's also one of the

 5   reasons why we've applied for this interim rate hearing

 6   is that we need hard engineering.  It takes time to do

 7   that.

 8        Q.  And so instead -- or as a parallel path, the

 9   company chose to do as you testified, which is seek

10   other methods of finding funds for the company, which is

11   completely permissible and allowed by the code?

12        A.  Yes.

13        Q.  Mr. Savage asked you a question about the

14   decision making of the company and who was responsible

15   for that decision making.  Are you aware that with the

16   company's direct testimony, there was filed an

17   administrative services agreement between ASC Utah and

18   the company?

19        A.  I believe so.

20        Q.  Okay.  I just want to note that for the record,

21   and the services that are required and provided

22   thereunder, it's that agreement whereby the decisions

23   were made?

24        A.  Uh-huh.

25        Q.  Okay.  I do want to ask a few questions
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 1   regarding the loan just quickly.

 2        So far as your testimony has been today the -- if

 3   the tank, $525,000, is included in the Division of

 4   Drinking Water loan, the loan can still close in April?

 5   The cost of the tank -- I'm sorry.  I'll do one at a

 6   time.

 7        A.  Yes.  We can include the tank in the Division

 8   of Drinking Water loan.  It would -- but the timeline of

 9   the tank would also then parallel the timeline of the

10   other project components.  So April.

11        Q.  So the loan can close in April?

12        A.  Uh-huh.

13        Q.  When can the tank be fully functional if it is

14   funded in April?

15        A.  If it's funded in April, I believe it would put

16   us towards the back end of summer.  But really the

17   engineers would be a better witness for that.

18        Q.  Is it possible that waiting until April to

19   engage in bidding and redesigning, constructing --

20   because I believe Mr. White testified earlier that it's

21   a three to four-month process.  And so if it's April,

22   and we start that process in April -- May, June, July,

23   August, September potentially -- and if we have

24   conditions that don't allow for it, it is conceivable

25   that the tank would not be constructed until 2019?
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 1        A.  If we had an early winter.  I do want to

 2   clarify the bidding process occurs as part of the loan

 3   closing.  You need to do the bidding process.  The large

 4   hiccup is that we aren't allowed to expend money on the

 5   actual construction outlays until the loan is closed.

 6   So we'd not be able to actually purchase the tank until

 7   the loan is closed.  And that's the biggest problem

 8   because then that initiates the construction deadline

 9   from my understanding.

10        Q.  Great.  Thank you for clarifying.  It's also

11   your testimony that the cost of the tank would increase

12   by roughly 10 percent?

13        A.  Perhaps twenty percent.  So the loan request

14   for the tank originally when we included it after the

15   tank failure in April was a $450,000 line item.  So the

16   500 -- and since then tank costs have gone up.  So my

17   understanding of conversations from Summit Water

18   Distribution representatives, mostly Mike Folkman and

19   Dave Fuller is that the bidding process is expensive and

20   it would increase costs by about 20 percent.

21        Q.  So we would be looking at a $650,000 loan at

22   3.39 percent payable over 20 years with the tank

23   potentially not being constructed until 2019?

24        A.  Potentially, yes.

25        MR. ATWATER:  No further questions.
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 1        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Will there be

 2   anything else from CWC?

 3        MR. ATWATER:  No.  That rests our witness' case.

 4   We do want to reserve the right to make a closing

 5   statement.

 6        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Understood.  Thank you,

 7   Ms. Lewis.

 8        Ms. Schmid?

 9        MS. SCHMID:  May we have a five-minute break?

10        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes.  We'll be in recess

11   until 2:20.  Thank you.

12        (Interruption in proceedings.)

13        MS. SCHMID:  The Division would like to call

14   Mr. William Duncan.

15        (William Duncan is sworn in as a witness.)

16        MS. SCHMID:

17        Q.  Good afternoon.

18        A.  Good afternoon.  Is my microphone on?

19        MR. GARY SMITH:  Yes.

20        MS. SCHMID:

21        Q.  Please state your full name, business address,

22   title and employer for the record.

23        A.  My name is William Duncan.  I'm the manager of

24   the telecommunication and water section of the Utah

25   Division of Public Utilities.  Business address, 160
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 1   East, 300 South, fourth floor.

 2        Q.  In connection with your employment by the

 3   Division, have you participated in this case?

 4        A.  Yes.

 5        Q.  Could you please briefly describe what actions

 6   you or your staff -- because you're a manager -- has

 7   taken in this case.

 8        A.  Yes.  After receiving the application, we met

 9   together and seeing that there was a request for interim

10   rates, we immediately set about trying to determine what

11   we could recommend.  And in conjunction with that, we

12   went to Community Water Company on September 25th, I

13   think -- there were three of us -- and reviewed various

14   records, invoices relating to the costs of the company.

15        After the scheduling conference, we issued one data

16   request to try and get more information in an effort to

17   determine if we could come up with a rate that we could

18   support.

19        Q.  In connection with your employment and with

20   your work for the Division in this case, did you prepare

21   and cause to be filed your direct testimony marked for

22   identification as DPU Exhibit 1 which was filed on

23   October 13th, 2017?

24        A.  Yes.

25        Q.  Do you have any changes or corrections to that
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 1   testimony?

 2        A.  Yes, I do.

 3        Q.  The Division has passed out to the parties and

 4   has placed on the hearing officer's table corrected

 5   pages and a list that shows the corrections that need to

 6   be made -- that need to be made.  With that, Mr. Duncan,

 7   could you please explain why corrections need to be

 8   made?

 9        A.  Yes.  After filing our direct testimony, we

10   conducted further research about the tank, the storage

11   tank in question, and determined that it should probably

12   be classified as a distribution reservoir under NARUC

13   accounting codes.  For those not familiar with NARUC,

14   it's the National Association of Regulatory Utility

15   Commissioners, which is account code 330.  Rather than a

16   collecting and impounding reservoir which is NARUC

17   account 305.

18        Q.  Is the depreciable life different for those two

19   accounts?

20        A.  Yes.  The depreciable life for a distribution

21   reservoir is 30 years.  In my direct testimony I had

22   used a 50-year depreciable life and those rates are

23   prescribed by commission rule R746 dash 332.

24        Q.  In connection with the reclassification of the

25   applicable account for the water tank, numbers in your
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 1   testimony change?

 2        A.  Yes, they did.

 3        Q.  Could you please walk us through those -- and

 4   again this has been presented to counsel and has been

 5   placed on the hearing officer's table.

 6        A.  Yes.  On page five line 80, change 10,500 to

 7   17,500.  And change 50 to 30 to recognize the 30-year

 8   depreciable life.  Page five line 81, change 46,680 to

 9   53,680.  On line six -- page six line 88, change $7.73

10   to $8.89.  And on line 89, change $46,680 to $53,680.

11   And then lastly on page eight line 124, change again

12   $7.73 to $8.89.

13        Q.  With those corrections, if I asked you the same

14   questions that are set forth in your prefiled testimony,

15   would your answers today be the same as they were when

16   the testimony was filed with the commissioner?

17        A.  Yes.

18        MS. SCHMID:  With that, the Division moves for the

19   entry into evidence of DPU exhibit number 1.0, direct

20   testimony of Mr. William Duncan as corrected here today.

21        MR. ATWATER:  No objection.

22        MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.

23        MR. LANGE:  No objection.

24        MS. MILLER:  No objection.

25        THE HEARING OFFICER:  It's admitted.
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 1        MS. SCHMID:

 2        Q.  Mr. Duncan, do you have a summary?

 3        A.  Yes, I do.

 4        Q.  Also, the scheduling order permitted live

 5   rebuttal.  Do you have anything in that context?

 6        A.  Not that I'm aware of right now.

 7        Q.  Okay.  Please proceed.

 8        A.  The Division of Public Utilities is a posed

 9   one-time assessment or any other short-term assessment

10   regarding cost recovery for replacement of the failed

11   tank.  The Division believes the recovery of any cost

12   should reasonably match the expected life of an asset

13   being placed in public service.  In this case, the asset

14   in question, a storage tank has a depreciable life of 30

15   years.

16        During the course of that 30 years, the Division

17   expects a substantial number of customers will move out

18   and new customers will move in.  Some will likely stay

19   several years, while others will be short-term

20   occupants, requiring the current generation of customers

21   to provide cost recovery immediately, will create an

22   inter-generational inequity.

23        An inter-generational inequity exists when one

24   generation of customers incurs the cost of an asset or

25   expense, while another generation of customers receives

0170

 1   the benefit provided by that.  Cost utility regulation

 2   has a long history of well established practices of

 3   providing cost recovery for investment in

 4   infrastructure.

 5        Cost recovery is accomplished through capitalizing

 6   a new asset and receiving a reasonable rate of return.

 7   The Division views the addition of this new storage tank

 8   no differently.  The Division believes Community Water

 9   should secure financing, build a storage tank,

10   capitalize the asset and have cost for recovery included

11   in rates.  These practices ensure that the utility

12   customers pay only for the benefits they receive during

13   the time period they receive service from the utility.

14        For this reason, the Division believes that the

15   one-time assessment is not in the public interest and

16   opposes the one-time assessment for the storage tank

17   replacement.  This completes my summary.

18        MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  Mr. Duncan is now

19   available for cross-examination questions and questions

20   from the hearing officer.

21        THE HEARING OFFICER:  We'll start with Mr. Atwater.

22        MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.

23        Q.  Mr. Duncan, you stated in your testimony -- or

24   you suggest, I should say, and you just stated that the

25   company should procure investor funds to pay for the
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 1   tank immediately?

 2        A.  Yes, they should.  They should do their own

 3   financing, whether it's funding from investors or

 4   funding from the lending institution.

 5        Q.  Are you aware personally of any options

 6   available to the company outside of the options that

 7   have been supported and discussed today?

 8        A.  No, I'm not aware.

 9        Q.  Have you ever had a public utility company the

10   size of Community Water need funds in this manner?

11        A.  I cannot recall.  I can recall one special

12   assessment, but it was not an assessment for capital

13   needs.

14        Q.  And how did they obtain funding for that?

15        A.  They applied to the commission.

16        Q.  No outside funding, no outside loan, no

17   investor funds?

18        A.  No.  It was from the customers.

19        Q.  Okay.  Do you believe it's in the public's best

20   interest to potentially lose an additional irrigation

21   season by waiting to have the tank constructed?

22        A.  No, I believe that the company should move

23   ahead as quickly as possible.

24        Q.  Okay.  And without funds, how do you propose or

25   how do you suggest the company move forward?
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 1        A.  Well, I would propose, as stated in my

 2   testimony, that the commission issue an order that

 3   allows for cost recovery upon completion of the tank,

 4   whenever that is.  And depending upon such things as the

 5   final cost of the tank and the financing packages used.

 6        Q.  But no suggestion as to where the funding would

 7   come from?

 8        A.  No.  It's not our job to try and help or try

 9   and manage the company or point them to different

10   funding sources.  That's a company decision.

11        Q.  So availability of funds, timing and

12   availability of funds, is irrelevant to your

13   recommendation?

14        A.  No.  Timing and availability of funds is

15   relevant.  You should -- I think the company should

16   pursue fundings as soon as possible, whether through DDW

17   or other sources.

18        Q.  Do you believe the company has pursued

19   adequately available funds or potential funding sources?

20        A.  I don't know.  I only know that they pursued

21   DDW funds.  And in the application it talks about

22   potential lenders.  I don't know who those potential

23   lenders are.

24        Q.  Okay.  Let me rephrase this a little bit.  If

25   the commission were to approve your proposal, which is a
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 1   repayment -- a cost recovery over 30 years?

 2        A.  Uh-huh.

 3        Q.  The presumption that the company would make in

 4   that regard would be that it would be -- the only funds

 5   available to it would be the DDW loan.  And if that were

 6   the case, the potential of not constructing the tank in

 7   2018 is great.  And if we assume --

 8        MS. SCHMID:  Objection.  This is a compound

 9   question and I believe counsel is testifying.

10        THE HEARING OFFICER:  It's sustained.  If you want

11   to break up your question that would be helpful.

12        MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.

13        MR. ATWATER:  Sure.

14        Q.  If you had a choice of recommending to the

15   commission construction of the tank in 2018 at a higher

16   immediate cost to the customers versus construction of

17   the tank in 2019 at a lower cost to the customers, what

18   would your recommendation be?

19        A.  Higher and lower are relative.  I mean, you're

20   talking much higher and much lower?  I don't think I can

21   answer that question until I see, you know, what the

22   difference is.

23        Q.  Let me rephrase the question.  What's more

24   important then? Finances or having water immediately or

25   as soon as possible?
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 1        MS. SCHMID:  Objection.  I think that the duties of

 2   the Division of Public Utilities while broad, do not

 3   encompass making management decisions for the company.

 4   And with that I object to the question.

 5        THE HEARING OFFICER:  I did not really hear an

 6   evidentiary basis for the objection.  I'm fine with

 7   Mr. Duncan answering to the extent he has an answer.

 8        THE WITNESS:  Could you repeat the question.

 9        MR. ATWATER:

10        Q.  Sure.  If you had a choice in your

11   recommendation of having a higher cost financially to

12   the customers with the immediate resolution to the lack

13   of water versus a lower cost, but a delayed receipt of

14   water, what would your recommendation be?

15        A.  You know, I can't answer.  I don't know.  I'd

16   have to look at what the relative difference in the

17   costs are.

18        Q.  Okay.  And we believe that is before the

19   commission, that it's available.

20        A.  But I'm just hearing higher and lower.  I'm not

21   hearing numbers.

22        Q.  Okay.  So Ms. Lewis testified that if the tank

23   is included in the DDW loan, the total cost of the tank

24   would be $650,000 approximately, so it's an additional

25   $125,000.  The tank potentially would not be constructed
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 1   until 2019.  The interest rate would be 3.39 percent

 2   verses if the company were to build the tank immediately

 3   on its fastest track, the cost of the tank would be

 4   $525,000 at some rate between 3.39 and 13 percent?

 5        A.  Okay.  The way you structured the question

 6   makes it sound like it's not only faster, but lower cost

 7   if it's done in 2018.

 8        Q.  I agree.

 9        A.  So I would say the lower the cost and the

10   faster you could do it, the better.

11        Q.  Great.  Thank you.  I do have questions, a few

12   questions about your written testimony.

13        A.  Okay.

14        Q.  With your written testimony you included

15   Exhibit 2.1 which was redacted in part?

16        A.  That was not a part of my testimony.  That was

17   part of Mr. Smith's testimony.

18        Q.  Okay.  I'll reserve it for him.

19        Have you ever had a situation before the commission

20   where a public utility was not able to receive funds

21   after exploring all options without approval of the

22   commission or prior to approval of the commission?

23        A.  State that again, please.

24        Q.  So the Division of Drinking Water loan, one of

25   the conditions to receive those funds in closing is that
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 1   there be an approved rate sufficient to cover debt

 2   service and repayment of principal?

 3        A.  Correct.

 4        Q.  Have you ever had a situation before the

 5   commission where that was the case?

 6        A.  I have not.  I'm sure there's been some in the

 7   commission -- in our agency, but not in my particular

 8   cases that I've handled.

 9        Q.  Does the Division of Public Utilities

10   understand that to be the case for this matter?

11        A.  Yes.  I think it was in my testimony that you

12   need -- the Division of Drinking Water needs a repayment

13   approval before they can move ahead with the loan, and

14   that's why we put in our testimony that we would like

15   the commission to approve a rate that is sufficient.

16   Now sufficient is going to depend on the cost -- the

17   final actual cost of the tank and the financing that's

18   used.

19        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  In your experience --

20   shifting gears to the general increase.  In your

21   experience, has there ever been a situation where you've

22   had to recommend or not recommend a rate increase where

23   the proof and evidence of the rate increase was based

24   upon estimates of an engineer?

25        A.  No.  Not in my experience.
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 1        Q.  And have you ever had a situation where

 2   approval of the rate is based upon loan requirements?

 3        A.  Yes.

 4        Q.  Do you mind describing that for us, if you

 5   remember?

 6        A.  Yes.  I was involved in a case with a

 7   telecommunications company almost ten years ago that

 8   they had certain loan covenants that they had to meet.

 9   And they were in financial distress and they had to meet

10   these loan covenants on a loan they'd taken out.  So we

11   based an interim rate on financial covenants.

12        Q.  Okay.  I have no further questions.

13        A.  Okay.

14        Q.  Maybe I have one.  So just to reiterate your

15   recommendation, is this still your recommendation, given

16   the proceedings today, that the company somehow find

17   loan -- or somehow find funds and then recover those

18   costs over a 30-year period?

19        A.  Yes.

20        Q.  Do you believe that that is a business decision

21   or is that --

22        A.  No.  That's a regulatory principle, not a

23   business decision.  A business can make decisions on

24   their own.  We try and make recommendations based on

25   well-established principles.
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 1        Q.  Okay.  And as a follow-up to that question,

 2   based on the proceedings today and based on the previous

 3   question I had for you, do you feel like the Division of

 4   Drinking Water loan is the most appropriate method of

 5   funding?

 6        A.  I can't say that it's the most appropriate.  I

 7   can say that it's a very, very good interest rate.  But

 8   whether it's the most appropriate, I don't know what

 9   else is out there in the financial markets.

10        Q.  Even at the risk of losing another irrigation

11   season?

12        A.  Well, I thought we just established that it was

13   a lower cost and quicker response based on using the

14   Drinking Water loan.

15        Q.  No.  I think it was the reverse.  And I guess

16   the issue I'm trying to get at is, if the Division of

17   Drinking Water loan is the procedure which has a close

18   recovery period to the 30-year period you're suggesting,

19   they roughly match up.

20        A.  Uh-huh.

21        Q.  If the loan that Mr. White suggested is

22   potentially available -- based on certain conditions is

23   available -- that one of the conditions of that loan

24   presumably would not be repayment over 20 years or 30

25   years, for that matter?
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 1        A.  I'm unclear on what loan he's proposing that

 2   might be available.

 3        MS. SCHMID:  Objection.  Calls for speculation from

 4   the witness.

 5        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Why don't you clarify your

 6   question, Mr. Atwater.  Sustained.

 7        MR. ATWATER:  Yeah.

 8        Q.  So the question is, I guess Mr. White testified

 9   earlier today and we've been talking all day about the

10   idea of an affiliate loan in the amount of $525,000?

11        A.  Uh-huh.

12        Q.  Mr. White also testified that there would be

13   conditions that would match his investors' funds to

14   repay that loan.  Do you recall that?

15        A.  Yes.

16        Q.  In addition to the interest rate, there would

17   be a repayment period that would be much shorter than 20

18   years.  In fact, it's been stated today that that was

19   somewhere between 12 and 18 months.

20        A.  As I state in my summary that we would be

21   opposed to a short-term assessment.  It doesn't

22   reasonably match the asset life to the repayment period.

23   So an 18-month loan or 12-month, it does not match a

24   30-year investment.

25        Q.  Okay.  And that's great.  I hope that clarifies
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 1   the point.  The point is that the cheaper more

 2   beneficial option is not available based on your

 3   testimony?

 4        MS. SCHMID:  Objection.  I think that "not

 5   available" is vague.

 6        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Sustained.  I thought it

 7   misstated the testimony.  If you'd like to rephrase

 8   that's fine.

 9        MR. ATWATER:

10        Q.  If the $525,000 affiliate loan is made with a

11   repayment period of 18 months --

12        A.  Okay.

13        Q.  -- can you company repay that loan based on

14   your recommendation?

15        MS. SCHMID:  Objection.  That calls for facts not

16   in evidence.  The company has -- it appears different

17   ways to finance, and I do not know that the company's

18   recovery through its customers is the only means of

19   recovering money to pay a debt.  I don't know and I

20   don't think anyone here knows.

21        THE WITNESS:  Will you repeat the question?

22        MR. ATWATER:  Sure.  If I remember the question.

23        Q.  If the agreed repayment period for the

24   affiliate loan is 12 months or 18 months --

25        A.  Okay.
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 1        Q.  -- would your recommendation provide the

 2   company the ability to repay that loan?

 3        A.  I believe the Divisions's position would be

 4   that an 18-month loan presents the same inequity that we

 5   have with an immediate repayment, that you have inter-

 6   generational inequality, where customers -- the

 7   immediate customers pay for a service that they may not

 8   use for very long.  And subsequent customers come in two

 9   years later and get the benefit of somebody that's made

10   that payment.

11        Q.  And the follow-up question would be, the

12   Division of Drinking Water loan is a 20-year repayment

13   period?

14        A.  Correct.

15        Q.  Your cost recovery is a 30-year period.  Would

16   your recommendation be sufficient to repay the Division

17   of Drinking Water loan?

18        A.  I think the 20-year loan more reasonably

19   matches a 30-year depreciation.

20        Q.  But still --

21        A.  Still not exactly, but it's more reasonable.

22   It's a closer match.

23        MR. ATWATER:  Great.  Thank you.

24        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Are you finished,

25   Mr. Atwater?
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 1        MR. ATWATER:  Yes.  Thank you.

 2        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Savage?

 3        MR. SAVAGE:  No questions.

 4        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Lange?

 5        MR. LANGE:  Yes.  I've got a couple of questions

 6   here, Mr. Duncan.

 7        Q.  So if the customer base, maybe through its

 8   intervenors, felt that a shorter time period -- even

 9   though there isn't an equity there -- was a more

10   responsible answer to getting this tank -- because there

11   is an immediate need for the tank -- and a new owner 20

12   years from now was not suffering or potentially could

13   suffer from we -- what we can suffer from here in the

14   short term -- so if the customer base through the

15   intervenors suggested a shorter time period, would you

16   fight us on that?  Or I'm not sure I'm phrasing that

17   quite right.  But would you disagree with us on what we

18   are willing to do?

19        A.  I think that the Division's position would be

20   the same, but I think that if you have a desire for that

21   type of loan then you should make that argument with the

22   commission.

23        Q.  Well, I guess maybe at some level, perhaps

24   we'll do that.  But right now we're trying to figure out

25   how to get some money going right away for the tank.
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 1   Like today --

 2        A.  I agree.

 3        Q.  -- or when the commission makes a decision.  So

 4   I'm fine appealing to the commission on this.  Then so

 5   be it.

 6        A.  Uh-huh.

 7        Q.  But again I just want -- I guess you're telling

 8   me that you would not agree with what we would want?

 9        A.  I would state that we have our position and our

10   position is that the repayment period should closely

11   match the asset life.

12        MR. LANGE:  Okay.  I understand.  Thank you very

13   much.

14        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Miller?

15        MS. MILLER:  I have no comments or questions.

16        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Schmid, would you prefer

17   I ask my questions before you redirect?

18        MS. SCHMID:  Yes, please.

19        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Duncan, based on reading

20   your testimony, I inferred that you or other individuals

21   who work at the Division have had communications with

22   individuals at DDW; is that correct?

23        THE WITNESS:  We have.

24        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Who has been involved in

25   those communications?
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 1        THE WITNESS:  Myself and Mr. Smith and Mark Long.

 2        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Has DDW made any

 3   representations to you or to anyone else at the Division

 4   to your knowledge concerning the availability of funds

 5   to finance the replacement of the failed tank?

 6        THE WITNESS:  Yes.

 7        THE HEARING OFFICER:  And what were the content of

 8   those representations?

 9        THE WITNESS:  They were very close to what

10   Ms. Lewis testified to just a few minutes ago, that they

11   could still put funding for the tank back into the loan,

12   but it would require that they backtrack and take

13   some -- and do some steps that they had not done when

14   pursuing an outside -- you know, getting bids from --

15   without following all the federal regulations so it

16   would be a delay.

17        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Do you have any opinion as to

18   whether the representations we've heard from other

19   witnesses today concerning CWC's ability to order the

20   tank or otherwise begin preconstruction work before loan

21   closing are accurate?

22        THE WITNESS:  I would say that they are generally

23   accurate.  And confirm what we've talked about with

24   Drinking Water.

25        THE HEARING OFFICER:  So DDW has confirmed to you
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 1   or others at the Division that the construction cannot

 2   be -- pardon me -- preconstruction work cannot begin

 3   prior to closing?

 4        THE WITNESS:  That is correct.

 5        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Do you have an opinion as to

 6   whether CWC's estimate that the tank will take

 7   approximately four months for manufacture is accurate?

 8        THE WITNESS:  I don't have an opinion on that.

 9        THE HEARING OFFICER:  So in light of everything you

10   know about the case, as we sit here today do you have an

11   opinion as to whether financing through DDW remains a

12   feasible alternative?

13        THE WITNESS:  I believe it remains feasible,

14   although I can see that Community Water would have to

15   act quickly to backtrack and do some of the steps that

16   they did not do.  So it's feasible, I think, and it's --

17   as has been testified to it's a very good interest rate.

18        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Let's change tracks

19   and assume for a moment that the Commission were

20   inclined to agree with the Division with respect to its

21   recommendation on the failed water tank.  I believe your

22   testimony suggests that the order in this interim rate

23   proceedings should provide some sort of authorization

24   that would satisfy DDW that it would be assured of

25   repayment; is that accurate?
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 1        THE WITNESS:  Yes.  That's accurate.  But in

 2   addition to DDW, in the application -- Drinking Water's

 3   application in paragraph 18, it said without assessments

 4   to cover the debt service and repayment, the company has

 5   been unable to demonstrate to potential lenders a clear

 6   path of repayment.  So I think it should not only apply

 7   to DDW, but maybe other lenders that they may have

 8   talked to.

 9        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Understood.  And one sort of

10   specific question, if we go to page five of your

11   corrected testimony which was handed out earlier today,

12   beginning on line 75, the question reads, "Does the

13   Division have an estimate of the additional revenue

14   required to recover the cost of rebuilding the failed

15   water tank."

16        THE WITNESS:  Correct.

17        THE HEARING OFFICER:  You state, "Yes, based on the

18   investment of $525,000 and loan repayment conditions of

19   20 years at 3.39 percent, the loan repayment would be

20   $3,000 -- pardon me -- $3,015."  On an annual basis you

21   go on to explain that's $36,180.  Then you go on to

22   combine an annual depreciation expense of $17,500 per

23   year; right?

24        THE WITNESS:  Correct.

25        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Is it consistent with general

0187

 1   rate making principles to allow for recovery -- back up.

 2   The monthly repayment here of $3,000 -- I mean $3,015

 3   includes both the principle and interest payment;

 4   correct?

 5        THE WITNESS:  Yes.

 6        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Is it consistent with

 7   generate rate making principles to allow a utility to

 8   recover the principle on its debt and also depreciate

 9   that asset in the same year?

10        A.  I don't know.

11        THE HEARING OFFICER:  I don't have any further

12   questions.  Thank you.  Ms. Schmid?

13        MS. SCHMID:  No redirect.

14        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Duncan.

15        Ms. Schmid, do you have another witness?

16        MS. SCHMID:  We do.  The Division would like to

17   call Mr. Gary Smith as its next witness.

18        (Gary Smith is sworn in as a witness.)

19        MS. SCHMID:

20        Q.  Good afternoon.

21        A.  Good afternoon.

22        Q.  I believe this is the first time you've had the

23   opportunity to testify before a regulatory body; is that

24   correct?

25        A.  That is correct.
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 1        Q.  Here we go.  Welcome.  Mr. Smith, could you

 2   please state your full name, title, employer and

 3   business address for the record?

 4        A.  My name is Gary Smith.  And I'm employed by the

 5   Division of Public Utilities, state of Utah.  My address

 6   is 160 East 300 South, fourth floor, Salt Lake City,

 7   Utah.

 8        Q.  In connection with your employment by the

 9   Division, have you participated on behalf of the

10   Division in this docket?

11        A.  I have.

12        Q.  Did you prepare and cause to be filed what has

13   been premarked for identification as DPU exhibit number

14   2.0, the direct testimony of Gary Smith filed on

15   October 13th, 2017?

16        A.  Yes.

17        Q.  Do you have any changes or corrections to that

18   testimony?

19        A.  I do not.

20        Q.  If I were to ask you today the same questions

21   that are contained in the prefiled testimony, would your

22   answers today be the same as those contained in the

23   prefiled testimony?

24        A.  Yes, they would.

25        Q.  With that, the Division moves for the admission
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 1   into evidence of DPU exhibit number 2.0?

 2        MR. ATWATER:  No objection.

 3        MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.

 4        MR. LANGE:  No objection.

 5        MS. MILLER:  No objection.

 6        THE HEARING OFFICER:  It's admitted.

 7        MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.

 8        Q.  Mr. Smith, the procedural schedule permits live

 9   rebuttal and Commission practice allows traditionally

10   witnesses to present a summary.  Would you please

11   proceed?

12        A.  I would.  In rebuttal, I'd just like to note

13   that the Division only has records that it receives from

14   the source.  We received an annual report which is

15   required to be filed by the utility companies that we

16   oversee.

17        According to 2015, the numbers, the operating

18   numbers that we see for the company, they were positive.

19   There was actually a surplus.  In 2016, there was

20   reported to us a deficiency.  The rate increase that

21   happened in 2016 took effect so the payment of that

22   started at the first of this year.  The annual amount

23   for that, just on the base rate alone, was more than

24   sufficient to cover the deficit that was covered in '16.

25   I only say that to give you an indication of where we're
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 1   at.

 2        Now that doesn't include anything to do with the

 3   tier grades and the income that would come from that.

 4   But that's what the Division has been presented to it.

 5   And since then the Division, in an effort to evaluate

 6   the company request for an interim rate increase,

 7   conducted a focused on-site review of the company

 8   records on September 25th, 2017 and filed its first data

 9   request on October 4th, 2017.

10        As detailed in my direct testimony dated

11   October 13, '17, the information and the rate increase

12   as presented by the company requires further

13   clarification and resolution of the noted

14   inconsistencies identified in my Exhibit 2.1.  Due to

15   these inconsistencies, the Division is not able to

16   determine whether the company's interim rate increase as

17   proposed is just, reasonable and in the public's

18   interest.  Therefore, the Division recommends the

19   commission not approve an interim rate as presently

20   proposed.

21        MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  Mr. Smith is now available

22   for cross-examination questions and questions from the

23   hearing officer.

24        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Atwater?

25        MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.
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 1        Q.  Mr. Smith, you mentioned that the only

 2   information -- financial information available to you is

 3   that which was filed with the Division of Drinking

 4   Water; is that correct?

 5        A.  We only have information provided -- wait.

 6        Q.  Excuse me.  The annual reports that were filed,

 7   I apologize.

 8        A.  Wait.  You mentioned the Division of Drinking

 9   Water, didn't you?

10        Q.  Sorry.  I meant to refer to the annual reports.

11        A.  Well, on an annual basis -- I mean, on an

12   ongoing basis unless we have a rate case, of course

13   there is that additional information that we request and

14   obtain.

15        Q.  Did you receive additional financial

16   information from the company in connection with the

17   application?

18        A.  Yes, we did.

19        Q.  Is that information consistent with the filings

20   of the annual reports?

21        A.  Actually, I would -- it's too hard to

22   determine.  I mean, we have spent an enormous amount of

23   time trying to reconcile the numbers in the audit or

24   annual report to the numbers in the invoices received.

25   So it has been a challenge.
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 1        Q.  In your first stated request, did the company

 2   answer all of your questions?

 3        A.  They provided some information, but we were

 4   still evaluating whether or not, you know, it completely

 5   answers everything.

 6        Q.  In your data request did you include

 7   information about the inconsistencies?

 8        A.  In our -- we requested additional information

 9   which -- but since that time and with the remaining

10   portion of the filing we became aware that -- the

11   Division became aware of a -- potential inconsistencies

12   and concerns with what expenses that a company actually

13   has.

14        Q.  Were these deficiencies in amounts or title?

15        A.  Well, we were made aware of the contract

16   that -- when we first met on September 25th, we were

17   presented with some information about the structure of

18   the company and how the employees were paid and what was

19   considered included within the company's structure,

20   including an allocation of people's time.  We were not

21   made aware of a contractual agreement until the filing.

22   And that was -- it was news to us and it's unclear for

23   us to determine what is covered under that as opposed to

24   the other agreements which a company has.

25        Q.  Have you reviewed the amounts due and payable
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 1   under the administrative services agreement versus the

 2   amounts allocated by the company prior to your knowledge

 3   of that agreement?

 4        A.  Which agreement are you referring to?

 5        Q.  The one that you just referred to, the

 6   administrative services agreement that you became aware

 7   of in the response?

 8        A.  Okay.

 9        Q.  Let me reask that question.

10        A.  Yes.

11        Q.  So this document, it was filed under

12   confidentiality and so I won't discuss the numbers of

13   that agreement.

14        However, my question for you is, did you compare

15   the amount payable on a monthly basis under that

16   agreement to the historical amount paid by or allocated

17   to the company for administrative overhead?

18        A.  We took time to compare on a monthly basis what

19   was proposed under both.  Both with the employees'

20   allocation and also under the agreement, yes.

21        Q.  And did you notice any material differences

22   between the two?

23        A.  Yes.  We could not reconcile the two.

24        Q.  The numbers didn't reconcile?

25        A.  According to what we could tell, they did not.

0194

 1        Q.  And were the amounts material, the

 2   irreconcilable amounts?

 3        A.  They could be, yeah.  I mean --

 4        Q.  Are there any other inconsistencies or

 5   deficiencies that you noted in the application that make

 6   it impossible for you to make a recommendation?

 7        A.  The bulk of -- well, the inconsistencies that

 8   we discovered are included in my Exhibit 2.1.

 9        Q.  Can we go through each of them?

10        A.  If you'd like.

11        Q.  Great.  Exhibit 2.1, page 1-B2, CWC will pay

12   Summit Water Distribution.  There is a contract between

13   Summit Water Distribution and Community Water -- it's

14   been well established -- a certain amount on a monthly

15   basis.  It's all been redacted.  Your question -- your

16   statement, your inconsistency, is that the amount

17   actually paid to Summit Water does not match the amount

18   under contract?

19        A.  That is correct.

20        Q.  Does the company provide any explanation as to

21   why it's not the same?

22        A.  We have not received any information.

23        Q.  Did you request that information?

24        A.  We have not.

25        Q.  Did you read the language of the contract with
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 1   Summit Water Distribution Company?

 2        A.  We did, yes.

 3        Q.  Is the base amount that's payable on a monthly

 4   basis the only amount that's payable under that

 5   agreement?

 6        A.  No.  That is not the amount.  There are other

 7   things dealing with water supply.

 8        Q.  So it's conceivable that the additional amount

 9   that was payable to Summit Water Distribution Company in

10   excess of the base amount could have been for other

11   services provided under that --

12        A.  I would have a hard time believing that because

13   we also received other information or other invoices

14   specifically outlining that it was not -- it was supply

15   of water.  So there was a definite delay issue between

16   what we could tell was the monthly under the contractual

17   obligation to pay for the managerial services as opposed

18   to supply of water, yeah.

19        Q.  Thank you.  That was not my question.  The

20   agreement that we're referring to with Summit Water

21   Distribution Company allows or permits the company to

22   ask Summit Water Distribution to provide additional

23   services in emergency situations, in repair situations

24   and other circumstances that are not covered by the base

25   amount.
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 1        A.  Okay.

 2        Q.  Is it conceivable that the additional amounts

 3   paid to Summit Water Distribution are for those services

 4   that are not payment for water nor the base rate?

 5        MS. SCHMID:  Objection.  Calls for speculation.

 6   It's beyond the scope of his testimony.

 7        THE WITNESS:  I will say that --

 8        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Let me rule on the objection.

 9   It does call for speculation, but I'm going to allow it

10   because I think this line of questioning has some merit

11   and I want to see where it goes.  So it's overruled.

12        THE WITNESS:  What brought it mostly to our

13   attention is that there was no difference between the

14   invoice received for the amount -- they were the same

15   identical for each month.  There was no breakout for

16   where that total came from, and the amounts were exactly

17   the same.  So it appeared to us, which requires more

18   clarification, that potentially the contractual amount

19   was not the -- was not justifiable.

20        Q.  So you're suggesting that potentially there is

21   an amendment?

22        MS. SCHMID:  Objection.  Calls for speculation.

23        THE WITNESS:  I wouldn't have any -- that's not

24   what I said.

25        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Sustained.
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 1        MR. ATWATER:

 2        Q.  Is it relevant to you in your recommendation

 3   that the amounts paid to Summit Water Distribution

 4   Company are different than what the contractual

 5   agreement states?

 6        A.  I'm sorry.  Say that again.

 7        Q.  Is it relevant to your recommendation or lack

 8   thereof that the amount paid to Summit Water

 9   Distribution is different than a contractual amount?

10        A.  Well, it's concerning to us because it raises

11   the question of, you know, what other costs are being

12   treated properly as well.

13        Q.  Do you recall the discrepancy -- the amount of

14   the discrepancy between the payments under the contract

15   and the amounts that were paid?

16        A.  I do.

17        Q.  Was it a material amount?

18        A.  Is it material.  Well, I mean, it could be,

19   yes.

20        Q.  Impactful to the rate?

21        A.  If this was the only one, that would be one

22   thing.  But in addition to all the others, yes, it is.

23        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  The next inconsistency is a

24   correct one, and we appreciate you pointing it out in

25   the administrative services agreement between the

0198

 1   company and ASC Utah.  There is a reference to a payment

 2   that is payable for administrative services.  That

 3   contract, in your testimony, as you point out states

 4   that that is payable on a monthly basis.  And you

 5   suggest that that should be payable on an annual basis

 6   in equal monthly installments.  Is that your testimony?

 7        A.  It appeared to us, because of the references in

 8   other documents, that this was incorrect and given the

 9   amount we would --

10        Q.  In other information provided to you,

11   specifically the rate model that was an exhibit to the

12   application, how did it characterize that amount?  Was

13   it an annual or a monthly amount?

14        A.  I believe it's identified as an annual amount.

15        Q.  Thank you.  Do you believe that that clears up

16   the inconsistency?

17        A.  Yes.

18        Q.  Thank you.

19        A.  Although I do recommend redraft and resubmittal

20   to us of that corrected document.

21        Q.  All right.  Your third inconsistency, the daily

22   operation and maintenance expenses of Community Water

23   Company have been subsidized by affiliate loans.  That's

24   from the testimony of the company, that statement.

25        Your issue with that is that it's unclear from that
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 1   statement that the company has any outstanding loans

 2   with its affiliates.  And you are correct, the financial

 3   statements that have been submitted to the company do

 4   not reflect outstanding payables and balances owed by

 5   Community Water to any of its affiliates.

 6        A.  May I clarify?

 7        Q.  Sure.

 8        A.  So you're saying that the company has no -- or

 9   does have outstanding loans?

10        Q.  That is correct.  The testimony of the company

11   is that there are outstanding loans.

12        A.  Okay.  Are you aware that under a rate case and

13   going back to 2014, that those loans should have been

14   identified?

15        Q.  Sure.  And maybe a bit of an accounting

16   discussion here would help.  Oftentimes in accounting

17   software, it is referred to as an inner-company

18   transaction.  And they're not necessarily always kept on

19   the books and records of the company.  And the company

20   has with it today, and would like to submit into

21   evidence, two exhibits.  The first exhibit is referred

22   to as "Subsidized Expenses Payable" by Community Water

23   to its affiliates.  I'll hand this out and then describe

24   it.

25        MS. SCHMID:  I object.  I do not believe there has
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 1   not been a foundation laid for those exhibits, and I am

 2   not sure that Mr. Smith can provide that foundation as

 3   he is not the company witness.

 4        THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think that's likely a

 5   meritorious objection, but I haven't even seen it yet so

 6   can we take a look at what you want to offer and then

 7   we'll discuss it.

 8        MS. SCHMID:  Of course.

 9        MR. ATWATER:  I'll bring you both, so I don't have

10   to stand up twice.  Just to counsel?

11        THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'd like a copy as well,

12   please.  Thank you.

13        MR. ATWATER:  Should I give it to everybody?

14        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes.

15        MS. SCHMID:  Having examined the documents that

16   were passed out to me, I renew and restate the objection

17   that I previously made.

18        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Smith, have you seen

19   these documents before?

20        THE WITNESS:  I didn't get one now and I haven't

21   seen it before.

22        MS. SCHMID:  He needs one.

23        MR. ATWATER:  Not if there is an objection.

24        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Well, Mr. Atwater, I'm

25   skeptical about a line of questioning asking this
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 1   witness to testify as to the contents of these

 2   documents.  Not only because he has not reviewed them,

 3   but because no witness has attested to their voracity.

 4   If you'd like to reserve this question or line of

 5   questioning for Mr. Smith and recall the witness to lay

 6   some foundation, I think we can do that.  But I think

 7   that would be more appropriate than having this witness

 8   testify to these documents he's not familiar with.

 9        MR. ATWATER:  I can do that.  I can reserve some

10   time to recall a witness.  May I proceed?

11        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Absolutely.

12        MR. LANGE:  Page one of three, page three of three,

13   but there is no page two of three.

14        MS. SCHMID:  It's on --

15        MR. ATWATER:  We'll get back to it.

16        MS. SCHMID:  Isn't it on the flip side?

17        MR. LANGE:  No, no.

18        MS. SCHMID:  It's on the flip side of mine.

19        MR. ATWATER:

20        Q.  So Mr. Smith, do you have any -- what is your

21   background in financial or accounting, if any?

22        A.  I have spent more than 20 years in the finance

23   industry.  The last 13, I made municipal loans.  So I

24   believe I have a good standing.

25        Q.  I do too.  Have you ever heard of an
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 1   inner-company table?

 2        A.  Yes.

 3        Q.  Would you describe what that is for us?

 4        A.  One part of the company makes another -- well,

 5   it's actually between two affiliates usually -- makes

 6   inner-department -- inner-company loans.  So they'll

 7   make a loan to the other division of the company.  But

 8   usually that's reflected in their annual reports.

 9        Q.  Are you familiar with the consolidation

10   process?

11        A.  Why don't you describe it.

12        Q.  Are you familiar with the consolidation

13   process?

14        A.  When you say consolidation process, what do you

15   mean?

16        Q.  Financial consolidation?

17        A.  Right.  So you take two affiliates and combine

18   them.

19        Q.  So is it conceivable that affiliate loans would

20   not appear on financial statements if they're

21   consolidated?

22        MS. SCHMID:  Objection.  Calls for speculation.

23        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Overruled.  We've just

24   established that Mr. Smith has some expertise in this

25   area and he's being asked his opinion.
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 1        THE WITNESS:  Ask me again.

 2        MR. ATWATER:

 3        Q.  Is it conceivable that if financials are

 4   consolidated, affiliate loans and payables would not

 5   show up on those financial statements?

 6        A.  On which company?

 7        Q.  Either.

 8        A.  Either company.  So you're saying -- I guess

 9   anything is possible.

10        Q.  Is it common practice when companies are

11   consolidated that the eliminating entries remove

12   inner-company transactions?

13        A.  My background is not in corporate finance and

14   so I have to say that that part of the expertise would

15   probably be left to somebody else.

16        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  Your next inconsistency

17   noted -- in the company's direct testimony they state

18   that the additional O&M requested in the application

19   which are nominal are all expenses either not understood

20   or subsidized at the time of the 2016 approval.

21        Your inconsistency is that it's unclear from this

22   statement that the nominal addition to operation and

23   maintenance would account for the level of interim

24   increase in the rate the company has requested.  An

25   interim adjustment to rate should reflect the
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 1   demonstrated operation and maintenance needs of the

 2   company and not its plans for future capital

 3   improvements.

 4        Would you explain what the inconsistency is there?

 5        A.  Well, in part of it, it says that the costs are

 6   nominal.  In other words, a small change in operation

 7   and maintenance.  And so yet you just -- the request

 8   going from $30 to -- I'm not sure exactly what -- but

 9   the nearest we can tell, $42 is probably more than

10   nominal.

11        Q.  So line 44 in the testimony is referring to the

12   increase in O&M charge only?

13        A.  According to what we understood, that's

14   correct.  That's how we understood it.

15        Q.  And you just referred to capital charges which

16   would not be O&M?

17        A.  To clarify, because the interim rate is for --

18   is to evaluate what the needs of the company to operate

19   are.  And we understand that there are capital needs,

20   however, the interim rate wouldn't necessarily account

21   for that because a lot of that is still unknown.

22        Q.  What additional information would the Division

23   need to make that --

24        A.  What additional information do we need to

25   evaluate the capital needs.  That your question?
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 1        Q.  No.  This particular item refers to the O&M

 2   increase from 2016 which was the original approval, the

 3   2016 rate case.

 4        Is it okay if I provide a little context because

 5   you were not around then?  So in 2016 the commission

 6   approved an O&M rate which has been discussed today.

 7   And the testimony is that that rate was not sufficient,

 8   and that's why we're here again today, which includes

 9   not only capital which is separate from my question, but

10   also a slight nominal increase in the O&M 2016 approval.

11        So my question is what information was not provided

12   to allow the Division to evaluate whether that nominal

13   increase --

14        A.  Well, a lot of clarity was not provided.  So

15   it's hard to evaluate what exactly the needs are when a

16   lot of these outstanding items -- and maybe you could

17   separate them out individually -- but collectively they

18   pose a real obstacle for us to evaluate the exact needs

19   of the company.

20        Q.  I'll rephrase -- or I'll reask the question.  I

21   don't believe it was answered.  What additional

22   information would the Division need in order to answer

23   the question of whether they're reasonable that wasn't

24   already provided?

25        A.  Well, a lot of what we found is within the two
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 1   agreements especially, we're not sure what covers what

 2   and how much that is.  In addition to that, there are

 3   just outstanding items that -- we would probably submit

 4   another data request to obtain that information on.

 5        Q.  So unfortunately this is the interim hearing,

 6   and this is a very important matter for the company.

 7   And had the Division made that data request previously

 8   to have been provided -- Why didn't the Division --

 9        MS. SCHMID:  Objection; argumentative.

10        MR. ATWATER:

11        Q.  Why did the Division not make --

12        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Overruled to the extent

13   Mr. Atwater asked why did the Division not -- previously

14   not request the information.

15        THE WITNESS:  As you know, we're on a very short

16   time frame to do that.  And we actually have spent an

17   enormous amount of time going through trying to figure

18   out what exactly has changed from 2016 to 2017 that

19   would be enough to justify a rate increase.

20        MR. ATWATER:

21        Q.  Are you aware that the commission accepted the

22   application as complete?

23        A.  That is on a -- the acceptance of it being

24   complete means that you have provided the list of items

25   on that.  So it's a checklist.  Now the review of that
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 1   obviously can't take place at that moment, so there is

 2   no different -- there is no direct lineation between

 3   being a complete file and being an accurate description

 4   that is understood by the recipient.

 5        Q.  Is it your testimony that the statute does not

 6   allow you sufficient time to evaluate and request

 7   appropriate data?

 8        A.  Given what we have and the time frame involved

 9   with that, it would be one thing if it was just a few

10   things to figure out, but there are a number of items

11   that we just can't -- we can't reconcile the numbers and

12   the things which we've been given, and we're going

13   through those now.

14        Q.  Right.

15        A.  That's the purpose of this.

16        Q.  Are you aware that this is the only hearing for

17   the interim rate increase?

18        A.  I am.

19        Q.  Did you not think that was important to request

20   that of the company prior to this hearing?

21        A.  It is, but also -- yes, it is.

22        Q.  Okay.  Moving on.  The testimony of Keith J.

23   Larson, October 6th, 2017.  The company has additional

24   information since filing the application regarding

25   reserves, system profit, and certain O&M costs.  In
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 1   order to ensure the financial viability of the

 2   company and to avoid system shutdown --

 3        (Interruption in proceedings.)

 4        MR. ATWATER:  This is the testimony of Keith J.

 5   Larson, October 6th, 2017.  The company has additional

 6   information since filing the application regarding

 7   reserve system profit and certain O&M costs in order to

 8   ensure the financial viability of the company and to

 9   avoid future system shutdown, the modifications in the

10   update are critical to the company and its customers.

11        Your response to that is it is unclear what

12   information the company has since filing the

13   application.  The only additional information the

14   Division has received from the company was included in

15   the Divisions's first data request response.  It appears

16   that this additional information may have relevance in

17   evaluating the company's financial requirements.  In the

18   absence of the information the Division cannot support

19   increases placed upon it.

20        In Mr. Larson's testimony, he submitted an updated

21   rate model and an update to the master plan for the

22   company, which included all the information that support

23   the rate that he suggested be revised.  Did you see that

24   information?

25        A.  Yes.
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 1        Q.  So what additional information does the

 2   Division need to evaluate?

 3        A.  What is the company requesting as an interim

 4   rate.  That's the question.

 5        Q.  Mr. Larson's testimony states that fairly

 6   clearly.

 7        A.  Okay.  It differs than in your prior

 8   application.

 9        Q.  That is correct.

10        A.  So what is the change?

11        Q.  So the changes are noted on his rate model and

12   those changes -- what I'm asking is, what additional

13   information does the Division need other than what it

14   already has to understand what those changes are?

15        A.  Well, it's one thing to provide details on

16   numbers, but how those numbers fit within the company

17   and their operations would take some time.  Just because

18   somebody submits numbers doesn't mean that it's a clear

19   indication of what the needs of the company are.

20        Q.  Have you reviewed the company's direct

21   testimony regarding the terms and conditions of the

22   Division of Drinking Water loan?

23        A.  Have I reviewed -- ask me again.

24        Q.  The company's direct testimony where it

25   discusses the terms and conditions of the Division of
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 1   Drinking Water loan --

 2        A.  Yes.

 3        Q.  -- are there any discussion of reserves in that

 4   testimony?

 5        A.  There are.

 6        Q.  Are you aware that that loan requires reserves?

 7        A.  Yes.

 8        Q.  And are you aware of the amounts?

 9        A.  I don't have them handy, but I am aware that

10   there are amounts.

11        Q.  They're at your disposal?

12        A.  Right.

13        Q.  And that is what is included in Mr. Larson's

14   testimony is the additional reserves required by that

15   loan, and it's stated otherwise in the testimony?

16        A.  But apparently the numbers that you're

17   requesting may be lower.  It's unclear exactly what your

18   rate increase change is.

19        Q.  In the amounts?

20        A.  In the amounts.

21        Q.  It's unclear because it's different or it's

22   unclear because you don't understand them?

23        A.  Well, both.

24        Q.  So maybe we should open them and figure out why

25   they're unclear.  Do you have a copy of --
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 1        A.  I do not.  I apologize.  I do not have a copy

 2   of that.

 3        Q.  I didn't think I printed them.  Maybe I did.

 4        MR. ATWATER:  May I approach.

 5        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes.

 6        MR. ATWATER:  This is the written direct testimony

 7   of Keith J. Larson adopted today and sworn to by Tena

 8   Campbell of Bowen & Collins.  It's on page eight and

 9   filtering over to page nine.

10        THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry.  Could you -- which one is

11   it?  This is Bowen Collins?

12        MR. ATWATER:  This is the update, yes.

13        Q.  So you have in front of you the update that was

14   included in Mr. Larson's testimony, and you suggested

15   that that is confusing to you.  Can you describe why the

16   rate requested there is confusing?

17        A.  The basis of this rate goes back to the ERU

18   units and how that's derived.  And an interim rate

19   increase is not the proper forum to change rate

20   structure.  So it's hard to take these numbers and try

21   to convert them into what the base rate and the base

22   rate structure currently is.

23        Q.  So that is a different question, which is fine,

24   but the question relative to what you deemed an

25   inconsistency which we had knowledge of before this
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 1   without a data request was that you could not tell from

 2   that what was being requested.

 3        Is that still your stance irrespective of ERUs?

 4        A.  Well, if you're proposing a base rate, why the

 5   change from 18 to 19?  Is that -- why would those two

 6   numbers be different?  Are you proposing a separate rate

 7   increase?

 8        Q.  We're proposing what is prepared and placed

 9   before the Division, together with the testimony of

10   Mr. Larson.  It's all we need.

11        A.  Okay.

12        Q.  Okay.  The next item is in reference to Keith

13   J.  Larson's testimony, page five line 64.  Contractual

14   water system maintenance.  This represents the amount

15   paid to Summit Water Distribution Company.  This

16   includes salaries, testing and lab equipment, water

17   sampling, system maintenance, office supplies, telephone

18   and payroll tax and other miscellaneous expenses.

19        Your inconsistency with that statement is the above

20   appears to address only the company's 2004 Water System

21   Service Agreement with Summit Water.  However, the items

22   listed appear to be items covered in the administrative

23   services agreement, the new agreement that's been

24   referred to today between the company and ASCU, LLC with

25   an effective date of January 2, 2017.
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 1        Summit's role and ASCU's role in connection with

 2   the company's 2004 agreement and the new agreement are

 3   unclear.  Likewise, the proposed cost and benefit

 4   including any reallocation of expenses of the new

 5   agreement remain unclear.  And the remainder of that

 6   should be redacted regarding amounts.

 7        Q.  Again, you testified earlier that you have read

 8   both of those agreements?

 9        A.  I have.

10        Q.  And in your recollection, what services does

11   Summit Water provide under that agreement?

12        A.  It provides the management of the water system

13   and an emergency basis supply of water.

14        Q.  And no discussion of administrative functions?

15        A.  I don't recall that, but not to the level of

16   their payroll and so forth.  None of those items, office

17   supplies, telephone payroll, taxes and such, were not

18   part of that agreement from our understanding.

19        Q.  Sorry.  Can you restate that.  There was a

20   negative in there that may have thrown me.

21        A.  Sorry.  The items referenced -- that you

22   referenced, the office supplies, telephones, payrolls,

23   taxes and so forth, were not lineated in the agreement.

24   And so those kinds of things were actually lineated out

25   in the new agreement.  And so the way this was
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 1   presented, it was unclear.  It seemed to have crossed

 2   over the two agreements.

 3        Q.  So you're understanding of the agreements based

 4   on your testimony is that ASC Utah and Summit Water

 5   Distribution are providing duplicative services to the

 6   company and both charging for it?

 7        A.  That is a potential.

 8        Q.  And again, back to the question of the amount

 9   payable under the administrative services agreement and

10   the services provided under the administrative services

11   agreement.  How closely do they match the prior

12   allocations of salaries, office expense, lease expense,

13   insurance expense, and other items that were previously

14   broken out in the base year and prior years?  Do you

15   have any recollection of that?

16        A.  I do.  We actually took time to try to evaluate

17   that, and we found that the agreement seemed to cover

18   that.  It would be quite an increase actually.  And I

19   can't recall those numbers right now, I guess, but it

20   was a substantial amount to have an impact on your rate.

21        Q.  So the base -- the rate model with the base

22   year of 2016, shows an approximate amount of $90,000

23   payable or allocated for those administrative services.

24   The amount payable under the administrative services

25   agreement in some cases would not be a material increase
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 1   from that.  But we've discussed today that there are

 2   certain costs that were not known or that were being

 3   subsidized.  Is it that that increase would cover those

 4   subsidies or costs that were unknown in prior years?

 5        A.  You're asking if the rate increase --

 6        Q.  Just the amount payable under the

 7   administrative services agreement relative to what was

 8   previously allocated by the company for administrative

 9   services.  Is the difference -- you said there was a

10   substantial increase -- is that difference justifiable

11   by potential subsidies or amounts that were previously

12   unknown?

13        A.  I would -- I don't have that information so I

14   would be speculating.

15        Q.  Okay.  And have you ever had a rate case with a

16   public utility -- No.  The answer is no.  I already know

17   that.  Why am I asking that question.

18        Have you had any experience with managing a small

19   company?

20        A.  With managing a small company?

21        Q.  Or the finances of a small company?

22        A.  Not that would pertain to this, no.

23        Q.  Okay.  Any idea what typical overhead costs

24   would be for a small company?

25        A.  I would be guessing.
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 1        Q.  Okay.  Is it possible that the two agreements

 2   do not cross over, and that, in fact, the services that

 3   are provided are completely independent?

 4        A.  Is it possible.  I would guess so.  But just in

 5   reading the document, it did not include those services.

 6        Q.  Which document?

 7        A.  The first agreement from 2004.

 8        Q.  Did not include those services?

 9        A.  Correct.

10        Q.  And the new document does?

11        A.  Yes.  It matched more with those, yes.

12        Q.  Would that not suggest that they are different?

13        A.  I'm sorry.  Maybe I said that wrong.  I said

14   that backwards.  Excuse me.  The new agreement included

15   what appeared to be those expenses for the company,

16   which makes sense in the framework of what the agreement

17   is.

18        The other -- which this is referring to in 2004,

19   that agreement, I can't see where -- you know, you would

20   have office supplies, telephone, payrolls, taxes, and so

21   forth with the management agreement.  That is for a

22   total amount regardless of kind of what happens unless

23   an emergency.

24        Q.  So that is correct, and I think the record is

25   clear on that point.  The two agreements address two
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 1   completely separate services without cross-over.

 2        A.  So are you saying that this is a typographical

 3   error?

 4        Q.  No, no, no.  What I'm saying is that it's not

 5   an inconsistency.

 6        A.  Okay.

 7        Q.  Okay.  We'll move on.  Page four, line 54,

 8   chemicals.  This line was removed -- this is the

 9   testimony of Keith Larson -- this line item was removed

10   inasmuch as the company does not anticipate using the

11   treatment plant going forward.  You note that that's an

12   unclear inconsistent statement because Mr. Larson's

13   testimony also suggests that the Division of Drinking

14   Water loan requests $523,000 for repair of the water

15   treatment plant.

16        And your inconsistency is correctly stated.  Why

17   did the Division not include this in its first data

18   request or subsequent data request when it became aware

19   of the inconsistency?

20        A.  We received this after our data request.

21        Q.  Why did the Division not make a subsequent data

22   request?

23        A.  Probably due to time constraint.

24        Q.  Okay.  Did the Division investigate any further

25   the analysis provided by Mr. Larson to determine whether
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 1   or not chemicals were actually included under a

 2   different line item?

 3        A.  What is the purpose of your question?

 4        Q.  The purpose of my question is that the

 5   chemicals are indeed included.

 6        A.  That brought more inconsistency because that

 7   same person said that they were not going to be

 8   included.

 9        Q.  So had you done more investigation or requested

10   the company, could you have found that out before today?

11        A.  Given timing, I don't know.

12        Q.  Page four, line 60, the need for services.  The

13   line item -- excuse me -- is contractual services

14   accounting.  The need for the services represented by

15   this line item is unclear with the new agreement and the

16   company's agreement with Summit Water seemed to provide

17   similar services.  In your opinion, is there a

18   difference between administrative services and

19   accounting services?

20        A.  It depends on who you're talking to.  I would

21   guess -- what is the title of the agreement?

22        Q.  Administrative services agreement.

23        A.  Right.

24        Q.  Is it conceivable that there are independent

25   accounting fees such as tax preparation, audit fees,
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 1   that may not be covered by an administrator?

 2        A.  Correct.

 3        Q.  Thank you.  Page five, line 75, administrative

 4   expenses.  The need for expenses represented by this

 5   line item is unclear with the new agreement and the

 6   company agreement with Summit Water seems to cover

 7   similar expenses.

 8        Is it conceivable that there are administrative

 9   expenses that are direct expenses that are not covered

10   by services provided by a manager or an administrator?

11        A.  Why would there be an agreement that would

12   encompass that on two different aspects of the company?

13        Q.  Do companies have licensing fees, annual filing

14   fees, corporate filing fees, things of that nature that

15   are deemed administrative that would not be covered by

16   an administrator typically?

17        A.  I would have to direct your question to the

18   draft of that whether that was meant to be in that

19   agreement or not.

20        Q.  Could the Division have asked that question

21   before today?

22        A.  Due to time constraint, I don't know the answer

23   to that.

24        Q.  Thank you.  And finally page five, line 77,

25   customer information, management system, postage and
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 1   mailing, winter transportation and access expense.  The

 2   need for expense represented by this line item is

 3   unclear with the new agreement and the company's

 4   agreement with Summit Water covering similar expenses.

 5   Same question.

 6        A.  Well, given what we understand, the needs of

 7   the company and how it's potentially run, and the

 8   agreements, I would find it hard to find those outside

 9   of those agreements.  Wouldn't you?

10        Q.  So if you read the agreement -- and again, it's

11   confidential -- it's a services agreement, not a

12   goods -- not an expense agreement.  And it does discuss

13   this, direct expenses are expenses that the company pays

14   in addition and apart from the administrative services

15   fee.

16        A.  So they're paying for them twice?

17        Q.  No.  They're paying for the administrator to

18   lick the envelope and put it in the mail.

19        A.  Okay.

20        Q.  But they're also paying for the envelope and

21   stamp separate and apart.

22        A.  So you're saying that that's an addition to

23   page five, line 64, where it says -- where it refers

24   back to the 2004 agreement?  We just discussed in that

25   that there was these services including --
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 1        Q.  Correct.  It's the services portion of that.

 2   The administrator will handle those portions, but the

 3   company is still responsible for paying the hard costs

 4   associated with it?

 5        A.  Okay.

 6        Q.  The administrator is not responsible to pay for

 7   the management system, it operates the management

 8   system?

 9        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Was that a question?  Do you

10   agree?

11        THE WITNESS:  That is a possibility, yes.

12        MR. ATWATER:

13        Q.  You would not be surprised?

14        A.  I would hope that the company would be prudent

15   in the way it runs its business so to avoid extra costs.

16   So if you're proposing is this a prudent way, I don't

17   know.

18        MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.

19        MR. SAVAGE:  No questions.

20        MR. LANGE:  No questions.

21        THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'm not sure Mr. Atwater is

22   finished.

23        MS. SCHMID:  I thought he was.  I'm sorry.

24        MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.

25        Mr. White has to leave, and so you suggested
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 1   previously that we could put the witness on the stand

 2   regarding the exhibits that I handed out.  I was

 3   wondering if we could do that now.

 4        MS. SCHMID:  Mr. Smith also has to leave.  So to

 5   the extent that we could make this an expeditious

 6   process, that would be appreciated.  But again,

 7   Mr. Smith is available for the duration of the hearing

 8   as a witness should be.

 9        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Is there any objection to

10   Mr. Smith's testimony being interrupted so that

11   Mr. White can take the stand for a few moments to

12   authenticate the rebuttal exhibit?

13        MR. LANGE:  No objection.

14        MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.

15        MS. SCHMID:  No objection.

16        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Mr. Smith, you're

17   excused for now.

18        MR. ATWATER:  I call Mr. Larry White to the stand.

19        (Mr. Larry White returns to the stand.)

20        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. White you're still under

21   oath.

22        THE WITNESS:  Thank you.  I apologize, Your Honor.

23   So yesterday was my mother-in-law's 90th birthday.  I

24   missed her birthday so I could be at this hearing.  I

25   have adjusted my flight, which is at 5:00 o'clock, in
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 1   order to get back to the East Coast for her birthday

 2   party tomorrow.  My wife is already not happy with me

 3   for missing her birthday, and will be even more unhappy

 4   with me if I don't make it back in time for tomorrow.

 5        THE HEARING OFFICER:  We wish you the best of luck.

 6        THE WITNESS:  Otherwise, I'd be happy to stay here

 7   for the duration.

 8        MR. ATWATER:

 9        Q.  So Mr. White, I've handed you two exhibits that

10   have also been handed out to the parties.  These

11   exhibits provide -- the first exhibit --

12        MR. SAVAGE:  Could we have a number for this?

13        MR. ATWATER:  Exhibit Number 1 would be the exhibit

14   titled, "Subsidized Expenses Payable."  And Exhibit 2

15   we'll call the document titled, "GL Account Ledger With

16   Detail."

17        THE HEARING OFFICER:  And I will note on my copy

18   that I don't have a page two.  I have page one, a blank

19   back, and a page three.

20        MR. ATWATER:  Were you the one that got the three

21   pages?

22        MS. SCHMID:  I am.  Would you like us to take a

23   small break and the Division could make copies so

24   everyone has all the pages?

25        MR. ATWATER:  So I would suggest that the sum on
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 1   page three is really what we're going to talk about.  In

 2   fact, we could remove the first two-pages.

 3        MS. SCHMID:  I object to having an incomplete

 4   exhibit.

 5        MR. ATWATER:  Then I will remove the first two

 6   pages.

 7        MS. SCHMID:  I object to having an incomplete

 8   exhibit and I would object to it being used to

 9   cross-examine.

10        THE HEARING OFFICER:  It is a ledger.  So I think

11   to the extent the company seeks to admit it, it is

12   appropriate to reproduce it in its entirety as it was

13   intended to be.  So we can recess for a few moments

14   while it's copied.  Thank you for making copies.  Will

15   five minutes suffice?

16        MS. SCHMID:  Yes.  Thank you.

17        (A recess is taken.)

18        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Back on the record.  Ms.

19   Schmid, thank you for providing these copies.

20   Mr. Atwater, I'll turn them over to you.

21        MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.

22        Q.  Mr. White, are you familiar with the document

23   in front of you titled interim hearing Exhibit 1,

24   "Subsidized Expenses Payable"?

25        A.  I am.
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 1        Q.  What does this document represent?

 2        A.  So this is basically an allocation of

 3   administrative time and expenses for the past years that

 4   TCFC employees have expended on dealing with Community

 5   Water as constructed by our accounting firm.

 6        Q.  Thank you.  Does this document fairly represent

 7   the time spent and the costs associated with Community

 8   Water?

 9        A.  I would say if anything it's probably

10   understated.  But yes.

11        Q.  Would you elaborate?

12        A.  Well, just, you know, the amount of time that

13   it's taken to manage Community Water particularly

14   through these processes is just enormous.  And so I

15   would say that if anything it's probably understated in

16   terms of the amount of time that's been spent on

17   preparing for these cases and trying to fix this issue.

18        Q.  So to follow that line of questioning and to

19   further substantiate this, are you able to make

20   appropriate business decisions based on the current

21   status?

22        A.  I can tell you that we've had -- I've been on

23   numerous conference calls where our advisers, Emily,

24   Bowen & Collins, and representatives of the Department

25   of Public Utilities, where we have asked for their
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 1   advice of how to get through this process, and they've

 2   said we can't advise you on that.

 3        And they said several times today that they

 4   can't -- or that they're not making business decisions

 5   and businesses can make their own decisions.  Businesses

 6   can make decisions on their own.  That's a quote.  I

 7   think it's pretty clear from this process that we can't

 8   make decisions on our own.  We're subject to all of the

 9   scrutiny, and we have no capacity to make decisions on

10   our own and that's why we're here.  I mean that's -- it

11   should be clearly evident that we can't make decisions

12   on our own.

13        So, you know, I ask your advice.  Is it in the

14   public's best interest that the risk to the system is

15   far greater than irrigation -- whether people can keep

16   their lawns and trees, you know, green next year.

17        THE HEARING OFFICER:  It's not appropriate for me

18   to give you advice, sir, and I thought the witness was

19   called simply to authenticate the exhibits.

20        MS. SCHMID:  As he is discussing more, I will have

21   a line of cross on this, please.

22        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Please proceed.

23        MR. ATWATER:  Are you done with the question?

24        THE WITNESS:  Yes, I'm done.

25        MR. ATWATER:
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 1        Q.  Okay.  The amounts on the sheet that we just

 2   discussed, Exhibit 1, are they included, to your

 3   knowledge, on the financial statements?  Or are these in

 4   fact the inner-company amounts that we spoke of earlier

 5   that do not show on the financials?

 6        A.  So if you're referring to the account ledger --

 7        Q.  No.  Sorry.  This allocation here.

 8        MS. SCHMID:  Is that the single sheet?

 9        MR. ATWATER:  That's the single sheet.

10        Q.  Are these the inner-company amounts that we

11   were discussing earlier with Mr. Smith?

12        A.  Yes.

13        Q.  Thank you.  We would move to submit this

14   Exhibit 1, "Subsidized Expenses Payable" into the record

15   for discussion.

16        MS. SCHMID:  I have a few questions pertaining to

17   its admissibility, if I may.

18        THE HEARING OFFICER:  You'd like to voir dire the

19   witness on the exhibit?

20        MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  Yes.

21        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Go ahead.

22        MS. SCHMID:

23        Q.  Could you please tell me where in the company's

24   testimony I can find the information that is present in

25   Exhibit 1 and the information that is -- the single
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 1   page, and where I can find the information that is

 2   present in Exhibit -- what I'll call 2, the --

 3        MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  This was discussed in Mr.

 4   Smith's testimony that it was not included because it

 5   was consolidated.

 6        MS. SCHMID:  That's all I wanted to know.

 7        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Do you want an answer from a

 8   witness of fact?

 9        MS. SCHMID:  I would like that, please.

10        THE WITNESS:  Your question again?

11        MS. SCHMID:

12        Q.  My question is, please direct me to the part of

13   the company's testimony which reflects the numbers in

14   Exhibit 1, the single sheet of numbers, passed out by

15   your counsel, and Exhibit 2, the multiple page sheet,

16   passed out by your counsel.

17        A.  So I don't believe that they were in the --

18        MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.

19        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Does any other counsel have

20   any questions with respect to the exhibits?

21        MR. SAVAGE:  Not with respect to the exhibits, but

22   I think what's pending is the admissibility and I have

23   no questions.

24        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you for rephrasing my

25   question.  Is there an objection then to the
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 1   admissibility of the exhibit?

 2        MS. SCHMID:  I do not object to the admissibility

 3   of the exhibit.

 4        MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.

 5        MR. LANGE:  No objection.

 6        MS. MILLER:  No objection.

 7        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Atwater, to be clear, are

 8   you moving for its admission?

 9        MR. ATWATER:  Yes.  We move to submit.

10        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Then this exhibit, hearing

11   Exhibit 1, Subsidized Expenses Payable, is admitted as

12   hearing Exhibit 1.

13        (Whereupon the document referred to is marked by

14   the reporter as EXHIBIT 1.)

15        MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.

16        Q.  Mr. White, looking at the document entitled Gl

17   Account Ledger With Detail, are you familiar with this

18   document?

19        A.  I am.

20        Q.  What is this?

21        A.  So this is what I asked our accounting partner,

22   controller, to give me just to give us a tracking as to

23   what the current cash status of Community Water is.

24        Q.  Does this accurately and fairly represent the

25   status?
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 1        A.  To the best of my knowledge, yes.

 2        MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.  Those are all my

 3   questions for the witness.

 4        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Did you move for the

 5   admission of the exhibit?

 6        MR. ATWATER:  I can.  Do you want to have him

 7   questioned first or move first?

 8        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Only if they have questions.

 9        MS. SCHMID:  I believe that he already testified

10   that the multi-page exhibit was not present in the

11   testimony previously filed.

12        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Not withstanding that point,

13   you don't object to the exhibit being admitted?

14        MS. SCHMID:  I do not object to the exhibit having

15   had my question answered.

16        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Is there any other objection?

17        MR. SAVAGE:  No.

18        MS. MILLER:  No objection.

19        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Then the exhibit handed out

20   by Mr. Atwater entitled at the top GL Account Ledger

21   With Detail is admitted as hearing Exhibit 2.

22        (Whereupon the document referred to is marked by

23   the reporter as EXHIBIT 2.)

24        MR. ATWATER:  I have no further questions of

25   Mr. White.
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 1        THE HEARING OFFICER:  You're excused, Mr. White.

 2        MS. SCHMID:  I have some questions for him.  His

 3   testimony right now went beyond the mere facts of the

 4   numbers on the admitted exhibits, so I have some

 5   questions for him.

 6        Q.  Mr. White, did you say that a regulated

 7   business cannot make decisions on its own?  Is that a

 8   fair paraphrase of your testimony?

 9        A.  What I said is that it's clear that we're not

10   able to make business decisions on our own.  That it's

11   subject to input -- in this entity -- publicly regulated

12   entity that we're not capable of making decisions on our

13   own.  We have to come for approvals to various state

14   agencies.

15        Q.  Is it correct, however, to say that the company

16   can make business decisions on its own, but the recovery

17   part is what is determined by the Public Service

18   Commission?

19        A.  I can't tell you that I understand the process

20   well enough to answer your question.  What I can tell

21   you is that what we've endeavored to do is hire the best

22   consultants we can find, Clyde Snow which is a water

23   counsel specialist, and Bowen Collins, and with the

24   advice of Summit Water who has been managing this system

25   for many, many years.

0232

 1        Q.  Is it true that the company has the

 2   responsibility to make sure that all pertinent

 3   information is in its application?

 4        MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  Asks for an opinion.

 5        MS. SCHMID:  I will reply that he makes decisions

 6   on behalf of the company and was involved, I believe, in

 7   the application process and is a witness in this

 8   proceeding.

 9        THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'll overrule the objection

10   with respect to the line of questioning.  I just noticed

11   the hour is getting late, and I hope -- we haven't even

12   allowed the intervenors an opportunity to present any

13   evidence yet.  So if we can expedite questioning that

14   might be extraneous to the issues that are directly at

15   hand in this proceeding, I think that would be in

16   everyone's best interest.  But I will overrule the

17   objection and allow Ms. Schmid to ask the question.

18        MS. SCHMID:  Could the reporter please read the

19   question back?

20        (The record is read by the reporter.)

21        THE WITNESS:  I would say certainly it is.  But as

22   you know, these applications are extremely complicated

23   by the volume that was submitted.  And so if something

24   was omitted, I apologize.  But to the best of our

25   ability we are trying to get through this process to
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 1   make this company work.

 2        MS. SCHMID:

 3        Q.  And it's the company's responsibility likewise

 4   to make sure that the information in the application is

 5   accurate; is that right?

 6        A.  I guess it would be.

 7        MS. SCHMID:  Those are all my questions.

 8        MR. SAVAGE:

 9        Q.  Mr. White, are you aware of a Utah statute that

10   requires every public utility shall furnish, provide,

11   and maintain such service, instrumentalities, equipment

12   and facilities, as will promote the health, safety,

13   comfort and convenience of its patrons, and will in all

14   respects be adequate, efficient, just and reasonable?

15   Anybody ever tell you about that Utah statute?

16        A.  No.

17        Q.  And you said "we've" been managing the system

18   for many years?

19        A.  No, I said Summit Water has been managing the

20   system for many years.

21        Q.  You said "we".  Who did you mean when you said

22   we?

23        A.  What I meant to say is that Summit Water --

24   when I said -- when I was listing the number of people

25   that we had engaged in conversation --
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 1        MS. SCHMID:  Sorry.  Could you please ask the

 2   witness to speak into the microphone?  I have some

 3   difficulty hearing.

 4        THE WITNESS:  What I said was that the company had

 5   engaged multiple experts, including Summit Water, that

 6   had been manging the company for several years.

 7        MR. SAVAGE:

 8        Q.  So you don't think CWC has been managing the

 9   company as a public utility with obligations under the

10   statutes of the state of Utah?

11        A.  I can't answer.  You're asking a legal opinion

12   and I can't answer your question.

13        Q.  Fair enough.  And you said "our" controllers

14   gave you this information on Exhibit 2.  Who did you

15   mean by "our"?

16        A.  TCFC -- it would be TCFC's control.  CWC has no

17   direct employees.  Community Water Company has no direct

18   employees.

19        Q.  You're in effect the chief executive officer of

20   both TCFC and CWC?

21        A.  No, I'm not.

22        Q.  What are you?

23        A.  I clearly stated this.

24        MR. ATWATER:  Asked and answered.

25        THE HEARING OFFICER:  That's sustained.  It's been
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 1   asked and answered.

 2        MR. SAVAGE:

 3        Q.  There are no employees of CWC?

 4        A.  No.

 5        Q.  You make the final decisions for CWC?

 6        MR. ATWATER:  Asked and answered.  Objection.

 7        THE HEARING OFFICER:  It's sustained.  This is a

 8   line of questioning that we've been spent quite a bit of

 9   time on already.

10        MR. SAVAGE:  I'm sorry, Your Honor, I'm just trying

11   to set up a question.  I'll move to the question.

12        Q.  Exhibit 2 you have it in front of you there,

13   the ledger?

14        A.  Yes.

15        Q.  GL, does that mean general ledger?

16        A.  I'm not an accountant.

17        Q.  And you don't know what that means, GL?

18        A.  No.

19        Q.  Okay.  Is this an account ledger for TCFC?

20        A.  No, it's not.

21        Q.  I look at the top where it says Account Ledger

22   With Detail.  Do you see that upper left?

23        A.  I see that.

24        Q.  Right under it it says, TCFC, Inc.

25        A.  That would be the company that produced the
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 1   ledger.

 2        Q.  Okay.  So this would -- in your -- as you sit

 3   here today, do you think this is part of the TCFC

 4   ledger?

 5        A.  I can't answer your question.

 6        Q.  But it is a breakout that the TCFC controller

 7   gave you of the cost of water and contract labor and

 8   other expenses for CWC?

 9        A.  For the first nine months of this year.

10        Q.  Okay.  And did you have any reason to doubt

11   that those are carried actually on the books of TCFC?

12        A.  I don't know how they're carried on the books.

13        Q.  So you don't even know if they're separate

14   books?

15        A.  There are separate books.  We have separate

16   books for Community Water Company.  So that's what I

17   asked for was the basic cash position of Community Water

18   Company for the first nine months of this year.

19        Q.  And this was printed out?

20        A.  That's right.

21        Q.  Going to Exhibit 1, I think I understand the

22   first one.  Is that Stacy Wilson's salary?

23        A.  Correct.

24        Q.  And how did you get to the percent --

25   33 percent?  Is that the time you think she devoted to
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 1   Community Water?

 2        A.  I've already given testimony to the fact that I

 3   think that underestimates the time she spent on

 4   Community Water.

 5        Q.  But that's time for Community Water, not the

 6   other way around?

 7        Never mind.  You think that -- let me back up.

 8   She's an employee of TCFC; correct?

 9        A.  Correct.

10        Q.  And she's paid a salary by TCFC?

11        A.  That's correct.

12        Q.  And on this sheet you're telling us that

13   somebody has estimated 33 percent of her time, which you

14   think is an underestimation, is devoted to Community

15   Water?

16        A.  That's correct.

17        Q.  Who determined the 33 percent that's on this

18   exhibit?

19        A.  It was an estimate.

20        Q.  By who?

21        A.  We don't punch a time clock.

22        Q.  Who made it?

23        A.  It was made by -- internally inside the

24   company.

25        Q.  Do you know?
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 1        A.  It was an estimate.

 2        Q.  Do you know who made it?

 3        A.  It was an estimate.  I don't know who made it.

 4        Q.  You've testified under oath that you think that

 5   estimate is low?

 6        A.  I sit in an office right next to Stacy.  I

 7   observed the amount of time that she spends on the phone

 8   and that she spends on billings, including with you and

 9   other customers, and so that's my estimation.  It is an

10   underestimate of the time that she spends on Community

11   Water.

12        Q.  You missed my point.  I understand that.  But

13   you haven't told me who came up with the estimate of 33

14   percent.

15        A.  I can't tell you that.

16        Q.  Okay.  You're authenticating this document and

17   you can't tell us that?

18        A.  I've said what I have to say.

19        Q.  Okay.  The next entry seems to be

20   administrative allocation, 50,000, consistent every

21   year.  Am I reading that correctly?

22        A.  You are.

23        Q.  And you think that's an underestimation also?

24        A.  This is, I believe, an allocation to accounting

25   time and other time spent by our other employees on
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 1   Community Water matters.

 2        Q.  Other TCFC employees?

 3        A.  Correct.

 4        Q.  Do you know who decided on $50,000 each year?

 5        A.  Again, it was an estimate by our accounting

 6   department.

 7        Q.  Somebody in the accounting department?

 8        A.  Yes.

 9        Q.  And you don't know who?

10        A.  Likely Rebecca Christiansen.

11        Q.  Okay.  I don't understand the burden.  What's

12   that entry mean?

13        A.  That would be the insurance and other

14   incidentals of employment.

15        Q.  Okay.  So am I reading this correctly then,

16   that the 50,000, you're assuming that all of those are

17   salaries and there would be this burden of employment

18   taxes and things like that on it?

19        A.  Correct.

20        Q.  The off-site legal.  I don't understand Omni

21   10 percent.  What does that mean?

22        A.  So this is of the amount that we pay to our

23   in-house counsel, Justin Atwater.  It's a percentage of

24   our time that's allocated to Community Water.  Again, a

25   gross underestimate of the time he spends at Community
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 1   Water.

 2        Q.  Where do you get the term, Omni?

 3        A.  That's the name of his company.

 4        MR. SAVAGE:  Okay.  That's all I have.  Thank you,

 5   sir.

 6        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Lange?

 7        MR. LANGE:  I have no questions.

 8        MS. MILLER:  And I have no questions either.  Thank

 9   you.

10        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Anything else from you,

11   Mr. Atwater?

12        MR. ATWATER:  No.

13        THE HEARING OFFICER:  You're excused.

14   Mr. Lange.

15        THE WITNESS:  Thank you very much for your time.  I

16   appreciate it.

17        THE HEARING OFFICER:  So returning to our regularly

18   scheduled hearing.

19        Ms. Schmid would you like to recall your witness?

20        MS. SCHMID:  Yes, I would please.  Mr. Smith could

21   you please take the witness stand again.

22        (Mr. Smith returns to the witness stand.)

23        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Smith, you're still under

24   oath.

25        THE WITNESS:  Okay.
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 1        THE HEARING OFFICER:  In terms of our examination,

 2   where were we?

 3        MR. ATWATER:  I believe I had completed.

 4        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Mr. Savage?

 5        MR. SAVAGE:  I have no questions.

 6        MR. LANGE:  I have no questions.

 7        MS. MILLER:  I have no questions either.  Thank

 8   you.

 9        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Schmid?

10        MS. SCHMID:  I have some redirect questions, but I

11   would like to reserve them, if I may, until after you

12   have asked yours.

13        THE HEARING OFFICER:  I don't have any.

14        MS. SCHMID:  Okay.

15        Q.  This will be very brief.  So Mr. Smith, do you

16   recall Mr. Atwater's line of questions about what the

17   Division did and did not do and about questions the

18   Division did not ask of the company?

19        A.  Yes.

20        Q.  Do you understand that the purpose of today's

21   hearing is to determine whether a regulated public

22   utility should receive the requested interim rate

23   increase?

24        A.  Yes.

25        Q.  Do you understand that the interim rate process

0242

 1   by its nature is on a truncated and expedited time

 2   schedule?

 3        A.  Yes.

 4        Q.  Do you understand that the process for the

 5   interim rate hearing is much less than the full 240 days

 6   awarded the time to determine final rates and for the

 7   commission to make its decision?

 8        A.  Yes.

 9        Q.  Do you understand that the words prima facie

10   mean -- translated from the Latin -- at first look?

11        A.  Yes.

12        Q.  Do you understand that the company has the

13   burden of proof to show that the rates requested

14   including the interim rate are appropriate?

15        A.  Yes.

16        Q.  Do you understand that it is not the

17   Divisions's duty to determine what information the

18   company submits with its application, but it is the

19   company's duty to prepare a full and complete

20   application?

21        A.  Yes.

22        Q.  So based on that, is it still your testimony

23   today that the company has failed to prove, using the

24   prima facie standard on its face, that its interim rate

25   request is reasonable and should be granted?
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 1        A.  I'm sorry.  Say that again.

 2        Q.  Okay.  I was going quite quickly.  Is it your

 3   testimony today that the company has failed to prove

 4   that the interim rate increase it requested has not been

 5   proven by the evidence the company has submitted?

 6        A.  Yes.

 7        MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  Those are all my redirect

 8   questions.

 9        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Smith.

10        MS. SCHMID:  Mr. Smith also has an obligation.

11   Could he please be excused for the remainder of the

12   hearing?  He can stay if necessary, but if he could be

13   excused it would be appreciated.

14        THE HEARING OFFICER:  I have no objection to his

15   departure.  Does anyone else?

16        MR. ATWATER:  No objection.

17        MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.

18        MR. LANGE:  No objection.

19        MS. MILLER:  No objection.

20        MS. SCHMID:  The Division has nothing further.

21   Thank you.

22        THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Mr. Savage.

23        MR. SAVAGE:  Thank you, Your Honor.

24        (E. Scott Savage is sworn in as a witness.)

25        THE WITNESS:  I have a couple of corrections in my
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 1   alternative proposal and direct testimony, and it seems

 2   like my calculator wasn't working very well, but on page

 3   five, paragraph 12, I talked about a fine imposed in the

 4   second paragraph of $600.  It's actually $1500.  And

 5   then starting on page 12 where I present my alternative

 6   proposal for retainment of a loan for the failed tank, I

 7   was using the $50 per month that was proposed in the

 8   meetings that I went to.  And it was for 18 months

 9   instead of 12.  And that generates $450,000.  And $50

10   per month for 12 months would not generate the money

11   that is estimated to be the cost of replacing the tank.

12   If you want it for 12 months, it would take $90 a month

13   for the 500 users for 12 months, or $60 a month for 18

14   months to generate enough money to pay the current price

15   for the tank.  I move for the admission into evidence of

16   my alternative proposal and sworn direct testimony at

17   this time.

18        MS. SCHMID:  No objection.

19        MR. ATWATER:  So the applicant previously objected

20   and the motion was discussed.  It renews its objections

21   set forth in that motion -- excuse me -- does not renew

22   the motion, renews the objection.

23        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Overruled.  Thank you.

24   They're admitted.

25        THE WITNESS:  The last thing I want to mention,
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 1   it's kind of been lost in the interesting journey we've

 2   had in finding out the fact that TCFC is in fact CWC.

 3   But one of the things I want to make sure, if this -- if

 4   the Public Service Commission were to impose an interim

 5   rate for the general capital improvements, the proposal

 6   for how the HOAs are to be billed and how that money is

 7   to be collected is patently unfair.

 8        As I read their proposal, they would send one bill,

 9   for example, to Plat B&D for all of the water usage of

10   all 30 homeowners, and all of the water usage for the

11   irrigation.  And then it would be up to Plat B&D, the

12   HOA, to separately bill the members, the homeowners in

13   its organization, and collect that money so that it

14   could then pay the monthly bill.  That's transferring,

15   of course, the accounting collection and administrative

16   costs from the utility to the customers, and would place

17   them at a disadvantage, vis a vis, the individual

18   homeowners, and it leaves open the question as to what

19   happens if one of my 30 homeowners doesn't pay their

20   water bill.  Does that mean all 30 get their water shut

21   off.

22        It should be -- it should be a collective allocated

23   and the tiers should all be done the way it is presently

24   being done for the operational expense rate increase,

25   which is the 30 individual homeowners are billed
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 1   separately for their own separate use by the utility.

 2   And then 1/30th of the irrigation water, which goes

 3   through two separate meters, not the individual

 4   homeowners' individual meters, but there is two separate

 5   meters for all of the sprinkling water for the whole

 6   area.

 7        The present rate requires that the homeowners

 8   association not be billed for that water, but 1/30th of

 9   the amount of that water isn't added to the bill of each

10   of the individual homeowners.  And for consistency, the

11   methodology should be the same for the operational rate

12   that we have in place and any rate for capital

13   improvements.

14        So with that additional clarification of what I've

15   stated, I would also like to state that I'm in complete

16   agreement with Mr. Duncan's testimony.  I recognize the

17   inter-generational inequity of not paying off a loan for

18   this tank over the life of the tank.  I think that is

19   the proper way to do it.

20        I have tried to assist Mr. White who left, and CWC

21   and TCFC, by supporting and offering an alternative plan

22   that is very similar to the one they were proposing to

23   the users or the customers of a $60 a month short-term

24   temporary rate increase for 18 months, or a $90 rate

25   increase for 12 months to repay the loan, to make it
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 1   easier for CWC to get money from an outside bank, a

 2   lending institution, or its parent, to be able to

 3   immediately get funds available to get this tank

 4   replaced.  That being said I open myself up to

 5   cross-examination if anybody has any.

 6        THE HEARING OFFICER:  We'll start with Mr.

 7   Atwater.

 8        MR. ATWATER:

 9        Q.  Thank you.  I think I just have one.

10        A.  Okay.

11        Q.  So you stated that you support Mr. Duncan's

12   testimony and --

13        A.  No, I said I agree with his overall general

14   statement that there is an inter-generational problem if

15   a capital improvement is not repaid over the life of the

16   capital improvement.  If we repay -- we pay for this

17   tank in 18 months, being the present users, that means

18   I'm giving a benefit to some future homeowner that they

19   won't have to pay for it.  And I recognize that.  And I

20   think he's correct in his typical methodology.

21        Q.  But you still stand by your alternate proposal

22   as revised in your testimony today?

23        A.  Yes.

24        MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.

25        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Anything else?
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 1        MR. ATWATER:  No.

 2        MS. SCHMID:  No questions.

 3        MR. LANGE:  No questions.

 4        MS. MILLER:  No questions.

 5        MR. SAVAGE:  Any questions, Your Honor?

 6        THE HEARING OFFICER:  No.  Thank you, Mr. Savage.

 7        THE WITNESS:  Okay.

 8        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Lange.

 9        (Terry Lange is sworn in as a witness.)

10        MR. LANGE:  So I have testimony filed and posted on

11   the docket, and I just want to basically go over that

12   and have that be admitted along with the testimony of

13   Fran Amendola on behalf of Red Pine.  He's not here now.

14   I want to have his testimony admitted also.  So I move

15   to have that done.

16        MR. ATWATER:  So I object -- sorry Terry.  So I

17   renew my objection with respect to the provisions of

18   Mr. Fran Amendola's testimony as discussed earlier.

19        MS. SCHMID:  And I will object to the admission of

20   Mr. Amendola's testimony since he is not present to be

21   cross-examined.

22        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yeah.  That's a reasonable

23   objection.  To the extent that Mr. Atwater is reserving

24   his objection with respect to Mr. Lange's filed

25   testimony, it's overruled.  But we can't admit
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 1   Mr. Amendola's testimony as sworn evidence here in this

 2   hearing today without him being here to attest to its

 3   voracity or being subject to cross-examination.

 4        THE WITNESS:  Understood.  Okay.  So in my

 5   testimony I talk about a couple of different things

 6   which Scott Savage has mentioned.  So Red Pine, we're

 7   concerned about the practice of taking -- at Red Pine,

 8   60 currently individually metered owners and putting out

 9   one single collect bill for that.  We don't think that's

10   right.  There is no way to really collect that money

11   from the HOA really legally from it's CC&Rs.  The HOA

12   has no legal authority to collect that money as such,

13   nor does it have the legal authority to collect property

14   taxes on behalf of Summit County, for instance.  So it's

15   very similar to that.

16        So we don't agree with this collective billing on

17   that.

18        As far as the tank and the separation of the tank

19   from the general rate increase, we're in favor of having

20   a shortened time frame.  We realize, of course, there

21   isn't an equity in that.  But we're going to accept that

22   because right now my house is on fire so-to-speak and,

23   you know, I want water to put the flames out.  So just

24   to kind of put that in very simple terms, so a shortened

25   time frame that the commission would see fit to
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 1   authorize, whether it be 12 months, 18 months maybe, but

 2   the point here is to collect money up front to get this

 3   tank put in and do so on a very fast basis.  We really

 4   can't afford to go through another irrigation season

 5   without irrigating.  It's affecting property values.

 6   It's affecting sales.  It's just affecting the mindset

 7   of the people who live there.  It's very difficult to

 8   deal with that.  And why prolong that for another season

 9   and bring it into the year 2019 if we could cure that

10   early in the year 2018.

11        So it's just a matter of taking the numbers for

12   that tank and dividing it by the customers, and not the

13   ERUs, and assessing that over an appropriate time frame.

14        Of course I recognize that, you know, the

15   Divisions's wanting to spread that cost out because it's

16   very equal to do that over the life of the product.  And

17   I fully understand that, but in this case I think the

18   commission should weigh in on the immediate needs, you

19   know, right now, here and now, and to come up with

20   something there that's going to make this tank happen

21   sooner than later.

22        I'm talking literally months that this thing -- if

23   it could be shortened up by 5, 6, 7, 8 months, it should

24   be done that way.  It's very, very important and I can't

25   stress that enough.  But that's my testimony.
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 1        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Atwater, any cross?

 2        MR. ATWATER:  One question I should have asked of

 3   Mr. Savage, but I think it will be helpful for you to

 4   provide.

 5        You mentioned in your testimony that you are the

 6   president of the Red Pine HOA; is that correct?

 7        A.  That's correct.

 8        Q.  And what percentage of the customer base does

 9   Red Pine HOA represent?

10        A.  So let me give you a little overall oversight

11   here of the entire campus as such.  So Red Pine consists

12   of 200 chalets, one bedroom and two bedrooms.  It

13   consists of 60 townhomes, which happen to be

14   individually metered, whereas the chalets are a shared

15   meter.  And there is also an independent nonprofit

16   organization called the Red Pine Clubhouse as such which

17   functions and serves the needs of all 260 owners.

18        So I am the president of the Red Pine Chalets.  I

19   have the authorization for the townhomes to represent

20   them.  They have their own HOA as such.  And so they

21   have their own, I guess, budgets.  Their own dues

22   collection based upon their needs.  And the clubhouse

23   has its own dues based upon its needs.  And collectively

24   together we contribute on a proportional basis to the

25   needs of the rec center and -- the recreation center and
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 1   what its needs are.  So hopefully that explains.

 2        Q.  So in the aggregate you described, that

 3   represents what percentage of the customer base?  Is it

 4   greater than 50?  So 260 of 500?

 5        A.  I see what you're saying.  So we have 260 --

 6   let me figure that out.

 7        MR. SAVAGE:  More than 50.

 8        THE WITNESS:  Right.  A little bit more.  503.

 9        MR. ATWATER:

10        Q.  503.

11        A.  It's 51.886.

12        Q.  And is your testimony that's provided today and

13   written that has been submitted, on behalf of that

14   51 percent?

15        A.  That's correct.

16        MR. ATWATER:  Okay.  Thank you.

17        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Schmid?

18        MS. SCHMID:  No questions.

19        MR. SAVAGE:  No questions.

20        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Miller?

21        MS. MILLER:  I do have one question.  I probably

22   should have asked the same question of Mr. Savage.

23        Q.  Would it be correct to state that when

24   customers receive their own monthly bill, that's a more

25   effective tool to promote conservation than to have just
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 1   a lump sum provided on their HOA bill?

 2        A.  I think as an individual owner sees his own

 3   bill and decides whether or not it's within his

 4   parameters to pay it, if he's happy with it or if he

 5   should do something to conserve water so he would pay

 6   less so-to-speak.  It's easier to do it on the

 7   individual basis than it is on a collective because when

 8   you have a collective as such, it's been my experience

 9   that you tend to ignore those little subtleties of what

10   can be done.  And you tend to lose the -- what shall I

11   say -- the ability to manage that.  So you start to lose

12   some interest in -- you just wind up accepting whatever

13   happens.  And so anyhow, it's kind of a roundabout

14   answer, but I believe that I have answered your

15   question.

16        Q.  Yeah, you did.  I would think that that would

17   be a good tool for the company to promote rather than

18   take it away is my point I guess.  You don't want to

19   combine everybody's bill?

20        A.  Well, if I may also suggest this.  I looked at

21   some numbers for the Red Pine Townhomes, and the usage

22   for 2016, and it ranges from zero up to an

23   astronomically large number.  And from looking at a

24   median standpoint or an arithmetic means standpoint,

25   you've got one half of the customer base supporting the
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 1   additional water used by the second half of the customer

 2   base.  And is that fair and equitable?  I don't really

 3   think so.

 4        If I was only using $10,000 gallons a year, and now

 5   I'm expected to subsidize someone who is using

 6   275 gallons a year.  Because it's -- according to a

 7   single bill, you're going to take the entire bill and

 8   divide it by 60 people -- and this is as far as demand

 9   goes.  Everybody right now has their own base rate.  But

10   as far as demand goes, if you're not using water why pay

11   for somebody else who is using their own water.  That's

12   my take.

13        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Lange.  One

14   question from me.  You mentioned your home being on

15   fire.  I interpret that as meaning that the landscaping

16   around your chalet -- is it -- that you live in?

17        THE WITNESS:  Well, yeah.  It's pretty desolate.

18   And more to point out, I have an immediate need right

19   here right now.  Walking barefoot on glass would also be

20   a good cause to have shoes, for instance.

21        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Just so I understand the

22   lifestyle impact that the customers are experiencing,

23   it's primarily with respect to their inability to

24   irrigate their landscaping?

25        THE WITNESS:  That's correct.  And we've had some
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 1   reports back from very dissatisfied people who were

 2   under contract to sell their units, and when a

 3   perspective buyer now learns that, hey, there is no

 4   water going on and it's all up in the air, and it's

 5   going to be unsettled for how long, and rates are going

 6   to go up, they pull out of the deal.  And that causes

 7   harm too.

 8        MR. SAVAGE:  May I also address that because there

 9   is another aspect.  There is a significant fire hazard.

10   We have 20 acres of weeds that the county has set aside

11   as permanent open space.  It's not mowed.  And those

12   weeds go right up to the edge of our property which used

13   to be green and verdant.  And now we have brown tinder

14   between the weeds and the field behind us and our

15   houses.  And we have dry trees.  So there is a distinct

16   fire hazard being posed as well as the aesthetics.

17        And the fact we're losing money.  We have had trees

18   killed because of this.  Fortunately none of our big

19   ones have died yet, but we have lost some trees as well

20   as the lawn being completely dry.

21        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Savage.  To

22   preserve the procedural integrity, I have nothing else

23   for Mr. Lange.

24        Does anyone else have anything for Mr. Lange?

25        MR. ATWATER:  No.
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 1        THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'll go ahead and let

 2   Mr. Savage's statement just now stand in his capacity as

 3   a witness today.  Anybody else have any questions?

 4        MS. SCHMID:  No questions.

 5        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Miller.

 6        (Leanne Miller is sworn in as a witness.)

 7        MR. ATWATER:  Your Honor, may I restate my

 8   objection from earlier testimony regarding the testimony

 9   of Ms. Leanne Miller?

10        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes.

11        THE WITNESS:  Okay.  So I do request that my

12   testimony be admitted into evidence and I do not have

13   any additional comments to add.

14        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any other objections?

15        MS. SCHMID:  I would just like to clarify that Ms.

16   Miller prepared the testimony and that she's swearing to

17   it as her testimony here today.

18        THE WITNESS:  Yes, I did prepare this testimony,

19   and as president of the Hidden Creek HOA, I'm submitting

20   it on their behalf.

21        MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  With that I have no

22   objection.

23        MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.

24        MR. LANGE:  No objections.

25        THE HEARING OFFICER:  It's admitted.  Thank you.
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 1   Sorry.  Ms. Miller, did you wish to make any prepared

 2   statement or make any remarks?

 3        THE WITNESS:  No, I do not.

 4        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Anyone have any cross-

 5   examination for Ms. Miller?

 6        MR. ATWATER:

 7        Q.  So I have the same question I had for Terry

 8   which is, you are the president of the Hidden Creek HOA?

 9        A.  That's correct.

10        Q.  And what percentage of the customer pool does

11   Hidden Creek represent on an approximate basis?

12        A.  We have 130 units so that's about 26 percent of

13   the 503 customers.

14        Q.  And your testimony today is on behalf of a

15   representative of that 26 percent?

16        A.  That's correct.

17        Q.  Thank you.

18        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Schmid?

19        MS. SCHMID:  No questions.

20        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Savage?

21        MR. SAVAGE:  No questions.

22        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Lange?

23        MR. LANGE:  No questions.

24        THE HEARING OFFICER:  And I don't have anything.

25   Thank you, Ms. Miller.
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 1        I believe that concludes the presentation of the

 2   evidence.  There has been some expressed interest in

 3   having some time for concluding argument.  Mr. Atwater,

 4   do you know about how many minutes you'll require for

 5   that?

 6        MR. ATWATER:  Seven.  Would that be okay?

 7        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Schmid?

 8        MS. SCHMID:  I will take less than seven.

 9        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Savage?

10        MR. SAVAGE:  Seven.

11        MR. LANGE:  No more than two.

12        MS. MILLER:  Less than two.

13        THE HEARING OFFICER:  That is at maximum no more

14   than 25 minutes, so we can handle it.

15        Would you all like a short recess before we

16   commence oral argument?

17        MS. SCHMID:  The Division does not require a short

18   recess.

19        MR. ATWATER:  Does the scheduling conference

20   contemplate public comments in this hearing?

21        THE HEARING OFFICER:  No.

22        MS. SCHMID:  Not for the interim rate hearing.

23        MR. ATWATER:  I don't think we need a recess then.

24   I just wanted to be sure of that.

25        MR. SAVAGE:  I do not need a recess.
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 1        MR. LANGE:  No recess.

 2        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Sounds like there is no

 3   interest in a recess.

 4        Mr. Atwater, please proceed.

 5        MR. ATWATER:  So we appreciate the time that

 6   everyone spent today and we appreciate the efforts of

 7   all truly in getting us this far, and acknowledge that

 8   it's a team effort.  There is no way that this works for

 9   anybody unless everybody comes together and helps solve

10   the problems at Community Water.

11        As was mentioned in Ms. Lewis's testimony, we are

12   here before the commission on an interim hearing basis

13   for an interim rate increase.  And I just want to

14   reiterate what the code 57 -- excuse me -- 547124A3

15   states, evidence presented at the hearing held pursuant

16   to this subsection need not encompass all the issues

17   that may be considered in a rate case hearing held

18   pursuant to subsection 2-D, but shall establish an

19   adequate prima facie showing that the interim rate

20   increase is justified.  We feel like the company has

21   done that.

22        The commission has the balancing act quite frankly

23   here, and it's exacerbated by the fact that this public

24   utility is very small and insignificant.  This

25   proceeding would have been much easier if our name was
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 1   Rocky Mountain Power, but it's not.  So the balancing

 2   act between the concept of providing adequate water on a

 3   timely basis to the public versus protecting the

 4   pecuniary interest and financial interest of the company

 5   is critical.  And the Supreme Court of the United

 6   States, the 14th amendment, the 15th amendment makes it

 7   very clear that it would be a taking otherwise if that

 8   balancing act was not performed.

 9        We feel a little bit that -- not this proceeding

10   necessarily, but that the scale appears to tilt largely

11   in favor of the public concern, which is clearly an

12   important concern, but so is the financial interest of

13   the company as its constitutional right to own its

14   private property and that the government cannot take

15   that private property without substantial -- excuse

16   me -- without just compensation.

17        In addition, we are talking about -- there has been

18   a lot of talk today, I tried to avoid it with my motion

19   to strike, but was unsuccessful.  And I renewed that,

20   and I respect the opinion of the commission for allowing

21   it.  But there was a lot of talk that was allowed today

22   about the circumstances and the histories of why we're

23   here.  And I think it's important.  I'm glad that we

24   were able to talk about it.  Everybody was able to see

25   why we're here.  But never once has the company ever
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 1   allowed any of its customers to go without culinary

 2   water.  It has a backup plan.  It's expensive but its

 3   customers will not go without culinary water.

 4        Have they gone without irrigation water for some

 5   time?  Yes.  But the company has never let its customers

 6   go without the ability to drink, flush toilets and do

 7   other things which are really important.  And we

 8   understand that duty and responsibility.

 9        It's been detailed in the multiple testimonies

10   today about all the things the company has done.  The

11   company has not sat on its hands with its management.

12   They have done significant lifting, expending

13   significant dollars, especially for a company of this

14   size.  To me it's remarkable, frankly, the effort that

15   this management team has put forth in order to provide

16   for the customers, and remarkable the effort the

17   customers have put in to make this work.  It's no small

18   feat.  I just wanted to acknowledge that.

19        I do want to specifically in the last minute, I

20   think that I have, address the tank, and reiterate what

21   our position is.  I think it's clear that the one-time

22   assessment is not favored.  And I hope the commission

23   understands why we requested that in order to fund the

24   tank immediately and give the customers the irrigation

25   water that they've been requesting to save their lawns
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 1   and their trees.

 2        We cannot, however, under any circumstances,

 3   endorse them as the Division of Public Utilities has

 4   suggested.  It is just far too long.  We risk the chance

 5   of losing another season of irrigation.  And we would

 6   rather support the position supported by the intervenors

 7   provided today.

 8        And then regarding the general request, we feel

 9   like there has been sufficient evidence to understand

10   the interim rate provided.  And that that evidence is

11   included not only in today's testimony, but more

12   importantly in the application.  If the application is

13   read very carefully, it's sophisticated, but it comes

14   from a very reputable engineering firm that we've spent

15   thousands of dollars on -- the company has spent

16   thousands of dollars on.  It's no mistake.  It's no

17   accident.  It wasn't thrown together over night.  And it

18   does provide ample evidence to allow for an interim rate

19   increase, and the information required to make a

20   determination is fully available.  Thank you, Your

21   Honor.

22        THE HEARING OFFICER:  One follow-up question,

23   Mr. Atwater.

24        In your view is the record clear that if the

25   commission were inclined to adopt Mr. Savage, Mr. Lange
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 1   or Ms. Miller's proposal, and allow a special charge to

 2   bond or finance the replacement tank to be amortized

 3   over 12 or 18 months, can you tell me or represent to me

 4   that you're sure the company could obtain financing on

 5   those terms?

 6        MR. ATWATER:  So what I can represent is as

 7   Mr. Savage amended his testimony here today, that to the

 8   extent the commission accepts the dollar amount

 9   requested, so the $525,000 for the tank -- and that it

10   be repaid over a short enough period of time -- and I

11   think I understood Mr. White to indicate that a 12-month

12   period -- that would be fine.  The question we still

13   have is the rate of return.  Whether it's the

14   3.39 percent under the Division of Drinking Water loan

15   or whether it's something greater.

16        And that would have to be one thing that would need

17   to be clarified or taken back to a potential funding

18   source to determine the rate.

19        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Thank you,

20   Mr. Atwater.

21        Ms. Schmid?

22        MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  As a regulated public

23   utility, Community Water Company has certain rights and

24   certain obligations.  Its rights are that it is subject

25   to Public Service Commission jurisdiction currently that
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 1   provides oversight and a means of recovering reasonable

 2   and proven expenses -- an opportunity to recover those

 3   reasonable and proven expenses.  Its responsibilities as

 4   a regulated public utility are that Community Water must

 5   provide -- and I quote now from 54-3-1 -- "service that

 6   will be in all respects adequate, efficient, just and

 7   reasonable."

 8        Community Water comes before you today seeking a

 9   one-time special assessment and an interim rate increase

10   to its general rates.  Community Water has not shown

11   that its evidence supports a finding to -- a finding

12   that interim rates, either to the general rate increase

13   or for the special assessment, are justified.

14        The standard is low.  It's a prima facie standard.

15   But even that standard hasn't been met by the company.

16   The Division has gone through a great deal of effort in

17   trying to understand the company's application.  Just as

18   much as if it were the application of a larger company.

19        And on that note I will note that Community Water

20   is one of the larger water companies.  Frequently water

21   companies have only 35, 40 or even fewer connections.

22   So Community Water is sophisticated by comparison.

23        Community Water nonetheless has failed to prove its

24   case that the interim rate and the special assessment

25   are justified.  The Division is concerned with the
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 1   inter-generational inequities that would result from the

 2   special assessment.  The Division is concerned that the

 3   company seems to be abdicating its responsibility to run

 4   its company, and instead is shifting that responsibility

 5   to the Division.

 6        The company has stated that the Division has

 7   thwarted the efforts of the company to provide

 8   reasonable service.  That is not so.  The company

 9   determines and has set its own course, and any failure

10   of the company to prove on a prima facie standard that

11   the interim rates are not justified and the special

12   assessment is not justified rests with the company, not

13   with the Division.  Thank you.

14        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Ms. Schmid.

15   Does the Division have any recommendation of any remedy

16   the PSC has jurisdiction to provide or any action it

17   might take to alleviate the problems being experienced

18   by the customers, aside from denying the instant

19   request?

20        MS. SCHMID:  Yes.  The Commission has the ability

21   to approve settlements which are put before it by one or

22   more -- by two or more parties.  For example, one remedy

23   the commission could have is that if the parties

24   submitted a settlement seeking approval of the

25   interim -- sorry -- of the special assessment on the 12
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 1   to 18-month basis, the Division perhaps likely would not

 2   object to that as it would be a settlement.  And

 3   settlements can be approved by the Commission.

 4        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Ms. Schmid.

 5        MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.

 6        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Savage.

 7        MR. SAVAGE:  Yes.  We're going to accordingly

 8   address all of the other issues, but the critical issue

 9   to me is making sure we immediately get funding from the

10   parent company, quote, unquote, for this tank.  And I

11   think as -- some people may have wondered why I was

12   asking a lot of the questions I did, but I think we've

13   established unequivocally that A, Community Water has

14   the duty that Ms. Schmid just pointed out, and that they

15   have been derelict in that duty, and derelict in that

16   duty since they were required by TCFC.

17        Mr. Larry White says he thinks it's the customers

18   fault that the infrastructure of CWC is in a bad state

19   of repair.  It isn't.  It's the CWC's duty to be able to

20   provide adequate water.

21        As Ms. Schmid just pointed out, section 54-31 also

22   says that they shall furnish such service,

23   instrumentalities, equipment and facilities, as will

24   promote the safety, comfort and even convenience of its

25   patrons.  And instead they've gone years, after

0267

 1   representing in 2014 or 2015 that the system was in dire

 2   straits, and even years ago saying this tank was of

 3   concern.  And waiting after the tank failed for several

 4   months to even apply to the Commission for anything to

 5   do about it.

 6        And we now know that was all done by its parent.

 7   I'm not sure there is a CWC.  I'm not sure there is a

 8   Community Water.  It has no employees.  Its decisions

 9   are ultimately made by Mr. White who doesn't even list

10   himself as having any position with the utility,

11   Community Water.  He lists himself as the chief

12   executive officer of the parent corporation.  It is the

13   parent company that is funding the shortfalls of

14   Community Water.  It is the parent company that has the

15   accounting on its accounting system.  Not CWC's.  We

16   look at the general ledger for TCFC and it has the

17   ledger entries for Community Water.

18        They have -- he testified as to, I think I

19   mentioned, any shortfalls that TCFC covers it.  This

20   whole problem -- and there is also statutes to say it's

21   a crime for an individual to aid and abet a utility if

22   they're not complying with its duty that Ms. Schmid just

23   read.

24        Certainly TCFC if not the alter ego in this

25   circumstance, has aided and abetted and even directed

0268

 1   the operation of this public utility that has put us in

 2   this situation.  And I'm happy to not go down that road

 3   if TCFC and Mr. Atwater are willing to agree that the

 4   parent will put up the money that's needed short term if

 5   the users agree to have a short-term repayment, even

 6   with the long-term inequities of doing that.  That's a

 7   fine compromise with me.

 8        But if not, the Public Service Commission has the

 9   authority to order TCFC to do this.  Fund this money,

10   get this dam tank operational, get it in place, and

11   let's get going on it.  As to the general -- we have no

12   idea about the ERUs.  We have no idea how much money

13   they're actually going to need from the 3.6 million

14   dollar fund.  We don't know how much the burden is going

15   to be for these capital improvements.  We don't know

16   whether or not they're all needed now, or if some of

17   them can be deferred.  They seem to say, well, we can

18   get the money, 3.6 million, let's use it all up.  But

19   then they say, no, we're not going to use it all up.

20   But then it sounds like they're going to make sure the

21   entire system is a spanking clean essentially brand-new

22   system.

23        These are all the kinds of things that the

24   supervision of the Division are essential to look into

25   and make sure that the customers are not being
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 1   overcharged by the structure of any loan or any capital

 2   improvement, any repayment.  It hasn't been addressed in

 3   any way shape or form adequate for interim

 4   consideration.  And more importantly, as I stated in my

 5   testimony, there is no need to do it because the loan

 6   doesn't require a dollar to be repaid until January of

 7   2019.

 8        So I think it's just a no-brainer that there is no

 9   adequate showing for proceeding with an interim rate

10   increase to cover the general capital expenditures.  I

11   mentioned in my testimony -- and I'd just allude to it

12   again -- that if we were to look at that, we've got to

13   look at how the HOAs are being -- proposed to be

14   treated, vis-a-vis individual homeowners, and make sure

15   those are fair and equitable treatments.  With that, I

16   appreciate the examiners time and will rest my case.

17        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Savage.

18        Mr. Lange.

19        MR. LANGE:  Yes.

20        Q.  Just as far as a general rate increase goes --

21   and I said this in my testimony -- going from a

22   connected customer right now -- 503 customers -- to an

23   ERU system of 400 and some, is kind of like changing

24   horses midstream, so to speak.  I think that stands in

25   the way of actually even approving an interim rate case
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 1   as far as a general rate case goes.  And I think it's

 2   very difficult.  All those things have to be figured out

 3   before you could even impose an interim rate.  But as

 4   far as the tank goes, that is definitely number one on

 5   my list.  It's number one on Red Pine's list.  And I

 6   believe it's number one on the other HOAs too.

 7        And customer base as a whole, that needs to be

 8   addressed.  I think that the settlement thing -- a

 9   settlement has to be done prior to an approval and we

10   should work out some kind of a settlement.  But this

11   thing needs to be funded and to go forward forthwith, as

12   quickly as possible.

13        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Miller.

14        MS. MILLER:  Okay.  So Hidden Creek understands and

15   supports a need for immediate replacement of the storage

16   tank, and I personally support the construction in the

17   Bowen & Collins' study.  We don't expect a free ride,

18   but we do need to reach a reasonable monthly payment

19   plan.  And I would support entering into a settlement

20   agreement if we could get a monthly rate over 12 to 18

21   months that is reasonable.

22        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.

23        Mr. Atwater, as the applicant I'll offer you the

24   last word if you want to exercise it.

25        MR. ATWATER:  I think I will.  Just one minute if I
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 1   may.

 2        Again I want to thank everybody for participating

 3   in the process, but I am troubled by the fact that there

 4   is a lot of discussion about the company ignoring duties

 5   and that it's the only duty and the only issue that the

 6   Commission is balancing.

 7        I believe the record is very clear that the company

 8   has gone well above and beyond its duty, and that

 9   everyone needs to remember that the pecuniary and

10   financial interests of the company are paramount.  If

11   the company cannot pay its bills independent of its

12   affiliates, it cannot be forced to do so by the

13   Commission.  That's a constitutional right.  And I just

14   want that to be very clear for everybody, that there is

15   a balancing act.  It's not one-sided.  And that is --

16   it's extremely important.  None of us can be forced to

17   give up our own property rights.  That's the liberty of

18   living in this country, and it's certainly applicable in

19   this case.  Thanks.

20        THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Atwater.  If

21   there is nothing from anyone else, we are adjourned.

22        MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.

23        MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.

24        MR. SAVAGE:  Thank you.

25        MR. LANGE:  Thank you.
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 1   (The proceedings concluded at 4:46 p.m.)
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		148						LN		6		15		false		           15      were two testimonies that were filed in connection with				false

		149						LN		6		16		false		           16      the direct testimony.  One was from me and one was from				false

		150						LN		6		17		false		           17      Mr. Kevin Larson with the engineering firm of Bowen				false

		151						LN		6		18		false		           18      Collins.  Mr. Larson is unable to make it today.  He had				false

		152						LN		6		19		false		           19      a preplanned vacation with his family.  So in his place				false

		153						LN		6		20		false		           20      Tina Campbell is here with us.  She is a partner of that				false

		154						LN		6		21		false		           21      engineering firm and worked very closely with Kevin.				false

		155						LN		6		22		false		           22      She may not have all of the answers that Kevin could				false

		156						LN		6		23		false		           23      provide, but she's very well versed in the materials				false

		157						LN		6		24		false		           24      that were prepared by Mr. Larson.  So she's here on his				false

		158						LN		6		25		false		           25      behalf.				false

		159						PG		7		0		false		page 7				false

		160						LN		7		1		false		            1           Regarding my testimony, inasmuch as there is a				false

		161						LN		7		2		false		            2      potential issue with an attorney representing an				false

		162						LN		7		3		false		            3      applicant in an administrative hearing and also being a				false

		163						LN		7		4		false		            4      witness, we've decided to ask Mr. White to replace me as				false

		164						LN		7		5		false		            5      the individual providing that direct testimony.				false

		165						LN		7		6		false		            6           And so we would submit to the commission this				false

		166						LN		7		7		false		            7      morning that the testimony that was submitted by me,				false

		167						LN		7		8		false		            8      Justin Atwater, on behalf of the company, be adopted as				false

		168						LN		7		9		false		            9      the testimony of Mr. Larry White, chief executive				false

		169						LN		7		10		false		           10      officer of TCFC Finance Co., the ultimate parent of the				false

		170						LN		7		11		false		           11      applicant				false

		171						LN		7		12		false		           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Do you intend to call				false

		172						LN		7		13		false		           13      Ms. Campbell and Mr. White today and ask them to attest				false

		173						LN		7		14		false		           14      to the voracity of the documents you're asking them to				false

		174						LN		7		15		false		           15      adopt?				false

		175						LN		7		16		false		           16           MR. ATWATER:  We will do so.  We intend to submit				false

		176						LN		7		17		false		           17      those as testimony so we will do so.  We don't				false

		177						LN		7		18		false		           18      anticipate asking Ms. Campbell to restate what's in the				false

		178						LN		7		19		false		           19      testimony, but for her to testify to the voracity, yes.				false

		179						LN		7		20		false		           20           THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Any objection?				false

		180						LN		7		21		false		           21           MS. SCHMID:  No objection to the substitution.  I'd				false

		181						LN		7		22		false		           22      just like to note that whether or not the testimony				false

		182						LN		7		23		false		           23      should be admitted will of course be determined when the				false

		183						LN		7		24		false		           24      testimony is moved into evidence.				false

		184						LN		7		25		false		           25           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Of course I view this as more				false

		185						PG		8		0		false		page 8				false

		186						LN		8		1		false		            1      of a disclosure issue, but I don't think it's a				false

		187						LN		8		2		false		            2      substantive one.				false

		188						LN		8		3		false		            3           MS. SCHMID:  I view it as a disclosure issue as				false

		189						LN		8		4		false		            4      well.				false

		190						LN		8		5		false		            5           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.				false

		191						LN		8		6		false		            6           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Anything else, Mr. Atwater?				false

		192						LN		8		7		false		            7           MR. ATWATER:  No.				false

		193						LN		8		8		false		            8           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Did any intervenors have a				false

		194						LN		8		9		false		            9      problem with Mr. Atwater's proposal?				false

		195						LN		8		10		false		           10           MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.				false

		196						LN		8		11		false		           11           MR. LANGE:  No objection.				false

		197						LN		8		12		false		           12           MS. MILLER:  No objection.				false

		198						LN		8		13		false		           13           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Then we'll move				false

		199						LN		8		14		false		           14      to the motion to strike.  Mr. Atwater, do you have				false

		200						LN		8		15		false		           15      anything to say on behalf of your motion?				false

		201						LN		8		16		false		           16           MR. ATWATER:  Did everyone have a chance to look at				false

		202						LN		8		17		false		           17      the memo that was filed earlier this morning?				false

		203						LN		8		18		false		           18           MR. SAVAGE:  Five minutes ago.				false

		204						LN		8		19		false		           19           MR. ATWATER:  And I apologize for that.				false

		205						LN		8		20		false		           20           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Not to mislead you into				false

		206						LN		8		21		false		           21      launching into an argument on the merits of a motion, I				false

		207						LN		8		22		false		           22      really just want to get the parties' position on whether				false

		208						LN		8		23		false		           23      we should take it up at this point, or whether it would				false

		209						LN		8		24		false		           24      be better to address later.				false

		210						LN		8		25		false		           25           MR. ATWATER:  Yeah.  So my thoughts on this -- I				false
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		212						LN		9		1		false		            1      really struggle frankly with the idea whether or not it				false

		213						LN		9		2		false		            2      should be a motion to strike or simply an objection to				false

		214						LN		9		3		false		            3      the testimony.  And our intention in filing the motion				false

		215						LN		9		4		false		            4      was to merely make it clear why we are here, and the				false

		216						LN		9		5		false		            5      purpose for the proceeding, and to focus the efforts of				false

		217						LN		9		6		false		            6      what we're here to speak on and to not include				false

		218						LN		9		7		false		            7      extraneous information that may not be relevant to that.				false

		219						LN		9		8		false		            8           And so for me I don't know that it's important				false

		220						LN		9		9		false		            9      necessarily that we discuss whether they be stricken				false

		221						LN		9		10		false		           10      today, but I do want it to be focused in a way that				false

		222						LN		9		11		false		           11      allows us to accomplish the purpose we're here.				false

		223						LN		9		12		false		           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Schmid?				false

		224						LN		9		13		false		           13           MS. SCHMID:  As there is a pending motion, I				false

		225						LN		9		14		false		           14      believe it should be addressed today.  I appreciate the				false

		226						LN		9		15		false		           15      fact that counsel for the company has given us notice --				false

		227						LN		9		16		false		           16      albeit brief -- of its intentions.  I think that				false

		228						LN		9		17		false		           17      resolving the issue today, with argument and with a				false

		229						LN		9		18		false		           18      commission decision, will allow the hearing to proceed				false

		230						LN		9		19		false		           19      in a more orderly manner.  The Division is ready to				false

		231						LN		9		20		false		           20      address the motion today.				false

		232						LN		9		21		false		           21           MR. SAVAGE:  I have no objection either way.  This				false

		233						LN		9		22		false		           22      is Scott Savage.  One of the focuses of the motion to				false

		234						LN		9		23		false		           23      strike or the submission that I made to the commission,				false

		235						LN		9		24		false		           24      I notice that they move to strike all of the exhibits to				false

		236						LN		9		25		false		           25      my alternative proposal, which includes their				false
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		238						LN		10		1		false		            1      application.  That was one of my exhibits they moved to				false

		239						LN		10		2		false		            2      strike.  And they moved to strike the June 15 update to				false

		240						LN		10		3		false		            3      the commission which is referenced in their application.				false

		241						LN		10		4		false		            4      But I -- so I think they have used a shotgun instead of				false

		242						LN		10		5		false		            5      a rifle in focusing on these things, and I would like to				false

		243						LN		10		6		false		            6      have more time to carefully examine their motion and				false

		244						LN		10		7		false		            7      compare my testimony to the application.  But if it is				false

		245						LN		10		8		false		            8      the commission's desire to go forward, I can go forward				false

		246						LN		10		9		false		            9      right now.				false

		247						LN		10		10		false		           10           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Savage.				false

		248						LN		10		11		false		           11           MR. LANGE:  Terry Lange.  I have no objection in				false

		249						LN		10		12		false		           12      moving forward with it at this time.				false

		250						LN		10		13		false		           13           MS. MILLER:  I have no objection moving forward				false

		251						LN		10		14		false		           14      with it at this time.				false

		252						LN		10		15		false		           15           THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Mr. Atwater, it				false

		253						LN		10		16		false		           16      sounds like the parties want to address the motion now,				false

		254						LN		10		17		false		           17      and I'm fine with that.  So I'll give you a few minutes				false

		255						LN		10		18		false		           18      if you'd like to argue on behalf of the motion's merits.				false

		256						LN		10		19		false		           19           MR. ATWATER:  Great.  Thank you.  So as stated in				false

		257						LN		10		20		false		           20      the written motion, rule 12-F of Utah rules of civil				false

		258						LN		10		21		false		           21      procedure and Utah code annotated 63G4206, allows				false

		259						LN		10		22		false		           22      commission to exclude evidence that is irrelevant,				false

		260						LN		10		23		false		           23      immaterial or unduly repetitious.  The basis for				false

		261						LN		10		24		false		           24      striking or seeking a request to strike the paragraph				false

		262						LN		10		25		false		           25      suggested in the motion, incorporate all three of those				false
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		264						LN		11		1		false		            1      elements.  Not only are they immaterial, and don't				false

		265						LN		11		2		false		            2      advance the interest of the public service commission,				false

		266						LN		11		3		false		            3      but also repetitive.  And I think what Mr. Savage				false

		267						LN		11		4		false		            4      mentioned just a moment ago is illustrative of that				false

		268						LN		11		5		false		            5      point.  We weren't striking them because we didn't think				false

		269						LN		11		6		false		            6      they were relevant.  However, they're repetitious,				false

		270						LN		11		7		false		            7      already provided by the company and not necessary to be				false

		271						LN		11		8		false		            8      duplicative of what's already before the commission.				false

		272						LN		11		9		false		            9           We feel it's very important regarding the idea of				false

		273						LN		11		10		false		           10      irrelevance and unimportance to restate the purpose for				false

		274						LN		11		11		false		           11      why we're here, and to make it very clear that the				false

		275						LN		11		12		false		           12      efforts of the company have been genuine, have been very				false

		276						LN		11		13		false		           13      sincere.  And we're here to determine whether or not				false

		277						LN		11		14		false		           14      there is a reasonable rate available to the company to				false

		278						LN		11		15		false		           15      balance the competing interests of both the public, in				false

		279						LN		11		16		false		           16      receiving adequate supply of water, but also the				false

		280						LN		11		17		false		           17      pecuniary interest of the company, the financial				false

		281						LN		11		18		false		           18      interest of the company and its ability to operate.				false

		282						LN		11		19		false		           19      That's why we're here today.  We felt very obviously and				false

		283						LN		11		20		false		           20      clearly that the provisions that are asking to be				false

		284						LN		11		21		false		           21      stricken from the record do nothing to advance that				false

		285						LN		11		22		false		           22      purpose.  And that's why we've asked that they be				false

		286						LN		11		23		false		           23      stricken so that we can focus the efforts.  So that the				false

		287						LN		11		24		false		           24      testimony of the intervenors does not meander.  I think				false

		288						LN		11		25		false		           25      I used the word hijack the proceeding for ulterior				false
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		290						LN		12		1		false		            1      motives and ulterior purposes.  Rather we'd just like to				false

		291						LN		12		2		false		            2      be very focused and clear on what we're trying to				false

		292						LN		12		3		false		            3      accomplish.  And that's the gist of the motion.				false

		293						LN		12		4		false		            4      Otherwise we rest on the statement				false

		294						LN		12		5		false		            5           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Atwater. Ms.				false

		295						LN		12		6		false		            6      Schmid?				false

		296						LN		12		7		false		            7           MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  The Division objects to				false

		297						LN		12		8		false		            8      the motion to strike and believes that the motion should				false

		298						LN		12		9		false		            9      be denied.  By statute, the commission is charged with				false

		299						LN		12		10		false		           10      setting just, reasonable end rates that are in the				false

		300						LN		12		11		false		           11      public interest.  As part of that, the regulated utility				false

		301						LN		12		12		false		           12      must come before the commission and present evidence.				false

		302						LN		12		13		false		           13      An integral part of the process is the fact that parties				false

		303						LN		12		14		false		           14      are permitted to intervene and present their own				false

		304						LN		12		15		false		           15      evidence.				false

		305						LN		12		16		false		           16           Part of the determination that the commission makes				false

		306						LN		12		17		false		           17      when picking rates, is making sure that the rates are				false

		307						LN		12		18		false		           18      just, reasonable and in the public interest, as I said				false

		308						LN		12		19		false		           19      before.  As such, the regulated company's actions are				false

		309						LN		12		20		false		           20      appropriate for scrutiny.  The scrutiny that a regulated				false

		310						LN		12		21		false		           21      company's actions receive is based upon a prudent				false

		311						LN		12		22		false		           22      standard.  Not quoting directly, but a prudent standard				false

		312						LN		12		23		false		           23      is the standard action that a reasonable utility would				false

		313						LN		12		24		false		           24      do in the same circumstance, knowing the same facts, at				false

		314						LN		12		25		false		           25      the same time as the subject public utility.  As such,				false
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		316						LN		13		1		false		            1      the statements sought to be stricken and the associated				false

		317						LN		13		2		false		            2      exhibits are relevant and are necessary to the				false

		318						LN		13		3		false		            3      commission's full and fair process.  The commission --				false

		319						LN		13		4		false		            4      the Division is not asserting that the commission should				false

		320						LN		13		5		false		            5      step into the management shoes of the company, but				false

		321						LN		13		6		false		            6      should instead examine the prudence of the company's				false

		322						LN		13		7		false		            7      decision.				false

		323						LN		13		8		false		            8           In addition, the Division objects to the				false

		324						LN		13		9		false		            9      characterization of the provisions sought to be stricken				false

		325						LN		13		10		false		           10      as being for ulterior motives and ulterior purposes.				false

		326						LN		13		11		false		           11      The Division believes that is inappropriate and has not				false

		327						LN		13		12		false		           12      been proven.  The standard for admitting evidence in an				false

		328						LN		13		13		false		           13      administrative proceeding is generally less strict than				false

		329						LN		13		14		false		           14      in traditional courts.  The standard has been, I				false

		330						LN		13		15		false		           15      believe, relevant information or information that leads				false

		331						LN		13		16		false		           16      to relevant information that is admissible.				false

		332						LN		13		17		false		           17           I think that the subject paragraphs fulfill that				false

		333						LN		13		18		false		           18      duty.  I also believe that they are not immaterial,				false

		334						LN		13		19		false		           19      impertinent, repetitive or scandalous.  I believe that				false

		335						LN		13		20		false		           20      they serve a purpose.  I believe that they help set the				false

		336						LN		13		21		false		           21      stage for the company's actions.  I think that the				false

		337						LN		13		22		false		           22      company's past actions are integral to the				false

		338						LN		13		23		false		           23      determination, particularly as they pertain to its				false

		339						LN		13		24		false		           24      request for interim rates and the special assessment.				false

		340						LN		13		25		false		           25      With that the Division urges the commission to reject				false

		341						PG		14		0		false		page 14				false

		342						LN		14		1		false		            1      the motion.				false

		343						LN		14		2		false		            2           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Ms. Schmid.				false

		344						LN		14		3		false		            3      Mr. Savage?				false

		345						LN		14		4		false		            4           MR. SAVAGE:  Thank you, Your Honor.  I'll address				false

		346						LN		14		5		false		            5      just my alternative proposal and direct testimony and				false

		347						LN		14		6		false		            6      the motion to strike as it pertains to it.  This				false

		348						LN		14		7		false		            7      evidence is not irrelevant.  It is not immaterial.  It				false

		349						LN		14		8		false		            8      is not repetitious.  It's not scandalous.  It is				false

		350						LN		14		9		false		            9      directly relevant to the interim rate that we're here to				false

		351						LN		14		10		false		           10      discuss today.				false

		352						LN		14		11		false		           11           For example, we are here today to determine whether				false

		353						LN		14		12		false		           12      or not the commission should award an immediate -- an				false

		354						LN		14		13		false		           13      immediate interim rate increase of $1,103 for each of				false

		355						LN		14		14		false		           14      the 502 water users to pay for this tank.  In the				false

		356						LN		14		15		false		           15      application, the applicant has stated, paragraph 18,				false

		357						LN		14		16		false		           16      without this assessment to cover the debt service and				false

		358						LN		14		17		false		           17      repayment, the company has been unable to demonstrate to				false

		359						LN		14		18		false		           18      potential lenders a clear path of repayment.  In				false

		360						LN		14		19		false		           19      paragraph 20 of their application, company explored				false

		361						LN		14		20		false		           20      multiple financing options for the tank, but none that				false

		362						LN		14		21		false		           21      would be available and satisfy to sufficiently meet the				false

		363						LN		14		22		false		           22      needed time frame for the construction.  That's what				false

		364						LN		14		23		false		           23      they have pled, and that frames the issues for why we're				false

		365						LN		14		24		false		           24      here and why they're asking for an immediate $1,100				false

		366						LN		14		25		false		           25      assessment.				false
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		368						LN		15		1		false		            1           In my testimony which they moved to strike, I point				false

		369						LN		15		2		false		            2      out several occasions, even written letters signed by				false

		370						LN		15		3		false		            3      Mr. Larry White on behalf of the ultimate parent, TCFC,				false

		371						LN		15		4		false		            4      where they have stated that they have secured financing				false

		372						LN		15		5		false		            5      for the tank from the parent that's Mr. White's company.				false

		373						LN		15		6		false		            6      That directly conflicts with their representation to the				false

		374						LN		15		7		false		            7      commission that no financing is available, the only way				false

		375						LN		15		8		false		            8      to pay for this tank is the draconian measure of				false

		376						LN		15		9		false		            9      assessing every user $1,100, and coming up with the				false

		377						LN		15		10		false		           10      $500,000 in 15 days on the backs of the water users.				false

		378						LN		15		11		false		           11           Addressing what the company has said before in my				false

		379						LN		15		12		false		           12      testimony, this is information that was directly given				false

		380						LN		15		13		false		           13      to me by the company.  It was directly given in another				false

		381						LN		15		14		false		           14      update to the public service commission.  And to strike				false

		382						LN		15		15		false		           15      that testimony would do a disservice and be unjust and				false

		383						LN		15		16		false		           16      inappropriate in this particular circumstance.				false

		384						LN		15		17		false		           17           The company also in their application refers to all				false

		385						LN		15		18		false		           18      of the efforts they've made on paragraph 11.  For				false

		386						LN		15		19		false		           19      example, company has continued productive dialogue with				false

		387						LN		15		20		false		           20      its customers.  Customers have been instrumental.				false

		388						LN		15		21		false		           21      Paragraph 12 of their application, the update -- 2017				false

		389						LN		15		22		false		           22      update letter was sent to all customers.  The update				false

		390						LN		15		23		false		           23      letter is incorporated in the application and I include				false

		391						LN		15		24		false		           24      it as an exhibit, not to be redundant, but for the				false

		392						LN		15		25		false		           25      convenience of the hearing examiner to have what I'm				false

		393						PG		16		0		false		page 16				false

		394						LN		16		1		false		            1      referring to in my testimony be attached to that				false

		395						LN		16		2		false		            2      testimony so you don't have to search for it.				false

		396						LN		16		3		false		            3           In addition, they also discuss as a result of the				false

		397						LN		16		4		false		            4      tank value, the company's imposed a complete restriction				false

		398						LN		16		5		false		            5      on outdoor water, and go on to say that there is no				false

		399						LN		16		6		false		            6      means to remedy the situation other than imposing a				false

		400						LN		16		7		false		            7      complete cessation of use of water -- irrigation water.				false

		401						LN		16		8		false		            8           In my testimony they moved to be stricken, I point				false

		402						LN		16		9		false		            9      out that was not the case.  That we worked hard as users				false

		403						LN		16		10		false		           10      to come up with a plan where some limited irrigation				false

		404						LN		16		11		false		           11      water could be done, and the company completely rejected				false

		405						LN		16		12		false		           12      it.  They don't tell the commission that.  And that				false

		406						LN		16		13		false		           13      their application is contrary to the facts that are				false

		407						LN		16		14		false		           14      stated in my testimony.  They say the funds can only be				false

		408						LN		16		15		false		           15      satisfied by single charge upon the customers in				false

		409						LN		16		16		false		           16      paragraph 20.  That's not true.  They have stated they				false

		410						LN		16		17		false		           17      have secured financing.  I think it's important in my				false

		411						LN		16		18		false		           18      testimony that I point out the background, and what has				false

		412						LN		16		19		false		           19      been stated to these customers that they refer to in				false

		413						LN		16		20		false		           20      their application as having various meetings with.				false

		414						LN		16		21		false		           21           And they have stated that their intent -- the				false

		415						LN		16		22		false		           22      intent of TCFC is to get out of the water business and				false

		416						LN		16		23		false		           23      divest itself of CWC.  And that they have proposed a				false

		417						LN		16		24		false		           24      means of doing that with Summit Water.  And that was				false

		418						LN		16		25		false		           25      dependent upon getting out from under the jurisdiction				false

		419						PG		17		0		false		page 17				false

		420						LN		17		1		false		            1      of the Public Service Commission.  When that failed, the				false

		421						LN		17		2		false		            2      further discussion with the customers ceased and the --				false

		422						LN		17		3		false		            3      this application was filed.				false

		423						LN		17		4		false		            4           I point out in the testimony they moved to be				false

		424						LN		17		5		false		            5      stricken, that the company was requested on numerous				false

		425						LN		17		6		false		            6      occasions in June that it seek Public Service Commission				false

		426						LN		17		7		false		            7      rate increase to cover the failed tank.  That they				false

		427						LN		17		8		false		            8      should be proceeding in that manner instead of trying to				false

		428						LN		17		9		false		            9      get the customers to agree to a sale to -- or to a				false

		429						LN		17		10		false		           10      transfer to Summit Water that would leave the customers				false

		430						LN		17		11		false		           11      with no ability to control the decisions of Summit				false

		431						LN		17		12		false		           12      Water, and would take the company out from jurisdiction				false

		432						LN		17		13		false		           13      of the Public Service Commission so we would have no				false

		433						LN		17		14		false		           14      government agency with the authority to review				false

		434						LN		17		15		false		           15      assessments or proposed increases and rates or expenses				false

		435						LN		17		16		false		           16      imposed by this -- Summit Water's newly proposed				false

		436						LN		17		17		false		           17      corporation.				false

		437						LN		17		18		false		           18           That is not irrelevant.  That's what happened.				false

		438						LN		17		19		false		           19      That's what brought us here.  They should have sued --				false

		439						LN		17		20		false		           20      or pursued this matter before the Public Service				false

		440						LN		17		21		false		           21      Commission in May or June.  They told us that they				false

		441						LN		17		22		false		           22      couldn't do that because it would take 240 days.  The				false

		442						LN		17		23		false		           23      hearing examiner knows that's not true.  We're here				false

		443						LN		17		24		false		           24      today on a 45-day time frame to have an interim rate				false

		444						LN		17		25		false		           25      increase to start paying for that tank.  That tank could				false

		445						PG		18		0		false		page 18				false

		446						LN		18		1		false		            1      have been brought before the attention of the Public				false

		447						LN		18		2		false		            2      Service Commission 45 days after it failed in April.				false

		448						LN		18		3		false		            3      And instead we're here in October which is the date in				false

		449						LN		18		4		false		            4      their statements that they now move to be stricken.				false

		450						LN		18		5		false		            5      Their very statements to the customers that this tank				false

		451						LN		18		6		false		            6      had to be immediately replaced, and if it went forward				false

		452						LN		18		7		false		            7      with the company funding that it would be replaced by				false

		453						LN		18		8		false		            8      October.				false

		454						LN		18		9		false		            9           Well, it's not replaced by October.  And I think				false

		455						LN		18		10		false		           10      all of this is germane to the interim rate increase we				false

		456						LN		18		11		false		           11      have here.  I think it's important to give the hearing				false

		457						LN		18		12		false		           12      examiner and the commission the full background of what				false

		458						LN		18		13		false		           13      has been said to the customers, what has been done.  And				false

		459						LN		18		14		false		           14      I have testified to that information in my statement by				false

		460						LN		18		15		false		           15      direct testimony that I was a witness to.  There are				false

		461						LN		18		16		false		           16      some conclusions in my presentation, but that's not				false

		462						LN		18		17		false		           17      unusual in direct testimony in a rate matter.  And they				false

		463						LN		18		18		false		           18      are conclusions that I think are reasonable inferences				false

		464						LN		18		19		false		           19      as to why the company has done certain things.  And I				false

		465						LN		18		20		false		           20      challenge the company to establish that those inferences				false

		466						LN		18		21		false		           21      are incorrect, that they have proceeded in this manner				false

		467						LN		18		22		false		           22      and waited this long.  Because their desire was to get				false

		468						LN		18		23		false		           23      out from under Public Service Commission jurisdiction,				false

		469						LN		18		24		false		           24      and proceeding with an interim rate increase to fix this				false

		470						LN		18		25		false		           25      failed tank, would complicate their effort to extricate				false

		471						PG		19		0		false		page 19				false

		472						LN		19		1		false		            1      themselves from the supervision of the Public Service				false

		473						LN		19		2		false		            2      Commission.				false

		474						LN		19		3		false		            3           There is nothing wrong with presenting that				false

		475						LN		19		4		false		            4      testimony.  It's not irrelevant it's not immaterial.				false

		476						LN		19		5		false		            5      It's not even scandalous.  And I take umbrage at there				false

		477						LN		19		6		false		            6      being some ulterior motive.  I'm here for the statements				false

		478						LN		19		7		false		            7      I've made in my presentation, to have an alternative way				false

		479						LN		19		8		false		            8      to fund that tank, and an alternative way to -- other				false

		480						LN		19		9		false		            9      than an immediate interim rate increase -- to start				false

		481						LN		19		10		false		           10      repaying the $38.6 million loan that hasn't even funded				false

		482						LN		19		11		false		           11      yet, for which no payments will be due until January of				false

		483						LN		19		12		false		           12      2019.  Sorry I took that long but -- I probably could				false

		484						LN		19		13		false		           13      have made it briefer if I had more time to review all of				false

		485						LN		19		14		false		           14      this material.				false

		486						LN		19		15		false		           15           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Savage. Mr.				false

		487						LN		19		16		false		           16      Lange?				false

		488						LN		19		17		false		           17           MR. LANGE:  Yes.  So none of my testimony has been				false

		489						LN		19		18		false		           18      put forth in the motion to be struck.  However, I think				false

		490						LN		19		19		false		           19      that the testimony in general that they wish to have				false

		491						LN		19		20		false		           20      stricken is very pertinent to setting the stage of the				false

		492						LN		19		21		false		           21      history from the customer's point of view of how things				false

		493						LN		19		22		false		           22      have transpired and whether or not they've influenced, I				false

		494						LN		19		23		false		           23      guess, prudent or imprudent decisions on the part of				false

		495						LN		19		24		false		           24      Community Water to move forward.				false

		496						LN		19		25		false		           25           Our biggest concern is the lack of capacity, i.e.,				false

		497						PG		20		0		false		page 20				false

		498						LN		20		1		false		            1      the failed tank at this point in time.  And we really				false

		499						LN		20		2		false		            2      want to have that tank done sooner than later.  I mean,				false

		500						LN		20		3		false		            3      I wish they were working on it today quite frankly.  But				false

		501						LN		20		4		false		            4      they're not.  This has been held off.  We're very upset				false

		502						LN		20		5		false		            5      by this and don't understand the reasons why it hasn't				false

		503						LN		20		6		false		            6      gone forward the way they said it would be going				false

		504						LN		20		7		false		            7      forward.  So consequently, I think that this motion to				false

		505						LN		20		8		false		            8      be stricken, this information, this testimony, should be				false

		506						LN		20		9		false		            9      denied.				false

		507						LN		20		10		false		           10           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  And Ms. Miller?				false

		508						LN		20		11		false		           11           MS. MILLER:  I also object to my testimony to be				false

		509						LN		20		12		false		           12      stricken.  I believe that the comments speak to the				false

		510						LN		20		13		false		           13      importance of moving forward very expeditiously to get a				false

		511						LN		20		14		false		           14      new tank built.  As we've heard before, we've had				false

		512						LN		20		15		false		           15      promises that it was going to move forward and those				false

		513						LN		20		16		false		           16      promises haven't been kept.  And it's also important for				false

		514						LN		20		17		false		           17      the customers to understand what level of reliability				false

		515						LN		20		18		false		           18      exists in the system.  We need to know what type of				false

		516						LN		20		19		false		           19      emergency plan for water service might be put in place				false

		517						LN		20		20		false		           20      if there is another failure.				false

		518						LN		20		21		false		           21           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  And I should have				false

		519						LN		20		22		false		           22      asked earlier, I was presuming since you are present				false

		520						LN		20		23		false		           23      that you would be Hidden Creek HOA's representative				false

		521						LN		20		24		false		           24      today, and that Mr. Amendola might be functioning as a				false

		522						LN		20		25		false		           25      witness.  So I've been referring to you when I have a				false

		523						PG		21		0		false		page 21				false

		524						LN		21		1		false		            1      question in your capacity as being here to represent the				false

		525						LN		21		2		false		            2      HOA.  Should I be referring to Mr. Amendola or is that				false

		526						LN		21		3		false		            3      okay?				false

		527						LN		21		4		false		            4           MS. MILLER:  That's fine.				false

		528						LN		21		5		false		            5           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Anything else from you,				false

		529						LN		21		6		false		            6      Mr. Atwater?				false

		530						LN		21		7		false		            7           MR. ATWATER:  Does Mr. Amendola want to say				false

		531						LN		21		8		false		            8      anything?				false

		532						LN		21		9		false		            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  My point was, we just heard				false

		533						LN		21		10		false		           10      on behalf of --				false

		534						LN		21		11		false		           11           MS. MILLER:  Oh, I'm not addressing Mr. Amendola's				false

		535						LN		21		12		false		           12      testimony or objection to his testimony.  I'm sorry.  I				false

		536						LN		21		13		false		           13      did not understand that.				false

		537						LN		21		14		false		           14           MR. SAVAGE:  They've moved to strike his testimony				false

		538						LN		21		15		false		           15      too, Mr. Amendola's.				false

		539						LN		21		16		false		           16           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Amendola is here on				false

		540						LN		21		17		false		           17      behalf of Red Pine?				false

		541						LN		21		18		false		           18           MS. MILLER:  Red Pine HOA.  But I'm Hidden Creek				false

		542						LN		21		19		false		           19      HOA.				false

		543						LN		21		20		false		           20           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Lange is here on behalf				false

		544						LN		21		21		false		           21      of Red Pine, right?				false

		545						LN		21		22		false		           22           MR. LANGE:  He's representing both Red Pine and				false

		546						LN		21		23		false		           23      Hidden Creek.				false

		547						LN		21		24		false		           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  We'll go ahead and give				false

		548						LN		21		25		false		           25      Mr. Amendola an opportunity to speak then.				false

		549						PG		22		0		false		page 22				false

		550						LN		22		1		false		            1           MR. AMENDOLA:  My turn, Your Honor?				false

		551						LN		22		2		false		            2           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes.				false

		552						LN		22		3		false		            3           MR. AMENDOLA:  Yes, I will be very brief.  I'm out				false

		553						LN		22		4		false		            4      of town and I don't have the benefit of all the				false

		554						LN		22		5		false		            5      documents in front of me, but I would like to say that				false

		555						LN		22		6		false		            6      first and foremost, in no way are we trying to hijack				false

		556						LN		22		7		false		            7      this proceeding.  And in no way are the owners that I				false

		557						LN		22		8		false		            8      represent seeking to provide or work from ulterior				false

		558						LN		22		9		false		            9      motives in this case.  To the contrary, we have simply				false

		559						LN		22		10		false		           10      provided a historical count of the things that have				false

		560						LN		22		11		false		           11      happened since mid-April when the tank failed.				false

		561						LN		22		12		false		           12           We also wanted to document that the company has				false

		562						LN		22		13		false		           13      acknowledged the severity of the situation and the need				false

		563						LN		22		14		false		           14      to move forward quickly with ulterior or -- alternate				false

		564						LN		22		15		false		           15      funding.  They informed us on different occasions that				false

		565						LN		22		16		false		           16      there was alternate funding secured and work was moving				false

		566						LN		22		17		false		           17      forward on the tank with the hope of having this tank				false

		567						LN		22		18		false		           18      function yet this fall.  And finally, I would offer that				false

		568						LN		22		19		false		           19      their request for a one-time funding or assessment of				false

		569						LN		22		20		false		           20      $1,100 is obviously burdensome to all the customer base,				false

		570						LN		22		21		false		           21      but in an effort to try and move this issue forward and				false

		571						LN		22		22		false		           22      get this tank -- the work on the tank underway, we				false

		572						LN		22		23		false		           23      basically offered up an alternate method of payment that				false

		573						LN		22		24		false		           24      would reimburse the company very similarly to what one				false

		574						LN		22		25		false		           25      of their original offers was, you know, two, three				false

		575						PG		23		0		false		page 23				false

		576						LN		23		1		false		            1      months ago.				false

		577						LN		23		2		false		            2           So not only are we trying -- not trying to hijack				false

		578						LN		23		3		false		            3      the procedures, we are actually trying to facilitate and				false

		579						LN		23		4		false		            4      expedite work on this tank.  We don't want to go into				false

		580						LN		23		5		false		            5      winter conditions without a tank, and if we are forced				false

		581						LN		23		6		false		            6      to, we want to make sure that we can reduce the time				false

		582						LN		23		7		false		            7      period before this tank comes on if it even has to come				false

		583						LN		23		8		false		            8      on in the early spring.  But we have all provided				false

		584						LN		23		9		false		            9      background information and an alternative funding				false

		585						LN		23		10		false		           10      mechanism that we think should be acceptable to get this				false

		586						LN		23		11		false		           11      project moving forward.  Thank you.				false

		587						LN		23		12		false		           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Amendola.				false

		588						LN		23		13		false		           13           MR. ATWATER:  If I may just spend one more minute				false

		589						LN		23		14		false		           14      in response to the other parties' statements.  I want to				false

		590						LN		23		15		false		           15      make it very clear that the company, the applicant in no				false

		591						LN		23		16		false		           16      way is suggesting that the intervenors not participate.				false

		592						LN		23		17		false		           17      We are very appreciative of the information they've				false

		593						LN		23		18		false		           18      provided to help and the assistance that they've given				false

		594						LN		23		19		false		           19      all along the way.  That's very clear and we want you to				false

		595						LN		23		20		false		           20      know that, that this position to strike had nothing to				false

		596						LN		23		21		false		           21      do with whether or not we want you to participate.  What				false

		597						LN		23		22		false		           22      it deals with is whether or not the commission should				false

		598						LN		23		23		false		           23      consider all of that background information when				false

		599						LN		23		24		false		           24      determining whether or not the rate requested is just				false

		600						LN		23		25		false		           25      and reasonable.  We believe it's not relevant for that				false

		601						PG		24		0		false		page 24				false

		602						LN		24		1		false		            1      purpose.  We believe it's relevant clearly, the history				false

		603						LN		24		2		false		            2      of what's gone on here is very relevant to where the				false

		604						LN		24		3		false		            3      company is today.  And we don't dispute that.  And I				false

		605						LN		24		4		false		            4      apologize if it came across that way.  What we're simply				false

		606						LN		24		5		false		            5      stating is that as the commission considers the				false

		607						LN		24		6		false		            6      application, that all of this additional information				false

		608						LN		24		7		false		            7      that may provide background and may be useful, not be				false

		609						LN		24		8		false		            8      considered when determining whether or not the rate				false

		610						LN		24		9		false		            9      meets the requirements of the statute, being just and				false

		611						LN		24		10		false		           10      reasonable and fair to the public and to the company's				false

		612						LN		24		11		false		           11      interest.				false

		613						LN		24		12		false		           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Atwater.  At				false

		614						LN		24		13		false		           13      this point the commission is disinclined to grant the				false

		615						LN		24		14		false		           14      motion to strike the portions of the written testimony				false

		616						LN		24		15		false		           15      filed by the witnesses at issue.  So the motion is				false

		617						LN		24		16		false		           16      denied.  That being said, all parties and their counsel				false

		618						LN		24		17		false		           17      retain the right to object to any testimony that might				false

		619						LN		24		18		false		           18      be presented during the hearing today.				false

		620						LN		24		19		false		           19           MR. ATWATER:  So to clarify, do we need to object				false

		621						LN		24		20		false		           20      every time testimony is made or can I make a blanket				false

		622						LN		24		21		false		           21      objection to their testimony with respect to those				false

		623						LN		24		22		false		           22      paragraphs at the outset?				false

		624						LN		24		23		false		           23           THE HEARING OFFICER:  You can elect -- I mean, you				false

		625						LN		24		24		false		           24      can elect to represent your client how you wish.  It				false

		626						LN		24		25		false		           25      would probably be more efficient if you make the blanket				false

		627						PG		25		0		false		page 25				false

		628						LN		25		1		false		            1      objection.				false

		629						LN		25		2		false		            2           MR. ATWATER:  So I just want to submit to the				false

		630						LN		25		3		false		            3      commission in that regard that the motion in itself				false

		631						LN		25		4		false		            4      actually makes the blanket objection to those				false

		632						LN		25		5		false		            5      provisions, those paragraphs that were asked to be				false

		633						LN		25		6		false		            6      stricken and we just restate that objection here in the				false

		634						LN		25		7		false		            7      hearing.				false

		635						LN		25		8		false		            8           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Understood.  Are you prepared				false

		636						LN		25		9		false		            9      to call your first witness, Mr. Atwater?				false

		637						LN		25		10		false		           10           MR. ATWATER:  We are.  And so in the spirit of				false

		638						LN		25		11		false		           11      history, and how important it is for this, the applicant				false

		639						LN		25		12		false		           12      would like to call Mr. Larry White as a witness before				false

		640						LN		25		13		false		           13      the commission.  As stated before, Mr. Larry White is				false

		641						LN		25		14		false		           14      the chief executive officer of TCFC Finance Co. which he				false

		642						LN		25		15		false		           15      will explain in a little more detail.  Our approach to				false

		643						LN		25		16		false		           16      this testimony, if the commission will allow, is to				false

		644						LN		25		17		false		           17      allow Mr. White to make open statements, rather than				false

		645						LN		25		18		false		           18      necessarily asking questions.  I would think it's				false

		646						LN		25		19		false		           19      important that he provide the company's history in				false

		647						LN		25		20		false		           20      response to the testimony that was just accepted by the				false

		648						LN		25		21		false		           21      commission, and other statements that have been made by				false

		649						LN		25		22		false		           22      the DPU and the intervenors.				false

		650						LN		25		23		false		           23           THE HEARING OFFICER:  That's certainly fine.				false

		651						LN		25		24		false		           24      Mr. White, do you mind taking the stand?				false

		652						LN		25		25		false		           25           MR. WHITE:  Sure.				false

		653						PG		26		0		false		page 26				false

		654						LN		26		1		false		            1           (Larry White is sworn in as a witness.)				false

		655						LN		26		2		false		            2           MR. WHITE:  So first of all, I want to make it				false

		656						LN		26		3		false		            3      clear that I'm not a lawyer, I've never been involved in				false

		657						LN		26		4		false		            4      an entity that has an interaction with a Public Service				false

		658						LN		26		5		false		            5      Commission or oversight such as this.  So this is all				false

		659						LN		26		6		false		            6      very new to me.  Without going into the entire				false

		660						LN		26		7		false		            7      background and history of Community Water, let's go back				false

		661						LN		26		8		false		            8      to the entity that is the sole member of Community Water				false

		662						LN		26		9		false		            9      which is ASC Utah.  That entity acquired a number of				false

		663						LN		26		10		false		           10      assets which included Community Water in 1998.  The				false

		664						LN		26		11		false		           11      Talisker Corporation acquired ASCU in 2008.  And Varde				false

		665						LN		26		12		false		           12      Partners which was a private equity firm based in				false

		666						LN		26		13		false		           13      Minneapolis, Minnesota invested in certain Canyon's				false

		667						LN		26		14		false		           14      related assets in Park City in 2010.  In 2013, the				false

		668						LN		26		15		false		           15      Talisker member was removed as the managing member of				false

		669						LN		26		16		false		           16      that entity, and Varde was inserted and TCFC Finance was				false

		670						LN		26		17		false		           17      created.  That's the history.				false

		671						LN		26		18		false		           18           A little bit about Varde Partners.  Varde is a				false

		672						LN		26		19		false		           19      private equity firm based in Minneapolis.  Its investors				false

		673						LN		26		20		false		           20      are primarily pension funds, state pension funds,				false

		674						LN		26		21		false		           21      college endowments and nonprofit agencies like Boy's				false

		675						LN		26		22		false		           22      Town, for example, who was Varde's very first investor,				false

		676						LN		26		23		false		           23      and the Annie E. Casey Foundation who basically provides				false

		677						LN		26		24		false		           24      services to the poorest of the poor, to people who are				false

		678						LN		26		25		false		           25      not caught in the social services net.  That's the basis				false

		679						PG		27		0		false		page 27				false

		680						LN		27		1		false		            1      of the various funds that Varde manages.				false

		681						LN		27		2		false		            2           There has been a lot of conversation about this				false

		682						LN		27		3		false		            3      loan.  So the way that private equity firms work is that				false

		683						LN		27		4		false		            4      they promise a preferred return to their investors.  For				false

		684						LN		27		5		false		            5      Varde, the promise to the investors is a 13 percent				false

		685						LN		27		6		false		            6      basis in a preferred return.  That means that before				false

		686						LN		27		7		false		            7      anything else happens, the investors have to get that				false

		687						LN		27		8		false		            8      kind of return.  Their expectation, consistent with all				false

		688						LN		27		9		false		            9      private equity firms, is that their returns would be in				false

		689						LN		27		10		false		           10      the 17 or 18 to 22 percent range.				false

		690						LN		27		11		false		           11           The nature of those funds, and the way that				false

		691						LN		27		12		false		           12      non-profits operate, is that they actually use those				false

		692						LN		27		13		false		           13      funds to -- or a portion of them to do all of their				false

		693						LN		27		14		false		           14      nonprofit acts.  So for endowments it's to -- for				false

		694						LN		27		15		false		           15      college endowments, it's to provide scholarships for				false

		695						LN		27		16		false		           16      people who can't afford.  In the case of Annie E. Casey				false

		696						LN		27		17		false		           17      Foundation, they're conducting their services around the				false

		697						LN		27		18		false		           18      city of Baltimore and elsewhere.  So that's the nature				false

		698						LN		27		19		false		           19      of the funds that back TCFC, just so you're aware where				false

		699						LN		27		20		false		           20      the money comes from.				false

		700						LN		27		21		false		           21           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'm sorry to interrupt you.				false

		701						LN		27		22		false		           22      We are live streaming this hearing today and it is				false

		702						LN		27		23		false		           23      currently a public proceeding.  So to the extent you may				false

		703						LN		27		24		false		           24      be concerned about confidential information -- I know				false

		704						LN		27		25		false		           25      many of the exhibits filed in this case were filed as				false
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		706						LN		28		1		false		            1      confidential -- you should be aware that this we are				false

		707						LN		28		2		false		            2      streaming.				false

		708						LN		28		3		false		            3           THE WITNESS:  This is all public information.  So				false

		709						LN		28		4		false		            4      it's important to understand that in the context of how				false

		710						LN		28		5		false		            5      we operate.  So the nature of this -- because there have				false

		711						LN		28		6		false		            6      been all sorts of questions about this and I'm trying to				false

		712						LN		28		7		false		            7      clarify -- so that sole member of Community Water is ASC				false

		713						LN		28		8		false		            8      Utah.  The sole member of ASC Utah is TCFC.  The owner				false

		714						LN		28		9		false		            9      of TCFC is an interim of what goes back to the private				false

		715						LN		28		10		false		           10      equity firm.  So that's the nature of our funding.  So				false

		716						LN		28		11		false		           11      again, our understanding is that -- and there have been				false

		717						LN		28		12		false		           12      a number of attempts to have a rate case come before the				false

		718						LN		28		13		false		           13      Public Service Commission.  That's based on the fact				false

		719						LN		28		14		false		           14      that for 30 years or more the customers of this company				false

		720						LN		28		15		false		           15      were paying $12 a month and the system was allowed to				false

		721						LN		28		16		false		           16      deteriorate.				false

		722						LN		28		17		false		           17           Last year there was a rate case that came before				false

		723						LN		28		18		false		           18      this commission, and the result of that was that the				false

		724						LN		28		19		false		           19      rate was increased to roughly $30 a month per customer				false

		725						LN		28		20		false		           20      plus usage.  Just to give you an idea of comparison to				false

		726						LN		28		21		false		           21      the other regional water companies, I'm a Summit Water				false

		727						LN		28		22		false		           22      customer.  I live in Park City.  My monthly rate is $88				false

		728						LN		28		23		false		           23      a month.  The average customer with Mountain Regional				false

		729						LN		28		24		false		           24      which is the other large regional water company is $120				false

		730						LN		28		25		false		           25      a month.				false

		731						PG		29		0		false		page 29				false

		732						LN		29		1		false		            1           At the same time that this rate case was brought				false

		733						LN		29		2		false		            2      back in July or August of 2016, there was a request for				false

		734						LN		29		3		false		            3      infrastructure improvements because half the meters in				false

		735						LN		29		4		false		            4      Community Water don't work.  We are aware then of a				false

		736						LN		29		5		false		            5      number of deficiencies based on a study that was done by				false

		737						LN		29		6		false		            6      Bowen Collins that evaluated the entire system.  Bowen &				false

		738						LN		29		7		false		            7      Collins is a water engineering company.  They evaluated				false

		739						LN		29		8		false		            8      the entire system.  We are aware there was a number of				false

		740						LN		29		9		false		            9      deficiencies.  So part of that rate case was to request				false

		741						LN		29		10		false		           10      meters, pressure valves, and other parts of the system				false

		742						LN		29		11		false		           11      that were known to be failing.				false

		743						LN		29		12		false		           12           Throughout this process our desire has been to				false

		744						LN		29		13		false		           13      transfer this company into responsible hands that is a				false

		745						LN		29		14		false		           14      larger operating water company.  So just to give you an				false

		746						LN		29		15		false		           15      idea, Summit Water has roughly 5,000 customers, Mountain				false

		747						LN		29		16		false		           16      Regional has roughly 8,000 customers, Community Water				false

		748						LN		29		17		false		           17      has 500.  So it clearly costs more per customer to				false

		749						LN		29		18		false		           18      operate a very small company than it does to spread				false

		750						LN		29		19		false		           19      those costs over a large number of customers.				false

		751						LN		29		20		false		           20           We have met with the customers a number of times,				false

		752						LN		29		21		false		           21      trying to figure out a way to transfer this responsibly.				false

		753						LN		29		22		false		           22      We've talked about setting up a nonprofit customers				false

		754						LN		29		23		false		           23      would own, but it has to be managed by a responsible				false

		755						LN		29		24		false		           24      major water company.  They don't have the capacity among				false

		756						LN		29		25		false		           25      the customers themselves to be able to manage this kind				false

		757						PG		30		0		false		page 30				false

		758						LN		30		1		false		            1      of operation.				false

		759						LN		30		2		false		            2           So we did offer back in July -- after the tank				false

		760						LN		30		3		false		            3      failed we did offer to provide a means by which we could				false

		761						LN		30		4		false		            4      replace the tank.  So there are two separate issues				false

		762						LN		30		5		false		            5      here.  The first is the replacement was more immediate				false

		763						LN		30		6		false		            6      when the tank failed, which is the larger of the two				false

		764						LN		30		7		false		            7      water tanks, and could not be repaired.  It had been				false

		765						LN		30		8		false		            8      repaired a number of times.  Probably 40 years old.  We				false

		766						LN		30		9		false		            9      did offer a financing mechanism back then based on the				false

		767						LN		30		10		false		           10      customers volunteering a hundred -- it would have to be				false

		768						LN		30		11		false		           11      a hundred percent of the customers volunteering to repay				false

		769						LN		30		12		false		           12      the cost of the tank over time.				false

		770						LN		30		13		false		           13           What we were told by that condo association, the				false

		771						LN		30		14		false		           14      representatives here, is they could not guarantee that				false

		772						LN		30		15		false		           15      their customers would pay.  They had no mechanism to go				false

		773						LN		30		16		false		           16      back and guarantee that their customers would pay.				false

		774						LN		30		17		false		           17      Therefore, from our standpoint and to my board and				false

		775						LN		30		18		false		           18      executive committee, I couldn't tell them that the				false

		776						LN		30		19		false		           19      repayment of their funding of this water tank could be				false

		777						LN		30		20		false		           20      guaranteed to them.  So consequently, it was then that				false

		778						LN		30		21		false		           21      we decided we needed to come before the Public Service				false

		779						LN		30		22		false		           22      Commission and establish this rate case.				false

		780						LN		30		23		false		           23           It's also my understanding that we cannot -- that				false

		781						LN		30		24		false		           24      Community Water cannot arbitrarily -- even in the case				false

		782						LN		30		25		false		           25      of an emergency such as the failure of the tank or the				false

		783						PG		31		0		false		page 31				false

		784						LN		31		1		false		            1      need for replacement water -- charge the customers more				false

		785						LN		31		2		false		            2      just because an emergency has happened.  So if we needed				false

		786						LN		31		3		false		            3      supplemental water, for example, we have that capacity				false

		787						LN		31		4		false		            4      to come from Summit Water, but we have no capacity to				false

		788						LN		31		5		false		            5      charge for the water that we're receiving because it				false

		789						LN		31		6		false		            6      comes at a much greater rate than our source water,				false

		790						LN		31		7		false		            7      which is well and service water.				false

		791						LN		31		8		false		            8           So we now have a situation where the infrastructure				false

		792						LN		31		9		false		            9      of Community Water is clearly failing.  We have known				false

		793						LN		31		10		false		           10      this over time, and yet every attempt that we've made to				false

		794						LN		31		11		false		           11      try and rectify it, has been thwarted either through				false

		795						LN		31		12		false		           12      this process with the department of utilities or through				false

		796						LN		31		13		false		           13      the customers.  And so we have tried to do this in the				false

		797						LN		31		14		false		           14      most cost effective manner possible, which would be to				false

		798						LN		31		15		false		           15      turn the system over to Summit Water, which is a				false

		799						LN		31		16		false		           16      nonprofit mutual water company.  We've also had				false

		800						LN		31		17		false		           17      discussions with Mountain Regional which is a municipal				false

		801						LN		31		18		false		           18      water company.  They have generally a higher cost of				false

		802						LN		31		19		false		           19      operations so it would cost the customers more.  We've				false

		803						LN		31		20		false		           20      had conversations with both of them.				false

		804						LN		31		21		false		           21           Through the efforts of Emily Lewis, we have secured				false

		805						LN		31		22		false		           22      a loan based on the Bowen & Collins' study -- a loan				false

		806						LN		31		23		false		           23      from the state which is federally fund based to correct				false

		807						LN		31		24		false		           24      all of the known deficiencies in the water system.  We				false

		808						LN		31		25		false		           25      originally included the tank, the failed tank, in that				false

		809						PG		32		0		false		page 32				false

		810						LN		32		1		false		            1      cost.				false

		811						LN		32		2		false		            2           However, given that we were not close to being able				false

		812						LN		32		3		false		            3      to settle on that loan, and because of the parameters of				false

		813						LN		32		4		false		            4      the loan which require that we not spend any hard costs				false

		814						LN		32		5		false		            5      prior to the loan closing, meaning we could not order				false

		815						LN		32		6		false		            6      the tank, we couldn't bid the tank.  The requirements of				false

		816						LN		32		7		false		            7      that loan because of Davis Bacon and other federal				false

		817						LN		32		8		false		            8      requirements, require that the loan be closed first, and				false

		818						LN		32		9		false		            9      that we bid all of the components and comply with Davis				false

		819						LN		32		10		false		           10      Bacon before any money could be spent, hard costs could				false

		820						LN		32		11		false		           11      be spent.  We could spend money on engineering, but we				false

		821						LN		32		12		false		           12      could not spend any hard costs on the tank.  That's the				false

		822						LN		32		13		false		           13      reason we decided to separate the cost of the tank from				false

		823						LN		32		14		false		           14      the proposed loan.				false

		824						LN		32		15		false		           15           So it was clear when we could not get consensus of				false

		825						LN		32		16		false		           16      the customers for a unanimous consent to the -- to a				false

		826						LN		32		17		false		           17      special assessment to repair the tank at the time that				false

		827						LN		32		18		false		           18      we needed to come back through this formal process and				false

		828						LN		32		19		false		           19      make application of the Public Service Commission.  That				false

		829						LN		32		20		false		           20      takes time to prepare.  So you know that the submission				false

		830						LN		32		21		false		           21      has roughly a thousand pages of material that has to be				false

		831						LN		32		22		false		           22      submitted.  The cost of every one of these applications				false

		832						LN		32		23		false		           23      is roughly $50,000 in engineering and legal time that				false

		833						LN		32		24		false		           24      has to get passed through the customers.				false

		834						LN		32		25		false		           25           So we made application in this case for both a				false
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		836						LN		33		1		false		            1      special assessment as well as for preparing for the loan				false

		837						LN		33		2		false		            2      closing, which could happen in spring, that would then				false

		838						LN		33		3		false		            3      repair the entire system.  The cost just for the tank				false

		839						LN		33		4		false		            4      between now and the spring, or whenever it's going to be				false

		840						LN		33		5		false		            5      installed is roughly five to $600,000 -- call it				false

		841						LN		33		6		false		            6      $550,000.  The cost of just the engineering and legal				false

		842						LN		33		7		false		            7      work in order to prepare for the closing of the loan to				false

		843						LN		33		8		false		            8      repair the rest of the system is another $500,000. If				false

		844						LN		33		9		false		            9      we don't get this rate situation straightened out, this				false

		845						LN		33		10		false		           10      system -- the entire community water system will fail.				false

		846						LN		33		11		false		           11      It's on the verge of that now.  It's very clear and				false

		847						LN		33		12		false		           12      people have been in denial, I think, for decades that				false

		848						LN		33		13		false		           13      the condition of the system was deteriorating.  That's				false

		849						LN		33		14		false		           14      why we're before you today.				false

		850						LN		33		15		false		           15           MR. ATWATER:  I have a few questions for you, Mr.				false

		851						LN		33		16		false		           16      White.  Thank you for your statement.				false

		852						LN		33		17		false		           17           Q.  The first question is, Mr. Savage suggested				false

		853						LN		33		18		false		           18      earlier today and in the testimony that was accepted by				false

		854						LN		33		19		false		           19      the commission today, that the reason for waiting to				false

		855						LN		33		20		false		           20      file the rate case until September was because we did				false

		856						LN		33		21		false		           21      not want to thwart the effort of the company in				false

		857						LN		33		22		false		           22      conveying it to a nonprofit entity.  Is that the reason				false

		858						LN		33		23		false		           23      for delaying?  And if not, would you explain again for				false

		859						LN		33		24		false		           24      the record the reason for waiting until September to				false

		860						LN		33		25		false		           25      file the rate case increase?				false
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		862						LN		34		1		false		            1           A.  It had nothing to do with that.  We were on a				false

		863						LN		34		2		false		            2      parallel path to try and rectify the deficiencies in the				false

		864						LN		34		3		false		            3      water system as well as to transfer the entire entity to				false

		865						LN		34		4		false		            4      a responsible management company.				false

		866						LN		34		5		false		            5           The issue at hand is that it is not appropriate for				false

		867						LN		34		6		false		            6      Summit Water customers, a mutual water company with				false

		868						LN		34		7		false		            7      shareholders, to assume the liabilities of Community				false

		869						LN		34		8		false		            8      Water, either as it exists today with all the				false

		870						LN		34		9		false		            9      deficiencies in the system or with a 3 million dollar				false

		871						LN		34		10		false		           10      loan in place to correct all those deficiencies.  And so				false

		872						LN		34		11		false		           11      that's why we try -- we embarked on an attempt to set up				false

		873						LN		34		12		false		           12      a nonprofit entity which would receive the loan and that				false

		874						LN		34		13		false		           13      Summit Water would then manage.  That was what was				false

		875						LN		34		14		false		           14      proposed at the time.				false

		876						LN		34		15		false		           15           There are a variety of complications of that in				false

		877						LN		34		16		false		           16      terms of control, whose in control of, you know, the				false

		878						LN		34		17		false		           17      decisions, where to spend money and how the system gets				false

		879						LN		34		18		false		           18      repaired.  So that has not been resolved.  That's why we				false

		880						LN		34		19		false		           19      chose a parallel path to come back to the Public Service				false

		881						LN		34		20		false		           20      Commission and ask for the rate increases, to make sure				false

		882						LN		34		21		false		           21      that whoever is investing that money, whether it's Varde				false

		883						LN		34		22		false		           22      investing that money on behalf of its investors or the				false

		884						LN		34		23		false		           23      loan investment that is coming from the state agency,				false

		885						LN		34		24		false		           24      make sure there is a mechanism to pay them back.				false

		886						LN		34		25		false		           25      Because nobody invests money or makes loans without				false

		887						PG		35		0		false		page 35				false

		888						LN		35		1		false		            1      knowing how it's going to get paid back.  Does that				false

		889						LN		35		2		false		            2      answer your question?				false

		890						LN		35		3		false		            3           Q.  Yes.  Thank you.  You also testified that your				false

		891						LN		35		4		false		            4      private equity firm named Varde Partners became involved				false

		892						LN		35		5		false		            5      with ASC Utah in approximately 2013.				false

		893						LN		35		6		false		            6           A.  So the original investment was made in Talisker				false

		894						LN		35		7		false		            7      in 2010 and then assumed the managing member position in				false

		895						LN		35		8		false		            8      2013, June of 2013.				false

		896						LN		35		9		false		            9           Q.  Okay.  I believe it's important for you to				false

		897						LN		35		10		false		           10      discuss the time frame between 2010 and today, and why				false

		898						LN		35		11		false		           11      now we have the information that we have as a company				false

		899						LN		35		12		false		           12      and why you are taking the steps you're taking today				false

		900						LN		35		13		false		           13      verses in 2010.				false

		901						LN		35		14		false		           14           A.  So again I was not -- I did not join Varde				false

		902						LN		35		15		false		           15      until February of 2014 so I don't know what happened,				false

		903						LN		35		16		false		           16      you know, prior to that time.  I just know when the				false

		904						LN		35		17		false		           17      investment was made.  And I can only tell you what has				false

		905						LN		35		18		false		           18      happened since I've been involved.  And I came on board				false

		906						LN		35		19		false		           19      largely because of this project, to manage this.  At the				false

		907						LN		35		20		false		           20      time we had consultants that had taken over the				false

		908						LN		35		21		false		           21      accounting and the day-to-day management.  We eventually				false

		909						LN		35		22		false		           22      replaced that with full time staff, and I was asked to				false

		910						LN		35		23		false		           23      come here and run it in May or March of 2016.				false

		911						LN		35		24		false		           24           So I can only tell you what's happened since my own				false

		912						LN		35		25		false		           25      personal involvement.  And that there have been several				false
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		914						LN		36		1		false		            1      attempts at developing rate cases which are complicated				false

		915						LN		36		2		false		            2      and expensive to come before this body.  And that				false

		916						LN		36		3		false		            3      several of them have been thwarted or abandoned because				false

		917						LN		36		4		false		            4      of their complexity.  The first one that finally came				false

		918						LN		36		5		false		            5      and was completed was just about a year ago.  So I				false

		919						LN		36		6		false		            6      believe it was October, a year ago, when the rate case				false

		920						LN		36		7		false		            7      was approved.  It was approved only for operational				false

		921						LN		36		8		false		            8      costs, not for infrastructure costs.  And I can tell you				false

		922						LN		36		9		false		            9      that the operational costs that were approved is				false

		923						LN		36		10		false		           10      insufficient because the company is currently running				false

		924						LN		36		11		false		           11      without any management.  Keep in mind that we have never				false

		925						LN		36		12		false		           12      charged any overhead, that this entity operates out of				false

		926						LN		36		13		false		           13      TCFC's offices with our accounting services provided for				false

		927						LN		36		14		false		           14      free, managing services provided for free.				false

		928						LN		36		15		false		           15           And even with that the company is currently				false

		929						LN		36		16		false		           16      running, first nine months of this year, at $112,000				false

		930						LN		36		17		false		           17      deficit.  So without -- just in it's general operating				false

		931						LN		36		18		false		           18      costs without any infrastructure costs, $112,000				false

		932						LN		36		19		false		           19      deficit.  If we were to add a simple 9,000 dollar a				false

		933						LN		36		20		false		           20      month management fee which would be minimal to cover the				false

		934						LN		36		21		false		           21      cost of management, that would go up to close to				false

		935						LN		36		22		false		           22      $200,000.  So $193,000 deficit so far this year.				false

		936						LN		36		23		false		           23           I can tell you from just the engineering we spent				false

		937						LN		36		24		false		           24      $36,000 to date just on the tank replacement, just on				false

		938						LN		36		25		false		           25      the engineering and planning.  We spent $10,000 to date				false
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		940						LN		37		1		false		            1      on the rate study.  $13,000 -- this is to date meaning				false

		941						LN		37		2		false		            2      this year -- on the loan, preparing for the loan.  And				false

		942						LN		37		3		false		            3      another $6,000 on easements where the infrastructure				false

		943						LN		37		4		false		            4      exists, but does not have property easements and needs				false

		944						LN		37		5		false		            5      to be perfected in order to establish the rights of the				false

		945						LN		37		6		false		            6      system.				false

		946						LN		37		7		false		            7           Q.  So a follow-up question I think everybody wants				false

		947						LN		37		8		false		            8      to know.  Why did you acquire Community Water?				false

		948						LN		37		9		false		            9           A.  So it was just part of the asset.  I can't tell				false

		949						LN		37		10		false		           10      you why ASCU acquired Community Water or whether it came				false

		950						LN		37		11		false		           11      along with the other holdings that they acquired, but				false

		951						LN		37		12		false		           12      all of the holdings were acquired then by Talisker and				false

		952						LN		37		13		false		           13      basically inherited in the subsequent acquisitions.				false

		953						LN		37		14		false		           14           Q.  So it's your understanding that it wasn't				false

		954						LN		37		15		false		           15      necessarily an expectation that this would be a high				false

		955						LN		37		16		false		           16      return company that would allow for your investors to				false

		956						LN		37		17		false		           17      achieve the return that they normally require?				false

		957						LN		37		18		false		           18           MR. SAVAGE:  CWC?				false

		958						LN		37		19		false		           19           MR. ATWATER:  Correct.				false

		959						LN		37		20		false		           20           THE WITNESS:  It was not acquired as an individual				false

		960						LN		37		21		false		           21      asset for that purpose.				false

		961						LN		37		22		false		           22           MR. ATWATER:  Okay.  Great.				false

		962						LN		37		23		false		           23           Q.  Would you please provide an update as to the				false

		963						LN		37		24		false		           24      status of the new tank -- the current status that's in				false

		964						LN		37		25		false		           25      progress?				false
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		966						LN		38		1		false		            1           A.  So we've done an evaluation on the new tank.				false

		967						LN		38		2		false		            2      Summit Water has been instrumental in evaluating,				false

		968						LN		38		3		false		            3      searching for tank providers, evaluating the right kind				false

		969						LN		38		4		false		            4      of tank in order to replace the one that failed.  And we				false

		970						LN		38		5		false		            5      could move forward on ordering that tank as soon as we				false

		971						LN		38		6		false		            6      have the money to do so.				false

		972						LN		38		7		false		            7           In terms of its installation time, where this tank				false

		973						LN		38		8		false		            8      is located is, for anybody that's familiar with the				false

		974						LN		38		9		false		            9      Canyons Resort, it's a ski resort, this tank and the				false

		975						LN		38		10		false		           10      smaller tank are located on easement land which is up				false

		976						LN		38		11		false		           11      "ludraw" which is a ski run.  So if it isn't replaced				false

		977						LN		38		12		false		           12      within a certain time period, as soon as it starts				false

		978						LN		38		13		false		           13      snowing it's inaccessible by trucks and equipment.				false

		979						LN		38		14		false		           14           So at this point in time, as soon as the path to				false

		980						LN		38		15		false		           15      repayment or payment of the tank is clear, the tank				false

		981						LN		38		16		false		           16      could be ordered.  It will take roughly three to four				false

		982						LN		38		17		false		           17      months in manufacturing and transportation, and probably				false

		983						LN		38		18		false		           18      six weeks to actually install and become operational.				false

		984						LN		38		19		false		           19           At this point, the earliest that that could occur				false

		985						LN		38		20		false		           20      would be in the spring of 2018, as soon as the path is				false

		986						LN		38		21		false		           21      clear to the site where the tank, the wells and the				false

		987						LN		38		22		false		           22      companion tank exist.  So I would think that from a				false

		988						LN		38		23		false		           23      timing standpoint, it's likely in a best case scenario				false

		989						LN		38		24		false		           24      to be May or June of 2018.				false

		990						LN		38		25		false		           25           Q.  Thank you.  It's appropriate and necessary for				false
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		992						LN		39		1		false		            1      me to ask you if you certify and adopt the testimony of				false

		993						LN		39		2		false		            2      Justin Atwater submitted with the direct testimony of				false

		994						LN		39		3		false		            3      the company as being true and accurate?				false

		995						LN		39		4		false		            4           A.  Yes, I do.				false

		996						LN		39		5		false		            5           Q.  You adopt that testimony as your own?				false

		997						LN		39		6		false		            6           A.  I do.				false

		998						LN		39		7		false		            7           Q.  Thank you.				false

		999						LN		39		8		false		            8           MR. ATWATER:  Your honor, the application has two				false

		1000						LN		39		9		false		            9      requests as has been noted.  One for a special increase				false

		1001						LN		39		10		false		           10      related to the tank and one for a general increase				false

		1002						LN		39		11		false		           11      related to O&M and infrastructure.  There are very				false

		1003						LN		39		12		false		           12      detailed discussions to be had regarding both of those.				false

		1004						LN		39		13		false		           13      Mr. White has adopted the testimony that I've provided				false

		1005						LN		39		14		false		           14      which includes details regarding both of those things.				false

		1006						LN		39		15		false		           15      We don't feel that it's necessary to read that in today				false

		1007						LN		39		16		false		           16      unless the commission feels inclined for us to do so.				false

		1008						LN		39		17		false		           17           THE HEARING OFFICER:  No.  The commission's rules				false

		1009						LN		39		18		false		           18      expressly allow parties to adopt summations so that we				false

		1010						LN		39		19		false		           19      don't have to do that.  Your witness is welcome to do so				false

		1011						LN		39		20		false		           20      and of course he may be subject to cross-examination on				false

		1012						LN		39		21		false		           21      any topic covered.				false

		1013						LN		39		22		false		           22           MR. ATWATER:  Great.  Thank you.  The other				false

		1014						LN		39		23		false		           23      question I have for the commission is, will the				false

		1015						LN		39		24		false		           24      applicant have an opportunity at some point to provide				false

		1016						LN		39		25		false		           25      statements outside of its witnesses?				false
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		1018						LN		40		1		false		            1           THE HEARING OFFICER:  A concluding argument?				false

		1019						LN		40		2		false		            2           MR. ATWATER:  Correct.				false

		1020						LN		40		3		false		            3           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any objection to that?				false

		1021						LN		40		4		false		            4           MS. SCHMID:  No objection.				false

		1022						LN		40		5		false		            5           MR. SAVAGE:  No objections.				false

		1023						LN		40		6		false		            6           MR. LANGE:  No objections.				false

		1024						LN		40		7		false		            7           MR. ATWATER:  Great.  Then at this time we have no				false

		1025						LN		40		8		false		            8      further questions for Mr. White.				false

		1026						LN		40		9		false		            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Ms. Schmid?				false

		1027						LN		40		10		false		           10           MS. SCHMID:  Is Mr. Atwater going to move for the				false

		1028						LN		40		11		false		           11      admission of the testimony adopted by Mr. White?				false

		1029						LN		40		12		false		           12           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.  I move to admit the				false

		1030						LN		40		13		false		           13      testimony of Mr. White.				false

		1031						LN		40		14		false		           14           MS. SCHMID:  No objection.				false

		1032						LN		40		15		false		           15           MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.				false

		1033						LN		40		16		false		           16           MR. LANGE:  No objection.				false

		1034						LN		40		17		false		           17           MS. MILLER:  No objection.				false

		1035						LN		40		18		false		           18           MR. AMENDOLA:  None.				false

		1036						LN		40		19		false		           19           THE HEARING OFFICER:  It's admitted.  Go ahead.				false

		1037						LN		40		20		false		           20           MS. SCHMID:  The Division has some				false

		1038						LN		40		21		false		           21      cross-examination questions for Mr. White, but because				false

		1039						LN		40		22		false		           22      Mr. White's testimony ranged far more broadly than the				false

		1040						LN		40		23		false		           23      testimony submitted by Mr. Atwater, the Division would				false

		1041						LN		40		24		false		           24      like a few minutes to review its prepared				false

		1042						LN		40		25		false		           25      cross-examination questions to see what can be stricken.				false
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		1044						LN		41		1		false		            1      Could the Division have 15 minutes?  This is not my				false

		1045						LN		41		2		false		            2      normal practice to ask for a delay and I submit that				false

		1046						LN		41		3		false		            3      request in that nature.				false

		1047						LN		41		4		false		            4           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any objection to a 15-minute				false

		1048						LN		41		5		false		            5      recess?				false

		1049						LN		41		6		false		            6           MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.				false

		1050						LN		41		7		false		            7           MR. ATWATER:  No objection.				false

		1051						LN		41		8		false		            8           THE HEARING OFFICER:  We'll be in recess until				false

		1052						LN		41		9		false		            9      10:30.  Thank you.				false

		1053						LN		41		10		false		           10           MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.				false

		1054						LN		41		11		false		           11           (Interruption in proceedings.)				false

		1055						LN		41		12		false		           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Let's go back on the record				false

		1056						LN		41		13		false		           13      please.  Ms. Schmid, I believe we ended with you.				false

		1057						LN		41		14		false		           14           MS. SCHMID:  Yes.  I do have some questions for				false

		1058						LN		41		15		false		           15      Mr. White, if he could be called to the stand.				false

		1059						LN		41		16		false		           16           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Mr. White, would you				false

		1060						LN		41		17		false		           17      please return to the stand.  You're still under oath,				false

		1061						LN		41		18		false		           18      sir.				false

		1062						LN		41		19		false		           19           MS. SCHMID:				false
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		1064						LN		41		21		false		           21           A.  Good morning.				false

		1065						LN		41		22		false		           22           Q.  Is this your first experience in a regulatory				false

		1066						LN		41		23		false		           23      setting?				false

		1067						LN		41		24		false		           24           A.  It is.				false

		1068						LN		41		25		false		           25           Q.  How long have you worked on the investment				false
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		1070						LN		42		1		false		            1      banker or the investment funding side of things?				false

		1071						LN		42		2		false		            2           A.  For three and a half years.				false

		1072						LN		42		3		false		            3           Q.  What is your background before that?				false

		1073						LN		42		4		false		            4           A.  Real estate development.				false

		1074						LN		42		5		false		            5           Q.  I have some questions, and some of these may be				false

		1075						LN		42		6		false		            6      a little bit redundant because of what you testified to,				false

		1076						LN		42		7		false		            7      but I want the commission to have precise facts on the				false

		1077						LN		42		8		false		            8      record so I'm going to ask them.				false

		1078						LN		42		9		false		            9           You mentioned Talisker.  Talisker bought American				false

		1079						LN		42		10		false		           10      Ski Company; is that correct?				false

		1080						LN		42		11		false		           11           A.  Correct.				false

		1081						LN		42		12		false		           12           Q.  Is it correct that Varde Partners in 2010				false

		1082						LN		42		13		false		           13      invested in the Canyons?				false

		1083						LN		42		14		false		           14           A.  Correct.				false

		1084						LN		42		15		false		           15           Q.  Is it correct that Canyons at that time was				false

		1085						LN		42		16		false		           16      owned at least in part by Talisker Corporation?				false

		1086						LN		42		17		false		           17           A.  I don't know whether -- it wasn't Talisker				false

		1087						LN		42		18		false		           18      Corporation.  It was probably a single purpose entity.				false

		1088						LN		42		19		false		           19           MR. SAVAGE:  You said a single what?				false

		1089						LN		42		20		false		           20           THE WITNESS:  Single purpose entity.  Most assets				false

		1090						LN		42		21		false		           21      are held by a single purpose entity.				false

		1091						LN		42		22		false		           22           MR. SAVAGE:  A subsidiary of Talisker, is that what				false

		1092						LN		42		23		false		           23      you mean?				false

		1093						LN		42		24		false		           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  You'll have your chance,				false

		1094						LN		42		25		false		           25      Mr. Savage.				false
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		1096						LN		43		1		false		            1           MR. SAVAGE:  I just couldn't hear.  That's why I				false

		1097						LN		43		2		false		            2      interrupted you.				false

		1098						LN		43		3		false		            3           MS. SCHMID:				false

		1099						LN		43		4		false		            4           Q.  So are you unfamiliar then with the involvement				false

		1100						LN		43		5		false		            5      if any of Talisker in Community Water and TCFC?				false

		1101						LN		43		6		false		            6           A.  I don't know what -- if you're asking me				false

		1102						LN		43		7		false		            7      what -- do I know what Talisker did during that period				false

		1103						LN		43		8		false		            8      of time, I don't.				false

		1104						LN		43		9		false		            9           MR. ATWATER:  May I object to the relevance of the				false

		1105						LN		43		10		false		           10      question.				false

		1106						LN		43		11		false		           11           MS. SCHMID:  The witness brought it up in his				false

		1107						LN		43		12		false		           12      direct.  We have established that the history of the				false

		1108						LN		43		13		false		           13      corporation and that the company is very important.  As				false

		1109						LN		43		14		false		           14      part of his testimony here today, Mr. White talked about				false

		1110						LN		43		15		false		           15      how the company had -- and I'll paraphrase because these				false

		1111						LN		43		16		false		           16      weren't his direct words -- fallen into disrepair and				false

		1112						LN		43		17		false		           17      needed some substantial improvements.  Along those				false

		1113						LN		43		18		false		           18      lines, I am trying to determine what knowledge if any				false

		1114						LN		43		19		false		           19      Varde corporation -- Varde Partners had when it acquired				false

		1115						LN		43		20		false		           20      the company.  I believe that that is relevant as it				false

		1116						LN		43		21		false		           21      pertains to not only the past management of the company,				false

		1117						LN		43		22		false		           22      but also the current management.				false

		1118						LN		43		23		false		           23           THE HEARING OFFICER:  And I was experiencing some				false

		1119						LN		43		24		false		           24      cross-talk so I'm not sure I completely heard the				false

		1120						LN		43		25		false		           25      question being objected to.  Will you remind me of it?				false

		1121						PG		44		0		false		page 44				false

		1122						LN		44		1		false		            1           MS. SCHMID:  Yes, I asked about his knowledge of				false

		1123						LN		44		2		false		            2      Talisker with American Ski Company and with Community				false

		1124						LN		44		3		false		            3      Water Company.  Also, in addition I believe that				false

		1125						LN		44		4		false		            4      Talisker is in bankruptcy and I want to establish on the				false

		1126						LN		44		5		false		            5      record, to the extent that he knows if that bankruptcy				false

		1127						LN		44		6		false		            6      affects Community Water.  And as a managing partner, I				false

		1128						LN		44		7		false		            7      believe that Varde Partners would likely be aware of				false

		1129						LN		44		8		false		            8      that.				false

		1130						LN		44		9		false		            9           MR. ATWATER:  May I respond to that.  We're okay				false

		1131						LN		44		10		false		           10      with that question.  If that's the intent of the				false

		1132						LN		44		11		false		           11      question, I can make that -- ask Mr. White that				false

		1133						LN		44		12		false		           12      question.  We're okay with that.				false

		1134						LN		44		13		false		           13           MS. SCHMID:  I have a series of questions.				false

		1135						LN		44		14		false		           14           MR. ATWATER:  But if it's your intention to				false

		1136						LN		44		15		false		           15      determine whether or not the company -- Mr. White in				false

		1137						LN		44		16		false		           16      particular -- knows anything about the bankruptcy and of				false

		1138						LN		44		17		false		           17      Talisker's impact on the company, you could ask those				false

		1139						LN		44		18		false		           18      questions.				false

		1140						LN		44		19		false		           19           MS. SCHMID:  That would be up to the administrator.				false

		1141						LN		44		20		false		           20           MR. ATWATER:  We don't object.  Excuse me.				false

		1142						LN		44		21		false		           21           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I understand for purposes of				false

		1143						LN		44		22		false		           22      the question that was just restated to me -- I				false

		1144						LN		44		23		false		           23      understand that objection to be withdrawn and we'll				false

		1145						LN		44		24		false		           24      proceed.				false

		1146						LN		44		25		false		           25           MS. SCHMID:				false

		1147						PG		45		0		false		page 45				false

		1148						LN		45		1		false		            1           Q.  Okay.  So Mr. White -- and this is a slightly				false

		1149						LN		45		2		false		            2      different question, but it's along the same lines -- is				false

		1150						LN		45		3		false		            3      Talisker or a subsidiary of Talisker currently involved				false

		1151						LN		45		4		false		            4      in CWC or TCFC, to your knowledge?				false

		1152						LN		45		5		false		            5           A.  A Talisker entity is still a minority partner,				false

		1153						LN		45		6		false		            6      a non-managing minority partner in the entity.				false

		1154						LN		45		7		false		            7           MR. ATWATER:  In which entity?				false

		1155						LN		45		8		false		            8           THE WITNESS:  I couldn't tell you, but it's in the				false

		1156						LN		45		9		false		            9      Canyons investment entity.				false

		1157						LN		45		10		false		           10           MS. SCHMID:				false

		1158						LN		45		11		false		           11           Q.  Okay.  To your knowledge, do you know if				false

		1159						LN		45		12		false		           12      Talisker is currently in bankruptcy?				false

		1160						LN		45		13		false		           13           A.  To my knowledge, Talisker is not in bankruptcy.				false

		1161						LN		45		14		false		           14           Q.  Okay.  That eliminates that line of questions.				false

		1162						LN		45		15		false		           15      Thank you.				false

		1163						LN		45		16		false		           16           A.  But to clarify, to answer your real question,				false

		1164						LN		45		17		false		           17      is that there are certain other Talisker assets outside				false

		1165						LN		45		18		false		           18      of the Canyons which were in bankruptcy and to our				false

		1166						LN		45		19		false		           19      knowledge are now owned by Wells Fargo bank.				false

		1167						LN		45		20		false		           20           Q.  Because Wells Fargo bank initiated a bankruptcy				false

		1168						LN		45		21		false		           21      proceeding against Talisker; is that correct?				false

		1169						LN		45		22		false		           22           A.  Right.  But those assets have nothing to do				false

		1170						LN		45		23		false		           23      with the Canyons, they're not related to TCFC or to				false

		1171						LN		45		24		false		           24      Community Water Company.				false

		1172						LN		45		25		false		           25           Q.  Thank you.  That was very helpful.  So it was				false

		1173						PG		46		0		false		page 46				false

		1174						LN		46		1		false		            1      2010 when Varde Partners went through -- and I'm going				false

		1175						LN		46		2		false		            2      to mispronounce it -- "flara" -- "plara" --				false

		1176						LN		46		3		false		            3           A.  No.  I don't know when "flara" was created.				false

		1177						LN		46		4		false		            4           Q.  Okay.  So Varde Partners invested in the				false

		1178						LN		46		5		false		            5      Canyons; correct?				false

		1179						LN		46		6		false		            6           A.  Correct.				false

		1180						LN		46		7		false		            7           Q.  As part of that investment, was CWC and TCFC				false

		1181						LN		46		8		false		            8      brought into the -- I'll just call it the family of				false

		1182						LN		46		9		false		            9      assets -- pertaining to Varde Partners?				false

		1183						LN		46		10		false		           10           A.  I believe that those were already part of the				false

		1184						LN		46		11		false		           11      assets that were invested in, but I wasn't there at that				false

		1185						LN		46		12		false		           12      time so I can't testify to that.				false

		1186						LN		46		13		false		           13           Q.  You've had experiences as an investment banker				false

		1187						LN		46		14		false		           14      for several years you said.  In your experience as an				false

		1188						LN		46		15		false		           15      investment banker, is it common for an entity prior to				false

		1189						LN		46		16		false		           16      purchasing an interest to do a due diligence				false

		1190						LN		46		17		false		           17      investigation?				false

		1191						LN		46		18		false		           18           A.  Generally common.				false

		1192						LN		46		19		false		           19           Q.  Would that due diligence investigation include				false

		1193						LN		46		20		false		           20      generally a look at the balance sheets of a company				false

		1194						LN		46		21		false		           21      that's going to be acquired?				false

		1195						LN		46		22		false		           22           A.  I told you that I wasn't around at the time and				false

		1196						LN		46		23		false		           23      I'm not --				false

		1197						LN		46		24		false		           24           Q.  I'm asking in general.				false

		1198						LN		46		25		false		           25           A.  Your generality does not make any difference.				false

		1199						PG		47		0		false		page 47				false

		1200						LN		47		1		false		            1      What happened happened.				false

		1201						LN		47		2		false		            2           Q.  Are you refusing to answer the question?				false

		1202						LN		47		3		false		            3           A.  No.  I'm saying to you that -- you know, in				false

		1203						LN		47		4		false		            4      general, yes.  But I cannot testify as to what was				false

		1204						LN		47		5		false		            5      investigated at the time the investment was made.  And I				false

		1205						LN		47		6		false		            6      think it's irrelevant frankly.  We are where we are				false

		1206						LN		47		7		false		            7      today and the investment needs to be made now in fixing				false

		1207						LN		47		8		false		            8      this system.  That's all that matters.  Seriously, it's				false

		1208						LN		47		9		false		            9      all that matters.				false

		1209						LN		47		10		false		           10           MS. SCHMID:  Objection.  The witness is being				false

		1210						LN		47		11		false		           11      argumentative with counsel.				false

		1211						LN		47		12		false		           12           MR. ATWATER:  Objection to the line of questioning.				false

		1212						LN		47		13		false		           13           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I agree that the examination				false

		1213						LN		47		14		false		           14      has become argumentative.  I think that Mr. White may				false

		1214						LN		47		15		false		           15      have misinterpreted the question.  As I understood it,				false

		1215						LN		47		16		false		           16      Ms. Schmid was asking general questions about				false

		1216						LN		47		17		false		           17      Mr. White's knowledge and experience as a professional,				false

		1217						LN		47		18		false		           18      and not particulars as to what transpired in this case.				false

		1218						LN		47		19		false		           19           Are you satisfied at this point with the responses				false

		1219						LN		47		20		false		           20      you've been given, Ms. Schmid?				false

		1220						LN		47		21		false		           21           MS. SCHMID:  No.				false

		1221						LN		47		22		false		           22           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Then we'll proceed.  Please				false

		1222						LN		47		23		false		           23      pause, Mr. White, after the question is asked so if				false

		1223						LN		47		24		false		           24      Mr. Atwater wishes to object he has an opportunity to do				false

		1224						LN		47		25		false		           25      so.				false

		1225						PG		48		0		false		page 48				false

		1226						LN		48		1		false		            1           MR. ATWATER:  And I do want to object to the				false

		1227						LN		48		2		false		            2      question on the ground of relevance.  And also Mr. White				false

		1228						LN		48		3		false		            3      never testified that he was an investment banker.  The				false

		1229						LN		48		4		false		            4      question Ms. Schmid asked him was how many years have				false

		1230						LN		48		5		false		            5      you spent in investment banking.  And I think his				false

		1231						LN		48		6		false		            6      interpretation when he said three years was his				false

		1232						LN		48		7		false		            7      involvement with the company, not investment banking.				false

		1233						LN		48		8		false		            8      He does not purport to be an expert on investment				false

		1234						LN		48		9		false		            9      banking and never stated as such.				false

		1235						LN		48		10		false		           10           MR. SAVAGE:  Objection.  Speaking objection.				false

		1236						LN		48		11		false		           11           MR. ATWATER:  Therefore it's irrelevant.  He does				false

		1237						LN		48		12		false		           12      not have the knowledge to answer that question.				false

		1238						LN		48		13		false		           13           MS. SCHMID:  I think I can ask a question -- couple				false

		1239						LN		48		14		false		           14      questions that will finish this line of questioning, and				false

		1240						LN		48		15		false		           15      I believe that the questions are relevant and I believe				false

		1241						LN		48		16		false		           16      that I probably can ask them and have them answered in a				false

		1242						LN		48		17		false		           17      shorter time than what we have spent objecting.				false

		1243						LN		48		18		false		           18           THE HEARING OFFICER:  For the sake of a clear				false

		1244						LN		48		19		false		           19      record, because we've had some objections that haven't				false

		1245						LN		48		20		false		           20      been ruled on, they're all overruled.  The testimony				false

		1246						LN		48		21		false		           21      will stand as it's been transcribed and we will proceed.				false

		1247						LN		48		22		false		           22           MS. SCHMID:				false

		1248						LN		48		23		false		           23           Q.  Okay.  Mr. White, you have experience in				false

		1249						LN		48		24		false		           24      investment banking; is that correct?				false

		1250						LN		48		25		false		           25           A.  I don't even know what the definition of that				false

		1251						PG		49		0		false		page 49				false

		1252						LN		49		1		false		            1      is.  So I have experience in investments.				false

		1253						LN		49		2		false		            2           Q.  You have experience with Varde Partners?				false

		1254						LN		49		3		false		            3           A.  I do.				false

		1255						LN		49		4		false		            4           Q.  You also served as a real estate developer; is				false

		1256						LN		49		5		false		            5      that correct?				false

		1257						LN		49		6		false		            6           A.  I have in the past.				false

		1258						LN		49		7		false		            7           Q.  Is it common that due diligence would be				false

		1259						LN		49		8		false		            8      performed as part of an acquisition of say a real estate				false

		1260						LN		49		9		false		            9      development?				false

		1261						LN		49		10		false		           10           A.  It is.				false

		1262						LN		49		11		false		           11           Q.  Along that lines, would the profit and loss				false

		1263						LN		49		12		false		           12      statements and balance sheets likely be examined?				false

		1264						LN		49		13		false		           13           A.  If they're available.				false

		1265						LN		49		14		false		           14           Q.  Okay.  Those are all my questions on that line.				false

		1266						LN		49		15		false		           15      Just one second.  You've testified about the loan				false

		1267						LN		49		16		false		           16      application and process with the Division of Drinking				false

		1268						LN		49		17		false		           17      Water; is that correct?				false

		1269						LN		49		18		false		           18           A.  Yes.  I've referred to it, yes.				false

		1270						LN		49		19		false		           19           Q.  Were you involved in the decision to seek a				false

		1271						LN		49		20		false		           20      loan from DDW?				false

		1272						LN		49		21		false		           21           A.  Yes.				false

		1273						LN		49		22		false		           22           Q.  Have you been involved in the processing and				false

		1274						LN		49		23		false		           23      application of that?				false

		1275						LN		49		24		false		           24           A.  Generally, yes.				false

		1276						LN		49		25		false		           25           Q.  Were you familiar with what was included in the				false

		1277						PG		50		0		false		page 50				false

		1278						LN		50		1		false		            1      loan initially?				false

		1279						LN		50		2		false		            2           A.  It was based on the Bowen and Collins' study.				false

		1280						LN		50		3		false		            3           Q.  As part of that do you know if the tank was				false

		1281						LN		50		4		false		            4      included?				false

		1282						LN		50		5		false		            5           A.  In the original application it wasn't.  It was				false

		1283						LN		50		6		false		            6      added when the tank failed.				false

		1284						LN		50		7		false		            7           Q.  Do you know if funds for the treatment plant				false

		1285						LN		50		8		false		            8      were included in the original application?				false

		1286						LN		50		9		false		            9           A.  I believe so.				false

		1287						LN		50		10		false		           10           Q.  And is it your testimony that funds associated				false

		1288						LN		50		11		false		           11      with the tank replacement had been withdrawn from the				false

		1289						LN		50		12		false		           12      loan request?				false

		1290						LN		50		13		false		           13           A.  I don't know whether they've been formally				false

		1291						LN		50		14		false		           14      withdrawn or not, but from a timing standpoint and a				false

		1292						LN		50		15		false		           15      practical standpoint, we discussed and have pursued that				false

		1293						LN		50		16		false		           16      as a separate matter.  Because it would have delayed the				false

		1294						LN		50		17		false		           17      construction and implementation of the tank.  I don't				false

		1295						LN		50		18		false		           18      believe it's been formally withdrawn from the loan				false

		1296						LN		50		19		false		           19      request yet.				false

		1297						LN		50		20		false		           20           Q.  If it has not been withdrawn and if the loan is				false

		1298						LN		50		21		false		           21      approved, then money for the tank would be included in				false

		1299						LN		50		22		false		           22      the loan?				false

		1300						LN		50		23		false		           23           A.  It could be.  But that also means that the tank				false

		1301						LN		50		24		false		           24      would not likely be constructed until 2019.				false

		1302						LN		50		25		false		           25           Q.  I'll move to that right now then.  So you				false

		1303						PG		51		0		false		page 51				false

		1304						LN		51		1		false		            1      testified about the tank process in general, and I				false

		1305						LN		51		2		false		            2      didn't take detailed notes so I can't remember the exact				false

		1306						LN		51		3		false		            3      dates.  So I'll ask you now.  When did the tank fail?				false

		1307						LN		51		4		false		            4           A.  I believe it failed in May of this year.				false

		1308						LN		51		5		false		            5           Q.  Of 2017?				false

		1309						LN		51		6		false		            6           A.  Yes.				false

		1310						LN		51		7		false		            7           Q.  So was it in April or May?				false

		1311						LN		51		8		false		            8           A.  It was sometime in the spring of this year.  I				false

		1312						LN		51		9		false		            9      don't remember the exact date.				false

		1313						LN		51		10		false		           10           Q.  Has a replacement tank been ordered?				false

		1314						LN		51		11		false		           11           A.  It has not.				false

		1315						LN		51		12		false		           12           Q.  Have studies been conducted to determine what				false

		1316						LN		51		13		false		           13      replacement tank should be ordered?				false

		1317						LN		51		14		false		           14           A.  They have.				false

		1318						LN		51		15		false		           15           Q.  And those studies were conducted by Summit				false

		1319						LN		51		16		false		           16      Water; is that correct?				false

		1320						LN		51		17		false		           17           A.  Yes.  And by Bowen & Collins.  By both.				false

		1321						LN		51		18		false		           18           Q.  And by Bowen & Collins.  Do you have any idea				false

		1322						LN		51		19		false		           19      how long it takes from the time that a tank is ordered				false

		1323						LN		51		20		false		           20      until a tank suitable for installation is deposited at				false

		1324						LN		51		21		false		           21      the site?				false

		1325						LN		51		22		false		           22           A.  It takes roughly four months.				false

		1326						LN		51		23		false		           23           Q.  So the tank hasn't been ordered yet?				false

		1327						LN		51		24		false		           24           A.  It hasn't.  There is no money to order the				false

		1328						LN		51		25		false		           25      tank.				false

		1329						PG		52		0		false		page 52				false

		1330						LN		52		1		false		            1           Q.  That's another line of questioning.  We'll get				false

		1331						LN		52		2		false		            2      there in a bit.  When does the site for tank placement				false

		1332						LN		52		3		false		            3      become inaccessible?				false

		1333						LN		52		4		false		            4           A.  Probably depends upon snow.  Depends upon the				false

		1334						LN		52		5		false		            5      season.  Likely late November.				false

		1335						LN		52		6		false		            6           Q.  When does the site become accessible again?				false

		1336						LN		52		7		false		            7           A.  Again, it depends upon snow and season and when				false

		1337						LN		52		8		false		            8      it melts.  But likely May.				false

		1338						LN		52		9		false		            9           Q.  Likely May.  Is there additional site				false

		1339						LN		52		10		false		           10      preparation work that is required before the tank would				false

		1340						LN		52		11		false		           11      be placed?				false

		1341						LN		52		12		false		           12           A.  There is.  And that was part of the study.  One				false

		1342						LN		52		13		false		           13      of the reasons the tank failed is that the foundation of				false

		1343						LN		52		14		false		           14      the previous tank was inadequate.  And it has to be				false

		1344						LN		52		15		false		           15      taken out.  So part of the study that we did was to				false

		1345						LN		52		16		false		           16      actually do soil borings and design a new concrete				false

		1346						LN		52		17		false		           17      foundation for the new tank.				false

		1347						LN		52		18		false		           18           Q.  Is that design completed?				false

		1348						LN		52		19		false		           19           A.  It is.				false

		1349						LN		52		20		false		           20           Q.  Has any construction work begun tearing out the				false

		1350						LN		52		21		false		           21      old foundation?				false

		1351						LN		52		22		false		           22           A.  No.				false

		1352						LN		52		23		false		           23           Q.  Has any construction work began dismantling the				false

		1353						LN		52		24		false		           24      old tank?				false

		1354						LN		52		25		false		           25           A.  Yes.  The old tank was dismantled and removed.				false

		1355						PG		53		0		false		page 53				false

		1356						LN		53		1		false		            1           Q.  Has any construction operations been initiated				false

		1357						LN		53		2		false		            2      for the new foundation?				false

		1358						LN		53		3		false		            3           A.  No.  Not yet.  Just the design.				false

		1359						LN		53		4		false		            4           Q.  Do you know if the materials have been ordered?				false

		1360						LN		53		5		false		            5           A.  No.  It's all subject to the ability to pay.				false

		1361						LN		53		6		false		            6           Q.  One option that has been discussed in addition				false

		1362						LN		53		7		false		            7      to a loan from DDW is a loan from the parent				false

		1363						LN		53		8		false		            8      corporation.  Are you familiar with that?				false

		1364						LN		53		9		false		            9           A.  Yes.				false

		1365						LN		53		10		false		           10           Q.  Currently is that an option for the company?				false

		1366						LN		53		11		false		           11           A.  I can't tell you that.  Because I don't know.				false

		1367						LN		53		12		false		           12      At the time that we looked at the voluntary repayment,				false

		1368						LN		53		13		false		           13      it was.  I have not requested it recently and that's why				false

		1369						LN		53		14		false		           14      in the submission we requested for a special assessment				false

		1370						LN		53		15		false		           15      for the entire cost of the tank.  I can't tell whether a				false

		1371						LN		53		16		false		           16      loan would be available today or not.				false

		1372						LN		53		17		false		           17           Q.  Have you withdrawn the loan request?				false

		1373						LN		53		18		false		           18           A.  It wasn't a formal request so there wasn't a				false

		1374						LN		53		19		false		           19      written request.				false

		1375						LN		53		20		false		           20           Q.  Okay.  You also talked about a proposed				false

		1376						LN		53		21		false		           21      transfer to Summit Water Distribution Company, and that				false

		1377						LN		53		22		false		           22      Summit Water has participated in certain investigatory				false

		1378						LN		53		23		false		           23      matters such as what tank should be ordered; is that				false

		1379						LN		53		24		false		           24      correct?				false

		1380						LN		53		25		false		           25           A.  Yes.				false

		1381						PG		54		0		false		page 54				false

		1382						LN		54		1		false		            1           Q.  What currently is the relationship between CWC,				false

		1383						LN		54		2		false		            2      the company, and Summit Water Distribution Company?				false

		1384						LN		54		3		false		            3           A.  Summit Water Distribution Company has been				false

		1385						LN		54		4		false		            4      managing Community Water for as far as I know 20 years				false

		1386						LN		54		5		false		            5      or more.				false

		1387						LN		54		6		false		            6           Q.  And Summit Water is paid to do that; is that				false

		1388						LN		54		7		false		            7      correct?				false

		1389						LN		54		8		false		            8           A.  Yeah.				false

		1390						LN		54		9		false		            9           Q.  Is it correct that CWC is still pursuing a				false

		1391						LN		54		10		false		           10      transfer of the company and its assets in some form to				false

		1392						LN		54		11		false		           11      Summit Water Distribution Company?				false

		1393						LN		54		12		false		           12           A.  I would say that it is pursuing a management				false

		1394						LN		54		13		false		           13      agreement.  As I explained before, the -- Community				false

		1395						LN		54		14		false		           14      Water is currently a liability.  That liability cannot				false

		1396						LN		54		15		false		           15      be transferred to the ownership or the shareholders of				false

		1397						LN		54		16		false		           16      Summit Water.  And so what's been discussed is setting				false

		1398						LN		54		17		false		           17      up Community Water as a nonprofit and have it managed				false

		1399						LN		54		18		false		           18      under a management agreement with Summit Water.  That's				false

		1400						LN		54		19		false		           19      what has been pursued.				false

		1401						LN		54		20		false		           20           Q.  So the assets would be maintained in that				false

		1402						LN		54		21		false		           21      separate newly formed company?				false

		1403						LN		54		22		false		           22           A.  Correct.				false

		1404						LN		54		23		false		           23           Q.  Is the replacement of the tank a prerequisite				false

		1405						LN		54		24		false		           24      to Summit Water Distribution Company taking over the				false

		1406						LN		54		25		false		           25      management in total of CWC as it would exist in that new				false

		1407						PG		55		0		false		page 55				false

		1408						LN		55		1		false		            1      company?				false

		1409						LN		55		2		false		            2           A.  Yes.				false

		1410						LN		55		3		false		            3           Q.  So let's move to the regulatory world.  And				false

		1411						LN		55		4		false		            4      this is your first regulatory proceeding I understand.				false

		1412						LN		55		5		false		            5      But it's an exciting world and we're happy to be in it				false

		1413						LN		55		6		false		            6      and we're glad that you joined us.				false

		1414						LN		55		7		false		            7           So would it surprise you to know that a public				false

		1415						LN		55		8		false		            8      utility has the duty to provide reasonable -- sorry --				false

		1416						LN		55		9		false		            9      to provide adequate service to its customers?				false

		1417						LN		55		10		false		           10           A.  It would not surprise me, no.				false

		1418						LN		55		11		false		           11           Q.  Would it surprise you that that obligation is				false

		1419						LN		55		12		false		           12      independent of the company's financial status?				false

		1420						LN		55		13		false		           13           A.  That would greatly surprise me because I don't				false

		1421						LN		55		14		false		           14      understand how a company operates without the				false

		1422						LN		55		15		false		           15      appropriate financial capacity to pay its bills.				false

		1423						LN		55		16		false		           16           Q.  Is it your understanding -- and I believe you				false

		1424						LN		55		17		false		           17      testified to this -- that a regulated utility can come				false

		1425						LN		55		18		false		           18      in and ask for a rate increase?				false

		1426						LN		55		19		false		           19           A.  Could you repeat the question.				false

		1427						LN		55		20		false		           20           Q.  Is it your understanding -- and I believe you				false

		1428						LN		55		21		false		           21      testified to this -- that a regulated utility can come				false

		1429						LN		55		22		false		           22      in and ask for a rate increase?				false

		1430						LN		55		23		false		           23           A.  Yes.				false

		1431						LN		55		24		false		           24           Q.  We talked a little bit about that.  Would it				false

		1432						LN		55		25		false		           25      surprise you that in 2014 Community Water Company filed				false

		1433						PG		56		0		false		page 56				false

		1434						LN		56		1		false		            1      a rate case?				false

		1435						LN		56		2		false		            2           A.  Would it surprise me?  No.				false

		1436						LN		56		3		false		            3           Q.  Would it surprise you that the application was				false

		1437						LN		56		4		false		            4      ordered incomplete by the commission?				false

		1438						LN		56		5		false		            5           A.  No.				false

		1439						LN		56		6		false		            6           Q.  Would it surprise you that CWC filed a rate				false

		1440						LN		56		7		false		            7      case in July of 2015?				false

		1441						LN		56		8		false		            8           A.  No.				false

		1442						LN		56		9		false		            9           Q.  Would it surprise you that in December of 2015				false

		1443						LN		56		10		false		           10      the water company filed a notice of intent to dismiss				false

		1444						LN		56		11		false		           11      the application?				false

		1445						LN		56		12		false		           12           A.  No.				false

		1446						LN		56		13		false		           13           Q.  Would it surprise you that the reason was that				false

		1447						LN		56		14		false		           14      the company had become aware of information that might				false

		1448						LN		56		15		false		           15      allow it to meet its revenue requirement without				false

		1449						LN		56		16		false		           16      increasing rates?				false

		1450						LN		56		17		false		           17           MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  Relevance.				false

		1451						LN		56		18		false		           18           MS. SCHMID:  Again, I believe this is pertinent				false

		1452						LN		56		19		false		           19      because it explains how we are where we are.				false

		1453						LN		56		20		false		           20           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Overruled.				false

		1454						LN		56		21		false		           21           THE WITNESS:  Yes, that would surprise me.				false

		1455						LN		56		22		false		           22           MS. SCHMID:				false

		1456						LN		56		23		false		           23           Q.  Would it surprise you that in December of 2015				false

		1457						LN		56		24		false		           24      there was an order of dismissal in the rate case?				false

		1458						LN		56		25		false		           25           A.  Again, I have no knowledge of that but --				false

		1459						PG		57		0		false		page 57				false

		1460						LN		57		1		false		            1           Q.  You referenced that there has been a recent				false

		1461						LN		57		2		false		            2      rate case.  Would it surprise you that the Commission				false

		1462						LN		57		3		false		            3      ordered the Division of Public Utilities, not the				false

		1463						LN		57		4		false		            4      company, to file that rate case?				false

		1464						LN		57		5		false		            5           A.  No.				false

		1465						LN		57		6		false		            6           Q.  You talked about the Division thwarting				false

		1466						LN		57		7		false		            7      Community Water's efforts to improve its system.  Along				false

		1467						LN		57		8		false		            8      those lines I have just a few questions.				false

		1468						LN		57		9		false		            9           Would it surprise you that it is the duty of the				false

		1469						LN		57		10		false		           10      public utility to prove that a rate increase is needed?				false

		1470						LN		57		11		false		           11           A.  No.  I suppose it wouldn't surprise me.				false

		1471						LN		57		12		false		           12           Q.  Would it surprise you that the burden of proof				false

		1472						LN		57		13		false		           13      is on the company to make that?				false

		1473						LN		57		14		false		           14           A.  No, it would not surprise me.				false

		1474						LN		57		15		false		           15           MS. SCHMID:  Those are all my questions.  Thank				false

		1475						LN		57		16		false		           16      you.				false

		1476						LN		57		17		false		           17           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Savage?				false

		1477						LN		57		18		false		           18           MR. SAVAGE:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		1478						LN		57		19		false		           19           Q.  Mr. White, I'd like to focus initially on the				false

		1479						LN		57		20		false		           20      proposal that was made to the customers in meetings				false

		1480						LN		57		21		false		           21      concerning a schedule for repayment for the tank.  Do				false

		1481						LN		57		22		false		           22      you understand what I'm talking about?				false

		1482						LN		57		23		false		           23           A.  Uh-huh.				false

		1483						LN		57		24		false		           24           Q.  Would you tell us what the proposal was that				false

		1484						LN		57		25		false		           25      needed a hundred percent approval from the customers?				false

		1485						PG		58		0		false		page 58				false

		1486						LN		58		1		false		            1           A.  So the proposal was to cover a special				false

		1487						LN		58		2		false		            2      assessment necessary to replace the failed tank.				false

		1488						LN		58		3		false		            3           Q.  Wasn't that payment over time?				false

		1489						LN		58		4		false		            4           A.  Yes, it was over time.				false

		1490						LN		58		5		false		            5           Q.  And wasn't it approximately $50 a month or				false

		1491						LN		58		6		false		            6      something for 12 months or more?				false

		1492						LN		58		7		false		            7           A.  I don't recall what the number was, but the				false

		1493						LN		58		8		false		            8      notion was that whatever the cost of it would be, $450-,				false

		1494						LN		58		9		false		            9      $500,000 would be divided by the customer base over a				false

		1495						LN		58		10		false		           10      12-month period.				false

		1496						LN		58		11		false		           11           Q.  So it would be paid in 12 installments over a				false

		1497						LN		58		12		false		           12      12-month period?				false

		1498						LN		58		13		false		           13           A.  Yes.				false

		1499						LN		58		14		false		           14           Q.  And wasn't it also presented that this would be				false

		1500						LN		58		15		false		           15      paid off, this 12-month loan before the $3.6 million				false

		1501						LN		58		16		false		           16      loan needed servicing?				false

		1502						LN		58		17		false		           17           A.  In the original proposal that was the notion.				false

		1503						LN		58		18		false		           18           Q.  Okay.  And you're telling us that you believed				false

		1504						LN		58		19		false		           19      at the time that it would be possible -- before you had				false

		1505						LN		58		20		false		           20      these meetings it would be possible to get all 502 users				false

		1506						LN		58		21		false		           21      to agree to that?				false

		1507						LN		58		22		false		           22           A.  No.  What -- the customers that we met with we				false

		1508						LN		58		23		false		           23      asked whether they would voluntarily go along with the				false

		1509						LN		58		24		false		           24      special assessment if we had unanimous consent.  It was				false

		1510						LN		58		25		false		           25      our understanding -- at least my understanding -- a lay				false

		1511						PG		59		0		false		page 59				false

		1512						LN		59		1		false		            1      person's understanding that we did not need Public				false

		1513						LN		59		2		false		            2      Service Commission approval for that.  So that's why we				false

		1514						LN		59		3		false		            3      sought the unanimous consent of the customer base for				false

		1515						LN		59		4		false		            4      that special assessment.				false

		1516						LN		59		5		false		            5           Q.  Okay.  You've just answered what would have				false

		1517						LN		59		6		false		            6      been my next question.  It was your understanding at the				false

		1518						LN		59		7		false		            7      time that you needn't come to the Public Service				false

		1519						LN		59		8		false		            8      Commission if you could get a hundred percent of the				false

		1520						LN		59		9		false		            9      customers to agree to a 12-month loan payoff of the				false

		1521						LN		59		10		false		           10      $450,000, $500,000 tank?				false

		1522						LN		59		11		false		           11           A.  It was my understanding that if we got				false

		1523						LN		59		12		false		           12      unanimous consent for a special assessment regardless of				false

		1524						LN		59		13		false		           13      the terms, that we did not need to come to a public				false

		1525						LN		59		14		false		           14      service commission.  That was my understanding.  That's				false

		1526						LN		59		15		false		           15      why we made the request.				false

		1527						LN		59		16		false		           16           Q.  Did you have support from the representatives				false

		1528						LN		59		17		false		           17      of the customers at that meeting for that proposal?				false

		1529						LN		59		18		false		           18           A.  We did not.				false

		1530						LN		59		19		false		           19           Q.  Why not?				false

		1531						LN		59		20		false		           20           A.  Because we were told that associations could				false

		1532						LN		59		21		false		           21      not guarantee that their constituents or owners would				false

		1533						LN		59		22		false		           22      pay.				false

		1534						LN		59		23		false		           23           Q.  Did that surprise you?				false

		1535						LN		59		24		false		           24           A.  Yes.  My knowledge since I've developed				false

		1536						LN		59		25		false		           25      condominiums in general, condominium association				false

		1537						PG		60		0		false		page 60				false

		1538						LN		60		1		false		            1      documents and bylaws allow for the associations to make				false

		1539						LN		60		2		false		            2      sure that if there are special assessments, particularly				false

		1540						LN		60		3		false		            3      for infrastructure or emergencies, that they're allowed				false

		1541						LN		60		4		false		            4      to charge their owners and ensure to pay them.				false

		1542						LN		60		5		false		            5           Q.  Weren't there 50 or so homeowners that were not				false

		1543						LN		60		6		false		            6      in condominium associations who were also customers who				false

		1544						LN		60		7		false		            7      would need to consent?				false

		1545						LN		60		8		false		            8           A.  I don't know what the split is, but roughly				false

		1546						LN		60		9		false		            9      70 percent or more of the Community Water customer base				false

		1547						LN		60		10		false		           10      is condominiums.				false

		1548						LN		60		11		false		           11           Q.  Yeah.  But you needed a hundred percent, and				false

		1549						LN		60		12		false		           12      with what you just stated, 30 percent would be people				false

		1550						LN		60		13		false		           13      that were not in condominium associations, individual				false

		1551						LN		60		14		false		           14      owners?  Pardon?				false

		1552						LN		60		15		false		           15           A.  What's your point?				false

		1553						LN		60		16		false		           16           Q.  You would need their consent as well?				false

		1554						LN		60		17		false		           17           A.  Correct.  But we didn't have the consent of the				false

		1555						LN		60		18		false		           18      condo owners so what difference does it make?				false

		1556						LN		60		19		false		           19           Q.  No.  No.  You're saying -- which one of us did				false

		1557						LN		60		20		false		           20      not agree to try to get our condominium associations to				false

		1558						LN		60		21		false		           21      support --				false

		1559						LN		60		22		false		           22           A.  Hidden Creek was one.				false

		1560						LN		60		23		false		           23           Q.  Pardon?				false

		1561						LN		60		24		false		           24           A.  Hidden Creek was one.  It was specifically				false

		1562						LN		60		25		false		           25      stated in the meeting that the condo associations did				false

		1563						PG		61		0		false		page 61				false

		1564						LN		61		1		false		            1      not have the capacity to guarantee payments by owners.				false

		1565						LN		61		2		false		            2           Q.  At that meeting?				false

		1566						LN		61		3		false		            3           A.  At that meeting.				false

		1567						LN		61		4		false		            4           Q.  Right.  But didn't they express an interest in				false

		1568						LN		61		5		false		            5      pursuing that and trying to get a loan of that type with				false

		1569						LN		61		6		false		            6      an agreement from the homeowners?				false

		1570						LN		61		7		false		            7           A.  There was interest in pursuing it, but there				false

		1571						LN		61		8		false		            8      was no conclusion.				false

		1572						LN		61		9		false		            9           Q.  All right.  And there was a series of meetings				false

		1573						LN		61		10		false		           10      about this issue, was there not?  Two, three?				false

		1574						LN		61		11		false		           11           A.  There were multiple meetings with customers.				false

		1575						LN		61		12		false		           12      Yes, we've had multiple meetings with customers.				false

		1576						LN		61		13		false		           13           Q.  And you said you went to your executive				false

		1577						LN		61		14		false		           14      committee on -- I guess the company's board that owns				false

		1578						LN		61		15		false		           15      CWC?  Was that the organization you went to?				false

		1579						LN		61		16		false		           16           A.  I already explained what the ownership				false

		1580						LN		61		17		false		           17      structure of CWC is.				false

		1581						LN		61		18		false		           18           Q.  Okay.  Who's the direct owner?				false

		1582						LN		61		19		false		           19           A.  ASC Utah.				false

		1583						LN		61		20		false		           20           Q.  Okay.  When you just told us a minute ago -- a				false

		1584						LN		61		21		false		           21      few minutes ago that you went to the board and told --				false

		1585						LN		61		22		false		           22      or your executive committee of the board and told them				false

		1586						LN		61		23		false		           23      that you could not get a hundred percent agreement of				false

		1587						LN		61		24		false		           24      the customers so forget about the loan, was that the				false

		1588						LN		61		25		false		           25      board of ASC Utah?				false

		1589						PG		62		0		false		page 62				false

		1590						LN		62		1		false		            1           A.  There is no board of ASC Utah.				false

		1591						LN		62		2		false		            2           Q.  So who did you go to?				false

		1592						LN		62		3		false		            3           A.  To the executive committee of TCFC Finance.				false

		1593						LN		62		4		false		            4           Q.  Okay.  And I've seen TCFC Finance and TCFC.				false

		1594						LN		62		5		false		            5      Are they the same entity?				false

		1595						LN		62		6		false		            6           A.  Yes.				false

		1596						LN		62		7		false		            7           Q.  So does TCFC Financial own ASC Utah?				false

		1597						LN		62		8		false		            8           A.  So I already explained the structure.  The sole				false
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		1841						LN		71		18		false		           18           A.  Correct.				false

		1842						LN		71		19		false		           19           Q.  You indicated that -- well, let's back up.  I'm				false

		1843						LN		71		20		false		           20      still not clear as to who bought what.  When was -- Did				false

		1844						LN		71		21		false		           21      ASC Utah to your knowledge own CWC before Talisker				false

		1845						LN		71		22		false		           22      became involved in the Canyons?				false

		1846						LN		71		23		false		           23           A.  I wasn't around at that time so I have no idea				false

		1847						LN		71		24		false		           24      of the legal structure.				false

		1848						LN		71		25		false		           25           Q.  Do you have any knowledge as to who owned				false

		1849						PG		72		0		false		page 72				false

		1850						LN		72		1		false		            1      Community Water before Talisker acquired an interest in				false

		1851						LN		72		2		false		            2      the Canyons?				false

		1852						LN		72		3		false		            3           A.  Again my understanding is that ASCU owned				false

		1853						LN		72		4		false		            4      Community Water, but I wasn't around at the time.  I				false

		1854						LN		72		5		false		            5      don't know that as fact.				false

		1855						LN		72		6		false		            6           Q.  And then when was it that Talisker purchased an				false

		1856						LN		72		7		false		            7      interest in the Canyons?				false

		1857						LN		72		8		false		            8           A.  In 2008.				false

		1858						LN		72		9		false		            9           Q.  2008.  And at that time did it acquire				false

		1859						LN		72		10		false		           10      indirectly Community Water?				false

		1860						LN		72		11		false		           11           A.  Again, to my knowledge, that was part of the				false

		1861						LN		72		12		false		           12      asset base, but I wasn't around at the time so I can't				false

		1862						LN		72		13		false		           13      tell you how the structure worked.				false

		1863						LN		72		14		false		           14           Q.  Do you know of any change in the structure				false

		1864						LN		72		15		false		           15      since or prior to the structure you just told us about?				false

		1865						LN		72		16		false		           16           A.  I'm not aware, no.				false

		1866						LN		72		17		false		           17           Q.  Is it your understanding that TCFC when it				false

		1867						LN		72		18		false		           18      acquired ASC, acquired the company of Community Water?				false

		1868						LN		72		19		false		           19           A.  Again, I don't know what the transaction was				false

		1869						LN		72		20		false		           20      that took place.  But it's my understanding that				false

		1870						LN		72		21		false		           21      Community Water were part of the assets of the				false

		1871						LN		72		22		false		           22      investment.				false

		1872						LN		72		23		false		           23           Q.  Right.  But it was a company that was				false

		1873						LN		72		24		false		           24      purchased, not just the assets of it.  You didn't buy				false

		1874						LN		72		25		false		           25      the pump and the tanks and the irrigation lines.				false

		1875						PG		73		0		false		page 73				false

		1876						LN		73		1		false		            1      Talisker bought Community Water, the company?				false

		1877						LN		73		2		false		            2           A.  I've already testified to the fact I don't know				false

		1878						LN		73		3		false		            3      how that transaction was structured.				false

		1879						LN		73		4		false		            4           Q.  Okay.  When did you first become involved?				false

		1880						LN		73		5		false		            5           A.  I became involved in February of 2014.				false

		1881						LN		73		6		false		            6           Q.  And as of February 2014, TCFC owned the company				false

		1882						LN		73		7		false		            7      CWC, not just its assets?				false

		1883						LN		73		8		false		            8           MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  It's been stated that				false

		1884						LN		73		9		false		            9      TCFC owned ASC Utah.				false

		1885						LN		73		10		false		           10           MR. SAVAGE:				false

		1886						LN		73		11		false		           11           Q.  Okay.  Well, indirectly owned the company.  ASC				false

		1887						LN		73		12		false		           12      owned the water company; is that correct?				false

		1888						LN		73		13		false		           13           A.  I've already explained the structure.				false

		1889						LN		73		14		false		           14           Q.  Yeah, but I'm interested in making it clear for				false

		1890						LN		73		15		false		           15      the record that Talisker, an entity controlled by				false

		1891						LN		73		16		false		           16      Talisker, acquired the company and not just the assets				false

		1892						LN		73		17		false		           17      of the company?				false

		1893						LN		73		18		false		           18           A.  And I've already testified that I don't know				false

		1894						LN		73		19		false		           19      how the company was acquired.				false

		1895						LN		73		20		false		           20           Q.  Okay.  So you don't know if the company was				false

		1896						LN		73		21		false		           21      acquired or just its assets were acquired?				false

		1897						LN		73		22		false		           22           A.  I've already answered your question.				false

		1898						LN		73		23		false		           23           Q.  And it is you don't know?				false

		1899						LN		73		24		false		           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  It's asked and answered.				false

		1900						LN		73		25		false		           25      Let's move on.				false

		1901						PG		74		0		false		page 74				false

		1902						LN		74		1		false		            1           MR. SAVAGE:  You don't know; correct?				false

		1903						LN		74		2		false		            2           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Asked and answered.  Let's				false

		1904						LN		74		3		false		            3      move on.				false

		1905						LN		74		4		false		            4           MR. SAVAGE:				false

		1906						LN		74		5		false		            5           Q.  Now you stated in your direct testimony that				false

		1907						LN		74		6		false		            6      people have been in denial about the dilapidated				false

		1908						LN		74		7		false		            7      condition of the Community Water infrastructure.  Do you				false

		1909						LN		74		8		false		            8      recall that testimony?				false

		1910						LN		74		9		false		            9           A.  I do.				false

		1911						LN		74		10		false		           10           Q.  Who are the people?				false

		1912						LN		74		11		false		           11           A.  You.				false

		1913						LN		74		12		false		           12           Q.  So you're blaming the customers for the				false

		1914						LN		74		13		false		           13      condition of the company's infrastructure?				false

		1915						LN		74		14		false		           14           MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  Relevance.				false

		1916						LN		74		15		false		           15           MR. SAVAGE:  That's what he just said.				false

		1917						LN		74		16		false		           16           THE WITNESS:  I'm not blaming anybody.				false

		1918						LN		74		17		false		           17           THE HEARING OFFICER:  The objection is sustained.				false

		1919						LN		74		18		false		           18      It's argumentative.  If you could restate your question				false

		1920						LN		74		19		false		           19      in a way that would be more constructive to the issues				false

		1921						LN		74		20		false		           20      at hand, that would be helpful.				false

		1922						LN		74		21		false		           21           MR. SAVAGE:				false

		1923						LN		74		22		false		           22           Q.  All right.  In saying the people have been in				false

		1924						LN		74		23		false		           23      denial, you said me.  By me, did you mean just me or do				false

		1925						LN		74		24		false		           24      you mean the users, the customers?				false

		1926						LN		74		25		false		           25           A.  So in all these conversations which you know				false

		1927						PG		75		0		false		page 75				false

		1928						LN		75		1		false		            1      very well, because you've attended all these and spoken				false

		1929						LN		75		2		false		            2      at length -- in all of our attempts to try and resolve				false

		1930						LN		75		3		false		            3      these issues and talk about the infrastructure				false

		1931						LN		75		4		false		            4      deficiencies and ways of trying to rectify them, the				false

		1932						LN		75		5		false		            5      customers have been more interested in what they're				false

		1933						LN		75		6		false		            6      paying per month and trying to, you know, maintain that				false

		1934						LN		75		7		false		            7      at the lowest possible level versus, you know,				false

		1935						LN		75		8		false		            8      understand, engage in and agree to a payment method to				false

		1936						LN		75		9		false		            9      repair the system.				false

		1937						LN		75		10		false		           10           And every single one of these cases you've objected				false

		1938						LN		75		11		false		           11      to.  The last case you objected to.  You're objecting to				false

		1939						LN		75		12		false		           12      this one.  In every case the customers have -- and you				false

		1940						LN		75		13		false		           13      as representatives of your associations -- have objected				false

		1941						LN		75		14		false		           14      to the rate case.				false

		1942						LN		75		15		false		           15           Q.  I don't want to be argumentative, but I think				false

		1943						LN		75		16		false		           16      I've made an alternative proposal.  I'm objecting to the				false

		1944						LN		75		17		false		           17      company's proposal for how this is paid.  You're				false

		1945						LN		75		18		false		           18      interpreting that as meaning the people who object to				false

		1946						LN		75		19		false		           19      the amount of the rate increase or how the rate increase				false

		1947						LN		75		20		false		           20      is to be accomplished, that those are people that are				false

		1948						LN		75		21		false		           21      trying to keep the system in a dilapidated condition.				false

		1949						LN		75		22		false		           22      Is that your belief?				false

		1950						LN		75		23		false		           23           A.  No.  My testimony is that they're trying to				false

		1951						LN		75		24		false		           24      keep their rates as low as possible and they're not				false

		1952						LN		75		25		false		           25      acknowledging what it actually costs to repair the				false

		1953						PG		76		0		false		page 76				false

		1954						LN		76		1		false		            1      system.  We have an engineering study which Fran				false

		1955						LN		76		2		false		            2      Amendola and others have questioned the validity of, and				false

		1956						LN		76		3		false		            3      we don't really have to do that.  We don't really have				false

		1957						LN		76		4		false		            4      to make all those changes to the treatment system to				false

		1958						LN		76		5		false		            5      make it work.  We can get by with less.  And all these				false

		1959						LN		76		6		false		            6      conversations are an attempt to thwart our ability to				false

		1960						LN		76		7		false		            7      run this company appropriately and make the repairs that				false

		1961						LN		76		8		false		            8      are necessary to have it function properly.				false

		1962						LN		76		9		false		            9           Q.  And you've said as you just stated now, every				false

		1963						LN		76		10		false		           10      attempt has been thwarted; correct?				false

		1964						LN		76		11		false		           11           A.  That's what I said.				false

		1965						LN		76		12		false		           12           Q.  And isn't it true that since you became				false

		1966						LN		76		13		false		           13      involved, this is the first rate case that has been				false

		1967						LN		76		14		false		           14      filed by Community Water for a capital improvement other				false

		1968						LN		76		15		false		           15      than the one that they moved to dismiss in 2016?				false

		1969						LN		76		16		false		           16           A.  Again, I'm not -- as I testified before, I was				false

		1970						LN		76		17		false		           17      not surprised about the previous rate cases in terms of				false

		1971						LN		76		18		false		           18      attempts, but as I was aware that there had been				false

		1972						LN		76		19		false		           19      attempts before, again to my involvement this is the				false

		1973						LN		76		20		false		           20      first time that we have brought one forward and brought				false

		1974						LN		76		21		false		           21      all the evidence necessary to make the case.				false

		1975						LN		76		22		false		           22           Q.  Okay.  So to your knowledge this is the first				false

		1976						LN		76		23		false		           23      time that a rate case for a capital improvement has been				false

		1977						LN		76		24		false		           24      brought forward?				false

		1978						LN		76		25		false		           25           A.  I don't know whether there have been previous				false

		1979						PG		77		0		false		page 77				false

		1980						LN		77		1		false		            1      cases brought forward for capital improvements.				false

		1981						LN		77		2		false		            2           Q.  I asked your knowledge.				false

		1982						LN		77		3		false		            3           A.  I wasn't involved in any of the previous rate				false

		1983						LN		77		4		false		            4      cases.				false

		1984						LN		77		5		false		            5           Q.  To your knowledge, this is the first one?				false

		1985						LN		77		6		false		            6           MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  The record is clear on				false

		1986						LN		77		7		false		            7      this issue.				false

		1987						LN		77		8		false		            8           THE HEARING OFFICER:  He said "Yeah, I have no				false

		1988						LN		77		9		false		            9      knowledge" and you're asking him again if he did.				false

		1989						LN		77		10		false		           10      Objection is sustained for the record.				false

		1990						LN		77		11		false		           11           MR. SAVAGE:				false

		1991						LN		77		12		false		           12           Q.  Do you recall me suggesting in May or June that				false

		1992						LN		77		13		false		           13      you ought to go on a parallel track and file a rate case				false

		1993						LN		77		14		false		           14      for interim rate case to cover this failed tank at the				false

		1994						LN		77		15		false		           15      same time you were trying to work a deal with Summit				false

		1995						LN		77		16		false		           16      Water?				false

		1996						LN		77		17		false		           17           A.  I don't recall that.				false

		1997						LN		77		18		false		           18           Q.  Do you recall me proposing a rotational				false

		1998						LN		77		19		false		           19      watering system to allow us to try to maintain our				false

		1999						LN		77		20		false		           20      landscaping with some minimal water without endangering				false

		2000						LN		77		21		false		           21      the capacity of the remaining tank?				false

		2001						LN		77		22		false		           22           A.  I do recall you requesting that.				false

		2002						LN		77		23		false		           23           Q.  And that was rejected, was it not?				false

		2003						LN		77		24		false		           24           A.  It was.				false

		2004						LN		77		25		false		           25           Q.  Now isn't it true in the Summit Water proposal				false

		2005						PG		78		0		false		page 78				false

		2006						LN		78		1		false		            1      for this, you said a mutual company that the customers				false

		2007						LN		78		2		false		            2      were owned as part of the discussions -- isn't it true				false

		2008						LN		78		3		false		            3      that the proposed new company that would take over CWC,				false

		2009						LN		78		4		false		            4      that the -- that Summit Water would own all of the class				false

		2010						LN		78		5		false		            5      one stock and the users would be issued class two stock?				false

		2011						LN		78		6		false		            6           MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  Relevance.				false

		2012						LN		78		7		false		            7           MR. SAVAGE:				false

		2013						LN		78		8		false		            8           Q.  Do you recall that?				false

		2014						LN		78		9		false		            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Overruled.				false

		2015						LN		78		10		false		           10           THE WITNESS:  There have been a number of				false

		2016						LN		78		11		false		           11      discussions about how to structure this so that the				false

		2017						LN		78		12		false		           12      liabilities of Community Water did not extend to Summit				false

		2018						LN		78		13		false		           13      Water, but that the company be allowed to be managed in				false

		2019						LN		78		14		false		           14      a professional manner by a company who was used to doing				false

		2020						LN		78		15		false		           15      it.				false

		2021						LN		78		16		false		           16           MR. SAVAGE:				false

		2022						LN		78		17		false		           17           Q.  And ownership and control by vote.  Wasn't it				false

		2023						LN		78		18		false		           18      true that the only proposal that we saw was that Summit				false

		2024						LN		78		19		false		           19      Water would own all of the class one stock?				false

		2025						LN		78		20		false		           20           A.  There have been several proposals in terms of				false

		2026						LN		78		21		false		           21      how to structure this.  I've already explained what the				false

		2027						LN		78		22		false		           22      intention of the structure is.				false

		2028						LN		78		23		false		           23           Q.  I want to know the ownership and who gets the				false

		2029						LN		78		24		false		           24      vote.				false

		2030						LN		78		25		false		           25           A.  There has been nothing settled about the -- it				false

		2031						PG		79		0		false		page 79				false

		2032						LN		79		1		false		            1      was one proposal.				false

		2033						LN		79		2		false		            2           Q.  Right.  What was that proposal?  Class one				false

		2034						LN		79		3		false		            3      stock and class two stock, wasn't it?				false

		2035						LN		79		4		false		            4           A.  The proposal was for the management of the				false

		2036						LN		79		5		false		            5      company that would be controlled by Summit Water.				false

		2037						LN		79		6		false		            6           MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  Relevance.				false

		2038						LN		79		7		false		            7           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Overruled.				false

		2039						LN		79		8		false		            8           MR. SAVAGE:				false

		2040						LN		79		9		false		            9           Q.  And Summit Water would have control of the --				false

		2041						LN		79		10		false		           10      electing the majority of the board of the remaining				false

		2042						LN		79		11		false		           11      company?				false

		2043						LN		79		12		false		           12           A.  That was one proposal.				false

		2044						LN		79		13		false		           13           Q.  That's the only one that's been made to the				false

		2045						LN		79		14		false		           14      user, isn't it?				false

		2046						LN		79		15		false		           15           A.  I've explained that it's been a process to come				false

		2047						LN		79		16		false		           16      up with a viable means to transfer the company into				false

		2048						LN		79		17		false		           17      professional ownership.				false

		2049						LN		79		18		false		           18           Q.  Isn't that the only one that's been presented?				false

		2050						LN		79		19		false		           19           A.  I've explained that it's been a process to come				false

		2051						LN		79		20		false		           20      up with the viable means to transfer the company into				false

		2052						LN		79		21		false		           21      professional ownership.				false

		2053						LN		79		22		false		           22           Q.  And has there been in any of those proposals a				false

		2054						LN		79		23		false		           23      proposal that would allow the users to control the				false

		2055						LN		79		24		false		           24      number of board members?				false

		2056						LN		79		25		false		           25           A.  It has been discussed.				false

		2057						PG		80		0		false		page 80				false

		2058						LN		80		1		false		            1           Q.  Has that been proposed to the users?				false

		2059						LN		80		2		false		            2           A.  It has been discussed, but it has not been				false

		2060						LN		80		3		false		            3      proposed to the users.				false

		2061						LN		80		4		false		            4           Q.  Who has it been discussed between?  You and				false

		2062						LN		80		5		false		            5      Summit Water?				false

		2063						LN		80		6		false		            6           A.  Discussed between me and Summit Water and our				false

		2064						LN		80		7		false		            7      counsel.				false

		2065						LN		80		8		false		            8           Q.  I don't want to know about discussions with				false

		2066						LN		80		9		false		            9      your counsel.  So just so we're clear on the record,				false

		2067						LN		80		10		false		           10      when you say there is a proposal for a -- for the				false

		2068						LN		80		11		false		           11      owners -- for the users to take over ownership of the				false

		2069						LN		80		12		false		           12      company, that has been a discussion between you and				false

		2070						LN		80		13		false		           13      Summit Water?				false

		2071						LN		80		14		false		           14           A.  And our counsel, yes.				false

		2072						LN		80		15		false		           15           Q.  Okay.  Does Summit Water require -- as a				false

		2073						LN		80		16		false		           16      condition to being an owner in that new company, does it				false

		2074						LN		80		17		false		           17      require as a condition that the new company not be under				false

		2075						LN		80		18		false		           18      Public Service Commission control?				false

		2076						LN		80		19		false		           19           A.  Summit Water is not under Public Service				false

		2077						LN		80		20		false		           20      Commission control.  It's a non-profit shareholder owned				false

		2078						LN		80		21		false		           21      company.				false

		2079						LN		80		22		false		           22           Q.  You didn't answer my question.				false

		2080						LN		80		23		false		           23           A.  So yes, it's a requirement if it was to be				false

		2081						LN		80		24		false		           24      transferred to their management that it not be under				false

		2082						LN		80		25		false		           25      public service control.				false

		2083						PG		81		0		false		page 81				false

		2084						LN		81		1		false		            1           Q.  Thank you.				false

		2085						LN		81		2		false		            2           A.  Or I should say oversight run.				false

		2086						LN		81		3		false		            3           Q.  Do you recall anybody on behalf of TCFC or				false

		2087						LN		81		4		false		            4      Summit Water or CWC in one of these meetings stating				false

		2088						LN		81		5		false		            5      that it would complicate a deal with Summit Water to				false

		2089						LN		81		6		false		            6      apply to the Public Service Commission for an emergency				false

		2090						LN		81		7		false		            7      loan to fix this tank?				false

		2091						LN		81		8		false		            8           A.  No.				false

		2092						LN		81		9		false		            9           Q.  Okay.  You don't recall Emily Lewis saying				false

		2093						LN		81		10		false		           10      something like that?				false

		2094						LN		81		11		false		           11           A.  No.				false

		2095						LN		81		12		false		           12           Q.  Isn't it true that you represented to the				false

		2096						LN		81		13		false		           13      customers that proceeding before the Public Service				false

		2097						LN		81		14		false		           14      Commission a special assessment will take a minimum of				false

		2098						LN		81		15		false		           15      120 days and more reasonably 240 days?				false

		2099						LN		81		16		false		           16           A.  It was our understanding after repeated				false

		2100						LN		81		17		false		           17      requests through Emily Lewis, that there was no				false

		2101						LN		81		18		false		           18      provision for an emergency assessment or an emergency				false

		2102						LN		81		19		false		           19      rate increase.  That the -- that whatever the				false

		2103						LN		81		20		false		           20      application process is, that there was no provision for,				false

		2104						LN		81		21		false		           21      you know, an emergency request or an emergency, you				false

		2105						LN		81		22		false		           22      know, special assessment or rate increase.  That it				false

		2106						LN		81		23		false		           23      needed to take its full course of roughly 240 -- that				false

		2107						LN		81		24		false		           24      every rate increase or every rate case whether it be				false

		2108						LN		81		25		false		           25      special assessment or rate case, that it took 240 days.				false

		2109						PG		82		0		false		page 82				false

		2110						LN		82		1		false		            1           Q.  And yet we're here today in less than 45 days?				false

		2111						LN		82		2		false		            2           A.  This is only the beginning of this case.  This				false

		2112						LN		82		3		false		            3      is not the conclusion of this case.  This case will go				false

		2113						LN		82		4		false		            4      on.  As my understanding and as a layperson and a				false

		2114						LN		82		5		false		            5      lawyer, that this will go on.  That this is only the				false

		2115						LN		82		6		false		            6      first part of this and that the subsequent part of the				false

		2116						LN		82		7		false		            7      hearing can last up to 240 days.				false

		2117						LN		82		8		false		            8           Q.  For adjustments to the interim rate?				false

		2118						LN		82		9		false		            9           A.  I'm not going to opine as to --				false

		2119						LN		82		10		false		           10           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Savage -- you don't need				false

		2120						LN		82		11		false		           11      to answer that.  Mr. Savage, let's go ahead and move on				false

		2121						LN		82		12		false		           12      from this line of questioning.  We know what the process				false

		2122						LN		82		13		false		           13      is here.				false

		2123						LN		82		14		false		           14           MR. SAVAGE:				false

		2124						LN		82		15		false		           15           Q.  Anyhow, you represented 240 days in your --				false

		2125						LN		82		16		false		           16           A.  That was my understanding and remains my				false

		2126						LN		82		17		false		           17      understanding today.				false

		2127						LN		82		18		false		           18           Q.  Okay.  That's all I have.  Thank you, sir.				false

		2128						LN		82		19		false		           19           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Lange?				false

		2129						LN		82		20		false		           20           MR. LANGE:  I have no questions for Mr. White at				false

		2130						LN		82		21		false		           21      this point in time.				false

		2131						LN		82		22		false		           22           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  And Ms. Miller?				false

		2132						LN		82		23		false		           23           MS. MILLER:  Yes, I have a couple of things.				false

		2133						LN		82		24		false		           24           Q.  Mr. White, you testified that Hidden Creek HOA				false

		2134						LN		82		25		false		           25      couldn't guarantee repayment of an assessment for the				false

		2135						PG		83		0		false		page 83				false

		2136						LN		83		1		false		            1      tank.  Would you be surprised to understand that in fact				false

		2137						LN		83		2		false		            2      our amended condominium declaration requires that we				false

		2138						LN		83		3		false		            3      have -- first obtain a majority of the project's				false

		2139						LN		83		4		false		            4      ownership interest before we can make a one-time special				false

		2140						LN		83		5		false		            5      assessment, but that a monthly payment plan would not be				false

		2141						LN		83		6		false		            6      a problem for us to pass on to our owners?				false

		2142						LN		83		7		false		            7           A.  Yes, that would be a surprise.				false

		2143						LN		83		8		false		            8           Q.  Well, that in fact is the current case with our				false

		2144						LN		83		9		false		            9      condominium declaration.				false

		2145						LN		83		10		false		           10           A.  That was never expressed to us.				false

		2146						LN		83		11		false		           11           Q.  Well, maybe you didn't listen to us.  Let me				false

		2147						LN		83		12		false		           12      ask you another question.  Do you recall a request for				false

		2148						LN		83		13		false		           13      documentation to support denial of the rotational				false

		2149						LN		83		14		false		           14      irrigation?  In other words, a request for system				false

		2150						LN		83		15		false		           15      modeling that shows that the system cannot support				false

		2151						LN		83		16		false		           16      rotational irrigation during the summer months to keep				false

		2152						LN		83		17		false		           17      our landscaping alive.				false

		2153						LN		83		18		false		           18           A.  So let's explain that.  The remaining tank,				false

		2154						LN		83		19		false		           19      which also is 40 years old, and could fail at any time				false

		2155						LN		83		20		false		           20      is roughly 225,000 gallons.  At the time that the larger				false

		2156						LN		83		21		false		           21      of the two tanks failed, we asked the fire department to				false

		2157						LN		83		22		false		           22      come out and inspect the tank and tell us how much				false

		2158						LN		83		23		false		           23      needed to be held in reserve in order to keep an				false

		2159						LN		83		24		false		           24      adequate supply of water in the event of fire or				false

		2160						LN		83		25		false		           25      emergency.  It was half the tank's capacity.  On advice				false

		2161						PG		84		0		false		page 84				false

		2162						LN		84		1		false		            1      of counsel we determined that we should not allow				false

		2163						LN		84		2		false		            2      irrigation and put that out to all -- gave notice to all				false

		2164						LN		84		3		false		            3      the customers that we would not be able to provide the				false

		2165						LN		84		4		false		            4      irrigation water for this summer.  We did that as a life				false

		2166						LN		84		5		false		            5      safety manager and on the advice of counsel, that we				false

		2167						LN		84		6		false		            6      would put homes and lives in peril if we allowed				false

		2168						LN		84		7		false		            7      irrigation that potentially drew that tank down below				false

		2169						LN		84		8		false		            8      the halfway mark, roughly $110,000 to $115,000 gallons.				false

		2170						LN		84		9		false		            9           That actually happened fairly recently when				false

		2171						LN		84		10		false		           10      apparently some electrical switch was triggered on the				false

		2172						LN		84		11		false		           11      well, and the tank was drawn down below that emergency				false

		2173						LN		84		12		false		           12      level.  But on advice of counsel and to notice of all				false

		2174						LN		84		13		false		           13      the customers with full explanation as to why, we said				false

		2175						LN		84		14		false		           14      no irrigation for this summer.  And a number of the				false

		2176						LN		84		15		false		           15      homeowners, including Mr. Savage, violated that and				false

		2177						LN		84		16		false		           16      irrigated anyway.				false

		2178						LN		84		17		false		           17           Q.  So you're telling me you did not have an				false

		2179						LN		84		18		false		           18      engineering study done to model the system to know how				false

		2180						LN		84		19		false		           19      much excess capacity might be retained in the tank while				false

		2181						LN		84		20		false		           20      still retaining fire safety?				false

		2182						LN		84		21		false		           21           A.  We did have that knowledge.  We had --				false

		2183						LN		84		22		false		           22           Q.  No, I asked you if you had an engineering model				false

		2184						LN		84		23		false		           23      done of the system that demonstrated how much excess				false

		2185						LN		84		24		false		           24      capacity was left in the tank?				false

		2186						LN		84		25		false		           25           A.  We did not have an engineering model done.  We				false

		2187						PG		85		0		false		page 85				false

		2188						LN		85		1		false		            1      knew how much the tank held.  We knew how much the				false

		2189						LN		85		2		false		            2      customers used and we knew how much, based on the fire				false

		2190						LN		85		3		false		            3      company, we needed to retain in the tank.				false

		2191						LN		85		4		false		            4           Q.  Right.  So you took a guess at how much -- the				false

		2192						LN		85		5		false		            5      fact that there wasn't any water available for				false

		2193						LN		85		6		false		            6      irrigation?				false

		2194						LN		85		7		false		            7           A.  I think I've already explained it.  It was not				false

		2195						LN		85		8		false		            8      a guess.				false

		2196						LN		85		9		false		            9           Q.  Okay.  So it was an educated guess?				false

		2197						LN		85		10		false		           10           A.  I think I've already answered your question.				false

		2198						LN		85		11		false		           11           Q.  So what is the plan if the current tank fails				false

		2199						LN		85		12		false		           12      before the new tank is installed?				false

		2200						LN		85		13		false		           13           A.  So we have the capacity that the system is				false

		2201						LN		85		14		false		           14      hooked up.  Meaning there are pipes connecting the				false

		2202						LN		85		15		false		           15      system to Summit Water system.  The problem with that is				false

		2203						LN		85		16		false		           16      that if we draw water, and we recently did draw water				false

		2204						LN		85		17		false		           17      from Summit Water in order to fill the tank back up				false

		2205						LN		85		18		false		           18      after the well was temporarily out of commission, it was				false

		2206						LN		85		19		false		           19      discovered that the tank was drawn down below its -- the				false

		2207						LN		85		20		false		           20      necessary fire reserve capacity, and we filled it back				false

		2208						LN		85		21		false		           21      up with Summit Water.				false

		2209						LN		85		22		false		           22           The problem is that -- again, my understanding --				false

		2210						LN		85		23		false		           23      so our cost of water from Summit is a high.  It's like				false

		2211						LN		85		24		false		           24      an emergency cost of water.  And we have no way of				false

		2212						LN		85		25		false		           25      passing that cost through to our customers, again,				false

		2213						PG		86		0		false		page 86				false

		2214						LN		86		1		false		            1      without Public Service Commission approval.  That's my				false

		2215						LN		86		2		false		            2      understanding.				false

		2216						LN		86		3		false		            3           MS. MILLER:  That's all my questions.  Thank you.				false

		2217						LN		86		4		false		            4           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  And I believe a				false

		2218						LN		86		5		false		            5      representative from all of the HOAs and intervenors				false

		2219						LN		86		6		false		            6      present, has already had an opportunity to ask				false

		2220						LN		86		7		false		            7      cross-examination questions.  It seems redundant and a				false

		2221						LN		86		8		false		            8      little unorthdox to allow Mr. Amendola an additional				false

		2222						LN		86		9		false		            9      opportunity, but I'll allow it if there is no objections				false

		2223						LN		86		10		false		           10      from counsel and he wishes to do so.				false

		2224						LN		86		11		false		           11           MR. ATWATER:  I have no objection.				false

		2225						LN		86		12		false		           12           MS. SCHMID:  I have no objection.				false

		2226						LN		86		13		false		           13           MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.				false

		2227						LN		86		14		false		           14           MR. LANGE:  No objection.				false

		2228						LN		86		15		false		           15           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Amendola, do you have any				false

		2229						LN		86		16		false		           16      questions for the witness?				false

		2230						LN		86		17		false		           17           MR. AMENDOLA:  Just a couple, and I have to tell				false

		2231						LN		86		18		false		           18      you I didn't have the luxury of hearing many of the				false

		2232						LN		86		19		false		           19      responses by Mr. White just because the signal is not				false

		2233						LN		86		20		false		           20      very good.				false

		2234						LN		86		21		false		           21           Q.  Mr. White, during the July 17 meeting that was				false

		2235						LN		86		22		false		           22      held at your offices, do you recall just basically				false

		2236						LN		86		23		false		           23      unanimous support for moving forward with replacing the				false

		2237						LN		86		24		false		           24      tank expressed by the customers?				false

		2238						LN		86		25		false		           25           A.  I think I've already testified to this.  It was				false

		2239						PG		87		0		false		page 87				false

		2240						LN		87		1		false		            1      our understanding that the customers were not capable of				false

		2241						LN		87		2		false		            2      giving unanimous consent because they couldn't collect				false

		2242						LN		87		3		false		            3      from owners.  This is specific to the condo				false

		2243						LN		87		4		false		            4      associations.  So my understanding from that meeting is,				false

		2244						LN		87		5		false		            5      no, we did not have unanimous consent.  We could not get				false

		2245						LN		87		6		false		            6      unanimous consent, and therefore we could not have a				false

		2246						LN		87		7		false		            7      special assessment agreed to by the customers.  And				false

		2247						LN		87		8		false		            8      that's when we made the decision that we needed to go on				false

		2248						LN		87		9		false		            9      the parallel path of pursuing Public Service Commission				false

		2249						LN		87		10		false		           10      approval.				false

		2250						LN		87		11		false		           11           Q.  Let me clarify my question.  I think you're				false

		2251						LN		87		12		false		           12      responding to unanimous support to attain funding by the				false

		2252						LN		87		13		false		           13      HOA associations because they needed time.  But for the				false

		2253						LN		87		14		false		           14      people that were in that meeting, wasn't there unanimous				false

		2254						LN		87		15		false		           15      support for the need to move forward with replacing the				false

		2255						LN		87		16		false		           16      tank immediately?				false

		2256						LN		87		17		false		           17           A.  It was certainly unanimous acknowledgment that				false

		2257						LN		87		18		false		           18      we needed to move forward with replacing the tank, but				false

		2258						LN		87		19		false		           19      there was no method of paying for it or if the company				false

		2259						LN		87		20		false		           20      was to loan -- if TCFC was to loan the money to CWC to				false

		2260						LN		87		21		false		           21      replace the tank, there was no ensured method of				false

		2261						LN		87		22		false		           22      recovering that loan without -- I should say without				false

		2262						LN		87		23		false		           23      coming back to the --				false

		2263						LN		87		24		false		           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'm sorry.  You guys can't				false

		2264						LN		87		25		false		           25      speak over each other.  Let's go ahead and allow				false

		2265						PG		88		0		false		page 88				false

		2266						LN		88		1		false		            1      Mr. Amendola to phrase his question and Mr. White can				false

		2267						LN		88		2		false		            2      respond.				false

		2268						LN		88		3		false		            3           MR. AMENDOLA:  One other question I have is that				false

		2269						LN		88		4		false		            4      back in the 1609 rate case, do you recall the Red Pine				false

		2270						LN		88		5		false		            5      and Hidden Creek comments that were submitted that				false

		2271						LN		88		6		false		            6      basically requested that more money be approved to				false

		2272						LN		88		7		false		            7      upgrade the water treatment plant and acknowledgment of				false

		2273						LN		88		8		false		            8      the ill-maintained condition of the plant?				false

		2274						LN		88		9		false		            9           A.  I do not.				false

		2275						LN		88		10		false		           10           MR. AMENDOLA:  Okay.  That's all I have.  Thank you				false

		2276						LN		88		11		false		           11      very much for the opportunity.				false

		2277						LN		88		12		false		           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you very much,				false

		2278						LN		88		13		false		           13      Mr. Amendola.  Mr. Atwater, any redirect?				false

		2279						LN		88		14		false		           14           MR. ATWATER:  Just one.  Thank you.				false

		2280						LN		88		15		false		           15           Q.  Mr. White, in response to the questioning, I				false

		2281						LN		88		16		false		           16      believe, of Ms. Schmid and Mr. Savage, you stated that				false

		2282						LN		88		17		false		           17      an affiliate loan may be available to fund a replacement				false

		2283						LN		88		18		false		           18      of the tank on certain terms and conditions.  Do you				false

		2284						LN		88		19		false		           19      have any purview as to what those terms and conditions				false

		2285						LN		88		20		false		           20      might be specifically -- economic terms in terms of rate				false

		2286						LN		88		21		false		           21      of return, time frame of return?				false

		2287						LN		88		22		false		           22           A.  So we have not had any further discussion with				false

		2288						LN		88		23		false		           23      our executive committee about what the terms might be,				false

		2289						LN		88		24		false		           24      so I don't have the specifics of that.  We've not made				false

		2290						LN		88		25		false		           25      that request at this point in time because this case was				false

		2291						PG		89		0		false		page 89				false

		2292						LN		89		1		false		            1      specific to special assessment to replace the tank				false

		2293						LN		89		2		false		            2      immediately.  So I don't have any such terms.  I've not				false

		2294						LN		89		3		false		            3      further discussed it with executive committee at this				false

		2295						LN		89		4		false		            4      point.				false

		2296						LN		89		5		false		            5           Q.  Thank you.  Just one follow-up.  You testified				false

		2297						LN		89		6		false		            6      earlier that the promised rate of return to your				false

		2298						LN		89		7		false		            7      investors -- or Varde's investors is approximately				false

		2299						LN		89		8		false		            8      13 percent.  Is it your anticipation that the rate of				false

		2300						LN		89		9		false		            9      return would be in that ballpark or would it be				false

		2301						LN		89		10		false		           10      something different?				false

		2302						LN		89		11		false		           11           A.  Again, the way that the funds are set up,				false

		2303						LN		89		12		false		           12      that's the minimum promise to the investors.  So it's				false

		2304						LN		89		13		false		           13      called a preferred rate of return to the investors.  So				false

		2305						LN		89		14		false		           14      that would be the minimal rate that would be expected				false

		2306						LN		89		15		false		           15      for any further loan or investment.				false

		2307						LN		89		16		false		           16           Q.  So let me just rephrase and get your				false

		2308						LN		89		17		false		           17      confirmation.  To the extent there is an affiliate loan				false

		2309						LN		89		18		false		           18      available to fund the tank, the minimum rate of return				false

		2310						LN		89		19		false		           19      required by that investment committee would be				false

		2311						LN		89		20		false		           20      13 percent?				false

		2312						LN		89		21		false		           21           A.  That's likely, but I can't predict what it is				false

		2313						LN		89		22		false		           22      that they would determine, but that would be likely the				false

		2314						LN		89		23		false		           23      minimum.				false

		2315						LN		89		24		false		           24           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.				false

		2316						LN		89		25		false		           25           MR. LANGE:  May I ask a question?				false

		2317						PG		90		0		false		page 90				false

		2318						LN		90		1		false		            1           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any objection?				false

		2319						LN		90		2		false		            2           MR. ATWATER:  No.				false

		2320						LN		90		3		false		            3           MR. LANGE:				false

		2321						LN		90		4		false		            4           Q.  So Mr. White, with the rate of return for Varde				false

		2322						LN		90		5		false		            5      at 13 percent, is that for each one of its individual				false

		2323						LN		90		6		false		            6      interests?  Or in other words, is the return for				false

		2324						LN		90		7		false		            7      Community Water predicated on 13 percent, and say the				false

		2325						LN		90		8		false		            8      return on investment for other interests at the Canyons				false

		2326						LN		90		9		false		            9      came in at 23 percent or whatever it might be?  Are we				false

		2327						LN		90		10		false		           10      looking at an overall global aspect of 13 percent, or do				false

		2328						LN		90		11		false		           11      we have to pay 13 percent -- or do you have to pay 13				false

		2329						LN		90		12		false		           12      percent precisely to Community Water?				false

		2330						LN		90		13		false		           13           A.  So I've already testified to the fact I've not				false

		2331						LN		90		14		false		           14      had that conversation with our executive committee, so I				false

		2332						LN		90		15		false		           15      can't answer your question.				false

		2333						LN		90		16		false		           16           Q.  Will you be having a conversation to clarify				false

		2334						LN		90		17		false		           17      that?				false

		2335						LN		90		18		false		           18           A.  Depends on the outcome of this hearing.				false

		2336						LN		90		19		false		           19           MR. LANGE:  Thank you.  That's all the questions I				false

		2337						LN		90		20		false		           20      have.				false

		2338						LN		90		21		false		           21           THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Anything else,				false

		2339						LN		90		22		false		           22      Mr. Atwater?				false

		2340						LN		90		23		false		           23           MR. ATWATER:  No.  Thank you.				false

		2341						LN		90		24		false		           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I just have a couple,				false

		2342						LN		90		25		false		           25      Mr. White.				false

		2343						PG		91		0		false		page 91				false

		2344						LN		91		1		false		            1           My understanding is that CWC was interested				false

		2345						LN		91		2		false		            2      initially in pursuing funding for the tank through the				false

		2346						LN		91		3		false		            3      Division of -- the department of water?  DDW?  Help me				false

		2347						LN		91		4		false		            4      out.				false

		2348						LN		91		5		false		            5           THE WITNESS:  Division of Drinking Water.				false

		2349						LN		91		6		false		            6           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you -- as you referred				false

		2350						LN		91		7		false		            7      to it --				false

		2351						LN		91		8		false		            8           THE WITNESS:  That's correct.				false

		2352						LN		91		9		false		            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  -- and later elected to --				false

		2353						LN		91		10		false		           10      perhaps not formally -- but has elected at this time not				false

		2354						LN		91		11		false		           11      to pursue funding for the tank with that money?				false

		2355						LN		91		12		false		           12           THE WITNESS:  So for clarification we pursued				false

		2356						LN		91		13		false		           13      funding of the tank directly through the special				false

		2357						LN		91		14		false		           14      assessment because of timing and because of cost.				false

		2358						LN		91		15		false		           15      Because the nature -- again, my understanding of the				false

		2359						LN		91		16		false		           16      loan, is that we could not front costs even in deposit				false

		2360						LN		91		17		false		           17      for the tank prior to closing the loan.  And that if it				false

		2361						LN		91		18		false		           18      came under the loan provisions, we would have to wait				false

		2362						LN		91		19		false		           19      until the loan was closed, then get bids on, you know,				false

		2363						LN		91		20		false		           20      from multiple sources, and then wait for that period of				false

		2364						LN		91		21		false		           21      time.  It likely would have driven the costs up for the				false

		2365						LN		91		22		false		           22      tank and delayed the time period, which is why we				false

		2366						LN		91		23		false		           23      pursued a different means of funding the tank.				false

		2367						LN		91		24		false		           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Aside from the funding				false

		2368						LN		91		25		false		           25      from the Division of Drinking Water and the loan from				false

		2369						PG		92		0		false		page 92				false

		2370						LN		92		1		false		            1      the parent company that we've discussed, did the company				false

		2371						LN		92		2		false		            2      pursue any other financing options for the tank from any				false

		2372						LN		92		3		false		            3      other financier?				false

		2373						LN		92		4		false		            4           A.  No, sir.  We don't believe that that's a				false

		2374						LN		92		5		false		            5      commercially viable -- meaning going to a bank?  There				false

		2375						LN		92		6		false		            6      are no -- when a company is under water from a financial				false

		2376						LN		92		7		false		            7      standpoint and from an infrastructure standpoint, it's				false

		2377						LN		92		8		false		            8      not a commercially financable transaction.				false

		2378						LN		92		9		false		            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Did the company explore				false

		2379						LN		92		10		false		           10      whether there were other public financing options				false

		2380						LN		92		11		false		           11      available except for the Division of Drinking Water?				false

		2381						LN		92		12		false		           12           THE WITNESS:  Yes.  Emily Lewis can testify to				false

		2382						LN		92		13		false		           13      that.  We pursued numerous public financing on both the				false

		2383						LN		92		14		false		           14      federal and state level, which is how we sourced this				false

		2384						LN		92		15		false		           15      particular loan, and thought that it was the best				false

		2385						LN		92		16		false		           16      solution for the company.  The lowest interest rate,				false

		2386						LN		92		17		false		           17      longest term.  And so in terms of, again, cost to the				false

		2387						LN		92		18		false		           18      customer in the end, that it was the most efficient from				false

		2388						LN		92		19		false		           19      a cost standpoint.				false

		2389						LN		92		20		false		           20           And one other, you know, element of this, just so				false

		2390						LN		92		21		false		           21      you understand, in terms of the timing, we initially --				false

		2391						LN		92		22		false		           22      when Emily originally discovered this loan opportunity				false

		2392						LN		92		23		false		           23      and we made application to it, it was before the tank				false

		2393						LN		92		24		false		           24      failed.  And at that time we thought that the loan could				false

		2394						LN		92		25		false		           25      close sometime in the summer.  And as we got further				false

		2395						PG		93		0		false		page 93				false

		2396						LN		93		1		false		            1      into it, further into the application, it gets more and				false

		2397						LN		93		2		false		            2      more complicated.  So we didn't fully understand all the				false

		2398						LN		93		3		false		            3      provisions and requirements of the loan.  So as we				false

		2399						LN		93		4		false		            4      continued -- so it's our understanding now that we have				false

		2400						LN		93		5		false		            5      to have full engineering.  In other words, we have to				false

		2401						LN		93		6		false		            6      invest in all of the engineering costs to repair the				false

		2402						LN		93		7		false		            7      system up front before the loan can close and be able to				false

		2403						LN		93		8		false		            8      submit that.				false

		2404						LN		93		9		false		            9           So consequently, the period of closing that loan				false

		2405						LN		93		10		false		           10      became longer and longer.  It's now projected at April				false

		2406						LN		93		11		false		           11      at the earliest.  So that was part of our decision in				false

		2407						LN		93		12		false		           12      terms of separating or pursuing a different route to				false

		2408						LN		93		13		false		           13      replace the tank rather than wait for that loan to				false

		2409						LN		93		14		false		           14      close.  So as both a cost and time consideration.				false

		2410						LN		93		15		false		           15           Q.  Did you consider or discuss with your parent				false

		2411						LN		93		16		false		           16      company whether any short-term bridge financing might be				false

		2412						LN		93		17		false		           17      available through the parent company pending eventual				false

		2413						LN		93		18		false		           18      more permanent financing through the DDW?				false

		2414						LN		93		19		false		           19           A.  So again, our understanding is that we could				false

		2415						LN		93		20		false		           20      not use the DDW loan for any infrastructure that was put				false

		2416						LN		93		21		false		           21      into place prior to the loan closing.  That was part of				false

		2417						LN		93		22		false		           22      the complication.  It can't replace.  We tried that.  We				false

		2418						LN		93		23		false		           23      asked them.  They can't replace infrastructure that is				false

		2419						LN		93		24		false		           24      put into place prior to the loan closing because it				false

		2420						LN		93		25		false		           25      doesn't follow Davis Bacon and other federal				false

		2421						PG		94		0		false		page 94				false

		2422						LN		94		1		false		            1      requirements for bidding.				false

		2423						LN		94		2		false		            2           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Right.  I wondered whether it				false

		2424						LN		94		3		false		            3      might be possible to fragment the project or something.				false

		2425						LN		94		4		false		            4      Perhaps you could use a bridge loan to get going.  It				false

		2426						LN		94		5		false		            5      sounds like these questions might be better suited for				false

		2427						LN		94		6		false		            6      another witness which I think I'm about to hear and I'm				false

		2428						LN		94		7		false		            7      happy to wait.				false

		2429						LN		94		8		false		            8           THE WITNESS:  Again, the answer to your question is				false

		2430						LN		94		9		false		            9      that we could pursue some internal financing mechanism				false

		2431						LN		94		10		false		           10      if the method of repayment was clear and approved, which				false

		2432						LN		94		11		false		           11      is why we're here.				false

		2433						LN		94		12		false		           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.				false

		2434						LN		94		13		false		           13           MS. LEWIS:  Just to clarify, the Division of				false

		2435						LN		94		14		false		           14      Drinking Water requires that you have a repayment				false

		2436						LN		94		15		false		           15      structure in place before you can close on the loan.  So				false

		2437						LN		94		16		false		           16      for that we are pursuing the parallel track of either				false

		2438						LN		94		17		false		           17      having a Summit Water or Community Water non-profit				false

		2439						LN		94		18		false		           18      structure be the repayment structure for a public				false

		2440						LN		94		19		false		           19      service commission rate increase.  So it is -- to close				false

		2441						LN		94		20		false		           20      on the loan you need to prove you have a repayment				false

		2442						LN		94		21		false		           21      structure.  So that would been a hindrance in any kind				false

		2443						LN		94		22		false		           22      of bridge.				false

		2444						LN		94		23		false		           23           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  And you intend to				false

		2445						LN		94		24		false		           24      testify; right?				false

		2446						LN		94		25		false		           25           MS. LEWIS:  I can.				false

		2447						PG		95		0		false		page 95				false

		2448						LN		95		1		false		            1           THE HEARING OFFICER:  You do not intend to testify?				false

		2449						LN		95		2		false		            2           MR. AMENDOLA:  Your Honor, can I have a follow-up				false

		2450						LN		95		3		false		            3      question on the loan?				false

		2451						LN		95		4		false		            4           THE HEARING OFFICER:  No.  Let's wait a minute.				false

		2452						LN		95		5		false		            5           What you essentially provided was testimony.  So if				false

		2453						LN		95		6		false		            6      you want to make a statement, we need to put you under				false

		2454						LN		95		7		false		            7      oath.  I think that would be appropriate.				false

		2455						LN		95		8		false		            8           MS. SCHMID:  I am concerned if Ms. Lewis testifies				false

		2456						LN		95		9		false		            9      as a witness while also serving as counsel.				false

		2457						LN		95		10		false		           10           MR. ATWATER:  Would it be possible to include that				false

		2458						LN		95		11		false		           11      in our closing statement?				false

		2459						LN		95		12		false		           12           MS. SCHMID:  That's not evidence either.  Perhaps				false

		2460						LN		95		13		false		           13      we could take a break and perhaps Mr. White's memory				false

		2461						LN		95		14		false		           14      could be refreshed.				false

		2462						LN		95		15		false		           15           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Well, I want the witness who				false

		2463						LN		95		16		false		           16      is most qualified -- please let me finish -- I want the				false

		2464						LN		95		17		false		           17      witness who is most qualified to speak to these matters				false

		2465						LN		95		18		false		           18      to testify to them.  And it's up to CWC whether or not				false

		2466						LN		95		19		false		           19      it wants its counsel to testify.  My understanding is				false

		2467						LN		95		20		false		           20      that Ms. Lewis's role is perhaps more of a corporate				false

		2468						LN		95		21		false		           21      transactional counsel.  I defer to the company whether				false

		2469						LN		95		22		false		           22      they want to call that witness.				false

		2470						LN		95		23		false		           23           MR. ATWATER:  Sure.  We're not concerned by the				false

		2471						LN		95		24		false		           24      same concern that Ms. Schmid expressed at this level.				false

		2472						LN		95		25		false		           25      Especially in the interim hearing.  So we would be				false

		2473						PG		96		0		false		page 96				false

		2474						LN		96		1		false		            1      perfectly fine calling Ms. Lewis as a witness.				false

		2475						LN		96		2		false		            2           MR. SAVAGE:  I don't know the normal practice for				false

		2476						LN		96		3		false		            3      Public Service Commission, but in court an attorney				false

		2477						LN		96		4		false		            4      cannot argue a case if they are a witness.  But other				false

		2478						LN		96		5		false		            5      than that there is nothing stopping --				false

		2479						LN		96		6		false		            6           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I understand that.  That's				false

		2480						LN		96		7		false		            7      why I don't have a problem necessarily with Ms. Lewis				false

		2481						LN		96		8		false		            8      testifying because of Mr. Atwater's representing --				false

		2482						LN		96		9		false		            9           MR. SAVAGE:  Mr. Atwater will know if she tries to				false

		2483						LN		96		10		false		           10      argue, I'll object.				false

		2484						LN		96		11		false		           11           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think I'll conclude my				false

		2485						LN		96		12		false		           12      questions for Mr. White.  I'll allow Mr. Atwater to				false

		2486						LN		96		13		false		           13      decide whether he wants Ms. Lewis to take the stand,				false

		2487						LN		96		14		false		           14      make a statement she just felt compelled to make on the				false

		2488						LN		96		15		false		           15      record or not.  That of course will subject her to				false

		2489						LN		96		16		false		           16      cross-examination.  I just can't allow counsel to make				false

		2490						LN		96		17		false		           17      statements of fact and accept them as evidence without				false

		2491						LN		96		18		false		           18      being sworn to testify.				false

		2492						LN		96		19		false		           19           MR. ATWATER:  Okay.				false

		2493						LN		96		20		false		           20           THE HEARING OFFICER:  You're excused, Mr. White.				false

		2494						LN		96		21		false		           21           MR. ATWATER:  We're inclined to call Ms. Lewis, but				false

		2495						LN		96		22		false		           22      we would like to call Ms. Campbell prior to calling				false

		2496						LN		96		23		false		           23      Ms. Lewis if that would be okay.				false

		2497						LN		96		24		false		           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Absolutely.  You can present				false

		2498						LN		96		25		false		           25      your evidence in whatever order you prefer.				false

		2499						PG		97		0		false		page 97				false

		2500						LN		97		1		false		            1           MR. ATWATER:  So the applicant calls Ms. Tena				false

		2501						LN		97		2		false		            2      Campbell, engineer with Bowen & Collins, engineering				false

		2502						LN		97		3		false		            3      firm, to the stand.				false

		2503						LN		97		4		false		            4           (Tena Campbell is sworn in as a witness.)				false

		2504						LN		97		5		false		            5           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you, Ms. Campbell, for				false

		2505						LN		97		6		false		            6      attending.				false

		2506						LN		97		7		false		            7           Q.  As a preliminary matter, I need to ask you, do				false

		2507						LN		97		8		false		            8      you certify as true the testimony of Mr. Keith Larson				false

		2508						LN		97		9		false		            9      who is a partner in Bowen & Collins and a partner of				false

		2509						LN		97		10		false		           10      yours?				false

		2510						LN		97		11		false		           11           A.  I do.				false

		2511						LN		97		12		false		           12           Q.  I have just a few questions to you.				false

		2512						LN		97		13		false		           13           MR. ATWATER:  In addition to the direct testimony				false

		2513						LN		97		14		false		           14      provided by Mr. Larson, I also do want to clarify for				false

		2514						LN		97		15		false		           15      those that cross-examine Ms. Campbell that the				false

		2515						LN		97		16		false		           16      information in Mr. Larson's testimony regarding ERUs and				false

		2516						LN		97		17		false		           17      other calculations are clear in the record, and				false

		2517						LN		97		18		false		           18      Ms. Campbell may not have a direct knowledge to all of				false

		2518						LN		97		19		false		           19      those questions.  And to the extent they may not be able				false

		2519						LN		97		20		false		           20      to be answered today, we will do so as promptly as				false

		2520						LN		97		21		false		           21      possible just so that you're aware.  She did not				false

		2521						LN		97		22		false		           22      participate directly in the creation of the rate model.				false

		2522						LN		97		23		false		           23           Q.  So my first question for you, Ms. Campbell,				false

		2523						LN		97		24		false		           24      relates to -- first of all, what was your firm engaged				false

		2524						LN		97		25		false		           25      to do with respect to the failed tank?				false

		2525						PG		98		0		false		page 98				false

		2526						LN		98		1		false		            1           A.  So upon having looked at the system previously				false

		2527						LN		98		2		false		            2      through the master planning process, we were engaged,				false

		2528						LN		98		3		false		            3      being familiar with the system, to look at the failed				false

		2529						LN		98		4		false		            4      tank to help assess options for replacement, being the				false

		2530						LN		98		5		false		            5      same style and type that's there or an alternative that				false

		2531						LN		98		6		false		            6      would be -- function the same, but be just as cost				false

		2532						LN		98		7		false		            7      effective and make the system whole again.				false

		2533						LN		98		8		false		            8           So we worked with Summit Water and their staff to				false

		2534						LN		98		9		false		            9      evaluate above ground steel tanks, welded or bolted,				false

		2535						LN		98		10		false		           10      determined what suppliers might supply such a tank, and				false

		2536						LN		98		11		false		           11      what the timing of that might be.  We also were engaged				false

		2537						LN		98		12		false		           12      to provide a foundation design to support whichever tank				false

		2538						LN		98		13		false		           13      was chosen to replace the existing tank.				false

		2539						LN		98		14		false		           14           Q.  Thank you.  Do you recall the time frame, month				false

		2540						LN		98		15		false		           15      when you were engaged to provide that level of service?				false

		2541						LN		98		16		false		           16           A.  It was almost immediately upon failure.  We				false

		2542						LN		98		17		false		           17      were brought in to help consult with the style of the				false

		2543						LN		98		18		false		           18      tank and the feasibility of replacing it.				false

		2544						LN		98		19		false		           19           Q.  Thank you.  And can you testify as to the				false

		2545						LN		98		20		false		           20      current condition or state of the work regarding the				false

		2546						LN		98		21		false		           21      tank?				false

		2547						LN		98		22		false		           22           A.  The existing tank has been removed.  The				false

		2548						LN		98		23		false		           23      existing foundation that was there, which was minimum,				false

		2549						LN		98		24		false		           24      has been removed.  So there is a bare ground site there				false

		2550						LN		98		25		false		           25      right now.  The supplier of the tank has been engaged				false

		2551						PG		99		0		false		page 99				false

		2552						LN		99		1		false		            1      and has prepared some shop drawings for the new tank.				false

		2553						LN		99		2		false		            2           We are in the process of review and comment on				false

		2554						LN		99		3		false		            3      those shop drawings to make it so that it is feasible to				false

		2555						LN		99		4		false		            4      construct.  Bowen Collins has prepared a foundation				false

		2556						LN		99		5		false		            5      design based upon the preliminary shop drawings with				false

		2557						LN		99		6		false		            6      revision expected upon revision to the shop drawings.				false

		2558						LN		99		7		false		            7      But we've also used that design that we've completed so				false

		2559						LN		99		8		false		            8      far for preliminary bids on constructing that foundation				false

		2560						LN		99		9		false		            9      on-site.				false

		2561						LN		99		10		false		           10           Q.  Thank you.  Have you had any conversations with				false

		2562						LN		99		11		false		           11      the Division of Drinking Water regarding the				false

		2563						LN		99		12		false		           12      availability of the loan relative to construction of the				false

		2564						LN		99		13		false		           13      tank?				false

		2565						LN		99		14		false		           14           A.  Yes.  Just this week they had asked me is there				false

		2566						LN		99		15		false		           15      a possibility of putting the tank in the loan as was				false

		2567						LN		99		16		false		           16      originally asked upon the emergency situation.  At that				false

		2568						LN		99		17		false		           17      time, I did tell them how far along we were with the				false

		2569						LN		99		18		false		           18      supplier and bids on the foundation, and that it would				false

		2570						LN		99		19		false		           19      be difficult, and maybe not very advantageous, to try				false

		2571						LN		99		20		false		           20      and roll that back into the loan because we would have				false

		2572						LN		99		21		false		           21      to start over with competitive bids of the tank				false

		2573						LN		99		22		false		           22      supplier.  And that would change our design of the				false

		2574						LN		99		23		false		           23      foundation to be with whichever tank met that criteria.				false

		2575						LN		99		24		false		           24           Q.  Thank you.  And if I may just take a quick				false

		2576						LN		99		25		false		           25      diversion to the general rate increase which has not				false

		2577						PG		100		0		false		page 100				false

		2578						LN		100		1		false		            1      really been discussed today, but this may be the last				false

		2579						LN		100		2		false		            2      chance we have to have you on the stand.  Your report in				false

		2580						LN		100		3		false		            3      large part provides the evidence and information for				false

		2581						LN		100		4		false		            4      substantiating those rates?				false

		2582						LN		100		5		false		            5           A.  Yes.				false

		2583						LN		100		6		false		            6           Q.  And could you just describe the process that				false

		2584						LN		100		7		false		            7      Bowen & Collins employs generally in determining when				false

		2585						LN		100		8		false		            8      engaged to prepare a water rate study what that process				false

		2586						LN		100		9		false		            9      looks like?				false

		2587						LN		100		10		false		           10           A.  Well, typically we do analysis of the water				false

		2588						LN		100		11		false		           11      system.  There is a few different options you can				false

		2589						LN		100		12		false		           12      choose.  This particular one is one that we used to				false

		2590						LN		100		13		false		           13      existing water use for our basis of calculating the				false

		2591						LN		100		14		false		           14      rate.  Working with the water system on historic use,				false

		2592						LN		100		15		false		           15      that type of thing, to prepare the rate that we could				false

		2593						LN		100		16		false		           16      come up with.  Industry standard is typically to				false

		2594						LN		100		17		false		           17      calculate it based on use, which drags us to the ERU				false

		2595						LN		100		18		false		           18      calculation that people are talking about.  That's				false

		2596						LN		100		19		false		           19      really an equivalent residential use, again, based on				false

		2597						LN		100		20		false		           20      historical use.				false

		2598						LN		100		21		false		           21           Q.  Thank you.  And how do you determine the cost				false

		2599						LN		100		22		false		           22      or the estimate cost of infrastructure to be replaced?				false

		2600						LN		100		23		false		           23      Because your report does, in fact, include estimates of				false

		2601						LN		100		24		false		           24      infrastructure that need replacement.				false

		2602						LN		100		25		false		           25           A.  So our cost estimates from the master planning				false

		2603						PG		101		0		false		page 101				false

		2604						LN		101		1		false		            1      process are based on our experience with similar				false

		2605						LN		101		2		false		            2      projects and similar clients and our engineering				false

		2606						LN		101		3		false		            3      standards and principals that we've used to prepare				false

		2607						LN		101		4		false		            4      those estimates.				false

		2608						LN		101		5		false		            5           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.  No further questioning.				false

		2609						LN		101		6		false		            6      Thank you.				false

		2610						LN		101		7		false		            7           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Schmid?				false

		2611						LN		101		8		false		            8           MS. SCHMID:  I may have missed it, but did				false

		2612						LN		101		9		false		            9      Mr. Atwater move?				false

		2613						LN		101		10		false		           10           MR. ATWATER:  I will do so now.				false

		2614						LN		101		11		false		           11           MS. SCHMID:  We often -- all of us often forget				false

		2615						LN		101		12		false		           12      this part so --				false

		2616						LN		101		13		false		           13           MR. ATWATER:  We move to submit the testimony of				false

		2617						LN		101		14		false		           14      Ms. Tena Campbell into the record of evidence.				false

		2618						LN		101		15		false		           15           MS. SCHMID:  The Division does not object except				false

		2619						LN		101		16		false		           16      notes that since Ms. Campbell is not prepared to be				false

		2620						LN		101		17		false		           17      subject to the ERU issues, that evidence -- while I				false

		2621						LN		101		18		false		           18      don't think it will come up in the Divisions'				false

		2622						LN		101		19		false		           19      discussion -- would possibly not be admissible as there				false

		2623						LN		101		20		false		           20      is not a sponsoring witness for that part here.  But				false

		2624						LN		101		21		false		           21      again, it's not going to come up in the Divisions'				false

		2625						LN		101		22		false		           22      discussion.				false

		2626						LN		101		23		false		           23           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Understood.  I think the				false

		2627						LN		101		24		false		           24      problem, Mr. Atwater, is you said you moved to admit				false

		2628						LN		101		25		false		           25      this witness's testimony, but you're really moving to				false

		2629						PG		102		0		false		page 102				false

		2630						LN		102		1		false		            1      admit the written testimony filed by a witness who is				false

		2631						LN		102		2		false		            2      not present; correct?				false

		2632						LN		102		3		false		            3           MR. ATWATER:  That is correct.				false

		2633						LN		102		4		false		            4           THE HEARING OFFICER:  And this witness isn't				false

		2634						LN		102		5		false		            5      prepared to testify to all the contents of all that				false

		2635						LN		102		6		false		            6      written testimony?				false

		2636						LN		102		7		false		            7           MR. ATWATER:  He is not here today to testify to				false

		2637						LN		102		8		false		            8      the contents.				false

		2638						LN		102		9		false		            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  And this witness isn't				false

		2639						LN		102		10		false		           10      prepared to testify to the content either; right?				false

		2640						LN		102		11		false		           11           MR. ATWATER:  Ms. Campbell?				false

		2641						LN		102		12		false		           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Right.				false

		2642						LN		102		13		false		           13           MR. ATWATER:  I think she could testify generally				false

		2643						LN		102		14		false		           14      to that testimony.  I think what both Ms. Campbell and				false

		2644						LN		102		15		false		           15      Mr. Larson would do, however, is just restate what is in				false

		2645						LN		102		16		false		           16      their written testimony.  So I think it is worthwhile.				false

		2646						LN		102		17		false		           17      And Ms. Campbell can potentially determine whether or				false

		2647						LN		102		18		false		           18      not she's capable, but it is worthwhile for us to see if				false

		2648						LN		102		19		false		           19      she is capable of answering those questions.				false

		2649						LN		102		20		false		           20           THE HEARING OFFICER:  If there is no objection to				false

		2650						LN		102		21		false		           21      the admission of the filed written testimony -- Yes, Mr.				false

		2651						LN		102		22		false		           22      Savage?				false

		2652						LN		102		23		false		           23           MR. SAVAGE:  Yes, I object to the portions of the				false

		2653						LN		102		24		false		           24      written testimony of Mr. Larson pertaining to ERUs				false

		2654						LN		102		25		false		           25      because we do not have an opportunity to cross-examine				false

		2655						PG		103		0		false		page 103				false

		2656						LN		103		1		false		            1      him, and it's been stated to us that Ms. Campbell is not				false

		2657						LN		103		2		false		            2      prepared to address in any detail the ERUs either.  So I				false

		2658						LN		103		3		false		            3      object to the portions of Mr. Larson's testimony dealing				false

		2659						LN		103		4		false		            4      with ERUs.				false

		2660						LN		103		5		false		            5           MS. SCHMID:  The Division concurs as previously				false

		2661						LN		103		6		false		            6      stated in that objection.				false

		2662						LN		103		7		false		            7           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Atwater?				false

		2663						LN		103		8		false		            8           MR. ATWATER:  So what I would say is Ms. Campbell				false

		2664						LN		103		9		false		            9      is prepared to testify to those issues.  And if her				false

		2665						LN		103		10		false		           10      answer is not responsive, I think that the commission				false

		2666						LN		103		11		false		           11      should determine at that time whether or not it's				false

		2667						LN		103		12		false		           12      appropriate.				false

		2668						LN		103		13		false		           13           THE HEARING OFFICER:  How about this.  Hearsay is				false

		2669						LN		103		14		false		           14      admissible in a proceeding before the commission.  We				false

		2670						LN		103		15		false		           15      can't exclude evidence solely on the basis that it's				false

		2671						LN		103		16		false		           16      hearsay.  We'll go ahead and admit the prefiled written				false

		2672						LN		103		17		false		           17      testimony into the record, and note that Ms. Campbell is				false

		2673						LN		103		18		false		           18      not prepared to testify to all of its contents; is that				false

		2674						LN		103		19		false		           19      sufficient?				false

		2675						LN		103		20		false		           20           MS. SCHMID:  Yes.				false

		2676						LN		103		21		false		           21           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.				false

		2677						LN		103		22		false		           22           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  We'll proceed.				false

		2678						LN		103		23		false		           23           MS. SCHMID:  I have just a couple of questions.				false

		2679						LN		103		24		false		           24           Q.  I heard you say that the engineering study				false

		2680						LN		103		25		false		           25      contains estimates based on Bowen Collins experience				false

		2681						PG		104		0		false		page 104				false

		2682						LN		104		1		false		            1      with similar projects for similar clients based on Bowen				false

		2683						LN		104		2		false		            2      Collins general standards and principals.  Is that a				false

		2684						LN		104		3		false		            3      fair restatement?				false

		2685						LN		104		4		false		            4           A.  Correct.				false

		2686						LN		104		5		false		            5           Q.  So is it true that the engineering study does				false

		2687						LN		104		6		false		            6      not include precise recently acquired bids for each				false

		2688						LN		104		7		false		            7      project proposed by the engineering study?				false

		2689						LN		104		8		false		            8           A.  Correct.				false

		2690						LN		104		9		false		            9           MS. SCHMID:  Those are all my questions.  Thank				false

		2691						LN		104		10		false		           10      you.				false

		2692						LN		104		11		false		           11           MR. SAVAGE:  I have no questions.				false

		2693						LN		104		12		false		           12           MR. LANGE:  I have a couple of questions concerning				false

		2694						LN		104		13		false		           13      ERUs so I can kind of wrap my head around the				false

		2695						LN		104		14		false		           14      understanding of all that.				false

		2696						LN		104		15		false		           15           So I'm trying to educate myself through this whole				false

		2697						LN		104		16		false		           16      process too, as I think a lot of us are.				false

		2698						LN		104		17		false		           17           So it's my understanding ERUs more or less came				false

		2699						LN		104		18		false		           18      about because of inequality between single-family homes				false

		2700						LN		104		19		false		           19      and maybe highrises or something like that, or				false

		2701						LN		104		20		false		           20      multiple-family dwellings.  And that the basis for ERUs				false

		2702						LN		104		21		false		           21      is predicated on the fact that most of a given clientele				false

		2703						LN		104		22		false		           22      customer base -- perhaps on average -- maybe the median,				false

		2704						LN		104		23		false		           23      whatever, consisted of single-family homes.  Do you				false

		2705						LN		104		24		false		           24      understand my question?  Would you agree with that?				false

		2706						LN		104		25		false		           25           A.  The basis of an ERU is to convert historical				false

		2707						PG		105		0		false		page 105				false

		2708						LN		105		1		false		            1      use to an equivalent residential unit, yes.				false

		2709						LN		105		2		false		            2           Q.  So is my understanding, what I presented so far				false

		2710						LN		105		3		false		            3      to you -- my understanding of it; is that correct?				false

		2711						LN		105		4		false		            4           A.  I believe you said the majority of the customer				false

		2712						LN		105		5		false		            5      base is single-family homes.  I don't think that is true				false

		2713						LN		105		6		false		            6      in this case.				false

		2714						LN		105		7		false		            7           Q.  Okay.  I had read that someplace.  And my only				false

		2715						LN		105		8		false		            8      point is the majority of the customers here are not				false

		2716						LN		105		9		false		            9      single-family home?				false

		2717						LN		105		10		false		           10           A.  Correct.				false

		2718						LN		105		11		false		           11           Q.  They are all HOAs consisting of owners, of				false

		2719						LN		105		12		false		           12      course -- 440, approximately 502 customer base.				false

		2720						LN		105		13		false		           13           MR. LANGE:  Okay.  Well, thank you for that.				false

		2721						LN		105		14		false		           14           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Miller?				false

		2722						LN		105		15		false		           15           MS. MILLER:  I have no questions.				false

		2723						LN		105		16		false		           16           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Mr. Amendola, do				false

		2724						LN		105		17		false		           17      you have any questions?				false

		2725						LN		105		18		false		           18           MR. AMENDOLA:  I just have one question of				false

		2726						LN		105		19		false		           19      Ms. Campbell.				false

		2727						LN		105		20		false		           20           Ms. Campbell, originally the ERUs were calculated				false

		2728						LN		105		21		false		           21      at 404 in, I think, the draft study.  In the direct				false

		2729						LN		105		22		false		           22      testimony from Mr. Atwater, if you added up the numbers				false

		2730						LN		105		23		false		           23      in the table it was 401, I believe.  And in the rest of				false

		2731						LN		105		24		false		           24      the direct testimony by Mr. Atwater and the final				false

		2732						LN		105		25		false		           25      report, the ERUs were estimated at 453.  Can you give me				false

		2733						PG		106		0		false		page 106				false

		2734						LN		106		1		false		            1      a little background in how those changes were arrived				false

		2735						LN		106		2		false		            2      at?				false

		2736						LN		106		3		false		            3           A.  Unfortunately, I personally was not involved in				false

		2737						LN		106		4		false		            4      those specific calculations so I can't speak to why the				false

		2738						LN		106		5		false		            5      change was made.				false

		2739						LN		106		6		false		            6           MR. ATWATER:  May I state that the testimony of the				false

		2740						LN		106		7		false		            7      company and of Mr. Larson is that there are 453 ERUs.				false

		2741						LN		106		8		false		            8      The record is clear on that.  And if it's not clear I'll				false

		2742						LN		106		9		false		            9      make it clear.				false

		2743						LN		106		10		false		           10           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Do you confirm, Ms. Campbell?				false

		2744						LN		106		11		false		           11           THE WITNESS:  Yes.				false

		2745						LN		106		12		false		           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Amendola, anything else?				false

		2746						LN		106		13		false		           13           MR. AMENDOLA:  No.  Thank you very much.  Thank				false

		2747						LN		106		14		false		           14      you, Ms. Campbell.				false

		2748						LN		106		15		false		           15           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  It's noon.  We've been				false

		2749						LN		106		16		false		           16      back about 90 minutes from our break.  Would the parties				false

		2750						LN		106		17		false		           17      like to break for lunch now or proceed?				false

		2751						LN		106		18		false		           18           MR. ATWATER:  Your Honor, may I have two redirect				false

		2752						LN		106		19		false		           19      questions?				false

		2753						LN		106		20		false		           20           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I apologize.  Of course.				false

		2754						LN		106		21		false		           21           MR. ATWATER:				false

		2755						LN		106		22		false		           22           Q.  So Ms. Schmid asked you about the fact that				false

		2756						LN		106		23		false		           23      there are no hard bids with your estimate.  Have you				false

		2757						LN		106		24		false		           24      ever made an estimate on infrastructure regarding a				false

		2758						LN		106		25		false		           25      water plant in the past?				false

		2759						PG		107		0		false		page 107				false

		2760						LN		107		1		false		            1           A.  Yes.				false

		2761						LN		107		2		false		            2           Q.  And do you have any idea how accurate the				false

		2762						LN		107		3		false		            3      estimate was in those cases?				false

		2763						LN		107		4		false		            4           A.  Typically when we do engineering estimates, we				false

		2764						LN		107		5		false		            5      will choose a technology and work with a supplier to				false

		2765						LN		107		6		false		            6      come up with preliminary numbers.  So our previous				false

		2766						LN		107		7		false		            7      experience on treatment plants is there is a level of				false

		2767						LN		107		8		false		            8      contingency built into the number.  But we are fairly				false

		2768						LN		107		9		false		            9      close to coming up with a number that will make sense				false

		2769						LN		107		10		false		           10      and you can budget to it.				false

		2770						LN		107		11		false		           11           Q.  And did you employ that same process --				false

		2771						LN		107		12		false		           12           A.  Yes.				false

		2772						LN		107		13		false		           13           Q.  -- for our analysis?  Are you aware -- why				false

		2773						LN		107		14		false		           14      would Bowen Collins not have just obtained bids?  Why is				false

		2774						LN		107		15		false		           15      that not possible as part of this process?				false

		2775						LN		107		16		false		           16           A.  It is difficult to get a contractor to provide				false

		2776						LN		107		17		false		           17      a detailed bid to you when you have nothing for them to				false

		2777						LN		107		18		false		           18      bid to.  So at the time of our master plan, we had				false

		2778						LN		107		19		false		           19      concepts of what needs to be done and that's where we				false

		2779						LN		107		20		false		           20      estimate what those are going to cost.  Once the design				false

		2780						LN		107		21		false		           21      is complete and we have detailed plans and engineered				false

		2781						LN		107		22		false		           22      drawings, that's when you go out to a contractor and you				false

		2782						LN		107		23		false		           23      get a detailed bid number.  So we cannot obtain those				false

		2783						LN		107		24		false		           24      and contractors likely will never provide those on, you				false

		2784						LN		107		25		false		           25      know, an up high in the sky idea.  They need to have it				false

		2785						PG		108		0		false		page 108				false

		2786						LN		108		1		false		            1      defined.  They need to have it engineered.  They need to				false

		2787						LN		108		2		false		            2      have an industry standard to put numbers to.				false

		2788						LN		108		3		false		            3           Q.  Thank you.  Specifically with respect to the				false

		2789						LN		108		4		false		            4      Division of Drinking Water loan, you've previously				false

		2790						LN		108		5		false		            5      stated that -- maybe it was you.  Let me ask you the				false

		2791						LN		108		6		false		            6      question.  When are bids available under that loan				false

		2792						LN		108		7		false		            7      subject to the federal requirements?				false

		2793						LN		108		8		false		            8           A.  As I understand it for this particular project,				false

		2794						LN		108		9		false		            9      they would like to have hard bids for contractors in				false

		2795						LN		108		10		false		           10      hand before closing the loan.  So that requires us to				false

		2796						LN		108		11		false		           11      engineer the projects, put them out for competitive bids				false

		2797						LN		108		12		false		           12      at Davis Bacon wages to get those final bid numbers and				false

		2798						LN		108		13		false		           13      then that is what they fund the loan on at Division of				false

		2799						LN		108		14		false		           14      Drinking Water.				false

		2800						LN		108		15		false		           15           MR. ATWATER:  Okay.  Thank you.				false

		2801						LN		108		16		false		           16           MS. SCHMID:  May I have permission to ask one or				false

		2802						LN		108		17		false		           17      perhaps two recross questions based upon the redirect?				false

		2803						LN		108		18		false		           18           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes.				false

		2804						LN		108		19		false		           19           MS. SCHMID:				false

		2805						LN		108		20		false		           20           Q.  Is it your understanding that the proceeding				false

		2806						LN		108		21		false		           21      here today before the Public Service Commission is a				false

		2807						LN		108		22		false		           22      separate proceeding from the application for a loan				false

		2808						LN		108		23		false		           23      before the Division of Drinking Water?				false

		2809						LN		108		24		false		           24           A.  It is my understanding that they are separate.				false

		2810						LN		108		25		false		           25           MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  That's my only question.				false

		2811						PG		109		0		false		page 109				false

		2812						LN		109		1		false		            1           MR. SAVAGE:  And I have a question also if I may.				false

		2813						LN		109		2		false		            2           Q.  You said that the master plan -- there's				false

		2814						LN		109		3		false		            3      concepts of what needs to be done and then design plans.				false

		2815						LN		109		4		false		            4      Do you recall that testimony?				false

		2816						LN		109		5		false		            5           A.  Yes.				false

		2817						LN		109		6		false		            6           Q.  What stage is the planning that you've done for				false

		2818						LN		109		7		false		            7      CWC that would relate to the interim rates for general				false

		2819						LN		109		8		false		            8      capital improvements?  Is that a concept plan?				false

		2820						LN		109		9		false		            9           A.  At this point it's still a concept plan.  We				false

		2821						LN		109		10		false		           10      have recently been engaged by contract to start the				false

		2822						LN		109		11		false		           11      design process for the loan projects and we are just				false

		2823						LN		109		12		false		           12      barely getting that going.  We've done some site				false

		2824						LN		109		13		false		           13      surveying and a few other preliminary things, but final				false

		2825						LN		109		14		false		           14      designs are not prepared at this time so those numbers				false

		2826						LN		109		15		false		           15      are based on estimates.				false

		2827						LN		109		16		false		           16           Q.  Okay.  So just so I'm clear.  So for the				false

		2828						LN		109		17		false		           17      interim rate increase for general capital improvements,				false

		2829						LN		109		18		false		           18      that's still just at the estimated concept stage?				false

		2830						LN		109		19		false		           19           A.  Correct.				false

		2831						LN		109		20		false		           20           Q.  Did you call those numbers high in the sky just				false

		2832						LN		109		21		false		           21      a minute ago?				false

		2833						LN		109		22		false		           22           A.  No, I said the idea of the design was concept				false

		2834						LN		109		23		false		           23      and that contractors won't bid concept high in the sky				false

		2835						LN		109		24		false		           24      design.				false

		2836						LN		109		25		false		           25           Q.  And we are at the concept stage?				false

		2837						PG		110		0		false		page 110				false

		2838						LN		110		1		false		            1           A.  We are currently at the concept stage.				false

		2839						LN		110		2		false		            2           MR. SAVAGE:  Thank you.  Nothing further.				false

		2840						LN		110		3		false		            3           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any followup, Mr. Atwater?				false

		2841						LN		110		4		false		            4           MR. ATWATER:  No.  Thank you.				false

		2842						LN		110		5		false		            5           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Would you like to call your				false

		2843						LN		110		6		false		            6      next witness before we break for lunch and I'll allow				false

		2844						LN		110		7		false		            7      the other parties to weigh in on the question.				false

		2845						LN		110		8		false		            8           MR. ATWATER:  So does the commission feel that				false

		2846						LN		110		9		false		            9      Ms. Lewis needs to testify still with regards to				false

		2847						LN		110		10		false		           10      questions it has with regard to the loan?				false

		2848						LN		110		11		false		           11           THE HEARING OFFICER:  No.  It wasn't my intention				false

		2849						LN		110		12		false		           12      to express an interest on the part of the commission to				false

		2850						LN		110		13		false		           13      examine Ms. Lewis.  I think I inappropriately assumed				false

		2851						LN		110		14		false		           14      when she jumped in that she intended to testify and I				false

		2852						LN		110		15		false		           15      thought I would save my questions for her.				false

		2853						LN		110		16		false		           16           MR. SAVAGE:  I think right now the question is are				false

		2854						LN		110		17		false		           17      we going to lunch.				false

		2855						LN		110		18		false		           18           MR. ATWATER:  Yeah, I'm trying to determine whether				false

		2856						LN		110		19		false		           19      I have any more witnesses.				false

		2857						LN		110		20		false		           20           MR. SAVAGE:  Okay.				false

		2858						LN		110		21		false		           21           THE HEARING OFFICER:  While you're talking				false

		2859						LN		110		22		false		           22      together, do the other parties have any position on				false

		2860						LN		110		23		false		           23      whether we should break at this time?				false

		2861						LN		110		24		false		           24           MS. SCHMID:  I would support a break at this time.				false

		2862						LN		110		25		false		           25           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Then I'll allow you to think				false

		2863						PG		111		0		false		page 111				false

		2864						LN		111		1		false		            1      about it over the break, Mr. Atwater.  I might have a				false

		2865						LN		111		2		false		            2      few more questions for Mr. White to the extent Ms. Lewis				false

		2866						LN		111		3		false		            3      is not going to testify.  So we'll proceed with one or				false

		2867						LN		111		4		false		            4      the other when we get back and move to the Division's				false

		2868						LN		111		5		false		            5      case.  We'll be in recess until 1:05.				false

		2869						LN		111		6		false		            6           MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.				false

		2870						LN		111		7		false		            7           (Interruption in proceedings.)				false

		2871						LN		111		8		false		            8           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Back on the record then.				false

		2872						LN		111		9		false		            9      Welcome back everyone.				false

		2873						LN		111		10		false		           10           Mr. Atwater, when we adjourned for -- pardon me --				false

		2874						LN		111		11		false		           11      recessed for lunch you were going to consult with				false

		2875						LN		111		12		false		           12      Ms. Lewis and your client and determine whether or not				false

		2876						LN		111		13		false		           13      Ms. Lewis is going to testify.				false

		2877						LN		111		14		false		           14           MR. ATWATER:  Yes, Ms. Lewis is prepared to testify				false

		2878						LN		111		15		false		           15      in this matter.				false

		2879						LN		111		16		false		           16           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Would you like to call her				false

		2880						LN		111		17		false		           17      now?				false

		2881						LN		111		18		false		           18           MR. ATWATER:  Yes.  The applicant calls Ms. Emily				false

		2882						LN		111		19		false		           19      Lewis to the stand to provide testimony in this matter.				false

		2883						LN		111		20		false		           20           (Emily Lewis is sworn in as a witness.)				false

		2884						LN		111		21		false		           21           MR. ATWATER:				false

		2885						LN		111		22		false		           22           Q.  Ms. Lewis, would you please describe for the				false

		2886						LN		111		23		false		           23      commission your engagement and involvement with the				false

		2887						LN		111		24		false		           24      water company.				false

		2888						LN		111		25		false		           25           A.  Certainly.  I work for a private law firm here				false

		2889						PG		112		0		false		page 112				false

		2890						LN		112		1		false		            1      in the city, Clydesdale and Sessions.  I am a water law				false

		2891						LN		112		2		false		            2      attorney which is my primary field of practice.  I was				false

		2892						LN		112		3		false		            3      retained by TCFC under the management of Larry White's				false

		2893						LN		112		4		false		            4      predecessor, Tom Jolley, in 2015 -- probably late 2015.				false

		2894						LN		112		5		false		            5      Since that point in time we have assisted TCFC in a				false

		2895						LN		112		6		false		            6      variety of water matters, including Community Water				false

		2896						LN		112		7		false		            7      Company matters.  And they span from helping with				false

		2897						LN		112		8		false		            8      previous rate cases -- I've not really been involved in				false

		2898						LN		112		9		false		            9      this rate case much at all, but also a lot of background				false

		2899						LN		112		10		false		           10      information.  We've done a fair amount of work for TCFC				false

		2900						LN		112		11		false		           11      to understand what the water assets of Community Water				false

		2901						LN		112		12		false		           12      Company are.  We've retained engineers to look at the				false

		2902						LN		112		13		false		           13      well assets and do well reports.  We have looked at the				false

		2903						LN		112		14		false		           14      various contracts to determine their standing.				false

		2904						LN		112		15		false		           15      Extensive amount of water work for the company.				false

		2905						LN		112		16		false		           16           Q.  So I just want to ask the question on your last				false

		2906						LN		112		17		false		           17      statement there.  You indicated that you have provided				false

		2907						LN		112		18		false		           18      extensive work for the company.  And can you give us				false

		2908						LN		112		19		false		           19      maybe a bit more context as to when you were engaged				false

		2909						LN		112		20		false		           20      initially for the company and your involvement through				false

		2910						LN		112		21		false		           21      the process.  I guess we're speaking commencing in 2014				false

		2911						LN		112		22		false		           22      which is when the current management became involved.				false

		2912						LN		112		23		false		           23           A.  So we were retained -- I want to say like				false

		2913						LN		112		24		false		           24      October 2015.  So about two years ago.  And we've been				false

		2914						LN		112		25		false		           25      involved since then.  When we first came in on				false

		2915						PG		113		0		false		page 113				false

		2916						LN		113		1		false		            1      October '15 under the -- Tom Jolley was at that time the				false

		2917						LN		113		2		false		            2      director.  At that point in time the company was in the				false

		2918						LN		113		3		false		            3      middle of its second rate case in 2015.  The previous				false

		2919						LN		113		4		false		            4      rate case that had been filed in 2014 was issued				false

		2920						LN		113		5		false		            5      incomplete by the commission, which is true because				false

		2921						LN		113		6		false		            6      the -- Varde had not yet taken -- had just taken over				false

		2922						LN		113		7		false		            7      and had not done a lot of work to figure out what the				false

		2923						LN		113		8		false		            8      problems with the company were.  And at that point in				false

		2924						LN		113		9		false		            9      time hired Bowen Collins to do the master study.				false

		2925						LN		113		10		false		           10           In 2015 when we came on, we discussed a variety of				false

		2926						LN		113		11		false		           11      options for how to address the infrastructure problems				false

		2927						LN		113		12		false		           12      with the company, but also the ongoing desire to have an				false

		2928						LN		113		13		false		           13      ownership change from TCFC to another entity who is more				false

		2929						LN		113		14		false		           14      suited to run the water company.				false

		2930						LN		113		15		false		           15           In the 2015 case, we made the decision to withdraw				false

		2931						LN		113		16		false		           16      the case because at that point in time we were pursuing				false

		2932						LN		113		17		false		           17      discussions, both preliminary discussions with				false

		2933						LN		113		18		false		           18      potentially Mountain Regional, with Summit, and also at				false

		2934						LN		113		19		false		           19      that point in time potentially forming a mutual water				false

		2935						LN		113		20		false		           20      company for the customers that would be an alternative				false

		2936						LN		113		21		false		           21      to public --  So we were looking at a variety of				false

		2937						LN		113		22		false		           22      alternatives for the company.				false

		2938						LN		113		23		false		           23           And so in 2015, we withdrew the public service				false

		2939						LN		113		24		false		           24      commission rate case.  At that point in time, the public				false

		2940						LN		113		25		false		           25      service commission asked that we keep them apprized of				false

		2941						PG		114		0		false		page 114				false

		2942						LN		114		1		false		            1      what we were doing.  So we've had communications with				false

		2943						LN		114		2		false		            2      the Division of Public Utilities after that rate case				false

		2944						LN		114		3		false		            3      was withdrawn.  And then we -- our efforts turned to the				false

		2945						LN		114		4		false		            4      unfortunately unfruitful, in terms of making a mutual				false

		2946						LN		114		5		false		            5      water company or transitioning to Community Water, to				false

		2947						LN		114		6		false		            6      Mountain Regional or Summit.				false

		2948						LN		114		7		false		            7           At that time in 2016, Division filed their rate				false

		2949						LN		114		8		false		            8      case which was a maintenance and operations case and we				false

		2950						LN		114		9		false		            9      helped extensively in that matter.				false

		2951						LN		114		10		false		           10           Q.  Let me ask you specifically about some of the				false

		2952						LN		114		11		false		           11      matters that you were engaged in and the level of work.				false

		2953						LN		114		12		false		           12      So the testimony today from the Division -- excuse me --				false

		2954						LN		114		13		false		           13      from the intervenors so far, the testimony -- the				false

		2955						LN		114		14		false		           14      suggestions have been so far that the company has not				false

		2956						LN		114		15		false		           15      done sufficient diligence, and the company has neglected				false

		2957						LN		114		16		false		           16      its duties and responsibilities as a public utility.				false

		2958						LN		114		17		false		           17           In addition to all of the things that you've just				false

		2959						LN		114		18		false		           18      discussed and that you've been engaged to do for the				false

		2960						LN		114		19		false		           19      company, are there any other instances where you have				false

		2961						LN		114		20		false		           20      seen a company involved in pursuing a path toward a				false

		2962						LN		114		21		false		           21      reasonable resolution?				false

		2963						LN		114		22		false		           22           A.  Yeah.  I think the most -- the primary matter				false

		2964						LN		114		23		false		           23      that would probably resolve is securing financing for				false

		2965						LN		114		24		false		           24      the improvements.  And so after the conclusion of the				false

		2966						LN		114		25		false		           25      2016 rate increase which was limited to a rate that was				false

		2967						PG		115		0		false		page 115				false

		2968						LN		115		1		false		            1      sufficient for simply maintenance and operations, even				false

		2969						LN		115		2		false		            2      though we did request some additional amount of money to				false

		2970						LN		115		3		false		            3      fund a meter package so we could replace meters, that				false

		2971						LN		115		4		false		            4      was denied.  We determined that the condition of the				false

		2972						LN		115		5		false		            5      company was in such a dire state that we needed to find				false

		2973						LN		115		6		false		            6      alternative funding.  So at that point in time we looked				false

		2974						LN		115		7		false		            7      into finding funding sources on the private and public				false

		2975						LN		115		8		false		            8      markets.				false

		2976						LN		115		9		false		            9           And that's when we decided to reapply for the state				false

		2977						LN		115		10		false		           10      revolving fund loan through the Division of Drinking				false

		2978						LN		115		11		false		           11      Water.  And we were always very open with the customers				false

		2979						LN		115		12		false		           12      and the Division of Public Utilities about that process.				false

		2980						LN		115		13		false		           13      It's a very low interest rate loan.  We had approval at				false

		2981						LN		115		14		false		           14      3.09 percent.  It's rare it find money that cheap.  We				false

		2982						LN		115		15		false		           15      also with that had the expertise of the Division of				false

		2983						LN		115		16		false		           16      Drinking Water working with us.  So a lot of my time was				false

		2984						LN		115		17		false		           17      spent doing that as well.				false

		2985						LN		115		18		false		           18           Q.  Why do you think the -- why did the company				false

		2986						LN		115		19		false		           19      choose to go with the Division of Drinking Water loan				false

		2987						LN		115		20		false		           20      versus any other possibility?				false

		2988						LN		115		21		false		           21           A.  One of the problems that we -- one of the				false

		2989						LN		115		22		false		           22      issues that we wanted to address as promptly as possible				false

		2990						LN		115		23		false		           23      was the fact that the system was an important addition				false

		2991						LN		115		24		false		           24      as demonstrated by the failure of the tank.  So one of				false

		2992						LN		115		25		false		           25      our thoughts was that we would apply for funding and see				false

		2993						PG		116		0		false		page 116				false

		2994						LN		116		1		false		            1      if we could get the funding.  And then we would find a				false

		2995						LN		116		2		false		            2      payment restructure path through either transitioning to				false

		2996						LN		116		3		false		            3      a mutual water company format -- most likely through				false

		2997						LN		116		4		false		            4      Summit or through the Public Service Commission -- and I				false

		2998						LN		116		5		false		            5      had many discussions with Mark Long about this process				false

		2999						LN		116		6		false		            6      as well.  But making sure that our loan request would be				false

		3000						LN		116		7		false		            7      something that would ultimately be acceptable to the				false

		3001						LN		116		8		false		            8      Public Service Commission in asking for infrastructure				false

		3002						LN		116		9		false		            9      improvements that would be appropriate to be covered in				false

		3003						LN		116		10		false		           10      a public service rate increase.  And if we were able to				false

		3004						LN		116		11		false		           11      get out from underneath, Public Service Commission				false

		3005						LN		116		12		false		           12      oversight would be repaid through assessments and a				false

		3006						LN		116		13		false		           13      mutual water company.				false

		3007						LN		116		14		false		           14           Q.  So you mentioned that you had conversations				false

		3008						LN		116		15		false		           15      with Mark Long.  Who was Mark Long?				false

		3009						LN		116		16		false		           16           A.  Mark Long was the prior Division of Public				false

		3010						LN		116		17		false		           17      Utilities' technical assistant -- I don't know --				false

		3011						LN		116		18		false		           18      engineer.  He had a very constructive relationship with				false

		3012						LN		116		19		false		           19      the Division of Public Utilities throughout the last				false

		3013						LN		116		20		false		           20      several rate cases.  And I think that their expertise				false

		3014						LN		116		21		false		           21      has been very helpful.  This is a unique scenario, so we				false

		3015						LN		116		22		false		           22      want to make sure that we were being transparent and				false

		3016						LN		116		23		false		           23      communicative with our regulatory agencies.				false

		3017						LN		116		24		false		           24           Q.  Was it your understanding that the Division of				false

		3018						LN		116		25		false		           25      Public Utilities recommended pursuing the loan as a				false

		3019						PG		117		0		false		page 117				false

		3020						LN		117		1		false		            1      viable option for funding?				false

		3021						LN		117		2		false		            2           A.  Yes.				false

		3022						LN		117		3		false		            3           MR. ATWATER:  I have no further questions.				false

		3023						LN		117		4		false		            4           THE WITNESS:  I would like to make just a				false

		3024						LN		117		5		false		            5      clarification statement from our earlier comments.  I				false

		3025						LN		117		6		false		            6      think one of the big issues that has been missing a				false

		3026						LN		117		7		false		            7      little bit in this discussion is that the first domino				false

		3027						LN		117		8		false		            8      for getting funding for the Division of Drinking Water				false

		3028						LN		117		9		false		            9      loan is proving to the Division of Drinking Water a				false

		3029						LN		117		10		false		           10      structure of repayment.  And that's been the primary				false

		3030						LN		117		11		false		           11      focus for the company, once the loan was approved, is				false

		3031						LN		117		12		false		           12      securing a restructuring of payment.  And we have made				false

		3032						LN		117		13		false		           13      great efforts to try and have that happen on a mutual				false

		3033						LN		117		14		false		           14      water company's side and a rate under a mutual water				false

		3034						LN		117		15		false		           15      company if they were able to get customer consent to				false
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		3276						LN		126		23		false		           23      the Public Service Commission, Division of Public				false

		3277						LN		126		24		false		           24      Utilities, and all of our customers who are their own				false

		3278						LN		126		25		false		           25      regulatory entities.  Sometimes they wield great power.				false

		3279						PG		127		0		false		page 127				false

		3280						LN		127		1		false		            1      At the end of the day, pragmatically we all share the				false

		3281						LN		127		2		false		            2      same goal of trying to fix the system, and trying to fix				false

		3282						LN		127		3		false		            3      it in an environment that is not necessarily conducive				false

		3283						LN		127		4		false		            4      to meeting that goal in an expedited manner.				false

		3284						LN		127		5		false		            5           And so at this point in time, what the company has				false

		3285						LN		127		6		false		            6      done is it's provided the best information as possible				false

		3286						LN		127		7		false		            7      as it is today with the hope that we can run the				false

		3287						LN		127		8		false		            8      Division of Drinking Water loan process and the Public				false

		3288						LN		127		9		false		            9      Service Commission process concurrently to get the				false

		3289						LN		127		10		false		           10      information ultimately needed by both.				false

		3290						LN		127		11		false		           11           MS. SCHMID:  Those are all my questions.  Thank				false

		3291						LN		127		12		false		           12      you.  This was very unusual.				false

		3292						LN		127		13		false		           13           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Savage?				false

		3293						LN		127		14		false		           14           MR. SAVAGE:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		3294						LN		127		15		false		           15           Q.  Ms. Lewis, you attended all of the meetings				false

		3295						LN		127		16		false		           16      with the customers -- representatives of the customers				false

		3296						LN		127		17		false		           17      that we've been talking about; correct?				false

		3297						LN		127		18		false		           18           A.  I believe so.				false

		3298						LN		127		19		false		           19           Q.  Isn't it true that at least one of those				false

		3299						LN		127		20		false		           20      meetings you presented a proposal for a period of months				false

		3300						LN		127		21		false		           21      to pay off the tanks that would be paid off before any				false

		3301						LN		127		22		false		           22      need to start paying for the $3.6 million loan?				false

		3302						LN		127		23		false		           23           A.  We've had several discussions about how to				false

		3303						LN		127		24		false		           24      finance the tank project and the capital improvements.				false

		3304						LN		127		25		false		           25      And generally those discussions have included paying off				false

		3305						PG		128		0		false		page 128				false

		3306						LN		128		1		false		            1      the tank loan prior to the Division of Drinking Water's				false

		3307						LN		128		2		false		            2      debt service --  You know, we need to restructure				false

		3308						LN		128		3		false		            3      payment for that.				false

		3309						LN		128		4		false		            4           Q.  Before January of 2019?				false

		3310						LN		128		5		false		            5           A.  If we are able to secure a rate that the				false

		3311						LN		128		6		false		            6      Division of Drinking Water finds sufficient as to be				false

		3312						LN		128		7		false		            7      repayment of the loan, and we are able to close the loan				false

		3313						LN		128		8		false		            8      this April, the first payment on the loan will be in				false

		3314						LN		128		9		false		            9      2019.  At this point in time, that being said, those				false

		3315						LN		128		10		false		           10      dates may change depending on what -- how the				false

		3316						LN		128		11		false		           11      construction goes and how the process plays out.				false

		3317						LN		128		12		false		           12           Q.  All right.  Can you tell us what the proposal				false

		3318						LN		128		13		false		           13      you recall making for these two assessments or interim				false

		3319						LN		128		14		false		           14      emergency rate increase as well for the tank and one to				false

		3320						LN		128		15		false		           15      start paying off the loan.  Just tell us what you told				false

		3321						LN		128		16		false		           16      the water users.				false

		3322						LN		128		17		false		           17           A.  In early June we had a meeting with the water				false

		3323						LN		128		18		false		           18      users.  The tank failed in mid-April.  We had several				false

		3324						LN		128		19		false		           19      communications by mail that are -- portions of which are				false

		3325						LN		128		20		false		           20      included in your testimony.  And then we had a public				false

		3326						LN		128		21		false		           21      meeting early June to discuss the solutions that we had				false

		3327						LN		128		22		false		           22      come up with, of which one was, as I stated, our goal				false

		3328						LN		128		23		false		           23      was and still is to try and find a better format for				false

		3329						LN		128		24		false		           24      this company of moving to Summit or a mutual water				false

		3330						LN		128		25		false		           25      company.  And repayment of the loan for the repayment				false

		3331						PG		129		0		false		page 129				false

		3332						LN		129		1		false		            1      would be -- for the tank project would be -- the first				false

		3333						LN		129		2		false		            2      chunk would be -- it would be earlier.  And then the				false

		3334						LN		129		3		false		            3      repayment on the Division of Drinking Water would be				false

		3335						LN		129		4		false		            4      subsequent to that.				false

		3336						LN		129		5		false		            5           Q.  Was that to be -- with respect to the tank, was				false

		3337						LN		129		6		false		            6      that to pay off a loan from the parent of CWC to				false

		3338						LN		129		7		false		            7      immediately replace the tank?				false

		3339						LN		129		8		false		            8           A.  So the TCFC has floated several proposals, but				false

		3340						LN		129		9		false		            9      the proposal I think you're alluding to is that we had				false

		3341						LN		129		10		false		           10      stated that the parent company would provide a loan.				false

		3342						LN		129		11		false		           11      That being said, you know, maybe this should have been				false

		3343						LN		129		12		false		           12      more clearly stated, that that loan is contingent upon				false

		3344						LN		129		13		false		           13      having a repayment structure.  And then that would have				false

		3345						LN		129		14		false		           14      gone first under a period of 18 months.  The proposal is				false

		3346						LN		129		15		false		           15      an 18-month loan.				false

		3347						LN		129		16		false		           16           Q.  How much per month, do you recall?				false

		3348						LN		129		17		false		           17           A.  In terms of per person payment?				false

		3349						LN		129		18		false		           18           Q.  Yeah.				false

		3350						LN		129		19		false		           19           A.  I don't recall how much per person.				false

		3351						LN		129		20		false		           20           Q.  But it was an amount of money that would retire				false

		3352						LN		129		21		false		           21      $450,000?				false

		3353						LN		129		22		false		           22           A.  Yes.  At that point in time it was a $450,000				false

		3354						LN		129		23		false		           23      loan.				false

		3355						LN		129		24		false		           24           Q.  Eighteen months?				false

		3356						LN		129		25		false		           25           A.  Yeah.				false

		3357						PG		130		0		false		page 130				false

		3358						LN		130		1		false		            1           Q.  And it would be paid off before the loan kicked				false

		3359						LN		130		2		false		            2      off for payments of the 3.6 million?				false

		3360						LN		130		3		false		            3           A.  Our goal was to create as little -- our goal				false

		3361						LN		130		4		false		            4      was to create the most consistency possible.  So it				false

		3362						LN		130		5		false		            5      worked out serendipitously if we structured repayment of				false

		3363						LN		130		6		false		            6      the tank loan to dovetail with the payments to the				false

		3364						LN		130		7		false		            7      Division of Drinking Water loan, water rates would				false

		3365						LN		130		8		false		            8      remain relatively the same for customers and there				false

		3366						LN		130		9		false		            9      wouldn't be a large debt or increase and that was our				false

		3367						LN		130		10		false		           10      goal.				false

		3368						LN		130		11		false		           11           Q.  Does it stick in your mind it was about a $50				false

		3369						LN		130		12		false		           12      increase over the existing rate?  Something like $95 or				false

		3370						LN		130		13		false		           13      something?				false

		3371						LN		130		14		false		           14           A.  That would make sense to me.				false

		3372						LN		130		15		false		           15           Q.  So what you're telling us is that the proposal				false

		3373						LN		130		16		false		           16      was that there would be a short-term increase of the				false

		3374						LN		130		17		false		           17      water rates up to a total $95 base rate until the tank				false

		3375						LN		130		18		false		           18      was -- money for the tank was paid back to the parent;				false

		3376						LN		130		19		false		           19      correct?				false

		3377						LN		130		20		false		           20           A.  That was one of our proposals, yes.				false

		3378						LN		130		21		false		           21           Q.  And then that would be hopefully done before				false

		3379						LN		130		22		false		           22      the same amount of money kicked in to retire debt over				false

		3380						LN		130		23		false		           23      20 years from the -- for the $3.6 million?				false

		3381						LN		130		24		false		           24           A.  Yes.  I mean, this is all subject to -- these				false

		3382						LN		130		25		false		           25      were estimates and not final numbers.				false

		3383						PG		131		0		false		page 131				false

		3384						LN		131		1		false		            1           Q.  I understand.  But the goal and the proposal				false

		3385						LN		131		2		false		            2      was essentially that it would be something like a $95				false

		3386						LN		131		3		false		            3      base rate that would stay the same after the mid-loan				false

		3387						LN		131		4		false		            4      kicked in?				false

		3388						LN		131		5		false		            5           A.  That's also why we're asking for our general				false

		3389						LN		131		6		false		            6      rate case now as we'd like to have consistency with our				false

		3390						LN		131		7		false		            7      rates.				false

		3391						LN		131		8		false		            8           Q.  And the money for the tank was to come from the				false

		3392						LN		131		9		false		            9      parent company?				false

		3393						LN		131		10		false		           10           A.  At that point in time, yes, that was our				false

		3394						LN		131		11		false		           11      proposal in June.				false

		3395						LN		131		12		false		           12           Q.  What was the interest rate on that loan?				false

		3396						LN		131		13		false		           13           A.  At that point in time, I believe it was to				false

		3397						LN		131		14		false		           14      match the Division of Drinking Water loan.				false

		3398						LN		131		15		false		           15           Q.  3.39 percent?  Not 13?				false

		3399						LN		131		16		false		           16           A.  That is true.  But as we said that was a				false

		3400						LN		131		17		false		           17      proposal.				false

		3401						LN		131		18		false		           18           Q.  And who makes -- well, let me back up.  I can				false

		3402						LN		131		19		false		           19      show you these documents, but I'm just going to -- in				false

		3403						LN		131		20		false		           20      front of me the June 12, 2017 communication to the				false

		3404						LN		131		21		false		           21      customers of CWC.  Do you recall that?				false

		3405						LN		131		22		false		           22           A.  Yes.				false

		3406						LN		131		23		false		           23           Q.  By the way, did you review that before it went				false

		3407						LN		131		24		false		           24      out?				false

		3408						LN		131		25		false		           25           A.  Yes.				false

		3409						PG		132		0		false		page 132				false

		3410						LN		132		1		false		            1           Q.  And it's signed by Mr. Larry White, but he				false

		3411						LN		132		2		false		            2      signs as chief executive officer, TCFC Finance Company				false

		3412						LN		132		3		false		            3      and as manager of ASC Utah LLC; is that correct?				false

		3413						LN		132		4		false		            4           A.  I don't have that information to speak to				false

		3414						LN		132		5		false		            5      Larry's -- I mean if it says that on the paper, yes.				false

		3415						LN		132		6		false		            6      Whether or not that's an accurate statement of his				false

		3416						LN		132		7		false		            7      titles, I don't know.				false

		3417						LN		132		8		false		            8           Q.  Well, that's not my question.				false

		3418						LN		132		9		false		            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Savage, do you have a				false

		3419						LN		132		10		false		           10      copy of what you're reading to the witness from?				false

		3420						LN		132		11		false		           11           MR. SAVAGE:  No.  But I could give her mine.  I'm				false

		3421						LN		132		12		false		           12      sorry.  I didn't have copies of it.  I didn't know we				false

		3422						LN		132		13		false		           13      were going through this.				false

		3423						LN		132		14		false		           14           THE WITNESS:  Me neither.				false

		3424						LN		132		15		false		           15           MR. SAVAGE:  Do we need to mark it as an exhibit?				false

		3425						LN		132		16		false		           16           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Do you want to introduce it?				false

		3426						LN		132		17		false		           17           MR. SAVAGE:  It's already attached as Exhibit B to				false

		3427						LN		132		18		false		           18      my statement so I'll refer to it that way.				false

		3428						LN		132		19		false		           19           MS. SCHMID:  Could we go off the record for just				false

		3429						LN		132		20		false		           20      one moment?				false

		3430						LN		132		21		false		           21           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Certainly.  Let's go off the				false

		3431						LN		132		22		false		           22      record.				false

		3432						LN		132		23		false		           23           (Interruption in proceedings.)				false

		3433						LN		132		24		false		           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Do you want to go back on the				false

		3434						LN		132		25		false		           25      record, Mr. Savage?				false

		3435						PG		133		0		false		page 133				false

		3436						LN		133		1		false		            1           MR. SAVAGE:  Yes.				false

		3437						LN		133		2		false		            2           Q.  I'll show you now what's been marked as Exhibit				false

		3438						LN		133		3		false		            3      B to your statement, and can you identify that document?				false

		3439						LN		133		4		false		            4           A.  Yes.				false

		3440						LN		133		5		false		            5           Q.  What is it?				false

		3441						LN		133		6		false		            6           A.  Throughout the company's tenure under 20144,				false

		3442						LN		133		7		false		            7      it's one of our goals to have constant communication and				false

		3443						LN		133		8		false		            8      transparency with our customers.  This is one of those				false

		3444						LN		133		9		false		            9      letters that was going to inform customers about a				false

		3445						LN		133		10		false		           10      variety of issues.  You know, one is the continued tank				false

		3446						LN		133		11		false		           11      failure and irrigation restrictions and then funding				false

		3447						LN		133		12		false		           12      options for that.  Two, an update on the Division of				false

		3448						LN		133		13		false		           13      Drinking Water loan and company transfer.				false

		3449						LN		133		14		false		           14           Q.  And it's signed by Mr. Larry White?				false

		3450						LN		133		15		false		           15           A.  As chief executive officer, TCFC Co., LLC,				false

		3451						LN		133		16		false		           16      manager ASC Utah.  So he is the -- yes.				false

		3452						LN		133		17		false		           17           Q.  In your experience in dealing with this				false

		3453						LN		133		18		false		           18      company, is he the person that makes the decisions for				false

		3454						LN		133		19		false		           19      Community Water?				false

		3455						LN		133		20		false		           20           MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  The document that's being				false

		3456						LN		133		21		false		           21      referenced does not state what is being suggested.  It				false

		3457						LN		133		22		false		           22      states --				false

		3458						LN		133		23		false		           23           MR. SAVAGE:  I've got a question pending.				false

		3459						LN		133		24		false		           24           MR. ATWATER:  Sorry.				false

		3460						LN		133		25		false		           25           THE HEARING OFFICER:  You're objecting.  You're				false

		3461						PG		134		0		false		page 134				false

		3462						LN		134		1		false		            1      saying the question misstates the evidence?				false

		3463						LN		134		2		false		            2           MR. ATWATER:  Correct.				false

		3464						LN		134		3		false		            3           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Well, the witness just				false

		3465						LN		134		4		false		            4      conferred it's stated correctly.				false

		3466						LN		134		5		false		            5           MR. ATWATER:  I object to the response.				false

		3467						LN		134		6		false		            6           THE WITNESS:  I think it's unclear about how this				false

		3468						LN		134		7		false		            7      title is stated what exact role Larry is playing in				false

		3469						LN		134		8		false		            8      terms of management.				false

		3470						LN		134		9		false		            9           MR. SAVAGE:  That's what I'm trying to find out.				false

		3471						LN		134		10		false		           10           MR. ATWATER:  TCFC is the manager of ASC Utah.				false

		3472						LN		134		11		false		           11      That's what it says.				false

		3473						LN		134		12		false		           12           MR. SAVAGE:  And he's also -- I see what you're				false

		3474						LN		134		13		false		           13      saying.  But he's the chief executive officer of TCFC?				false

		3475						LN		134		14		false		           14           MR. ATWATER:  Right.				false

		3476						LN		134		15		false		           15           THE WITNESS:  Yes.				false

		3477						LN		134		16		false		           16           MR. SAVAGE:				false

		3478						LN		134		17		false		           17           Q.  Is he signing as a manager of ASC?  Do you know				false

		3479						LN		134		18		false		           18      if he is a manager of ASC?				false

		3480						LN		134		19		false		           19           A.  I believe that his testimony would be the best				false

		3481						LN		134		20		false		           20      for this.  I don't feel qualified.				false

		3482						LN		134		21		false		           21           Q.  But anyway, it appears to you that he's signing				false

		3483						LN		134		22		false		           22      on behalf of ASC who is the manager of TCFC and as a				false

		3484						LN		134		23		false		           23      chief executive officer of TCFC; is that correct?				false

		3485						LN		134		24		false		           24           MR. ATWATER:  The reverse.				false

		3486						LN		134		25		false		           25           MR. SAVAGE:				false

		3487						PG		135		0		false		page 135				false

		3488						LN		135		1		false		            1           Q.  Okay.  We'll reverse it; is that correct?  I				false

		3489						LN		135		2		false		            2      don't really care.  I'm just trying to get to what he				false

		3490						LN		135		3		false		            3      does.				false

		3491						LN		135		4		false		            4           A.  ASC Utah is the manager of TCFC and he is the				false

		3492						LN		135		5		false		            5      CEO of TCFC.				false

		3493						LN		135		6		false		            6           MR. SAVAGE:  That's what I thought I just said.				false

		3494						LN		135		7		false		            7           MR. ATWATER:  No, it's reversed.  I think				false

		3495						LN		135		8		false		            8      Mr. White's testimony is consistent with that.				false

		3496						LN		135		9		false		            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think the document can				false

		3497						LN		135		10		false		           10      speak for itself.  At this point we can probably move				false

		3498						LN		135		11		false		           11      on.				false

		3499						LN		135		12		false		           12           MR. SAVAGE:				false

		3500						LN		135		13		false		           13           Q.  At this point, I do not really care.  He's not				false

		3501						LN		135		14		false		           14      signing as any officer or employee of CWC; is that				false

		3502						LN		135		15		false		           15      correct?				false

		3503						LN		135		16		false		           16           A.  He's not signing as CWC.				false

		3504						LN		135		17		false		           17           Q.  The parent controls this company, does it not?				false

		3505						LN		135		18		false		           18           A.  Yes.				false

		3506						LN		135		19		false		           19           Q.  And Mr. White makes the key decisions?				false

		3507						LN		135		20		false		           20           A.  My understanding is he does.  I do not know				false

		3508						LN		135		21		false		           21      what the corporate structure is behind him.  I feel				false

		3509						LN		135		22		false		           22      uncomfortable answering corporate structure questions				false

		3510						LN		135		23		false		           23      for where he falls in.				false

		3511						LN		135		24		false		           24           Q.  From what you've observed, he's the guy that				false

		3512						LN		135		25		false		           25      makes the decisions for CWC, is he not?				false
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		3755						LN		145		8		false		            8      And do you know that those rates, those increased tiers				false

		3756						LN		145		9		false		            9      are not even being approached because there is no				false

		3757						LN		145		10		false		           10      irrigation?				false

		3758						LN		145		11		false		           11           A.  The rate of structure currently to have a base				false

		3759						LN		145		12		false		           12      rate that should cover our basic costs without				false

		3760						LN		145		13		false		           13      considerations of volume.  That basic rate -- base rate				false

		3761						LN		145		14		false		           14      in the opinion of the company is insufficient currently				false

		3762						LN		145		15		false		           15      to cover our costs and not going to cover future costs.				false

		3763						LN		145		16		false		           16           So while volume does play a measure in the amount				false

		3764						LN		145		17		false		           17      of money and revenue the company takes in, the base rate				false

		3765						LN		145		18		false		           18      is really intended to be the operating cost of the				false

		3766						LN		145		19		false		           19      company.  And at the last rate hearing we went from $36				false

		3767						LN		145		20		false		           20      in our base rate to $30 in our base rate.  And so we				false

		3768						LN		145		21		false		           21      understand that -- or are recommended 36 to 30.  The				false

		3769						LN		145		22		false		           22      base rates really is a bulk of how we make a lot of the				false

		3770						LN		145		23		false		           23      needed costs to cover company costs which is irrelevant				false

		3771						LN		145		24		false		           24      to usage.				false

		3772						LN		145		25		false		           25           Q.  Have you read my submission to the commission?				false

		3773						PG		146		0		false		page 146				false

		3774						LN		146		1		false		            1           A.  I have, but not in great detail.				false

		3775						LN		146		2		false		            2           Q.  Are you aware of what I proposed as an				false

		3776						LN		146		3		false		            3      alternative to pay for the tank?				false

		3777						LN		146		4		false		            4           A.  I am, but it would be better for you to present				false

		3778						LN		146		5		false		            5      that.				false

		3779						LN		146		6		false		            6           Q.  Well, I think it's $50 a month for each 500				false

		3780						LN		146		7		false		            7      users for 12 months which would be well more than				false

		3781						LN		146		8		false		            8      $500,000, and then that be paid off before any rate				false

		3782						LN		146		9		false		            9      increase to start paying off the $3.6 million loan.  So				false

		3783						LN		146		10		false		           10      that representation to you, is that significantly				false

		3784						LN		146		11		false		           11      different from what the company was proposing during our				false

		3785						LN		146		12		false		           12      meetings?				false

		3786						LN		146		13		false		           13           A.  It's not significantly different.  The issue is				false

		3787						LN		146		14		false		           14      a timing issue.  Right now the current problem is that				false

		3788						LN		146		15		false		           15      there's no -- there is very little operating revenue for				false

		3789						LN		146		16		false		           16      us to pay for the needed engineering and other costs				false

		3790						LN		146		17		false		           17      needed to complete the Division of Drinking Water loan,				false

		3791						LN		146		18		false		           18      to complete the needed capital improvements in place.				false

		3792						LN		146		19		false		           19           So while in June that may have been a very good way				false

		3793						LN		146		20		false		           20      to go about things, now that we're in October and the				false

		3794						LN		146		21		false		           21      transition to a mutual water company did not come to be,				false

		3795						LN		146		22		false		           22      there may be a better format to meet the timing needs of				false

		3796						LN		146		23		false		           23      what we're doing.				false

		3797						LN		146		24		false		           24           Q.  And do you understand that my proposal would be				false

		3798						LN		146		25		false		           25      just like your representation to the users that the				false

		3799						PG		147		0		false		page 147				false

		3800						LN		147		1		false		            1      bridge loan would come from the parent company that				false

		3801						LN		147		2		false		            2      Mr. White is the executive officer of?				false

		3802						LN		147		3		false		            3           A.  I believe that the fundamental issue is we just				false

		3803						LN		147		4		false		            4      need a proven rate repayment structure for either a				false

		3804						LN		147		5		false		            5      bridge loan, the Division of Drinking Water loan.  Any				false

		3805						LN		147		6		false		            6      money from outside sources we get, we just need a proven				false

		3806						LN		147		7		false		            7      rate of repayment.  And if there is a sufficient rate				false

		3807						LN		147		8		false		            8      approved by the Public Service Commission that would				false

		3808						LN		147		9		false		            9      allow us to have repayment of our loans, then I think				false

		3809						LN		147		10		false		           10      that the company would be, you know, amenable to that.				false

		3810						LN		147		11		false		           11      That's our goal.  That's what we want.				false

		3811						LN		147		12		false		           12           Q.  By the company you mean the parent Mr. White's				false

		3812						LN		147		13		false		           13      the chief executive of?				false

		3813						LN		147		14		false		           14           A.  I can't speak for Mr. White, but my				false

		3814						LN		147		15		false		           15      understanding that that is true.  We're looking for a				false

		3815						LN		147		16		false		           16      repayment structure.				false

		3816						LN		147		17		false		           17           Q.  And "we", you're talking about both on behalf				false

		3817						LN		147		18		false		           18      of CWC and its parent?				false

		3818						LN		147		19		false		           19           A.  I don't feel comfortable talking -- I don't				false

		3819						LN		147		20		false		           20      feel qualified to speak to whether or not that would be				false

		3820						LN		147		21		false		           21      appropriate for the parent company.  But I think CWC				false

		3821						LN		147		22		false		           22      just is looking for repayment structure.				false

		3822						LN		147		23		false		           23           Q.  I appreciate your candor on CWC's desire to get				false

		3823						LN		147		24		false		           24      out from under public service commission's authority and				false

		3824						LN		147		25		false		           25      I want to ask you about that.  Isn't it true that the				false

		3825						PG		148		0		false		page 148				false

		3826						LN		148		1		false		            1      company has stated -- company representatives have				false

		3827						LN		148		2		false		            2      stated in your presence and even you stated that it was				false

		3828						LN		148		3		false		            3      deemed that it would complicate the deal with Summit				false

		3829						LN		148		4		false		            4      Water for the company to apply for emergency rate				false

		3830						LN		148		5		false		            5      increase to cover the tank back in June?				false

		3831						LN		148		6		false		            6           A.  I believe this is an important point to				false

		3832						LN		148		7		false		            7      clarify.  The company has always been diligent in trying				false

		3833						LN		148		8		false		            8      to find a way to get this tank built and operating.  The				false

		3834						LN		148		9		false		            9      issue is just finding a method of repayment, whether it				false

		3835						LN		148		10		false		           10      be a TCFC loan, whether it be a Division of Drinking				false

		3836						LN		148		11		false		           11      Water loan, the issue is finding a method of repayment.				false

		3837						LN		148		12		false		           12      And the company has explored several options to do that,				false

		3838						LN		148		13		false		           13      which has been a transfer and which has been a public				false

		3839						LN		148		14		false		           14      service commission filing.  So parallel paths.				false

		3840						LN		148		15		false		           15           We are here on public service commission's side				false

		3841						LN		148		16		false		           16      because the timing became apparent that the other path				false

		3842						LN		148		17		false		           17      wasn't going to work, and we needed to get funding in				false

		3843						LN		148		18		false		           18      place or repayment structure in place.				false

		3844						LN		148		19		false		           19           Q.  Has the company stated that it was concerned				false

		3845						LN		148		20		false		           20      that applying to the commission would complicate				false

		3846						LN		148		21		false		           21      concluding its deal with Summit Water?				false

		3847						LN		148		22		false		           22           A.  One of our initial concerns and it's still a				false

		3848						LN		148		23		false		           23      concern is the timing of which a Public Service				false

		3849						LN		148		24		false		           24      Commission rate process takes.  This is an interim				false

		3850						LN		148		25		false		           25      hearing.  And a larger rate hearing is still going to				false

		3851						PG		149		0		false		page 149				false

		3852						LN		149		1		false		            1      take many weeks and months to go forward.  Our hope and				false

		3853						LN		149		2		false		            2      intent was to get customer support to transfer to a				false

		3854						LN		149		3		false		            3      mutual water company in a shorter period of time to have				false

		3855						LN		149		4		false		            4      a rate structure under the share assessments of a mutual				false

		3856						LN		149		5		false		            5      water company in place to repay loans.				false

		3857						LN		149		6		false		            6           That did not happen so we are here under the public				false

		3858						LN		149		7		false		            7      service commission's -- the considerations are still the				false

		3859						LN		149		8		false		            8      same.  It's still a complicated process.  It's a long				false

		3860						LN		149		9		false		            9      complicated process.				false

		3861						LN		149		10		false		           10           Q.  And matters pending under the Public Service				false

		3862						LN		149		11		false		           11      Commission would complicate finishing the deal with				false

		3863						LN		149		12		false		           12      Summit Water?				false

		3864						LN		149		13		false		           13           A.  They're parallel paths.				false

		3865						LN		149		14		false		           14           Q.  Were they parallel or did you wait until				false

		3866						LN		149		15		false		           15      September to file before the commission when we needed				false

		3867						LN		149		16		false		           16      that tank desperately being under construction in June,				false

		3868						LN		149		17		false		           17      July and August?				false

		3869						LN		149		18		false		           18           A.  We needed a rate repayment structure and that's				false

		3870						LN		149		19		false		           19      what we've been doing.  We've been trying to figure that				false

		3871						LN		149		20		false		           20      out through a mutual water company or through the Public				false

		3872						LN		149		21		false		           21      Service Commission.  And once we determined that a				false

		3873						LN		149		22		false		           22      mutual water company was not going to be the most				false

		3874						LN		149		23		false		           23      expedient way to do that, we filed for the Public				false

		3875						LN		149		24		false		           24      Service Commission.  We took several weeks to get our				false

		3876						LN		149		25		false		           25      paperwork together and we filed in September.  I				false

		3877						PG		150		0		false		page 150				false

		3878						LN		150		1		false		            1      don't -- we're here and we couldn't be here any faster				false

		3879						LN		150		2		false		            2      than we are anyway because we wouldn't have had any				false

		3880						LN		150		3		false		            3      information to provide to the Public Service Commission				false

		3881						LN		150		4		false		            4      without that time anyway.				false

		3882						LN		150		5		false		            5           Q.  So is it fair to say it was not exactly				false

		3883						LN		150		6		false		            6      parallel?				false

		3884						LN		150		7		false		            7           A.  We're working in unison.				false

		3885						LN		150		8		false		            8           Q.  Pardon?				false

		3886						LN		150		9		false		            9           A.  We're working in unison.  The point is being				false

		3887						LN		150		10		false		           10      that it also took us some time to get the information				false

		3888						LN		150		11		false		           11      that we needed collected to get to the Public Service				false

		3889						LN		150		12		false		           12      Commission.				false

		3890						LN		150		13		false		           13           Q.  And it was the parent's decision through				false

		3891						LN		150		14		false		           14      Mr. Larry White to wait until September 13th to apply				false

		3892						LN		150		15		false		           15      for a rate increase that would cover repayment of the				false

		3893						LN		150		16		false		           16      loan for this tank?				false

		3894						LN		150		17		false		           17           A.  Ultimately.				false

		3895						LN		150		18		false		           18           Q.  Yes?  Right?  You have to answer.				false

		3896						LN		150		19		false		           19           A.  Yes.				false

		3897						LN		150		20		false		           20           MR. SAVAGE:  That's all I have.  Thank you very				false

		3898						LN		150		21		false		           21      much.				false

		3899						LN		150		22		false		           22           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Savage.				false

		3900						LN		150		23		false		           23      Mr. Lange?				false

		3901						LN		150		24		false		           24           MR. LANGE:  Yes.  I have one question, Emily.				false

		3902						LN		150		25		false		           25           Q.  So you're pretty knowledgeable about the loan				false

		3903						PG		151		0		false		page 151				false

		3904						LN		151		1		false		            1      application; correct?				false

		3905						LN		151		2		false		            2           A.  Yes.				false

		3906						LN		151		3		false		            3           Q.  The Division of Drinking Water.  So I have in				false

		3907						LN		151		4		false		            4      front of me, this is part of the company's testimony				false

		3908						LN		151		5		false		            5      here.  There was a scoring table.  The loan had a score				false

		3909						LN		151		6		false		            6      of financial points.  I believe it's called 26.  And my				false

		3910						LN		151		7		false		            7      question would be if it scored higher, would that				false

		3911						LN		151		8		false		            8      somehow lower the interest rate or affect the terms of				false

		3912						LN		151		9		false		            9      the loan?				false

		3913						LN		151		10		false		           10           A.  So the Division of Drinking Water -- and I may				false

		3914						LN		151		11		false		           11      not state this exactly correctly -- has a priority list				false

		3915						LN		151		12		false		           12      system where they look at the deficiencies of a project,				false

		3916						LN		151		13		false		           13      and that will determine what the -- how they prioritize				false

		3917						LN		151		14		false		           14      giving loan funds.				false

		3918						LN		151		15		false		           15           They also have a medium adjusted gross income				false

		3919						LN		151		16		false		           16      metric which depends on where you live in the state,				false

		3920						LN		151		17		false		           17      whether or not you apply for grants.  We scored very				false

		3921						LN		151		18		false		           18      high on the deficiencies so we were a priority list --				false

		3922						LN		151		19		false		           19      we were higher on their priority list in terms of their				false

		3923						LN		151		20		false		           20      priority for funding.  Due to the ZIP Code in which the				false

		3924						LN		151		21		false		           21      company is located, we did not qualify for any grants				false

		3925						LN		151		22		false		           22      based on median adjusted gross income metric.				false

		3926						LN		151		23		false		           23           Q.  So the point of my question here is category				false

		3927						LN		151		24		false		           24      three called project funding contributed by the				false

		3928						LN		151		25		false		           25      applicant, has a scoring system of zero points to 17				false

		3929						PG		152		0		false		page 152				false

		3930						LN		152		1		false		            1      points.				false

		3931						LN		152		2		false		            2           And the application here shows that there was no --				false

		3932						LN		152		3		false		            3      CWC was apparent -- applicant here was less than				false

		3933						LN		152		4		false		            4      2 percent of projected funds.  So I'm curious if we were				false

		3934						LN		152		5		false		            5      to take, for instance, the possibility of the loan from				false

		3935						LN		152		6		false		            6      the parent company to cover the tank, that we'd probably				false

		3936						LN		152		7		false		            7      see 10 percent of the projected funds, maybe closer to				false

		3937						LN		152		8		false		            8      15 percent.  That would add somewhere between 11 to --				false

		3938						LN		152		9		false		            9      or 14 points on which would change the score from 26 to				false

		3939						LN		152		10		false		           10      maybe 40 or 37.  So with that kind of a score would				false

		3940						LN		152		11		false		           11      there have been perhaps a lower interest rate or more				false

		3941						LN		152		12		false		           12      favorable loan?				false

		3942						LN		152		13		false		           13           A.  I think that the terms of the loan are				false

		3943						LN		152		14		false		           14      absolutely the most favorable that we were going to get.				false

		3944						LN		152		15		false		           15      I do not think they're going to issue anything lower				false

		3945						LN		152		16		false		           16      than what we received, and I think it's important to				false

		3946						LN		152		17		false		           17      remember the timing of which things happened.  We				false

		3947						LN		152		18		false		           18      applied for the loan in February or March and the tank				false

		3948						LN		152		19		false		           19      failed in April.  So when we submitted our initial				false

		3949						LN		152		20		false		           20      application, the tank had not yet failed.  The tank				false

		3950						LN		152		21		false		           21      failed in April and the loan was approved in May.  And				false

		3951						LN		152		22		false		           22      so the -- I don't -- the timing wouldn't have worked out				false

		3952						LN		152		23		false		           23      well.  The timing wouldn't have worked to have				false

		3953						LN		152		24		false		           24      included --				false

		3954						LN		152		25		false		           25           Q.  But my question is more directed to -- granted				false

		3955						PG		153		0		false		page 153				false

		3956						LN		153		1		false		            1      you got the most favorable rates based upon your score				false

		3957						LN		153		2		false		            2      here.  Had the score been higher 11 or 14 points, would				false

		3958						LN		153		3		false		            3      you have gotten or would you get even more favorable				false

		3959						LN		153		4		false		            4      rates?				false

		3960						LN		153		5		false		            5           A.  That would be a decision that would be made				false

		3961						LN		153		6		false		            6      based by the Division of Drinking Water.  That being				false

		3962						LN		153		7		false		            7      said, you would also be paying 13 percent or whatever it				false

		3963						LN		153		8		false		            8      is on TCFC loans.				false

		3964						LN		153		9		false		            9           Q.  I'm only concerned with this particular loan				false

		3965						LN		153		10		false		           10      and the rates and how this particular scoring system				false

		3966						LN		153		11		false		           11      affects the rates.				false

		3967						LN		153		12		false		           12           A.  That would have been a Division of Drinking				false

		3968						LN		153		13		false		           13      Water decision.  My belief is that I asked every single				false

		3969						LN		153		14		false		           14      way possible to get us the lowest interest rate and to				false

		3970						LN		153		15		false		           15      get us the most grant money possible, and I was assured				false

		3971						LN		153		16		false		           16      by the Division of Drinking Water that this was the best				false

		3972						LN		153		17		false		           17      we could get.  And I think it's very good for our needs.				false

		3973						LN		153		18		false		           18           MR. LANGE:  Thank you.  That's all the questions I				false

		3974						LN		153		19		false		           19      have.				false

		3975						LN		153		20		false		           20           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Miller?				false

		3976						LN		153		21		false		           21           MS. MILLER:  I have no additional questions.				false

		3977						LN		153		22		false		           22           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  I have a few.				false

		3978						LN		153		23		false		           23      Mr. Atwater, would you like to reserve your redirect				false

		3979						LN		153		24		false		           24      until after I ask my questions?				false

		3980						LN		153		25		false		           25           MR. ATWATER:  Yes.  Thank you.				false

		3981						PG		154		0		false		page 154				false

		3982						LN		154		1		false		            1           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'll infer, Ms. Lewis, from				false

		3983						LN		154		2		false		            2      one of your responses to a question earlier about				false

		3984						LN		154		3		false		            3      ultimately truing up the interim rates, you understand				false

		3985						LN		154		4		false		            4      this is an interim rate hearing?				false

		3986						LN		154		5		false		            5           THE WITNESS:  Right.				false

		3987						LN		154		6		false		            6           THE HEARING OFFICER:  And there will be another				false

		3988						LN		154		7		false		            7      hearing in April to determine if the rates should be				false

		3989						LN		154		8		false		            8      going forward.  And you used the term "true up" so I				false

		3990						LN		154		9		false		            9      take it you understand the rates are potentially to be				false

		3991						LN		154		10		false		           10      refunded?				false

		3992						LN		154		11		false		           11           THE WITNESS:  Yes.				false

		3993						LN		154		12		false		           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Based on your knowledge of				false

		3994						LN		154		13		false		           13      the company's books and accounts, will it have				false

		3995						LN		154		14		false		           14      sufficient cash to refund the customers money should an				false

		3996						LN		154		15		false		           15      adverse determination be made in April?				false

		3997						LN		154		16		false		           16           THE WITNESS:  That is a good question.  I don't				false

		3998						LN		154		17		false		           17      know the answer to that.  I think it will depend on what				false

		3999						LN		154		18		false		           18      the ultimate rate we receive here is.  If there is an				false

		4000						LN		154		19		false		           19      adequate reserve that we could -- potentially could				false

		4001						LN		154		20		false		           20      refund people some money from it.  Our intent is				false

		4002						LN		154		21		false		           21      hopefully to not have that happen.  But I don't know the				false

		4003						LN		154		22		false		           22      answer to that.				false

		4004						LN		154		23		false		           23           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Well, to the extent the				false

		4005						LN		154		24		false		           24      commissioner granted CWC's request with respect to the				false

		4006						LN		154		25		false		           25      special charge on the tank and assessed the full fee of				false

		4007						PG		155		0		false		page 155				false

		4008						LN		155		1		false		            1      a thousand and change on the customers, would CWC be in				false

		4009						LN		155		2		false		            2      any position to refund that money in April to the				false

		4010						LN		155		3		false		            3      customers?				false

		4011						LN		155		4		false		            4           THE WITNESS:  I don't believe that -- in terms of				false

		4012						LN		155		5		false		            5      repaying them the lump sum to get their thousand dollars				false

		4013						LN		155		6		false		            6      back?				false

		4014						LN		155		7		false		            7           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Right.  Repaying all the				false

		4015						LN		155		8		false		            8      money that was collected under that provision of the				false

		4016						LN		155		9		false		            9      interim loan?				false

		4017						LN		155		10		false		           10           THE WITNESS:  Well, I believe that money would be				false

		4018						LN		155		11		false		           11      going to pay for the tank.				false

		4019						LN		155		12		false		           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Right.				false

		4020						LN		155		13		false		           13           THE WITNESS:  Yeah.				false

		4021						LN		155		14		false		           14           THE HEARING OFFICER:  So the money would not be				false

		4022						LN		155		15		false		           15      available to be refunded?				false

		4023						LN		155		16		false		           16           THE WITNESS:  No.  It would not be available to be				false

		4024						LN		155		17		false		           17      refunded because it would be going to pay for tank costs				false

		4025						LN		155		18		false		           18      that are being spent.				false

		4026						LN		155		19		false		           19           THE HEARING OFFICER:  And you did, I thought, an				false

		4027						LN		155		20		false		           20      excellent job of describing the DDW loan process.  At				false

		4028						LN		155		21		false		           21      least I feel I understand it better than I did before.				false

		4029						LN		155		22		false		           22      But I might want you to repeat yourself a little bit.				false

		4030						LN		155		23		false		           23           So you said that the CWC applied for the DDW loan				false

		4031						LN		155		24		false		           24      in April; is that correct?				false

		4032						LN		155		25		false		           25           THE WITNESS:  The application was due in March.				false

		4033						PG		156		0		false		page 156				false

		4034						LN		156		1		false		            1           THE HEARING OFFICER:  It was due in March?				false

		4035						LN		156		2		false		            2           THE WITNESS:  Uh-huh.				false

		4036						LN		156		3		false		            3           THE HEARING OFFICER:  And was there a line item to				false

		4037						LN		156		4		false		            4      replace the failed tank, it just hadn't failed yet?				false

		4038						LN		156		5		false		            5           THE WITNESS:  No.  So the original loan application				false

		4039						LN		156		6		false		            6      requests are for a two-part project.  So the first part				false

		4040						LN		156		7		false		            7      project was a replacement of transmission and				false

		4041						LN		156		8		false		            8      distribution lines, a pressure reducing valve and meter				false

		4042						LN		156		9		false		            9      component.  And then a second -- and that's the first				false

		4043						LN		156		10		false		           10      package.  And then the second package is a water				false

		4044						LN		156		11		false		           11      treatment plan replacement.  So those are the two --				false

		4045						LN		156		12		false		           12      those are the line items initially included in the loan				false

		4046						LN		156		13		false		           13      request.				false

		4047						LN		156		14		false		           14           When the tank failed in April, we administratively				false

		4048						LN		156		15		false		           15      asked the Division to include a line item request for				false

		4049						LN		156		16		false		           16      the tank to present to the board of Drinking Water, and				false

		4050						LN		156		17		false		           17      the loan was finally approved including money for the				false

		4051						LN		156		18		false		           18      tank.  We took that money back out subsequently to				false

		4052						LN		156		19		false		           19      address the two issues I addressed earlier for				false

		4053						LN		156		20		false		           20      expediency and cost purposes to try and fund the tank				false

		4054						LN		156		21		false		           21      not through the Division of Drinking Water loan.				false

		4055						LN		156		22		false		           22           THE HEARING OFFICER:  What's the projected closing				false

		4056						LN		156		23		false		           23      date for the DDW loan as it stands today?				false

		4057						LN		156		24		false		           24           THE WITNESS:  As it stands right now it's most				false

		4058						LN		156		25		false		           25      likely going to be April.				false

		4059						PG		157		0		false		page 157				false

		4060						LN		157		1		false		            1           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Non-specified date in April?				false

		4061						LN		157		2		false		            2           THE WITNESS:  No.  We're -- honestly a large				false

		4062						LN		157		3		false		            3      component of it hinges on this hearing.				false

		4063						LN		157		4		false		            4           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I see.				false

		4064						LN		157		5		false		            5           THE WITNESS:  We cannot -- one of the conditions of				false

		4065						LN		157		6		false		            6      closing the loan is having a rate repayment structure.				false

		4066						LN		157		7		false		            7      And until we can either prove through either a share				false

		4067						LN		157		8		false		            8      assessment structure or through a Public Service				false

		4068						LN		157		9		false		            9      Commission approved rate increase, we cannot close on				false

		4069						LN		157		10		false		           10      the loan and that money will no longer be available to				false

		4070						LN		157		11		false		           11      us.				false

		4071						LN		157		12		false		           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Would inserting a request for				false

		4072						LN		157		13		false		           13      funds to pay for the failed tank back into the DDW loan				false

		4073						LN		157		14		false		           14      delay that closing date?				false

		4074						LN		157		15		false		           15           THE WITNESS:  Yes.  It would also increase the				false

		4075						LN		157		16		false		           16      cost.  So the problem with inserting it back in is that				false

		4076						LN		157		17		false		           17      we're just too far along in the process.  Particularly				false

		4077						LN		157		18		false		           18      so that the Division of Drinking Water loan requires a				false

		4078						LN		157		19		false		           19      competitive bid process, whereas taking out of the loan				false

		4079						LN		157		20		false		           20      we are able to directly go to a contractor and directly				false

		4080						LN		157		21		false		           21      go to an engineering firm to do the designs.  If we are				false

		4081						LN		157		22		false		           22      to put it back in the Division of Drinking Water loan				false

		4082						LN		157		23		false		           23      process, we'd have to scrap all that and put it out to				false

		4083						LN		157		24		false		           24      competitive bid.				false

		4084						LN		157		25		false		           25           THE HEARING OFFICER:  So what's your best estimate				false

		4085						PG		158		0		false		page 158				false

		4086						LN		158		1		false		            1      of how long the loan would be delayed if you were to do				false

		4087						LN		158		2		false		            2      that?				false

		4088						LN		158		3		false		            3           THE WITNESS:  If we were to put it back into the				false

		4089						LN		158		4		false		            4      loan, I don't -- I can't say.  It would really be just				false

		4090						LN		158		5		false		            5      duplicative efforts is what it would be.  And ultimately				false

		4091						LN		158		6		false		            6      the customers are going to bear the cost of the company.				false

		4092						LN		158		7		false		            7      So we'd be hesitant to do that because it would be				false

		4093						LN		158		8		false		            8      duplicating efforts for the customers as well.				false

		4094						LN		158		9		false		            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Let's assume for the sake of				false

		4095						LN		158		10		false		           10      argument that all the costs were deemed acceptable.				false

		4096						LN		158		11		false		           11      What would the delay be?				false

		4097						LN		158		12		false		           12           THE WITNESS:  I'm not quite sure, but I probably				false

		4098						LN		158		13		false		           13      would -- but we probably would just roll it into the				false

		4099						LN		158		14		false		           14      loan and have it close in April as well.  See the --				false

		4100						LN		158		15		false		           15      we'd roll it into the loan, so we'd just follow the same				false

		4101						LN		158		16		false		           16      tracks, package A, package B, and it would probably				false

		4102						LN		158		17		false		           17      be -- just become package C of the loan so that it would				false

		4103						LN		158		18		false		           18      close in April.				false

		4104						LN		158		19		false		           19           The problem is that it would still put us -- it				false

		4105						LN		158		20		false		           20      would still put us with a late summer completion date.				false

		4106						LN		158		21		false		           21      Whereas if we keep it separate, we're hoping for an				false

		4107						LN		158		22		false		           22      early summer completion date, and the customers' primary				false

		4108						LN		158		23		false		           23      concern is their irrigation water.				false

		4109						LN		158		24		false		           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Because under the DDW				false

		4110						LN		158		25		false		           25      financing for the replacement tank you can't order it				false

		4111						PG		159		0		false		page 159				false

		4112						LN		159		1		false		            1      until the loan closes; correct?				false

		4113						LN		159		2		false		            2           THE WITNESS:  Exactly.				false

		4114						LN		159		3		false		            3           THE HEARING OFFICER:  And you estimated it would be				false

		4115						LN		159		4		false		            4      a late summer completion?				false

		4116						LN		159		5		false		            5           THE WITNESS:  That's when we were intending to end				false

		4117						LN		159		6		false		            6      most of our construction and --				false

		4118						LN		159		7		false		            7           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Those are all my questions.				false

		4119						LN		159		8		false		            8      Thank you.  Mr. Atwater?				false

		4120						LN		159		9		false		            9           MR. ATWATER:				false

		4121						LN		159		10		false		           10           Q.  So it has come up a few times in questioning				false

		4122						LN		159		11		false		           11      why the company decided to restrict irrigation --				false

		4123						LN		159		12		false		           12      outdoor irrigation.  Can you explain.				false

		4124						LN		159		13		false		           13           A.  Certainly.  So when the tank failed in April --				false

		4125						LN		159		14		false		           14      One, I think it's important to recognize on the record				false

		4126						LN		159		15		false		           15      if this has not yet been discussed, we've had ample				false

		4127						LN		159		16		false		           16      discussions with the customers about alternatives for				false

		4128						LN		159		17		false		           17      the tank.  We've talked about bladders.  We've talked				false

		4129						LN		159		18		false		           18      about all kinds of ways to try and get continued water				false

		4130						LN		159		19		false		           19      through the company.  And at the end of the day, the				false

		4131						LN		159		20		false		           20      cost and the time was to just try and replace				false

		4132						LN		159		21		false		           21      immediately the tank.				false

		4133						LN		159		22		false		           22           And so at that point in time, we are operating our				false

		4134						LN		159		23		false		           23      one primary water tank.  And with -- in consultation				false

		4135						LN		159		24		false		           24      with the Summit County Fire Department, it was				false

		4136						LN		159		25		false		           25      determined that that tank was inadequate to support				false

		4137						PG		160		0		false		page 160				false

		4138						LN		160		1		false		            1      indoor watering, outdoor watering, and maintain a				false

		4139						LN		160		2		false		            2      minimum threshold for fire protections.				false

		4140						LN		160		3		false		            3           And so we made the decision that an irrigation				false

		4141						LN		160		4		false		            4      restriction and watering restriction was allowed for				false

		4142						LN		160		5		false		            5      under our tariff during an emergency condition, and that				false

		4143						LN		160		6		false		            6      we would restrict outdoor watering to maintain that				false

		4144						LN		160		7		false		            7      minimum fire suppression of quantity in the tank.				false

		4145						LN		160		8		false		            8           Q.  Had you wanted to remove the restriction, did				false

		4146						LN		160		9		false		            9      the company have water to allow for the restriction to				false

		4147						LN		160		10		false		           10      be lifted?				false

		4148						LN		160		11		false		           11           A.  Was there ample water to --				false

		4149						LN		160		12		false		           12           Q.  Correct.				false

		4150						LN		160		13		false		           13           A.  I don't think -- I don't think I know the				false

		4151						LN		160		14		false		           14      answer to that.				false

		4152						LN		160		15		false		           15           Q.  So let me ask it in a different way.  Did the				false

		4153						LN		160		16		false		           16      company have to pay for water from Summit Distribution				false

		4154						LN		160		17		false		           17      Company?				false

		4155						LN		160		18		false		           18           A.  So there was discussion about providing				false

		4156						LN		160		19		false		           19      irrigation water through Summit -- providing irrigation				false

		4157						LN		160		20		false		           20      water through Summit Water Distribution Company.  This				false

		4158						LN		160		21		false		           21      was problematic for two reasons.  First, it's much more				false

		4159						LN		160		22		false		           22      expensive to hire Summit Water conservation -- or to				false

		4160						LN		160		23		false		           23      higher -- to buy Summit Water and so that cost would				false

		4161						LN		160		24		false		           24      have been -- we would have been unable to pass it along				false

		4162						LN		160		25		false		           25      to the customers at their current rate.  So that extra				false

		4163						PG		161		0		false		page 161				false

		4164						LN		161		1		false		            1      cost would have been assumed by the company.				false

		4165						LN		161		2		false		            2           Second, Summit was unwilling to provide irrigation				false

		4166						LN		161		3		false		            3      water because they've already put their customers under				false

		4167						LN		161		4		false		            4      a conservation rate which is intended to have them				false

		4168						LN		161		5		false		            5      reduce their water consumption.  So providing extra				false

		4169						LN		161		6		false		            6      water for irrigation purposes did not fall into their				false

		4170						LN		161		7		false		            7      management structure of how they wanted to manage their				false

		4171						LN		161		8		false		            8      water resources.				false

		4172						LN		161		9		false		            9           Q.  So had the company, the applicant, wanted to				false

		4173						LN		161		10		false		           10      raise revenues in order to pay for expenses, it did not				false

		4174						LN		161		11		false		           11      have the ability to lift its irrigation restriction				false

		4175						LN		161		12		false		           12      because it didn't have water and the water from Summit				false

		4176						LN		161		13		false		           13      Water was not available; is that true?				false

		4177						LN		161		14		false		           14           A.  True.				false

		4178						LN		161		15		false		           15           Q.  There has also been a big line of questioning				false

		4179						LN		161		16		false		           16      today about why the company did not pursue this hearing				false

		4180						LN		161		17		false		           17      until September.  Have you ever been involved in a rate				false

		4181						LN		161		18		false		           18      case hearing for a public utility other than for				false

		4182						LN		161		19		false		           19      Community Water?				false

		4183						LN		161		20		false		           20           A.  No, I have not.				false

		4184						LN		161		21		false		           21           Q.  Have you been involved in one previously on				false

		4185						LN		161		22		false		           22      Community Water?				false

		4186						LN		161		23		false		           23           A.  Yes, I have.				false

		4187						LN		161		24		false		           24           Q.  How long does it take to prepare for a rate				false

		4188						LN		161		25		false		           25      case?				false

		4189						PG		162		0		false		page 162				false

		4190						LN		162		1		false		            1           A.  It takes a substantial amount of time.  And I				false

		4191						LN		162		2		false		            2      believe that's also reflected in the 2014, turning our				false

		4192						LN		162		3		false		            3      application back as incomplete, in that it takes a				false

		4193						LN		162		4		false		            4      substantial amount of time.  And that's also one of the				false

		4194						LN		162		5		false		            5      reasons why we've applied for this interim rate hearing				false

		4195						LN		162		6		false		            6      is that we need hard engineering.  It takes time to do				false

		4196						LN		162		7		false		            7      that.				false

		4197						LN		162		8		false		            8           Q.  And so instead -- or as a parallel path, the				false

		4198						LN		162		9		false		            9      company chose to do as you testified, which is seek				false

		4199						LN		162		10		false		           10      other methods of finding funds for the company, which is				false

		4200						LN		162		11		false		           11      completely permissible and allowed by the code?				false

		4201						LN		162		12		false		           12           A.  Yes.				false

		4202						LN		162		13		false		           13           Q.  Mr. Savage asked you a question about the				false

		4203						LN		162		14		false		           14      decision making of the company and who was responsible				false

		4204						LN		162		15		false		           15      for that decision making.  Are you aware that with the				false

		4205						LN		162		16		false		           16      company's direct testimony, there was filed an				false

		4206						LN		162		17		false		           17      administrative services agreement between ASC Utah and				false

		4207						LN		162		18		false		           18      the company?				false

		4208						LN		162		19		false		           19           A.  I believe so.				false

		4209						LN		162		20		false		           20           Q.  Okay.  I just want to note that for the record,				false

		4210						LN		162		21		false		           21      and the services that are required and provided				false

		4211						LN		162		22		false		           22      thereunder, it's that agreement whereby the decisions				false

		4212						LN		162		23		false		           23      were made?				false

		4213						LN		162		24		false		           24           A.  Uh-huh.				false

		4214						LN		162		25		false		           25           Q.  Okay.  I do want to ask a few questions				false

		4215						PG		163		0		false		page 163				false

		4216						LN		163		1		false		            1      regarding the loan just quickly.				false

		4217						LN		163		2		false		            2           So far as your testimony has been today the -- if				false

		4218						LN		163		3		false		            3      the tank, $525,000, is included in the Division of				false

		4219						LN		163		4		false		            4      Drinking Water loan, the loan can still close in April?				false

		4220						LN		163		5		false		            5      The cost of the tank -- I'm sorry.  I'll do one at a				false

		4221						LN		163		6		false		            6      time.				false

		4222						LN		163		7		false		            7           A.  Yes.  We can include the tank in the Division				false

		4223						LN		163		8		false		            8      of Drinking Water loan.  It would -- but the timeline of				false

		4224						LN		163		9		false		            9      the tank would also then parallel the timeline of the				false

		4225						LN		163		10		false		           10      other project components.  So April.				false

		4226						LN		163		11		false		           11           Q.  So the loan can close in April?				false

		4227						LN		163		12		false		           12           A.  Uh-huh.				false

		4228						LN		163		13		false		           13           Q.  When can the tank be fully functional if it is				false

		4229						LN		163		14		false		           14      funded in April?				false

		4230						LN		163		15		false		           15           A.  If it's funded in April, I believe it would put				false

		4231						LN		163		16		false		           16      us towards the back end of summer.  But really the				false

		4232						LN		163		17		false		           17      engineers would be a better witness for that.				false

		4233						LN		163		18		false		           18           Q.  Is it possible that waiting until April to				false

		4234						LN		163		19		false		           19      engage in bidding and redesigning, constructing --				false
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		4717						LN		182		8		false		            8      intervenors, felt that a shorter time period -- even				false

		4718						LN		182		9		false		            9      though there isn't an equity there -- was a more				false

		4719						LN		182		10		false		           10      responsible answer to getting this tank -- because there				false

		4720						LN		182		11		false		           11      is an immediate need for the tank -- and a new owner 20				false

		4721						LN		182		12		false		           12      years from now was not suffering or potentially could				false

		4722						LN		182		13		false		           13      suffer from we -- what we can suffer from here in the				false

		4723						LN		182		14		false		           14      short term -- so if the customer base through the				false

		4724						LN		182		15		false		           15      intervenors suggested a shorter time period, would you				false

		4725						LN		182		16		false		           16      fight us on that?  Or I'm not sure I'm phrasing that				false

		4726						LN		182		17		false		           17      quite right.  But would you disagree with us on what we				false

		4727						LN		182		18		false		           18      are willing to do?				false

		4728						LN		182		19		false		           19           A.  I think that the Division's position would be				false

		4729						LN		182		20		false		           20      the same, but I think that if you have a desire for that				false

		4730						LN		182		21		false		           21      type of loan then you should make that argument with the				false

		4731						LN		182		22		false		           22      commission.				false

		4732						LN		182		23		false		           23           Q.  Well, I guess maybe at some level, perhaps				false

		4733						LN		182		24		false		           24      we'll do that.  But right now we're trying to figure out				false

		4734						LN		182		25		false		           25      how to get some money going right away for the tank.				false

		4735						PG		183		0		false		page 183				false

		4736						LN		183		1		false		            1      Like today --				false

		4737						LN		183		2		false		            2           A.  I agree.				false

		4738						LN		183		3		false		            3           Q.  -- or when the commission makes a decision.  So				false

		4739						LN		183		4		false		            4      I'm fine appealing to the commission on this.  Then so				false

		4740						LN		183		5		false		            5      be it.				false

		4741						LN		183		6		false		            6           A.  Uh-huh.				false

		4742						LN		183		7		false		            7           Q.  But again I just want -- I guess you're telling				false

		4743						LN		183		8		false		            8      me that you would not agree with what we would want?				false

		4744						LN		183		9		false		            9           A.  I would state that we have our position and our				false

		4745						LN		183		10		false		           10      position is that the repayment period should closely				false

		4746						LN		183		11		false		           11      match the asset life.				false

		4747						LN		183		12		false		           12           MR. LANGE:  Okay.  I understand.  Thank you very				false

		4748						LN		183		13		false		           13      much.				false

		4749						LN		183		14		false		           14           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Miller?				false

		4750						LN		183		15		false		           15           MS. MILLER:  I have no comments or questions.				false

		4751						LN		183		16		false		           16           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Schmid, would you prefer				false

		4752						LN		183		17		false		           17      I ask my questions before you redirect?				false

		4753						LN		183		18		false		           18           MS. SCHMID:  Yes, please.				false

		4754						LN		183		19		false		           19           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Duncan, based on reading				false

		4755						LN		183		20		false		           20      your testimony, I inferred that you or other individuals				false

		4756						LN		183		21		false		           21      who work at the Division have had communications with				false

		4757						LN		183		22		false		           22      individuals at DDW; is that correct?				false

		4758						LN		183		23		false		           23           THE WITNESS:  We have.				false

		4759						LN		183		24		false		           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Who has been involved in				false

		4760						LN		183		25		false		           25      those communications?				false

		4761						PG		184		0		false		page 184				false

		4762						LN		184		1		false		            1           THE WITNESS:  Myself and Mr. Smith and Mark Long.				false

		4763						LN		184		2		false		            2           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Has DDW made any				false

		4764						LN		184		3		false		            3      representations to you or to anyone else at the Division				false

		4765						LN		184		4		false		            4      to your knowledge concerning the availability of funds				false

		4766						LN		184		5		false		            5      to finance the replacement of the failed tank?				false

		4767						LN		184		6		false		            6           THE WITNESS:  Yes.				false

		4768						LN		184		7		false		            7           THE HEARING OFFICER:  And what were the content of				false

		4769						LN		184		8		false		            8      those representations?				false

		4770						LN		184		9		false		            9           THE WITNESS:  They were very close to what				false

		4771						LN		184		10		false		           10      Ms. Lewis testified to just a few minutes ago, that they				false

		4772						LN		184		11		false		           11      could still put funding for the tank back into the loan,				false

		4773						LN		184		12		false		           12      but it would require that they backtrack and take				false

		4774						LN		184		13		false		           13      some -- and do some steps that they had not done when				false

		4775						LN		184		14		false		           14      pursuing an outside -- you know, getting bids from --				false

		4776						LN		184		15		false		           15      without following all the federal regulations so it				false

		4777						LN		184		16		false		           16      would be a delay.				false

		4778						LN		184		17		false		           17           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Do you have any opinion as to				false

		4779						LN		184		18		false		           18      whether the representations we've heard from other				false

		4780						LN		184		19		false		           19      witnesses today concerning CWC's ability to order the				false

		4781						LN		184		20		false		           20      tank or otherwise begin preconstruction work before loan				false

		4782						LN		184		21		false		           21      closing are accurate?				false

		4783						LN		184		22		false		           22           THE WITNESS:  I would say that they are generally				false

		4784						LN		184		23		false		           23      accurate.  And confirm what we've talked about with				false

		4785						LN		184		24		false		           24      Drinking Water.				false

		4786						LN		184		25		false		           25           THE HEARING OFFICER:  So DDW has confirmed to you				false

		4787						PG		185		0		false		page 185				false

		4788						LN		185		1		false		            1      or others at the Division that the construction cannot				false

		4789						LN		185		2		false		            2      be -- pardon me -- preconstruction work cannot begin				false

		4790						LN		185		3		false		            3      prior to closing?				false

		4791						LN		185		4		false		            4           THE WITNESS:  That is correct.				false

		4792						LN		185		5		false		            5           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Do you have an opinion as to				false

		4793						LN		185		6		false		            6      whether CWC's estimate that the tank will take				false

		4794						LN		185		7		false		            7      approximately four months for manufacture is accurate?				false

		4795						LN		185		8		false		            8           THE WITNESS:  I don't have an opinion on that.				false

		4796						LN		185		9		false		            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  So in light of everything you				false

		4797						LN		185		10		false		           10      know about the case, as we sit here today do you have an				false

		4798						LN		185		11		false		           11      opinion as to whether financing through DDW remains a				false

		4799						LN		185		12		false		           12      feasible alternative?				false

		4800						LN		185		13		false		           13           THE WITNESS:  I believe it remains feasible,				false

		4801						LN		185		14		false		           14      although I can see that Community Water would have to				false

		4802						LN		185		15		false		           15      act quickly to backtrack and do some of the steps that				false

		4803						LN		185		16		false		           16      they did not do.  So it's feasible, I think, and it's --				false

		4804						LN		185		17		false		           17      as has been testified to it's a very good interest rate.				false

		4805						LN		185		18		false		           18           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Let's change tracks				false

		4806						LN		185		19		false		           19      and assume for a moment that the Commission were				false

		4807						LN		185		20		false		           20      inclined to agree with the Division with respect to its				false

		4808						LN		185		21		false		           21      recommendation on the failed water tank.  I believe your				false

		4809						LN		185		22		false		           22      testimony suggests that the order in this interim rate				false

		4810						LN		185		23		false		           23      proceedings should provide some sort of authorization				false

		4811						LN		185		24		false		           24      that would satisfy DDW that it would be assured of				false

		4812						LN		185		25		false		           25      repayment; is that accurate?				false

		4813						PG		186		0		false		page 186				false

		4814						LN		186		1		false		            1           THE WITNESS:  Yes.  That's accurate.  But in				false

		4815						LN		186		2		false		            2      addition to DDW, in the application -- Drinking Water's				false

		4816						LN		186		3		false		            3      application in paragraph 18, it said without assessments				false

		4817						LN		186		4		false		            4      to cover the debt service and repayment, the company has				false

		4818						LN		186		5		false		            5      been unable to demonstrate to potential lenders a clear				false

		4819						LN		186		6		false		            6      path of repayment.  So I think it should not only apply				false

		4820						LN		186		7		false		            7      to DDW, but maybe other lenders that they may have				false

		4821						LN		186		8		false		            8      talked to.				false

		4822						LN		186		9		false		            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Understood.  And one sort of				false

		4823						LN		186		10		false		           10      specific question, if we go to page five of your				false

		4824						LN		186		11		false		           11      corrected testimony which was handed out earlier today,				false

		4825						LN		186		12		false		           12      beginning on line 75, the question reads, "Does the				false

		4826						LN		186		13		false		           13      Division have an estimate of the additional revenue				false

		4827						LN		186		14		false		           14      required to recover the cost of rebuilding the failed				false

		4828						LN		186		15		false		           15      water tank."				false

		4829						LN		186		16		false		           16           THE WITNESS:  Correct.				false

		4830						LN		186		17		false		           17           THE HEARING OFFICER:  You state, "Yes, based on the				false

		4831						LN		186		18		false		           18      investment of $525,000 and loan repayment conditions of				false

		4832						LN		186		19		false		           19      20 years at 3.39 percent, the loan repayment would be				false

		4833						LN		186		20		false		           20      $3,000 -- pardon me -- $3,015."  On an annual basis you				false

		4834						LN		186		21		false		           21      go on to explain that's $36,180.  Then you go on to				false

		4835						LN		186		22		false		           22      combine an annual depreciation expense of $17,500 per				false

		4836						LN		186		23		false		           23      year; right?				false

		4837						LN		186		24		false		           24           THE WITNESS:  Correct.				false

		4838						LN		186		25		false		           25           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Is it consistent with general				false

		4839						PG		187		0		false		page 187				false

		4840						LN		187		1		false		            1      rate making principles to allow for recovery -- back up.				false

		4841						LN		187		2		false		            2      The monthly repayment here of $3,000 -- I mean $3,015				false

		4842						LN		187		3		false		            3      includes both the principle and interest payment;				false

		4843						LN		187		4		false		            4      correct?				false

		4844						LN		187		5		false		            5           THE WITNESS:  Yes.				false

		4845						LN		187		6		false		            6           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Is it consistent with				false

		4846						LN		187		7		false		            7      generate rate making principles to allow a utility to				false

		4847						LN		187		8		false		            8      recover the principle on its debt and also depreciate				false

		4848						LN		187		9		false		            9      that asset in the same year?				false

		4849						LN		187		10		false		           10           A.  I don't know.				false

		4850						LN		187		11		false		           11           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I don't have any further				false

		4851						LN		187		12		false		           12      questions.  Thank you.  Ms. Schmid?				false

		4852						LN		187		13		false		           13           MS. SCHMID:  No redirect.				false

		4853						LN		187		14		false		           14           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Duncan.				false

		4854						LN		187		15		false		           15           Ms. Schmid, do you have another witness?				false

		4855						LN		187		16		false		           16           MS. SCHMID:  We do.  The Division would like to				false

		4856						LN		187		17		false		           17      call Mr. Gary Smith as its next witness.				false

		4857						LN		187		18		false		           18           (Gary Smith is sworn in as a witness.)				false

		4858						LN		187		19		false		           19           MS. SCHMID:				false

		4859						LN		187		20		false		           20           Q.  Good afternoon.				false

		4860						LN		187		21		false		           21           A.  Good afternoon.				false

		4861						LN		187		22		false		           22           Q.  I believe this is the first time you've had the				false

		4862						LN		187		23		false		           23      opportunity to testify before a regulatory body; is that				false

		4863						LN		187		24		false		           24      correct?				false

		4864						LN		187		25		false		           25           A.  That is correct.				false

		4865						PG		188		0		false		page 188				false

		4866						LN		188		1		false		            1           Q.  Here we go.  Welcome.  Mr. Smith, could you				false

		4867						LN		188		2		false		            2      please state your full name, title, employer and				false

		4868						LN		188		3		false		            3      business address for the record?				false

		4869						LN		188		4		false		            4           A.  My name is Gary Smith.  And I'm employed by the				false

		4870						LN		188		5		false		            5      Division of Public Utilities, state of Utah.  My address				false

		4871						LN		188		6		false		            6      is 160 East 300 South, fourth floor, Salt Lake City,				false

		4872						LN		188		7		false		            7      Utah.				false

		4873						LN		188		8		false		            8           Q.  In connection with your employment by the				false

		4874						LN		188		9		false		            9      Division, have you participated on behalf of the				false

		4875						LN		188		10		false		           10      Division in this docket?				false

		4876						LN		188		11		false		           11           A.  I have.				false

		4877						LN		188		12		false		           12           Q.  Did you prepare and cause to be filed what has				false

		4878						LN		188		13		false		           13      been premarked for identification as DPU exhibit number				false

		4879						LN		188		14		false		           14      2.0, the direct testimony of Gary Smith filed on				false

		4880						LN		188		15		false		           15      October 13th, 2017?				false

		4881						LN		188		16		false		           16           A.  Yes.				false

		4882						LN		188		17		false		           17           Q.  Do you have any changes or corrections to that				false

		4883						LN		188		18		false		           18      testimony?				false

		4884						LN		188		19		false		           19           A.  I do not.				false

		4885						LN		188		20		false		           20           Q.  If I were to ask you today the same questions				false

		4886						LN		188		21		false		           21      that are contained in the prefiled testimony, would your				false

		4887						LN		188		22		false		           22      answers today be the same as those contained in the				false

		4888						LN		188		23		false		           23      prefiled testimony?				false

		4889						LN		188		24		false		           24           A.  Yes, they would.				false

		4890						LN		188		25		false		           25           Q.  With that, the Division moves for the admission				false

		4891						PG		189		0		false		page 189				false

		4892						LN		189		1		false		            1      into evidence of DPU exhibit number 2.0?				false

		4893						LN		189		2		false		            2           MR. ATWATER:  No objection.				false

		4894						LN		189		3		false		            3           MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.				false

		4895						LN		189		4		false		            4           MR. LANGE:  No objection.				false

		4896						LN		189		5		false		            5           MS. MILLER:  No objection.				false

		4897						LN		189		6		false		            6           THE HEARING OFFICER:  It's admitted.				false

		4898						LN		189		7		false		            7           MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.				false

		4899						LN		189		8		false		            8           Q.  Mr. Smith, the procedural schedule permits live				false

		4900						LN		189		9		false		            9      rebuttal and Commission practice allows traditionally				false

		4901						LN		189		10		false		           10      witnesses to present a summary.  Would you please				false

		4902						LN		189		11		false		           11      proceed?				false

		4903						LN		189		12		false		           12           A.  I would.  In rebuttal, I'd just like to note				false

		4904						LN		189		13		false		           13      that the Division only has records that it receives from				false

		4905						LN		189		14		false		           14      the source.  We received an annual report which is				false

		4906						LN		189		15		false		           15      required to be filed by the utility companies that we				false

		4907						LN		189		16		false		           16      oversee.				false

		4908						LN		189		17		false		           17           According to 2015, the numbers, the operating				false

		4909						LN		189		18		false		           18      numbers that we see for the company, they were positive.				false

		4910						LN		189		19		false		           19      There was actually a surplus.  In 2016, there was				false

		4911						LN		189		20		false		           20      reported to us a deficiency.  The rate increase that				false

		4912						LN		189		21		false		           21      happened in 2016 took effect so the payment of that				false

		4913						LN		189		22		false		           22      started at the first of this year.  The annual amount				false

		4914						LN		189		23		false		           23      for that, just on the base rate alone, was more than				false

		4915						LN		189		24		false		           24      sufficient to cover the deficit that was covered in '16.				false

		4916						LN		189		25		false		           25      I only say that to give you an indication of where we're				false

		4917						PG		190		0		false		page 190				false

		4918						LN		190		1		false		            1      at.				false

		4919						LN		190		2		false		            2           Now that doesn't include anything to do with the				false

		4920						LN		190		3		false		            3      tier grades and the income that would come from that.				false

		4921						LN		190		4		false		            4      But that's what the Division has been presented to it.				false

		4922						LN		190		5		false		            5      And since then the Division, in an effort to evaluate				false

		4923						LN		190		6		false		            6      the company request for an interim rate increase,				false

		4924						LN		190		7		false		            7      conducted a focused on-site review of the company				false

		4925						LN		190		8		false		            8      records on September 25th, 2017 and filed its first data				false

		4926						LN		190		9		false		            9      request on October 4th, 2017.				false

		4927						LN		190		10		false		           10           As detailed in my direct testimony dated				false

		4928						LN		190		11		false		           11      October 13, '17, the information and the rate increase				false

		4929						LN		190		12		false		           12      as presented by the company requires further				false

		4930						LN		190		13		false		           13      clarification and resolution of the noted				false

		4931						LN		190		14		false		           14      inconsistencies identified in my Exhibit 2.1.  Due to				false

		4932						LN		190		15		false		           15      these inconsistencies, the Division is not able to				false

		4933						LN		190		16		false		           16      determine whether the company's interim rate increase as				false

		4934						LN		190		17		false		           17      proposed is just, reasonable and in the public's				false

		4935						LN		190		18		false		           18      interest.  Therefore, the Division recommends the				false

		4936						LN		190		19		false		           19      commission not approve an interim rate as presently				false

		4937						LN		190		20		false		           20      proposed.				false

		4938						LN		190		21		false		           21           MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  Mr. Smith is now available				false

		4939						LN		190		22		false		           22      for cross-examination questions and questions from the				false

		4940						LN		190		23		false		           23      hearing officer.				false

		4941						LN		190		24		false		           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Atwater?				false

		4942						LN		190		25		false		           25           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.				false

		4943						PG		191		0		false		page 191				false

		4944						LN		191		1		false		            1           Q.  Mr. Smith, you mentioned that the only				false

		4945						LN		191		2		false		            2      information -- financial information available to you is				false

		4946						LN		191		3		false		            3      that which was filed with the Division of Drinking				false

		4947						LN		191		4		false		            4      Water; is that correct?				false

		4948						LN		191		5		false		            5           A.  We only have information provided -- wait.				false

		4949						LN		191		6		false		            6           Q.  Excuse me.  The annual reports that were filed,				false

		4950						LN		191		7		false		            7      I apologize.				false

		4951						LN		191		8		false		            8           A.  Wait.  You mentioned the Division of Drinking				false

		4952						LN		191		9		false		            9      Water, didn't you?				false

		4953						LN		191		10		false		           10           Q.  Sorry.  I meant to refer to the annual reports.				false

		4954						LN		191		11		false		           11           A.  Well, on an annual basis -- I mean, on an				false

		4955						LN		191		12		false		           12      ongoing basis unless we have a rate case, of course				false

		4956						LN		191		13		false		           13      there is that additional information that we request and				false

		4957						LN		191		14		false		           14      obtain.				false

		4958						LN		191		15		false		           15           Q.  Did you receive additional financial				false

		4959						LN		191		16		false		           16      information from the company in connection with the				false

		4960						LN		191		17		false		           17      application?				false

		4961						LN		191		18		false		           18           A.  Yes, we did.				false

		4962						LN		191		19		false		           19           Q.  Is that information consistent with the filings				false

		4963						LN		191		20		false		           20      of the annual reports?				false

		4964						LN		191		21		false		           21           A.  Actually, I would -- it's too hard to				false

		4965						LN		191		22		false		           22      determine.  I mean, we have spent an enormous amount of				false

		4966						LN		191		23		false		           23      time trying to reconcile the numbers in the audit or				false

		4967						LN		191		24		false		           24      annual report to the numbers in the invoices received.				false

		4968						LN		191		25		false		           25      So it has been a challenge.				false

		4969						PG		192		0		false		page 192				false

		4970						LN		192		1		false		            1           Q.  In your first stated request, did the company				false

		4971						LN		192		2		false		            2      answer all of your questions?				false

		4972						LN		192		3		false		            3           A.  They provided some information, but we were				false

		4973						LN		192		4		false		            4      still evaluating whether or not, you know, it completely				false

		4974						LN		192		5		false		            5      answers everything.				false

		4975						LN		192		6		false		            6           Q.  In your data request did you include				false

		4976						LN		192		7		false		            7      information about the inconsistencies?				false

		4977						LN		192		8		false		            8           A.  In our -- we requested additional information				false

		4978						LN		192		9		false		            9      which -- but since that time and with the remaining				false

		4979						LN		192		10		false		           10      portion of the filing we became aware that -- the				false

		4980						LN		192		11		false		           11      Division became aware of a -- potential inconsistencies				false

		4981						LN		192		12		false		           12      and concerns with what expenses that a company actually				false

		4982						LN		192		13		false		           13      has.				false

		4983						LN		192		14		false		           14           Q.  Were these deficiencies in amounts or title?				false

		4984						LN		192		15		false		           15           A.  Well, we were made aware of the contract				false

		4985						LN		192		16		false		           16      that -- when we first met on September 25th, we were				false

		4986						LN		192		17		false		           17      presented with some information about the structure of				false

		4987						LN		192		18		false		           18      the company and how the employees were paid and what was				false

		4988						LN		192		19		false		           19      considered included within the company's structure,				false

		4989						LN		192		20		false		           20      including an allocation of people's time.  We were not				false

		4990						LN		192		21		false		           21      made aware of a contractual agreement until the filing.				false

		4991						LN		192		22		false		           22      And that was -- it was news to us and it's unclear for				false

		4992						LN		192		23		false		           23      us to determine what is covered under that as opposed to				false

		4993						LN		192		24		false		           24      the other agreements which a company has.				false

		4994						LN		192		25		false		           25           Q.  Have you reviewed the amounts due and payable				false

		4995						PG		193		0		false		page 193				false

		4996						LN		193		1		false		            1      under the administrative services agreement versus the				false

		4997						LN		193		2		false		            2      amounts allocated by the company prior to your knowledge				false

		4998						LN		193		3		false		            3      of that agreement?				false

		4999						LN		193		4		false		            4           A.  Which agreement are you referring to?				false

		5000						LN		193		5		false		            5           Q.  The one that you just referred to, the				false

		5001						LN		193		6		false		            6      administrative services agreement that you became aware				false

		5002						LN		193		7		false		            7      of in the response?				false

		5003						LN		193		8		false		            8           A.  Okay.				false

		5004						LN		193		9		false		            9           Q.  Let me reask that question.				false

		5005						LN		193		10		false		           10           A.  Yes.				false

		5006						LN		193		11		false		           11           Q.  So this document, it was filed under				false

		5007						LN		193		12		false		           12      confidentiality and so I won't discuss the numbers of				false

		5008						LN		193		13		false		           13      that agreement.				false

		5009						LN		193		14		false		           14           However, my question for you is, did you compare				false

		5010						LN		193		15		false		           15      the amount payable on a monthly basis under that				false

		5011						LN		193		16		false		           16      agreement to the historical amount paid by or allocated				false

		5012						LN		193		17		false		           17      to the company for administrative overhead?				false

		5013						LN		193		18		false		           18           A.  We took time to compare on a monthly basis what				false

		5014						LN		193		19		false		           19      was proposed under both.  Both with the employees'				false

		5015						LN		193		20		false		           20      allocation and also under the agreement, yes.				false

		5016						LN		193		21		false		           21           Q.  And did you notice any material differences				false

		5017						LN		193		22		false		           22      between the two?				false

		5018						LN		193		23		false		           23           A.  Yes.  We could not reconcile the two.				false

		5019						LN		193		24		false		           24           Q.  The numbers didn't reconcile?				false

		5020						LN		193		25		false		           25           A.  According to what we could tell, they did not.				false

		5021						PG		194		0		false		page 194				false

		5022						LN		194		1		false		            1           Q.  And were the amounts material, the				false

		5023						LN		194		2		false		            2      irreconcilable amounts?				false

		5024						LN		194		3		false		            3           A.  They could be, yeah.  I mean --				false

		5025						LN		194		4		false		            4           Q.  Are there any other inconsistencies or				false

		5026						LN		194		5		false		            5      deficiencies that you noted in the application that make				false

		5027						LN		194		6		false		            6      it impossible for you to make a recommendation?				false

		5028						LN		194		7		false		            7           A.  The bulk of -- well, the inconsistencies that				false

		5029						LN		194		8		false		            8      we discovered are included in my Exhibit 2.1.				false

		5030						LN		194		9		false		            9           Q.  Can we go through each of them?				false

		5031						LN		194		10		false		           10           A.  If you'd like.				false

		5032						LN		194		11		false		           11           Q.  Great.  Exhibit 2.1, page 1-B2, CWC will pay				false

		5033						LN		194		12		false		           12      Summit Water Distribution.  There is a contract between				false

		5034						LN		194		13		false		           13      Summit Water Distribution and Community Water -- it's				false

		5035						LN		194		14		false		           14      been well established -- a certain amount on a monthly				false

		5036						LN		194		15		false		           15      basis.  It's all been redacted.  Your question -- your				false

		5037						LN		194		16		false		           16      statement, your inconsistency, is that the amount				false

		5038						LN		194		17		false		           17      actually paid to Summit Water does not match the amount				false

		5039						LN		194		18		false		           18      under contract?				false

		5040						LN		194		19		false		           19           A.  That is correct.				false

		5041						LN		194		20		false		           20           Q.  Does the company provide any explanation as to				false

		5042						LN		194		21		false		           21      why it's not the same?				false

		5043						LN		194		22		false		           22           A.  We have not received any information.				false

		5044						LN		194		23		false		           23           Q.  Did you request that information?				false

		5045						LN		194		24		false		           24           A.  We have not.				false

		5046						LN		194		25		false		           25           Q.  Did you read the language of the contract with				false

		5047						PG		195		0		false		page 195				false

		5048						LN		195		1		false		            1      Summit Water Distribution Company?				false

		5049						LN		195		2		false		            2           A.  We did, yes.				false

		5050						LN		195		3		false		            3           Q.  Is the base amount that's payable on a monthly				false

		5051						LN		195		4		false		            4      basis the only amount that's payable under that				false

		5052						LN		195		5		false		            5      agreement?				false

		5053						LN		195		6		false		            6           A.  No.  That is not the amount.  There are other				false

		5054						LN		195		7		false		            7      things dealing with water supply.				false

		5055						LN		195		8		false		            8           Q.  So it's conceivable that the additional amount				false

		5056						LN		195		9		false		            9      that was payable to Summit Water Distribution Company in				false

		5057						LN		195		10		false		           10      excess of the base amount could have been for other				false

		5058						LN		195		11		false		           11      services provided under that --				false

		5059						LN		195		12		false		           12           A.  I would have a hard time believing that because				false

		5060						LN		195		13		false		           13      we also received other information or other invoices				false

		5061						LN		195		14		false		           14      specifically outlining that it was not -- it was supply				false

		5062						LN		195		15		false		           15      of water.  So there was a definite delay issue between				false

		5063						LN		195		16		false		           16      what we could tell was the monthly under the contractual				false

		5064						LN		195		17		false		           17      obligation to pay for the managerial services as opposed				false

		5065						LN		195		18		false		           18      to supply of water, yeah.				false

		5066						LN		195		19		false		           19           Q.  Thank you.  That was not my question.  The				false

		5067						LN		195		20		false		           20      agreement that we're referring to with Summit Water				false

		5068						LN		195		21		false		           21      Distribution Company allows or permits the company to				false

		5069						LN		195		22		false		           22      ask Summit Water Distribution to provide additional				false

		5070						LN		195		23		false		           23      services in emergency situations, in repair situations				false

		5071						LN		195		24		false		           24      and other circumstances that are not covered by the base				false

		5072						LN		195		25		false		           25      amount.				false

		5073						PG		196		0		false		page 196				false

		5074						LN		196		1		false		            1           A.  Okay.				false

		5075						LN		196		2		false		            2           Q.  Is it conceivable that the additional amounts				false

		5076						LN		196		3		false		            3      paid to Summit Water Distribution are for those services				false

		5077						LN		196		4		false		            4      that are not payment for water nor the base rate?				false

		5078						LN		196		5		false		            5           MS. SCHMID:  Objection.  Calls for speculation.				false

		5079						LN		196		6		false		            6      It's beyond the scope of his testimony.				false

		5080						LN		196		7		false		            7           THE WITNESS:  I will say that --				false

		5081						LN		196		8		false		            8           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Let me rule on the objection.				false

		5082						LN		196		9		false		            9      It does call for speculation, but I'm going to allow it				false

		5083						LN		196		10		false		           10      because I think this line of questioning has some merit				false

		5084						LN		196		11		false		           11      and I want to see where it goes.  So it's overruled.				false

		5085						LN		196		12		false		           12           THE WITNESS:  What brought it mostly to our				false

		5086						LN		196		13		false		           13      attention is that there was no difference between the				false

		5087						LN		196		14		false		           14      invoice received for the amount -- they were the same				false

		5088						LN		196		15		false		           15      identical for each month.  There was no breakout for				false

		5089						LN		196		16		false		           16      where that total came from, and the amounts were exactly				false

		5090						LN		196		17		false		           17      the same.  So it appeared to us, which requires more				false

		5091						LN		196		18		false		           18      clarification, that potentially the contractual amount				false

		5092						LN		196		19		false		           19      was not the -- was not justifiable.				false

		5093						LN		196		20		false		           20           Q.  So you're suggesting that potentially there is				false

		5094						LN		196		21		false		           21      an amendment?				false

		5095						LN		196		22		false		           22           MS. SCHMID:  Objection.  Calls for speculation.				false

		5096						LN		196		23		false		           23           THE WITNESS:  I wouldn't have any -- that's not				false

		5097						LN		196		24		false		           24      what I said.				false

		5098						LN		196		25		false		           25           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Sustained.				false

		5099						PG		197		0		false		page 197				false

		5100						LN		197		1		false		            1           MR. ATWATER:				false

		5101						LN		197		2		false		            2           Q.  Is it relevant to you in your recommendation				false

		5102						LN		197		3		false		            3      that the amounts paid to Summit Water Distribution				false

		5103						LN		197		4		false		            4      Company are different than what the contractual				false

		5104						LN		197		5		false		            5      agreement states?				false

		5105						LN		197		6		false		            6           A.  I'm sorry.  Say that again.				false

		5106						LN		197		7		false		            7           Q.  Is it relevant to your recommendation or lack				false

		5107						LN		197		8		false		            8      thereof that the amount paid to Summit Water				false

		5108						LN		197		9		false		            9      Distribution is different than a contractual amount?				false

		5109						LN		197		10		false		           10           A.  Well, it's concerning to us because it raises				false

		5110						LN		197		11		false		           11      the question of, you know, what other costs are being				false

		5111						LN		197		12		false		           12      treated properly as well.				false

		5112						LN		197		13		false		           13           Q.  Do you recall the discrepancy -- the amount of				false

		5113						LN		197		14		false		           14      the discrepancy between the payments under the contract				false

		5114						LN		197		15		false		           15      and the amounts that were paid?				false

		5115						LN		197		16		false		           16           A.  I do.				false

		5116						LN		197		17		false		           17           Q.  Was it a material amount?				false

		5117						LN		197		18		false		           18           A.  Is it material.  Well, I mean, it could be,				false

		5118						LN		197		19		false		           19      yes.				false

		5119						LN		197		20		false		           20           Q.  Impactful to the rate?				false

		5120						LN		197		21		false		           21           A.  If this was the only one, that would be one				false

		5121						LN		197		22		false		           22      thing.  But in addition to all the others, yes, it is.				false

		5122						LN		197		23		false		           23           Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  The next inconsistency is a				false

		5123						LN		197		24		false		           24      correct one, and we appreciate you pointing it out in				false

		5124						LN		197		25		false		           25      the administrative services agreement between the				false

		5125						PG		198		0		false		page 198				false

		5126						LN		198		1		false		            1      company and ASC Utah.  There is a reference to a payment				false

		5127						LN		198		2		false		            2      that is payable for administrative services.  That				false

		5128						LN		198		3		false		            3      contract, in your testimony, as you point out states				false

		5129						LN		198		4		false		            4      that that is payable on a monthly basis.  And you				false

		5130						LN		198		5		false		            5      suggest that that should be payable on an annual basis				false

		5131						LN		198		6		false		            6      in equal monthly installments.  Is that your testimony?				false

		5132						LN		198		7		false		            7           A.  It appeared to us, because of the references in				false

		5133						LN		198		8		false		            8      other documents, that this was incorrect and given the				false

		5134						LN		198		9		false		            9      amount we would --				false

		5135						LN		198		10		false		           10           Q.  In other information provided to you,				false

		5136						LN		198		11		false		           11      specifically the rate model that was an exhibit to the				false

		5137						LN		198		12		false		           12      application, how did it characterize that amount?  Was				false

		5138						LN		198		13		false		           13      it an annual or a monthly amount?				false

		5139						LN		198		14		false		           14           A.  I believe it's identified as an annual amount.				false

		5140						LN		198		15		false		           15           Q.  Thank you.  Do you believe that that clears up				false

		5141						LN		198		16		false		           16      the inconsistency?				false

		5142						LN		198		17		false		           17           A.  Yes.				false

		5143						LN		198		18		false		           18           Q.  Thank you.				false

		5144						LN		198		19		false		           19           A.  Although I do recommend redraft and resubmittal				false

		5145						LN		198		20		false		           20      to us of that corrected document.				false

		5146						LN		198		21		false		           21           Q.  All right.  Your third inconsistency, the daily				false

		5147						LN		198		22		false		           22      operation and maintenance expenses of Community Water				false

		5148						LN		198		23		false		           23      Company have been subsidized by affiliate loans.  That's				false

		5149						LN		198		24		false		           24      from the testimony of the company, that statement.				false

		5150						LN		198		25		false		           25           Your issue with that is that it's unclear from that				false

		5151						PG		199		0		false		page 199				false

		5152						LN		199		1		false		            1      statement that the company has any outstanding loans				false

		5153						LN		199		2		false		            2      with its affiliates.  And you are correct, the financial				false

		5154						LN		199		3		false		            3      statements that have been submitted to the company do				false

		5155						LN		199		4		false		            4      not reflect outstanding payables and balances owed by				false

		5156						LN		199		5		false		            5      Community Water to any of its affiliates.				false

		5157						LN		199		6		false		            6           A.  May I clarify?				false

		5158						LN		199		7		false		            7           Q.  Sure.				false

		5159						LN		199		8		false		            8           A.  So you're saying that the company has no -- or				false

		5160						LN		199		9		false		            9      does have outstanding loans?				false

		5161						LN		199		10		false		           10           Q.  That is correct.  The testimony of the company				false

		5162						LN		199		11		false		           11      is that there are outstanding loans.				false

		5163						LN		199		12		false		           12           A.  Okay.  Are you aware that under a rate case and				false

		5164						LN		199		13		false		           13      going back to 2014, that those loans should have been				false

		5165						LN		199		14		false		           14      identified?				false

		5166						LN		199		15		false		           15           Q.  Sure.  And maybe a bit of an accounting				false

		5167						LN		199		16		false		           16      discussion here would help.  Oftentimes in accounting				false

		5168						LN		199		17		false		           17      software, it is referred to as an inner-company				false

		5169						LN		199		18		false		           18      transaction.  And they're not necessarily always kept on				false

		5170						LN		199		19		false		           19      the books and records of the company.  And the company				false

		5171						LN		199		20		false		           20      has with it today, and would like to submit into				false

		5172						LN		199		21		false		           21      evidence, two exhibits.  The first exhibit is referred				false

		5173						LN		199		22		false		           22      to as "Subsidized Expenses Payable" by Community Water				false

		5174						LN		199		23		false		           23      to its affiliates.  I'll hand this out and then describe				false

		5175						LN		199		24		false		           24      it.				false

		5176						LN		199		25		false		           25           MS. SCHMID:  I object.  I do not believe there has				false

		5177						PG		200		0		false		page 200				false

		5178						LN		200		1		false		            1      not been a foundation laid for those exhibits, and I am				false

		5179						LN		200		2		false		            2      not sure that Mr. Smith can provide that foundation as				false

		5180						LN		200		3		false		            3      he is not the company witness.				false

		5181						LN		200		4		false		            4           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think that's likely a				false

		5182						LN		200		5		false		            5      meritorious objection, but I haven't even seen it yet so				false

		5183						LN		200		6		false		            6      can we take a look at what you want to offer and then				false

		5184						LN		200		7		false		            7      we'll discuss it.				false

		5185						LN		200		8		false		            8           MS. SCHMID:  Of course.				false

		5186						LN		200		9		false		            9           MR. ATWATER:  I'll bring you both, so I don't have				false

		5187						LN		200		10		false		           10      to stand up twice.  Just to counsel?				false

		5188						LN		200		11		false		           11           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'd like a copy as well,				false

		5189						LN		200		12		false		           12      please.  Thank you.				false

		5190						LN		200		13		false		           13           MR. ATWATER:  Should I give it to everybody?				false

		5191						LN		200		14		false		           14           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes.				false

		5192						LN		200		15		false		           15           MS. SCHMID:  Having examined the documents that				false

		5193						LN		200		16		false		           16      were passed out to me, I renew and restate the objection				false

		5194						LN		200		17		false		           17      that I previously made.				false

		5195						LN		200		18		false		           18           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Smith, have you seen				false

		5196						LN		200		19		false		           19      these documents before?				false

		5197						LN		200		20		false		           20           THE WITNESS:  I didn't get one now and I haven't				false

		5198						LN		200		21		false		           21      seen it before.				false

		5199						LN		200		22		false		           22           MS. SCHMID:  He needs one.				false

		5200						LN		200		23		false		           23           MR. ATWATER:  Not if there is an objection.				false

		5201						LN		200		24		false		           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Well, Mr. Atwater, I'm				false

		5202						LN		200		25		false		           25      skeptical about a line of questioning asking this				false

		5203						PG		201		0		false		page 201				false

		5204						LN		201		1		false		            1      witness to testify as to the contents of these				false

		5205						LN		201		2		false		            2      documents.  Not only because he has not reviewed them,				false

		5206						LN		201		3		false		            3      but because no witness has attested to their voracity.				false

		5207						LN		201		4		false		            4      If you'd like to reserve this question or line of				false

		5208						LN		201		5		false		            5      questioning for Mr. Smith and recall the witness to lay				false

		5209						LN		201		6		false		            6      some foundation, I think we can do that.  But I think				false

		5210						LN		201		7		false		            7      that would be more appropriate than having this witness				false

		5211						LN		201		8		false		            8      testify to these documents he's not familiar with.				false

		5212						LN		201		9		false		            9           MR. ATWATER:  I can do that.  I can reserve some				false

		5213						LN		201		10		false		           10      time to recall a witness.  May I proceed?				false

		5214						LN		201		11		false		           11           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Absolutely.				false

		5215						LN		201		12		false		           12           MR. LANGE:  Page one of three, page three of three,				false

		5216						LN		201		13		false		           13      but there is no page two of three.				false

		5217						LN		201		14		false		           14           MS. SCHMID:  It's on --				false

		5218						LN		201		15		false		           15           MR. ATWATER:  We'll get back to it.				false

		5219						LN		201		16		false		           16           MS. SCHMID:  Isn't it on the flip side?				false

		5220						LN		201		17		false		           17           MR. LANGE:  No, no.				false

		5221						LN		201		18		false		           18           MS. SCHMID:  It's on the flip side of mine.				false

		5222						LN		201		19		false		           19           MR. ATWATER:				false

		5223						LN		201		20		false		           20           Q.  So Mr. Smith, do you have any -- what is your				false

		5224						LN		201		21		false		           21      background in financial or accounting, if any?				false

		5225						LN		201		22		false		           22           A.  I have spent more than 20 years in the finance				false

		5226						LN		201		23		false		           23      industry.  The last 13, I made municipal loans.  So I				false

		5227						LN		201		24		false		           24      believe I have a good standing.				false

		5228						LN		201		25		false		           25           Q.  I do too.  Have you ever heard of an				false

		5229						PG		202		0		false		page 202				false

		5230						LN		202		1		false		            1      inner-company table?				false

		5231						LN		202		2		false		            2           A.  Yes.				false

		5232						LN		202		3		false		            3           Q.  Would you describe what that is for us?				false

		5233						LN		202		4		false		            4           A.  One part of the company makes another -- well,				false

		5234						LN		202		5		false		            5      it's actually between two affiliates usually -- makes				false

		5235						LN		202		6		false		            6      inner-department -- inner-company loans.  So they'll				false

		5236						LN		202		7		false		            7      make a loan to the other division of the company.  But				false

		5237						LN		202		8		false		            8      usually that's reflected in their annual reports.				false

		5238						LN		202		9		false		            9           Q.  Are you familiar with the consolidation				false

		5239						LN		202		10		false		           10      process?				false

		5240						LN		202		11		false		           11           A.  Why don't you describe it.				false

		5241						LN		202		12		false		           12           Q.  Are you familiar with the consolidation				false

		5242						LN		202		13		false		           13      process?				false

		5243						LN		202		14		false		           14           A.  When you say consolidation process, what do you				false

		5244						LN		202		15		false		           15      mean?				false

		5245						LN		202		16		false		           16           Q.  Financial consolidation?				false

		5246						LN		202		17		false		           17           A.  Right.  So you take two affiliates and combine				false

		5247						LN		202		18		false		           18      them.				false

		5248						LN		202		19		false		           19           Q.  So is it conceivable that affiliate loans would				false

		5249						LN		202		20		false		           20      not appear on financial statements if they're				false

		5250						LN		202		21		false		           21      consolidated?				false

		5251						LN		202		22		false		           22           MS. SCHMID:  Objection.  Calls for speculation.				false

		5252						LN		202		23		false		           23           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Overruled.  We've just				false

		5253						LN		202		24		false		           24      established that Mr. Smith has some expertise in this				false

		5254						LN		202		25		false		           25      area and he's being asked his opinion.				false

		5255						PG		203		0		false		page 203				false

		5256						LN		203		1		false		            1           THE WITNESS:  Ask me again.				false

		5257						LN		203		2		false		            2           MR. ATWATER:				false

		5258						LN		203		3		false		            3           Q.  Is it conceivable that if financials are				false

		5259						LN		203		4		false		            4      consolidated, affiliate loans and payables would not				false

		5260						LN		203		5		false		            5      show up on those financial statements?				false

		5261						LN		203		6		false		            6           A.  On which company?				false

		5262						LN		203		7		false		            7           Q.  Either.				false

		5263						LN		203		8		false		            8           A.  Either company.  So you're saying -- I guess				false

		5264						LN		203		9		false		            9      anything is possible.				false

		5265						LN		203		10		false		           10           Q.  Is it common practice when companies are				false

		5266						LN		203		11		false		           11      consolidated that the eliminating entries remove				false

		5267						LN		203		12		false		           12      inner-company transactions?				false

		5268						LN		203		13		false		           13           A.  My background is not in corporate finance and				false

		5269						LN		203		14		false		           14      so I have to say that that part of the expertise would				false

		5270						LN		203		15		false		           15      probably be left to somebody else.				false

		5271						LN		203		16		false		           16           Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  Your next inconsistency				false

		5272						LN		203		17		false		           17      noted -- in the company's direct testimony they state				false

		5273						LN		203		18		false		           18      that the additional O&M requested in the application				false

		5274						LN		203		19		false		           19      which are nominal are all expenses either not understood				false

		5275						LN		203		20		false		           20      or subsidized at the time of the 2016 approval.				false

		5276						LN		203		21		false		           21           Your inconsistency is that it's unclear from this				false

		5277						LN		203		22		false		           22      statement that the nominal addition to operation and				false

		5278						LN		203		23		false		           23      maintenance would account for the level of interim				false

		5279						LN		203		24		false		           24      increase in the rate the company has requested.  An				false

		5280						LN		203		25		false		           25      interim adjustment to rate should reflect the				false

		5281						PG		204		0		false		page 204				false

		5282						LN		204		1		false		            1      demonstrated operation and maintenance needs of the				false

		5283						LN		204		2		false		            2      company and not its plans for future capital				false

		5284						LN		204		3		false		            3      improvements.				false

		5285						LN		204		4		false		            4           Would you explain what the inconsistency is there?				false

		5286						LN		204		5		false		            5           A.  Well, in part of it, it says that the costs are				false

		5287						LN		204		6		false		            6      nominal.  In other words, a small change in operation				false

		5288						LN		204		7		false		            7      and maintenance.  And so yet you just -- the request				false

		5289						LN		204		8		false		            8      going from $30 to -- I'm not sure exactly what -- but				false

		5290						LN		204		9		false		            9      the nearest we can tell, $42 is probably more than				false

		5291						LN		204		10		false		           10      nominal.				false

		5292						LN		204		11		false		           11           Q.  So line 44 in the testimony is referring to the				false

		5293						LN		204		12		false		           12      increase in O&M charge only?				false

		5294						LN		204		13		false		           13           A.  According to what we understood, that's				false

		5295						LN		204		14		false		           14      correct.  That's how we understood it.				false

		5296						LN		204		15		false		           15           Q.  And you just referred to capital charges which				false

		5297						LN		204		16		false		           16      would not be O&M?				false

		5298						LN		204		17		false		           17           A.  To clarify, because the interim rate is for --				false

		5299						LN		204		18		false		           18      is to evaluate what the needs of the company to operate				false

		5300						LN		204		19		false		           19      are.  And we understand that there are capital needs,				false

		5301						LN		204		20		false		           20      however, the interim rate wouldn't necessarily account				false

		5302						LN		204		21		false		           21      for that because a lot of that is still unknown.				false

		5303						LN		204		22		false		           22           Q.  What additional information would the Division				false

		5304						LN		204		23		false		           23      need to make that --				false

		5305						LN		204		24		false		           24           A.  What additional information do we need to				false

		5306						LN		204		25		false		           25      evaluate the capital needs.  That your question?				false

		5307						PG		205		0		false		page 205				false

		5308						LN		205		1		false		            1           Q.  No.  This particular item refers to the O&M				false

		5309						LN		205		2		false		            2      increase from 2016 which was the original approval, the				false

		5310						LN		205		3		false		            3      2016 rate case.				false

		5311						LN		205		4		false		            4           Is it okay if I provide a little context because				false

		5312						LN		205		5		false		            5      you were not around then?  So in 2016 the commission				false

		5313						LN		205		6		false		            6      approved an O&M rate which has been discussed today.				false

		5314						LN		205		7		false		            7      And the testimony is that that rate was not sufficient,				false

		5315						LN		205		8		false		            8      and that's why we're here again today, which includes				false

		5316						LN		205		9		false		            9      not only capital which is separate from my question, but				false

		5317						LN		205		10		false		           10      also a slight nominal increase in the O&M 2016 approval.				false

		5318						LN		205		11		false		           11           So my question is what information was not provided				false

		5319						LN		205		12		false		           12      to allow the Division to evaluate whether that nominal				false

		5320						LN		205		13		false		           13      increase --				false

		5321						LN		205		14		false		           14           A.  Well, a lot of clarity was not provided.  So				false

		5322						LN		205		15		false		           15      it's hard to evaluate what exactly the needs are when a				false

		5323						LN		205		16		false		           16      lot of these outstanding items -- and maybe you could				false

		5324						LN		205		17		false		           17      separate them out individually -- but collectively they				false

		5325						LN		205		18		false		           18      pose a real obstacle for us to evaluate the exact needs				false

		5326						LN		205		19		false		           19      of the company.				false

		5327						LN		205		20		false		           20           Q.  I'll rephrase -- or I'll reask the question.  I				false

		5328						LN		205		21		false		           21      don't believe it was answered.  What additional				false

		5329						LN		205		22		false		           22      information would the Division need in order to answer				false

		5330						LN		205		23		false		           23      the question of whether they're reasonable that wasn't				false

		5331						LN		205		24		false		           24      already provided?				false

		5332						LN		205		25		false		           25           A.  Well, a lot of what we found is within the two				false

		5333						PG		206		0		false		page 206				false

		5334						LN		206		1		false		            1      agreements especially, we're not sure what covers what				false

		5335						LN		206		2		false		            2      and how much that is.  In addition to that, there are				false

		5336						LN		206		3		false		            3      just outstanding items that -- we would probably submit				false

		5337						LN		206		4		false		            4      another data request to obtain that information on.				false

		5338						LN		206		5		false		            5           Q.  So unfortunately this is the interim hearing,				false

		5339						LN		206		6		false		            6      and this is a very important matter for the company.				false

		5340						LN		206		7		false		            7      And had the Division made that data request previously				false

		5341						LN		206		8		false		            8      to have been provided -- Why didn't the Division --				false

		5342						LN		206		9		false		            9           MS. SCHMID:  Objection; argumentative.				false

		5343						LN		206		10		false		           10           MR. ATWATER:				false

		5344						LN		206		11		false		           11           Q.  Why did the Division not make --				false

		5345						LN		206		12		false		           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Overruled to the extent				false

		5346						LN		206		13		false		           13      Mr. Atwater asked why did the Division not -- previously				false

		5347						LN		206		14		false		           14      not request the information.				false

		5348						LN		206		15		false		           15           THE WITNESS:  As you know, we're on a very short				false

		5349						LN		206		16		false		           16      time frame to do that.  And we actually have spent an				false

		5350						LN		206		17		false		           17      enormous amount of time going through trying to figure				false

		5351						LN		206		18		false		           18      out what exactly has changed from 2016 to 2017 that				false

		5352						LN		206		19		false		           19      would be enough to justify a rate increase.				false

		5353						LN		206		20		false		           20           MR. ATWATER:				false

		5354						LN		206		21		false		           21           Q.  Are you aware that the commission accepted the				false

		5355						LN		206		22		false		           22      application as complete?				false

		5356						LN		206		23		false		           23           A.  That is on a -- the acceptance of it being				false

		5357						LN		206		24		false		           24      complete means that you have provided the list of items				false

		5358						LN		206		25		false		           25      on that.  So it's a checklist.  Now the review of that				false

		5359						PG		207		0		false		page 207				false

		5360						LN		207		1		false		            1      obviously can't take place at that moment, so there is				false

		5361						LN		207		2		false		            2      no different -- there is no direct lineation between				false

		5362						LN		207		3		false		            3      being a complete file and being an accurate description				false

		5363						LN		207		4		false		            4      that is understood by the recipient.				false

		5364						LN		207		5		false		            5           Q.  Is it your testimony that the statute does not				false

		5365						LN		207		6		false		            6      allow you sufficient time to evaluate and request				false

		5366						LN		207		7		false		            7      appropriate data?				false

		5367						LN		207		8		false		            8           A.  Given what we have and the time frame involved				false

		5368						LN		207		9		false		            9      with that, it would be one thing if it was just a few				false

		5369						LN		207		10		false		           10      things to figure out, but there are a number of items				false

		5370						LN		207		11		false		           11      that we just can't -- we can't reconcile the numbers and				false

		5371						LN		207		12		false		           12      the things which we've been given, and we're going				false

		5372						LN		207		13		false		           13      through those now.				false

		5373						LN		207		14		false		           14           Q.  Right.				false

		5374						LN		207		15		false		           15           A.  That's the purpose of this.				false

		5375						LN		207		16		false		           16           Q.  Are you aware that this is the only hearing for				false

		5376						LN		207		17		false		           17      the interim rate increase?				false

		5377						LN		207		18		false		           18           A.  I am.				false

		5378						LN		207		19		false		           19           Q.  Did you not think that was important to request				false

		5379						LN		207		20		false		           20      that of the company prior to this hearing?				false

		5380						LN		207		21		false		           21           A.  It is, but also -- yes, it is.				false

		5381						LN		207		22		false		           22           Q.  Okay.  Moving on.  The testimony of Keith J.				false

		5382						LN		207		23		false		           23      Larson, October 6th, 2017.  The company has additional				false

		5383						LN		207		24		false		           24      information since filing the application regarding				false

		5384						LN		207		25		false		           25      reserves, system profit, and certain O&M costs.  In				false

		5385						PG		208		0		false		page 208				false

		5386						LN		208		1		false		            1      order to ensure the financial viability of the				false

		5387						LN		208		2		false		            2      company and to avoid system shutdown --				false

		5388						LN		208		3		false		            3           (Interruption in proceedings.)				false

		5389						LN		208		4		false		            4           MR. ATWATER:  This is the testimony of Keith J.				false

		5390						LN		208		5		false		            5      Larson, October 6th, 2017.  The company has additional				false

		5391						LN		208		6		false		            6      information since filing the application regarding				false

		5392						LN		208		7		false		            7      reserve system profit and certain O&M costs in order to				false

		5393						LN		208		8		false		            8      ensure the financial viability of the company and to				false

		5394						LN		208		9		false		            9      avoid future system shutdown, the modifications in the				false

		5395						LN		208		10		false		           10      update are critical to the company and its customers.				false

		5396						LN		208		11		false		           11           Your response to that is it is unclear what				false

		5397						LN		208		12		false		           12      information the company has since filing the				false

		5398						LN		208		13		false		           13      application.  The only additional information the				false

		5399						LN		208		14		false		           14      Division has received from the company was included in				false

		5400						LN		208		15		false		           15      the Divisions's first data request response.  It appears				false

		5401						LN		208		16		false		           16      that this additional information may have relevance in				false

		5402						LN		208		17		false		           17      evaluating the company's financial requirements.  In the				false

		5403						LN		208		18		false		           18      absence of the information the Division cannot support				false

		5404						LN		208		19		false		           19      increases placed upon it.				false

		5405						LN		208		20		false		           20           In Mr. Larson's testimony, he submitted an updated				false

		5406						LN		208		21		false		           21      rate model and an update to the master plan for the				false

		5407						LN		208		22		false		           22      company, which included all the information that support				false

		5408						LN		208		23		false		           23      the rate that he suggested be revised.  Did you see that				false

		5409						LN		208		24		false		           24      information?				false

		5410						LN		208		25		false		           25           A.  Yes.				false

		5411						PG		209		0		false		page 209				false

		5412						LN		209		1		false		            1           Q.  So what additional information does the				false

		5413						LN		209		2		false		            2      Division need to evaluate?				false

		5414						LN		209		3		false		            3           A.  What is the company requesting as an interim				false

		5415						LN		209		4		false		            4      rate.  That's the question.				false

		5416						LN		209		5		false		            5           Q.  Mr. Larson's testimony states that fairly				false

		5417						LN		209		6		false		            6      clearly.				false

		5418						LN		209		7		false		            7           A.  Okay.  It differs than in your prior				false

		5419						LN		209		8		false		            8      application.				false

		5420						LN		209		9		false		            9           Q.  That is correct.				false

		5421						LN		209		10		false		           10           A.  So what is the change?				false

		5422						LN		209		11		false		           11           Q.  So the changes are noted on his rate model and				false

		5423						LN		209		12		false		           12      those changes -- what I'm asking is, what additional				false

		5424						LN		209		13		false		           13      information does the Division need other than what it				false

		5425						LN		209		14		false		           14      already has to understand what those changes are?				false

		5426						LN		209		15		false		           15           A.  Well, it's one thing to provide details on				false

		5427						LN		209		16		false		           16      numbers, but how those numbers fit within the company				false

		5428						LN		209		17		false		           17      and their operations would take some time.  Just because				false

		5429						LN		209		18		false		           18      somebody submits numbers doesn't mean that it's a clear				false

		5430						LN		209		19		false		           19      indication of what the needs of the company are.				false

		5431						LN		209		20		false		           20           Q.  Have you reviewed the company's direct				false

		5432						LN		209		21		false		           21      testimony regarding the terms and conditions of the				false

		5433						LN		209		22		false		           22      Division of Drinking Water loan?				false

		5434						LN		209		23		false		           23           A.  Have I reviewed -- ask me again.				false

		5435						LN		209		24		false		           24           Q.  The company's direct testimony where it				false

		5436						LN		209		25		false		           25      discusses the terms and conditions of the Division of				false

		5437						PG		210		0		false		page 210				false

		5438						LN		210		1		false		            1      Drinking Water loan --				false

		5439						LN		210		2		false		            2           A.  Yes.				false

		5440						LN		210		3		false		            3           Q.  -- are there any discussion of reserves in that				false

		5441						LN		210		4		false		            4      testimony?				false

		5442						LN		210		5		false		            5           A.  There are.				false

		5443						LN		210		6		false		            6           Q.  Are you aware that that loan requires reserves?				false

		5444						LN		210		7		false		            7           A.  Yes.				false

		5445						LN		210		8		false		            8           Q.  And are you aware of the amounts?				false

		5446						LN		210		9		false		            9           A.  I don't have them handy, but I am aware that				false

		5447						LN		210		10		false		           10      there are amounts.				false

		5448						LN		210		11		false		           11           Q.  They're at your disposal?				false

		5449						LN		210		12		false		           12           A.  Right.				false

		5450						LN		210		13		false		           13           Q.  And that is what is included in Mr. Larson's				false

		5451						LN		210		14		false		           14      testimony is the additional reserves required by that				false

		5452						LN		210		15		false		           15      loan, and it's stated otherwise in the testimony?				false

		5453						LN		210		16		false		           16           A.  But apparently the numbers that you're				false

		5454						LN		210		17		false		           17      requesting may be lower.  It's unclear exactly what your				false

		5455						LN		210		18		false		           18      rate increase change is.				false

		5456						LN		210		19		false		           19           Q.  In the amounts?				false

		5457						LN		210		20		false		           20           A.  In the amounts.				false

		5458						LN		210		21		false		           21           Q.  It's unclear because it's different or it's				false

		5459						LN		210		22		false		           22      unclear because you don't understand them?				false

		5460						LN		210		23		false		           23           A.  Well, both.				false

		5461						LN		210		24		false		           24           Q.  So maybe we should open them and figure out why				false

		5462						LN		210		25		false		           25      they're unclear.  Do you have a copy of --				false

		5463						PG		211		0		false		page 211				false

		5464						LN		211		1		false		            1           A.  I do not.  I apologize.  I do not have a copy				false

		5465						LN		211		2		false		            2      of that.				false

		5466						LN		211		3		false		            3           Q.  I didn't think I printed them.  Maybe I did.				false

		5467						LN		211		4		false		            4           MR. ATWATER:  May I approach.				false

		5468						LN		211		5		false		            5           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes.				false

		5469						LN		211		6		false		            6           MR. ATWATER:  This is the written direct testimony				false

		5470						LN		211		7		false		            7      of Keith J. Larson adopted today and sworn to by Tena				false

		5471						LN		211		8		false		            8      Campbell of Bowen & Collins.  It's on page eight and				false

		5472						LN		211		9		false		            9      filtering over to page nine.				false

		5473						LN		211		10		false		           10           THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry.  Could you -- which one is				false

		5474						LN		211		11		false		           11      it?  This is Bowen Collins?				false

		5475						LN		211		12		false		           12           MR. ATWATER:  This is the update, yes.				false

		5476						LN		211		13		false		           13           Q.  So you have in front of you the update that was				false

		5477						LN		211		14		false		           14      included in Mr. Larson's testimony, and you suggested				false

		5478						LN		211		15		false		           15      that that is confusing to you.  Can you describe why the				false

		5479						LN		211		16		false		           16      rate requested there is confusing?				false

		5480						LN		211		17		false		           17           A.  The basis of this rate goes back to the ERU				false

		5481						LN		211		18		false		           18      units and how that's derived.  And an interim rate				false

		5482						LN		211		19		false		           19      increase is not the proper forum to change rate				false

		5483						LN		211		20		false		           20      structure.  So it's hard to take these numbers and try				false

		5484						LN		211		21		false		           21      to convert them into what the base rate and the base				false

		5485						LN		211		22		false		           22      rate structure currently is.				false

		5486						LN		211		23		false		           23           Q.  So that is a different question, which is fine,				false

		5487						LN		211		24		false		           24      but the question relative to what you deemed an				false

		5488						LN		211		25		false		           25      inconsistency which we had knowledge of before this				false

		5489						PG		212		0		false		page 212				false

		5490						LN		212		1		false		            1      without a data request was that you could not tell from				false

		5491						LN		212		2		false		            2      that what was being requested.				false

		5492						LN		212		3		false		            3           Is that still your stance irrespective of ERUs?				false

		5493						LN		212		4		false		            4           A.  Well, if you're proposing a base rate, why the				false

		5494						LN		212		5		false		            5      change from 18 to 19?  Is that -- why would those two				false

		5495						LN		212		6		false		            6      numbers be different?  Are you proposing a separate rate				false

		5496						LN		212		7		false		            7      increase?				false

		5497						LN		212		8		false		            8           Q.  We're proposing what is prepared and placed				false

		5498						LN		212		9		false		            9      before the Division, together with the testimony of				false

		5499						LN		212		10		false		           10      Mr. Larson.  It's all we need.				false

		5500						LN		212		11		false		           11           A.  Okay.				false

		5501						LN		212		12		false		           12           Q.  Okay.  The next item is in reference to Keith				false

		5502						LN		212		13		false		           13      J.  Larson's testimony, page five line 64.  Contractual				false

		5503						LN		212		14		false		           14      water system maintenance.  This represents the amount				false

		5504						LN		212		15		false		           15      paid to Summit Water Distribution Company.  This				false

		5505						LN		212		16		false		           16      includes salaries, testing and lab equipment, water				false

		5506						LN		212		17		false		           17      sampling, system maintenance, office supplies, telephone				false

		5507						LN		212		18		false		           18      and payroll tax and other miscellaneous expenses.				false

		5508						LN		212		19		false		           19           Your inconsistency with that statement is the above				false

		5509						LN		212		20		false		           20      appears to address only the company's 2004 Water System				false

		5510						LN		212		21		false		           21      Service Agreement with Summit Water.  However, the items				false

		5511						LN		212		22		false		           22      listed appear to be items covered in the administrative				false

		5512						LN		212		23		false		           23      services agreement, the new agreement that's been				false

		5513						LN		212		24		false		           24      referred to today between the company and ASCU, LLC with				false

		5514						LN		212		25		false		           25      an effective date of January 2, 2017.				false

		5515						PG		213		0		false		page 213				false

		5516						LN		213		1		false		            1           Summit's role and ASCU's role in connection with				false

		5517						LN		213		2		false		            2      the company's 2004 agreement and the new agreement are				false

		5518						LN		213		3		false		            3      unclear.  Likewise, the proposed cost and benefit				false

		5519						LN		213		4		false		            4      including any reallocation of expenses of the new				false

		5520						LN		213		5		false		            5      agreement remain unclear.  And the remainder of that				false

		5521						LN		213		6		false		            6      should be redacted regarding amounts.				false

		5522						LN		213		7		false		            7           Q.  Again, you testified earlier that you have read				false

		5523						LN		213		8		false		            8      both of those agreements?				false

		5524						LN		213		9		false		            9           A.  I have.				false

		5525						LN		213		10		false		           10           Q.  And in your recollection, what services does				false

		5526						LN		213		11		false		           11      Summit Water provide under that agreement?				false

		5527						LN		213		12		false		           12           A.  It provides the management of the water system				false

		5528						LN		213		13		false		           13      and an emergency basis supply of water.				false

		5529						LN		213		14		false		           14           Q.  And no discussion of administrative functions?				false

		5530						LN		213		15		false		           15           A.  I don't recall that, but not to the level of				false

		5531						LN		213		16		false		           16      their payroll and so forth.  None of those items, office				false

		5532						LN		213		17		false		           17      supplies, telephone payroll, taxes and such, were not				false

		5533						LN		213		18		false		           18      part of that agreement from our understanding.				false

		5534						LN		213		19		false		           19           Q.  Sorry.  Can you restate that.  There was a				false

		5535						LN		213		20		false		           20      negative in there that may have thrown me.				false

		5536						LN		213		21		false		           21           A.  Sorry.  The items referenced -- that you				false

		5537						LN		213		22		false		           22      referenced, the office supplies, telephones, payrolls,				false

		5538						LN		213		23		false		           23      taxes and so forth, were not lineated in the agreement.				false

		5539						LN		213		24		false		           24      And so those kinds of things were actually lineated out				false

		5540						LN		213		25		false		           25      in the new agreement.  And so the way this was				false

		5541						PG		214		0		false		page 214				false

		5542						LN		214		1		false		            1      presented, it was unclear.  It seemed to have crossed				false

		5543						LN		214		2		false		            2      over the two agreements.				false

		5544						LN		214		3		false		            3           Q.  So you're understanding of the agreements based				false

		5545						LN		214		4		false		            4      on your testimony is that ASC Utah and Summit Water				false

		5546						LN		214		5		false		            5      Distribution are providing duplicative services to the				false

		5547						LN		214		6		false		            6      company and both charging for it?				false

		5548						LN		214		7		false		            7           A.  That is a potential.				false

		5549						LN		214		8		false		            8           Q.  And again, back to the question of the amount				false

		5550						LN		214		9		false		            9      payable under the administrative services agreement and				false

		5551						LN		214		10		false		           10      the services provided under the administrative services				false

		5552						LN		214		11		false		           11      agreement.  How closely do they match the prior				false

		5553						LN		214		12		false		           12      allocations of salaries, office expense, lease expense,				false

		5554						LN		214		13		false		           13      insurance expense, and other items that were previously				false

		5555						LN		214		14		false		           14      broken out in the base year and prior years?  Do you				false

		5556						LN		214		15		false		           15      have any recollection of that?				false

		5557						LN		214		16		false		           16           A.  I do.  We actually took time to try to evaluate				false

		5558						LN		214		17		false		           17      that, and we found that the agreement seemed to cover				false

		5559						LN		214		18		false		           18      that.  It would be quite an increase actually.  And I				false

		5560						LN		214		19		false		           19      can't recall those numbers right now, I guess, but it				false

		5561						LN		214		20		false		           20      was a substantial amount to have an impact on your rate.				false

		5562						LN		214		21		false		           21           Q.  So the base -- the rate model with the base				false

		5563						LN		214		22		false		           22      year of 2016, shows an approximate amount of $90,000				false

		5564						LN		214		23		false		           23      payable or allocated for those administrative services.				false

		5565						LN		214		24		false		           24      The amount payable under the administrative services				false

		5566						LN		214		25		false		           25      agreement in some cases would not be a material increase				false

		5567						PG		215		0		false		page 215				false

		5568						LN		215		1		false		            1      from that.  But we've discussed today that there are				false

		5569						LN		215		2		false		            2      certain costs that were not known or that were being				false

		5570						LN		215		3		false		            3      subsidized.  Is it that that increase would cover those				false

		5571						LN		215		4		false		            4      subsidies or costs that were unknown in prior years?				false

		5572						LN		215		5		false		            5           A.  You're asking if the rate increase --				false

		5573						LN		215		6		false		            6           Q.  Just the amount payable under the				false

		5574						LN		215		7		false		            7      administrative services agreement relative to what was				false

		5575						LN		215		8		false		            8      previously allocated by the company for administrative				false

		5576						LN		215		9		false		            9      services.  Is the difference -- you said there was a				false

		5577						LN		215		10		false		           10      substantial increase -- is that difference justifiable				false

		5578						LN		215		11		false		           11      by potential subsidies or amounts that were previously				false

		5579						LN		215		12		false		           12      unknown?				false

		5580						LN		215		13		false		           13           A.  I would -- I don't have that information so I				false

		5581						LN		215		14		false		           14      would be speculating.				false

		5582						LN		215		15		false		           15           Q.  Okay.  And have you ever had a rate case with a				false

		5583						LN		215		16		false		           16      public utility -- No.  The answer is no.  I already know				false

		5584						LN		215		17		false		           17      that.  Why am I asking that question.				false

		5585						LN		215		18		false		           18           Have you had any experience with managing a small				false

		5586						LN		215		19		false		           19      company?				false

		5587						LN		215		20		false		           20           A.  With managing a small company?				false

		5588						LN		215		21		false		           21           Q.  Or the finances of a small company?				false

		5589						LN		215		22		false		           22           A.  Not that would pertain to this, no.				false

		5590						LN		215		23		false		           23           Q.  Okay.  Any idea what typical overhead costs				false

		5591						LN		215		24		false		           24      would be for a small company?				false

		5592						LN		215		25		false		           25           A.  I would be guessing.				false
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		5594						LN		216		1		false		            1           Q.  Okay.  Is it possible that the two agreements				false

		5595						LN		216		2		false		            2      do not cross over, and that, in fact, the services that				false

		5596						LN		216		3		false		            3      are provided are completely independent?				false

		5597						LN		216		4		false		            4           A.  Is it possible.  I would guess so.  But just in				false

		5598						LN		216		5		false		            5      reading the document, it did not include those services.				false

		5599						LN		216		6		false		            6           Q.  Which document?				false

		5600						LN		216		7		false		            7           A.  The first agreement from 2004.				false

		5601						LN		216		8		false		            8           Q.  Did not include those services?				false

		5602						LN		216		9		false		            9           A.  Correct.				false

		5603						LN		216		10		false		           10           Q.  And the new document does?				false

		5604						LN		216		11		false		           11           A.  Yes.  It matched more with those, yes.				false

		5605						LN		216		12		false		           12           Q.  Would that not suggest that they are different?				false

		5606						LN		216		13		false		           13           A.  I'm sorry.  Maybe I said that wrong.  I said				false

		5607						LN		216		14		false		           14      that backwards.  Excuse me.  The new agreement included				false

		5608						LN		216		15		false		           15      what appeared to be those expenses for the company,				false

		5609						LN		216		16		false		           16      which makes sense in the framework of what the agreement				false

		5610						LN		216		17		false		           17      is.				false

		5611						LN		216		18		false		           18           The other -- which this is referring to in 2004,				false

		5612						LN		216		19		false		           19      that agreement, I can't see where -- you know, you would				false

		5613						LN		216		20		false		           20      have office supplies, telephone, payrolls, taxes, and so				false

		5614						LN		216		21		false		           21      forth with the management agreement.  That is for a				false

		5615						LN		216		22		false		           22      total amount regardless of kind of what happens unless				false

		5616						LN		216		23		false		           23      an emergency.				false

		5617						LN		216		24		false		           24           Q.  So that is correct, and I think the record is				false

		5618						LN		216		25		false		           25      clear on that point.  The two agreements address two				false
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		5620						LN		217		1		false		            1      completely separate services without cross-over.				false

		5621						LN		217		2		false		            2           A.  So are you saying that this is a typographical				false

		5622						LN		217		3		false		            3      error?				false

		5623						LN		217		4		false		            4           Q.  No, no, no.  What I'm saying is that it's not				false

		5624						LN		217		5		false		            5      an inconsistency.				false

		5625						LN		217		6		false		            6           A.  Okay.				false

		5626						LN		217		7		false		            7           Q.  Okay.  We'll move on.  Page four, line 54,				false

		5627						LN		217		8		false		            8      chemicals.  This line was removed -- this is the				false

		5628						LN		217		9		false		            9      testimony of Keith Larson -- this line item was removed				false

		5629						LN		217		10		false		           10      inasmuch as the company does not anticipate using the				false

		5630						LN		217		11		false		           11      treatment plant going forward.  You note that that's an				false

		5631						LN		217		12		false		           12      unclear inconsistent statement because Mr. Larson's				false

		5632						LN		217		13		false		           13      testimony also suggests that the Division of Drinking				false

		5633						LN		217		14		false		           14      Water loan requests $523,000 for repair of the water				false

		5634						LN		217		15		false		           15      treatment plant.				false

		5635						LN		217		16		false		           16           And your inconsistency is correctly stated.  Why				false

		5636						LN		217		17		false		           17      did the Division not include this in its first data				false

		5637						LN		217		18		false		           18      request or subsequent data request when it became aware				false

		5638						LN		217		19		false		           19      of the inconsistency?				false

		5639						LN		217		20		false		           20           A.  We received this after our data request.				false

		5640						LN		217		21		false		           21           Q.  Why did the Division not make a subsequent data				false

		5641						LN		217		22		false		           22      request?				false

		5642						LN		217		23		false		           23           A.  Probably due to time constraint.				false

		5643						LN		217		24		false		           24           Q.  Okay.  Did the Division investigate any further				false

		5644						LN		217		25		false		           25      the analysis provided by Mr. Larson to determine whether				false

		5645						PG		218		0		false		page 218				false

		5646						LN		218		1		false		            1      or not chemicals were actually included under a				false

		5647						LN		218		2		false		            2      different line item?				false

		5648						LN		218		3		false		            3           A.  What is the purpose of your question?				false

		5649						LN		218		4		false		            4           Q.  The purpose of my question is that the				false

		5650						LN		218		5		false		            5      chemicals are indeed included.				false

		5651						LN		218		6		false		            6           A.  That brought more inconsistency because that				false

		5652						LN		218		7		false		            7      same person said that they were not going to be				false

		5653						LN		218		8		false		            8      included.				false

		5654						LN		218		9		false		            9           Q.  So had you done more investigation or requested				false

		5655						LN		218		10		false		           10      the company, could you have found that out before today?				false

		5656						LN		218		11		false		           11           A.  Given timing, I don't know.				false

		5657						LN		218		12		false		           12           Q.  Page four, line 60, the need for services.  The				false

		5658						LN		218		13		false		           13      line item -- excuse me -- is contractual services				false

		5659						LN		218		14		false		           14      accounting.  The need for the services represented by				false

		5660						LN		218		15		false		           15      this line item is unclear with the new agreement and the				false

		5661						LN		218		16		false		           16      company's agreement with Summit Water seemed to provide				false

		5662						LN		218		17		false		           17      similar services.  In your opinion, is there a				false

		5663						LN		218		18		false		           18      difference between administrative services and				false

		5664						LN		218		19		false		           19      accounting services?				false

		5665						LN		218		20		false		           20           A.  It depends on who you're talking to.  I would				false

		5666						LN		218		21		false		           21      guess -- what is the title of the agreement?				false

		5667						LN		218		22		false		           22           Q.  Administrative services agreement.				false

		5668						LN		218		23		false		           23           A.  Right.				false

		5669						LN		218		24		false		           24           Q.  Is it conceivable that there are independent				false

		5670						LN		218		25		false		           25      accounting fees such as tax preparation, audit fees,				false
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		5672						LN		219		1		false		            1      that may not be covered by an administrator?				false

		5673						LN		219		2		false		            2           A.  Correct.				false

		5674						LN		219		3		false		            3           Q.  Thank you.  Page five, line 75, administrative				false

		5675						LN		219		4		false		            4      expenses.  The need for expenses represented by this				false

		5676						LN		219		5		false		            5      line item is unclear with the new agreement and the				false

		5677						LN		219		6		false		            6      company agreement with Summit Water seems to cover				false

		5678						LN		219		7		false		            7      similar expenses.				false

		5679						LN		219		8		false		            8           Is it conceivable that there are administrative				false

		5680						LN		219		9		false		            9      expenses that are direct expenses that are not covered				false

		5681						LN		219		10		false		           10      by services provided by a manager or an administrator?				false

		5682						LN		219		11		false		           11           A.  Why would there be an agreement that would				false

		5683						LN		219		12		false		           12      encompass that on two different aspects of the company?				false

		5684						LN		219		13		false		           13           Q.  Do companies have licensing fees, annual filing				false

		5685						LN		219		14		false		           14      fees, corporate filing fees, things of that nature that				false

		5686						LN		219		15		false		           15      are deemed administrative that would not be covered by				false

		5687						LN		219		16		false		           16      an administrator typically?				false

		5688						LN		219		17		false		           17           A.  I would have to direct your question to the				false

		5689						LN		219		18		false		           18      draft of that whether that was meant to be in that				false

		5690						LN		219		19		false		           19      agreement or not.				false

		5691						LN		219		20		false		           20           Q.  Could the Division have asked that question				false

		5692						LN		219		21		false		           21      before today?				false

		5693						LN		219		22		false		           22           A.  Due to time constraint, I don't know the answer				false

		5694						LN		219		23		false		           23      to that.				false

		5695						LN		219		24		false		           24           Q.  Thank you.  And finally page five, line 77,				false

		5696						LN		219		25		false		           25      customer information, management system, postage and				false

		5697						PG		220		0		false		page 220				false

		5698						LN		220		1		false		            1      mailing, winter transportation and access expense.  The				false

		5699						LN		220		2		false		            2      need for expense represented by this line item is				false

		5700						LN		220		3		false		            3      unclear with the new agreement and the company's				false

		5701						LN		220		4		false		            4      agreement with Summit Water covering similar expenses.				false

		5702						LN		220		5		false		            5      Same question.				false

		5703						LN		220		6		false		            6           A.  Well, given what we understand, the needs of				false

		5704						LN		220		7		false		            7      the company and how it's potentially run, and the				false

		5705						LN		220		8		false		            8      agreements, I would find it hard to find those outside				false

		5706						LN		220		9		false		            9      of those agreements.  Wouldn't you?				false

		5707						LN		220		10		false		           10           Q.  So if you read the agreement -- and again, it's				false

		5708						LN		220		11		false		           11      confidential -- it's a services agreement, not a				false

		5709						LN		220		12		false		           12      goods -- not an expense agreement.  And it does discuss				false

		5710						LN		220		13		false		           13      this, direct expenses are expenses that the company pays				false

		5711						LN		220		14		false		           14      in addition and apart from the administrative services				false

		5712						LN		220		15		false		           15      fee.				false

		5713						LN		220		16		false		           16           A.  So they're paying for them twice?				false

		5714						LN		220		17		false		           17           Q.  No.  They're paying for the administrator to				false

		5715						LN		220		18		false		           18      lick the envelope and put it in the mail.				false

		5716						LN		220		19		false		           19           A.  Okay.				false

		5717						LN		220		20		false		           20           Q.  But they're also paying for the envelope and				false

		5718						LN		220		21		false		           21      stamp separate and apart.				false

		5719						LN		220		22		false		           22           A.  So you're saying that that's an addition to				false

		5720						LN		220		23		false		           23      page five, line 64, where it says -- where it refers				false

		5721						LN		220		24		false		           24      back to the 2004 agreement?  We just discussed in that				false

		5722						LN		220		25		false		           25      that there was these services including --				false

		5723						PG		221		0		false		page 221				false

		5724						LN		221		1		false		            1           Q.  Correct.  It's the services portion of that.				false

		5725						LN		221		2		false		            2      The administrator will handle those portions, but the				false

		5726						LN		221		3		false		            3      company is still responsible for paying the hard costs				false

		5727						LN		221		4		false		            4      associated with it?				false

		5728						LN		221		5		false		            5           A.  Okay.				false

		5729						LN		221		6		false		            6           Q.  The administrator is not responsible to pay for				false

		5730						LN		221		7		false		            7      the management system, it operates the management				false

		5731						LN		221		8		false		            8      system?				false

		5732						LN		221		9		false		            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Was that a question?  Do you				false

		5733						LN		221		10		false		           10      agree?				false

		5734						LN		221		11		false		           11           THE WITNESS:  That is a possibility, yes.				false

		5735						LN		221		12		false		           12           MR. ATWATER:				false

		5736						LN		221		13		false		           13           Q.  You would not be surprised?				false

		5737						LN		221		14		false		           14           A.  I would hope that the company would be prudent				false

		5738						LN		221		15		false		           15      in the way it runs its business so to avoid extra costs.				false

		5739						LN		221		16		false		           16      So if you're proposing is this a prudent way, I don't				false

		5740						LN		221		17		false		           17      know.				false

		5741						LN		221		18		false		           18           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.				false

		5742						LN		221		19		false		           19           MR. SAVAGE:  No questions.				false

		5743						LN		221		20		false		           20           MR. LANGE:  No questions.				false

		5744						LN		221		21		false		           21           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'm not sure Mr. Atwater is				false

		5745						LN		221		22		false		           22      finished.				false

		5746						LN		221		23		false		           23           MS. SCHMID:  I thought he was.  I'm sorry.				false

		5747						LN		221		24		false		           24           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.				false

		5748						LN		221		25		false		           25           Mr. White has to leave, and so you suggested				false

		5749						PG		222		0		false		page 222				false

		5750						LN		222		1		false		            1      previously that we could put the witness on the stand				false

		5751						LN		222		2		false		            2      regarding the exhibits that I handed out.  I was				false

		5752						LN		222		3		false		            3      wondering if we could do that now.				false

		5753						LN		222		4		false		            4           MS. SCHMID:  Mr. Smith also has to leave.  So to				false

		5754						LN		222		5		false		            5      the extent that we could make this an expeditious				false

		5755						LN		222		6		false		            6      process, that would be appreciated.  But again,				false

		5756						LN		222		7		false		            7      Mr. Smith is available for the duration of the hearing				false

		5757						LN		222		8		false		            8      as a witness should be.				false

		5758						LN		222		9		false		            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Is there any objection to				false

		5759						LN		222		10		false		           10      Mr. Smith's testimony being interrupted so that				false

		5760						LN		222		11		false		           11      Mr. White can take the stand for a few moments to				false

		5761						LN		222		12		false		           12      authenticate the rebuttal exhibit?				false

		5762						LN		222		13		false		           13           MR. LANGE:  No objection.				false

		5763						LN		222		14		false		           14           MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.				false

		5764						LN		222		15		false		           15           MS. SCHMID:  No objection.				false

		5765						LN		222		16		false		           16           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Mr. Smith, you're				false

		5766						LN		222		17		false		           17      excused for now.				false

		5767						LN		222		18		false		           18           MR. ATWATER:  I call Mr. Larry White to the stand.				false

		5768						LN		222		19		false		           19           (Mr. Larry White returns to the stand.)				false

		5769						LN		222		20		false		           20           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. White you're still under				false

		5770						LN		222		21		false		           21      oath.				false

		5771						LN		222		22		false		           22           THE WITNESS:  Thank you.  I apologize, Your Honor.				false

		5772						LN		222		23		false		           23      So yesterday was my mother-in-law's 90th birthday.  I				false

		5773						LN		222		24		false		           24      missed her birthday so I could be at this hearing.  I				false

		5774						LN		222		25		false		           25      have adjusted my flight, which is at 5:00 o'clock, in				false

		5775						PG		223		0		false		page 223				false

		5776						LN		223		1		false		            1      order to get back to the East Coast for her birthday				false

		5777						LN		223		2		false		            2      party tomorrow.  My wife is already not happy with me				false

		5778						LN		223		3		false		            3      for missing her birthday, and will be even more unhappy				false

		5779						LN		223		4		false		            4      with me if I don't make it back in time for tomorrow.				false

		5780						LN		223		5		false		            5           THE HEARING OFFICER:  We wish you the best of luck.				false

		5781						LN		223		6		false		            6           THE WITNESS:  Otherwise, I'd be happy to stay here				false

		5782						LN		223		7		false		            7      for the duration.				false

		5783						LN		223		8		false		            8           MR. ATWATER:				false

		5784						LN		223		9		false		            9           Q.  So Mr. White, I've handed you two exhibits that				false

		5785						LN		223		10		false		           10      have also been handed out to the parties.  These				false

		5786						LN		223		11		false		           11      exhibits provide -- the first exhibit --				false

		5787						LN		223		12		false		           12           MR. SAVAGE:  Could we have a number for this?				false

		5788						LN		223		13		false		           13           MR. ATWATER:  Exhibit Number 1 would be the exhibit				false

		5789						LN		223		14		false		           14      titled, "Subsidized Expenses Payable."  And Exhibit 2				false

		5790						LN		223		15		false		           15      we'll call the document titled, "GL Account Ledger With				false

		5791						LN		223		16		false		           16      Detail."				false

		5792						LN		223		17		false		           17           THE HEARING OFFICER:  And I will note on my copy				false

		5793						LN		223		18		false		           18      that I don't have a page two.  I have page one, a blank				false

		5794						LN		223		19		false		           19      back, and a page three.				false

		5795						LN		223		20		false		           20           MR. ATWATER:  Were you the one that got the three				false

		5796						LN		223		21		false		           21      pages?				false

		5797						LN		223		22		false		           22           MS. SCHMID:  I am.  Would you like us to take a				false

		5798						LN		223		23		false		           23      small break and the Division could make copies so				false

		5799						LN		223		24		false		           24      everyone has all the pages?				false

		5800						LN		223		25		false		           25           MR. ATWATER:  So I would suggest that the sum on				false

		5801						PG		224		0		false		page 224				false

		5802						LN		224		1		false		            1      page three is really what we're going to talk about.  In				false

		5803						LN		224		2		false		            2      fact, we could remove the first two-pages.				false

		5804						LN		224		3		false		            3           MS. SCHMID:  I object to having an incomplete				false

		5805						LN		224		4		false		            4      exhibit.				false

		5806						LN		224		5		false		            5           MR. ATWATER:  Then I will remove the first two				false

		5807						LN		224		6		false		            6      pages.				false

		5808						LN		224		7		false		            7           MS. SCHMID:  I object to having an incomplete				false

		5809						LN		224		8		false		            8      exhibit and I would object to it being used to				false

		5810						LN		224		9		false		            9      cross-examine.				false

		5811						LN		224		10		false		           10           THE HEARING OFFICER:  It is a ledger.  So I think				false

		5812						LN		224		11		false		           11      to the extent the company seeks to admit it, it is				false

		5813						LN		224		12		false		           12      appropriate to reproduce it in its entirety as it was				false

		5814						LN		224		13		false		           13      intended to be.  So we can recess for a few moments				false

		5815						LN		224		14		false		           14      while it's copied.  Thank you for making copies.  Will				false

		5816						LN		224		15		false		           15      five minutes suffice?				false

		5817						LN		224		16		false		           16           MS. SCHMID:  Yes.  Thank you.				false

		5818						LN		224		17		false		           17           (A recess is taken.)				false

		5819						LN		224		18		false		           18           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Back on the record.  Ms.				false

		5820						LN		224		19		false		           19      Schmid, thank you for providing these copies.				false

		5821						LN		224		20		false		           20      Mr. Atwater, I'll turn them over to you.				false

		5822						LN		224		21		false		           21           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.				false

		5823						LN		224		22		false		           22           Q.  Mr. White, are you familiar with the document				false

		5824						LN		224		23		false		           23      in front of you titled interim hearing Exhibit 1,				false

		5825						LN		224		24		false		           24      "Subsidized Expenses Payable"?				false

		5826						LN		224		25		false		           25           A.  I am.				false

		5827						PG		225		0		false		page 225				false

		5828						LN		225		1		false		            1           Q.  What does this document represent?				false

		5829						LN		225		2		false		            2           A.  So this is basically an allocation of				false

		5830						LN		225		3		false		            3      administrative time and expenses for the past years that				false

		5831						LN		225		4		false		            4      TCFC employees have expended on dealing with Community				false

		5832						LN		225		5		false		            5      Water as constructed by our accounting firm.				false

		5833						LN		225		6		false		            6           Q.  Thank you.  Does this document fairly represent				false

		5834						LN		225		7		false		            7      the time spent and the costs associated with Community				false

		5835						LN		225		8		false		            8      Water?				false

		5836						LN		225		9		false		            9           A.  I would say if anything it's probably				false

		5837						LN		225		10		false		           10      understated.  But yes.				false

		5838						LN		225		11		false		           11           Q.  Would you elaborate?				false

		5839						LN		225		12		false		           12           A.  Well, just, you know, the amount of time that				false

		5840						LN		225		13		false		           13      it's taken to manage Community Water particularly				false

		5841						LN		225		14		false		           14      through these processes is just enormous.  And so I				false

		5842						LN		225		15		false		           15      would say that if anything it's probably understated in				false

		5843						LN		225		16		false		           16      terms of the amount of time that's been spent on				false

		5844						LN		225		17		false		           17      preparing for these cases and trying to fix this issue.				false

		5845						LN		225		18		false		           18           Q.  So to follow that line of questioning and to				false

		5846						LN		225		19		false		           19      further substantiate this, are you able to make				false

		5847						LN		225		20		false		           20      appropriate business decisions based on the current				false

		5848						LN		225		21		false		           21      status?				false

		5849						LN		225		22		false		           22           A.  I can tell you that we've had -- I've been on				false

		5850						LN		225		23		false		           23      numerous conference calls where our advisers, Emily,				false

		5851						LN		225		24		false		           24      Bowen & Collins, and representatives of the Department				false

		5852						LN		225		25		false		           25      of Public Utilities, where we have asked for their				false

		5853						PG		226		0		false		page 226				false

		5854						LN		226		1		false		            1      advice of how to get through this process, and they've				false

		5855						LN		226		2		false		            2      said we can't advise you on that.				false

		5856						LN		226		3		false		            3           And they said several times today that they				false

		5857						LN		226		4		false		            4      can't -- or that they're not making business decisions				false

		5858						LN		226		5		false		            5      and businesses can make their own decisions.  Businesses				false

		5859						LN		226		6		false		            6      can make decisions on their own.  That's a quote.  I				false

		5860						LN		226		7		false		            7      think it's pretty clear from this process that we can't				false

		5861						LN		226		8		false		            8      make decisions on our own.  We're subject to all of the				false

		5862						LN		226		9		false		            9      scrutiny, and we have no capacity to make decisions on				false

		5863						LN		226		10		false		           10      our own and that's why we're here.  I mean that's -- it				false

		5864						LN		226		11		false		           11      should be clearly evident that we can't make decisions				false

		5865						LN		226		12		false		           12      on our own.				false

		5866						LN		226		13		false		           13           So, you know, I ask your advice.  Is it in the				false

		5867						LN		226		14		false		           14      public's best interest that the risk to the system is				false

		5868						LN		226		15		false		           15      far greater than irrigation -- whether people can keep				false

		5869						LN		226		16		false		           16      their lawns and trees, you know, green next year.				false

		5870						LN		226		17		false		           17           THE HEARING OFFICER:  It's not appropriate for me				false

		5871						LN		226		18		false		           18      to give you advice, sir, and I thought the witness was				false

		5872						LN		226		19		false		           19      called simply to authenticate the exhibits.				false

		5873						LN		226		20		false		           20           MS. SCHMID:  As he is discussing more, I will have				false

		5874						LN		226		21		false		           21      a line of cross on this, please.				false

		5875						LN		226		22		false		           22           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Please proceed.				false

		5876						LN		226		23		false		           23           MR. ATWATER:  Are you done with the question?				false

		5877						LN		226		24		false		           24           THE WITNESS:  Yes, I'm done.				false

		5878						LN		226		25		false		           25           MR. ATWATER:				false

		5879						PG		227		0		false		page 227				false

		5880						LN		227		1		false		            1           Q.  Okay.  The amounts on the sheet that we just				false

		5881						LN		227		2		false		            2      discussed, Exhibit 1, are they included, to your				false

		5882						LN		227		3		false		            3      knowledge, on the financial statements?  Or are these in				false

		5883						LN		227		4		false		            4      fact the inner-company amounts that we spoke of earlier				false

		5884						LN		227		5		false		            5      that do not show on the financials?				false

		5885						LN		227		6		false		            6           A.  So if you're referring to the account ledger --				false

		5886						LN		227		7		false		            7           Q.  No.  Sorry.  This allocation here.				false

		5887						LN		227		8		false		            8           MS. SCHMID:  Is that the single sheet?				false

		5888						LN		227		9		false		            9           MR. ATWATER:  That's the single sheet.				false

		5889						LN		227		10		false		           10           Q.  Are these the inner-company amounts that we				false

		5890						LN		227		11		false		           11      were discussing earlier with Mr. Smith?				false

		5891						LN		227		12		false		           12           A.  Yes.				false

		5892						LN		227		13		false		           13           Q.  Thank you.  We would move to submit this				false

		5893						LN		227		14		false		           14      Exhibit 1, "Subsidized Expenses Payable" into the record				false

		5894						LN		227		15		false		           15      for discussion.				false

		5895						LN		227		16		false		           16           MS. SCHMID:  I have a few questions pertaining to				false

		5896						LN		227		17		false		           17      its admissibility, if I may.				false

		5897						LN		227		18		false		           18           THE HEARING OFFICER:  You'd like to voir dire the				false

		5898						LN		227		19		false		           19      witness on the exhibit?				false

		5899						LN		227		20		false		           20           MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  Yes.				false

		5900						LN		227		21		false		           21           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Go ahead.				false

		5901						LN		227		22		false		           22           MS. SCHMID:				false

		5902						LN		227		23		false		           23           Q.  Could you please tell me where in the company's				false

		5903						LN		227		24		false		           24      testimony I can find the information that is present in				false

		5904						LN		227		25		false		           25      Exhibit 1 and the information that is -- the single				false

		5905						PG		228		0		false		page 228				false

		5906						LN		228		1		false		            1      page, and where I can find the information that is				false

		5907						LN		228		2		false		            2      present in Exhibit -- what I'll call 2, the --				false

		5908						LN		228		3		false		            3           MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  This was discussed in Mr.				false

		5909						LN		228		4		false		            4      Smith's testimony that it was not included because it				false

		5910						LN		228		5		false		            5      was consolidated.				false

		5911						LN		228		6		false		            6           MS. SCHMID:  That's all I wanted to know.				false

		5912						LN		228		7		false		            7           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Do you want an answer from a				false

		5913						LN		228		8		false		            8      witness of fact?				false

		5914						LN		228		9		false		            9           MS. SCHMID:  I would like that, please.				false

		5915						LN		228		10		false		           10           THE WITNESS:  Your question again?				false

		5916						LN		228		11		false		           11           MS. SCHMID:				false

		5917						LN		228		12		false		           12           Q.  My question is, please direct me to the part of				false

		5918						LN		228		13		false		           13      the company's testimony which reflects the numbers in				false

		5919						LN		228		14		false		           14      Exhibit 1, the single sheet of numbers, passed out by				false

		5920						LN		228		15		false		           15      your counsel, and Exhibit 2, the multiple page sheet,				false

		5921						LN		228		16		false		           16      passed out by your counsel.				false

		5922						LN		228		17		false		           17           A.  So I don't believe that they were in the --				false

		5923						LN		228		18		false		           18           MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.				false

		5924						LN		228		19		false		           19           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Does any other counsel have				false

		5925						LN		228		20		false		           20      any questions with respect to the exhibits?				false

		5926						LN		228		21		false		           21           MR. SAVAGE:  Not with respect to the exhibits, but				false

		5927						LN		228		22		false		           22      I think what's pending is the admissibility and I have				false

		5928						LN		228		23		false		           23      no questions.				false

		5929						LN		228		24		false		           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you for rephrasing my				false

		5930						LN		228		25		false		           25      question.  Is there an objection then to the				false

		5931						PG		229		0		false		page 229				false

		5932						LN		229		1		false		            1      admissibility of the exhibit?				false

		5933						LN		229		2		false		            2           MS. SCHMID:  I do not object to the admissibility				false

		5934						LN		229		3		false		            3      of the exhibit.				false

		5935						LN		229		4		false		            4           MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.				false

		5936						LN		229		5		false		            5           MR. LANGE:  No objection.				false

		5937						LN		229		6		false		            6           MS. MILLER:  No objection.				false

		5938						LN		229		7		false		            7           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Atwater, to be clear, are				false

		5939						LN		229		8		false		            8      you moving for its admission?				false

		5940						LN		229		9		false		            9           MR. ATWATER:  Yes.  We move to submit.				false

		5941						LN		229		10		false		           10           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Then this exhibit, hearing				false

		5942						LN		229		11		false		           11      Exhibit 1, Subsidized Expenses Payable, is admitted as				false

		5943						LN		229		12		false		           12      hearing Exhibit 1.				false

		5944						LN		229		13		false		           13           (Whereupon the document referred to is marked by				false

		5945						LN		229		14		false		           14      the reporter as EXHIBIT 1.)				false

		5946						LN		229		15		false		           15           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.				false

		5947						LN		229		16		false		           16           Q.  Mr. White, looking at the document entitled Gl				false

		5948						LN		229		17		false		           17      Account Ledger With Detail, are you familiar with this				false

		5949						LN		229		18		false		           18      document?				false

		5950						LN		229		19		false		           19           A.  I am.				false

		5951						LN		229		20		false		           20           Q.  What is this?				false

		5952						LN		229		21		false		           21           A.  So this is what I asked our accounting partner,				false

		5953						LN		229		22		false		           22      controller, to give me just to give us a tracking as to				false

		5954						LN		229		23		false		           23      what the current cash status of Community Water is.				false

		5955						LN		229		24		false		           24           Q.  Does this accurately and fairly represent the				false

		5956						LN		229		25		false		           25      status?				false

		5957						PG		230		0		false		page 230				false

		5958						LN		230		1		false		            1           A.  To the best of my knowledge, yes.				false

		5959						LN		230		2		false		            2           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.  Those are all my				false

		5960						LN		230		3		false		            3      questions for the witness.				false

		5961						LN		230		4		false		            4           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Did you move for the				false

		5962						LN		230		5		false		            5      admission of the exhibit?				false

		5963						LN		230		6		false		            6           MR. ATWATER:  I can.  Do you want to have him				false

		5964						LN		230		7		false		            7      questioned first or move first?				false

		5965						LN		230		8		false		            8           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Only if they have questions.				false

		5966						LN		230		9		false		            9           MS. SCHMID:  I believe that he already testified				false

		5967						LN		230		10		false		           10      that the multi-page exhibit was not present in the				false

		5968						LN		230		11		false		           11      testimony previously filed.				false

		5969						LN		230		12		false		           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Not withstanding that point,				false

		5970						LN		230		13		false		           13      you don't object to the exhibit being admitted?				false

		5971						LN		230		14		false		           14           MS. SCHMID:  I do not object to the exhibit having				false

		5972						LN		230		15		false		           15      had my question answered.				false

		5973						LN		230		16		false		           16           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Is there any other objection?				false

		5974						LN		230		17		false		           17           MR. SAVAGE:  No.				false

		5975						LN		230		18		false		           18           MS. MILLER:  No objection.				false

		5976						LN		230		19		false		           19           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Then the exhibit handed out				false

		5977						LN		230		20		false		           20      by Mr. Atwater entitled at the top GL Account Ledger				false

		5978						LN		230		21		false		           21      With Detail is admitted as hearing Exhibit 2.				false

		5979						LN		230		22		false		           22           (Whereupon the document referred to is marked by				false

		5980						LN		230		23		false		           23      the reporter as EXHIBIT 2.)				false

		5981						LN		230		24		false		           24           MR. ATWATER:  I have no further questions of				false

		5982						LN		230		25		false		           25      Mr. White.				false

		5983						PG		231		0		false		page 231				false

		5984						LN		231		1		false		            1           THE HEARING OFFICER:  You're excused, Mr. White.				false

		5985						LN		231		2		false		            2           MS. SCHMID:  I have some questions for him.  His				false

		5986						LN		231		3		false		            3      testimony right now went beyond the mere facts of the				false

		5987						LN		231		4		false		            4      numbers on the admitted exhibits, so I have some				false

		5988						LN		231		5		false		            5      questions for him.				false

		5989						LN		231		6		false		            6           Q.  Mr. White, did you say that a regulated				false

		5990						LN		231		7		false		            7      business cannot make decisions on its own?  Is that a				false

		5991						LN		231		8		false		            8      fair paraphrase of your testimony?				false

		5992						LN		231		9		false		            9           A.  What I said is that it's clear that we're not				false

		5993						LN		231		10		false		           10      able to make business decisions on our own.  That it's				false

		5994						LN		231		11		false		           11      subject to input -- in this entity -- publicly regulated				false

		5995						LN		231		12		false		           12      entity that we're not capable of making decisions on our				false

		5996						LN		231		13		false		           13      own.  We have to come for approvals to various state				false

		5997						LN		231		14		false		           14      agencies.				false

		5998						LN		231		15		false		           15           Q.  Is it correct, however, to say that the company				false

		5999						LN		231		16		false		           16      can make business decisions on its own, but the recovery				false

		6000						LN		231		17		false		           17      part is what is determined by the Public Service				false

		6001						LN		231		18		false		           18      Commission?				false

		6002						LN		231		19		false		           19           A.  I can't tell you that I understand the process				false

		6003						LN		231		20		false		           20      well enough to answer your question.  What I can tell				false

		6004						LN		231		21		false		           21      you is that what we've endeavored to do is hire the best				false

		6005						LN		231		22		false		           22      consultants we can find, Clyde Snow which is a water				false

		6006						LN		231		23		false		           23      counsel specialist, and Bowen Collins, and with the				false

		6007						LN		231		24		false		           24      advice of Summit Water who has been managing this system				false

		6008						LN		231		25		false		           25      for many, many years.				false

		6009						PG		232		0		false		page 232				false

		6010						LN		232		1		false		            1           Q.  Is it true that the company has the				false

		6011						LN		232		2		false		            2      responsibility to make sure that all pertinent				false

		6012						LN		232		3		false		            3      information is in its application?				false

		6013						LN		232		4		false		            4           MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  Asks for an opinion.				false

		6014						LN		232		5		false		            5           MS. SCHMID:  I will reply that he makes decisions				false

		6015						LN		232		6		false		            6      on behalf of the company and was involved, I believe, in				false

		6016						LN		232		7		false		            7      the application process and is a witness in this				false

		6017						LN		232		8		false		            8      proceeding.				false

		6018						LN		232		9		false		            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'll overrule the objection				false

		6019						LN		232		10		false		           10      with respect to the line of questioning.  I just noticed				false

		6020						LN		232		11		false		           11      the hour is getting late, and I hope -- we haven't even				false

		6021						LN		232		12		false		           12      allowed the intervenors an opportunity to present any				false

		6022						LN		232		13		false		           13      evidence yet.  So if we can expedite questioning that				false

		6023						LN		232		14		false		           14      might be extraneous to the issues that are directly at				false

		6024						LN		232		15		false		           15      hand in this proceeding, I think that would be in				false

		6025						LN		232		16		false		           16      everyone's best interest.  But I will overrule the				false

		6026						LN		232		17		false		           17      objection and allow Ms. Schmid to ask the question.				false

		6027						LN		232		18		false		           18           MS. SCHMID:  Could the reporter please read the				false

		6028						LN		232		19		false		           19      question back?				false

		6029						LN		232		20		false		           20           (The record is read by the reporter.)				false

		6030						LN		232		21		false		           21           THE WITNESS:  I would say certainly it is.  But as				false

		6031						LN		232		22		false		           22      you know, these applications are extremely complicated				false

		6032						LN		232		23		false		           23      by the volume that was submitted.  And so if something				false

		6033						LN		232		24		false		           24      was omitted, I apologize.  But to the best of our				false

		6034						LN		232		25		false		           25      ability we are trying to get through this process to				false

		6035						PG		233		0		false		page 233				false

		6036						LN		233		1		false		            1      make this company work.				false

		6037						LN		233		2		false		            2           MS. SCHMID:				false

		6038						LN		233		3		false		            3           Q.  And it's the company's responsibility likewise				false

		6039						LN		233		4		false		            4      to make sure that the information in the application is				false

		6040						LN		233		5		false		            5      accurate; is that right?				false

		6041						LN		233		6		false		            6           A.  I guess it would be.				false

		6042						LN		233		7		false		            7           MS. SCHMID:  Those are all my questions.				false

		6043						LN		233		8		false		            8           MR. SAVAGE:				false

		6044						LN		233		9		false		            9           Q.  Mr. White, are you aware of a Utah statute that				false

		6045						LN		233		10		false		           10      requires every public utility shall furnish, provide,				false

		6046						LN		233		11		false		           11      and maintain such service, instrumentalities, equipment				false

		6047						LN		233		12		false		           12      and facilities, as will promote the health, safety,				false

		6048						LN		233		13		false		           13      comfort and convenience of its patrons, and will in all				false

		6049						LN		233		14		false		           14      respects be adequate, efficient, just and reasonable?				false

		6050						LN		233		15		false		           15      Anybody ever tell you about that Utah statute?				false

		6051						LN		233		16		false		           16           A.  No.				false

		6052						LN		233		17		false		           17           Q.  And you said "we've" been managing the system				false

		6053						LN		233		18		false		           18      for many years?				false

		6054						LN		233		19		false		           19           A.  No, I said Summit Water has been managing the				false

		6055						LN		233		20		false		           20      system for many years.				false

		6056						LN		233		21		false		           21           Q.  You said "we".  Who did you mean when you said				false

		6057						LN		233		22		false		           22      we?				false

		6058						LN		233		23		false		           23           A.  What I meant to say is that Summit Water --				false

		6059						LN		233		24		false		           24      when I said -- when I was listing the number of people				false

		6060						LN		233		25		false		           25      that we had engaged in conversation --				false

		6061						PG		234		0		false		page 234				false

		6062						LN		234		1		false		            1           MS. SCHMID:  Sorry.  Could you please ask the				false

		6063						LN		234		2		false		            2      witness to speak into the microphone?  I have some				false

		6064						LN		234		3		false		            3      difficulty hearing.				false

		6065						LN		234		4		false		            4           THE WITNESS:  What I said was that the company had				false

		6066						LN		234		5		false		            5      engaged multiple experts, including Summit Water, that				false

		6067						LN		234		6		false		            6      had been manging the company for several years.				false

		6068						LN		234		7		false		            7           MR. SAVAGE:				false

		6069						LN		234		8		false		            8           Q.  So you don't think CWC has been managing the				false

		6070						LN		234		9		false		            9      company as a public utility with obligations under the				false

		6071						LN		234		10		false		           10      statutes of the state of Utah?				false

		6072						LN		234		11		false		           11           A.  I can't answer.  You're asking a legal opinion				false

		6073						LN		234		12		false		           12      and I can't answer your question.				false

		6074						LN		234		13		false		           13           Q.  Fair enough.  And you said "our" controllers				false

		6075						LN		234		14		false		           14      gave you this information on Exhibit 2.  Who did you				false

		6076						LN		234		15		false		           15      mean by "our"?				false

		6077						LN		234		16		false		           16           A.  TCFC -- it would be TCFC's control.  CWC has no				false

		6078						LN		234		17		false		           17      direct employees.  Community Water Company has no direct				false

		6079						LN		234		18		false		           18      employees.				false

		6080						LN		234		19		false		           19           Q.  You're in effect the chief executive officer of				false

		6081						LN		234		20		false		           20      both TCFC and CWC?				false

		6082						LN		234		21		false		           21           A.  No, I'm not.				false

		6083						LN		234		22		false		           22           Q.  What are you?				false

		6084						LN		234		23		false		           23           A.  I clearly stated this.				false

		6085						LN		234		24		false		           24           MR. ATWATER:  Asked and answered.				false

		6086						LN		234		25		false		           25           THE HEARING OFFICER:  That's sustained.  It's been				false

		6087						PG		235		0		false		page 235				false

		6088						LN		235		1		false		            1      asked and answered.				false

		6089						LN		235		2		false		            2           MR. SAVAGE:				false

		6090						LN		235		3		false		            3           Q.  There are no employees of CWC?				false

		6091						LN		235		4		false		            4           A.  No.				false

		6092						LN		235		5		false		            5           Q.  You make the final decisions for CWC?				false

		6093						LN		235		6		false		            6           MR. ATWATER:  Asked and answered.  Objection.				false

		6094						LN		235		7		false		            7           THE HEARING OFFICER:  It's sustained.  This is a				false

		6095						LN		235		8		false		            8      line of questioning that we've been spent quite a bit of				false

		6096						LN		235		9		false		            9      time on already.				false

		6097						LN		235		10		false		           10           MR. SAVAGE:  I'm sorry, Your Honor, I'm just trying				false

		6098						LN		235		11		false		           11      to set up a question.  I'll move to the question.				false

		6099						LN		235		12		false		           12           Q.  Exhibit 2 you have it in front of you there,				false

		6100						LN		235		13		false		           13      the ledger?				false

		6101						LN		235		14		false		           14           A.  Yes.				false

		6102						LN		235		15		false		           15           Q.  GL, does that mean general ledger?				false

		6103						LN		235		16		false		           16           A.  I'm not an accountant.				false

		6104						LN		235		17		false		           17           Q.  And you don't know what that means, GL?				false

		6105						LN		235		18		false		           18           A.  No.				false

		6106						LN		235		19		false		           19           Q.  Okay.  Is this an account ledger for TCFC?				false

		6107						LN		235		20		false		           20           A.  No, it's not.				false

		6108						LN		235		21		false		           21           Q.  I look at the top where it says Account Ledger				false

		6109						LN		235		22		false		           22      With Detail.  Do you see that upper left?				false

		6110						LN		235		23		false		           23           A.  I see that.				false

		6111						LN		235		24		false		           24           Q.  Right under it it says, TCFC, Inc.				false

		6112						LN		235		25		false		           25           A.  That would be the company that produced the				false

		6113						PG		236		0		false		page 236				false

		6114						LN		236		1		false		            1      ledger.				false

		6115						LN		236		2		false		            2           Q.  Okay.  So this would -- in your -- as you sit				false

		6116						LN		236		3		false		            3      here today, do you think this is part of the TCFC				false

		6117						LN		236		4		false		            4      ledger?				false

		6118						LN		236		5		false		            5           A.  I can't answer your question.				false

		6119						LN		236		6		false		            6           Q.  But it is a breakout that the TCFC controller				false

		6120						LN		236		7		false		            7      gave you of the cost of water and contract labor and				false

		6121						LN		236		8		false		            8      other expenses for CWC?				false

		6122						LN		236		9		false		            9           A.  For the first nine months of this year.				false

		6123						LN		236		10		false		           10           Q.  Okay.  And did you have any reason to doubt				false

		6124						LN		236		11		false		           11      that those are carried actually on the books of TCFC?				false

		6125						LN		236		12		false		           12           A.  I don't know how they're carried on the books.				false

		6126						LN		236		13		false		           13           Q.  So you don't even know if they're separate				false

		6127						LN		236		14		false		           14      books?				false

		6128						LN		236		15		false		           15           A.  There are separate books.  We have separate				false

		6129						LN		236		16		false		           16      books for Community Water Company.  So that's what I				false

		6130						LN		236		17		false		           17      asked for was the basic cash position of Community Water				false

		6131						LN		236		18		false		           18      Company for the first nine months of this year.				false

		6132						LN		236		19		false		           19           Q.  And this was printed out?				false

		6133						LN		236		20		false		           20           A.  That's right.				false

		6134						LN		236		21		false		           21           Q.  Going to Exhibit 1, I think I understand the				false

		6135						LN		236		22		false		           22      first one.  Is that Stacy Wilson's salary?				false

		6136						LN		236		23		false		           23           A.  Correct.				false

		6137						LN		236		24		false		           24           Q.  And how did you get to the percent --				false

		6138						LN		236		25		false		           25      33 percent?  Is that the time you think she devoted to				false

		6139						PG		237		0		false		page 237				false

		6140						LN		237		1		false		            1      Community Water?				false

		6141						LN		237		2		false		            2           A.  I've already given testimony to the fact that I				false

		6142						LN		237		3		false		            3      think that underestimates the time she spent on				false

		6143						LN		237		4		false		            4      Community Water.				false

		6144						LN		237		5		false		            5           Q.  But that's time for Community Water, not the				false

		6145						LN		237		6		false		            6      other way around?				false

		6146						LN		237		7		false		            7           Never mind.  You think that -- let me back up.				false

		6147						LN		237		8		false		            8      She's an employee of TCFC; correct?				false

		6148						LN		237		9		false		            9           A.  Correct.				false

		6149						LN		237		10		false		           10           Q.  And she's paid a salary by TCFC?				false

		6150						LN		237		11		false		           11           A.  That's correct.				false

		6151						LN		237		12		false		           12           Q.  And on this sheet you're telling us that				false

		6152						LN		237		13		false		           13      somebody has estimated 33 percent of her time, which you				false

		6153						LN		237		14		false		           14      think is an underestimation, is devoted to Community				false

		6154						LN		237		15		false		           15      Water?				false

		6155						LN		237		16		false		           16           A.  That's correct.				false

		6156						LN		237		17		false		           17           Q.  Who determined the 33 percent that's on this				false

		6157						LN		237		18		false		           18      exhibit?				false

		6158						LN		237		19		false		           19           A.  It was an estimate.				false

		6159						LN		237		20		false		           20           Q.  By who?				false

		6160						LN		237		21		false		           21           A.  We don't punch a time clock.				false

		6161						LN		237		22		false		           22           Q.  Who made it?				false

		6162						LN		237		23		false		           23           A.  It was made by -- internally inside the				false

		6163						LN		237		24		false		           24      company.				false

		6164						LN		237		25		false		           25           Q.  Do you know?				false

		6165						PG		238		0		false		page 238				false

		6166						LN		238		1		false		            1           A.  It was an estimate.				false

		6167						LN		238		2		false		            2           Q.  Do you know who made it?				false

		6168						LN		238		3		false		            3           A.  It was an estimate.  I don't know who made it.				false

		6169						LN		238		4		false		            4           Q.  You've testified under oath that you think that				false

		6170						LN		238		5		false		            5      estimate is low?				false

		6171						LN		238		6		false		            6           A.  I sit in an office right next to Stacy.  I				false

		6172						LN		238		7		false		            7      observed the amount of time that she spends on the phone				false

		6173						LN		238		8		false		            8      and that she spends on billings, including with you and				false

		6174						LN		238		9		false		            9      other customers, and so that's my estimation.  It is an				false

		6175						LN		238		10		false		           10      underestimate of the time that she spends on Community				false

		6176						LN		238		11		false		           11      Water.				false

		6177						LN		238		12		false		           12           Q.  You missed my point.  I understand that.  But				false

		6178						LN		238		13		false		           13      you haven't told me who came up with the estimate of 33				false

		6179						LN		238		14		false		           14      percent.				false

		6180						LN		238		15		false		           15           A.  I can't tell you that.				false

		6181						LN		238		16		false		           16           Q.  Okay.  You're authenticating this document and				false

		6182						LN		238		17		false		           17      you can't tell us that?				false

		6183						LN		238		18		false		           18           A.  I've said what I have to say.				false

		6184						LN		238		19		false		           19           Q.  Okay.  The next entry seems to be				false

		6185						LN		238		20		false		           20      administrative allocation, 50,000, consistent every				false

		6186						LN		238		21		false		           21      year.  Am I reading that correctly?				false

		6187						LN		238		22		false		           22           A.  You are.				false

		6188						LN		238		23		false		           23           Q.  And you think that's an underestimation also?				false

		6189						LN		238		24		false		           24           A.  This is, I believe, an allocation to accounting				false

		6190						LN		238		25		false		           25      time and other time spent by our other employees on				false

		6191						PG		239		0		false		page 239				false

		6192						LN		239		1		false		            1      Community Water matters.				false

		6193						LN		239		2		false		            2           Q.  Other TCFC employees?				false

		6194						LN		239		3		false		            3           A.  Correct.				false

		6195						LN		239		4		false		            4           Q.  Do you know who decided on $50,000 each year?				false

		6196						LN		239		5		false		            5           A.  Again, it was an estimate by our accounting				false

		6197						LN		239		6		false		            6      department.				false

		6198						LN		239		7		false		            7           Q.  Somebody in the accounting department?				false

		6199						LN		239		8		false		            8           A.  Yes.				false

		6200						LN		239		9		false		            9           Q.  And you don't know who?				false

		6201						LN		239		10		false		           10           A.  Likely Rebecca Christiansen.				false

		6202						LN		239		11		false		           11           Q.  Okay.  I don't understand the burden.  What's				false

		6203						LN		239		12		false		           12      that entry mean?				false

		6204						LN		239		13		false		           13           A.  That would be the insurance and other				false

		6205						LN		239		14		false		           14      incidentals of employment.				false

		6206						LN		239		15		false		           15           Q.  Okay.  So am I reading this correctly then,				false

		6207						LN		239		16		false		           16      that the 50,000, you're assuming that all of those are				false

		6208						LN		239		17		false		           17      salaries and there would be this burden of employment				false

		6209						LN		239		18		false		           18      taxes and things like that on it?				false

		6210						LN		239		19		false		           19           A.  Correct.				false

		6211						LN		239		20		false		           20           Q.  The off-site legal.  I don't understand Omni				false

		6212						LN		239		21		false		           21      10 percent.  What does that mean?				false

		6213						LN		239		22		false		           22           A.  So this is of the amount that we pay to our				false

		6214						LN		239		23		false		           23      in-house counsel, Justin Atwater.  It's a percentage of				false

		6215						LN		239		24		false		           24      our time that's allocated to Community Water.  Again, a				false

		6216						LN		239		25		false		           25      gross underestimate of the time he spends at Community				false

		6217						PG		240		0		false		page 240				false

		6218						LN		240		1		false		            1      Water.				false

		6219						LN		240		2		false		            2           Q.  Where do you get the term, Omni?				false

		6220						LN		240		3		false		            3           A.  That's the name of his company.				false

		6221						LN		240		4		false		            4           MR. SAVAGE:  Okay.  That's all I have.  Thank you,				false

		6222						LN		240		5		false		            5      sir.				false

		6223						LN		240		6		false		            6           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Lange?				false

		6224						LN		240		7		false		            7           MR. LANGE:  I have no questions.				false

		6225						LN		240		8		false		            8           MS. MILLER:  And I have no questions either.  Thank				false

		6226						LN		240		9		false		            9      you.				false

		6227						LN		240		10		false		           10           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Anything else from you,				false

		6228						LN		240		11		false		           11      Mr. Atwater?				false

		6229						LN		240		12		false		           12           MR. ATWATER:  No.				false

		6230						LN		240		13		false		           13           THE HEARING OFFICER:  You're excused.				false

		6231						LN		240		14		false		           14      Mr. Lange.				false

		6232						LN		240		15		false		           15           THE WITNESS:  Thank you very much for your time.  I				false

		6233						LN		240		16		false		           16      appreciate it.				false

		6234						LN		240		17		false		           17           THE HEARING OFFICER:  So returning to our regularly				false

		6235						LN		240		18		false		           18      scheduled hearing.				false

		6236						LN		240		19		false		           19           Ms. Schmid would you like to recall your witness?				false

		6237						LN		240		20		false		           20           MS. SCHMID:  Yes, I would please.  Mr. Smith could				false

		6238						LN		240		21		false		           21      you please take the witness stand again.				false

		6239						LN		240		22		false		           22           (Mr. Smith returns to the witness stand.)				false

		6240						LN		240		23		false		           23           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Smith, you're still under				false

		6241						LN		240		24		false		           24      oath.				false

		6242						LN		240		25		false		           25           THE WITNESS:  Okay.				false

		6243						PG		241		0		false		page 241				false

		6244						LN		241		1		false		            1           THE HEARING OFFICER:  In terms of our examination,				false

		6245						LN		241		2		false		            2      where were we?				false

		6246						LN		241		3		false		            3           MR. ATWATER:  I believe I had completed.				false

		6247						LN		241		4		false		            4           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Mr. Savage?				false

		6248						LN		241		5		false		            5           MR. SAVAGE:  I have no questions.				false

		6249						LN		241		6		false		            6           MR. LANGE:  I have no questions.				false

		6250						LN		241		7		false		            7           MS. MILLER:  I have no questions either.  Thank				false

		6251						LN		241		8		false		            8      you.				false

		6252						LN		241		9		false		            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Schmid?				false

		6253						LN		241		10		false		           10           MS. SCHMID:  I have some redirect questions, but I				false

		6254						LN		241		11		false		           11      would like to reserve them, if I may, until after you				false

		6255						LN		241		12		false		           12      have asked yours.				false

		6256						LN		241		13		false		           13           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I don't have any.				false

		6257						LN		241		14		false		           14           MS. SCHMID:  Okay.				false

		6258						LN		241		15		false		           15           Q.  This will be very brief.  So Mr. Smith, do you				false

		6259						LN		241		16		false		           16      recall Mr. Atwater's line of questions about what the				false

		6260						LN		241		17		false		           17      Division did and did not do and about questions the				false

		6261						LN		241		18		false		           18      Division did not ask of the company?				false

		6262						LN		241		19		false		           19           A.  Yes.				false

		6263						LN		241		20		false		           20           Q.  Do you understand that the purpose of today's				false

		6264						LN		241		21		false		           21      hearing is to determine whether a regulated public				false

		6265						LN		241		22		false		           22      utility should receive the requested interim rate				false

		6266						LN		241		23		false		           23      increase?				false

		6267						LN		241		24		false		           24           A.  Yes.				false

		6268						LN		241		25		false		           25           Q.  Do you understand that the interim rate process				false

		6269						PG		242		0		false		page 242				false

		6270						LN		242		1		false		            1      by its nature is on a truncated and expedited time				false

		6271						LN		242		2		false		            2      schedule?				false

		6272						LN		242		3		false		            3           A.  Yes.				false

		6273						LN		242		4		false		            4           Q.  Do you understand that the process for the				false

		6274						LN		242		5		false		            5      interim rate hearing is much less than the full 240 days				false

		6275						LN		242		6		false		            6      awarded the time to determine final rates and for the				false

		6276						LN		242		7		false		            7      commission to make its decision?				false

		6277						LN		242		8		false		            8           A.  Yes.				false

		6278						LN		242		9		false		            9           Q.  Do you understand that the words prima facie				false

		6279						LN		242		10		false		           10      mean -- translated from the Latin -- at first look?				false

		6280						LN		242		11		false		           11           A.  Yes.				false

		6281						LN		242		12		false		           12           Q.  Do you understand that the company has the				false

		6282						LN		242		13		false		           13      burden of proof to show that the rates requested				false

		6283						LN		242		14		false		           14      including the interim rate are appropriate?				false

		6284						LN		242		15		false		           15           A.  Yes.				false

		6285						LN		242		16		false		           16           Q.  Do you understand that it is not the				false

		6286						LN		242		17		false		           17      Divisions's duty to determine what information the				false

		6287						LN		242		18		false		           18      company submits with its application, but it is the				false

		6288						LN		242		19		false		           19      company's duty to prepare a full and complete				false

		6289						LN		242		20		false		           20      application?				false

		6290						LN		242		21		false		           21           A.  Yes.				false

		6291						LN		242		22		false		           22           Q.  So based on that, is it still your testimony				false

		6292						LN		242		23		false		           23      today that the company has failed to prove, using the				false

		6293						LN		242		24		false		           24      prima facie standard on its face, that its interim rate				false

		6294						LN		242		25		false		           25      request is reasonable and should be granted?				false

		6295						PG		243		0		false		page 243				false

		6296						LN		243		1		false		            1           A.  I'm sorry.  Say that again.				false

		6297						LN		243		2		false		            2           Q.  Okay.  I was going quite quickly.  Is it your				false

		6298						LN		243		3		false		            3      testimony today that the company has failed to prove				false

		6299						LN		243		4		false		            4      that the interim rate increase it requested has not been				false

		6300						LN		243		5		false		            5      proven by the evidence the company has submitted?				false

		6301						LN		243		6		false		            6           A.  Yes.				false

		6302						LN		243		7		false		            7           MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  Those are all my redirect				false

		6303						LN		243		8		false		            8      questions.				false

		6304						LN		243		9		false		            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Smith.				false

		6305						LN		243		10		false		           10           MS. SCHMID:  Mr. Smith also has an obligation.				false

		6306						LN		243		11		false		           11      Could he please be excused for the remainder of the				false

		6307						LN		243		12		false		           12      hearing?  He can stay if necessary, but if he could be				false

		6308						LN		243		13		false		           13      excused it would be appreciated.				false

		6309						LN		243		14		false		           14           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I have no objection to his				false

		6310						LN		243		15		false		           15      departure.  Does anyone else?				false

		6311						LN		243		16		false		           16           MR. ATWATER:  No objection.				false

		6312						LN		243		17		false		           17           MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.				false

		6313						LN		243		18		false		           18           MR. LANGE:  No objection.				false

		6314						LN		243		19		false		           19           MS. MILLER:  No objection.				false

		6315						LN		243		20		false		           20           MS. SCHMID:  The Division has nothing further.				false

		6316						LN		243		21		false		           21      Thank you.				false

		6317						LN		243		22		false		           22           THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Mr. Savage.				false

		6318						LN		243		23		false		           23           MR. SAVAGE:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		6319						LN		243		24		false		           24           (E. Scott Savage is sworn in as a witness.)				false

		6320						LN		243		25		false		           25           THE WITNESS:  I have a couple of corrections in my				false

		6321						PG		244		0		false		page 244				false

		6322						LN		244		1		false		            1      alternative proposal and direct testimony, and it seems				false

		6323						LN		244		2		false		            2      like my calculator wasn't working very well, but on page				false

		6324						LN		244		3		false		            3      five, paragraph 12, I talked about a fine imposed in the				false

		6325						LN		244		4		false		            4      second paragraph of $600.  It's actually $1500.  And				false

		6326						LN		244		5		false		            5      then starting on page 12 where I present my alternative				false

		6327						LN		244		6		false		            6      proposal for retainment of a loan for the failed tank, I				false

		6328						LN		244		7		false		            7      was using the $50 per month that was proposed in the				false

		6329						LN		244		8		false		            8      meetings that I went to.  And it was for 18 months				false

		6330						LN		244		9		false		            9      instead of 12.  And that generates $450,000.  And $50				false

		6331						LN		244		10		false		           10      per month for 12 months would not generate the money				false

		6332						LN		244		11		false		           11      that is estimated to be the cost of replacing the tank.				false

		6333						LN		244		12		false		           12      If you want it for 12 months, it would take $90 a month				false

		6334						LN		244		13		false		           13      for the 500 users for 12 months, or $60 a month for 18				false

		6335						LN		244		14		false		           14      months to generate enough money to pay the current price				false

		6336						LN		244		15		false		           15      for the tank.  I move for the admission into evidence of				false

		6337						LN		244		16		false		           16      my alternative proposal and sworn direct testimony at				false

		6338						LN		244		17		false		           17      this time.				false

		6339						LN		244		18		false		           18           MS. SCHMID:  No objection.				false

		6340						LN		244		19		false		           19           MR. ATWATER:  So the applicant previously objected				false

		6341						LN		244		20		false		           20      and the motion was discussed.  It renews its objections				false

		6342						LN		244		21		false		           21      set forth in that motion -- excuse me -- does not renew				false

		6343						LN		244		22		false		           22      the motion, renews the objection.				false

		6344						LN		244		23		false		           23           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Overruled.  Thank you.				false

		6345						LN		244		24		false		           24      They're admitted.				false

		6346						LN		244		25		false		           25           THE WITNESS:  The last thing I want to mention,				false

		6347						PG		245		0		false		page 245				false

		6348						LN		245		1		false		            1      it's kind of been lost in the interesting journey we've				false

		6349						LN		245		2		false		            2      had in finding out the fact that TCFC is in fact CWC.				false

		6350						LN		245		3		false		            3      But one of the things I want to make sure, if this -- if				false

		6351						LN		245		4		false		            4      the Public Service Commission were to impose an interim				false

		6352						LN		245		5		false		            5      rate for the general capital improvements, the proposal				false

		6353						LN		245		6		false		            6      for how the HOAs are to be billed and how that money is				false

		6354						LN		245		7		false		            7      to be collected is patently unfair.				false

		6355						LN		245		8		false		            8           As I read their proposal, they would send one bill,				false

		6356						LN		245		9		false		            9      for example, to Plat B&D for all of the water usage of				false

		6357						LN		245		10		false		           10      all 30 homeowners, and all of the water usage for the				false

		6358						LN		245		11		false		           11      irrigation.  And then it would be up to Plat B&D, the				false

		6359						LN		245		12		false		           12      HOA, to separately bill the members, the homeowners in				false

		6360						LN		245		13		false		           13      its organization, and collect that money so that it				false

		6361						LN		245		14		false		           14      could then pay the monthly bill.  That's transferring,				false

		6362						LN		245		15		false		           15      of course, the accounting collection and administrative				false

		6363						LN		245		16		false		           16      costs from the utility to the customers, and would place				false

		6364						LN		245		17		false		           17      them at a disadvantage, vis a vis, the individual				false

		6365						LN		245		18		false		           18      homeowners, and it leaves open the question as to what				false

		6366						LN		245		19		false		           19      happens if one of my 30 homeowners doesn't pay their				false

		6367						LN		245		20		false		           20      water bill.  Does that mean all 30 get their water shut				false

		6368						LN		245		21		false		           21      off.				false

		6369						LN		245		22		false		           22           It should be -- it should be a collective allocated				false

		6370						LN		245		23		false		           23      and the tiers should all be done the way it is presently				false

		6371						LN		245		24		false		           24      being done for the operational expense rate increase,				false

		6372						LN		245		25		false		           25      which is the 30 individual homeowners are billed				false

		6373						PG		246		0		false		page 246				false

		6374						LN		246		1		false		            1      separately for their own separate use by the utility.				false

		6375						LN		246		2		false		            2      And then 1/30th of the irrigation water, which goes				false

		6376						LN		246		3		false		            3      through two separate meters, not the individual				false

		6377						LN		246		4		false		            4      homeowners' individual meters, but there is two separate				false

		6378						LN		246		5		false		            5      meters for all of the sprinkling water for the whole				false

		6379						LN		246		6		false		            6      area.				false

		6380						LN		246		7		false		            7           The present rate requires that the homeowners				false

		6381						LN		246		8		false		            8      association not be billed for that water, but 1/30th of				false

		6382						LN		246		9		false		            9      the amount of that water isn't added to the bill of each				false

		6383						LN		246		10		false		           10      of the individual homeowners.  And for consistency, the				false

		6384						LN		246		11		false		           11      methodology should be the same for the operational rate				false

		6385						LN		246		12		false		           12      that we have in place and any rate for capital				false

		6386						LN		246		13		false		           13      improvements.				false

		6387						LN		246		14		false		           14           So with that additional clarification of what I've				false

		6388						LN		246		15		false		           15      stated, I would also like to state that I'm in complete				false

		6389						LN		246		16		false		           16      agreement with Mr. Duncan's testimony.  I recognize the				false

		6390						LN		246		17		false		           17      inter-generational inequity of not paying off a loan for				false

		6391						LN		246		18		false		           18      this tank over the life of the tank.  I think that is				false

		6392						LN		246		19		false		           19      the proper way to do it.				false

		6393						LN		246		20		false		           20           I have tried to assist Mr. White who left, and CWC				false

		6394						LN		246		21		false		           21      and TCFC, by supporting and offering an alternative plan				false

		6395						LN		246		22		false		           22      that is very similar to the one they were proposing to				false

		6396						LN		246		23		false		           23      the users or the customers of a $60 a month short-term				false

		6397						LN		246		24		false		           24      temporary rate increase for 18 months, or a $90 rate				false

		6398						LN		246		25		false		           25      increase for 12 months to repay the loan, to make it				false

		6399						PG		247		0		false		page 247				false

		6400						LN		247		1		false		            1      easier for CWC to get money from an outside bank, a				false

		6401						LN		247		2		false		            2      lending institution, or its parent, to be able to				false

		6402						LN		247		3		false		            3      immediately get funds available to get this tank				false

		6403						LN		247		4		false		            4      replaced.  That being said I open myself up to				false

		6404						LN		247		5		false		            5      cross-examination if anybody has any.				false

		6405						LN		247		6		false		            6           THE HEARING OFFICER:  We'll start with Mr.				false

		6406						LN		247		7		false		            7      Atwater.				false

		6407						LN		247		8		false		            8           MR. ATWATER:				false

		6408						LN		247		9		false		            9           Q.  Thank you.  I think I just have one.				false

		6409						LN		247		10		false		           10           A.  Okay.				false

		6410						LN		247		11		false		           11           Q.  So you stated that you support Mr. Duncan's				false

		6411						LN		247		12		false		           12      testimony and --				false

		6412						LN		247		13		false		           13           A.  No, I said I agree with his overall general				false

		6413						LN		247		14		false		           14      statement that there is an inter-generational problem if				false

		6414						LN		247		15		false		           15      a capital improvement is not repaid over the life of the				false

		6415						LN		247		16		false		           16      capital improvement.  If we repay -- we pay for this				false

		6416						LN		247		17		false		           17      tank in 18 months, being the present users, that means				false

		6417						LN		247		18		false		           18      I'm giving a benefit to some future homeowner that they				false

		6418						LN		247		19		false		           19      won't have to pay for it.  And I recognize that.  And I				false

		6419						LN		247		20		false		           20      think he's correct in his typical methodology.				false

		6420						LN		247		21		false		           21           Q.  But you still stand by your alternate proposal				false

		6421						LN		247		22		false		           22      as revised in your testimony today?				false

		6422						LN		247		23		false		           23           A.  Yes.				false

		6423						LN		247		24		false		           24           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.				false

		6424						LN		247		25		false		           25           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Anything else?				false

		6425						PG		248		0		false		page 248				false

		6426						LN		248		1		false		            1           MR. ATWATER:  No.				false

		6427						LN		248		2		false		            2           MS. SCHMID:  No questions.				false

		6428						LN		248		3		false		            3           MR. LANGE:  No questions.				false

		6429						LN		248		4		false		            4           MS. MILLER:  No questions.				false

		6430						LN		248		5		false		            5           MR. SAVAGE:  Any questions, Your Honor?				false

		6431						LN		248		6		false		            6           THE HEARING OFFICER:  No.  Thank you, Mr. Savage.				false

		6432						LN		248		7		false		            7           THE WITNESS:  Okay.				false

		6433						LN		248		8		false		            8           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Lange.				false

		6434						LN		248		9		false		            9           (Terry Lange is sworn in as a witness.)				false

		6435						LN		248		10		false		           10           MR. LANGE:  So I have testimony filed and posted on				false

		6436						LN		248		11		false		           11      the docket, and I just want to basically go over that				false

		6437						LN		248		12		false		           12      and have that be admitted along with the testimony of				false

		6438						LN		248		13		false		           13      Fran Amendola on behalf of Red Pine.  He's not here now.				false

		6439						LN		248		14		false		           14      I want to have his testimony admitted also.  So I move				false

		6440						LN		248		15		false		           15      to have that done.				false

		6441						LN		248		16		false		           16           MR. ATWATER:  So I object -- sorry Terry.  So I				false

		6442						LN		248		17		false		           17      renew my objection with respect to the provisions of				false

		6443						LN		248		18		false		           18      Mr. Fran Amendola's testimony as discussed earlier.				false

		6444						LN		248		19		false		           19           MS. SCHMID:  And I will object to the admission of				false

		6445						LN		248		20		false		           20      Mr. Amendola's testimony since he is not present to be				false

		6446						LN		248		21		false		           21      cross-examined.				false

		6447						LN		248		22		false		           22           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yeah.  That's a reasonable				false

		6448						LN		248		23		false		           23      objection.  To the extent that Mr. Atwater is reserving				false

		6449						LN		248		24		false		           24      his objection with respect to Mr. Lange's filed				false

		6450						LN		248		25		false		           25      testimony, it's overruled.  But we can't admit				false

		6451						PG		249		0		false		page 249				false

		6452						LN		249		1		false		            1      Mr. Amendola's testimony as sworn evidence here in this				false

		6453						LN		249		2		false		            2      hearing today without him being here to attest to its				false

		6454						LN		249		3		false		            3      voracity or being subject to cross-examination.				false

		6455						LN		249		4		false		            4           THE WITNESS:  Understood.  Okay.  So in my				false

		6456						LN		249		5		false		            5      testimony I talk about a couple of different things				false

		6457						LN		249		6		false		            6      which Scott Savage has mentioned.  So Red Pine, we're				false

		6458						LN		249		7		false		            7      concerned about the practice of taking -- at Red Pine,				false

		6459						LN		249		8		false		            8      60 currently individually metered owners and putting out				false

		6460						LN		249		9		false		            9      one single collect bill for that.  We don't think that's				false

		6461						LN		249		10		false		           10      right.  There is no way to really collect that money				false

		6462						LN		249		11		false		           11      from the HOA really legally from it's CC&Rs.  The HOA				false

		6463						LN		249		12		false		           12      has no legal authority to collect that money as such,				false

		6464						LN		249		13		false		           13      nor does it have the legal authority to collect property				false

		6465						LN		249		14		false		           14      taxes on behalf of Summit County, for instance.  So it's				false

		6466						LN		249		15		false		           15      very similar to that.				false

		6467						LN		249		16		false		           16           So we don't agree with this collective billing on				false

		6468						LN		249		17		false		           17      that.				false

		6469						LN		249		18		false		           18           As far as the tank and the separation of the tank				false

		6470						LN		249		19		false		           19      from the general rate increase, we're in favor of having				false

		6471						LN		249		20		false		           20      a shortened time frame.  We realize, of course, there				false

		6472						LN		249		21		false		           21      isn't an equity in that.  But we're going to accept that				false

		6473						LN		249		22		false		           22      because right now my house is on fire so-to-speak and,				false

		6474						LN		249		23		false		           23      you know, I want water to put the flames out.  So just				false

		6475						LN		249		24		false		           24      to kind of put that in very simple terms, so a shortened				false

		6476						LN		249		25		false		           25      time frame that the commission would see fit to				false

		6477						PG		250		0		false		page 250				false

		6478						LN		250		1		false		            1      authorize, whether it be 12 months, 18 months maybe, but				false

		6479						LN		250		2		false		            2      the point here is to collect money up front to get this				false

		6480						LN		250		3		false		            3      tank put in and do so on a very fast basis.  We really				false

		6481						LN		250		4		false		            4      can't afford to go through another irrigation season				false

		6482						LN		250		5		false		            5      without irrigating.  It's affecting property values.				false

		6483						LN		250		6		false		            6      It's affecting sales.  It's just affecting the mindset				false

		6484						LN		250		7		false		            7      of the people who live there.  It's very difficult to				false

		6485						LN		250		8		false		            8      deal with that.  And why prolong that for another season				false

		6486						LN		250		9		false		            9      and bring it into the year 2019 if we could cure that				false

		6487						LN		250		10		false		           10      early in the year 2018.				false

		6488						LN		250		11		false		           11           So it's just a matter of taking the numbers for				false

		6489						LN		250		12		false		           12      that tank and dividing it by the customers, and not the				false

		6490						LN		250		13		false		           13      ERUs, and assessing that over an appropriate time frame.				false

		6491						LN		250		14		false		           14           Of course I recognize that, you know, the				false

		6492						LN		250		15		false		           15      Divisions's wanting to spread that cost out because it's				false

		6493						LN		250		16		false		           16      very equal to do that over the life of the product.  And				false

		6494						LN		250		17		false		           17      I fully understand that, but in this case I think the				false

		6495						LN		250		18		false		           18      commission should weigh in on the immediate needs, you				false

		6496						LN		250		19		false		           19      know, right now, here and now, and to come up with				false

		6497						LN		250		20		false		           20      something there that's going to make this tank happen				false

		6498						LN		250		21		false		           21      sooner than later.				false

		6499						LN		250		22		false		           22           I'm talking literally months that this thing -- if				false

		6500						LN		250		23		false		           23      it could be shortened up by 5, 6, 7, 8 months, it should				false

		6501						LN		250		24		false		           24      be done that way.  It's very, very important and I can't				false

		6502						LN		250		25		false		           25      stress that enough.  But that's my testimony.				false

		6503						PG		251		0		false		page 251				false

		6504						LN		251		1		false		            1           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Atwater, any cross?				false

		6505						LN		251		2		false		            2           MR. ATWATER:  One question I should have asked of				false

		6506						LN		251		3		false		            3      Mr. Savage, but I think it will be helpful for you to				false

		6507						LN		251		4		false		            4      provide.				false

		6508						LN		251		5		false		            5           You mentioned in your testimony that you are the				false

		6509						LN		251		6		false		            6      president of the Red Pine HOA; is that correct?				false

		6510						LN		251		7		false		            7           A.  That's correct.				false

		6511						LN		251		8		false		            8           Q.  And what percentage of the customer base does				false

		6512						LN		251		9		false		            9      Red Pine HOA represent?				false

		6513						LN		251		10		false		           10           A.  So let me give you a little overall oversight				false

		6514						LN		251		11		false		           11      here of the entire campus as such.  So Red Pine consists				false

		6515						LN		251		12		false		           12      of 200 chalets, one bedroom and two bedrooms.  It				false

		6516						LN		251		13		false		           13      consists of 60 townhomes, which happen to be				false

		6517						LN		251		14		false		           14      individually metered, whereas the chalets are a shared				false

		6518						LN		251		15		false		           15      meter.  And there is also an independent nonprofit				false

		6519						LN		251		16		false		           16      organization called the Red Pine Clubhouse as such which				false

		6520						LN		251		17		false		           17      functions and serves the needs of all 260 owners.				false

		6521						LN		251		18		false		           18           So I am the president of the Red Pine Chalets.  I				false

		6522						LN		251		19		false		           19      have the authorization for the townhomes to represent				false

		6523						LN		251		20		false		           20      them.  They have their own HOA as such.  And so they				false

		6524						LN		251		21		false		           21      have their own, I guess, budgets.  Their own dues				false

		6525						LN		251		22		false		           22      collection based upon their needs.  And the clubhouse				false

		6526						LN		251		23		false		           23      has its own dues based upon its needs.  And collectively				false

		6527						LN		251		24		false		           24      together we contribute on a proportional basis to the				false

		6528						LN		251		25		false		           25      needs of the rec center and -- the recreation center and				false

		6529						PG		252		0		false		page 252				false

		6530						LN		252		1		false		            1      what its needs are.  So hopefully that explains.				false

		6531						LN		252		2		false		            2           Q.  So in the aggregate you described, that				false

		6532						LN		252		3		false		            3      represents what percentage of the customer base?  Is it				false

		6533						LN		252		4		false		            4      greater than 50?  So 260 of 500?				false

		6534						LN		252		5		false		            5           A.  I see what you're saying.  So we have 260 --				false

		6535						LN		252		6		false		            6      let me figure that out.				false

		6536						LN		252		7		false		            7           MR. SAVAGE:  More than 50.				false

		6537						LN		252		8		false		            8           THE WITNESS:  Right.  A little bit more.  503.				false

		6538						LN		252		9		false		            9           MR. ATWATER:				false

		6539						LN		252		10		false		           10           Q.  503.				false

		6540						LN		252		11		false		           11           A.  It's 51.886.				false

		6541						LN		252		12		false		           12           Q.  And is your testimony that's provided today and				false

		6542						LN		252		13		false		           13      written that has been submitted, on behalf of that				false

		6543						LN		252		14		false		           14      51 percent?				false

		6544						LN		252		15		false		           15           A.  That's correct.				false

		6545						LN		252		16		false		           16           MR. ATWATER:  Okay.  Thank you.				false

		6546						LN		252		17		false		           17           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Schmid?				false

		6547						LN		252		18		false		           18           MS. SCHMID:  No questions.				false

		6548						LN		252		19		false		           19           MR. SAVAGE:  No questions.				false

		6549						LN		252		20		false		           20           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Miller?				false

		6550						LN		252		21		false		           21           MS. MILLER:  I do have one question.  I probably				false

		6551						LN		252		22		false		           22      should have asked the same question of Mr. Savage.				false

		6552						LN		252		23		false		           23           Q.  Would it be correct to state that when				false

		6553						LN		252		24		false		           24      customers receive their own monthly bill, that's a more				false

		6554						LN		252		25		false		           25      effective tool to promote conservation than to have just				false

		6555						PG		253		0		false		page 253				false

		6556						LN		253		1		false		            1      a lump sum provided on their HOA bill?				false

		6557						LN		253		2		false		            2           A.  I think as an individual owner sees his own				false

		6558						LN		253		3		false		            3      bill and decides whether or not it's within his				false

		6559						LN		253		4		false		            4      parameters to pay it, if he's happy with it or if he				false

		6560						LN		253		5		false		            5      should do something to conserve water so he would pay				false

		6561						LN		253		6		false		            6      less so-to-speak.  It's easier to do it on the				false

		6562						LN		253		7		false		            7      individual basis than it is on a collective because when				false

		6563						LN		253		8		false		            8      you have a collective as such, it's been my experience				false

		6564						LN		253		9		false		            9      that you tend to ignore those little subtleties of what				false

		6565						LN		253		10		false		           10      can be done.  And you tend to lose the -- what shall I				false

		6566						LN		253		11		false		           11      say -- the ability to manage that.  So you start to lose				false

		6567						LN		253		12		false		           12      some interest in -- you just wind up accepting whatever				false

		6568						LN		253		13		false		           13      happens.  And so anyhow, it's kind of a roundabout				false

		6569						LN		253		14		false		           14      answer, but I believe that I have answered your				false

		6570						LN		253		15		false		           15      question.				false

		6571						LN		253		16		false		           16           Q.  Yeah, you did.  I would think that that would				false

		6572						LN		253		17		false		           17      be a good tool for the company to promote rather than				false

		6573						LN		253		18		false		           18      take it away is my point I guess.  You don't want to				false

		6574						LN		253		19		false		           19      combine everybody's bill?				false

		6575						LN		253		20		false		           20           A.  Well, if I may also suggest this.  I looked at				false

		6576						LN		253		21		false		           21      some numbers for the Red Pine Townhomes, and the usage				false

		6577						LN		253		22		false		           22      for 2016, and it ranges from zero up to an				false

		6578						LN		253		23		false		           23      astronomically large number.  And from looking at a				false

		6579						LN		253		24		false		           24      median standpoint or an arithmetic means standpoint,				false

		6580						LN		253		25		false		           25      you've got one half of the customer base supporting the				false

		6581						PG		254		0		false		page 254				false

		6582						LN		254		1		false		            1      additional water used by the second half of the customer				false

		6583						LN		254		2		false		            2      base.  And is that fair and equitable?  I don't really				false

		6584						LN		254		3		false		            3      think so.				false

		6585						LN		254		4		false		            4           If I was only using $10,000 gallons a year, and now				false

		6586						LN		254		5		false		            5      I'm expected to subsidize someone who is using				false

		6587						LN		254		6		false		            6      275 gallons a year.  Because it's -- according to a				false

		6588						LN		254		7		false		            7      single bill, you're going to take the entire bill and				false

		6589						LN		254		8		false		            8      divide it by 60 people -- and this is as far as demand				false

		6590						LN		254		9		false		            9      goes.  Everybody right now has their own base rate.  But				false

		6591						LN		254		10		false		           10      as far as demand goes, if you're not using water why pay				false

		6592						LN		254		11		false		           11      for somebody else who is using their own water.  That's				false

		6593						LN		254		12		false		           12      my take.				false

		6594						LN		254		13		false		           13           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Lange.  One				false

		6595						LN		254		14		false		           14      question from me.  You mentioned your home being on				false

		6596						LN		254		15		false		           15      fire.  I interpret that as meaning that the landscaping				false

		6597						LN		254		16		false		           16      around your chalet -- is it -- that you live in?				false

		6598						LN		254		17		false		           17           THE WITNESS:  Well, yeah.  It's pretty desolate.				false

		6599						LN		254		18		false		           18      And more to point out, I have an immediate need right				false

		6600						LN		254		19		false		           19      here right now.  Walking barefoot on glass would also be				false

		6601						LN		254		20		false		           20      a good cause to have shoes, for instance.				false

		6602						LN		254		21		false		           21           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Just so I understand the				false

		6603						LN		254		22		false		           22      lifestyle impact that the customers are experiencing,				false

		6604						LN		254		23		false		           23      it's primarily with respect to their inability to				false

		6605						LN		254		24		false		           24      irrigate their landscaping?				false

		6606						LN		254		25		false		           25           THE WITNESS:  That's correct.  And we've had some				false

		6607						PG		255		0		false		page 255				false

		6608						LN		255		1		false		            1      reports back from very dissatisfied people who were				false

		6609						LN		255		2		false		            2      under contract to sell their units, and when a				false

		6610						LN		255		3		false		            3      perspective buyer now learns that, hey, there is no				false

		6611						LN		255		4		false		            4      water going on and it's all up in the air, and it's				false

		6612						LN		255		5		false		            5      going to be unsettled for how long, and rates are going				false

		6613						LN		255		6		false		            6      to go up, they pull out of the deal.  And that causes				false

		6614						LN		255		7		false		            7      harm too.				false

		6615						LN		255		8		false		            8           MR. SAVAGE:  May I also address that because there				false

		6616						LN		255		9		false		            9      is another aspect.  There is a significant fire hazard.				false

		6617						LN		255		10		false		           10      We have 20 acres of weeds that the county has set aside				false

		6618						LN		255		11		false		           11      as permanent open space.  It's not mowed.  And those				false

		6619						LN		255		12		false		           12      weeds go right up to the edge of our property which used				false

		6620						LN		255		13		false		           13      to be green and verdant.  And now we have brown tinder				false

		6621						LN		255		14		false		           14      between the weeds and the field behind us and our				false

		6622						LN		255		15		false		           15      houses.  And we have dry trees.  So there is a distinct				false

		6623						LN		255		16		false		           16      fire hazard being posed as well as the aesthetics.				false

		6624						LN		255		17		false		           17           And the fact we're losing money.  We have had trees				false

		6625						LN		255		18		false		           18      killed because of this.  Fortunately none of our big				false

		6626						LN		255		19		false		           19      ones have died yet, but we have lost some trees as well				false

		6627						LN		255		20		false		           20      as the lawn being completely dry.				false

		6628						LN		255		21		false		           21           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Savage.  To				false

		6629						LN		255		22		false		           22      preserve the procedural integrity, I have nothing else				false

		6630						LN		255		23		false		           23      for Mr. Lange.				false

		6631						LN		255		24		false		           24           Does anyone else have anything for Mr. Lange?				false

		6632						LN		255		25		false		           25           MR. ATWATER:  No.				false

		6633						PG		256		0		false		page 256				false

		6634						LN		256		1		false		            1           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'll go ahead and let				false

		6635						LN		256		2		false		            2      Mr. Savage's statement just now stand in his capacity as				false

		6636						LN		256		3		false		            3      a witness today.  Anybody else have any questions?				false

		6637						LN		256		4		false		            4           MS. SCHMID:  No questions.				false

		6638						LN		256		5		false		            5           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Miller.				false

		6639						LN		256		6		false		            6           (Leanne Miller is sworn in as a witness.)				false

		6640						LN		256		7		false		            7           MR. ATWATER:  Your Honor, may I restate my				false

		6641						LN		256		8		false		            8      objection from earlier testimony regarding the testimony				false

		6642						LN		256		9		false		            9      of Ms. Leanne Miller?				false

		6643						LN		256		10		false		           10           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes.				false

		6644						LN		256		11		false		           11           THE WITNESS:  Okay.  So I do request that my				false

		6645						LN		256		12		false		           12      testimony be admitted into evidence and I do not have				false

		6646						LN		256		13		false		           13      any additional comments to add.				false

		6647						LN		256		14		false		           14           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any other objections?				false

		6648						LN		256		15		false		           15           MS. SCHMID:  I would just like to clarify that Ms.				false

		6649						LN		256		16		false		           16      Miller prepared the testimony and that she's swearing to				false

		6650						LN		256		17		false		           17      it as her testimony here today.				false

		6651						LN		256		18		false		           18           THE WITNESS:  Yes, I did prepare this testimony,				false

		6652						LN		256		19		false		           19      and as president of the Hidden Creek HOA, I'm submitting				false

		6653						LN		256		20		false		           20      it on their behalf.				false

		6654						LN		256		21		false		           21           MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  With that I have no				false

		6655						LN		256		22		false		           22      objection.				false

		6656						LN		256		23		false		           23           MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.				false

		6657						LN		256		24		false		           24           MR. LANGE:  No objections.				false

		6658						LN		256		25		false		           25           THE HEARING OFFICER:  It's admitted.  Thank you.				false
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		6660						LN		257		1		false		            1      Sorry.  Ms. Miller, did you wish to make any prepared				false

		6661						LN		257		2		false		            2      statement or make any remarks?				false

		6662						LN		257		3		false		            3           THE WITNESS:  No, I do not.				false

		6663						LN		257		4		false		            4           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Anyone have any cross-				false

		6664						LN		257		5		false		            5      examination for Ms. Miller?				false
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		6666						LN		257		7		false		            7           Q.  So I have the same question I had for Terry				false

		6667						LN		257		8		false		            8      which is, you are the president of the Hidden Creek HOA?				false
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		6669						LN		257		10		false		           10           Q.  And what percentage of the customer pool does				false

		6670						LN		257		11		false		           11      Hidden Creek represent on an approximate basis?				false

		6671						LN		257		12		false		           12           A.  We have 130 units so that's about 26 percent of				false

		6672						LN		257		13		false		           13      the 503 customers.				false

		6673						LN		257		14		false		           14           Q.  And your testimony today is on behalf of a				false

		6674						LN		257		15		false		           15      representative of that 26 percent?				false

		6675						LN		257		16		false		           16           A.  That's correct.				false

		6676						LN		257		17		false		           17           Q.  Thank you.				false

		6677						LN		257		18		false		           18           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Schmid?				false

		6678						LN		257		19		false		           19           MS. SCHMID:  No questions.				false

		6679						LN		257		20		false		           20           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Savage?				false

		6680						LN		257		21		false		           21           MR. SAVAGE:  No questions.				false

		6681						LN		257		22		false		           22           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Lange?				false

		6682						LN		257		23		false		           23           MR. LANGE:  No questions.				false

		6683						LN		257		24		false		           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  And I don't have anything.				false

		6684						LN		257		25		false		           25      Thank you, Ms. Miller.				false
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		6686						LN		258		1		false		            1           I believe that concludes the presentation of the				false

		6687						LN		258		2		false		            2      evidence.  There has been some expressed interest in				false

		6688						LN		258		3		false		            3      having some time for concluding argument.  Mr. Atwater,				false

		6689						LN		258		4		false		            4      do you know about how many minutes you'll require for				false

		6690						LN		258		5		false		            5      that?				false

		6691						LN		258		6		false		            6           MR. ATWATER:  Seven.  Would that be okay?				false

		6692						LN		258		7		false		            7           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Schmid?				false

		6693						LN		258		8		false		            8           MS. SCHMID:  I will take less than seven.				false

		6694						LN		258		9		false		            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Savage?				false

		6695						LN		258		10		false		           10           MR. SAVAGE:  Seven.				false

		6696						LN		258		11		false		           11           MR. LANGE:  No more than two.				false

		6697						LN		258		12		false		           12           MS. MILLER:  Less than two.				false

		6698						LN		258		13		false		           13           THE HEARING OFFICER:  That is at maximum no more				false

		6699						LN		258		14		false		           14      than 25 minutes, so we can handle it.				false

		6700						LN		258		15		false		           15           Would you all like a short recess before we				false

		6701						LN		258		16		false		           16      commence oral argument?				false

		6702						LN		258		17		false		           17           MS. SCHMID:  The Division does not require a short				false

		6703						LN		258		18		false		           18      recess.				false

		6704						LN		258		19		false		           19           MR. ATWATER:  Does the scheduling conference				false

		6705						LN		258		20		false		           20      contemplate public comments in this hearing?				false

		6706						LN		258		21		false		           21           THE HEARING OFFICER:  No.				false

		6707						LN		258		22		false		           22           MS. SCHMID:  Not for the interim rate hearing.				false

		6708						LN		258		23		false		           23           MR. ATWATER:  I don't think we need a recess then.				false

		6709						LN		258		24		false		           24      I just wanted to be sure of that.				false

		6710						LN		258		25		false		           25           MR. SAVAGE:  I do not need a recess.				false
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		6716						LN		259		5		false		            5           MR. ATWATER:  So we appreciate the time that				false

		6717						LN		259		6		false		            6      everyone spent today and we appreciate the efforts of				false

		6718						LN		259		7		false		            7      all truly in getting us this far, and acknowledge that				false

		6719						LN		259		8		false		            8      it's a team effort.  There is no way that this works for				false

		6720						LN		259		9		false		            9      anybody unless everybody comes together and helps solve				false

		6721						LN		259		10		false		           10      the problems at Community Water.				false

		6722						LN		259		11		false		           11           As was mentioned in Ms. Lewis's testimony, we are				false

		6723						LN		259		12		false		           12      here before the commission on an interim hearing basis				false

		6724						LN		259		13		false		           13      for an interim rate increase.  And I just want to				false

		6725						LN		259		14		false		           14      reiterate what the code 57 -- excuse me -- 547124A3				false

		6726						LN		259		15		false		           15      states, evidence presented at the hearing held pursuant				false

		6727						LN		259		16		false		           16      to this subsection need not encompass all the issues				false

		6728						LN		259		17		false		           17      that may be considered in a rate case hearing held				false

		6729						LN		259		18		false		           18      pursuant to subsection 2-D, but shall establish an				false

		6730						LN		259		19		false		           19      adequate prima facie showing that the interim rate				false

		6731						LN		259		20		false		           20      increase is justified.  We feel like the company has				false

		6732						LN		259		21		false		           21      done that.				false

		6733						LN		259		22		false		           22           The commission has the balancing act quite frankly				false

		6734						LN		259		23		false		           23      here, and it's exacerbated by the fact that this public				false

		6735						LN		259		24		false		           24      utility is very small and insignificant.  This				false

		6736						LN		259		25		false		           25      proceeding would have been much easier if our name was				false
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		6738						LN		260		1		false		            1      Rocky Mountain Power, but it's not.  So the balancing				false

		6739						LN		260		2		false		            2      act between the concept of providing adequate water on a				false

		6740						LN		260		3		false		            3      timely basis to the public versus protecting the				false

		6741						LN		260		4		false		            4      pecuniary interest and financial interest of the company				false

		6742						LN		260		5		false		            5      is critical.  And the Supreme Court of the United				false

		6743						LN		260		6		false		            6      States, the 14th amendment, the 15th amendment makes it				false

		6744						LN		260		7		false		            7      very clear that it would be a taking otherwise if that				false

		6745						LN		260		8		false		            8      balancing act was not performed.				false

		6746						LN		260		9		false		            9           We feel a little bit that -- not this proceeding				false

		6747						LN		260		10		false		           10      necessarily, but that the scale appears to tilt largely				false

		6748						LN		260		11		false		           11      in favor of the public concern, which is clearly an				false

		6749						LN		260		12		false		           12      important concern, but so is the financial interest of				false

		6750						LN		260		13		false		           13      the company as its constitutional right to own its				false

		6751						LN		260		14		false		           14      private property and that the government cannot take				false

		6752						LN		260		15		false		           15      that private property without substantial -- excuse				false

		6753						LN		260		16		false		           16      me -- without just compensation.				false

		6754						LN		260		17		false		           17           In addition, we are talking about -- there has been				false

		6755						LN		260		18		false		           18      a lot of talk today, I tried to avoid it with my motion				false

		6756						LN		260		19		false		           19      to strike, but was unsuccessful.  And I renewed that,				false

		6757						LN		260		20		false		           20      and I respect the opinion of the commission for allowing				false

		6758						LN		260		21		false		           21      it.  But there was a lot of talk that was allowed today				false

		6759						LN		260		22		false		           22      about the circumstances and the histories of why we're				false

		6760						LN		260		23		false		           23      here.  And I think it's important.  I'm glad that we				false

		6761						LN		260		24		false		           24      were able to talk about it.  Everybody was able to see				false

		6762						LN		260		25		false		           25      why we're here.  But never once has the company ever				false

		6763						PG		261		0		false		page 261				false

		6764						LN		261		1		false		            1      allowed any of its customers to go without culinary				false
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		6769						LN		261		6		false		            6      go without the ability to drink, flush toilets and do				false
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		6865						LN		264		24		false		           24      case that the interim rate and the special assessment				false

		6866						LN		264		25		false		           25      are justified.  The Division is concerned with the				false

		6867						PG		265		0		false		page 265				false

		6868						LN		265		1		false		            1      inter-generational inequities that would result from the				false

		6869						LN		265		2		false		            2      special assessment.  The Division is concerned that the				false

		6870						LN		265		3		false		            3      company seems to be abdicating its responsibility to run				false

		6871						LN		265		4		false		            4      its company, and instead is shifting that responsibility				false

		6872						LN		265		5		false		            5      to the Division.				false

		6873						LN		265		6		false		            6           The company has stated that the Division has				false

		6874						LN		265		7		false		            7      thwarted the efforts of the company to provide				false

		6875						LN		265		8		false		            8      reasonable service.  That is not so.  The company				false

		6876						LN		265		9		false		            9      determines and has set its own course, and any failure				false

		6877						LN		265		10		false		           10      of the company to prove on a prima facie standard that				false

		6878						LN		265		11		false		           11      the interim rates are not justified and the special				false

		6879						LN		265		12		false		           12      assessment is not justified rests with the company, not				false
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  09:17     1           9:17 a.m., Thursday, October 19, 2017, Salt Lake



            2           City, Utah.



            3



            4           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Good morning, everyone.



  09:17     5      Let's go on the record please.  This is the time and



            6      place noticed for an interim rates hearing in the matter



            7      of application of Community Water Company for approval



            8      of general rate increase and special charge for major



            9      plant upgrade slash repair.  That is commission docket



  09:17    10      number 17-098-01.  My name is Michael Hammer.  I'm the



           11      commission's designated presiding officer for this



           12      hearing.  Let's go ahead and take appearances, please,



           13      beginning with the applicant.



           14           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you, Your Honor.  Justin



  09:17    15      Atwater appearing on behalf of Community Water Company.



           16           MS. LEWIS:  Emily Lewis, and I'm appearing on



           17      behalf of Community Water Company.



           18           MR. WHITE:  Larry White appearing on behalf of



           19      Community Water Company.



  09:18    20           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Just for my edification, are



           21      all three of you appearing in capacities as attorneys or



           22      are some of you officers?



           23           MR. ATWATER:  So I'm appearing as an attorney on



           24      behalf of the applicant.  Ms. Lewis is as well.  She's



  09:18    25      entering her appearance this morning for the first time.
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  09:18     1      And Mr. White is the chief executive officer of TCFC



            2      Finance Co. which is the ultimate parent of the



            3      applicant.



            4           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.



  09:18     5           MS. SCHMID:  Good morning, Patricia E. Schmid with



            6      the Utah Attorney General's office on behalf of the Utah



            7      Division of Public Utilities.  With me at counsel table



            8      are the Divisions's witnesses, Mr. William Duncan and



            9      Mr. Gary Smith.



  09:18    10           MR. SAVAGE:  Scott Savage on behalf of Plat B&D



           11      Homeowners Association.



           12           MR. LANGE:  Terry Lange.  I'm the president of the



           13      board of Red Pine -- on behalf of Red Pine.  I'm here as



           14      an intervenor.



  09:19    15           MS. MILLER:  Leanne Miller.  I am president of the



           16      Hidden Creek HOA.  I'm an intervenor also.



           17           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Are there any other parties



           18      in the room?



           19           MS. SCHMID:  There is one on the phone.



  09:19    20           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Sorry.  Who do we have on the



           21      phone?  Mr. Amendola -- pardon me.  Mr. Amendola, are



           22      you on the phone?



           23           MR. AMENDOLA:  Yes, I am.  I'm an intervenor with



           24      17098 on behalf of Red Pine and Hidden Creek HOA.



  09:19    25           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Lang, you and
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  09:19     1      Mr. Amendola, you represent or are here on behalf of the



            2      same entity; is that right?



            3           MR. LANGE:  That's correct.



            4           THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Before we begin



  09:20     5      with the applicant's presentation of its evidence, are



            6      there any preliminary matters?  I'm aware of a motion to



            7      strike that was filed early this morning.  Would you



            8      like to take that up now?



            9           MS. SCHMID:  Yes.



  09:20    10           MR. ATWATER:  I think so as well, but before we do,



           11      there is just a few other items that I want to address



           12      so that we can set the stage for the proceeding if



           13      that's okay.  And one of them just simply relates to the



           14      direct testimony that was filed by the applicant.  There



  09:20    15      were two testimonies that were filed in connection with



           16      the direct testimony.  One was from me and one was from



           17      Mr. Kevin Larson with the engineering firm of Bowen



           18      Collins.  Mr. Larson is unable to make it today.  He had



           19      a preplanned vacation with his family.  So in his place



  09:20    20      Tina Campbell is here with us.  She is a partner of that



           21      engineering firm and worked very closely with Kevin.



           22      She may not have all of the answers that Kevin could



           23      provide, but she's very well versed in the materials



           24      that were prepared by Mr. Larson.  So she's here on his



  09:21    25      behalf.



                                               6

�









  09:21     1           Regarding my testimony, inasmuch as there is a



            2      potential issue with an attorney representing an



            3      applicant in an administrative hearing and also being a



            4      witness, we've decided to ask Mr. White to replace me as



  09:21     5      the individual providing that direct testimony.



            6           And so we would submit to the commission this



            7      morning that the testimony that was submitted by me,



            8      Justin Atwater, on behalf of the company, be adopted as



            9      the testimony of Mr. Larry White, chief executive



  09:21    10      officer of TCFC Finance Co., the ultimate parent of the



           11      applicant



           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Do you intend to call



           13      Ms. Campbell and Mr. White today and ask them to attest



           14      to the voracity of the documents you're asking them to



  09:21    15      adopt?



           16           MR. ATWATER:  We will do so.  We intend to submit



           17      those as testimony so we will do so.  We don't



           18      anticipate asking Ms. Campbell to restate what's in the



           19      testimony, but for her to testify to the voracity, yes.



  09:22    20           THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Any objection?



           21           MS. SCHMID:  No objection to the substitution.  I'd



           22      just like to note that whether or not the testimony



           23      should be admitted will of course be determined when the



           24      testimony is moved into evidence.



  09:22    25           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Of course I view this as more
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  09:22     1      of a disclosure issue, but I don't think it's a



            2      substantive one.



            3           MS. SCHMID:  I view it as a disclosure issue as



            4      well.



  09:22     5           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.



            6           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Anything else, Mr. Atwater?



            7           MR. ATWATER:  No.



            8           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Did any intervenors have a



            9      problem with Mr. Atwater's proposal?



  09:22    10           MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.



           11           MR. LANGE:  No objection.



           12           MS. MILLER:  No objection.



           13           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Then we'll move



           14      to the motion to strike.  Mr. Atwater, do you have



  09:22    15      anything to say on behalf of your motion?



           16           MR. ATWATER:  Did everyone have a chance to look at



           17      the memo that was filed earlier this morning?



           18           MR. SAVAGE:  Five minutes ago.



           19           MR. ATWATER:  And I apologize for that.



  09:22    20           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Not to mislead you into



           21      launching into an argument on the merits of a motion, I



           22      really just want to get the parties' position on whether



           23      we should take it up at this point, or whether it would



           24      be better to address later.



  09:23    25           MR. ATWATER:  Yeah.  So my thoughts on this -- I
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  09:23     1      really struggle frankly with the idea whether or not it



            2      should be a motion to strike or simply an objection to



            3      the testimony.  And our intention in filing the motion



            4      was to merely make it clear why we are here, and the



  09:23     5      purpose for the proceeding, and to focus the efforts of



            6      what we're here to speak on and to not include



            7      extraneous information that may not be relevant to that.



            8           And so for me I don't know that it's important



            9      necessarily that we discuss whether they be stricken



  09:23    10      today, but I do want it to be focused in a way that



           11      allows us to accomplish the purpose we're here.



           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Schmid?



           13           MS. SCHMID:  As there is a pending motion, I



           14      believe it should be addressed today.  I appreciate the



  09:23    15      fact that counsel for the company has given us notice --



           16      albeit brief -- of its intentions.  I think that



           17      resolving the issue today, with argument and with a



           18      commission decision, will allow the hearing to proceed



           19      in a more orderly manner.  The Division is ready to



  09:24    20      address the motion today.



           21           MR. SAVAGE:  I have no objection either way.  This



           22      is Scott Savage.  One of the focuses of the motion to



           23      strike or the submission that I made to the commission,



           24      I notice that they move to strike all of the exhibits to



  09:24    25      my alternative proposal, which includes their
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  09:24     1      application.  That was one of my exhibits they moved to



            2      strike.  And they moved to strike the June 15 update to



            3      the commission which is referenced in their application.



            4      But I -- so I think they have used a shotgun instead of



  09:24     5      a rifle in focusing on these things, and I would like to



            6      have more time to carefully examine their motion and



            7      compare my testimony to the application.  But if it is



            8      the commission's desire to go forward, I can go forward



            9      right now.



  09:25    10           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Savage.



           11           MR. LANGE:  Terry Lange.  I have no objection in



           12      moving forward with it at this time.



           13           MS. MILLER:  I have no objection moving forward



           14      with it at this time.



  09:25    15           THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Mr. Atwater, it



           16      sounds like the parties want to address the motion now,



           17      and I'm fine with that.  So I'll give you a few minutes



           18      if you'd like to argue on behalf of the motion's merits.



           19           MR. ATWATER:  Great.  Thank you.  So as stated in



  09:25    20      the written motion, rule 12-F of Utah rules of civil



           21      procedure and Utah code annotated 63G4206, allows



           22      commission to exclude evidence that is irrelevant,



           23      immaterial or unduly repetitious.  The basis for



           24      striking or seeking a request to strike the paragraph



  09:25    25      suggested in the motion, incorporate all three of those
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  09:25     1      elements.  Not only are they immaterial, and don't



            2      advance the interest of the public service commission,



            3      but also repetitive.  And I think what Mr. Savage



            4      mentioned just a moment ago is illustrative of that



  09:26     5      point.  We weren't striking them because we didn't think



            6      they were relevant.  However, they're repetitious,



            7      already provided by the company and not necessary to be



            8      duplicative of what's already before the commission.



            9           We feel it's very important regarding the idea of



  09:26    10      irrelevance and unimportance to restate the purpose for



           11      why we're here, and to make it very clear that the



           12      efforts of the company have been genuine, have been very



           13      sincere.  And we're here to determine whether or not



           14      there is a reasonable rate available to the company to



  09:26    15      balance the competing interests of both the public, in



           16      receiving adequate supply of water, but also the



           17      pecuniary interest of the company, the financial



           18      interest of the company and its ability to operate.



           19      That's why we're here today.  We felt very obviously and



  09:27    20      clearly that the provisions that are asking to be



           21      stricken from the record do nothing to advance that



           22      purpose.  And that's why we've asked that they be



           23      stricken so that we can focus the efforts.  So that the



           24      testimony of the intervenors does not meander.  I think



  09:27    25      I used the word hijack the proceeding for ulterior
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  09:27     1      motives and ulterior purposes.  Rather we'd just like to



            2      be very focused and clear on what we're trying to



            3      accomplish.  And that's the gist of the motion.



            4      Otherwise we rest on the statement



  09:27     5           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Atwater. Ms.



            6      Schmid?



            7           MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  The Division objects to



            8      the motion to strike and believes that the motion should



            9      be denied.  By statute, the commission is charged with



  09:27    10      setting just, reasonable end rates that are in the



           11      public interest.  As part of that, the regulated utility



           12      must come before the commission and present evidence.



           13      An integral part of the process is the fact that parties



           14      are permitted to intervene and present their own



  09:28    15      evidence.



           16           Part of the determination that the commission makes



           17      when picking rates, is making sure that the rates are



           18      just, reasonable and in the public interest, as I said



           19      before.  As such, the regulated company's actions are



  09:28    20      appropriate for scrutiny.  The scrutiny that a regulated



           21      company's actions receive is based upon a prudent



           22      standard.  Not quoting directly, but a prudent standard



           23      is the standard action that a reasonable utility would



           24      do in the same circumstance, knowing the same facts, at



  09:28    25      the same time as the subject public utility.  As such,
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  09:29     1      the statements sought to be stricken and the associated



            2      exhibits are relevant and are necessary to the



            3      commission's full and fair process.  The commission --



            4      the Division is not asserting that the commission should



  09:29     5      step into the management shoes of the company, but



            6      should instead examine the prudence of the company's



            7      decision.



            8           In addition, the Division objects to the



            9      characterization of the provisions sought to be stricken



  09:29    10      as being for ulterior motives and ulterior purposes.



           11      The Division believes that is inappropriate and has not



           12      been proven.  The standard for admitting evidence in an



           13      administrative proceeding is generally less strict than



           14      in traditional courts.  The standard has been, I



  09:30    15      believe, relevant information or information that leads



           16      to relevant information that is admissible.



           17           I think that the subject paragraphs fulfill that



           18      duty.  I also believe that they are not immaterial,



           19      impertinent, repetitive or scandalous.  I believe that



  09:30    20      they serve a purpose.  I believe that they help set the



           21      stage for the company's actions.  I think that the



           22      company's past actions are integral to the



           23      determination, particularly as they pertain to its



           24      request for interim rates and the special assessment.



  09:30    25      With that the Division urges the commission to reject
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  09:30     1      the motion.



            2           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Ms. Schmid.



            3      Mr. Savage?



            4           MR. SAVAGE:  Thank you, Your Honor.  I'll address



  09:30     5      just my alternative proposal and direct testimony and



            6      the motion to strike as it pertains to it.  This



            7      evidence is not irrelevant.  It is not immaterial.  It



            8      is not repetitious.  It's not scandalous.  It is



            9      directly relevant to the interim rate that we're here to



  09:31    10      discuss today.



           11           For example, we are here today to determine whether



           12      or not the commission should award an immediate -- an



           13      immediate interim rate increase of $1,103 for each of



           14      the 502 water users to pay for this tank.  In the



  09:31    15      application, the applicant has stated, paragraph 18,



           16      without this assessment to cover the debt service and



           17      repayment, the company has been unable to demonstrate to



           18      potential lenders a clear path of repayment.  In



           19      paragraph 20 of their application, company explored



  09:31    20      multiple financing options for the tank, but none that



           21      would be available and satisfy to sufficiently meet the



           22      needed time frame for the construction.  That's what



           23      they have pled, and that frames the issues for why we're



           24      here and why they're asking for an immediate $1,100



  09:32    25      assessment.
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  09:32     1           In my testimony which they moved to strike, I point



            2      out several occasions, even written letters signed by



            3      Mr. Larry White on behalf of the ultimate parent, TCFC,



            4      where they have stated that they have secured financing



  09:32     5      for the tank from the parent that's Mr. White's company.



            6      That directly conflicts with their representation to the



            7      commission that no financing is available, the only way



            8      to pay for this tank is the draconian measure of



            9      assessing every user $1,100, and coming up with the



  09:33    10      $500,000 in 15 days on the backs of the water users.



           11           Addressing what the company has said before in my



           12      testimony, this is information that was directly given



           13      to me by the company.  It was directly given in another



           14      update to the public service commission.  And to strike



  09:33    15      that testimony would do a disservice and be unjust and



           16      inappropriate in this particular circumstance.



           17           The company also in their application refers to all



           18      of the efforts they've made on paragraph 11.  For



           19      example, company has continued productive dialogue with



  09:33    20      its customers.  Customers have been instrumental.



           21      Paragraph 12 of their application, the update -- 2017



           22      update letter was sent to all customers.  The update



           23      letter is incorporated in the application and I include



           24      it as an exhibit, not to be redundant, but for the



  09:33    25      convenience of the hearing examiner to have what I'm
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  09:34     1      referring to in my testimony be attached to that



            2      testimony so you don't have to search for it.



            3           In addition, they also discuss as a result of the



            4      tank value, the company's imposed a complete restriction



  09:34     5      on outdoor water, and go on to say that there is no



            6      means to remedy the situation other than imposing a



            7      complete cessation of use of water -- irrigation water.



            8           In my testimony they moved to be stricken, I point



            9      out that was not the case.  That we worked hard as users



  09:34    10      to come up with a plan where some limited irrigation



           11      water could be done, and the company completely rejected



           12      it.  They don't tell the commission that.  And that



           13      their application is contrary to the facts that are



           14      stated in my testimony.  They say the funds can only be



  09:35    15      satisfied by single charge upon the customers in



           16      paragraph 20.  That's not true.  They have stated they



           17      have secured financing.  I think it's important in my



           18      testimony that I point out the background, and what has



           19      been stated to these customers that they refer to in



  09:35    20      their application as having various meetings with.



           21           And they have stated that their intent -- the



           22      intent of TCFC is to get out of the water business and



           23      divest itself of CWC.  And that they have proposed a



           24      means of doing that with Summit Water.  And that was



  09:35    25      dependent upon getting out from under the jurisdiction
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  09:35     1      of the Public Service Commission.  When that failed, the



            2      further discussion with the customers ceased and the --



            3      this application was filed.



            4           I point out in the testimony they moved to be



  09:36     5      stricken, that the company was requested on numerous



            6      occasions in June that it seek Public Service Commission



            7      rate increase to cover the failed tank.  That they



            8      should be proceeding in that manner instead of trying to



            9      get the customers to agree to a sale to -- or to a



  09:36    10      transfer to Summit Water that would leave the customers



           11      with no ability to control the decisions of Summit



           12      Water, and would take the company out from jurisdiction



           13      of the Public Service Commission so we would have no



           14      government agency with the authority to review



  09:36    15      assessments or proposed increases and rates or expenses



           16      imposed by this -- Summit Water's newly proposed



           17      corporation.



           18           That is not irrelevant.  That's what happened.



           19      That's what brought us here.  They should have sued --



  09:36    20      or pursued this matter before the Public Service



           21      Commission in May or June.  They told us that they



           22      couldn't do that because it would take 240 days.  The



           23      hearing examiner knows that's not true.  We're here



           24      today on a 45-day time frame to have an interim rate



  09:37    25      increase to start paying for that tank.  That tank could
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  09:37     1      have been brought before the attention of the Public



            2      Service Commission 45 days after it failed in April.



            3      And instead we're here in October which is the date in



            4      their statements that they now move to be stricken.



  09:37     5      Their very statements to the customers that this tank



            6      had to be immediately replaced, and if it went forward



            7      with the company funding that it would be replaced by



            8      October.



            9           Well, it's not replaced by October.  And I think



  09:37    10      all of this is germane to the interim rate increase we



           11      have here.  I think it's important to give the hearing



           12      examiner and the commission the full background of what



           13      has been said to the customers, what has been done.  And



           14      I have testified to that information in my statement by



  09:38    15      direct testimony that I was a witness to.  There are



           16      some conclusions in my presentation, but that's not



           17      unusual in direct testimony in a rate matter.  And they



           18      are conclusions that I think are reasonable inferences



           19      as to why the company has done certain things.  And I



  09:38    20      challenge the company to establish that those inferences



           21      are incorrect, that they have proceeded in this manner



           22      and waited this long.  Because their desire was to get



           23      out from under Public Service Commission jurisdiction,



           24      and proceeding with an interim rate increase to fix this



  09:38    25      failed tank, would complicate their effort to extricate
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  09:38     1      themselves from the supervision of the Public Service



            2      Commission.



            3           There is nothing wrong with presenting that



            4      testimony.  It's not irrelevant it's not immaterial.



  09:38     5      It's not even scandalous.  And I take umbrage at there



            6      being some ulterior motive.  I'm here for the statements



            7      I've made in my presentation, to have an alternative way



            8      to fund that tank, and an alternative way to -- other



            9      than an immediate interim rate increase -- to start



  09:39    10      repaying the $38.6 million loan that hasn't even funded



           11      yet, for which no payments will be due until January of



           12      2019.  Sorry I took that long but -- I probably could



           13      have made it briefer if I had more time to review all of



           14      this material.



  09:39    15           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Savage. Mr.



           16      Lange?



           17           MR. LANGE:  Yes.  So none of my testimony has been



           18      put forth in the motion to be struck.  However, I think



           19      that the testimony in general that they wish to have



  09:39    20      stricken is very pertinent to setting the stage of the



           21      history from the customer's point of view of how things



           22      have transpired and whether or not they've influenced, I



           23      guess, prudent or imprudent decisions on the part of



           24      Community Water to move forward.



  09:40    25           Our biggest concern is the lack of capacity, i.e.,
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  09:40     1      the failed tank at this point in time.  And we really



            2      want to have that tank done sooner than later.  I mean,



            3      I wish they were working on it today quite frankly.  But



            4      they're not.  This has been held off.  We're very upset



  09:40     5      by this and don't understand the reasons why it hasn't



            6      gone forward the way they said it would be going



            7      forward.  So consequently, I think that this motion to



            8      be stricken, this information, this testimony, should be



            9      denied.



  09:40    10           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  And Ms. Miller?



           11           MS. MILLER:  I also object to my testimony to be



           12      stricken.  I believe that the comments speak to the



           13      importance of moving forward very expeditiously to get a



           14      new tank built.  As we've heard before, we've had



  09:40    15      promises that it was going to move forward and those



           16      promises haven't been kept.  And it's also important for



           17      the customers to understand what level of reliability



           18      exists in the system.  We need to know what type of



           19      emergency plan for water service might be put in place



  09:41    20      if there is another failure.



           21           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  And I should have



           22      asked earlier, I was presuming since you are present



           23      that you would be Hidden Creek HOA's representative



           24      today, and that Mr. Amendola might be functioning as a



  09:41    25      witness.  So I've been referring to you when I have a
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  09:41     1      question in your capacity as being here to represent the



            2      HOA.  Should I be referring to Mr. Amendola or is that



            3      okay?



            4           MS. MILLER:  That's fine.



  09:41     5           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Anything else from you,



            6      Mr. Atwater?



            7           MR. ATWATER:  Does Mr. Amendola want to say



            8      anything?



            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  My point was, we just heard



  09:41    10      on behalf of --



           11           MS. MILLER:  Oh, I'm not addressing Mr. Amendola's



           12      testimony or objection to his testimony.  I'm sorry.  I



           13      did not understand that.



           14           MR. SAVAGE:  They've moved to strike his testimony



  09:41    15      too, Mr. Amendola's.



           16           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Amendola is here on



           17      behalf of Red Pine?



           18           MS. MILLER:  Red Pine HOA.  But I'm Hidden Creek



           19      HOA.



  09:42    20           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Lange is here on behalf



           21      of Red Pine, right?



           22           MR. LANGE:  He's representing both Red Pine and



           23      Hidden Creek.



           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  We'll go ahead and give



  09:42    25      Mr. Amendola an opportunity to speak then.
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  09:42     1           MR. AMENDOLA:  My turn, Your Honor?



            2           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes.



            3           MR. AMENDOLA:  Yes, I will be very brief.  I'm out



            4      of town and I don't have the benefit of all the



  09:42     5      documents in front of me, but I would like to say that



            6      first and foremost, in no way are we trying to hijack



            7      this proceeding.  And in no way are the owners that I



            8      represent seeking to provide or work from ulterior



            9      motives in this case.  To the contrary, we have simply



  09:42    10      provided a historical count of the things that have



           11      happened since mid-April when the tank failed.



           12           We also wanted to document that the company has



           13      acknowledged the severity of the situation and the need



           14      to move forward quickly with ulterior or -- alternate



  09:43    15      funding.  They informed us on different occasions that



           16      there was alternate funding secured and work was moving



           17      forward on the tank with the hope of having this tank



           18      function yet this fall.  And finally, I would offer that



           19      their request for a one-time funding or assessment of



  09:43    20      $1,100 is obviously burdensome to all the customer base,



           21      but in an effort to try and move this issue forward and



           22      get this tank -- the work on the tank underway, we



           23      basically offered up an alternate method of payment that



           24      would reimburse the company very similarly to what one



  09:44    25      of their original offers was, you know, two, three
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  09:44     1      months ago.



            2           So not only are we trying -- not trying to hijack



            3      the procedures, we are actually trying to facilitate and



            4      expedite work on this tank.  We don't want to go into



  09:44     5      winter conditions without a tank, and if we are forced



            6      to, we want to make sure that we can reduce the time



            7      period before this tank comes on if it even has to come



            8      on in the early spring.  But we have all provided



            9      background information and an alternative funding



  09:44    10      mechanism that we think should be acceptable to get this



           11      project moving forward.  Thank you.



           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Amendola.



           13           MR. ATWATER:  If I may just spend one more minute



           14      in response to the other parties' statements.  I want to



  09:45    15      make it very clear that the company, the applicant in no



           16      way is suggesting that the intervenors not participate.



           17      We are very appreciative of the information they've



           18      provided to help and the assistance that they've given



           19      all along the way.  That's very clear and we want you to



  09:45    20      know that, that this position to strike had nothing to



           21      do with whether or not we want you to participate.  What



           22      it deals with is whether or not the commission should



           23      consider all of that background information when



           24      determining whether or not the rate requested is just



  09:45    25      and reasonable.  We believe it's not relevant for that
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  09:45     1      purpose.  We believe it's relevant clearly, the history



            2      of what's gone on here is very relevant to where the



            3      company is today.  And we don't dispute that.  And I



            4      apologize if it came across that way.  What we're simply



  09:45     5      stating is that as the commission considers the



            6      application, that all of this additional information



            7      that may provide background and may be useful, not be



            8      considered when determining whether or not the rate



            9      meets the requirements of the statute, being just and



  09:46    10      reasonable and fair to the public and to the company's



           11      interest.



           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Atwater.  At



           13      this point the commission is disinclined to grant the



           14      motion to strike the portions of the written testimony



  09:46    15      filed by the witnesses at issue.  So the motion is



           16      denied.  That being said, all parties and their counsel



           17      retain the right to object to any testimony that might



           18      be presented during the hearing today.



           19           MR. ATWATER:  So to clarify, do we need to object



  09:46    20      every time testimony is made or can I make a blanket



           21      objection to their testimony with respect to those



           22      paragraphs at the outset?



           23           THE HEARING OFFICER:  You can elect -- I mean, you



           24      can elect to represent your client how you wish.  It



  09:46    25      would probably be more efficient if you make the blanket
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  09:46     1      objection.



            2           MR. ATWATER:  So I just want to submit to the



            3      commission in that regard that the motion in itself



            4      actually makes the blanket objection to those



  09:47     5      provisions, those paragraphs that were asked to be



            6      stricken and we just restate that objection here in the



            7      hearing.



            8           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Understood.  Are you prepared



            9      to call your first witness, Mr. Atwater?



  09:47    10           MR. ATWATER:  We are.  And so in the spirit of



           11      history, and how important it is for this, the applicant



           12      would like to call Mr. Larry White as a witness before



           13      the commission.  As stated before, Mr. Larry White is



           14      the chief executive officer of TCFC Finance Co. which he



  09:47    15      will explain in a little more detail.  Our approach to



           16      this testimony, if the commission will allow, is to



           17      allow Mr. White to make open statements, rather than



           18      necessarily asking questions.  I would think it's



           19      important that he provide the company's history in



  09:47    20      response to the testimony that was just accepted by the



           21      commission, and other statements that have been made by



           22      the DPU and the intervenors.



           23           THE HEARING OFFICER:  That's certainly fine.



           24      Mr. White, do you mind taking the stand?



  09:48    25           MR. WHITE:  Sure.
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  09:48     1           (Larry White is sworn in as a witness.)



            2           MR. WHITE:  So first of all, I want to make it



            3      clear that I'm not a lawyer, I've never been involved in



            4      an entity that has an interaction with a Public Service



  09:48     5      Commission or oversight such as this.  So this is all



            6      very new to me.  Without going into the entire



            7      background and history of Community Water, let's go back



            8      to the entity that is the sole member of Community Water



            9      which is ASC Utah.  That entity acquired a number of



  09:49    10      assets which included Community Water in 1998.  The



           11      Talisker Corporation acquired ASCU in 2008.  And Varde



           12      Partners which was a private equity firm based in



           13      Minneapolis, Minnesota invested in certain Canyon's



           14      related assets in Park City in 2010.  In 2013, the



  09:49    15      Talisker member was removed as the managing member of



           16      that entity, and Varde was inserted and TCFC Finance was



           17      created.  That's the history.



           18           A little bit about Varde Partners.  Varde is a



           19      private equity firm based in Minneapolis.  Its investors



  09:49    20      are primarily pension funds, state pension funds,



           21      college endowments and nonprofit agencies like Boy's



           22      Town, for example, who was Varde's very first investor,



           23      and the Annie E. Casey Foundation who basically provides



           24      services to the poorest of the poor, to people who are



  09:50    25      not caught in the social services net.  That's the basis
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  09:50     1      of the various funds that Varde manages.



            2           There has been a lot of conversation about this



            3      loan.  So the way that private equity firms work is that



            4      they promise a preferred return to their investors.  For



  09:50     5      Varde, the promise to the investors is a 13 percent



            6      basis in a preferred return.  That means that before



            7      anything else happens, the investors have to get that



            8      kind of return.  Their expectation, consistent with all



            9      private equity firms, is that their returns would be in



  09:50    10      the 17 or 18 to 22 percent range.



           11           The nature of those funds, and the way that



           12      non-profits operate, is that they actually use those



           13      funds to -- or a portion of them to do all of their



           14      nonprofit acts.  So for endowments it's to -- for



  09:51    15      college endowments, it's to provide scholarships for



           16      people who can't afford.  In the case of Annie E. Casey



           17      Foundation, they're conducting their services around the



           18      city of Baltimore and elsewhere.  So that's the nature



           19      of the funds that back TCFC, just so you're aware where



  09:51    20      the money comes from.



           21           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'm sorry to interrupt you.



           22      We are live streaming this hearing today and it is



           23      currently a public proceeding.  So to the extent you may



           24      be concerned about confidential information -- I know



  09:51    25      many of the exhibits filed in this case were filed as
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  09:51     1      confidential -- you should be aware that this we are



            2      streaming.



            3           THE WITNESS:  This is all public information.  So



            4      it's important to understand that in the context of how



  09:51     5      we operate.  So the nature of this -- because there have



            6      been all sorts of questions about this and I'm trying to



            7      clarify -- so that sole member of Community Water is ASC



            8      Utah.  The sole member of ASC Utah is TCFC.  The owner



            9      of TCFC is an interim of what goes back to the private



  09:52    10      equity firm.  So that's the nature of our funding.  So



           11      again, our understanding is that -- and there have been



           12      a number of attempts to have a rate case come before the



           13      Public Service Commission.  That's based on the fact



           14      that for 30 years or more the customers of this company



  09:52    15      were paying $12 a month and the system was allowed to



           16      deteriorate.



           17           Last year there was a rate case that came before



           18      this commission, and the result of that was that the



           19      rate was increased to roughly $30 a month per customer



  09:52    20      plus usage.  Just to give you an idea of comparison to



           21      the other regional water companies, I'm a Summit Water



           22      customer.  I live in Park City.  My monthly rate is $88



           23      a month.  The average customer with Mountain Regional



           24      which is the other large regional water company is $120



  09:53    25      a month.
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  09:53     1           At the same time that this rate case was brought



            2      back in July or August of 2016, there was a request for



            3      infrastructure improvements because half the meters in



            4      Community Water don't work.  We are aware then of a



  09:53     5      number of deficiencies based on a study that was done by



            6      Bowen Collins that evaluated the entire system.  Bowen &



            7      Collins is a water engineering company.  They evaluated



            8      the entire system.  We are aware there was a number of



            9      deficiencies.  So part of that rate case was to request



  09:53    10      meters, pressure valves, and other parts of the system



           11      that were known to be failing.



           12           Throughout this process our desire has been to



           13      transfer this company into responsible hands that is a



           14      larger operating water company.  So just to give you an



  09:54    15      idea, Summit Water has roughly 5,000 customers, Mountain



           16      Regional has roughly 8,000 customers, Community Water



           17      has 500.  So it clearly costs more per customer to



           18      operate a very small company than it does to spread



           19      those costs over a large number of customers.



  09:54    20           We have met with the customers a number of times,



           21      trying to figure out a way to transfer this responsibly.



           22      We've talked about setting up a nonprofit customers



           23      would own, but it has to be managed by a responsible



           24      major water company.  They don't have the capacity among



  09:54    25      the customers themselves to be able to manage this kind
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  09:54     1      of operation.



            2           So we did offer back in July -- after the tank



            3      failed we did offer to provide a means by which we could



            4      replace the tank.  So there are two separate issues



  09:55     5      here.  The first is the replacement was more immediate



            6      when the tank failed, which is the larger of the two



            7      water tanks, and could not be repaired.  It had been



            8      repaired a number of times.  Probably 40 years old.  We



            9      did offer a financing mechanism back then based on the



  09:55    10      customers volunteering a hundred -- it would have to be



           11      a hundred percent of the customers volunteering to repay



           12      the cost of the tank over time.



           13           What we were told by that condo association, the



           14      representatives here, is they could not guarantee that



  09:55    15      their customers would pay.  They had no mechanism to go



           16      back and guarantee that their customers would pay.



           17      Therefore, from our standpoint and to my board and



           18      executive committee, I couldn't tell them that the



           19      repayment of their funding of this water tank could be



  09:55    20      guaranteed to them.  So consequently, it was then that



           21      we decided we needed to come before the Public Service



           22      Commission and establish this rate case.



           23           It's also my understanding that we cannot -- that



           24      Community Water cannot arbitrarily -- even in the case



  09:56    25      of an emergency such as the failure of the tank or the
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  09:56     1      need for replacement water -- charge the customers more



            2      just because an emergency has happened.  So if we needed



            3      supplemental water, for example, we have that capacity



            4      to come from Summit Water, but we have no capacity to



  09:56     5      charge for the water that we're receiving because it



            6      comes at a much greater rate than our source water,



            7      which is well and service water.



            8           So we now have a situation where the infrastructure



            9      of Community Water is clearly failing.  We have known



  09:56    10      this over time, and yet every attempt that we've made to



           11      try and rectify it, has been thwarted either through



           12      this process with the department of utilities or through



           13      the customers.  And so we have tried to do this in the



           14      most cost effective manner possible, which would be to



  09:57    15      turn the system over to Summit Water, which is a



           16      nonprofit mutual water company.  We've also had



           17      discussions with Mountain Regional which is a municipal



           18      water company.  They have generally a higher cost of



           19      operations so it would cost the customers more.  We've



  09:57    20      had conversations with both of them.



           21           Through the efforts of Emily Lewis, we have secured



           22      a loan based on the Bowen & Collins' study -- a loan



           23      from the state which is federally fund based to correct



           24      all of the known deficiencies in the water system.  We



  09:57    25      originally included the tank, the failed tank, in that
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  09:57     1      cost.



            2           However, given that we were not close to being able



            3      to settle on that loan, and because of the parameters of



            4      the loan which require that we not spend any hard costs



  09:58     5      prior to the loan closing, meaning we could not order



            6      the tank, we couldn't bid the tank.  The requirements of



            7      that loan because of Davis Bacon and other federal



            8      requirements, require that the loan be closed first, and



            9      that we bid all of the components and comply with Davis



  09:58    10      Bacon before any money could be spent, hard costs could



           11      be spent.  We could spend money on engineering, but we



           12      could not spend any hard costs on the tank.  That's the



           13      reason we decided to separate the cost of the tank from



           14      the proposed loan.



  09:58    15           So it was clear when we could not get consensus of



           16      the customers for a unanimous consent to the -- to a



           17      special assessment to repair the tank at the time that



           18      we needed to come back through this formal process and



           19      make application of the Public Service Commission.  That



  09:59    20      takes time to prepare.  So you know that the submission



           21      has roughly a thousand pages of material that has to be



           22      submitted.  The cost of every one of these applications



           23      is roughly $50,000 in engineering and legal time that



           24      has to get passed through the customers.



  09:59    25           So we made application in this case for both a
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  09:59     1      special assessment as well as for preparing for the loan



            2      closing, which could happen in spring, that would then



            3      repair the entire system.  The cost just for the tank



            4      between now and the spring, or whenever it's going to be



  09:59     5      installed is roughly five to $600,000 -- call it



            6      $550,000.  The cost of just the engineering and legal



            7      work in order to prepare for the closing of the loan to



            8      repair the rest of the system is another $500,000. If



            9      we don't get this rate situation straightened out, this



  10:00    10      system -- the entire community water system will fail.



           11      It's on the verge of that now.  It's very clear and



           12      people have been in denial, I think, for decades that



           13      the condition of the system was deteriorating.  That's



           14      why we're before you today.



  10:00    15           MR. ATWATER:  I have a few questions for you, Mr.



           16      White.  Thank you for your statement.



           17           Q.  The first question is, Mr. Savage suggested



           18      earlier today and in the testimony that was accepted by



           19      the commission today, that the reason for waiting to



  10:00    20      file the rate case until September was because we did



           21      not want to thwart the effort of the company in



           22      conveying it to a nonprofit entity.  Is that the reason



           23      for delaying?  And if not, would you explain again for



           24      the record the reason for waiting until September to



  10:01    25      file the rate case increase?
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  10:01     1           A.  It had nothing to do with that.  We were on a



            2      parallel path to try and rectify the deficiencies in the



            3      water system as well as to transfer the entire entity to



            4      a responsible management company.



  10:01     5           The issue at hand is that it is not appropriate for



            6      Summit Water customers, a mutual water company with



            7      shareholders, to assume the liabilities of Community



            8      Water, either as it exists today with all the



            9      deficiencies in the system or with a 3 million dollar



  10:01    10      loan in place to correct all those deficiencies.  And so



           11      that's why we try -- we embarked on an attempt to set up



           12      a nonprofit entity which would receive the loan and that



           13      Summit Water would then manage.  That was what was



           14      proposed at the time.



  10:02    15           There are a variety of complications of that in



           16      terms of control, whose in control of, you know, the



           17      decisions, where to spend money and how the system gets



           18      repaired.  So that has not been resolved.  That's why we



           19      chose a parallel path to come back to the Public Service



  10:02    20      Commission and ask for the rate increases, to make sure



           21      that whoever is investing that money, whether it's Varde



           22      investing that money on behalf of its investors or the



           23      loan investment that is coming from the state agency,



           24      make sure there is a mechanism to pay them back.



  10:02    25      Because nobody invests money or makes loans without
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  10:02     1      knowing how it's going to get paid back.  Does that



            2      answer your question?



            3           Q.  Yes.  Thank you.  You also testified that your



            4      private equity firm named Varde Partners became involved



  10:02     5      with ASC Utah in approximately 2013.



            6           A.  So the original investment was made in Talisker



            7      in 2010 and then assumed the managing member position in



            8      2013, June of 2013.



            9           Q.  Okay.  I believe it's important for you to



  10:03    10      discuss the time frame between 2010 and today, and why



           11      now we have the information that we have as a company



           12      and why you are taking the steps you're taking today



           13      verses in 2010.



           14           A.  So again I was not -- I did not join Varde



  10:03    15      until February of 2014 so I don't know what happened,



           16      you know, prior to that time.  I just know when the



           17      investment was made.  And I can only tell you what has



           18      happened since I've been involved.  And I came on board



           19      largely because of this project, to manage this.  At the



  10:03    20      time we had consultants that had taken over the



           21      accounting and the day-to-day management.  We eventually



           22      replaced that with full time staff, and I was asked to



           23      come here and run it in May or March of 2016.



           24           So I can only tell you what's happened since my own



  10:04    25      personal involvement.  And that there have been several
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  10:04     1      attempts at developing rate cases which are complicated



            2      and expensive to come before this body.  And that



            3      several of them have been thwarted or abandoned because



            4      of their complexity.  The first one that finally came



  10:04     5      and was completed was just about a year ago.  So I



            6      believe it was October, a year ago, when the rate case



            7      was approved.  It was approved only for operational



            8      costs, not for infrastructure costs.  And I can tell you



            9      that the operational costs that were approved is



  10:04    10      insufficient because the company is currently running



           11      without any management.  Keep in mind that we have never



           12      charged any overhead, that this entity operates out of



           13      TCFC's offices with our accounting services provided for



           14      free, managing services provided for free.



  10:04    15           And even with that the company is currently



           16      running, first nine months of this year, at $112,000



           17      deficit.  So without -- just in it's general operating



           18      costs without any infrastructure costs, $112,000



           19      deficit.  If we were to add a simple 9,000 dollar a



  10:05    20      month management fee which would be minimal to cover the



           21      cost of management, that would go up to close to



           22      $200,000.  So $193,000 deficit so far this year.



           23           I can tell you from just the engineering we spent



           24      $36,000 to date just on the tank replacement, just on



  10:05    25      the engineering and planning.  We spent $10,000 to date
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  10:05     1      on the rate study.  $13,000 -- this is to date meaning



            2      this year -- on the loan, preparing for the loan.  And



            3      another $6,000 on easements where the infrastructure



            4      exists, but does not have property easements and needs



  10:05     5      to be perfected in order to establish the rights of the



            6      system.



            7           Q.  So a follow-up question I think everybody wants



            8      to know.  Why did you acquire Community Water?



            9           A.  So it was just part of the asset.  I can't tell



  10:06    10      you why ASCU acquired Community Water or whether it came



           11      along with the other holdings that they acquired, but



           12      all of the holdings were acquired then by Talisker and



           13      basically inherited in the subsequent acquisitions.



           14           Q.  So it's your understanding that it wasn't



  10:06    15      necessarily an expectation that this would be a high



           16      return company that would allow for your investors to



           17      achieve the return that they normally require?



           18           MR. SAVAGE:  CWC?



           19           MR. ATWATER:  Correct.



  10:06    20           THE WITNESS:  It was not acquired as an individual



           21      asset for that purpose.



           22           MR. ATWATER:  Okay.  Great.



           23           Q.  Would you please provide an update as to the



           24      status of the new tank -- the current status that's in



  10:06    25      progress?
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  10:06     1           A.  So we've done an evaluation on the new tank.



            2      Summit Water has been instrumental in evaluating,



            3      searching for tank providers, evaluating the right kind



            4      of tank in order to replace the one that failed.  And we



  10:07     5      could move forward on ordering that tank as soon as we



            6      have the money to do so.



            7           In terms of its installation time, where this tank



            8      is located is, for anybody that's familiar with the



            9      Canyons Resort, it's a ski resort, this tank and the



  10:07    10      smaller tank are located on easement land which is up



           11      "ludraw" which is a ski run.  So if it isn't replaced



           12      within a certain time period, as soon as it starts



           13      snowing it's inaccessible by trucks and equipment.



           14           So at this point in time, as soon as the path to



  10:07    15      repayment or payment of the tank is clear, the tank



           16      could be ordered.  It will take roughly three to four



           17      months in manufacturing and transportation, and probably



           18      six weeks to actually install and become operational.



           19           At this point, the earliest that that could occur



  10:08    20      would be in the spring of 2018, as soon as the path is



           21      clear to the site where the tank, the wells and the



           22      companion tank exist.  So I would think that from a



           23      timing standpoint, it's likely in a best case scenario



           24      to be May or June of 2018.



  10:08    25           Q.  Thank you.  It's appropriate and necessary for
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  10:08     1      me to ask you if you certify and adopt the testimony of



            2      Justin Atwater submitted with the direct testimony of



            3      the company as being true and accurate?



            4           A.  Yes, I do.



  10:08     5           Q.  You adopt that testimony as your own?



            6           A.  I do.



            7           Q.  Thank you.



            8           MR. ATWATER:  Your honor, the application has two



            9      requests as has been noted.  One for a special increase



  10:09    10      related to the tank and one for a general increase



           11      related to O&M and infrastructure.  There are very



           12      detailed discussions to be had regarding both of those.



           13      Mr. White has adopted the testimony that I've provided



           14      which includes details regarding both of those things.



  10:09    15      We don't feel that it's necessary to read that in today



           16      unless the commission feels inclined for us to do so.



           17           THE HEARING OFFICER:  No.  The commission's rules



           18      expressly allow parties to adopt summations so that we



           19      don't have to do that.  Your witness is welcome to do so



  10:09    20      and of course he may be subject to cross-examination on



           21      any topic covered.



           22           MR. ATWATER:  Great.  Thank you.  The other



           23      question I have for the commission is, will the



           24      applicant have an opportunity at some point to provide



  10:09    25      statements outside of its witnesses?



                                               39

�









  10:09     1           THE HEARING OFFICER:  A concluding argument?



            2           MR. ATWATER:  Correct.



            3           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any objection to that?



            4           MS. SCHMID:  No objection.



  10:09     5           MR. SAVAGE:  No objections.



            6           MR. LANGE:  No objections.



            7           MR. ATWATER:  Great.  Then at this time we have no



            8      further questions for Mr. White.



            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Ms. Schmid?



  10:10    10           MS. SCHMID:  Is Mr. Atwater going to move for the



           11      admission of the testimony adopted by Mr. White?



           12           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.  I move to admit the



           13      testimony of Mr. White.



           14           MS. SCHMID:  No objection.



  10:10    15           MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.



           16           MR. LANGE:  No objection.



           17           MS. MILLER:  No objection.



           18           MR. AMENDOLA:  None.



           19           THE HEARING OFFICER:  It's admitted.  Go ahead.



  10:10    20           MS. SCHMID:  The Division has some



           21      cross-examination questions for Mr. White, but because



           22      Mr. White's testimony ranged far more broadly than the



           23      testimony submitted by Mr. Atwater, the Division would



           24      like a few minutes to review its prepared



  10:10    25      cross-examination questions to see what can be stricken.



                                               40

�









  10:10     1      Could the Division have 15 minutes?  This is not my



            2      normal practice to ask for a delay and I submit that



            3      request in that nature.



            4           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any objection to a 15-minute



  10:10     5      recess?



            6           MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.



            7           MR. ATWATER:  No objection.



            8           THE HEARING OFFICER:  We'll be in recess until



            9      10:30.  Thank you.



  10:11    10           MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.



           11           (Interruption in proceedings.)



           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Let's go back on the record



           13      please.  Ms. Schmid, I believe we ended with you.



           14           MS. SCHMID:  Yes.  I do have some questions for



  10:29    15      Mr. White, if he could be called to the stand.



           16           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Mr. White, would you



           17      please return to the stand.  You're still under oath,



           18      sir.



           19           MS. SCHMID:



  10:29    20           Q.  Good morning.



           21           A.  Good morning.



           22           Q.  Is this your first experience in a regulatory



           23      setting?



           24           A.  It is.



  10:29    25           Q.  How long have you worked on the investment



                                               41

�









  10:29     1      banker or the investment funding side of things?



            2           A.  For three and a half years.



            3           Q.  What is your background before that?



            4           A.  Real estate development.



  10:30     5           Q.  I have some questions, and some of these may be



            6      a little bit redundant because of what you testified to,



            7      but I want the commission to have precise facts on the



            8      record so I'm going to ask them.



            9           You mentioned Talisker.  Talisker bought American



  10:30    10      Ski Company; is that correct?



           11           A.  Correct.



           12           Q.  Is it correct that Varde Partners in 2010



           13      invested in the Canyons?



           14           A.  Correct.



  10:30    15           Q.  Is it correct that Canyons at that time was



           16      owned at least in part by Talisker Corporation?



           17           A.  I don't know whether -- it wasn't Talisker



           18      Corporation.  It was probably a single purpose entity.



           19           MR. SAVAGE:  You said a single what?



  10:30    20           THE WITNESS:  Single purpose entity.  Most assets



           21      are held by a single purpose entity.



           22           MR. SAVAGE:  A subsidiary of Talisker, is that what



           23      you mean?



           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  You'll have your chance,



  10:31    25      Mr. Savage.
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  10:31     1           MR. SAVAGE:  I just couldn't hear.  That's why I



            2      interrupted you.



            3           MS. SCHMID:



            4           Q.  So are you unfamiliar then with the involvement



  10:31     5      if any of Talisker in Community Water and TCFC?



            6           A.  I don't know what -- if you're asking me



            7      what -- do I know what Talisker did during that period



            8      of time, I don't.



            9           MR. ATWATER:  May I object to the relevance of the



  10:31    10      question.



           11           MS. SCHMID:  The witness brought it up in his



           12      direct.  We have established that the history of the



           13      corporation and that the company is very important.  As



           14      part of his testimony here today, Mr. White talked about



  10:31    15      how the company had -- and I'll paraphrase because these



           16      weren't his direct words -- fallen into disrepair and



           17      needed some substantial improvements.  Along those



           18      lines, I am trying to determine what knowledge if any



           19      Varde corporation -- Varde Partners had when it acquired



  10:31    20      the company.  I believe that that is relevant as it



           21      pertains to not only the past management of the company,



           22      but also the current management.



           23           THE HEARING OFFICER:  And I was experiencing some



           24      cross-talk so I'm not sure I completely heard the



  10:32    25      question being objected to.  Will you remind me of it?
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  10:32     1           MS. SCHMID:  Yes, I asked about his knowledge of



            2      Talisker with American Ski Company and with Community



            3      Water Company.  Also, in addition I believe that



            4      Talisker is in bankruptcy and I want to establish on the



  10:32     5      record, to the extent that he knows if that bankruptcy



            6      affects Community Water.  And as a managing partner, I



            7      believe that Varde Partners would likely be aware of



            8      that.



            9           MR. ATWATER:  May I respond to that.  We're okay



  10:32    10      with that question.  If that's the intent of the



           11      question, I can make that -- ask Mr. White that



           12      question.  We're okay with that.



           13           MS. SCHMID:  I have a series of questions.



           14           MR. ATWATER:  But if it's your intention to



  10:33    15      determine whether or not the company -- Mr. White in



           16      particular -- knows anything about the bankruptcy and of



           17      Talisker's impact on the company, you could ask those



           18      questions.



           19           MS. SCHMID:  That would be up to the administrator.



  10:33    20           MR. ATWATER:  We don't object.  Excuse me.



           21           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I understand for purposes of



           22      the question that was just restated to me -- I



           23      understand that objection to be withdrawn and we'll



           24      proceed.



  10:33    25           MS. SCHMID:
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  10:33     1           Q.  Okay.  So Mr. White -- and this is a slightly



            2      different question, but it's along the same lines -- is



            3      Talisker or a subsidiary of Talisker currently involved



            4      in CWC or TCFC, to your knowledge?



  10:33     5           A.  A Talisker entity is still a minority partner,



            6      a non-managing minority partner in the entity.



            7           MR. ATWATER:  In which entity?



            8           THE WITNESS:  I couldn't tell you, but it's in the



            9      Canyons investment entity.



  10:34    10           MS. SCHMID:



           11           Q.  Okay.  To your knowledge, do you know if



           12      Talisker is currently in bankruptcy?



           13           A.  To my knowledge, Talisker is not in bankruptcy.



           14           Q.  Okay.  That eliminates that line of questions.



  10:34    15      Thank you.



           16           A.  But to clarify, to answer your real question,



           17      is that there are certain other Talisker assets outside



           18      of the Canyons which were in bankruptcy and to our



           19      knowledge are now owned by Wells Fargo bank.



  10:34    20           Q.  Because Wells Fargo bank initiated a bankruptcy



           21      proceeding against Talisker; is that correct?



           22           A.  Right.  But those assets have nothing to do



           23      with the Canyons, they're not related to TCFC or to



           24      Community Water Company.



  10:34    25           Q.  Thank you.  That was very helpful.  So it was
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  10:34     1      2010 when Varde Partners went through -- and I'm going



            2      to mispronounce it -- "flara" -- "plara" --



            3           A.  No.  I don't know when "flara" was created.



            4           Q.  Okay.  So Varde Partners invested in the



  10:35     5      Canyons; correct?



            6           A.  Correct.



            7           Q.  As part of that investment, was CWC and TCFC



            8      brought into the -- I'll just call it the family of



            9      assets -- pertaining to Varde Partners?



  10:35    10           A.  I believe that those were already part of the



           11      assets that were invested in, but I wasn't there at that



           12      time so I can't testify to that.



           13           Q.  You've had experiences as an investment banker



           14      for several years you said.  In your experience as an



  10:35    15      investment banker, is it common for an entity prior to



           16      purchasing an interest to do a due diligence



           17      investigation?



           18           A.  Generally common.



           19           Q.  Would that due diligence investigation include



  10:35    20      generally a look at the balance sheets of a company



           21      that's going to be acquired?



           22           A.  I told you that I wasn't around at the time and



           23      I'm not --



           24           Q.  I'm asking in general.



  10:36    25           A.  Your generality does not make any difference.
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  10:36     1      What happened happened.



            2           Q.  Are you refusing to answer the question?



            3           A.  No.  I'm saying to you that -- you know, in



            4      general, yes.  But I cannot testify as to what was



  10:36     5      investigated at the time the investment was made.  And I



            6      think it's irrelevant frankly.  We are where we are



            7      today and the investment needs to be made now in fixing



            8      this system.  That's all that matters.  Seriously, it's



            9      all that matters.



  10:36    10           MS. SCHMID:  Objection.  The witness is being



           11      argumentative with counsel.



           12           MR. ATWATER:  Objection to the line of questioning.



           13           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I agree that the examination



           14      has become argumentative.  I think that Mr. White may



  10:36    15      have misinterpreted the question.  As I understood it,



           16      Ms. Schmid was asking general questions about



           17      Mr. White's knowledge and experience as a professional,



           18      and not particulars as to what transpired in this case.



           19           Are you satisfied at this point with the responses



  10:37    20      you've been given, Ms. Schmid?



           21           MS. SCHMID:  No.



           22           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Then we'll proceed.  Please



           23      pause, Mr. White, after the question is asked so if



           24      Mr. Atwater wishes to object he has an opportunity to do



  10:37    25      so.
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  10:37     1           MR. ATWATER:  And I do want to object to the



            2      question on the ground of relevance.  And also Mr. White



            3      never testified that he was an investment banker.  The



            4      question Ms. Schmid asked him was how many years have



  10:37     5      you spent in investment banking.  And I think his



            6      interpretation when he said three years was his



            7      involvement with the company, not investment banking.



            8      He does not purport to be an expert on investment



            9      banking and never stated as such.



  10:37    10           MR. SAVAGE:  Objection.  Speaking objection.



           11           MR. ATWATER:  Therefore it's irrelevant.  He does



           12      not have the knowledge to answer that question.



           13           MS. SCHMID:  I think I can ask a question -- couple



           14      questions that will finish this line of questioning, and



  10:37    15      I believe that the questions are relevant and I believe



           16      that I probably can ask them and have them answered in a



           17      shorter time than what we have spent objecting.



           18           THE HEARING OFFICER:  For the sake of a clear



           19      record, because we've had some objections that haven't



  10:38    20      been ruled on, they're all overruled.  The testimony



           21      will stand as it's been transcribed and we will proceed.



           22           MS. SCHMID:



           23           Q.  Okay.  Mr. White, you have experience in



           24      investment banking; is that correct?



  10:38    25           A.  I don't even know what the definition of that
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  10:38     1      is.  So I have experience in investments.



            2           Q.  You have experience with Varde Partners?



            3           A.  I do.



            4           Q.  You also served as a real estate developer; is



  10:38     5      that correct?



            6           A.  I have in the past.



            7           Q.  Is it common that due diligence would be



            8      performed as part of an acquisition of say a real estate



            9      development?



  10:38    10           A.  It is.



           11           Q.  Along that lines, would the profit and loss



           12      statements and balance sheets likely be examined?



           13           A.  If they're available.



           14           Q.  Okay.  Those are all my questions on that line.



  10:39    15      Just one second.  You've testified about the loan



           16      application and process with the Division of Drinking



           17      Water; is that correct?



           18           A.  Yes.  I've referred to it, yes.



           19           Q.  Were you involved in the decision to seek a



  10:39    20      loan from DDW?



           21           A.  Yes.



           22           Q.  Have you been involved in the processing and



           23      application of that?



           24           A.  Generally, yes.



  10:39    25           Q.  Were you familiar with what was included in the
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  10:39     1      loan initially?



            2           A.  It was based on the Bowen and Collins' study.



            3           Q.  As part of that do you know if the tank was



            4      included?



  10:40     5           A.  In the original application it wasn't.  It was



            6      added when the tank failed.



            7           Q.  Do you know if funds for the treatment plant



            8      were included in the original application?



            9           A.  I believe so.



  10:40    10           Q.  And is it your testimony that funds associated



           11      with the tank replacement had been withdrawn from the



           12      loan request?



           13           A.  I don't know whether they've been formally



           14      withdrawn or not, but from a timing standpoint and a



  10:40    15      practical standpoint, we discussed and have pursued that



           16      as a separate matter.  Because it would have delayed the



           17      construction and implementation of the tank.  I don't



           18      believe it's been formally withdrawn from the loan



           19      request yet.



  10:40    20           Q.  If it has not been withdrawn and if the loan is



           21      approved, then money for the tank would be included in



           22      the loan?



           23           A.  It could be.  But that also means that the tank



           24      would not likely be constructed until 2019.



  10:41    25           Q.  I'll move to that right now then.  So you
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  10:41     1      testified about the tank process in general, and I



            2      didn't take detailed notes so I can't remember the exact



            3      dates.  So I'll ask you now.  When did the tank fail?



            4           A.  I believe it failed in May of this year.



  10:41     5           Q.  Of 2017?



            6           A.  Yes.



            7           Q.  So was it in April or May?



            8           A.  It was sometime in the spring of this year.  I



            9      don't remember the exact date.



  10:41    10           Q.  Has a replacement tank been ordered?



           11           A.  It has not.



           12           Q.  Have studies been conducted to determine what



           13      replacement tank should be ordered?



           14           A.  They have.



  10:42    15           Q.  And those studies were conducted by Summit



           16      Water; is that correct?



           17           A.  Yes.  And by Bowen & Collins.  By both.



           18           Q.  And by Bowen & Collins.  Do you have any idea



           19      how long it takes from the time that a tank is ordered



  10:42    20      until a tank suitable for installation is deposited at



           21      the site?



           22           A.  It takes roughly four months.



           23           Q.  So the tank hasn't been ordered yet?



           24           A.  It hasn't.  There is no money to order the



  10:42    25      tank.
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  10:42     1           Q.  That's another line of questioning.  We'll get



            2      there in a bit.  When does the site for tank placement



            3      become inaccessible?



            4           A.  Probably depends upon snow.  Depends upon the



  10:42     5      season.  Likely late November.



            6           Q.  When does the site become accessible again?



            7           A.  Again, it depends upon snow and season and when



            8      it melts.  But likely May.



            9           Q.  Likely May.  Is there additional site



  10:43    10      preparation work that is required before the tank would



           11      be placed?



           12           A.  There is.  And that was part of the study.  One



           13      of the reasons the tank failed is that the foundation of



           14      the previous tank was inadequate.  And it has to be



  10:43    15      taken out.  So part of the study that we did was to



           16      actually do soil borings and design a new concrete



           17      foundation for the new tank.



           18           Q.  Is that design completed?



           19           A.  It is.



  10:43    20           Q.  Has any construction work begun tearing out the



           21      old foundation?



           22           A.  No.



           23           Q.  Has any construction work began dismantling the



           24      old tank?



  10:43    25           A.  Yes.  The old tank was dismantled and removed.
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  10:43     1           Q.  Has any construction operations been initiated



            2      for the new foundation?



            3           A.  No.  Not yet.  Just the design.



            4           Q.  Do you know if the materials have been ordered?



  10:43     5           A.  No.  It's all subject to the ability to pay.



            6           Q.  One option that has been discussed in addition



            7      to a loan from DDW is a loan from the parent



            8      corporation.  Are you familiar with that?



            9           A.  Yes.



  10:44    10           Q.  Currently is that an option for the company?



           11           A.  I can't tell you that.  Because I don't know.



           12      At the time that we looked at the voluntary repayment,



           13      it was.  I have not requested it recently and that's why



           14      in the submission we requested for a special assessment



  10:44    15      for the entire cost of the tank.  I can't tell whether a



           16      loan would be available today or not.



           17           Q.  Have you withdrawn the loan request?



           18           A.  It wasn't a formal request so there wasn't a



           19      written request.



  10:45    20           Q.  Okay.  You also talked about a proposed



           21      transfer to Summit Water Distribution Company, and that



           22      Summit Water has participated in certain investigatory



           23      matters such as what tank should be ordered; is that



           24      correct?



  10:45    25           A.  Yes.
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  10:45     1           Q.  What currently is the relationship between CWC,



            2      the company, and Summit Water Distribution Company?



            3           A.  Summit Water Distribution Company has been



            4      managing Community Water for as far as I know 20 years



  10:45     5      or more.



            6           Q.  And Summit Water is paid to do that; is that



            7      correct?



            8           A.  Yeah.



            9           Q.  Is it correct that CWC is still pursuing a



  10:46    10      transfer of the company and its assets in some form to



           11      Summit Water Distribution Company?



           12           A.  I would say that it is pursuing a management



           13      agreement.  As I explained before, the -- Community



           14      Water is currently a liability.  That liability cannot



  10:46    15      be transferred to the ownership or the shareholders of



           16      Summit Water.  And so what's been discussed is setting



           17      up Community Water as a nonprofit and have it managed



           18      under a management agreement with Summit Water.  That's



           19      what has been pursued.



  10:46    20           Q.  So the assets would be maintained in that



           21      separate newly formed company?



           22           A.  Correct.



           23           Q.  Is the replacement of the tank a prerequisite



           24      to Summit Water Distribution Company taking over the



  10:47    25      management in total of CWC as it would exist in that new
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  10:47     1      company?



            2           A.  Yes.



            3           Q.  So let's move to the regulatory world.  And



            4      this is your first regulatory proceeding I understand.



  10:47     5      But it's an exciting world and we're happy to be in it



            6      and we're glad that you joined us.



            7           So would it surprise you to know that a public



            8      utility has the duty to provide reasonable -- sorry --



            9      to provide adequate service to its customers?



  10:47    10           A.  It would not surprise me, no.



           11           Q.  Would it surprise you that that obligation is



           12      independent of the company's financial status?



           13           A.  That would greatly surprise me because I don't



           14      understand how a company operates without the



  10:48    15      appropriate financial capacity to pay its bills.



           16           Q.  Is it your understanding -- and I believe you



           17      testified to this -- that a regulated utility can come



           18      in and ask for a rate increase?



           19           A.  Could you repeat the question.



  10:48    20           Q.  Is it your understanding -- and I believe you



           21      testified to this -- that a regulated utility can come



           22      in and ask for a rate increase?



           23           A.  Yes.



           24           Q.  We talked a little bit about that.  Would it



  10:48    25      surprise you that in 2014 Community Water Company filed
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  10:48     1      a rate case?



            2           A.  Would it surprise me?  No.



            3           Q.  Would it surprise you that the application was



            4      ordered incomplete by the commission?



  10:48     5           A.  No.



            6           Q.  Would it surprise you that CWC filed a rate



            7      case in July of 2015?



            8           A.  No.



            9           Q.  Would it surprise you that in December of 2015



  10:49    10      the water company filed a notice of intent to dismiss



           11      the application?



           12           A.  No.



           13           Q.  Would it surprise you that the reason was that



           14      the company had become aware of information that might



  10:49    15      allow it to meet its revenue requirement without



           16      increasing rates?



           17           MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  Relevance.



           18           MS. SCHMID:  Again, I believe this is pertinent



           19      because it explains how we are where we are.



  10:49    20           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Overruled.



           21           THE WITNESS:  Yes, that would surprise me.



           22           MS. SCHMID:



           23           Q.  Would it surprise you that in December of 2015



           24      there was an order of dismissal in the rate case?



  10:49    25           A.  Again, I have no knowledge of that but --
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  10:49     1           Q.  You referenced that there has been a recent



            2      rate case.  Would it surprise you that the Commission



            3      ordered the Division of Public Utilities, not the



            4      company, to file that rate case?



  10:50     5           A.  No.



            6           Q.  You talked about the Division thwarting



            7      Community Water's efforts to improve its system.  Along



            8      those lines I have just a few questions.



            9           Would it surprise you that it is the duty of the



  10:50    10      public utility to prove that a rate increase is needed?



           11           A.  No.  I suppose it wouldn't surprise me.



           12           Q.  Would it surprise you that the burden of proof



           13      is on the company to make that?



           14           A.  No, it would not surprise me.



  10:51    15           MS. SCHMID:  Those are all my questions.  Thank



           16      you.



           17           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Savage?



           18           MR. SAVAGE:  Thank you, Your Honor.



           19           Q.  Mr. White, I'd like to focus initially on the



  10:51    20      proposal that was made to the customers in meetings



           21      concerning a schedule for repayment for the tank.  Do



           22      you understand what I'm talking about?



           23           A.  Uh-huh.



           24           Q.  Would you tell us what the proposal was that



  10:51    25      needed a hundred percent approval from the customers?
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  10:51     1           A.  So the proposal was to cover a special



            2      assessment necessary to replace the failed tank.



            3           Q.  Wasn't that payment over time?



            4           A.  Yes, it was over time.



  10:52     5           Q.  And wasn't it approximately $50 a month or



            6      something for 12 months or more?



            7           A.  I don't recall what the number was, but the



            8      notion was that whatever the cost of it would be, $450-,



            9      $500,000 would be divided by the customer base over a



  10:52    10      12-month period.



           11           Q.  So it would be paid in 12 installments over a



           12      12-month period?



           13           A.  Yes.



           14           Q.  And wasn't it also presented that this would be



  10:52    15      paid off, this 12-month loan before the $3.6 million



           16      loan needed servicing?



           17           A.  In the original proposal that was the notion.



           18           Q.  Okay.  And you're telling us that you believed



           19      at the time that it would be possible -- before you had



  10:52    20      these meetings it would be possible to get all 502 users



           21      to agree to that?



           22           A.  No.  What -- the customers that we met with we



           23      asked whether they would voluntarily go along with the



           24      special assessment if we had unanimous consent.  It was



  10:53    25      our understanding -- at least my understanding -- a lay
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  10:53     1      person's understanding that we did not need Public



            2      Service Commission approval for that.  So that's why we



            3      sought the unanimous consent of the customer base for



            4      that special assessment.



  10:53     5           Q.  Okay.  You've just answered what would have



            6      been my next question.  It was your understanding at the



            7      time that you needn't come to the Public Service



            8      Commission if you could get a hundred percent of the



            9      customers to agree to a 12-month loan payoff of the



  10:53    10      $450,000, $500,000 tank?



           11           A.  It was my understanding that if we got



           12      unanimous consent for a special assessment regardless of



           13      the terms, that we did not need to come to a public



           14      service commission.  That was my understanding.  That's



  10:53    15      why we made the request.



           16           Q.  Did you have support from the representatives



           17      of the customers at that meeting for that proposal?



           18           A.  We did not.



           19           Q.  Why not?



  10:53    20           A.  Because we were told that associations could



           21      not guarantee that their constituents or owners would



           22      pay.



           23           Q.  Did that surprise you?



           24           A.  Yes.  My knowledge since I've developed



  10:54    25      condominiums in general, condominium association
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  10:54     1      documents and bylaws allow for the associations to make



            2      sure that if there are special assessments, particularly



            3      for infrastructure or emergencies, that they're allowed



            4      to charge their owners and ensure to pay them.



  10:54     5           Q.  Weren't there 50 or so homeowners that were not



            6      in condominium associations who were also customers who



            7      would need to consent?



            8           A.  I don't know what the split is, but roughly



            9      70 percent or more of the Community Water customer base



  10:54    10      is condominiums.



           11           Q.  Yeah.  But you needed a hundred percent, and



           12      with what you just stated, 30 percent would be people



           13      that were not in condominium associations, individual



           14      owners?  Pardon?



  10:54    15           A.  What's your point?



           16           Q.  You would need their consent as well?



           17           A.  Correct.  But we didn't have the consent of the



           18      condo owners so what difference does it make?



           19           Q.  No.  No.  You're saying -- which one of us did



  10:55    20      not agree to try to get our condominium associations to



           21      support --



           22           A.  Hidden Creek was one.



           23           Q.  Pardon?



           24           A.  Hidden Creek was one.  It was specifically



  10:55    25      stated in the meeting that the condo associations did
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  10:55     1      not have the capacity to guarantee payments by owners.



            2           Q.  At that meeting?



            3           A.  At that meeting.



            4           Q.  Right.  But didn't they express an interest in



  10:55     5      pursuing that and trying to get a loan of that type with



            6      an agreement from the homeowners?



            7           A.  There was interest in pursuing it, but there



            8      was no conclusion.



            9           Q.  All right.  And there was a series of meetings



  10:55    10      about this issue, was there not?  Two, three?



           11           A.  There were multiple meetings with customers.



           12      Yes, we've had multiple meetings with customers.



           13           Q.  And you said you went to your executive



           14      committee on -- I guess the company's board that owns



  10:56    15      CWC?  Was that the organization you went to?



           16           A.  I already explained what the ownership



           17      structure of CWC is.



           18           Q.  Okay.  Who's the direct owner?



           19           A.  ASC Utah.



  10:56    20           Q.  Okay.  When you just told us a minute ago -- a



           21      few minutes ago that you went to the board and told --



           22      or your executive committee of the board and told them



           23      that you could not get a hundred percent agreement of



           24      the customers so forget about the loan, was that the



  10:56    25      board of ASC Utah?
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  10:56     1           A.  There is no board of ASC Utah.



            2           Q.  So who did you go to?



            3           A.  To the executive committee of TCFC Finance.



            4           Q.  Okay.  And I've seen TCFC Finance and TCFC.



  10:56     5      Are they the same entity?



            6           A.  Yes.



            7           Q.  So does TCFC Financial own ASC Utah?



            8           A.  So I already explained the structure.  The sole



            9      member of CWC is ASC Utah.  The sole member of ASC Utah



  10:57    10      is TCFC Finance.



           11           Q.  You are in what position for those two



           12      entities?



           13           A.  I am the CEO of TCFC.



           14           Q.  And do you have a position with ASC Utah?



  10:57    15           A.  No.



           16           Q.  And when you told us earlier that Talisker had



           17      an interest in Talisker acquired by Varde and later



           18      Varde took controlling interest, is that TCFC Financial



           19      or is that another step up the ladder?



  10:57    20           A.  I believe it's TCFC Finance.



           21           Q.  That Varde has an interest in and now controls?



           22           A.  Yes.



           23           Q.  Is that V-A-R-D-E?



           24           A.  Yes.



  10:57    25           Q.  Thank you.  So now when you went to the
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  10:57     1      executive committee of TCFC Financial, how many people



            2      are in that executive committee?



            3           A.  Two.



            4           Q.  And what is your title with respect to that



  10:58     5      committee?



            6           A.  I have no title of that committee.



            7           Q.  So it's a two-person committee?



            8           A.  Yes.



            9           Q.  And that's a committee made up of board members



  10:58    10      of TCFC?



           11           A.  It's an executive committee that consists of



           12      two people.



           13           Q.  All right.  I understand that.  Are they both



           14      board members?



  10:58    15           A.  I can't answer your question in terms of --



           16      again, I'm not a lawyer.  I don't know the structure.



           17           Q.  You don't know if you were a board member?



           18           A.  I know I'm not a board member.



           19           Q.  Who appointed the committee of two?



  10:58    20           A.  Again, you're asking questions that I can't



           21      answer.



           22           Q.  All right.  You were the CEO?



           23           A.  I am the CEO of TCFC.



           24           Q.  Okay.  Did you appoint somebody else to be with



  10:58    25      you on this committee?
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  10:58     1           A.  I did not.



            2           Q.  When you went to this committee of you and one



            3      other person and told them --



            4           MR. ATWATER:  Objection to the question, Your



  10:58     5      Honor.  He suggested that Mr. White was on the committee



            6      which --



            7           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think it misstates the



            8      testimony.  I agree with you.



            9           MR. SAVAGE:



  10:59    10           Q.  Are you on the committee?



           11           A.  I am not.



           12           Q.  I'm sorry.  I misunderstood.  When you went to



           13      the two-person committee and -- at that point in time



           14      was it planned that TCFC would provide the funding for



  10:59    15      the emergency replacement of the tank before you went to



           16      them?



           17           A.  Well, I can't say that we had a specific source



           18      of where the funding would come from, but we knew that



           19      we could provide the funding.



  10:59    20           Q.  Okay.  And had you had a meeting with this



           21      committee before meeting with the customers of TCFC



           22      about needing a hundred percent agreement?



           23           A.  We have regular meetings so that was certainly



           24      expressed to them.



  10:59    25           Q.  No, I'm trying to get the timing of this.  Did
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  10:59     1      this committee know that you needed a hundred percent



            2      approval for a 12-month assessment of the owners when



            3      you first talked to the committee about TCFC providing



            4      money to provide this tank?



  11:00     5           A.  The committee knew that there needed to be a



            6      source of repayment.



            7           Q.  Okay.  Did they know about what you've later



            8      told us was a need for a hundred percent agreement?



            9           A.  I don't recall whether that was expressed to



  11:00    10      them explicitly or not.



           11           Q.  How long after the tank failed did you first



           12      have conversations with this committee about TCFC



           13      funding a short term loan?



           14           A.  Probably within a month.



  11:00    15           Q.  At that time did you talk to the committee



           16      about an alternative of applying to the public services



           17      commission for an interim rate increase to fund that?



           18           A.  We did not.



           19           Q.  Had you ever talked to them about that until



  11:00    20      let's say September 1st of 2017?



           21           A.  Yes.  The decision was made after that meeting



           22      that we needed to pursue Public Service Commission



           23      approval because we did not have the approval of the



           24      homeowners or the customers.



  11:00    25           Q.  Isn't it true that you also attached another



                                               65

�









  11:00     1      condition to the users, that being that they would agree



            2      to the transfer of ownership to Summit and agree to



            3      Summit seeking -- support Summit's efforts to get out



            4      from under Public Service Commission supervision?



  11:01     5           A.  So part of the conversation and the



            6      conversation for a long time, as you well know, has been



            7      attempting to transfer Community Water customers over to



            8      Summit Water.  It was the request of the Community Water



            9      customers that that happen.



  11:01    10           Q.  Well, it's also what TCFC wanted?



           11           A.  Mutual agreement.  Seems like it should be



           12      easy, does it not?



           13           Q.  Is the answer yes?  That's also what TCFC



           14      wanted?



  11:01    15           A.  Yes.



           16           Q.  Okay.  And wasn't it the condition of money



           17      from the parent, TCFC, to fund this short-term loan to



           18      replace the tank -- wasn't it a condition that a vast



           19      majority of the users agree to the transfer of the



  11:02    20      company to a company control by Summit Water and seek



           21      and support Summit Water in an attempt to get out from



           22      under Public Service Commission supervision?



           23           A.  So we discussed a process by which Community



           24      Water would get transferred to the management of Summit



  11:02    25      Water.  I've already said that we've already discussed
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  11:02     1      the process by which that would take place.



            2           Q.  You haven't answered my question.



            3           A.  I don't know the answer to your question.



            4           Q.  Wasn't a condition placed upon the money coming



  11:02     5      from Summit -- from TCFC -- the money coming to replace



            6      the tank -- wasn't a condition placed on that that the



            7      customers would support a transfer of the -- of CWC to



            8      Summit Water and Summit Water getting out from under --



            9      or CWC getting out from under public service control?



  11:02    10      That's a yes or no.  Wasn't that a condition?



           11           A.  We discussed a number of provisions by which we



           12      would process towards an end goal of repairing the



           13      system, including the tank, and transferring the assets



           14      to the customers with Summit Water management.  That's



  11:03    15      what we discussed.



           16           Q.  Transferring it to the customers without the



           17      customers being able to vote for the majority of the



           18      board of that new company; is that correct?  Wasn't that



           19      the proposal?



  11:03    20           A.  There were many discussions about how to manage



           21      the company.



           22           MR. ATWATER:  May I help reframe the question.  I



           23      think maybe a different question would help.  Is that



           24      okay?



  11:03    25           MR. SAVAGE:  Yeah.
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  11:03     1           MR. ATWATER:  So what he's trying to determine is



            2      would TCFC have loaned the tank funds to Community Water



            3      had Community Water's customers not agreed to become



            4      Summit Water.



  11:03     5           THE WITNESS:  There were no specific, you know,



            6      terms of the loan that were discussed.  It was an idea



            7      to try and advance quickly the replacement of the tank.



            8      That's all it was.  And it was coincidental to the



            9      conversation about how to complete the rest of the



  11:04    10      infrastructure, close on the loan, get it under the



           11      appropriate management of Summit Water.  That's what was



           12      going on at the time.



           13           MR. ATWATER:  So there was no expressed condition?



           14           THE WITNESS:  Not that I recall.



  11:04    15           MR. SAVAGE:



           16           Q.  When you went to your executive committee, did



           17      you talk to them about the desire of TCFC to do a deal



           18      with Summit Water with the support of the customers?



           19           A.  Yes.



  11:04    20           Q.  And did you report back to them that that was



           21      also something that the customers did not support?



           22           A.  We've had those conversations, yes.



           23           Q.  Would you recommend that same committee



           24      tomorrow, that it fund a short-term loan to pay for the



  11:04    25      tank if this commission orders an emergency interim rate
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  11:04     1      increase with a stream of income of say 12 months to



            2      repay that loan with interest?



            3           A.  Again, it depends on the specific conditions,



            4      but in general, yes, I could recommend that.



  11:05     5           Q.  All right.  Thank you.  And that would be



            6      without any deal with Summit Water?



            7           A.  That would be independent of any deal with



            8      Summit Water.



            9           Q.  Okay.  Now the --



  11:05    10           A.  But it would also be in -- with the intent of



           11      also repairing the rest of the system.  Because it



           12      doesn't do any good just to replace a single tank when



           13      the rest of the system is failing, and when there were



           14      no meters, you know, to half the customers, in order to



  11:05    15      recover the cost of the water that's being used.



           16           Q.  I understand that.  But we'll get to that



           17      later.  You said that as of this moment, Community



           18      Water, CWC, is what?  72,000 in the red?



           19           A.  With no fees, yes.  With no overhead allocated,



  11:05    20      yes.



           21           Q.  And isn't it true that in the history of CWC



           22      that you've been aware of, the bulk of its money comes



           23      in in the summer as revenue?



           24           A.  I couldn't tell you exactly the income curve,



  11:06    25      but that's generally when the highest use is.
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  11:06     1           Q.  Sure.  People are watering their lawns?



            2           A.  Correct.



            3           Q.  And that's a much higher use than indoor use



            4      during the winter; correct?



  11:06     5           A.  Correct.



            6           Q.  And isn't it a fact that you imposed -- CWC I



            7      should say -- imposed a restriction that nobody water



            8      their lawns this summer?



            9           A.  That's correct.



  11:06    10           Q.  And isn't that why there is $112,000 deficit?



           11           A.  I don't think that there is any relationship



           12      between those two things.



           13           Q.  Okay.  You don't think there is any



           14      relationship between receiving revenue and not receiving



  11:06    15      revenue you would have otherwise received and not being



           16      in the red?



           17           A.  I think that there is a direct relationship



           18      between the money that's being spent on engineering and



           19      legal fees to prepare for rate cases and prepare for the



  11:07    20      repairs that need to be made to the system.



           21           Q.  You said there have been $36,000 in engineering



           22      fees for this tank already; correct?



           23           A.  Correct.



           24           Q.  Who paid for that?



  11:07    25           A.  There is $30,000 that are currently in accounts
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  11:07     1      payable.



            2           Q.  Who is going to pay for that?



            3           A.  That's a good question.



            4           Q.  Whose paid what has been paid?  Has TCFC paid



  11:07     5      anything?



            6           A.  So not directly.  So TCFC makes loans to



            7      Community Water.



            8           Q.  Okay.  To cover deficits?



            9           A.  To cover deficits, correct.



  11:07    10           Q.  And that also would be the type of structure



           11      that would be done in this instance if TCFC chose to



           12      fund the tank replacement with a guaranteed stream of



           13      income from the Public Service Commission?



           14           A.  With a guaranteed stream of income from its



  11:07    15      customers.



           16           Q.  Yeah.  But I mean ordered by the Public Service



           17      Commission?



           18           A.  Correct.



           19           Q.  You indicated that -- well, let's back up.  I'm



  11:08    20      still not clear as to who bought what.  When was -- Did



           21      ASC Utah to your knowledge own CWC before Talisker



           22      became involved in the Canyons?



           23           A.  I wasn't around at that time so I have no idea



           24      of the legal structure.



  11:08    25           Q.  Do you have any knowledge as to who owned
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  11:08     1      Community Water before Talisker acquired an interest in



            2      the Canyons?



            3           A.  Again my understanding is that ASCU owned



            4      Community Water, but I wasn't around at the time.  I



  11:08     5      don't know that as fact.



            6           Q.  And then when was it that Talisker purchased an



            7      interest in the Canyons?



            8           A.  In 2008.



            9           Q.  2008.  And at that time did it acquire



  11:08    10      indirectly Community Water?



           11           A.  Again, to my knowledge, that was part of the



           12      asset base, but I wasn't around at the time so I can't



           13      tell you how the structure worked.



           14           Q.  Do you know of any change in the structure



  11:09    15      since or prior to the structure you just told us about?



           16           A.  I'm not aware, no.



           17           Q.  Is it your understanding that TCFC when it



           18      acquired ASC, acquired the company of Community Water?



           19           A.  Again, I don't know what the transaction was



  11:09    20      that took place.  But it's my understanding that



           21      Community Water were part of the assets of the



           22      investment.



           23           Q.  Right.  But it was a company that was



           24      purchased, not just the assets of it.  You didn't buy



  11:09    25      the pump and the tanks and the irrigation lines.
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  11:09     1      Talisker bought Community Water, the company?



            2           A.  I've already testified to the fact I don't know



            3      how that transaction was structured.



            4           Q.  Okay.  When did you first become involved?



  11:09     5           A.  I became involved in February of 2014.



            6           Q.  And as of February 2014, TCFC owned the company



            7      CWC, not just its assets?



            8           MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  It's been stated that



            9      TCFC owned ASC Utah.



  11:10    10           MR. SAVAGE:



           11           Q.  Okay.  Well, indirectly owned the company.  ASC



           12      owned the water company; is that correct?



           13           A.  I've already explained the structure.



           14           Q.  Yeah, but I'm interested in making it clear for



  11:10    15      the record that Talisker, an entity controlled by



           16      Talisker, acquired the company and not just the assets



           17      of the company?



           18           A.  And I've already testified that I don't know



           19      how the company was acquired.



  11:10    20           Q.  Okay.  So you don't know if the company was



           21      acquired or just its assets were acquired?



           22           A.  I've already answered your question.



           23           Q.  And it is you don't know?



           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  It's asked and answered.



  11:10    25      Let's move on.
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  11:10     1           MR. SAVAGE:  You don't know; correct?



            2           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Asked and answered.  Let's



            3      move on.



            4           MR. SAVAGE:



  11:10     5           Q.  Now you stated in your direct testimony that



            6      people have been in denial about the dilapidated



            7      condition of the Community Water infrastructure.  Do you



            8      recall that testimony?



            9           A.  I do.



  11:11    10           Q.  Who are the people?



           11           A.  You.



           12           Q.  So you're blaming the customers for the



           13      condition of the company's infrastructure?



           14           MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  Relevance.



  11:11    15           MR. SAVAGE:  That's what he just said.



           16           THE WITNESS:  I'm not blaming anybody.



           17           THE HEARING OFFICER:  The objection is sustained.



           18      It's argumentative.  If you could restate your question



           19      in a way that would be more constructive to the issues



  11:11    20      at hand, that would be helpful.



           21           MR. SAVAGE:



           22           Q.  All right.  In saying the people have been in



           23      denial, you said me.  By me, did you mean just me or do



           24      you mean the users, the customers?



  11:11    25           A.  So in all these conversations which you know



                                               74

�









  11:11     1      very well, because you've attended all these and spoken



            2      at length -- in all of our attempts to try and resolve



            3      these issues and talk about the infrastructure



            4      deficiencies and ways of trying to rectify them, the



  11:12     5      customers have been more interested in what they're



            6      paying per month and trying to, you know, maintain that



            7      at the lowest possible level versus, you know,



            8      understand, engage in and agree to a payment method to



            9      repair the system.



  11:12    10           And every single one of these cases you've objected



           11      to.  The last case you objected to.  You're objecting to



           12      this one.  In every case the customers have -- and you



           13      as representatives of your associations -- have objected



           14      to the rate case.



  11:12    15           Q.  I don't want to be argumentative, but I think



           16      I've made an alternative proposal.  I'm objecting to the



           17      company's proposal for how this is paid.  You're



           18      interpreting that as meaning the people who object to



           19      the amount of the rate increase or how the rate increase



  11:12    20      is to be accomplished, that those are people that are



           21      trying to keep the system in a dilapidated condition.



           22      Is that your belief?



           23           A.  No.  My testimony is that they're trying to



           24      keep their rates as low as possible and they're not



  11:13    25      acknowledging what it actually costs to repair the
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  11:13     1      system.  We have an engineering study which Fran



            2      Amendola and others have questioned the validity of, and



            3      we don't really have to do that.  We don't really have



            4      to make all those changes to the treatment system to



  11:13     5      make it work.  We can get by with less.  And all these



            6      conversations are an attempt to thwart our ability to



            7      run this company appropriately and make the repairs that



            8      are necessary to have it function properly.



            9           Q.  And you've said as you just stated now, every



  11:13    10      attempt has been thwarted; correct?



           11           A.  That's what I said.



           12           Q.  And isn't it true that since you became



           13      involved, this is the first rate case that has been



           14      filed by Community Water for a capital improvement other



  11:13    15      than the one that they moved to dismiss in 2016?



           16           A.  Again, I'm not -- as I testified before, I was



           17      not surprised about the previous rate cases in terms of



           18      attempts, but as I was aware that there had been



           19      attempts before, again to my involvement this is the



  11:14    20      first time that we have brought one forward and brought



           21      all the evidence necessary to make the case.



           22           Q.  Okay.  So to your knowledge this is the first



           23      time that a rate case for a capital improvement has been



           24      brought forward?



  11:14    25           A.  I don't know whether there have been previous
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  11:14     1      cases brought forward for capital improvements.



            2           Q.  I asked your knowledge.



            3           A.  I wasn't involved in any of the previous rate



            4      cases.



  11:14     5           Q.  To your knowledge, this is the first one?



            6           MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  The record is clear on



            7      this issue.



            8           THE HEARING OFFICER:  He said "Yeah, I have no



            9      knowledge" and you're asking him again if he did.



  11:14    10      Objection is sustained for the record.



           11           MR. SAVAGE:



           12           Q.  Do you recall me suggesting in May or June that



           13      you ought to go on a parallel track and file a rate case



           14      for interim rate case to cover this failed tank at the



  11:15    15      same time you were trying to work a deal with Summit



           16      Water?



           17           A.  I don't recall that.



           18           Q.  Do you recall me proposing a rotational



           19      watering system to allow us to try to maintain our



  11:15    20      landscaping with some minimal water without endangering



           21      the capacity of the remaining tank?



           22           A.  I do recall you requesting that.



           23           Q.  And that was rejected, was it not?



           24           A.  It was.



  11:15    25           Q.  Now isn't it true in the Summit Water proposal
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  11:16     1      for this, you said a mutual company that the customers



            2      were owned as part of the discussions -- isn't it true



            3      that the proposed new company that would take over CWC,



            4      that the -- that Summit Water would own all of the class



  11:16     5      one stock and the users would be issued class two stock?



            6           MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  Relevance.



            7           MR. SAVAGE:



            8           Q.  Do you recall that?



            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Overruled.



  11:16    10           THE WITNESS:  There have been a number of



           11      discussions about how to structure this so that the



           12      liabilities of Community Water did not extend to Summit



           13      Water, but that the company be allowed to be managed in



           14      a professional manner by a company who was used to doing



  11:16    15      it.



           16           MR. SAVAGE:



           17           Q.  And ownership and control by vote.  Wasn't it



           18      true that the only proposal that we saw was that Summit



           19      Water would own all of the class one stock?



  11:17    20           A.  There have been several proposals in terms of



           21      how to structure this.  I've already explained what the



           22      intention of the structure is.



           23           Q.  I want to know the ownership and who gets the



           24      vote.



  11:17    25           A.  There has been nothing settled about the -- it
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  11:17     1      was one proposal.



            2           Q.  Right.  What was that proposal?  Class one



            3      stock and class two stock, wasn't it?



            4           A.  The proposal was for the management of the



  11:17     5      company that would be controlled by Summit Water.



            6           MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  Relevance.



            7           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Overruled.



            8           MR. SAVAGE:



            9           Q.  And Summit Water would have control of the --



  11:17    10      electing the majority of the board of the remaining



           11      company?



           12           A.  That was one proposal.



           13           Q.  That's the only one that's been made to the



           14      user, isn't it?



  11:17    15           A.  I've explained that it's been a process to come



           16      up with a viable means to transfer the company into



           17      professional ownership.



           18           Q.  Isn't that the only one that's been presented?



           19           A.  I've explained that it's been a process to come



  11:17    20      up with the viable means to transfer the company into



           21      professional ownership.



           22           Q.  And has there been in any of those proposals a



           23      proposal that would allow the users to control the



           24      number of board members?



  11:17    25           A.  It has been discussed.
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  11:17     1           Q.  Has that been proposed to the users?



            2           A.  It has been discussed, but it has not been



            3      proposed to the users.



            4           Q.  Who has it been discussed between?  You and



  11:18     5      Summit Water?



            6           A.  Discussed between me and Summit Water and our



            7      counsel.



            8           Q.  I don't want to know about discussions with



            9      your counsel.  So just so we're clear on the record,



  11:18    10      when you say there is a proposal for a -- for the



           11      owners -- for the users to take over ownership of the



           12      company, that has been a discussion between you and



           13      Summit Water?



           14           A.  And our counsel, yes.



  11:18    15           Q.  Okay.  Does Summit Water require -- as a



           16      condition to being an owner in that new company, does it



           17      require as a condition that the new company not be under



           18      Public Service Commission control?



           19           A.  Summit Water is not under Public Service



  11:18    20      Commission control.  It's a non-profit shareholder owned



           21      company.



           22           Q.  You didn't answer my question.



           23           A.  So yes, it's a requirement if it was to be



           24      transferred to their management that it not be under



  11:19    25      public service control.
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  11:19     1           Q.  Thank you.



            2           A.  Or I should say oversight run.



            3           Q.  Do you recall anybody on behalf of TCFC or



            4      Summit Water or CWC in one of these meetings stating



  11:19     5      that it would complicate a deal with Summit Water to



            6      apply to the Public Service Commission for an emergency



            7      loan to fix this tank?



            8           A.  No.



            9           Q.  Okay.  You don't recall Emily Lewis saying



  11:19    10      something like that?



           11           A.  No.



           12           Q.  Isn't it true that you represented to the



           13      customers that proceeding before the Public Service



           14      Commission a special assessment will take a minimum of



  11:19    15      120 days and more reasonably 240 days?



           16           A.  It was our understanding after repeated



           17      requests through Emily Lewis, that there was no



           18      provision for an emergency assessment or an emergency



           19      rate increase.  That the -- that whatever the



  11:20    20      application process is, that there was no provision for,



           21      you know, an emergency request or an emergency, you



           22      know, special assessment or rate increase.  That it



           23      needed to take its full course of roughly 240 -- that



           24      every rate increase or every rate case whether it be



  11:20    25      special assessment or rate case, that it took 240 days.



                                               81

�









  11:20     1           Q.  And yet we're here today in less than 45 days?



            2           A.  This is only the beginning of this case.  This



            3      is not the conclusion of this case.  This case will go



            4      on.  As my understanding and as a layperson and a



  11:20     5      lawyer, that this will go on.  That this is only the



            6      first part of this and that the subsequent part of the



            7      hearing can last up to 240 days.



            8           Q.  For adjustments to the interim rate?



            9           A.  I'm not going to opine as to --



  11:21    10           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Savage -- you don't need



           11      to answer that.  Mr. Savage, let's go ahead and move on



           12      from this line of questioning.  We know what the process



           13      is here.



           14           MR. SAVAGE:



  11:21    15           Q.  Anyhow, you represented 240 days in your --



           16           A.  That was my understanding and remains my



           17      understanding today.



           18           Q.  Okay.  That's all I have.  Thank you, sir.



           19           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Lange?



  11:22    20           MR. LANGE:  I have no questions for Mr. White at



           21      this point in time.



           22           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  And Ms. Miller?



           23           MS. MILLER:  Yes, I have a couple of things.



           24           Q.  Mr. White, you testified that Hidden Creek HOA



  11:22    25      couldn't guarantee repayment of an assessment for the



                                               82

�









  11:22     1      tank.  Would you be surprised to understand that in fact



            2      our amended condominium declaration requires that we



            3      have -- first obtain a majority of the project's



            4      ownership interest before we can make a one-time special



  11:22     5      assessment, but that a monthly payment plan would not be



            6      a problem for us to pass on to our owners?



            7           A.  Yes, that would be a surprise.



            8           Q.  Well, that in fact is the current case with our



            9      condominium declaration.



  11:23    10           A.  That was never expressed to us.



           11           Q.  Well, maybe you didn't listen to us.  Let me



           12      ask you another question.  Do you recall a request for



           13      documentation to support denial of the rotational



           14      irrigation?  In other words, a request for system



  11:23    15      modeling that shows that the system cannot support



           16      rotational irrigation during the summer months to keep



           17      our landscaping alive.



           18           A.  So let's explain that.  The remaining tank,



           19      which also is 40 years old, and could fail at any time



  11:23    20      is roughly 225,000 gallons.  At the time that the larger



           21      of the two tanks failed, we asked the fire department to



           22      come out and inspect the tank and tell us how much



           23      needed to be held in reserve in order to keep an



           24      adequate supply of water in the event of fire or



  11:24    25      emergency.  It was half the tank's capacity.  On advice
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  11:24     1      of counsel we determined that we should not allow



            2      irrigation and put that out to all -- gave notice to all



            3      the customers that we would not be able to provide the



            4      irrigation water for this summer.  We did that as a life



  11:24     5      safety manager and on the advice of counsel, that we



            6      would put homes and lives in peril if we allowed



            7      irrigation that potentially drew that tank down below



            8      the halfway mark, roughly $110,000 to $115,000 gallons.



            9           That actually happened fairly recently when



  11:24    10      apparently some electrical switch was triggered on the



           11      well, and the tank was drawn down below that emergency



           12      level.  But on advice of counsel and to notice of all



           13      the customers with full explanation as to why, we said



           14      no irrigation for this summer.  And a number of the



  11:25    15      homeowners, including Mr. Savage, violated that and



           16      irrigated anyway.



           17           Q.  So you're telling me you did not have an



           18      engineering study done to model the system to know how



           19      much excess capacity might be retained in the tank while



  11:25    20      still retaining fire safety?



           21           A.  We did have that knowledge.  We had --



           22           Q.  No, I asked you if you had an engineering model



           23      done of the system that demonstrated how much excess



           24      capacity was left in the tank?



  11:25    25           A.  We did not have an engineering model done.  We
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  11:25     1      knew how much the tank held.  We knew how much the



            2      customers used and we knew how much, based on the fire



            3      company, we needed to retain in the tank.



            4           Q.  Right.  So you took a guess at how much -- the



  11:25     5      fact that there wasn't any water available for



            6      irrigation?



            7           A.  I think I've already explained it.  It was not



            8      a guess.



            9           Q.  Okay.  So it was an educated guess?



  11:26    10           A.  I think I've already answered your question.



           11           Q.  So what is the plan if the current tank fails



           12      before the new tank is installed?



           13           A.  So we have the capacity that the system is



           14      hooked up.  Meaning there are pipes connecting the



  11:26    15      system to Summit Water system.  The problem with that is



           16      that if we draw water, and we recently did draw water



           17      from Summit Water in order to fill the tank back up



           18      after the well was temporarily out of commission, it was



           19      discovered that the tank was drawn down below its -- the



  11:26    20      necessary fire reserve capacity, and we filled it back



           21      up with Summit Water.



           22           The problem is that -- again, my understanding --



           23      so our cost of water from Summit is a high.  It's like



           24      an emergency cost of water.  And we have no way of



  11:26    25      passing that cost through to our customers, again,
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  11:26     1      without Public Service Commission approval.  That's my



            2      understanding.



            3           MS. MILLER:  That's all my questions.  Thank you.



            4           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  And I believe a



  11:27     5      representative from all of the HOAs and intervenors



            6      present, has already had an opportunity to ask



            7      cross-examination questions.  It seems redundant and a



            8      little unorthdox to allow Mr. Amendola an additional



            9      opportunity, but I'll allow it if there is no objections



  11:27    10      from counsel and he wishes to do so.



           11           MR. ATWATER:  I have no objection.



           12           MS. SCHMID:  I have no objection.



           13           MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.



           14           MR. LANGE:  No objection.



  11:27    15           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Amendola, do you have any



           16      questions for the witness?



           17           MR. AMENDOLA:  Just a couple, and I have to tell



           18      you I didn't have the luxury of hearing many of the



           19      responses by Mr. White just because the signal is not



  11:27    20      very good.



           21           Q.  Mr. White, during the July 17 meeting that was



           22      held at your offices, do you recall just basically



           23      unanimous support for moving forward with replacing the



           24      tank expressed by the customers?



  11:28    25           A.  I think I've already testified to this.  It was
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  11:28     1      our understanding that the customers were not capable of



            2      giving unanimous consent because they couldn't collect



            3      from owners.  This is specific to the condo



            4      associations.  So my understanding from that meeting is,



  11:28     5      no, we did not have unanimous consent.  We could not get



            6      unanimous consent, and therefore we could not have a



            7      special assessment agreed to by the customers.  And



            8      that's when we made the decision that we needed to go on



            9      the parallel path of pursuing Public Service Commission



  11:28    10      approval.



           11           Q.  Let me clarify my question.  I think you're



           12      responding to unanimous support to attain funding by the



           13      HOA associations because they needed time.  But for the



           14      people that were in that meeting, wasn't there unanimous



  11:29    15      support for the need to move forward with replacing the



           16      tank immediately?



           17           A.  It was certainly unanimous acknowledgment that



           18      we needed to move forward with replacing the tank, but



           19      there was no method of paying for it or if the company



  11:29    20      was to loan -- if TCFC was to loan the money to CWC to



           21      replace the tank, there was no ensured method of



           22      recovering that loan without -- I should say without



           23      coming back to the --



           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'm sorry.  You guys can't



  11:29    25      speak over each other.  Let's go ahead and allow
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  11:30     1      Mr. Amendola to phrase his question and Mr. White can



            2      respond.



            3           MR. AMENDOLA:  One other question I have is that



            4      back in the 1609 rate case, do you recall the Red Pine



  11:30     5      and Hidden Creek comments that were submitted that



            6      basically requested that more money be approved to



            7      upgrade the water treatment plant and acknowledgment of



            8      the ill-maintained condition of the plant?



            9           A.  I do not.



  11:30    10           MR. AMENDOLA:  Okay.  That's all I have.  Thank you



           11      very much for the opportunity.



           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you very much,



           13      Mr. Amendola.  Mr. Atwater, any redirect?



           14           MR. ATWATER:  Just one.  Thank you.



  11:30    15           Q.  Mr. White, in response to the questioning, I



           16      believe, of Ms. Schmid and Mr. Savage, you stated that



           17      an affiliate loan may be available to fund a replacement



           18      of the tank on certain terms and conditions.  Do you



           19      have any purview as to what those terms and conditions



  11:31    20      might be specifically -- economic terms in terms of rate



           21      of return, time frame of return?



           22           A.  So we have not had any further discussion with



           23      our executive committee about what the terms might be,



           24      so I don't have the specifics of that.  We've not made



  11:31    25      that request at this point in time because this case was
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  11:31     1      specific to special assessment to replace the tank



            2      immediately.  So I don't have any such terms.  I've not



            3      further discussed it with executive committee at this



            4      point.



  11:31     5           Q.  Thank you.  Just one follow-up.  You testified



            6      earlier that the promised rate of return to your



            7      investors -- or Varde's investors is approximately



            8      13 percent.  Is it your anticipation that the rate of



            9      return would be in that ballpark or would it be



  11:31    10      something different?



           11           A.  Again, the way that the funds are set up,



           12      that's the minimum promise to the investors.  So it's



           13      called a preferred rate of return to the investors.  So



           14      that would be the minimal rate that would be expected



  11:32    15      for any further loan or investment.



           16           Q.  So let me just rephrase and get your



           17      confirmation.  To the extent there is an affiliate loan



           18      available to fund the tank, the minimum rate of return



           19      required by that investment committee would be



  11:32    20      13 percent?



           21           A.  That's likely, but I can't predict what it is



           22      that they would determine, but that would be likely the



           23      minimum.



           24           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.



  11:32    25           MR. LANGE:  May I ask a question?
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  11:32     1           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any objection?



            2           MR. ATWATER:  No.



            3           MR. LANGE:



            4           Q.  So Mr. White, with the rate of return for Varde



  11:32     5      at 13 percent, is that for each one of its individual



            6      interests?  Or in other words, is the return for



            7      Community Water predicated on 13 percent, and say the



            8      return on investment for other interests at the Canyons



            9      came in at 23 percent or whatever it might be?  Are we



  11:32    10      looking at an overall global aspect of 13 percent, or do



           11      we have to pay 13 percent -- or do you have to pay 13



           12      percent precisely to Community Water?



           13           A.  So I've already testified to the fact I've not



           14      had that conversation with our executive committee, so I



  11:33    15      can't answer your question.



           16           Q.  Will you be having a conversation to clarify



           17      that?



           18           A.  Depends on the outcome of this hearing.



           19           MR. LANGE:  Thank you.  That's all the questions I



  11:33    20      have.



           21           THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Anything else,



           22      Mr. Atwater?



           23           MR. ATWATER:  No.  Thank you.



           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I just have a couple,



  11:33    25      Mr. White.
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  11:33     1           My understanding is that CWC was interested



            2      initially in pursuing funding for the tank through the



            3      Division of -- the department of water?  DDW?  Help me



            4      out.



  11:33     5           THE WITNESS:  Division of Drinking Water.



            6           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you -- as you referred



            7      to it --



            8           THE WITNESS:  That's correct.



            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  -- and later elected to --



  11:33    10      perhaps not formally -- but has elected at this time not



           11      to pursue funding for the tank with that money?



           12           THE WITNESS:  So for clarification we pursued



           13      funding of the tank directly through the special



           14      assessment because of timing and because of cost.



  11:34    15      Because the nature -- again, my understanding of the



           16      loan, is that we could not front costs even in deposit



           17      for the tank prior to closing the loan.  And that if it



           18      came under the loan provisions, we would have to wait



           19      until the loan was closed, then get bids on, you know,



  11:34    20      from multiple sources, and then wait for that period of



           21      time.  It likely would have driven the costs up for the



           22      tank and delayed the time period, which is why we



           23      pursued a different means of funding the tank.



           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Aside from the funding



  11:34    25      from the Division of Drinking Water and the loan from
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  11:34     1      the parent company that we've discussed, did the company



            2      pursue any other financing options for the tank from any



            3      other financier?



            4           A.  No, sir.  We don't believe that that's a



  11:34     5      commercially viable -- meaning going to a bank?  There



            6      are no -- when a company is under water from a financial



            7      standpoint and from an infrastructure standpoint, it's



            8      not a commercially financable transaction.



            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Did the company explore



  11:35    10      whether there were other public financing options



           11      available except for the Division of Drinking Water?



           12           THE WITNESS:  Yes.  Emily Lewis can testify to



           13      that.  We pursued numerous public financing on both the



           14      federal and state level, which is how we sourced this



  11:35    15      particular loan, and thought that it was the best



           16      solution for the company.  The lowest interest rate,



           17      longest term.  And so in terms of, again, cost to the



           18      customer in the end, that it was the most efficient from



           19      a cost standpoint.



  11:35    20           And one other, you know, element of this, just so



           21      you understand, in terms of the timing, we initially --



           22      when Emily originally discovered this loan opportunity



           23      and we made application to it, it was before the tank



           24      failed.  And at that time we thought that the loan could



  11:35    25      close sometime in the summer.  And as we got further
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  11:36     1      into it, further into the application, it gets more and



            2      more complicated.  So we didn't fully understand all the



            3      provisions and requirements of the loan.  So as we



            4      continued -- so it's our understanding now that we have



  11:36     5      to have full engineering.  In other words, we have to



            6      invest in all of the engineering costs to repair the



            7      system up front before the loan can close and be able to



            8      submit that.



            9           So consequently, the period of closing that loan



  11:36    10      became longer and longer.  It's now projected at April



           11      at the earliest.  So that was part of our decision in



           12      terms of separating or pursuing a different route to



           13      replace the tank rather than wait for that loan to



           14      close.  So as both a cost and time consideration.



  11:36    15           Q.  Did you consider or discuss with your parent



           16      company whether any short-term bridge financing might be



           17      available through the parent company pending eventual



           18      more permanent financing through the DDW?



           19           A.  So again, our understanding is that we could



  11:37    20      not use the DDW loan for any infrastructure that was put



           21      into place prior to the loan closing.  That was part of



           22      the complication.  It can't replace.  We tried that.  We



           23      asked them.  They can't replace infrastructure that is



           24      put into place prior to the loan closing because it



  11:37    25      doesn't follow Davis Bacon and other federal
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  11:37     1      requirements for bidding.



            2           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Right.  I wondered whether it



            3      might be possible to fragment the project or something.



            4      Perhaps you could use a bridge loan to get going.  It



  11:37     5      sounds like these questions might be better suited for



            6      another witness which I think I'm about to hear and I'm



            7      happy to wait.



            8           THE WITNESS:  Again, the answer to your question is



            9      that we could pursue some internal financing mechanism



  11:37    10      if the method of repayment was clear and approved, which



           11      is why we're here.



           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.



           13           MS. LEWIS:  Just to clarify, the Division of



           14      Drinking Water requires that you have a repayment



  11:37    15      structure in place before you can close on the loan.  So



           16      for that we are pursuing the parallel track of either



           17      having a Summit Water or Community Water non-profit



           18      structure be the repayment structure for a public



           19      service commission rate increase.  So it is -- to close



  11:38    20      on the loan you need to prove you have a repayment



           21      structure.  So that would been a hindrance in any kind



           22      of bridge.



           23           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  And you intend to



           24      testify; right?



  11:38    25           MS. LEWIS:  I can.



                                               94

�









  11:38     1           THE HEARING OFFICER:  You do not intend to testify?



            2           MR. AMENDOLA:  Your Honor, can I have a follow-up



            3      question on the loan?



            4           THE HEARING OFFICER:  No.  Let's wait a minute.



  11:38     5           What you essentially provided was testimony.  So if



            6      you want to make a statement, we need to put you under



            7      oath.  I think that would be appropriate.



            8           MS. SCHMID:  I am concerned if Ms. Lewis testifies



            9      as a witness while also serving as counsel.



  11:38    10           MR. ATWATER:  Would it be possible to include that



           11      in our closing statement?



           12           MS. SCHMID:  That's not evidence either.  Perhaps



           13      we could take a break and perhaps Mr. White's memory



           14      could be refreshed.



  11:39    15           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Well, I want the witness who



           16      is most qualified -- please let me finish -- I want the



           17      witness who is most qualified to speak to these matters



           18      to testify to them.  And it's up to CWC whether or not



           19      it wants its counsel to testify.  My understanding is



  11:39    20      that Ms. Lewis's role is perhaps more of a corporate



           21      transactional counsel.  I defer to the company whether



           22      they want to call that witness.



           23           MR. ATWATER:  Sure.  We're not concerned by the



           24      same concern that Ms. Schmid expressed at this level.



  11:39    25      Especially in the interim hearing.  So we would be



                                               95

�









  11:39     1      perfectly fine calling Ms. Lewis as a witness.



            2           MR. SAVAGE:  I don't know the normal practice for



            3      Public Service Commission, but in court an attorney



            4      cannot argue a case if they are a witness.  But other



  11:39     5      than that there is nothing stopping --



            6           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I understand that.  That's



            7      why I don't have a problem necessarily with Ms. Lewis



            8      testifying because of Mr. Atwater's representing --



            9           MR. SAVAGE:  Mr. Atwater will know if she tries to



  11:40    10      argue, I'll object.



           11           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think I'll conclude my



           12      questions for Mr. White.  I'll allow Mr. Atwater to



           13      decide whether he wants Ms. Lewis to take the stand,



           14      make a statement she just felt compelled to make on the



  11:40    15      record or not.  That of course will subject her to



           16      cross-examination.  I just can't allow counsel to make



           17      statements of fact and accept them as evidence without



           18      being sworn to testify.



           19           MR. ATWATER:  Okay.



  11:40    20           THE HEARING OFFICER:  You're excused, Mr. White.



           21           MR. ATWATER:  We're inclined to call Ms. Lewis, but



           22      we would like to call Ms. Campbell prior to calling



           23      Ms. Lewis if that would be okay.



           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Absolutely.  You can present



  11:40    25      your evidence in whatever order you prefer.
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  11:40     1           MR. ATWATER:  So the applicant calls Ms. Tena



            2      Campbell, engineer with Bowen & Collins, engineering



            3      firm, to the stand.



            4           (Tena Campbell is sworn in as a witness.)



  11:41     5           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you, Ms. Campbell, for



            6      attending.



            7           Q.  As a preliminary matter, I need to ask you, do



            8      you certify as true the testimony of Mr. Keith Larson



            9      who is a partner in Bowen & Collins and a partner of



  11:41    10      yours?



           11           A.  I do.



           12           Q.  I have just a few questions to you.



           13           MR. ATWATER:  In addition to the direct testimony



           14      provided by Mr. Larson, I also do want to clarify for



  11:41    15      those that cross-examine Ms. Campbell that the



           16      information in Mr. Larson's testimony regarding ERUs and



           17      other calculations are clear in the record, and



           18      Ms. Campbell may not have a direct knowledge to all of



           19      those questions.  And to the extent they may not be able



  11:41    20      to be answered today, we will do so as promptly as



           21      possible just so that you're aware.  She did not



           22      participate directly in the creation of the rate model.



           23           Q.  So my first question for you, Ms. Campbell,



           24      relates to -- first of all, what was your firm engaged



  11:42    25      to do with respect to the failed tank?
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  11:42     1           A.  So upon having looked at the system previously



            2      through the master planning process, we were engaged,



            3      being familiar with the system, to look at the failed



            4      tank to help assess options for replacement, being the



  11:42     5      same style and type that's there or an alternative that



            6      would be -- function the same, but be just as cost



            7      effective and make the system whole again.



            8           So we worked with Summit Water and their staff to



            9      evaluate above ground steel tanks, welded or bolted,



  11:42    10      determined what suppliers might supply such a tank, and



           11      what the timing of that might be.  We also were engaged



           12      to provide a foundation design to support whichever tank



           13      was chosen to replace the existing tank.



           14           Q.  Thank you.  Do you recall the time frame, month



  11:43    15      when you were engaged to provide that level of service?



           16           A.  It was almost immediately upon failure.  We



           17      were brought in to help consult with the style of the



           18      tank and the feasibility of replacing it.



           19           Q.  Thank you.  And can you testify as to the



  11:43    20      current condition or state of the work regarding the



           21      tank?



           22           A.  The existing tank has been removed.  The



           23      existing foundation that was there, which was minimum,



           24      has been removed.  So there is a bare ground site there



  11:43    25      right now.  The supplier of the tank has been engaged
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  11:43     1      and has prepared some shop drawings for the new tank.



            2           We are in the process of review and comment on



            3      those shop drawings to make it so that it is feasible to



            4      construct.  Bowen Collins has prepared a foundation



  11:44     5      design based upon the preliminary shop drawings with



            6      revision expected upon revision to the shop drawings.



            7      But we've also used that design that we've completed so



            8      far for preliminary bids on constructing that foundation



            9      on-site.



  11:44    10           Q.  Thank you.  Have you had any conversations with



           11      the Division of Drinking Water regarding the



           12      availability of the loan relative to construction of the



           13      tank?



           14           A.  Yes.  Just this week they had asked me is there



  11:44    15      a possibility of putting the tank in the loan as was



           16      originally asked upon the emergency situation.  At that



           17      time, I did tell them how far along we were with the



           18      supplier and bids on the foundation, and that it would



           19      be difficult, and maybe not very advantageous, to try



  11:45    20      and roll that back into the loan because we would have



           21      to start over with competitive bids of the tank



           22      supplier.  And that would change our design of the



           23      foundation to be with whichever tank met that criteria.



           24           Q.  Thank you.  And if I may just take a quick



  11:45    25      diversion to the general rate increase which has not
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  11:45     1      really been discussed today, but this may be the last



            2      chance we have to have you on the stand.  Your report in



            3      large part provides the evidence and information for



            4      substantiating those rates?



  11:45     5           A.  Yes.



            6           Q.  And could you just describe the process that



            7      Bowen & Collins employs generally in determining when



            8      engaged to prepare a water rate study what that process



            9      looks like?



  11:45    10           A.  Well, typically we do analysis of the water



           11      system.  There is a few different options you can



           12      choose.  This particular one is one that we used to



           13      existing water use for our basis of calculating the



           14      rate.  Working with the water system on historic use,



  11:46    15      that type of thing, to prepare the rate that we could



           16      come up with.  Industry standard is typically to



           17      calculate it based on use, which drags us to the ERU



           18      calculation that people are talking about.  That's



           19      really an equivalent residential use, again, based on



  11:46    20      historical use.



           21           Q.  Thank you.  And how do you determine the cost



           22      or the estimate cost of infrastructure to be replaced?



           23      Because your report does, in fact, include estimates of



           24      infrastructure that need replacement.



  11:46    25           A.  So our cost estimates from the master planning
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  11:46     1      process are based on our experience with similar



            2      projects and similar clients and our engineering



            3      standards and principals that we've used to prepare



            4      those estimates.



  11:47     5           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.  No further questioning.



            6      Thank you.



            7           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Schmid?



            8           MS. SCHMID:  I may have missed it, but did



            9      Mr. Atwater move?



  11:47    10           MR. ATWATER:  I will do so now.



           11           MS. SCHMID:  We often -- all of us often forget



           12      this part so --



           13           MR. ATWATER:  We move to submit the testimony of



           14      Ms. Tena Campbell into the record of evidence.



  11:47    15           MS. SCHMID:  The Division does not object except



           16      notes that since Ms. Campbell is not prepared to be



           17      subject to the ERU issues, that evidence -- while I



           18      don't think it will come up in the Divisions'



           19      discussion -- would possibly not be admissible as there



  11:47    20      is not a sponsoring witness for that part here.  But



           21      again, it's not going to come up in the Divisions'



           22      discussion.



           23           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Understood.  I think the



           24      problem, Mr. Atwater, is you said you moved to admit



  11:48    25      this witness's testimony, but you're really moving to
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  11:48     1      admit the written testimony filed by a witness who is



            2      not present; correct?



            3           MR. ATWATER:  That is correct.



            4           THE HEARING OFFICER:  And this witness isn't



  11:48     5      prepared to testify to all the contents of all that



            6      written testimony?



            7           MR. ATWATER:  He is not here today to testify to



            8      the contents.



            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  And this witness isn't



  11:48    10      prepared to testify to the content either; right?



           11           MR. ATWATER:  Ms. Campbell?



           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Right.



           13           MR. ATWATER:  I think she could testify generally



           14      to that testimony.  I think what both Ms. Campbell and



  11:48    15      Mr. Larson would do, however, is just restate what is in



           16      their written testimony.  So I think it is worthwhile.



           17      And Ms. Campbell can potentially determine whether or



           18      not she's capable, but it is worthwhile for us to see if



           19      she is capable of answering those questions.



  11:48    20           THE HEARING OFFICER:  If there is no objection to



           21      the admission of the filed written testimony -- Yes, Mr.



           22      Savage?



           23           MR. SAVAGE:  Yes, I object to the portions of the



           24      written testimony of Mr. Larson pertaining to ERUs



  11:49    25      because we do not have an opportunity to cross-examine
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  11:49     1      him, and it's been stated to us that Ms. Campbell is not



            2      prepared to address in any detail the ERUs either.  So I



            3      object to the portions of Mr. Larson's testimony dealing



            4      with ERUs.



  11:49     5           MS. SCHMID:  The Division concurs as previously



            6      stated in that objection.



            7           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Atwater?



            8           MR. ATWATER:  So what I would say is Ms. Campbell



            9      is prepared to testify to those issues.  And if her



  11:49    10      answer is not responsive, I think that the commission



           11      should determine at that time whether or not it's



           12      appropriate.



           13           THE HEARING OFFICER:  How about this.  Hearsay is



           14      admissible in a proceeding before the commission.  We



  11:49    15      can't exclude evidence solely on the basis that it's



           16      hearsay.  We'll go ahead and admit the prefiled written



           17      testimony into the record, and note that Ms. Campbell is



           18      not prepared to testify to all of its contents; is that



           19      sufficient?



  11:50    20           MS. SCHMID:  Yes.



           21           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.



           22           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  We'll proceed.



           23           MS. SCHMID:  I have just a couple of questions.



           24           Q.  I heard you say that the engineering study



  11:50    25      contains estimates based on Bowen Collins experience
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  11:50     1      with similar projects for similar clients based on Bowen



            2      Collins general standards and principals.  Is that a



            3      fair restatement?



            4           A.  Correct.



  11:50     5           Q.  So is it true that the engineering study does



            6      not include precise recently acquired bids for each



            7      project proposed by the engineering study?



            8           A.  Correct.



            9           MS. SCHMID:  Those are all my questions.  Thank



  11:50    10      you.



           11           MR. SAVAGE:  I have no questions.



           12           MR. LANGE:  I have a couple of questions concerning



           13      ERUs so I can kind of wrap my head around the



           14      understanding of all that.



  11:51    15           So I'm trying to educate myself through this whole



           16      process too, as I think a lot of us are.



           17           So it's my understanding ERUs more or less came



           18      about because of inequality between single-family homes



           19      and maybe highrises or something like that, or



  11:51    20      multiple-family dwellings.  And that the basis for ERUs



           21      is predicated on the fact that most of a given clientele



           22      customer base -- perhaps on average -- maybe the median,



           23      whatever, consisted of single-family homes.  Do you



           24      understand my question?  Would you agree with that?



  11:51    25           A.  The basis of an ERU is to convert historical
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  11:51     1      use to an equivalent residential unit, yes.



            2           Q.  So is my understanding, what I presented so far



            3      to you -- my understanding of it; is that correct?



            4           A.  I believe you said the majority of the customer



  11:51     5      base is single-family homes.  I don't think that is true



            6      in this case.



            7           Q.  Okay.  I had read that someplace.  And my only



            8      point is the majority of the customers here are not



            9      single-family home?



  11:52    10           A.  Correct.



           11           Q.  They are all HOAs consisting of owners, of



           12      course -- 440, approximately 502 customer base.



           13           MR. LANGE:  Okay.  Well, thank you for that.



           14           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Miller?



  11:52    15           MS. MILLER:  I have no questions.



           16           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Mr. Amendola, do



           17      you have any questions?



           18           MR. AMENDOLA:  I just have one question of



           19      Ms. Campbell.



  11:52    20           Ms. Campbell, originally the ERUs were calculated



           21      at 404 in, I think, the draft study.  In the direct



           22      testimony from Mr. Atwater, if you added up the numbers



           23      in the table it was 401, I believe.  And in the rest of



           24      the direct testimony by Mr. Atwater and the final



  11:53    25      report, the ERUs were estimated at 453.  Can you give me



                                               105

�









  11:53     1      a little background in how those changes were arrived



            2      at?



            3           A.  Unfortunately, I personally was not involved in



            4      those specific calculations so I can't speak to why the



  11:53     5      change was made.



            6           MR. ATWATER:  May I state that the testimony of the



            7      company and of Mr. Larson is that there are 453 ERUs.



            8      The record is clear on that.  And if it's not clear I'll



            9      make it clear.



  11:53    10           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Do you confirm, Ms. Campbell?



           11           THE WITNESS:  Yes.



           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Amendola, anything else?



           13           MR. AMENDOLA:  No.  Thank you very much.  Thank



           14      you, Ms. Campbell.



  11:53    15           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  It's noon.  We've been



           16      back about 90 minutes from our break.  Would the parties



           17      like to break for lunch now or proceed?



           18           MR. ATWATER:  Your Honor, may I have two redirect



           19      questions?



  11:54    20           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I apologize.  Of course.



           21           MR. ATWATER:



           22           Q.  So Ms. Schmid asked you about the fact that



           23      there are no hard bids with your estimate.  Have you



           24      ever made an estimate on infrastructure regarding a



  11:54    25      water plant in the past?
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  11:54     1           A.  Yes.



            2           Q.  And do you have any idea how accurate the



            3      estimate was in those cases?



            4           A.  Typically when we do engineering estimates, we



  11:54     5      will choose a technology and work with a supplier to



            6      come up with preliminary numbers.  So our previous



            7      experience on treatment plants is there is a level of



            8      contingency built into the number.  But we are fairly



            9      close to coming up with a number that will make sense



  11:54    10      and you can budget to it.



           11           Q.  And did you employ that same process --



           12           A.  Yes.



           13           Q.  -- for our analysis?  Are you aware -- why



           14      would Bowen Collins not have just obtained bids?  Why is



  11:55    15      that not possible as part of this process?



           16           A.  It is difficult to get a contractor to provide



           17      a detailed bid to you when you have nothing for them to



           18      bid to.  So at the time of our master plan, we had



           19      concepts of what needs to be done and that's where we



  11:55    20      estimate what those are going to cost.  Once the design



           21      is complete and we have detailed plans and engineered



           22      drawings, that's when you go out to a contractor and you



           23      get a detailed bid number.  So we cannot obtain those



           24      and contractors likely will never provide those on, you



  11:55    25      know, an up high in the sky idea.  They need to have it



                                               107

�









  11:55     1      defined.  They need to have it engineered.  They need to



            2      have an industry standard to put numbers to.



            3           Q.  Thank you.  Specifically with respect to the



            4      Division of Drinking Water loan, you've previously



  11:55     5      stated that -- maybe it was you.  Let me ask you the



            6      question.  When are bids available under that loan



            7      subject to the federal requirements?



            8           A.  As I understand it for this particular project,



            9      they would like to have hard bids for contractors in



  11:56    10      hand before closing the loan.  So that requires us to



           11      engineer the projects, put them out for competitive bids



           12      at Davis Bacon wages to get those final bid numbers and



           13      then that is what they fund the loan on at Division of



           14      Drinking Water.



  11:56    15           MR. ATWATER:  Okay.  Thank you.



           16           MS. SCHMID:  May I have permission to ask one or



           17      perhaps two recross questions based upon the redirect?



           18           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes.



           19           MS. SCHMID:



  11:56    20           Q.  Is it your understanding that the proceeding



           21      here today before the Public Service Commission is a



           22      separate proceeding from the application for a loan



           23      before the Division of Drinking Water?



           24           A.  It is my understanding that they are separate.



  11:56    25           MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  That's my only question.
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  11:57     1           MR. SAVAGE:  And I have a question also if I may.



            2           Q.  You said that the master plan -- there's



            3      concepts of what needs to be done and then design plans.



            4      Do you recall that testimony?



  11:57     5           A.  Yes.



            6           Q.  What stage is the planning that you've done for



            7      CWC that would relate to the interim rates for general



            8      capital improvements?  Is that a concept plan?



            9           A.  At this point it's still a concept plan.  We



  11:57    10      have recently been engaged by contract to start the



           11      design process for the loan projects and we are just



           12      barely getting that going.  We've done some site



           13      surveying and a few other preliminary things, but final



           14      designs are not prepared at this time so those numbers



  11:57    15      are based on estimates.



           16           Q.  Okay.  So just so I'm clear.  So for the



           17      interim rate increase for general capital improvements,



           18      that's still just at the estimated concept stage?



           19           A.  Correct.



  11:58    20           Q.  Did you call those numbers high in the sky just



           21      a minute ago?



           22           A.  No, I said the idea of the design was concept



           23      and that contractors won't bid concept high in the sky



           24      design.



  11:58    25           Q.  And we are at the concept stage?
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  11:58     1           A.  We are currently at the concept stage.



            2           MR. SAVAGE:  Thank you.  Nothing further.



            3           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any followup, Mr. Atwater?



            4           MR. ATWATER:  No.  Thank you.



  11:58     5           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Would you like to call your



            6      next witness before we break for lunch and I'll allow



            7      the other parties to weigh in on the question.



            8           MR. ATWATER:  So does the commission feel that



            9      Ms. Lewis needs to testify still with regards to



  11:58    10      questions it has with regard to the loan?



           11           THE HEARING OFFICER:  No.  It wasn't my intention



           12      to express an interest on the part of the commission to



           13      examine Ms. Lewis.  I think I inappropriately assumed



           14      when she jumped in that she intended to testify and I



  11:58    15      thought I would save my questions for her.



           16           MR. SAVAGE:  I think right now the question is are



           17      we going to lunch.



           18           MR. ATWATER:  Yeah, I'm trying to determine whether



           19      I have any more witnesses.



  11:59    20           MR. SAVAGE:  Okay.



           21           THE HEARING OFFICER:  While you're talking



           22      together, do the other parties have any position on



           23      whether we should break at this time?



           24           MS. SCHMID:  I would support a break at this time.



  11:59    25           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Then I'll allow you to think
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  11:59     1      about it over the break, Mr. Atwater.  I might have a



            2      few more questions for Mr. White to the extent Ms. Lewis



            3      is not going to testify.  So we'll proceed with one or



            4      the other when we get back and move to the Division's



  11:59     5      case.  We'll be in recess until 1:05.



            6           MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.



            7           (Interruption in proceedings.)



            8           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Back on the record then.



            9      Welcome back everyone.



  13:02    10           Mr. Atwater, when we adjourned for -- pardon me --



           11      recessed for lunch you were going to consult with



           12      Ms. Lewis and your client and determine whether or not



           13      Ms. Lewis is going to testify.



           14           MR. ATWATER:  Yes, Ms. Lewis is prepared to testify



  13:02    15      in this matter.



           16           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Would you like to call her



           17      now?



           18           MR. ATWATER:  Yes.  The applicant calls Ms. Emily



           19      Lewis to the stand to provide testimony in this matter.



  13:03    20           (Emily Lewis is sworn in as a witness.)



           21           MR. ATWATER:



           22           Q.  Ms. Lewis, would you please describe for the



           23      commission your engagement and involvement with the



           24      water company.



  13:03    25           A.  Certainly.  I work for a private law firm here
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  13:03     1      in the city, Clydesdale and Sessions.  I am a water law



            2      attorney which is my primary field of practice.  I was



            3      retained by TCFC under the management of Larry White's



            4      predecessor, Tom Jolley, in 2015 -- probably late 2015.



  13:03     5      Since that point in time we have assisted TCFC in a



            6      variety of water matters, including Community Water



            7      Company matters.  And they span from helping with



            8      previous rate cases -- I've not really been involved in



            9      this rate case much at all, but also a lot of background



  13:04    10      information.  We've done a fair amount of work for TCFC



           11      to understand what the water assets of Community Water



           12      Company are.  We've retained engineers to look at the



           13      well assets and do well reports.  We have looked at the



           14      various contracts to determine their standing.



  13:04    15      Extensive amount of water work for the company.



           16           Q.  So I just want to ask the question on your last



           17      statement there.  You indicated that you have provided



           18      extensive work for the company.  And can you give us



           19      maybe a bit more context as to when you were engaged



  13:04    20      initially for the company and your involvement through



           21      the process.  I guess we're speaking commencing in 2014



           22      which is when the current management became involved.



           23           A.  So we were retained -- I want to say like



           24      October 2015.  So about two years ago.  And we've been



  13:04    25      involved since then.  When we first came in on
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  13:04     1      October '15 under the -- Tom Jolley was at that time the



            2      director.  At that point in time the company was in the



            3      middle of its second rate case in 2015.  The previous



            4      rate case that had been filed in 2014 was issued



  13:05     5      incomplete by the commission, which is true because



            6      the -- Varde had not yet taken -- had just taken over



            7      and had not done a lot of work to figure out what the



            8      problems with the company were.  And at that point in



            9      time hired Bowen Collins to do the master study.



  13:05    10           In 2015 when we came on, we discussed a variety of



           11      options for how to address the infrastructure problems



           12      with the company, but also the ongoing desire to have an



           13      ownership change from TCFC to another entity who is more



           14      suited to run the water company.



  13:05    15           In the 2015 case, we made the decision to withdraw



           16      the case because at that point in time we were pursuing



           17      discussions, both preliminary discussions with



           18      potentially Mountain Regional, with Summit, and also at



           19      that point in time potentially forming a mutual water



  13:06    20      company for the customers that would be an alternative



           21      to public --  So we were looking at a variety of



           22      alternatives for the company.



           23           And so in 2015, we withdrew the public service



           24      commission rate case.  At that point in time, the public



  13:06    25      service commission asked that we keep them apprized of
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  13:06     1      what we were doing.  So we've had communications with



            2      the Division of Public Utilities after that rate case



            3      was withdrawn.  And then we -- our efforts turned to the



            4      unfortunately unfruitful, in terms of making a mutual



  13:06     5      water company or transitioning to Community Water, to



            6      Mountain Regional or Summit.



            7           At that time in 2016, Division filed their rate



            8      case which was a maintenance and operations case and we



            9      helped extensively in that matter.



  13:07    10           Q.  Let me ask you specifically about some of the



           11      matters that you were engaged in and the level of work.



           12      So the testimony today from the Division -- excuse me --



           13      from the intervenors so far, the testimony -- the



           14      suggestions have been so far that the company has not



  13:07    15      done sufficient diligence, and the company has neglected



           16      its duties and responsibilities as a public utility.



           17           In addition to all of the things that you've just



           18      discussed and that you've been engaged to do for the



           19      company, are there any other instances where you have



  13:07    20      seen a company involved in pursuing a path toward a



           21      reasonable resolution?



           22           A.  Yeah.  I think the most -- the primary matter



           23      that would probably resolve is securing financing for



           24      the improvements.  And so after the conclusion of the



  13:07    25      2016 rate increase which was limited to a rate that was
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  13:08     1      sufficient for simply maintenance and operations, even



            2      though we did request some additional amount of money to



            3      fund a meter package so we could replace meters, that



            4      was denied.  We determined that the condition of the



  13:08     5      company was in such a dire state that we needed to find



            6      alternative funding.  So at that point in time we looked



            7      into finding funding sources on the private and public



            8      markets.



            9           And that's when we decided to reapply for the state



  13:08    10      revolving fund loan through the Division of Drinking



           11      Water.  And we were always very open with the customers



           12      and the Division of Public Utilities about that process.



           13      It's a very low interest rate loan.  We had approval at



           14      3.09 percent.  It's rare it find money that cheap.  We



  13:08    15      also with that had the expertise of the Division of



           16      Drinking Water working with us.  So a lot of my time was



           17      spent doing that as well.



           18           Q.  Why do you think the -- why did the company



           19      choose to go with the Division of Drinking Water loan



  13:09    20      versus any other possibility?



           21           A.  One of the problems that we -- one of the



           22      issues that we wanted to address as promptly as possible



           23      was the fact that the system was an important addition



           24      as demonstrated by the failure of the tank.  So one of



  13:09    25      our thoughts was that we would apply for funding and see
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  13:09     1      if we could get the funding.  And then we would find a



            2      payment restructure path through either transitioning to



            3      a mutual water company format -- most likely through



            4      Summit or through the Public Service Commission -- and I



  13:09     5      had many discussions with Mark Long about this process



            6      as well.  But making sure that our loan request would be



            7      something that would ultimately be acceptable to the



            8      Public Service Commission in asking for infrastructure



            9      improvements that would be appropriate to be covered in



  13:09    10      a public service rate increase.  And if we were able to



           11      get out from underneath, Public Service Commission



           12      oversight would be repaid through assessments and a



           13      mutual water company.



           14           Q.  So you mentioned that you had conversations



  13:10    15      with Mark Long.  Who was Mark Long?



           16           A.  Mark Long was the prior Division of Public



           17      Utilities' technical assistant -- I don't know --



           18      engineer.  He had a very constructive relationship with



           19      the Division of Public Utilities throughout the last



  13:10    20      several rate cases.  And I think that their expertise



           21      has been very helpful.  This is a unique scenario, so we



           22      want to make sure that we were being transparent and



           23      communicative with our regulatory agencies.



           24           Q.  Was it your understanding that the Division of



  13:10    25      Public Utilities recommended pursuing the loan as a
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  13:10     1      viable option for funding?



            2           A.  Yes.



            3           MR. ATWATER:  I have no further questions.



            4           THE WITNESS:  I would like to make just a



  13:10     5      clarification statement from our earlier comments.  I



            6      think one of the big issues that has been missing a



            7      little bit in this discussion is that the first domino



            8      for getting funding for the Division of Drinking Water



            9      loan is proving to the Division of Drinking Water a



  13:11    10      structure of repayment.  And that's been the primary



           11      focus for the company, once the loan was approved, is



           12      securing a restructuring of payment.  And we have made



           13      great efforts to try and have that happen on a mutual



           14      water company's side and a rate under a mutual water



  13:11    15      company if they were able to get customer consent to



           16      switch to a mutual water company.



           17           And what we're here today on the parallel path is



           18      to find the repayment structure for the Public Service



           19      Commission for that funding.  And the loan will not be



  13:11    20      closed until there is a repayment structure under either



           21      scenario.



           22           MR. ATWATER:  No further questions.



           23           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Ms. Schmid?



           24           MS. SCHMID:  Yes.  Good afternoon.  This is a very



  13:11    25      unusual situation cross-examining someone who has been
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  13:11     1      retained for the company as an attorney, but who is



            2      appearing here today as a witness for the company, not



            3      an attorney.  That said I have some questions and I'll



            4      start.



  13:12     5           Q.  Is money for the tank replacement currently in



            6      the loan application?



            7           A.  Presently the loan is approved for



            8      $3.6 million.  That includes the $425,000 line item



            9      assessment for the take that is approved by the board of



  13:12    10      Drinking Water.  Subsequent to the approval of the loan



           11      and on May 12th of this year, we've had discussions with



           12      Julie Kobely at the Division of Drinking Water and have



           13      removed the $425,000 line item to try and fund the tank



           14      through a separate process that would be more expedient



  13:12    15      and cheaper for the customers.



           16           Q.  Your testimony conflicts with what I think I



           17      heard the previous company witness say.  I believe the



           18      previous company witness said the tank amount was still



           19      in the loan?



  13:13    20           A.  Yes, it is.  $3.6 million is our approved



           21      amount and that includes money for the tank.  We've had



           22      subsequent discussions because the loan process is that



           23      you apply obviously.  You apply on the best numbers you



           24      have available, which are mostly based on bids.  And for



  13:13    25      our case are based on estimates by Bowen & Collins as
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  13:13     1      well as statements from Summit Water Distribution



            2      Company on some minor items.  The loan is approved for



            3      the total amount.



            4           After that you have a loan closing process period



  13:13     5      where the loan numbers of which you applied for are



            6      confirmed with hard bids.  And so we have a number



            7      approved for the tank, but our discussions prior to --



            8      after the approval with Julie was to remove the tank.



            9      And then the final approved number that's closed is



  13:13    10      going to be less than what was approved.



           11           Q.  Why was the tank removed or why is the tank



           12      going to be removed from the loan?



           13           A.  We initially discussed removing the tank from



           14      the loan for two specific reasons.  First, we had hoped



  13:14    15      to have a transition of the company to a mutual water



           16      company that would be more responsive to a special



           17      assessment, and we would be able to fund the tank



           18      through special assessments under the mutual water



           19      company.  That was our hope.



  13:14    20           Second -- and the point for that being is that



           21      understanding the nature and the emergency nature of the



           22      tank, we wanted to find the most expedient method



           23      possible to get the tank built and functioning.  Second,



           24      the Division of Drinking Water loan has a number of



  13:14    25      federal requirements including the Davis Bacon act, the
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  13:14     1      minority business act.  It has a competitive bidding



            2      process.  That adds about 20 percent cost to anything



            3      that you do.  And so we were trying to keep the tank



            4      loan cost as low as possible to -- removing it from the



  13:15     5      Division of Drinking Water process and reduce the loan



            6      amount -- or reduce the amount of the tank project.



            7           Q.  Were you here when Mr. White testified about



            8      what we'll just call the expected return of the Varde



            9      group?



  13:15    10           A.  I was here, yes.



           11           Q.  Do you recall that that was a minimum of



           12      13 percent?



           13           A.  I don't have general knowledge of how the



           14      company works, but I recall that Mr. White testified



  13:15    15      that the minimum repayment was about -- or preferred



           16      minimum return was 13 percent.



           17           Q.  What is the interest rate on the Division of



           18      Drinking Water loan?



           19           A.  3.09.



  13:15    20           Q.  And the term of that loan?



           21           A.  It's a 20-year loan.  Pretty sure it's 3.09.



           22           Q.  Subject to check?



           23           A.  Subject to check.



           24           Q.  In any event it's much cheaper than --



  13:16    25           A.  Much cheaper than 13 percent.
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  13:16     1           Q.  Thank you.  You read my mind.  Is it true that



            2      the company is not precluded from trying to comply with



            3      those federal requirements such as the Bacon act, the



            4      minority act, and things like that?



  13:16     5           A.  We could voluntarily do those things, but I



            6      don't know why we would.



            7           Q.  Sorry.  In the process of achieving the loan.



            8      So the company could still try and comply with those



            9      things for the loan?



  13:16    10           A.  For the tank project?



           11           Q.  Yes.



           12           A.  It would -- at this point in time the tank



           13      project is far enough along in the process that it



           14      would -- we've already bid -- my understanding is -- and



  13:16    15      Tena Campbell would really be the better person to speak



           16      to this -- but for us to now reincorporate the tank



           17      project into the Division of Drinking Water loan would



           18      require us to reduce several steps that would take a



           19      fair amount of time for us to do like refitting.  It



  13:17    20      would require us to do a lot of work.



           21           The company has always been sincerely desirous of



           22      getting this project done as fast as possible.  So we've



           23      done a lot of work on the tank already.  To



           24      re-incorporate that tank project into the Division of



  13:17    25      Drinking Water process would take a large amount of time
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  13:17     1      and effort and expense that would be duplicative.



            2           Q.  Let's turn now to the rate case that was --



            3      resulted in an order in 2016 granting a rate increase.



            4      Are you familiar with that case?  Do I have my dates



  13:17     5      right?



            6           A.  I am familiar with that case.  It's the



            7      unorthodox nature of this testimony.



            8           Q.  You characterized that as a maintenance and



            9      operations case; is that correct?



  13:18    10           A.  That is how I would characterize it.



           11           Q.  Did the company have the opportunity to include



           12      other expenses such as salaries and things in its sought



           13      after increase?



           14           A.  I think it's very important to clarify that the



  13:18    15      2016 public service commission case was initiated by the



           16      Division of Public Utilities.  So therefore, we were not



           17      the applicant in that case.  And so we had the



           18      opportunity through our direct testimony and through



           19      that case to include actual costs of which we tried to



  13:18    20      include in terms of minor -- not necessarily large



           21      capital -- but minor system improvements.  And we tried



           22      to include them through various data requests and



           23      through amendments to our direct testimony.



           24           Q.  You're not testifying that because the company



  13:18    25      wasn't the applicant, it had no duty to show that the
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  13:18     1      rates resulting from that case would be just, reasonable



            2      and in the public interest, are you?



            3           A.  No, no.  I'm just stating that at the time the



            4      company was preparing -- a little context might be



  13:19     5      helpful.  So when we stopped doing the rate case in



            6      2015, the intent was because we were trying to get our



            7      ducks in a row to figure out a way to improve the



            8      system, to transfer ownership, and to move the company



            9      out of TCFC ownership, and to get the system working.



  13:19    10           And so when the 2016 rate case was initiated, you



           11      know, we were obviously active participants and wanted



           12      to make sure that we had a rate that, you know, was



           13      sufficient.  But it was not a rate case that we came



           14      prepared for or ready to have it be a capital rate case



  13:19    15      like the one we've filed at this point in time.



           16           Q.  Could the company have filed a rate case at



           17      that point in 2016?



           18           A.  It could, but at that point in time we were



           19      trying -- our ultimate goal is to leave public services



  13:19    20      commission oversight.  Because this is a small company



           21      and it's an ill fit for this particular process.  So at



           22      that point in time our energies were focused to try and



           23      find a way to transfer the company to another format.



           24           Q.  Is it still the company's desire to leave the



  13:20    25      regulatory umbrella held by the Public Service
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  13:20     1      Commission?



            2           A.  We believe that a different format would be



            3      more responsive to the needs of this particular company



            4      considering the large amount of infrastructure



  13:20     5      improvements that are needed, the unknowns of the



            6      company, and the general smaller size.  Each time -- the



            7      way -- and also the dilapidated condition of the company



            8      and the lack of funds.



            9           It's very burdensome to come before the commission



  13:20    10      every time that there is a tank failure or a well



           11      failure.  And we feel like a mutual water company or



           12      another format would be more responsive to both customer



           13      needs and system improvements.



           14           Q.  In a mutual water company, is it guaranteed



  13:20    15      that every customer will have a vote equal to every



           16      other customer?  Or is it true that some customers, like



           17      the animals in George Orwell's 1984, are more equal to



           18      others?



           19           A.  All mutual water companies are defined by the



  13:21    20      articles and bylaws.  So it would depend on how each



           21      company is designed.  Generally, the factors that



           22      determine mutual water company's ownership, if you're a



           23      shareholder you own a proportionate amount of assets of



           24      the company.  How your voting is structured is dependent



  13:21    25      on how the company is formed.
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  13:21     1           Q.  Are you familiar with the structure of Summit



            2      Water Distribution Company?



            3           A.  Generally so.



            4           Q.  Does Summit Water Distribution Company have



  13:21     5      different classes of shares?



            6           A.  Summit Water company does have different



            7      classes of shares.



            8           Q.  Are the votes ascribed to each class of shares



            9      identical?



  13:21    10           A.  Yes.  And I believe that in a nonprofit code



           11      they must be so.  So you have equal voting.  Each class



           12      must be treated -- shareholders in each class must be



           13      treated the same.  Different classes can be treated



           14      differently depending on how the bylaws of the company



  13:22    15      are structured.



           16           Q.  So if I owned say 14,000 A shares of stock, I



           17      could outvote someone else who had one share of B stock



           18      or C stock in Summit, based on your knowledge?



           19           A.  My understanding is that Summit -- it's the



  13:22    20      voting structure is limited to B shares and A shares are



           21      voting shares.  But C and D shares are not voting.



           22           Q.  Okay.  You talked a little bit about the loan



           23      application process and your discussions with Mr. Long.



           24      As an attorney, are you aware of the standard of proof



  13:22    25      that is required for the commission to base a decision
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  13:23     1      on regarding rates?



            2           A.  Yes.  And I think that -- I think that this is



            3      an important point.  And I also want to clarify what



            4      we're here today as today -- today is an interim rate



  13:23     5      case.  So the process is meant to be -- this is an



            6      interim step where -- my understanding is going to be it



            7      will be trued up at the end of the final rate case, so



            8      the burden of proof is on the applicant.  I understand



            9      that.



  13:23    10           Q.  Do you understand that documentation sufficient



           11      for a loan application may not be sufficient evidence



           12      for the Public Service Commission upon which to base a



           13      decision?



           14           A.  I believe it would be sufficient for an interim



  13:23    15      case.



           16           Q.  That is your legal opinion?



           17           A.  That is our hope today.  So my understanding is



           18      I think that this is where the situation for this



           19      particular company is a little bit unorthodox.  The



  13:24    20      matter is that for -- we're under now the auspices of



           21      several separate state entities.  We're working



           22      concurrently with the Division of Drinking Water, with



           23      the Public Service Commission, Division of Public



           24      Utilities, and all of our customers who are their own



  13:24    25      regulatory entities.  Sometimes they wield great power.
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  13:24     1      At the end of the day, pragmatically we all share the



            2      same goal of trying to fix the system, and trying to fix



            3      it in an environment that is not necessarily conducive



            4      to meeting that goal in an expedited manner.



  13:24     5           And so at this point in time, what the company has



            6      done is it's provided the best information as possible



            7      as it is today with the hope that we can run the



            8      Division of Drinking Water loan process and the Public



            9      Service Commission process concurrently to get the



  13:24    10      information ultimately needed by both.



           11           MS. SCHMID:  Those are all my questions.  Thank



           12      you.  This was very unusual.



           13           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Savage?



           14           MR. SAVAGE:  Thank you, Your Honor.



  13:25    15           Q.  Ms. Lewis, you attended all of the meetings



           16      with the customers -- representatives of the customers



           17      that we've been talking about; correct?



           18           A.  I believe so.



           19           Q.  Isn't it true that at least one of those



  13:25    20      meetings you presented a proposal for a period of months



           21      to pay off the tanks that would be paid off before any



           22      need to start paying for the $3.6 million loan?



           23           A.  We've had several discussions about how to



           24      finance the tank project and the capital improvements.



  13:25    25      And generally those discussions have included paying off
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  13:25     1      the tank loan prior to the Division of Drinking Water's



            2      debt service --  You know, we need to restructure



            3      payment for that.



            4           Q.  Before January of 2019?



  13:26     5           A.  If we are able to secure a rate that the



            6      Division of Drinking Water finds sufficient as to be



            7      repayment of the loan, and we are able to close the loan



            8      this April, the first payment on the loan will be in



            9      2019.  At this point in time, that being said, those



  13:26    10      dates may change depending on what -- how the



           11      construction goes and how the process plays out.



           12           Q.  All right.  Can you tell us what the proposal



           13      you recall making for these two assessments or interim



           14      emergency rate increase as well for the tank and one to



  13:26    15      start paying off the loan.  Just tell us what you told



           16      the water users.



           17           A.  In early June we had a meeting with the water



           18      users.  The tank failed in mid-April.  We had several



           19      communications by mail that are -- portions of which are



  13:26    20      included in your testimony.  And then we had a public



           21      meeting early June to discuss the solutions that we had



           22      come up with, of which one was, as I stated, our goal



           23      was and still is to try and find a better format for



           24      this company of moving to Summit or a mutual water



  13:27    25      company.  And repayment of the loan for the repayment
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  13:27     1      would be -- for the tank project would be -- the first



            2      chunk would be -- it would be earlier.  And then the



            3      repayment on the Division of Drinking Water would be



            4      subsequent to that.



  13:27     5           Q.  Was that to be -- with respect to the tank, was



            6      that to pay off a loan from the parent of CWC to



            7      immediately replace the tank?



            8           A.  So the TCFC has floated several proposals, but



            9      the proposal I think you're alluding to is that we had



  13:27    10      stated that the parent company would provide a loan.



           11      That being said, you know, maybe this should have been



           12      more clearly stated, that that loan is contingent upon



           13      having a repayment structure.  And then that would have



           14      gone first under a period of 18 months.  The proposal is



  13:28    15      an 18-month loan.



           16           Q.  How much per month, do you recall?



           17           A.  In terms of per person payment?



           18           Q.  Yeah.



           19           A.  I don't recall how much per person.



  13:28    20           Q.  But it was an amount of money that would retire



           21      $450,000?



           22           A.  Yes.  At that point in time it was a $450,000



           23      loan.



           24           Q.  Eighteen months?



  13:28    25           A.  Yeah.
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  13:28     1           Q.  And it would be paid off before the loan kicked



            2      off for payments of the 3.6 million?



            3           A.  Our goal was to create as little -- our goal



            4      was to create the most consistency possible.  So it



  13:28     5      worked out serendipitously if we structured repayment of



            6      the tank loan to dovetail with the payments to the



            7      Division of Drinking Water loan, water rates would



            8      remain relatively the same for customers and there



            9      wouldn't be a large debt or increase and that was our



  13:29    10      goal.



           11           Q.  Does it stick in your mind it was about a $50



           12      increase over the existing rate?  Something like $95 or



           13      something?



           14           A.  That would make sense to me.



  13:29    15           Q.  So what you're telling us is that the proposal



           16      was that there would be a short-term increase of the



           17      water rates up to a total $95 base rate until the tank



           18      was -- money for the tank was paid back to the parent;



           19      correct?



  13:29    20           A.  That was one of our proposals, yes.



           21           Q.  And then that would be hopefully done before



           22      the same amount of money kicked in to retire debt over



           23      20 years from the -- for the $3.6 million?



           24           A.  Yes.  I mean, this is all subject to -- these



  13:29    25      were estimates and not final numbers.
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  13:29     1           Q.  I understand.  But the goal and the proposal



            2      was essentially that it would be something like a $95



            3      base rate that would stay the same after the mid-loan



            4      kicked in?



  13:29     5           A.  That's also why we're asking for our general



            6      rate case now as we'd like to have consistency with our



            7      rates.



            8           Q.  And the money for the tank was to come from the



            9      parent company?



  13:30    10           A.  At that point in time, yes, that was our



           11      proposal in June.



           12           Q.  What was the interest rate on that loan?



           13           A.  At that point in time, I believe it was to



           14      match the Division of Drinking Water loan.



  13:30    15           Q.  3.39 percent?  Not 13?



           16           A.  That is true.  But as we said that was a



           17      proposal.



           18           Q.  And who makes -- well, let me back up.  I can



           19      show you these documents, but I'm just going to -- in



  13:30    20      front of me the June 12, 2017 communication to the



           21      customers of CWC.  Do you recall that?



           22           A.  Yes.



           23           Q.  By the way, did you review that before it went



           24      out?



  13:30    25           A.  Yes.
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  13:30     1           Q.  And it's signed by Mr. Larry White, but he



            2      signs as chief executive officer, TCFC Finance Company



            3      and as manager of ASC Utah LLC; is that correct?



            4           A.  I don't have that information to speak to



  13:31     5      Larry's -- I mean if it says that on the paper, yes.



            6      Whether or not that's an accurate statement of his



            7      titles, I don't know.



            8           Q.  Well, that's not my question.



            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Savage, do you have a



  13:31    10      copy of what you're reading to the witness from?



           11           MR. SAVAGE:  No.  But I could give her mine.  I'm



           12      sorry.  I didn't have copies of it.  I didn't know we



           13      were going through this.



           14           THE WITNESS:  Me neither.



  13:31    15           MR. SAVAGE:  Do we need to mark it as an exhibit?



           16           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Do you want to introduce it?



           17           MR. SAVAGE:  It's already attached as Exhibit B to



           18      my statement so I'll refer to it that way.



           19           MS. SCHMID:  Could we go off the record for just



  13:31    20      one moment?



           21           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Certainly.  Let's go off the



           22      record.



           23           (Interruption in proceedings.)



           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Do you want to go back on the



  13:32    25      record, Mr. Savage?
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  13:32     1           MR. SAVAGE:  Yes.



            2           Q.  I'll show you now what's been marked as Exhibit



            3      B to your statement, and can you identify that document?



            4           A.  Yes.



  13:32     5           Q.  What is it?



            6           A.  Throughout the company's tenure under 20144,



            7      it's one of our goals to have constant communication and



            8      transparency with our customers.  This is one of those



            9      letters that was going to inform customers about a



  13:32    10      variety of issues.  You know, one is the continued tank



           11      failure and irrigation restrictions and then funding



           12      options for that.  Two, an update on the Division of



           13      Drinking Water loan and company transfer.



           14           Q.  And it's signed by Mr. Larry White?



  13:33    15           A.  As chief executive officer, TCFC Co., LLC,



           16      manager ASC Utah.  So he is the -- yes.



           17           Q.  In your experience in dealing with this



           18      company, is he the person that makes the decisions for



           19      Community Water?



  13:33    20           MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  The document that's being



           21      referenced does not state what is being suggested.  It



           22      states --



           23           MR. SAVAGE:  I've got a question pending.



           24           MR. ATWATER:  Sorry.



  13:33    25           THE HEARING OFFICER:  You're objecting.  You're
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  13:33     1      saying the question misstates the evidence?



            2           MR. ATWATER:  Correct.



            3           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Well, the witness just



            4      conferred it's stated correctly.



  13:33     5           MR. ATWATER:  I object to the response.



            6           THE WITNESS:  I think it's unclear about how this



            7      title is stated what exact role Larry is playing in



            8      terms of management.



            9           MR. SAVAGE:  That's what I'm trying to find out.



  13:33    10           MR. ATWATER:  TCFC is the manager of ASC Utah.



           11      That's what it says.



           12           MR. SAVAGE:  And he's also -- I see what you're



           13      saying.  But he's the chief executive officer of TCFC?



           14           MR. ATWATER:  Right.



  13:34    15           THE WITNESS:  Yes.



           16           MR. SAVAGE:



           17           Q.  Is he signing as a manager of ASC?  Do you know



           18      if he is a manager of ASC?



           19           A.  I believe that his testimony would be the best



  13:34    20      for this.  I don't feel qualified.



           21           Q.  But anyway, it appears to you that he's signing



           22      on behalf of ASC who is the manager of TCFC and as a



           23      chief executive officer of TCFC; is that correct?



           24           MR. ATWATER:  The reverse.



  13:34    25           MR. SAVAGE:
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  13:34     1           Q.  Okay.  We'll reverse it; is that correct?  I



            2      don't really care.  I'm just trying to get to what he



            3      does.



            4           A.  ASC Utah is the manager of TCFC and he is the



  13:34     5      CEO of TCFC.



            6           MR. SAVAGE:  That's what I thought I just said.



            7           MR. ATWATER:  No, it's reversed.  I think



            8      Mr. White's testimony is consistent with that.



            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think the document can



  13:34    10      speak for itself.  At this point we can probably move



           11      on.



           12           MR. SAVAGE:



           13           Q.  At this point, I do not really care.  He's not



           14      signing as any officer or employee of CWC; is that



  13:35    15      correct?



           16           A.  He's not signing as CWC.



           17           Q.  The parent controls this company, does it not?



           18           A.  Yes.



           19           Q.  And Mr. White makes the key decisions?



  13:35    20           A.  My understanding is he does.  I do not know



           21      what the corporate structure is behind him.  I feel



           22      uncomfortable answering corporate structure questions



           23      for where he falls in.



           24           Q.  From what you've observed, he's the guy that



  13:35    25      makes the decisions for CWC, is he not?
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  13:35     1           A.  From what I've observed, Larry White makes



            2      decisions for CWC.  Whether or not he is the only voice



            3      who makes those decisions, I do not know.



            4           Q.  The other voices would also be TCFC voices or



  13:35     5      ASC or Varde voices?



            6           A.  In the corporate family, yes.



            7           Q.  So the parent and the string of parents --



            8      well, we've already said they control the company.  Do



            9      you recall we discussed -- you and I as early as June or



  13:36    10      maybe even in May -- that an alternative to trying to



           11      get everybody to agree to a rate increase not going



           12      through the PSC, that an alternative would be to apply



           13      to the PSC for an interim immediate rate increase to



           14      cover the tank?



  13:36    15           A.  The PSC is always available for us to go to in



           16      terms of our rate increase.  The decision made was that



           17      we were going to discuss -- it's always been an option



           18      and hence why we are here today -- it's also an



           19      expensive option and I think that we as a company were



  13:36    20      hopeful that we could find a format to transfer the



           21      company to a mutual water company or other format and



           22      not need a PSC rate case which is an expensive drawn out



           23      process.  That did not come to be, and hence we filed a



           24      rate case in September.



  13:37    25           Q.  And that was Mr. White's decision?
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  13:37     1           A.  Ultimately, yes.  I would say.



            2           Q.  So it was the decision of the parent to not



            3      immediately file for the PSC for the reasons you just



            4      stated, but instead to try to do some deal with Summit



  13:37     5      and the users.  And it was his decision to finally file



            6      for the rate increase in September?



            7           MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  Argumentative.



            8           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Sustained.  It was compound.



            9      Maybe you can break it down.



  13:37    10           MR. SAVAGE:  Yeah, it's compound.



           11           Q.  Was it his decision to postpone filing for a



           12      rate increase to cover the tank?



           13           A.  There were many, many conversations that came



           14      to that conclusion from several voices, both from



  13:37    15      counsel, both discussions with Summit Water Distribution



           16      Company or discussions with the customers.



           17           Q.  Who made the decision?



           18           A.  Ultimately I guess it would be Mr. White, but I



           19      think that it was a long drawn out process to get to



  13:38    20      that point.



           21           Q.  I understand the process.  I'm just trying to



           22      look at who controls this company and who decides



           23      whether or not to fund it.  Was it also his decision



           24      that gave you -- or Mr. Atwater the decision to go ahead



  13:38    25      and file for this rate increase in September?
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  13:38     1           A.  Once it became clear much earlier than



            2      September that the company would not be able to



            3      transition to a timely manner to a mutual water company,



            4      we began preparing in preparations for this rate case.



  13:38     5      We ultimately were in a position where we could do so in



            6      September after several weeks of preparing and



            7      collecting rate documents.



            8           Q.  Who made the decision to go ahead?



            9           A.  Mr. White.



  13:38    10           Q.  You were present when the proposed structure



           11      for what's been called a mutual company was presented to



           12      the representatives of the customers?



           13           A.  Yes.



           14           Q.  And do you recall if there were two classes of



  13:39    15      stock being proposed, class one and class two?



           16           A.  We had an open discussion with our customers



           17      about what kind of corporate structure would best meet



           18      their needs as well as the needs of Summit Water



           19      Distribution Company, who was the operator of the



  13:39    20      system.



           21           We discussed having two classes of stock.  One for



           22      a use stock.  That would be a general customer stock.



           23      And one for a stock that would be held by Summit Water



           24      Distribution Company so that they could have some



  13:39    25      control in the management of the company of which they
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  13:39     1      were operating.



            2           Q.  Did you say sole control?



            3           A.  Some control.



            4           Q.  Some control.  Didn't they have total control



  13:39     5      of the proposal?



            6           A.  This was a draft proposal for discussion.



            7           Q.  In the draft proposal, wasn't it proposed they



            8      had total control and they could elect the majority of



            9      the board?



  13:39    10           A.  The underlying principle was that we wanted to



           11      find a structure that provided Summit the autonomy to



           12      make large decisions on the company they operate, and



           13      they would be able to make those decisions in a timely



           14      and expeditious manner.  So the class of stock that gave



  13:40    15      them some management control was an option to do so.



           16           Q.  But it gave them management control?



           17           A.  But not sole ownership of the company.



           18           Q.  That's true.  But the other owners could only



           19      vote for a minority of the board?



  13:40    20           A.  We had discussed several formats for what the



           21      board would take.



           22           Q.  I'm just dealing with the one that was



           23      presented to the customers at one of these meetings.



           24      That one was a class one stock that only Summit would



  13:40    25      own, and it would vote for a majority of the board.  The
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  13:40     1      user, the customer, would have class two stock and could



            2      only vote for the minority of the board?



            3           A.  And I believe that although that structure was



            4      discussed, the concerns of the company -- of the



  13:40     5      customers are mediated by the fact that they would have



            6      voting powers on certain issues such as raising the



            7      management fees.  And so it was not a sole management,



            8      but it was an active discussion about how to meet the



            9      needs both of Summit as the operator and as the customer



  13:41    10      as participants.



           11           Q.  I appreciate your explanation, but you didn't



           12      answer my question.  Wasn't that proposal, the only one



           13      presented to the customers -- didn't that propose class



           14      one stock would be owned only by Summit and Summit could



  13:41    15      vote for majority of the board, and all the customers



           16      could do with their stock would be vote for a minority



           17      of the board?



           18           A.  The corporate bylaws were structured that way,



           19      but the management agreement provided for greater



  13:41    20      customer participation.



           21           Q.  Wasn't that the proposal of the ownership of



           22      the company presented to the customers?



           23           A.  It was a proposal we discussed, but it was



           24      modified by -- it just --



  13:41    25           MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  Asked and answered.
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  13:41     1           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think it has been asked and



            2      answered, and I wonder how material this is to the



            3      decisions that we need to make today.  If Mr. Savage has



            4      a question or two to wrap up, that's fine.  But I think



  13:41     5      we should move on to more substantive issues before us



            6      in this interim rate hearing.



            7           MR. SAVAGE:



            8           Q.  In fairness, that meeting broke up, did it not,



            9      with there being some discussion that there would be an



  13:42    10      effort to get back to the customers with some



           11      modification that would give them a controlling vote on



           12      certain key issues?



           13           A.  Yes.



           14           Q.  Did that ever happen?



  13:42    15           A.  We have now fully formed corporate bylaws and



           16      articles, management agreement, a subscription agreement



           17      and terms and conditions ready to present to the



           18      customers.



           19           Q.  But it hasn't been presented yet?



  13:42    20           A.  We are waiting for -- to see -- once this rate



           21      case became a little bit more contentious, we were



           22      waiting to kind of see what the -- what the result of



           23      the rate case was going to be, to see if that was an



           24      effort worth continuing.



  13:42    25           Q.  Does Summit still require in any transfer of
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  13:42     1      ownership to it of the control of CWC -- do they still



            2      require as a condition to that deal that the company get



            3      out from under Public Service Commission supervision?



            4           A.  Presently it's structured to be Community Water



  13:43     5      Company nonprofit stand alone company that will be



            6      maintained on its own.  And Summit Distribution Company



            7      will be the manager and operator of the company with an



            8      intention to move the company to Summit at the end of



            9      the Division of Drinking Water loan repayment period.



  13:43    10           Q.  You didn't answer my question.  Do they still



           11      want to get out from under the supervision of the Public



           12      Service Commission?



           13           A.  Summit Water Distribution Company, I'm not a



           14      representative of that company and don't feel



  13:43    15      comfortable completely answering on their behalf.  But



           16      my understanding is that their intention is to remain a



           17      mutual water company of which they would like to have



           18      any -- and do not want to have a component of the



           19      company be publicly regulated.



  13:43    20           Q.  Did you understand that the customers or the



           21      representatives of the customers at this final meeting



           22      opposed what was presented, as a company they would not



           23      be able to vote for majority of the board members, did



           24      not have a say in key decisions, and that Mr. White



  13:44    25      said, "Well then, TCFC is not going to put any more
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  13:44     1      money in the company"?



            2           A.  The conclusion of the meeting with the



            3      customers was that we would go back and we would try and



            4      meet customer demands and design a company that met



  13:44     5      their needs and a management agreement that met their



            6      needs.  And hence we did.  And we made a very nice



            7      company.  And the reality of the finances of continuing



            8      the company without a rate increase or an assessment



            9      through a mutual water company that's adequate to cover



  13:44    10      cost and capital infrastructure, is that it's a company



           11      losing money.  Hence why we are here today to have an



           12      interim rate case to increase our cost so we can make



           13      needed improvements.



           14           Q.  Have you looked at the books enough to know



  13:44    15      that the company is losing money because it put a ban on



           16      outside irrigation?



           17           A.  I do not have knowledge to answer that



           18      question.



           19           Q.  So you don't know why the company is losing



  13:45    20      money?



           21           A.  I have looked at the rate model of the revenue



           22      we'd need to perform -- to have the company perform at a



           23      capacity that provides adequate water service, and they



           24      are far in excess of the current rates.



  13:45    25           Q.  Do you know why the company is losing money?
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  13:45     1      You just said they're losing money, that's why we're



            2      here today.  Do you know why?  What impact is the ban on



            3      irrigation?



            4           A.   I believe it's a historical problem on the ban



  13:45     5      of irrigation water.  The summary is not going to be



            6      indicative of the total financial picture of the



            7      company.



            8           Q.  But is it indicative of why the company is



            9      losing money today?



  13:45    10           A.  I'm sure revenues were decreased from decreased



           11      irrigation, but I don't think that's a particularly



           12      relevant question for what we're doing now.



           13           Q.  Well, you said it was.  You said that's why



           14      we're here today.  I want to know what you know.  Do you



  13:45    15      know why the company is losing money today?



           16           A.  We don't collect enough revenue.



           17           Q.  Do you know why you don't collect enough



           18      revenue?



           19           A.  Because our PSC rates are insufficient to cover



  13:46    20      our costs and our need for capital improvement.



           21           Q.  Well, your PSC rates include tiers of water



           22      usage?  Do you know if you're really getting to those



           23      tiers of that irrigation?



           24           A.  We also don't have any meters to measure the



  13:46    25      water coming into our system.
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  13:46     1           Q.  Answer my question.



            2           MR. ATWATER:  Objection; argumentative.



            3           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Restate your question,



            4      Mr. Savage.



  13:46     5           MR. SAVAGE:



            6           Q.  We also have approved rates for increasing



            7      gallons used -- increasing rate per gallon ultimately.



            8      And do you know that those rates, those increased tiers



            9      are not even being approached because there is no



  13:46    10      irrigation?



           11           A.  The rate of structure currently to have a base



           12      rate that should cover our basic costs without



           13      considerations of volume.  That basic rate -- base rate



           14      in the opinion of the company is insufficient currently



  13:46    15      to cover our costs and not going to cover future costs.



           16           So while volume does play a measure in the amount



           17      of money and revenue the company takes in, the base rate



           18      is really intended to be the operating cost of the



           19      company.  And at the last rate hearing we went from $36



  13:47    20      in our base rate to $30 in our base rate.  And so we



           21      understand that -- or are recommended 36 to 30.  The



           22      base rates really is a bulk of how we make a lot of the



           23      needed costs to cover company costs which is irrelevant



           24      to usage.



  13:47    25           Q.  Have you read my submission to the commission?
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  13:47     1           A.  I have, but not in great detail.



            2           Q.  Are you aware of what I proposed as an



            3      alternative to pay for the tank?



            4           A.  I am, but it would be better for you to present



  13:47     5      that.



            6           Q.  Well, I think it's $50 a month for each 500



            7      users for 12 months which would be well more than



            8      $500,000, and then that be paid off before any rate



            9      increase to start paying off the $3.6 million loan.  So



  13:48    10      that representation to you, is that significantly



           11      different from what the company was proposing during our



           12      meetings?



           13           A.  It's not significantly different.  The issue is



           14      a timing issue.  Right now the current problem is that



  13:48    15      there's no -- there is very little operating revenue for



           16      us to pay for the needed engineering and other costs



           17      needed to complete the Division of Drinking Water loan,



           18      to complete the needed capital improvements in place.



           19           So while in June that may have been a very good way



  13:48    20      to go about things, now that we're in October and the



           21      transition to a mutual water company did not come to be,



           22      there may be a better format to meet the timing needs of



           23      what we're doing.



           24           Q.  And do you understand that my proposal would be



  13:48    25      just like your representation to the users that the
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  13:48     1      bridge loan would come from the parent company that



            2      Mr. White is the executive officer of?



            3           A.  I believe that the fundamental issue is we just



            4      need a proven rate repayment structure for either a



  13:49     5      bridge loan, the Division of Drinking Water loan.  Any



            6      money from outside sources we get, we just need a proven



            7      rate of repayment.  And if there is a sufficient rate



            8      approved by the Public Service Commission that would



            9      allow us to have repayment of our loans, then I think



  13:49    10      that the company would be, you know, amenable to that.



           11      That's our goal.  That's what we want.



           12           Q.  By the company you mean the parent Mr. White's



           13      the chief executive of?



           14           A.  I can't speak for Mr. White, but my



  13:49    15      understanding that that is true.  We're looking for a



           16      repayment structure.



           17           Q.  And "we", you're talking about both on behalf



           18      of CWC and its parent?



           19           A.  I don't feel comfortable talking -- I don't



  13:49    20      feel qualified to speak to whether or not that would be



           21      appropriate for the parent company.  But I think CWC



           22      just is looking for repayment structure.



           23           Q.  I appreciate your candor on CWC's desire to get



           24      out from under public service commission's authority and



  13:50    25      I want to ask you about that.  Isn't it true that the
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  13:50     1      company has stated -- company representatives have



            2      stated in your presence and even you stated that it was



            3      deemed that it would complicate the deal with Summit



            4      Water for the company to apply for emergency rate



  13:50     5      increase to cover the tank back in June?



            6           A.  I believe this is an important point to



            7      clarify.  The company has always been diligent in trying



            8      to find a way to get this tank built and operating.  The



            9      issue is just finding a method of repayment, whether it



  13:50    10      be a TCFC loan, whether it be a Division of Drinking



           11      Water loan, the issue is finding a method of repayment.



           12      And the company has explored several options to do that,



           13      which has been a transfer and which has been a public



           14      service commission filing.  So parallel paths.



  13:51    15           We are here on public service commission's side



           16      because the timing became apparent that the other path



           17      wasn't going to work, and we needed to get funding in



           18      place or repayment structure in place.



           19           Q.  Has the company stated that it was concerned



  13:51    20      that applying to the commission would complicate



           21      concluding its deal with Summit Water?



           22           A.  One of our initial concerns and it's still a



           23      concern is the timing of which a Public Service



           24      Commission rate process takes.  This is an interim



  13:51    25      hearing.  And a larger rate hearing is still going to
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  13:51     1      take many weeks and months to go forward.  Our hope and



            2      intent was to get customer support to transfer to a



            3      mutual water company in a shorter period of time to have



            4      a rate structure under the share assessments of a mutual



  13:51     5      water company in place to repay loans.



            6           That did not happen so we are here under the public



            7      service commission's -- the considerations are still the



            8      same.  It's still a complicated process.  It's a long



            9      complicated process.



  13:52    10           Q.  And matters pending under the Public Service



           11      Commission would complicate finishing the deal with



           12      Summit Water?



           13           A.  They're parallel paths.



           14           Q.  Were they parallel or did you wait until



  13:52    15      September to file before the commission when we needed



           16      that tank desperately being under construction in June,



           17      July and August?



           18           A.  We needed a rate repayment structure and that's



           19      what we've been doing.  We've been trying to figure that



  13:52    20      out through a mutual water company or through the Public



           21      Service Commission.  And once we determined that a



           22      mutual water company was not going to be the most



           23      expedient way to do that, we filed for the Public



           24      Service Commission.  We took several weeks to get our



  13:52    25      paperwork together and we filed in September.  I
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  13:52     1      don't -- we're here and we couldn't be here any faster



            2      than we are anyway because we wouldn't have had any



            3      information to provide to the Public Service Commission



            4      without that time anyway.



  13:52     5           Q.  So is it fair to say it was not exactly



            6      parallel?



            7           A.  We're working in unison.



            8           Q.  Pardon?



            9           A.  We're working in unison.  The point is being



  13:53    10      that it also took us some time to get the information



           11      that we needed collected to get to the Public Service



           12      Commission.



           13           Q.  And it was the parent's decision through



           14      Mr. Larry White to wait until September 13th to apply



  13:53    15      for a rate increase that would cover repayment of the



           16      loan for this tank?



           17           A.  Ultimately.



           18           Q.  Yes?  Right?  You have to answer.



           19           A.  Yes.



  13:53    20           MR. SAVAGE:  That's all I have.  Thank you very



           21      much.



           22           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Savage.



           23      Mr. Lange?



           24           MR. LANGE:  Yes.  I have one question, Emily.



  13:53    25           Q.  So you're pretty knowledgeable about the loan
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  13:53     1      application; correct?



            2           A.  Yes.



            3           Q.  The Division of Drinking Water.  So I have in



            4      front of me, this is part of the company's testimony



  13:53     5      here.  There was a scoring table.  The loan had a score



            6      of financial points.  I believe it's called 26.  And my



            7      question would be if it scored higher, would that



            8      somehow lower the interest rate or affect the terms of



            9      the loan?



  13:54    10           A.  So the Division of Drinking Water -- and I may



           11      not state this exactly correctly -- has a priority list



           12      system where they look at the deficiencies of a project,



           13      and that will determine what the -- how they prioritize



           14      giving loan funds.



  13:54    15           They also have a medium adjusted gross income



           16      metric which depends on where you live in the state,



           17      whether or not you apply for grants.  We scored very



           18      high on the deficiencies so we were a priority list --



           19      we were higher on their priority list in terms of their



  13:54    20      priority for funding.  Due to the ZIP Code in which the



           21      company is located, we did not qualify for any grants



           22      based on median adjusted gross income metric.



           23           Q.  So the point of my question here is category



           24      three called project funding contributed by the



  13:55    25      applicant, has a scoring system of zero points to 17
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  13:55     1      points.



            2           And the application here shows that there was no --



            3      CWC was apparent -- applicant here was less than



            4      2 percent of projected funds.  So I'm curious if we were



  13:55     5      to take, for instance, the possibility of the loan from



            6      the parent company to cover the tank, that we'd probably



            7      see 10 percent of the projected funds, maybe closer to



            8      15 percent.  That would add somewhere between 11 to --



            9      or 14 points on which would change the score from 26 to



  13:55    10      maybe 40 or 37.  So with that kind of a score would



           11      there have been perhaps a lower interest rate or more



           12      favorable loan?



           13           A.  I think that the terms of the loan are



           14      absolutely the most favorable that we were going to get.



  13:55    15      I do not think they're going to issue anything lower



           16      than what we received, and I think it's important to



           17      remember the timing of which things happened.  We



           18      applied for the loan in February or March and the tank



           19      failed in April.  So when we submitted our initial



  13:56    20      application, the tank had not yet failed.  The tank



           21      failed in April and the loan was approved in May.  And



           22      so the -- I don't -- the timing wouldn't have worked out



           23      well.  The timing wouldn't have worked to have



           24      included --



  13:56    25           Q.  But my question is more directed to -- granted
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  13:56     1      you got the most favorable rates based upon your score



            2      here.  Had the score been higher 11 or 14 points, would



            3      you have gotten or would you get even more favorable



            4      rates?



  13:56     5           A.  That would be a decision that would be made



            6      based by the Division of Drinking Water.  That being



            7      said, you would also be paying 13 percent or whatever it



            8      is on TCFC loans.



            9           Q.  I'm only concerned with this particular loan



  13:56    10      and the rates and how this particular scoring system



           11      affects the rates.



           12           A.  That would have been a Division of Drinking



           13      Water decision.  My belief is that I asked every single



           14      way possible to get us the lowest interest rate and to



  13:57    15      get us the most grant money possible, and I was assured



           16      by the Division of Drinking Water that this was the best



           17      we could get.  And I think it's very good for our needs.



           18           MR. LANGE:  Thank you.  That's all the questions I



           19      have.



  13:57    20           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Miller?



           21           MS. MILLER:  I have no additional questions.



           22           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  I have a few.



           23      Mr. Atwater, would you like to reserve your redirect



           24      until after I ask my questions?



  13:57    25           MR. ATWATER:  Yes.  Thank you.



                                               153

�









  13:57     1           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'll infer, Ms. Lewis, from



            2      one of your responses to a question earlier about



            3      ultimately truing up the interim rates, you understand



            4      this is an interim rate hearing?



  13:57     5           THE WITNESS:  Right.



            6           THE HEARING OFFICER:  And there will be another



            7      hearing in April to determine if the rates should be



            8      going forward.  And you used the term "true up" so I



            9      take it you understand the rates are potentially to be



  13:58    10      refunded?



           11           THE WITNESS:  Yes.



           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Based on your knowledge of



           13      the company's books and accounts, will it have



           14      sufficient cash to refund the customers money should an



  13:58    15      adverse determination be made in April?



           16           THE WITNESS:  That is a good question.  I don't



           17      know the answer to that.  I think it will depend on what



           18      the ultimate rate we receive here is.  If there is an



           19      adequate reserve that we could -- potentially could



  13:58    20      refund people some money from it.  Our intent is



           21      hopefully to not have that happen.  But I don't know the



           22      answer to that.



           23           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Well, to the extent the



           24      commissioner granted CWC's request with respect to the



  13:58    25      special charge on the tank and assessed the full fee of
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  13:58     1      a thousand and change on the customers, would CWC be in



            2      any position to refund that money in April to the



            3      customers?



            4           THE WITNESS:  I don't believe that -- in terms of



  13:58     5      repaying them the lump sum to get their thousand dollars



            6      back?



            7           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Right.  Repaying all the



            8      money that was collected under that provision of the



            9      interim loan?



  13:59    10           THE WITNESS:  Well, I believe that money would be



           11      going to pay for the tank.



           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Right.



           13           THE WITNESS:  Yeah.



           14           THE HEARING OFFICER:  So the money would not be



  13:59    15      available to be refunded?



           16           THE WITNESS:  No.  It would not be available to be



           17      refunded because it would be going to pay for tank costs



           18      that are being spent.



           19           THE HEARING OFFICER:  And you did, I thought, an



  13:59    20      excellent job of describing the DDW loan process.  At



           21      least I feel I understand it better than I did before.



           22      But I might want you to repeat yourself a little bit.



           23           So you said that the CWC applied for the DDW loan



           24      in April; is that correct?



  13:59    25           THE WITNESS:  The application was due in March.
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  13:59     1           THE HEARING OFFICER:  It was due in March?



            2           THE WITNESS:  Uh-huh.



            3           THE HEARING OFFICER:  And was there a line item to



            4      replace the failed tank, it just hadn't failed yet?



  13:59     5           THE WITNESS:  No.  So the original loan application



            6      requests are for a two-part project.  So the first part



            7      project was a replacement of transmission and



            8      distribution lines, a pressure reducing valve and meter



            9      component.  And then a second -- and that's the first



  14:00    10      package.  And then the second package is a water



           11      treatment plan replacement.  So those are the two --



           12      those are the line items initially included in the loan



           13      request.



           14           When the tank failed in April, we administratively



  14:00    15      asked the Division to include a line item request for



           16      the tank to present to the board of Drinking Water, and



           17      the loan was finally approved including money for the



           18      tank.  We took that money back out subsequently to



           19      address the two issues I addressed earlier for



  14:00    20      expediency and cost purposes to try and fund the tank



           21      not through the Division of Drinking Water loan.



           22           THE HEARING OFFICER:  What's the projected closing



           23      date for the DDW loan as it stands today?



           24           THE WITNESS:  As it stands right now it's most



  14:00    25      likely going to be April.
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  14:00     1           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Non-specified date in April?



            2           THE WITNESS:  No.  We're -- honestly a large



            3      component of it hinges on this hearing.



            4           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I see.



  14:01     5           THE WITNESS:  We cannot -- one of the conditions of



            6      closing the loan is having a rate repayment structure.



            7      And until we can either prove through either a share



            8      assessment structure or through a Public Service



            9      Commission approved rate increase, we cannot close on



  14:01    10      the loan and that money will no longer be available to



           11      us.



           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Would inserting a request for



           13      funds to pay for the failed tank back into the DDW loan



           14      delay that closing date?



  14:01    15           THE WITNESS:  Yes.  It would also increase the



           16      cost.  So the problem with inserting it back in is that



           17      we're just too far along in the process.  Particularly



           18      so that the Division of Drinking Water loan requires a



           19      competitive bid process, whereas taking out of the loan



  14:01    20      we are able to directly go to a contractor and directly



           21      go to an engineering firm to do the designs.  If we are



           22      to put it back in the Division of Drinking Water loan



           23      process, we'd have to scrap all that and put it out to



           24      competitive bid.



  14:02    25           THE HEARING OFFICER:  So what's your best estimate
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  14:02     1      of how long the loan would be delayed if you were to do



            2      that?



            3           THE WITNESS:  If we were to put it back into the



            4      loan, I don't -- I can't say.  It would really be just



  14:02     5      duplicative efforts is what it would be.  And ultimately



            6      the customers are going to bear the cost of the company.



            7      So we'd be hesitant to do that because it would be



            8      duplicating efforts for the customers as well.



            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Let's assume for the sake of



  14:02    10      argument that all the costs were deemed acceptable.



           11      What would the delay be?



           12           THE WITNESS:  I'm not quite sure, but I probably



           13      would -- but we probably would just roll it into the



           14      loan and have it close in April as well.  See the --



  14:02    15      we'd roll it into the loan, so we'd just follow the same



           16      tracks, package A, package B, and it would probably



           17      be -- just become package C of the loan so that it would



           18      close in April.



           19           The problem is that it would still put us -- it



  14:03    20      would still put us with a late summer completion date.



           21      Whereas if we keep it separate, we're hoping for an



           22      early summer completion date, and the customers' primary



           23      concern is their irrigation water.



           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Because under the DDW



  14:03    25      financing for the replacement tank you can't order it
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  14:03     1      until the loan closes; correct?



            2           THE WITNESS:  Exactly.



            3           THE HEARING OFFICER:  And you estimated it would be



            4      a late summer completion?



  14:03     5           THE WITNESS:  That's when we were intending to end



            6      most of our construction and --



            7           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Those are all my questions.



            8      Thank you.  Mr. Atwater?



            9           MR. ATWATER:



  14:03    10           Q.  So it has come up a few times in questioning



           11      why the company decided to restrict irrigation --



           12      outdoor irrigation.  Can you explain.



           13           A.  Certainly.  So when the tank failed in April --



           14      One, I think it's important to recognize on the record



  14:04    15      if this has not yet been discussed, we've had ample



           16      discussions with the customers about alternatives for



           17      the tank.  We've talked about bladders.  We've talked



           18      about all kinds of ways to try and get continued water



           19      through the company.  And at the end of the day, the



  14:04    20      cost and the time was to just try and replace



           21      immediately the tank.



           22           And so at that point in time, we are operating our



           23      one primary water tank.  And with -- in consultation



           24      with the Summit County Fire Department, it was



  14:04    25      determined that that tank was inadequate to support
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  14:04     1      indoor watering, outdoor watering, and maintain a



            2      minimum threshold for fire protections.



            3           And so we made the decision that an irrigation



            4      restriction and watering restriction was allowed for



  14:04     5      under our tariff during an emergency condition, and that



            6      we would restrict outdoor watering to maintain that



            7      minimum fire suppression of quantity in the tank.



            8           Q.  Had you wanted to remove the restriction, did



            9      the company have water to allow for the restriction to



  14:05    10      be lifted?



           11           A.  Was there ample water to --



           12           Q.  Correct.



           13           A.  I don't think -- I don't think I know the



           14      answer to that.



  14:05    15           Q.  So let me ask it in a different way.  Did the



           16      company have to pay for water from Summit Distribution



           17      Company?



           18           A.  So there was discussion about providing



           19      irrigation water through Summit -- providing irrigation



  14:05    20      water through Summit Water Distribution Company.  This



           21      was problematic for two reasons.  First, it's much more



           22      expensive to hire Summit Water conservation -- or to



           23      higher -- to buy Summit Water and so that cost would



           24      have been -- we would have been unable to pass it along



  14:05    25      to the customers at their current rate.  So that extra
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  14:05     1      cost would have been assumed by the company.



            2           Second, Summit was unwilling to provide irrigation



            3      water because they've already put their customers under



            4      a conservation rate which is intended to have them



  14:06     5      reduce their water consumption.  So providing extra



            6      water for irrigation purposes did not fall into their



            7      management structure of how they wanted to manage their



            8      water resources.



            9           Q.  So had the company, the applicant, wanted to



  14:06    10      raise revenues in order to pay for expenses, it did not



           11      have the ability to lift its irrigation restriction



           12      because it didn't have water and the water from Summit



           13      Water was not available; is that true?



           14           A.  True.



  14:06    15           Q.  There has also been a big line of questioning



           16      today about why the company did not pursue this hearing



           17      until September.  Have you ever been involved in a rate



           18      case hearing for a public utility other than for



           19      Community Water?



  14:06    20           A.  No, I have not.



           21           Q.  Have you been involved in one previously on



           22      Community Water?



           23           A.  Yes, I have.



           24           Q.  How long does it take to prepare for a rate



  14:06    25      case?
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  14:06     1           A.  It takes a substantial amount of time.  And I



            2      believe that's also reflected in the 2014, turning our



            3      application back as incomplete, in that it takes a



            4      substantial amount of time.  And that's also one of the



  14:07     5      reasons why we've applied for this interim rate hearing



            6      is that we need hard engineering.  It takes time to do



            7      that.



            8           Q.  And so instead -- or as a parallel path, the



            9      company chose to do as you testified, which is seek



  14:07    10      other methods of finding funds for the company, which is



           11      completely permissible and allowed by the code?



           12           A.  Yes.



           13           Q.  Mr. Savage asked you a question about the



           14      decision making of the company and who was responsible



  14:07    15      for that decision making.  Are you aware that with the



           16      company's direct testimony, there was filed an



           17      administrative services agreement between ASC Utah and



           18      the company?



           19           A.  I believe so.



  14:07    20           Q.  Okay.  I just want to note that for the record,



           21      and the services that are required and provided



           22      thereunder, it's that agreement whereby the decisions



           23      were made?



           24           A.  Uh-huh.



  14:08    25           Q.  Okay.  I do want to ask a few questions
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  14:08     1      regarding the loan just quickly.



            2           So far as your testimony has been today the -- if



            3      the tank, $525,000, is included in the Division of



            4      Drinking Water loan, the loan can still close in April?



  14:08     5      The cost of the tank -- I'm sorry.  I'll do one at a



            6      time.



            7           A.  Yes.  We can include the tank in the Division



            8      of Drinking Water loan.  It would -- but the timeline of



            9      the tank would also then parallel the timeline of the



  14:08    10      other project components.  So April.



           11           Q.  So the loan can close in April?



           12           A.  Uh-huh.



           13           Q.  When can the tank be fully functional if it is



           14      funded in April?



  14:08    15           A.  If it's funded in April, I believe it would put



           16      us towards the back end of summer.  But really the



           17      engineers would be a better witness for that.



           18           Q.  Is it possible that waiting until April to



           19      engage in bidding and redesigning, constructing --



  14:09    20      because I believe Mr. White testified earlier that it's



           21      a three to four-month process.  And so if it's April,



           22      and we start that process in April -- May, June, July,



           23      August, September potentially -- and if we have



           24      conditions that don't allow for it, it is conceivable



  14:09    25      that the tank would not be constructed until 2019?
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  14:09     1           A.  If we had an early winter.  I do want to



            2      clarify the bidding process occurs as part of the loan



            3      closing.  You need to do the bidding process.  The large



            4      hiccup is that we aren't allowed to expend money on the



  14:09     5      actual construction outlays until the loan is closed.



            6      So we'd not be able to actually purchase the tank until



            7      the loan is closed.  And that's the biggest problem



            8      because then that initiates the construction deadline



            9      from my understanding.



  14:10    10           Q.  Great.  Thank you for clarifying.  It's also



           11      your testimony that the cost of the tank would increase



           12      by roughly 10 percent?



           13           A.  Perhaps twenty percent.  So the loan request



           14      for the tank originally when we included it after the



  14:10    15      tank failure in April was a $450,000 line item.  So the



           16      500 -- and since then tank costs have gone up.  So my



           17      understanding of conversations from Summit Water



           18      Distribution representatives, mostly Mike Folkman and



           19      Dave Fuller is that the bidding process is expensive and



  14:10    20      it would increase costs by about 20 percent.



           21           Q.  So we would be looking at a $650,000 loan at



           22      3.39 percent payable over 20 years with the tank



           23      potentially not being constructed until 2019?



           24           A.  Potentially, yes.



  14:10    25           MR. ATWATER:  No further questions.
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  14:10     1           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Will there be



            2      anything else from CWC?



            3           MR. ATWATER:  No.  That rests our witness' case.



            4      We do want to reserve the right to make a closing



  14:11     5      statement.



            6           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Understood.  Thank you,



            7      Ms. Lewis.



            8           Ms. Schmid?



            9           MS. SCHMID:  May we have a five-minute break?



  14:11    10           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes.  We'll be in recess



           11      until 2:20.  Thank you.



           12           (Interruption in proceedings.)



           13           MS. SCHMID:  The Division would like to call



           14      Mr. William Duncan.



  14:18    15           (William Duncan is sworn in as a witness.)



           16           MS. SCHMID:



           17           Q.  Good afternoon.



           18           A.  Good afternoon.  Is my microphone on?



           19           MR. GARY SMITH:  Yes.



  14:18    20           MS. SCHMID:



           21           Q.  Please state your full name, business address,



           22      title and employer for the record.



           23           A.  My name is William Duncan.  I'm the manager of



           24      the telecommunication and water section of the Utah



  14:18    25      Division of Public Utilities.  Business address, 160
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  14:18     1      East, 300 South, fourth floor.



            2           Q.  In connection with your employment by the



            3      Division, have you participated in this case?



            4           A.  Yes.



  14:19     5           Q.  Could you please briefly describe what actions



            6      you or your staff -- because you're a manager -- has



            7      taken in this case.



            8           A.  Yes.  After receiving the application, we met



            9      together and seeing that there was a request for interim



  14:19    10      rates, we immediately set about trying to determine what



           11      we could recommend.  And in conjunction with that, we



           12      went to Community Water Company on September 25th, I



           13      think -- there were three of us -- and reviewed various



           14      records, invoices relating to the costs of the company.



  14:19    15           After the scheduling conference, we issued one data



           16      request to try and get more information in an effort to



           17      determine if we could come up with a rate that we could



           18      support.



           19           Q.  In connection with your employment and with



  14:20    20      your work for the Division in this case, did you prepare



           21      and cause to be filed your direct testimony marked for



           22      identification as DPU Exhibit 1 which was filed on



           23      October 13th, 2017?



           24           A.  Yes.



  14:20    25           Q.  Do you have any changes or corrections to that
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  14:20     1      testimony?



            2           A.  Yes, I do.



            3           Q.  The Division has passed out to the parties and



            4      has placed on the hearing officer's table corrected



  14:20     5      pages and a list that shows the corrections that need to



            6      be made -- that need to be made.  With that, Mr. Duncan,



            7      could you please explain why corrections need to be



            8      made?



            9           A.  Yes.  After filing our direct testimony, we



  14:21    10      conducted further research about the tank, the storage



           11      tank in question, and determined that it should probably



           12      be classified as a distribution reservoir under NARUC



           13      accounting codes.  For those not familiar with NARUC,



           14      it's the National Association of Regulatory Utility



  14:21    15      Commissioners, which is account code 330.  Rather than a



           16      collecting and impounding reservoir which is NARUC



           17      account 305.



           18           Q.  Is the depreciable life different for those two



           19      accounts?



  14:21    20           A.  Yes.  The depreciable life for a distribution



           21      reservoir is 30 years.  In my direct testimony I had



           22      used a 50-year depreciable life and those rates are



           23      prescribed by commission rule R746 dash 332.



           24           Q.  In connection with the reclassification of the



  14:22    25      applicable account for the water tank, numbers in your
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  14:22     1      testimony change?



            2           A.  Yes, they did.



            3           Q.  Could you please walk us through those -- and



            4      again this has been presented to counsel and has been



  14:22     5      placed on the hearing officer's table.



            6           A.  Yes.  On page five line 80, change 10,500 to



            7      17,500.  And change 50 to 30 to recognize the 30-year



            8      depreciable life.  Page five line 81, change 46,680 to



            9      53,680.  On line six -- page six line 88, change $7.73



  14:22    10      to $8.89.  And on line 89, change $46,680 to $53,680.



           11      And then lastly on page eight line 124, change again



           12      $7.73 to $8.89.



           13           Q.  With those corrections, if I asked you the same



           14      questions that are set forth in your prefiled testimony,



  14:23    15      would your answers today be the same as they were when



           16      the testimony was filed with the commissioner?



           17           A.  Yes.



           18           MS. SCHMID:  With that, the Division moves for the



           19      entry into evidence of DPU exhibit number 1.0, direct



  14:23    20      testimony of Mr. William Duncan as corrected here today.



           21           MR. ATWATER:  No objection.



           22           MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.



           23           MR. LANGE:  No objection.



           24           MS. MILLER:  No objection.



  14:23    25           THE HEARING OFFICER:  It's admitted.
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  14:23     1           MS. SCHMID:



            2           Q.  Mr. Duncan, do you have a summary?



            3           A.  Yes, I do.



            4           Q.  Also, the scheduling order permitted live



  14:24     5      rebuttal.  Do you have anything in that context?



            6           A.  Not that I'm aware of right now.



            7           Q.  Okay.  Please proceed.



            8           A.  The Division of Public Utilities is a posed



            9      one-time assessment or any other short-term assessment



  14:24    10      regarding cost recovery for replacement of the failed



           11      tank.  The Division believes the recovery of any cost



           12      should reasonably match the expected life of an asset



           13      being placed in public service.  In this case, the asset



           14      in question, a storage tank has a depreciable life of 30



  14:24    15      years.



           16           During the course of that 30 years, the Division



           17      expects a substantial number of customers will move out



           18      and new customers will move in.  Some will likely stay



           19      several years, while others will be short-term



  14:24    20      occupants, requiring the current generation of customers



           21      to provide cost recovery immediately, will create an



           22      inter-generational inequity.



           23           An inter-generational inequity exists when one



           24      generation of customers incurs the cost of an asset or



  14:25    25      expense, while another generation of customers receives
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  14:25     1      the benefit provided by that.  Cost utility regulation



            2      has a long history of well established practices of



            3      providing cost recovery for investment in



            4      infrastructure.



  14:25     5           Cost recovery is accomplished through capitalizing



            6      a new asset and receiving a reasonable rate of return.



            7      The Division views the addition of this new storage tank



            8      no differently.  The Division believes Community Water



            9      should secure financing, build a storage tank,



  14:25    10      capitalize the asset and have cost for recovery included



           11      in rates.  These practices ensure that the utility



           12      customers pay only for the benefits they receive during



           13      the time period they receive service from the utility.



           14           For this reason, the Division believes that the



  14:25    15      one-time assessment is not in the public interest and



           16      opposes the one-time assessment for the storage tank



           17      replacement.  This completes my summary.



           18           MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  Mr. Duncan is now



           19      available for cross-examination questions and questions



  14:26    20      from the hearing officer.



           21           THE HEARING OFFICER:  We'll start with Mr. Atwater.



           22           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.



           23           Q.  Mr. Duncan, you stated in your testimony -- or



           24      you suggest, I should say, and you just stated that the



  14:26    25      company should procure investor funds to pay for the
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  14:26     1      tank immediately?



            2           A.  Yes, they should.  They should do their own



            3      financing, whether it's funding from investors or



            4      funding from the lending institution.



  14:26     5           Q.  Are you aware personally of any options



            6      available to the company outside of the options that



            7      have been supported and discussed today?



            8           A.  No, I'm not aware.



            9           Q.  Have you ever had a public utility company the



  14:26    10      size of Community Water need funds in this manner?



           11           A.  I cannot recall.  I can recall one special



           12      assessment, but it was not an assessment for capital



           13      needs.



           14           Q.  And how did they obtain funding for that?



  14:27    15           A.  They applied to the commission.



           16           Q.  No outside funding, no outside loan, no



           17      investor funds?



           18           A.  No.  It was from the customers.



           19           Q.  Okay.  Do you believe it's in the public's best



  14:27    20      interest to potentially lose an additional irrigation



           21      season by waiting to have the tank constructed?



           22           A.  No, I believe that the company should move



           23      ahead as quickly as possible.



           24           Q.  Okay.  And without funds, how do you propose or



  14:27    25      how do you suggest the company move forward?
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  14:27     1           A.  Well, I would propose, as stated in my



            2      testimony, that the commission issue an order that



            3      allows for cost recovery upon completion of the tank,



            4      whenever that is.  And depending upon such things as the



  14:28     5      final cost of the tank and the financing packages used.



            6           Q.  But no suggestion as to where the funding would



            7      come from?



            8           A.  No.  It's not our job to try and help or try



            9      and manage the company or point them to different



  14:28    10      funding sources.  That's a company decision.



           11           Q.  So availability of funds, timing and



           12      availability of funds, is irrelevant to your



           13      recommendation?



           14           A.  No.  Timing and availability of funds is



  14:28    15      relevant.  You should -- I think the company should



           16      pursue fundings as soon as possible, whether through DDW



           17      or other sources.



           18           Q.  Do you believe the company has pursued



           19      adequately available funds or potential funding sources?



  14:28    20           A.  I don't know.  I only know that they pursued



           21      DDW funds.  And in the application it talks about



           22      potential lenders.  I don't know who those potential



           23      lenders are.



           24           Q.  Okay.  Let me rephrase this a little bit.  If



  14:29    25      the commission were to approve your proposal, which is a
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  14:29     1      repayment -- a cost recovery over 30 years?



            2           A.  Uh-huh.



            3           Q.  The presumption that the company would make in



            4      that regard would be that it would be -- the only funds



  14:29     5      available to it would be the DDW loan.  And if that were



            6      the case, the potential of not constructing the tank in



            7      2018 is great.  And if we assume --



            8           MS. SCHMID:  Objection.  This is a compound



            9      question and I believe counsel is testifying.



  14:29    10           THE HEARING OFFICER:  It's sustained.  If you want



           11      to break up your question that would be helpful.



           12           MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.



           13           MR. ATWATER:  Sure.



           14           Q.  If you had a choice of recommending to the



  14:29    15      commission construction of the tank in 2018 at a higher



           16      immediate cost to the customers versus construction of



           17      the tank in 2019 at a lower cost to the customers, what



           18      would your recommendation be?



           19           A.  Higher and lower are relative.  I mean, you're



  14:30    20      talking much higher and much lower?  I don't think I can



           21      answer that question until I see, you know, what the



           22      difference is.



           23           Q.  Let me rephrase the question.  What's more



           24      important then? Finances or having water immediately or



  14:30    25      as soon as possible?
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  14:30     1           MS. SCHMID:  Objection.  I think that the duties of



            2      the Division of Public Utilities while broad, do not



            3      encompass making management decisions for the company.



            4      And with that I object to the question.



  14:30     5           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I did not really hear an



            6      evidentiary basis for the objection.  I'm fine with



            7      Mr. Duncan answering to the extent he has an answer.



            8           THE WITNESS:  Could you repeat the question.



            9           MR. ATWATER:



  14:30    10           Q.  Sure.  If you had a choice in your



           11      recommendation of having a higher cost financially to



           12      the customers with the immediate resolution to the lack



           13      of water versus a lower cost, but a delayed receipt of



           14      water, what would your recommendation be?



  14:31    15           A.  You know, I can't answer.  I don't know.  I'd



           16      have to look at what the relative difference in the



           17      costs are.



           18           Q.  Okay.  And we believe that is before the



           19      commission, that it's available.



  14:31    20           A.  But I'm just hearing higher and lower.  I'm not



           21      hearing numbers.



           22           Q.  Okay.  So Ms. Lewis testified that if the tank



           23      is included in the DDW loan, the total cost of the tank



           24      would be $650,000 approximately, so it's an additional



  14:31    25      $125,000.  The tank potentially would not be constructed
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  14:31     1      until 2019.  The interest rate would be 3.39 percent



            2      verses if the company were to build the tank immediately



            3      on its fastest track, the cost of the tank would be



            4      $525,000 at some rate between 3.39 and 13 percent?



  14:32     5           A.  Okay.  The way you structured the question



            6      makes it sound like it's not only faster, but lower cost



            7      if it's done in 2018.



            8           Q.  I agree.



            9           A.  So I would say the lower the cost and the



  14:32    10      faster you could do it, the better.



           11           Q.  Great.  Thank you.  I do have questions, a few



           12      questions about your written testimony.



           13           A.  Okay.



           14           Q.  With your written testimony you included



  14:32    15      Exhibit 2.1 which was redacted in part?



           16           A.  That was not a part of my testimony.  That was



           17      part of Mr. Smith's testimony.



           18           Q.  Okay.  I'll reserve it for him.



           19           Have you ever had a situation before the commission



  14:33    20      where a public utility was not able to receive funds



           21      after exploring all options without approval of the



           22      commission or prior to approval of the commission?



           23           A.  State that again, please.



           24           Q.  So the Division of Drinking Water loan, one of



  14:33    25      the conditions to receive those funds in closing is that
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  14:33     1      there be an approved rate sufficient to cover debt



            2      service and repayment of principal?



            3           A.  Correct.



            4           Q.  Have you ever had a situation before the



  14:33     5      commission where that was the case?



            6           A.  I have not.  I'm sure there's been some in the



            7      commission -- in our agency, but not in my particular



            8      cases that I've handled.



            9           Q.  Does the Division of Public Utilities



  14:33    10      understand that to be the case for this matter?



           11           A.  Yes.  I think it was in my testimony that you



           12      need -- the Division of Drinking Water needs a repayment



           13      approval before they can move ahead with the loan, and



           14      that's why we put in our testimony that we would like



  14:34    15      the commission to approve a rate that is sufficient.



           16      Now sufficient is going to depend on the cost -- the



           17      final actual cost of the tank and the financing that's



           18      used.



           19           Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  In your experience --



  14:34    20      shifting gears to the general increase.  In your



           21      experience, has there ever been a situation where you've



           22      had to recommend or not recommend a rate increase where



           23      the proof and evidence of the rate increase was based



           24      upon estimates of an engineer?



  14:34    25           A.  No.  Not in my experience.
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  14:34     1           Q.  And have you ever had a situation where



            2      approval of the rate is based upon loan requirements?



            3           A.  Yes.



            4           Q.  Do you mind describing that for us, if you



  14:35     5      remember?



            6           A.  Yes.  I was involved in a case with a



            7      telecommunications company almost ten years ago that



            8      they had certain loan covenants that they had to meet.



            9      And they were in financial distress and they had to meet



  14:35    10      these loan covenants on a loan they'd taken out.  So we



           11      based an interim rate on financial covenants.



           12           Q.  Okay.  I have no further questions.



           13           A.  Okay.



           14           Q.  Maybe I have one.  So just to reiterate your



  14:36    15      recommendation, is this still your recommendation, given



           16      the proceedings today, that the company somehow find



           17      loan -- or somehow find funds and then recover those



           18      costs over a 30-year period?



           19           A.  Yes.



  14:36    20           Q.  Do you believe that that is a business decision



           21      or is that --



           22           A.  No.  That's a regulatory principle, not a



           23      business decision.  A business can make decisions on



           24      their own.  We try and make recommendations based on



  14:36    25      well-established principles.
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  14:36     1           Q.  Okay.  And as a follow-up to that question,



            2      based on the proceedings today and based on the previous



            3      question I had for you, do you feel like the Division of



            4      Drinking Water loan is the most appropriate method of



  14:37     5      funding?



            6           A.  I can't say that it's the most appropriate.  I



            7      can say that it's a very, very good interest rate.  But



            8      whether it's the most appropriate, I don't know what



            9      else is out there in the financial markets.



  14:37    10           Q.  Even at the risk of losing another irrigation



           11      season?



           12           A.  Well, I thought we just established that it was



           13      a lower cost and quicker response based on using the



           14      Drinking Water loan.



  14:37    15           Q.  No.  I think it was the reverse.  And I guess



           16      the issue I'm trying to get at is, if the Division of



           17      Drinking Water loan is the procedure which has a close



           18      recovery period to the 30-year period you're suggesting,



           19      they roughly match up.



  14:38    20           A.  Uh-huh.



           21           Q.  If the loan that Mr. White suggested is



           22      potentially available -- based on certain conditions is



           23      available -- that one of the conditions of that loan



           24      presumably would not be repayment over 20 years or 30



  14:38    25      years, for that matter?
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  14:38     1           A.  I'm unclear on what loan he's proposing that



            2      might be available.



            3           MS. SCHMID:  Objection.  Calls for speculation from



            4      the witness.



  14:38     5           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Why don't you clarify your



            6      question, Mr. Atwater.  Sustained.



            7           MR. ATWATER:  Yeah.



            8           Q.  So the question is, I guess Mr. White testified



            9      earlier today and we've been talking all day about the



  14:38    10      idea of an affiliate loan in the amount of $525,000?



           11           A.  Uh-huh.



           12           Q.  Mr. White also testified that there would be



           13      conditions that would match his investors' funds to



           14      repay that loan.  Do you recall that?



  14:38    15           A.  Yes.



           16           Q.  In addition to the interest rate, there would



           17      be a repayment period that would be much shorter than 20



           18      years.  In fact, it's been stated today that that was



           19      somewhere between 12 and 18 months.



  14:39    20           A.  As I state in my summary that we would be



           21      opposed to a short-term assessment.  It doesn't



           22      reasonably match the asset life to the repayment period.



           23      So an 18-month loan or 12-month, it does not match a



           24      30-year investment.



  14:39    25           Q.  Okay.  And that's great.  I hope that clarifies
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  14:39     1      the point.  The point is that the cheaper more



            2      beneficial option is not available based on your



            3      testimony?



            4           MS. SCHMID:  Objection.  I think that "not



  14:39     5      available" is vague.



            6           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Sustained.  I thought it



            7      misstated the testimony.  If you'd like to rephrase



            8      that's fine.



            9           MR. ATWATER:



  14:39    10           Q.  If the $525,000 affiliate loan is made with a



           11      repayment period of 18 months --



           12           A.  Okay.



           13           Q.  -- can you company repay that loan based on



           14      your recommendation?



  14:39    15           MS. SCHMID:  Objection.  That calls for facts not



           16      in evidence.  The company has -- it appears different



           17      ways to finance, and I do not know that the company's



           18      recovery through its customers is the only means of



           19      recovering money to pay a debt.  I don't know and I



  14:40    20      don't think anyone here knows.



           21           THE WITNESS:  Will you repeat the question?



           22           MR. ATWATER:  Sure.  If I remember the question.



           23           Q.  If the agreed repayment period for the



           24      affiliate loan is 12 months or 18 months --



  14:40    25           A.  Okay.
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  14:40     1           Q.  -- would your recommendation provide the



            2      company the ability to repay that loan?



            3           A.  I believe the Divisions's position would be



            4      that an 18-month loan presents the same inequity that we



  14:40     5      have with an immediate repayment, that you have inter-



            6      generational inequality, where customers -- the



            7      immediate customers pay for a service that they may not



            8      use for very long.  And subsequent customers come in two



            9      years later and get the benefit of somebody that's made



  14:41    10      that payment.



           11           Q.  And the follow-up question would be, the



           12      Division of Drinking Water loan is a 20-year repayment



           13      period?



           14           A.  Correct.



  14:41    15           Q.  Your cost recovery is a 30-year period.  Would



           16      your recommendation be sufficient to repay the Division



           17      of Drinking Water loan?



           18           A.  I think the 20-year loan more reasonably



           19      matches a 30-year depreciation.



  14:41    20           Q.  But still --



           21           A.  Still not exactly, but it's more reasonable.



           22      It's a closer match.



           23           MR. ATWATER:  Great.  Thank you.



           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Are you finished,



  14:41    25      Mr. Atwater?
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  14:41     1           MR. ATWATER:  Yes.  Thank you.



            2           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Savage?



            3           MR. SAVAGE:  No questions.



            4           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Lange?



  14:41     5           MR. LANGE:  Yes.  I've got a couple of questions



            6      here, Mr. Duncan.



            7           Q.  So if the customer base, maybe through its



            8      intervenors, felt that a shorter time period -- even



            9      though there isn't an equity there -- was a more



  14:42    10      responsible answer to getting this tank -- because there



           11      is an immediate need for the tank -- and a new owner 20



           12      years from now was not suffering or potentially could



           13      suffer from we -- what we can suffer from here in the



           14      short term -- so if the customer base through the



  14:42    15      intervenors suggested a shorter time period, would you



           16      fight us on that?  Or I'm not sure I'm phrasing that



           17      quite right.  But would you disagree with us on what we



           18      are willing to do?



           19           A.  I think that the Division's position would be



  14:42    20      the same, but I think that if you have a desire for that



           21      type of loan then you should make that argument with the



           22      commission.



           23           Q.  Well, I guess maybe at some level, perhaps



           24      we'll do that.  But right now we're trying to figure out



  14:43    25      how to get some money going right away for the tank.
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  14:43     1      Like today --



            2           A.  I agree.



            3           Q.  -- or when the commission makes a decision.  So



            4      I'm fine appealing to the commission on this.  Then so



  14:43     5      be it.



            6           A.  Uh-huh.



            7           Q.  But again I just want -- I guess you're telling



            8      me that you would not agree with what we would want?



            9           A.  I would state that we have our position and our



  14:43    10      position is that the repayment period should closely



           11      match the asset life.



           12           MR. LANGE:  Okay.  I understand.  Thank you very



           13      much.



           14           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Miller?



  14:43    15           MS. MILLER:  I have no comments or questions.



           16           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Schmid, would you prefer



           17      I ask my questions before you redirect?



           18           MS. SCHMID:  Yes, please.



           19           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Duncan, based on reading



  14:43    20      your testimony, I inferred that you or other individuals



           21      who work at the Division have had communications with



           22      individuals at DDW; is that correct?



           23           THE WITNESS:  We have.



           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Who has been involved in



  14:44    25      those communications?
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  14:44     1           THE WITNESS:  Myself and Mr. Smith and Mark Long.



            2           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Has DDW made any



            3      representations to you or to anyone else at the Division



            4      to your knowledge concerning the availability of funds



  14:44     5      to finance the replacement of the failed tank?



            6           THE WITNESS:  Yes.



            7           THE HEARING OFFICER:  And what were the content of



            8      those representations?



            9           THE WITNESS:  They were very close to what



  14:44    10      Ms. Lewis testified to just a few minutes ago, that they



           11      could still put funding for the tank back into the loan,



           12      but it would require that they backtrack and take



           13      some -- and do some steps that they had not done when



           14      pursuing an outside -- you know, getting bids from --



  14:44    15      without following all the federal regulations so it



           16      would be a delay.



           17           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Do you have any opinion as to



           18      whether the representations we've heard from other



           19      witnesses today concerning CWC's ability to order the



  14:45    20      tank or otherwise begin preconstruction work before loan



           21      closing are accurate?



           22           THE WITNESS:  I would say that they are generally



           23      accurate.  And confirm what we've talked about with



           24      Drinking Water.



  14:45    25           THE HEARING OFFICER:  So DDW has confirmed to you



                                               184

�









  14:45     1      or others at the Division that the construction cannot



            2      be -- pardon me -- preconstruction work cannot begin



            3      prior to closing?



            4           THE WITNESS:  That is correct.



  14:45     5           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Do you have an opinion as to



            6      whether CWC's estimate that the tank will take



            7      approximately four months for manufacture is accurate?



            8           THE WITNESS:  I don't have an opinion on that.



            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  So in light of everything you



  14:46    10      know about the case, as we sit here today do you have an



           11      opinion as to whether financing through DDW remains a



           12      feasible alternative?



           13           THE WITNESS:  I believe it remains feasible,



           14      although I can see that Community Water would have to



  14:46    15      act quickly to backtrack and do some of the steps that



           16      they did not do.  So it's feasible, I think, and it's --



           17      as has been testified to it's a very good interest rate.



           18           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Let's change tracks



           19      and assume for a moment that the Commission were



  14:46    20      inclined to agree with the Division with respect to its



           21      recommendation on the failed water tank.  I believe your



           22      testimony suggests that the order in this interim rate



           23      proceedings should provide some sort of authorization



           24      that would satisfy DDW that it would be assured of



  14:47    25      repayment; is that accurate?
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  14:47     1           THE WITNESS:  Yes.  That's accurate.  But in



            2      addition to DDW, in the application -- Drinking Water's



            3      application in paragraph 18, it said without assessments



            4      to cover the debt service and repayment, the company has



  14:47     5      been unable to demonstrate to potential lenders a clear



            6      path of repayment.  So I think it should not only apply



            7      to DDW, but maybe other lenders that they may have



            8      talked to.



            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Understood.  And one sort of



  14:47    10      specific question, if we go to page five of your



           11      corrected testimony which was handed out earlier today,



           12      beginning on line 75, the question reads, "Does the



           13      Division have an estimate of the additional revenue



           14      required to recover the cost of rebuilding the failed



  14:48    15      water tank."



           16           THE WITNESS:  Correct.



           17           THE HEARING OFFICER:  You state, "Yes, based on the



           18      investment of $525,000 and loan repayment conditions of



           19      20 years at 3.39 percent, the loan repayment would be



  14:48    20      $3,000 -- pardon me -- $3,015."  On an annual basis you



           21      go on to explain that's $36,180.  Then you go on to



           22      combine an annual depreciation expense of $17,500 per



           23      year; right?



           24           THE WITNESS:  Correct.



  14:48    25           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Is it consistent with general
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  14:48     1      rate making principles to allow for recovery -- back up.



            2      The monthly repayment here of $3,000 -- I mean $3,015



            3      includes both the principle and interest payment;



            4      correct?



  14:48     5           THE WITNESS:  Yes.



            6           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Is it consistent with



            7      generate rate making principles to allow a utility to



            8      recover the principle on its debt and also depreciate



            9      that asset in the same year?



  14:49    10           A.  I don't know.



           11           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I don't have any further



           12      questions.  Thank you.  Ms. Schmid?



           13           MS. SCHMID:  No redirect.



           14           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Duncan.



  14:49    15           Ms. Schmid, do you have another witness?



           16           MS. SCHMID:  We do.  The Division would like to



           17      call Mr. Gary Smith as its next witness.



           18           (Gary Smith is sworn in as a witness.)



           19           MS. SCHMID:



  14:49    20           Q.  Good afternoon.



           21           A.  Good afternoon.



           22           Q.  I believe this is the first time you've had the



           23      opportunity to testify before a regulatory body; is that



           24      correct?



  14:49    25           A.  That is correct.
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  14:49     1           Q.  Here we go.  Welcome.  Mr. Smith, could you



            2      please state your full name, title, employer and



            3      business address for the record?



            4           A.  My name is Gary Smith.  And I'm employed by the



  14:50     5      Division of Public Utilities, state of Utah.  My address



            6      is 160 East 300 South, fourth floor, Salt Lake City,



            7      Utah.



            8           Q.  In connection with your employment by the



            9      Division, have you participated on behalf of the



  14:50    10      Division in this docket?



           11           A.  I have.



           12           Q.  Did you prepare and cause to be filed what has



           13      been premarked for identification as DPU exhibit number



           14      2.0, the direct testimony of Gary Smith filed on



  14:50    15      October 13th, 2017?



           16           A.  Yes.



           17           Q.  Do you have any changes or corrections to that



           18      testimony?



           19           A.  I do not.



  14:50    20           Q.  If I were to ask you today the same questions



           21      that are contained in the prefiled testimony, would your



           22      answers today be the same as those contained in the



           23      prefiled testimony?



           24           A.  Yes, they would.



  14:50    25           Q.  With that, the Division moves for the admission
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  14:50     1      into evidence of DPU exhibit number 2.0?



            2           MR. ATWATER:  No objection.



            3           MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.



            4           MR. LANGE:  No objection.



  14:51     5           MS. MILLER:  No objection.



            6           THE HEARING OFFICER:  It's admitted.



            7           MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.



            8           Q.  Mr. Smith, the procedural schedule permits live



            9      rebuttal and Commission practice allows traditionally



  14:51    10      witnesses to present a summary.  Would you please



           11      proceed?



           12           A.  I would.  In rebuttal, I'd just like to note



           13      that the Division only has records that it receives from



           14      the source.  We received an annual report which is



  14:51    15      required to be filed by the utility companies that we



           16      oversee.



           17           According to 2015, the numbers, the operating



           18      numbers that we see for the company, they were positive.



           19      There was actually a surplus.  In 2016, there was



  14:52    20      reported to us a deficiency.  The rate increase that



           21      happened in 2016 took effect so the payment of that



           22      started at the first of this year.  The annual amount



           23      for that, just on the base rate alone, was more than



           24      sufficient to cover the deficit that was covered in '16.



  14:52    25      I only say that to give you an indication of where we're
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  14:52     1      at.



            2           Now that doesn't include anything to do with the



            3      tier grades and the income that would come from that.



            4      But that's what the Division has been presented to it.



  14:52     5      And since then the Division, in an effort to evaluate



            6      the company request for an interim rate increase,



            7      conducted a focused on-site review of the company



            8      records on September 25th, 2017 and filed its first data



            9      request on October 4th, 2017.



  14:52    10           As detailed in my direct testimony dated



           11      October 13, '17, the information and the rate increase



           12      as presented by the company requires further



           13      clarification and resolution of the noted



           14      inconsistencies identified in my Exhibit 2.1.  Due to



  14:53    15      these inconsistencies, the Division is not able to



           16      determine whether the company's interim rate increase as



           17      proposed is just, reasonable and in the public's



           18      interest.  Therefore, the Division recommends the



           19      commission not approve an interim rate as presently



  14:53    20      proposed.



           21           MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  Mr. Smith is now available



           22      for cross-examination questions and questions from the



           23      hearing officer.



           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Atwater?



  14:53    25           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.
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  14:53     1           Q.  Mr. Smith, you mentioned that the only



            2      information -- financial information available to you is



            3      that which was filed with the Division of Drinking



            4      Water; is that correct?



  14:53     5           A.  We only have information provided -- wait.



            6           Q.  Excuse me.  The annual reports that were filed,



            7      I apologize.



            8           A.  Wait.  You mentioned the Division of Drinking



            9      Water, didn't you?



  14:54    10           Q.  Sorry.  I meant to refer to the annual reports.



           11           A.  Well, on an annual basis -- I mean, on an



           12      ongoing basis unless we have a rate case, of course



           13      there is that additional information that we request and



           14      obtain.



  14:54    15           Q.  Did you receive additional financial



           16      information from the company in connection with the



           17      application?



           18           A.  Yes, we did.



           19           Q.  Is that information consistent with the filings



  14:54    20      of the annual reports?



           21           A.  Actually, I would -- it's too hard to



           22      determine.  I mean, we have spent an enormous amount of



           23      time trying to reconcile the numbers in the audit or



           24      annual report to the numbers in the invoices received.



  14:54    25      So it has been a challenge.



                                               191

�









  14:54     1           Q.  In your first stated request, did the company



            2      answer all of your questions?



            3           A.  They provided some information, but we were



            4      still evaluating whether or not, you know, it completely



  14:54     5      answers everything.



            6           Q.  In your data request did you include



            7      information about the inconsistencies?



            8           A.  In our -- we requested additional information



            9      which -- but since that time and with the remaining



  14:55    10      portion of the filing we became aware that -- the



           11      Division became aware of a -- potential inconsistencies



           12      and concerns with what expenses that a company actually



           13      has.



           14           Q.  Were these deficiencies in amounts or title?



  14:55    15           A.  Well, we were made aware of the contract



           16      that -- when we first met on September 25th, we were



           17      presented with some information about the structure of



           18      the company and how the employees were paid and what was



           19      considered included within the company's structure,



  14:55    20      including an allocation of people's time.  We were not



           21      made aware of a contractual agreement until the filing.



           22      And that was -- it was news to us and it's unclear for



           23      us to determine what is covered under that as opposed to



           24      the other agreements which a company has.



  14:56    25           Q.  Have you reviewed the amounts due and payable
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  14:56     1      under the administrative services agreement versus the



            2      amounts allocated by the company prior to your knowledge



            3      of that agreement?



            4           A.  Which agreement are you referring to?



  14:56     5           Q.  The one that you just referred to, the



            6      administrative services agreement that you became aware



            7      of in the response?



            8           A.  Okay.



            9           Q.  Let me reask that question.



  14:56    10           A.  Yes.



           11           Q.  So this document, it was filed under



           12      confidentiality and so I won't discuss the numbers of



           13      that agreement.



           14           However, my question for you is, did you compare



  14:56    15      the amount payable on a monthly basis under that



           16      agreement to the historical amount paid by or allocated



           17      to the company for administrative overhead?



           18           A.  We took time to compare on a monthly basis what



           19      was proposed under both.  Both with the employees'



  14:57    20      allocation and also under the agreement, yes.



           21           Q.  And did you notice any material differences



           22      between the two?



           23           A.  Yes.  We could not reconcile the two.



           24           Q.  The numbers didn't reconcile?



  14:57    25           A.  According to what we could tell, they did not.
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  14:57     1           Q.  And were the amounts material, the



            2      irreconcilable amounts?



            3           A.  They could be, yeah.  I mean --



            4           Q.  Are there any other inconsistencies or



  14:57     5      deficiencies that you noted in the application that make



            6      it impossible for you to make a recommendation?



            7           A.  The bulk of -- well, the inconsistencies that



            8      we discovered are included in my Exhibit 2.1.



            9           Q.  Can we go through each of them?



  14:57    10           A.  If you'd like.



           11           Q.  Great.  Exhibit 2.1, page 1-B2, CWC will pay



           12      Summit Water Distribution.  There is a contract between



           13      Summit Water Distribution and Community Water -- it's



           14      been well established -- a certain amount on a monthly



  14:58    15      basis.  It's all been redacted.  Your question -- your



           16      statement, your inconsistency, is that the amount



           17      actually paid to Summit Water does not match the amount



           18      under contract?



           19           A.  That is correct.



  14:58    20           Q.  Does the company provide any explanation as to



           21      why it's not the same?



           22           A.  We have not received any information.



           23           Q.  Did you request that information?



           24           A.  We have not.



  14:58    25           Q.  Did you read the language of the contract with
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  14:58     1      Summit Water Distribution Company?



            2           A.  We did, yes.



            3           Q.  Is the base amount that's payable on a monthly



            4      basis the only amount that's payable under that



  14:58     5      agreement?



            6           A.  No.  That is not the amount.  There are other



            7      things dealing with water supply.



            8           Q.  So it's conceivable that the additional amount



            9      that was payable to Summit Water Distribution Company in



  14:58    10      excess of the base amount could have been for other



           11      services provided under that --



           12           A.  I would have a hard time believing that because



           13      we also received other information or other invoices



           14      specifically outlining that it was not -- it was supply



  14:59    15      of water.  So there was a definite delay issue between



           16      what we could tell was the monthly under the contractual



           17      obligation to pay for the managerial services as opposed



           18      to supply of water, yeah.



           19           Q.  Thank you.  That was not my question.  The



  14:59    20      agreement that we're referring to with Summit Water



           21      Distribution Company allows or permits the company to



           22      ask Summit Water Distribution to provide additional



           23      services in emergency situations, in repair situations



           24      and other circumstances that are not covered by the base



  14:59    25      amount.
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  14:59     1           A.  Okay.



            2           Q.  Is it conceivable that the additional amounts



            3      paid to Summit Water Distribution are for those services



            4      that are not payment for water nor the base rate?



  14:59     5           MS. SCHMID:  Objection.  Calls for speculation.



            6      It's beyond the scope of his testimony.



            7           THE WITNESS:  I will say that --



            8           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Let me rule on the objection.



            9      It does call for speculation, but I'm going to allow it



  15:00    10      because I think this line of questioning has some merit



           11      and I want to see where it goes.  So it's overruled.



           12           THE WITNESS:  What brought it mostly to our



           13      attention is that there was no difference between the



           14      invoice received for the amount -- they were the same



  15:00    15      identical for each month.  There was no breakout for



           16      where that total came from, and the amounts were exactly



           17      the same.  So it appeared to us, which requires more



           18      clarification, that potentially the contractual amount



           19      was not the -- was not justifiable.



  15:00    20           Q.  So you're suggesting that potentially there is



           21      an amendment?



           22           MS. SCHMID:  Objection.  Calls for speculation.



           23           THE WITNESS:  I wouldn't have any -- that's not



           24      what I said.



  15:00    25           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Sustained.
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  15:00     1           MR. ATWATER:



            2           Q.  Is it relevant to you in your recommendation



            3      that the amounts paid to Summit Water Distribution



            4      Company are different than what the contractual



  15:01     5      agreement states?



            6           A.  I'm sorry.  Say that again.



            7           Q.  Is it relevant to your recommendation or lack



            8      thereof that the amount paid to Summit Water



            9      Distribution is different than a contractual amount?



  15:01    10           A.  Well, it's concerning to us because it raises



           11      the question of, you know, what other costs are being



           12      treated properly as well.



           13           Q.  Do you recall the discrepancy -- the amount of



           14      the discrepancy between the payments under the contract



  15:01    15      and the amounts that were paid?



           16           A.  I do.



           17           Q.  Was it a material amount?



           18           A.  Is it material.  Well, I mean, it could be,



           19      yes.



  15:01    20           Q.  Impactful to the rate?



           21           A.  If this was the only one, that would be one



           22      thing.  But in addition to all the others, yes, it is.



           23           Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  The next inconsistency is a



           24      correct one, and we appreciate you pointing it out in



  15:02    25      the administrative services agreement between the
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  15:02     1      company and ASC Utah.  There is a reference to a payment



            2      that is payable for administrative services.  That



            3      contract, in your testimony, as you point out states



            4      that that is payable on a monthly basis.  And you



  15:02     5      suggest that that should be payable on an annual basis



            6      in equal monthly installments.  Is that your testimony?



            7           A.  It appeared to us, because of the references in



            8      other documents, that this was incorrect and given the



            9      amount we would --



  15:02    10           Q.  In other information provided to you,



           11      specifically the rate model that was an exhibit to the



           12      application, how did it characterize that amount?  Was



           13      it an annual or a monthly amount?



           14           A.  I believe it's identified as an annual amount.



  15:03    15           Q.  Thank you.  Do you believe that that clears up



           16      the inconsistency?



           17           A.  Yes.



           18           Q.  Thank you.



           19           A.  Although I do recommend redraft and resubmittal



  15:03    20      to us of that corrected document.



           21           Q.  All right.  Your third inconsistency, the daily



           22      operation and maintenance expenses of Community Water



           23      Company have been subsidized by affiliate loans.  That's



           24      from the testimony of the company, that statement.



  15:03    25           Your issue with that is that it's unclear from that
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  15:03     1      statement that the company has any outstanding loans



            2      with its affiliates.  And you are correct, the financial



            3      statements that have been submitted to the company do



            4      not reflect outstanding payables and balances owed by



  15:03     5      Community Water to any of its affiliates.



            6           A.  May I clarify?



            7           Q.  Sure.



            8           A.  So you're saying that the company has no -- or



            9      does have outstanding loans?



  15:03    10           Q.  That is correct.  The testimony of the company



           11      is that there are outstanding loans.



           12           A.  Okay.  Are you aware that under a rate case and



           13      going back to 2014, that those loans should have been



           14      identified?



  15:04    15           Q.  Sure.  And maybe a bit of an accounting



           16      discussion here would help.  Oftentimes in accounting



           17      software, it is referred to as an inner-company



           18      transaction.  And they're not necessarily always kept on



           19      the books and records of the company.  And the company



  15:04    20      has with it today, and would like to submit into



           21      evidence, two exhibits.  The first exhibit is referred



           22      to as "Subsidized Expenses Payable" by Community Water



           23      to its affiliates.  I'll hand this out and then describe



           24      it.



  15:04    25           MS. SCHMID:  I object.  I do not believe there has
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  15:04     1      not been a foundation laid for those exhibits, and I am



            2      not sure that Mr. Smith can provide that foundation as



            3      he is not the company witness.



            4           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think that's likely a



  15:05     5      meritorious objection, but I haven't even seen it yet so



            6      can we take a look at what you want to offer and then



            7      we'll discuss it.



            8           MS. SCHMID:  Of course.



            9           MR. ATWATER:  I'll bring you both, so I don't have



  15:05    10      to stand up twice.  Just to counsel?



           11           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'd like a copy as well,



           12      please.  Thank you.



           13           MR. ATWATER:  Should I give it to everybody?



           14           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes.



  15:05    15           MS. SCHMID:  Having examined the documents that



           16      were passed out to me, I renew and restate the objection



           17      that I previously made.



           18           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Smith, have you seen



           19      these documents before?



  15:06    20           THE WITNESS:  I didn't get one now and I haven't



           21      seen it before.



           22           MS. SCHMID:  He needs one.



           23           MR. ATWATER:  Not if there is an objection.



           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Well, Mr. Atwater, I'm



  15:06    25      skeptical about a line of questioning asking this
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  15:06     1      witness to testify as to the contents of these



            2      documents.  Not only because he has not reviewed them,



            3      but because no witness has attested to their voracity.



            4      If you'd like to reserve this question or line of



  15:06     5      questioning for Mr. Smith and recall the witness to lay



            6      some foundation, I think we can do that.  But I think



            7      that would be more appropriate than having this witness



            8      testify to these documents he's not familiar with.



            9           MR. ATWATER:  I can do that.  I can reserve some



  15:06    10      time to recall a witness.  May I proceed?



           11           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Absolutely.



           12           MR. LANGE:  Page one of three, page three of three,



           13      but there is no page two of three.



           14           MS. SCHMID:  It's on --



  15:07    15           MR. ATWATER:  We'll get back to it.



           16           MS. SCHMID:  Isn't it on the flip side?



           17           MR. LANGE:  No, no.



           18           MS. SCHMID:  It's on the flip side of mine.



           19           MR. ATWATER:



  15:07    20           Q.  So Mr. Smith, do you have any -- what is your



           21      background in financial or accounting, if any?



           22           A.  I have spent more than 20 years in the finance



           23      industry.  The last 13, I made municipal loans.  So I



           24      believe I have a good standing.



  15:07    25           Q.  I do too.  Have you ever heard of an
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  15:07     1      inner-company table?



            2           A.  Yes.



            3           Q.  Would you describe what that is for us?



            4           A.  One part of the company makes another -- well,



  15:07     5      it's actually between two affiliates usually -- makes



            6      inner-department -- inner-company loans.  So they'll



            7      make a loan to the other division of the company.  But



            8      usually that's reflected in their annual reports.



            9           Q.  Are you familiar with the consolidation



  15:08    10      process?



           11           A.  Why don't you describe it.



           12           Q.  Are you familiar with the consolidation



           13      process?



           14           A.  When you say consolidation process, what do you



  15:08    15      mean?



           16           Q.  Financial consolidation?



           17           A.  Right.  So you take two affiliates and combine



           18      them.



           19           Q.  So is it conceivable that affiliate loans would



  15:08    20      not appear on financial statements if they're



           21      consolidated?



           22           MS. SCHMID:  Objection.  Calls for speculation.



           23           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Overruled.  We've just



           24      established that Mr. Smith has some expertise in this



  15:08    25      area and he's being asked his opinion.
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  15:08     1           THE WITNESS:  Ask me again.



            2           MR. ATWATER:



            3           Q.  Is it conceivable that if financials are



            4      consolidated, affiliate loans and payables would not



  15:08     5      show up on those financial statements?



            6           A.  On which company?



            7           Q.  Either.



            8           A.  Either company.  So you're saying -- I guess



            9      anything is possible.



  15:08    10           Q.  Is it common practice when companies are



           11      consolidated that the eliminating entries remove



           12      inner-company transactions?



           13           A.  My background is not in corporate finance and



           14      so I have to say that that part of the expertise would



  15:09    15      probably be left to somebody else.



           16           Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  Your next inconsistency



           17      noted -- in the company's direct testimony they state



           18      that the additional O&M requested in the application



           19      which are nominal are all expenses either not understood



  15:09    20      or subsidized at the time of the 2016 approval.



           21           Your inconsistency is that it's unclear from this



           22      statement that the nominal addition to operation and



           23      maintenance would account for the level of interim



           24      increase in the rate the company has requested.  An



  15:09    25      interim adjustment to rate should reflect the
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  15:09     1      demonstrated operation and maintenance needs of the



            2      company and not its plans for future capital



            3      improvements.



            4           Would you explain what the inconsistency is there?



  15:10     5           A.  Well, in part of it, it says that the costs are



            6      nominal.  In other words, a small change in operation



            7      and maintenance.  And so yet you just -- the request



            8      going from $30 to -- I'm not sure exactly what -- but



            9      the nearest we can tell, $42 is probably more than



  15:10    10      nominal.



           11           Q.  So line 44 in the testimony is referring to the



           12      increase in O&M charge only?



           13           A.  According to what we understood, that's



           14      correct.  That's how we understood it.



  15:10    15           Q.  And you just referred to capital charges which



           16      would not be O&M?



           17           A.  To clarify, because the interim rate is for --



           18      is to evaluate what the needs of the company to operate



           19      are.  And we understand that there are capital needs,



  15:11    20      however, the interim rate wouldn't necessarily account



           21      for that because a lot of that is still unknown.



           22           Q.  What additional information would the Division



           23      need to make that --



           24           A.  What additional information do we need to



  15:11    25      evaluate the capital needs.  That your question?
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  15:11     1           Q.  No.  This particular item refers to the O&M



            2      increase from 2016 which was the original approval, the



            3      2016 rate case.



            4           Is it okay if I provide a little context because



  15:11     5      you were not around then?  So in 2016 the commission



            6      approved an O&M rate which has been discussed today.



            7      And the testimony is that that rate was not sufficient,



            8      and that's why we're here again today, which includes



            9      not only capital which is separate from my question, but



  15:12    10      also a slight nominal increase in the O&M 2016 approval.



           11           So my question is what information was not provided



           12      to allow the Division to evaluate whether that nominal



           13      increase --



           14           A.  Well, a lot of clarity was not provided.  So



  15:12    15      it's hard to evaluate what exactly the needs are when a



           16      lot of these outstanding items -- and maybe you could



           17      separate them out individually -- but collectively they



           18      pose a real obstacle for us to evaluate the exact needs



           19      of the company.



  15:12    20           Q.  I'll rephrase -- or I'll reask the question.  I



           21      don't believe it was answered.  What additional



           22      information would the Division need in order to answer



           23      the question of whether they're reasonable that wasn't



           24      already provided?



  15:12    25           A.  Well, a lot of what we found is within the two
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  15:12     1      agreements especially, we're not sure what covers what



            2      and how much that is.  In addition to that, there are



            3      just outstanding items that -- we would probably submit



            4      another data request to obtain that information on.



  15:13     5           Q.  So unfortunately this is the interim hearing,



            6      and this is a very important matter for the company.



            7      And had the Division made that data request previously



            8      to have been provided -- Why didn't the Division --



            9           MS. SCHMID:  Objection; argumentative.



  15:13    10           MR. ATWATER:



           11           Q.  Why did the Division not make --



           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Overruled to the extent



           13      Mr. Atwater asked why did the Division not -- previously



           14      not request the information.



  15:13    15           THE WITNESS:  As you know, we're on a very short



           16      time frame to do that.  And we actually have spent an



           17      enormous amount of time going through trying to figure



           18      out what exactly has changed from 2016 to 2017 that



           19      would be enough to justify a rate increase.



  15:14    20           MR. ATWATER:



           21           Q.  Are you aware that the commission accepted the



           22      application as complete?



           23           A.  That is on a -- the acceptance of it being



           24      complete means that you have provided the list of items



  15:14    25      on that.  So it's a checklist.  Now the review of that
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  15:14     1      obviously can't take place at that moment, so there is



            2      no different -- there is no direct lineation between



            3      being a complete file and being an accurate description



            4      that is understood by the recipient.



  15:14     5           Q.  Is it your testimony that the statute does not



            6      allow you sufficient time to evaluate and request



            7      appropriate data?



            8           A.  Given what we have and the time frame involved



            9      with that, it would be one thing if it was just a few



  15:15    10      things to figure out, but there are a number of items



           11      that we just can't -- we can't reconcile the numbers and



           12      the things which we've been given, and we're going



           13      through those now.



           14           Q.  Right.



  15:15    15           A.  That's the purpose of this.



           16           Q.  Are you aware that this is the only hearing for



           17      the interim rate increase?



           18           A.  I am.



           19           Q.  Did you not think that was important to request



  15:15    20      that of the company prior to this hearing?



           21           A.  It is, but also -- yes, it is.



           22           Q.  Okay.  Moving on.  The testimony of Keith J.



           23      Larson, October 6th, 2017.  The company has additional



           24      information since filing the application regarding



  15:16    25      reserves, system profit, and certain O&M costs.  In
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  15:16     1      order to ensure the financial viability of the



            2      company and to avoid system shutdown --



            3           (Interruption in proceedings.)



            4           MR. ATWATER:  This is the testimony of Keith J.



  15:16     5      Larson, October 6th, 2017.  The company has additional



            6      information since filing the application regarding



            7      reserve system profit and certain O&M costs in order to



            8      ensure the financial viability of the company and to



            9      avoid future system shutdown, the modifications in the



  15:16    10      update are critical to the company and its customers.



           11           Your response to that is it is unclear what



           12      information the company has since filing the



           13      application.  The only additional information the



           14      Division has received from the company was included in



  15:17    15      the Divisions's first data request response.  It appears



           16      that this additional information may have relevance in



           17      evaluating the company's financial requirements.  In the



           18      absence of the information the Division cannot support



           19      increases placed upon it.



  15:17    20           In Mr. Larson's testimony, he submitted an updated



           21      rate model and an update to the master plan for the



           22      company, which included all the information that support



           23      the rate that he suggested be revised.  Did you see that



           24      information?



  15:17    25           A.  Yes.
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  15:17     1           Q.  So what additional information does the



            2      Division need to evaluate?



            3           A.  What is the company requesting as an interim



            4      rate.  That's the question.



  15:17     5           Q.  Mr. Larson's testimony states that fairly



            6      clearly.



            7           A.  Okay.  It differs than in your prior



            8      application.



            9           Q.  That is correct.



  15:18    10           A.  So what is the change?



           11           Q.  So the changes are noted on his rate model and



           12      those changes -- what I'm asking is, what additional



           13      information does the Division need other than what it



           14      already has to understand what those changes are?



  15:18    15           A.  Well, it's one thing to provide details on



           16      numbers, but how those numbers fit within the company



           17      and their operations would take some time.  Just because



           18      somebody submits numbers doesn't mean that it's a clear



           19      indication of what the needs of the company are.



  15:18    20           Q.  Have you reviewed the company's direct



           21      testimony regarding the terms and conditions of the



           22      Division of Drinking Water loan?



           23           A.  Have I reviewed -- ask me again.



           24           Q.  The company's direct testimony where it



  15:19    25      discusses the terms and conditions of the Division of
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  15:19     1      Drinking Water loan --



            2           A.  Yes.



            3           Q.  -- are there any discussion of reserves in that



            4      testimony?



  15:19     5           A.  There are.



            6           Q.  Are you aware that that loan requires reserves?



            7           A.  Yes.



            8           Q.  And are you aware of the amounts?



            9           A.  I don't have them handy, but I am aware that



  15:19    10      there are amounts.



           11           Q.  They're at your disposal?



           12           A.  Right.



           13           Q.  And that is what is included in Mr. Larson's



           14      testimony is the additional reserves required by that



  15:19    15      loan, and it's stated otherwise in the testimony?



           16           A.  But apparently the numbers that you're



           17      requesting may be lower.  It's unclear exactly what your



           18      rate increase change is.



           19           Q.  In the amounts?



  15:19    20           A.  In the amounts.



           21           Q.  It's unclear because it's different or it's



           22      unclear because you don't understand them?



           23           A.  Well, both.



           24           Q.  So maybe we should open them and figure out why



  15:20    25      they're unclear.  Do you have a copy of --
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  15:20     1           A.  I do not.  I apologize.  I do not have a copy



            2      of that.



            3           Q.  I didn't think I printed them.  Maybe I did.



            4           MR. ATWATER:  May I approach.



  15:20     5           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes.



            6           MR. ATWATER:  This is the written direct testimony



            7      of Keith J. Larson adopted today and sworn to by Tena



            8      Campbell of Bowen & Collins.  It's on page eight and



            9      filtering over to page nine.



  15:20    10           THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry.  Could you -- which one is



           11      it?  This is Bowen Collins?



           12           MR. ATWATER:  This is the update, yes.



           13           Q.  So you have in front of you the update that was



           14      included in Mr. Larson's testimony, and you suggested



  15:21    15      that that is confusing to you.  Can you describe why the



           16      rate requested there is confusing?



           17           A.  The basis of this rate goes back to the ERU



           18      units and how that's derived.  And an interim rate



           19      increase is not the proper forum to change rate



  15:21    20      structure.  So it's hard to take these numbers and try



           21      to convert them into what the base rate and the base



           22      rate structure currently is.



           23           Q.  So that is a different question, which is fine,



           24      but the question relative to what you deemed an



  15:21    25      inconsistency which we had knowledge of before this



                                               211

�









  15:22     1      without a data request was that you could not tell from



            2      that what was being requested.



            3           Is that still your stance irrespective of ERUs?



            4           A.  Well, if you're proposing a base rate, why the



  15:22     5      change from 18 to 19?  Is that -- why would those two



            6      numbers be different?  Are you proposing a separate rate



            7      increase?



            8           Q.  We're proposing what is prepared and placed



            9      before the Division, together with the testimony of



  15:22    10      Mr. Larson.  It's all we need.



           11           A.  Okay.



           12           Q.  Okay.  The next item is in reference to Keith



           13      J.  Larson's testimony, page five line 64.  Contractual



           14      water system maintenance.  This represents the amount



  15:22    15      paid to Summit Water Distribution Company.  This



           16      includes salaries, testing and lab equipment, water



           17      sampling, system maintenance, office supplies, telephone



           18      and payroll tax and other miscellaneous expenses.



           19           Your inconsistency with that statement is the above



  15:23    20      appears to address only the company's 2004 Water System



           21      Service Agreement with Summit Water.  However, the items



           22      listed appear to be items covered in the administrative



           23      services agreement, the new agreement that's been



           24      referred to today between the company and ASCU, LLC with



  15:23    25      an effective date of January 2, 2017.
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  15:23     1           Summit's role and ASCU's role in connection with



            2      the company's 2004 agreement and the new agreement are



            3      unclear.  Likewise, the proposed cost and benefit



            4      including any reallocation of expenses of the new



  15:23     5      agreement remain unclear.  And the remainder of that



            6      should be redacted regarding amounts.



            7           Q.  Again, you testified earlier that you have read



            8      both of those agreements?



            9           A.  I have.



  15:23    10           Q.  And in your recollection, what services does



           11      Summit Water provide under that agreement?



           12           A.  It provides the management of the water system



           13      and an emergency basis supply of water.



           14           Q.  And no discussion of administrative functions?



  15:24    15           A.  I don't recall that, but not to the level of



           16      their payroll and so forth.  None of those items, office



           17      supplies, telephone payroll, taxes and such, were not



           18      part of that agreement from our understanding.



           19           Q.  Sorry.  Can you restate that.  There was a



  15:24    20      negative in there that may have thrown me.



           21           A.  Sorry.  The items referenced -- that you



           22      referenced, the office supplies, telephones, payrolls,



           23      taxes and so forth, were not lineated in the agreement.



           24      And so those kinds of things were actually lineated out



  15:24    25      in the new agreement.  And so the way this was
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  15:24     1      presented, it was unclear.  It seemed to have crossed



            2      over the two agreements.



            3           Q.  So you're understanding of the agreements based



            4      on your testimony is that ASC Utah and Summit Water



  15:25     5      Distribution are providing duplicative services to the



            6      company and both charging for it?



            7           A.  That is a potential.



            8           Q.  And again, back to the question of the amount



            9      payable under the administrative services agreement and



  15:25    10      the services provided under the administrative services



           11      agreement.  How closely do they match the prior



           12      allocations of salaries, office expense, lease expense,



           13      insurance expense, and other items that were previously



           14      broken out in the base year and prior years?  Do you



  15:25    15      have any recollection of that?



           16           A.  I do.  We actually took time to try to evaluate



           17      that, and we found that the agreement seemed to cover



           18      that.  It would be quite an increase actually.  And I



           19      can't recall those numbers right now, I guess, but it



  15:25    20      was a substantial amount to have an impact on your rate.



           21           Q.  So the base -- the rate model with the base



           22      year of 2016, shows an approximate amount of $90,000



           23      payable or allocated for those administrative services.



           24      The amount payable under the administrative services



  15:26    25      agreement in some cases would not be a material increase
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  15:26     1      from that.  But we've discussed today that there are



            2      certain costs that were not known or that were being



            3      subsidized.  Is it that that increase would cover those



            4      subsidies or costs that were unknown in prior years?



  15:26     5           A.  You're asking if the rate increase --



            6           Q.  Just the amount payable under the



            7      administrative services agreement relative to what was



            8      previously allocated by the company for administrative



            9      services.  Is the difference -- you said there was a



  15:26    10      substantial increase -- is that difference justifiable



           11      by potential subsidies or amounts that were previously



           12      unknown?



           13           A.  I would -- I don't have that information so I



           14      would be speculating.



  15:27    15           Q.  Okay.  And have you ever had a rate case with a



           16      public utility -- No.  The answer is no.  I already know



           17      that.  Why am I asking that question.



           18           Have you had any experience with managing a small



           19      company?



  15:27    20           A.  With managing a small company?



           21           Q.  Or the finances of a small company?



           22           A.  Not that would pertain to this, no.



           23           Q.  Okay.  Any idea what typical overhead costs



           24      would be for a small company?



  15:27    25           A.  I would be guessing.
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  15:27     1           Q.  Okay.  Is it possible that the two agreements



            2      do not cross over, and that, in fact, the services that



            3      are provided are completely independent?



            4           A.  Is it possible.  I would guess so.  But just in



  15:27     5      reading the document, it did not include those services.



            6           Q.  Which document?



            7           A.  The first agreement from 2004.



            8           Q.  Did not include those services?



            9           A.  Correct.



  15:28    10           Q.  And the new document does?



           11           A.  Yes.  It matched more with those, yes.



           12           Q.  Would that not suggest that they are different?



           13           A.  I'm sorry.  Maybe I said that wrong.  I said



           14      that backwards.  Excuse me.  The new agreement included



  15:28    15      what appeared to be those expenses for the company,



           16      which makes sense in the framework of what the agreement



           17      is.



           18           The other -- which this is referring to in 2004,



           19      that agreement, I can't see where -- you know, you would



  15:28    20      have office supplies, telephone, payrolls, taxes, and so



           21      forth with the management agreement.  That is for a



           22      total amount regardless of kind of what happens unless



           23      an emergency.



           24           Q.  So that is correct, and I think the record is



  15:28    25      clear on that point.  The two agreements address two
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  15:28     1      completely separate services without cross-over.



            2           A.  So are you saying that this is a typographical



            3      error?



            4           Q.  No, no, no.  What I'm saying is that it's not



  15:29     5      an inconsistency.



            6           A.  Okay.



            7           Q.  Okay.  We'll move on.  Page four, line 54,



            8      chemicals.  This line was removed -- this is the



            9      testimony of Keith Larson -- this line item was removed



  15:29    10      inasmuch as the company does not anticipate using the



           11      treatment plant going forward.  You note that that's an



           12      unclear inconsistent statement because Mr. Larson's



           13      testimony also suggests that the Division of Drinking



           14      Water loan requests $523,000 for repair of the water



  15:29    15      treatment plant.



           16           And your inconsistency is correctly stated.  Why



           17      did the Division not include this in its first data



           18      request or subsequent data request when it became aware



           19      of the inconsistency?



  15:29    20           A.  We received this after our data request.



           21           Q.  Why did the Division not make a subsequent data



           22      request?



           23           A.  Probably due to time constraint.



           24           Q.  Okay.  Did the Division investigate any further



  15:30    25      the analysis provided by Mr. Larson to determine whether
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  15:30     1      or not chemicals were actually included under a



            2      different line item?



            3           A.  What is the purpose of your question?



            4           Q.  The purpose of my question is that the



  15:30     5      chemicals are indeed included.



            6           A.  That brought more inconsistency because that



            7      same person said that they were not going to be



            8      included.



            9           Q.  So had you done more investigation or requested



  15:30    10      the company, could you have found that out before today?



           11           A.  Given timing, I don't know.



           12           Q.  Page four, line 60, the need for services.  The



           13      line item -- excuse me -- is contractual services



           14      accounting.  The need for the services represented by



  15:31    15      this line item is unclear with the new agreement and the



           16      company's agreement with Summit Water seemed to provide



           17      similar services.  In your opinion, is there a



           18      difference between administrative services and



           19      accounting services?



  15:31    20           A.  It depends on who you're talking to.  I would



           21      guess -- what is the title of the agreement?



           22           Q.  Administrative services agreement.



           23           A.  Right.



           24           Q.  Is it conceivable that there are independent



  15:31    25      accounting fees such as tax preparation, audit fees,
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  15:31     1      that may not be covered by an administrator?



            2           A.  Correct.



            3           Q.  Thank you.  Page five, line 75, administrative



            4      expenses.  The need for expenses represented by this



  15:31     5      line item is unclear with the new agreement and the



            6      company agreement with Summit Water seems to cover



            7      similar expenses.



            8           Is it conceivable that there are administrative



            9      expenses that are direct expenses that are not covered



  15:32    10      by services provided by a manager or an administrator?



           11           A.  Why would there be an agreement that would



           12      encompass that on two different aspects of the company?



           13           Q.  Do companies have licensing fees, annual filing



           14      fees, corporate filing fees, things of that nature that



  15:32    15      are deemed administrative that would not be covered by



           16      an administrator typically?



           17           A.  I would have to direct your question to the



           18      draft of that whether that was meant to be in that



           19      agreement or not.



  15:32    20           Q.  Could the Division have asked that question



           21      before today?



           22           A.  Due to time constraint, I don't know the answer



           23      to that.



           24           Q.  Thank you.  And finally page five, line 77,



  15:32    25      customer information, management system, postage and



                                               219

�









  15:32     1      mailing, winter transportation and access expense.  The



            2      need for expense represented by this line item is



            3      unclear with the new agreement and the company's



            4      agreement with Summit Water covering similar expenses.



  15:33     5      Same question.



            6           A.  Well, given what we understand, the needs of



            7      the company and how it's potentially run, and the



            8      agreements, I would find it hard to find those outside



            9      of those agreements.  Wouldn't you?



  15:33    10           Q.  So if you read the agreement -- and again, it's



           11      confidential -- it's a services agreement, not a



           12      goods -- not an expense agreement.  And it does discuss



           13      this, direct expenses are expenses that the company pays



           14      in addition and apart from the administrative services



  15:33    15      fee.



           16           A.  So they're paying for them twice?



           17           Q.  No.  They're paying for the administrator to



           18      lick the envelope and put it in the mail.



           19           A.  Okay.



  15:33    20           Q.  But they're also paying for the envelope and



           21      stamp separate and apart.



           22           A.  So you're saying that that's an addition to



           23      page five, line 64, where it says -- where it refers



           24      back to the 2004 agreement?  We just discussed in that



  15:34    25      that there was these services including --
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  15:34     1           Q.  Correct.  It's the services portion of that.



            2      The administrator will handle those portions, but the



            3      company is still responsible for paying the hard costs



            4      associated with it?



  15:34     5           A.  Okay.



            6           Q.  The administrator is not responsible to pay for



            7      the management system, it operates the management



            8      system?



            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Was that a question?  Do you



  15:34    10      agree?



           11           THE WITNESS:  That is a possibility, yes.



           12           MR. ATWATER:



           13           Q.  You would not be surprised?



           14           A.  I would hope that the company would be prudent



  15:34    15      in the way it runs its business so to avoid extra costs.



           16      So if you're proposing is this a prudent way, I don't



           17      know.



           18           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.



           19           MR. SAVAGE:  No questions.



  15:35    20           MR. LANGE:  No questions.



           21           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'm not sure Mr. Atwater is



           22      finished.



           23           MS. SCHMID:  I thought he was.  I'm sorry.



           24           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.



  15:35    25           Mr. White has to leave, and so you suggested
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  15:35     1      previously that we could put the witness on the stand



            2      regarding the exhibits that I handed out.  I was



            3      wondering if we could do that now.



            4           MS. SCHMID:  Mr. Smith also has to leave.  So to



  15:35     5      the extent that we could make this an expeditious



            6      process, that would be appreciated.  But again,



            7      Mr. Smith is available for the duration of the hearing



            8      as a witness should be.



            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Is there any objection to



  15:35    10      Mr. Smith's testimony being interrupted so that



           11      Mr. White can take the stand for a few moments to



           12      authenticate the rebuttal exhibit?



           13           MR. LANGE:  No objection.



           14           MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.



  15:36    15           MS. SCHMID:  No objection.



           16           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Mr. Smith, you're



           17      excused for now.



           18           MR. ATWATER:  I call Mr. Larry White to the stand.



           19           (Mr. Larry White returns to the stand.)



  15:36    20           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. White you're still under



           21      oath.



           22           THE WITNESS:  Thank you.  I apologize, Your Honor.



           23      So yesterday was my mother-in-law's 90th birthday.  I



           24      missed her birthday so I could be at this hearing.  I



  15:36    25      have adjusted my flight, which is at 5:00 o'clock, in
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  15:36     1      order to get back to the East Coast for her birthday



            2      party tomorrow.  My wife is already not happy with me



            3      for missing her birthday, and will be even more unhappy



            4      with me if I don't make it back in time for tomorrow.



  15:36     5           THE HEARING OFFICER:  We wish you the best of luck.



            6           THE WITNESS:  Otherwise, I'd be happy to stay here



            7      for the duration.



            8           MR. ATWATER:



            9           Q.  So Mr. White, I've handed you two exhibits that



  15:37    10      have also been handed out to the parties.  These



           11      exhibits provide -- the first exhibit --



           12           MR. SAVAGE:  Could we have a number for this?



           13           MR. ATWATER:  Exhibit Number 1 would be the exhibit



           14      titled, "Subsidized Expenses Payable."  And Exhibit 2



  15:37    15      we'll call the document titled, "GL Account Ledger With



           16      Detail."



           17           THE HEARING OFFICER:  And I will note on my copy



           18      that I don't have a page two.  I have page one, a blank



           19      back, and a page three.



  15:37    20           MR. ATWATER:  Were you the one that got the three



           21      pages?



           22           MS. SCHMID:  I am.  Would you like us to take a



           23      small break and the Division could make copies so



           24      everyone has all the pages?



  15:37    25           MR. ATWATER:  So I would suggest that the sum on
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  15:37     1      page three is really what we're going to talk about.  In



            2      fact, we could remove the first two-pages.



            3           MS. SCHMID:  I object to having an incomplete



            4      exhibit.



  15:38     5           MR. ATWATER:  Then I will remove the first two



            6      pages.



            7           MS. SCHMID:  I object to having an incomplete



            8      exhibit and I would object to it being used to



            9      cross-examine.



  15:38    10           THE HEARING OFFICER:  It is a ledger.  So I think



           11      to the extent the company seeks to admit it, it is



           12      appropriate to reproduce it in its entirety as it was



           13      intended to be.  So we can recess for a few moments



           14      while it's copied.  Thank you for making copies.  Will



  15:38    15      five minutes suffice?



           16           MS. SCHMID:  Yes.  Thank you.



           17           (A recess is taken.)



           18           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Back on the record.  Ms.



           19      Schmid, thank you for providing these copies.



  15:44    20      Mr. Atwater, I'll turn them over to you.



           21           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.



           22           Q.  Mr. White, are you familiar with the document



           23      in front of you titled interim hearing Exhibit 1,



           24      "Subsidized Expenses Payable"?



  15:45    25           A.  I am.
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  15:45     1           Q.  What does this document represent?



            2           A.  So this is basically an allocation of



            3      administrative time and expenses for the past years that



            4      TCFC employees have expended on dealing with Community



  15:45     5      Water as constructed by our accounting firm.



            6           Q.  Thank you.  Does this document fairly represent



            7      the time spent and the costs associated with Community



            8      Water?



            9           A.  I would say if anything it's probably



  15:45    10      understated.  But yes.



           11           Q.  Would you elaborate?



           12           A.  Well, just, you know, the amount of time that



           13      it's taken to manage Community Water particularly



           14      through these processes is just enormous.  And so I



  15:45    15      would say that if anything it's probably understated in



           16      terms of the amount of time that's been spent on



           17      preparing for these cases and trying to fix this issue.



           18           Q.  So to follow that line of questioning and to



           19      further substantiate this, are you able to make



  15:46    20      appropriate business decisions based on the current



           21      status?



           22           A.  I can tell you that we've had -- I've been on



           23      numerous conference calls where our advisers, Emily,



           24      Bowen & Collins, and representatives of the Department



  15:46    25      of Public Utilities, where we have asked for their
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  15:46     1      advice of how to get through this process, and they've



            2      said we can't advise you on that.



            3           And they said several times today that they



            4      can't -- or that they're not making business decisions



  15:46     5      and businesses can make their own decisions.  Businesses



            6      can make decisions on their own.  That's a quote.  I



            7      think it's pretty clear from this process that we can't



            8      make decisions on our own.  We're subject to all of the



            9      scrutiny, and we have no capacity to make decisions on



  15:47    10      our own and that's why we're here.  I mean that's -- it



           11      should be clearly evident that we can't make decisions



           12      on our own.



           13           So, you know, I ask your advice.  Is it in the



           14      public's best interest that the risk to the system is



  15:47    15      far greater than irrigation -- whether people can keep



           16      their lawns and trees, you know, green next year.



           17           THE HEARING OFFICER:  It's not appropriate for me



           18      to give you advice, sir, and I thought the witness was



           19      called simply to authenticate the exhibits.



  15:47    20           MS. SCHMID:  As he is discussing more, I will have



           21      a line of cross on this, please.



           22           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Please proceed.



           23           MR. ATWATER:  Are you done with the question?



           24           THE WITNESS:  Yes, I'm done.



  15:47    25           MR. ATWATER:
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  15:47     1           Q.  Okay.  The amounts on the sheet that we just



            2      discussed, Exhibit 1, are they included, to your



            3      knowledge, on the financial statements?  Or are these in



            4      fact the inner-company amounts that we spoke of earlier



  15:48     5      that do not show on the financials?



            6           A.  So if you're referring to the account ledger --



            7           Q.  No.  Sorry.  This allocation here.



            8           MS. SCHMID:  Is that the single sheet?



            9           MR. ATWATER:  That's the single sheet.



  15:48    10           Q.  Are these the inner-company amounts that we



           11      were discussing earlier with Mr. Smith?



           12           A.  Yes.



           13           Q.  Thank you.  We would move to submit this



           14      Exhibit 1, "Subsidized Expenses Payable" into the record



  15:48    15      for discussion.



           16           MS. SCHMID:  I have a few questions pertaining to



           17      its admissibility, if I may.



           18           THE HEARING OFFICER:  You'd like to voir dire the



           19      witness on the exhibit?



  15:48    20           MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  Yes.



           21           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Go ahead.



           22           MS. SCHMID:



           23           Q.  Could you please tell me where in the company's



           24      testimony I can find the information that is present in



  15:48    25      Exhibit 1 and the information that is -- the single
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  15:48     1      page, and where I can find the information that is



            2      present in Exhibit -- what I'll call 2, the --



            3           MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  This was discussed in Mr.



            4      Smith's testimony that it was not included because it



  15:49     5      was consolidated.



            6           MS. SCHMID:  That's all I wanted to know.



            7           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Do you want an answer from a



            8      witness of fact?



            9           MS. SCHMID:  I would like that, please.



  15:49    10           THE WITNESS:  Your question again?



           11           MS. SCHMID:



           12           Q.  My question is, please direct me to the part of



           13      the company's testimony which reflects the numbers in



           14      Exhibit 1, the single sheet of numbers, passed out by



  15:49    15      your counsel, and Exhibit 2, the multiple page sheet,



           16      passed out by your counsel.



           17           A.  So I don't believe that they were in the --



           18           MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.



           19           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Does any other counsel have



  15:50    20      any questions with respect to the exhibits?



           21           MR. SAVAGE:  Not with respect to the exhibits, but



           22      I think what's pending is the admissibility and I have



           23      no questions.



           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you for rephrasing my



  15:50    25      question.  Is there an objection then to the
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  15:50     1      admissibility of the exhibit?



            2           MS. SCHMID:  I do not object to the admissibility



            3      of the exhibit.



            4           MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.



  15:50     5           MR. LANGE:  No objection.



            6           MS. MILLER:  No objection.



            7           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Atwater, to be clear, are



            8      you moving for its admission?



            9           MR. ATWATER:  Yes.  We move to submit.



  15:50    10           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Then this exhibit, hearing



           11      Exhibit 1, Subsidized Expenses Payable, is admitted as



           12      hearing Exhibit 1.



           13           (Whereupon the document referred to is marked by



           14      the reporter as EXHIBIT 1.)



  15:50    15           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.



           16           Q.  Mr. White, looking at the document entitled Gl



           17      Account Ledger With Detail, are you familiar with this



           18      document?



           19           A.  I am.



  15:50    20           Q.  What is this?



           21           A.  So this is what I asked our accounting partner,



           22      controller, to give me just to give us a tracking as to



           23      what the current cash status of Community Water is.



           24           Q.  Does this accurately and fairly represent the



  15:51    25      status?
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  15:51     1           A.  To the best of my knowledge, yes.



            2           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.  Those are all my



            3      questions for the witness.



            4           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Did you move for the



  15:51     5      admission of the exhibit?



            6           MR. ATWATER:  I can.  Do you want to have him



            7      questioned first or move first?



            8           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Only if they have questions.



            9           MS. SCHMID:  I believe that he already testified



  15:51    10      that the multi-page exhibit was not present in the



           11      testimony previously filed.



           12           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Not withstanding that point,



           13      you don't object to the exhibit being admitted?



           14           MS. SCHMID:  I do not object to the exhibit having



  15:51    15      had my question answered.



           16           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Is there any other objection?



           17           MR. SAVAGE:  No.



           18           MS. MILLER:  No objection.



           19           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Then the exhibit handed out



  15:51    20      by Mr. Atwater entitled at the top GL Account Ledger



           21      With Detail is admitted as hearing Exhibit 2.



           22           (Whereupon the document referred to is marked by



           23      the reporter as EXHIBIT 2.)



           24           MR. ATWATER:  I have no further questions of



  15:51    25      Mr. White.
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  15:52     1           THE HEARING OFFICER:  You're excused, Mr. White.



            2           MS. SCHMID:  I have some questions for him.  His



            3      testimony right now went beyond the mere facts of the



            4      numbers on the admitted exhibits, so I have some



  15:52     5      questions for him.



            6           Q.  Mr. White, did you say that a regulated



            7      business cannot make decisions on its own?  Is that a



            8      fair paraphrase of your testimony?



            9           A.  What I said is that it's clear that we're not



  15:52    10      able to make business decisions on our own.  That it's



           11      subject to input -- in this entity -- publicly regulated



           12      entity that we're not capable of making decisions on our



           13      own.  We have to come for approvals to various state



           14      agencies.



  15:52    15           Q.  Is it correct, however, to say that the company



           16      can make business decisions on its own, but the recovery



           17      part is what is determined by the Public Service



           18      Commission?



           19           A.  I can't tell you that I understand the process



  15:53    20      well enough to answer your question.  What I can tell



           21      you is that what we've endeavored to do is hire the best



           22      consultants we can find, Clyde Snow which is a water



           23      counsel specialist, and Bowen Collins, and with the



           24      advice of Summit Water who has been managing this system



  15:53    25      for many, many years.
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  15:53     1           Q.  Is it true that the company has the



            2      responsibility to make sure that all pertinent



            3      information is in its application?



            4           MR. ATWATER:  Objection.  Asks for an opinion.



  15:53     5           MS. SCHMID:  I will reply that he makes decisions



            6      on behalf of the company and was involved, I believe, in



            7      the application process and is a witness in this



            8      proceeding.



            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'll overrule the objection



  15:53    10      with respect to the line of questioning.  I just noticed



           11      the hour is getting late, and I hope -- we haven't even



           12      allowed the intervenors an opportunity to present any



           13      evidence yet.  So if we can expedite questioning that



           14      might be extraneous to the issues that are directly at



  15:54    15      hand in this proceeding, I think that would be in



           16      everyone's best interest.  But I will overrule the



           17      objection and allow Ms. Schmid to ask the question.



           18           MS. SCHMID:  Could the reporter please read the



           19      question back?



  15:54    20           (The record is read by the reporter.)



           21           THE WITNESS:  I would say certainly it is.  But as



           22      you know, these applications are extremely complicated



           23      by the volume that was submitted.  And so if something



           24      was omitted, I apologize.  But to the best of our



  15:55    25      ability we are trying to get through this process to
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  15:55     1      make this company work.



            2           MS. SCHMID:



            3           Q.  And it's the company's responsibility likewise



            4      to make sure that the information in the application is



  15:55     5      accurate; is that right?



            6           A.  I guess it would be.



            7           MS. SCHMID:  Those are all my questions.



            8           MR. SAVAGE:



            9           Q.  Mr. White, are you aware of a Utah statute that



  15:55    10      requires every public utility shall furnish, provide,



           11      and maintain such service, instrumentalities, equipment



           12      and facilities, as will promote the health, safety,



           13      comfort and convenience of its patrons, and will in all



           14      respects be adequate, efficient, just and reasonable?



  15:55    15      Anybody ever tell you about that Utah statute?



           16           A.  No.



           17           Q.  And you said "we've" been managing the system



           18      for many years?



           19           A.  No, I said Summit Water has been managing the



  15:56    20      system for many years.



           21           Q.  You said "we".  Who did you mean when you said



           22      we?



           23           A.  What I meant to say is that Summit Water --



           24      when I said -- when I was listing the number of people



  15:56    25      that we had engaged in conversation --
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  15:56     1           MS. SCHMID:  Sorry.  Could you please ask the



            2      witness to speak into the microphone?  I have some



            3      difficulty hearing.



            4           THE WITNESS:  What I said was that the company had



  15:56     5      engaged multiple experts, including Summit Water, that



            6      had been manging the company for several years.



            7           MR. SAVAGE:



            8           Q.  So you don't think CWC has been managing the



            9      company as a public utility with obligations under the



  15:56    10      statutes of the state of Utah?



           11           A.  I can't answer.  You're asking a legal opinion



           12      and I can't answer your question.



           13           Q.  Fair enough.  And you said "our" controllers



           14      gave you this information on Exhibit 2.  Who did you



  15:56    15      mean by "our"?



           16           A.  TCFC -- it would be TCFC's control.  CWC has no



           17      direct employees.  Community Water Company has no direct



           18      employees.



           19           Q.  You're in effect the chief executive officer of



  15:57    20      both TCFC and CWC?



           21           A.  No, I'm not.



           22           Q.  What are you?



           23           A.  I clearly stated this.



           24           MR. ATWATER:  Asked and answered.



  15:57    25           THE HEARING OFFICER:  That's sustained.  It's been
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  15:57     1      asked and answered.



            2           MR. SAVAGE:



            3           Q.  There are no employees of CWC?



            4           A.  No.



  15:57     5           Q.  You make the final decisions for CWC?



            6           MR. ATWATER:  Asked and answered.  Objection.



            7           THE HEARING OFFICER:  It's sustained.  This is a



            8      line of questioning that we've been spent quite a bit of



            9      time on already.



  15:57    10           MR. SAVAGE:  I'm sorry, Your Honor, I'm just trying



           11      to set up a question.  I'll move to the question.



           12           Q.  Exhibit 2 you have it in front of you there,



           13      the ledger?



           14           A.  Yes.



  15:57    15           Q.  GL, does that mean general ledger?



           16           A.  I'm not an accountant.



           17           Q.  And you don't know what that means, GL?



           18           A.  No.



           19           Q.  Okay.  Is this an account ledger for TCFC?



  15:57    20           A.  No, it's not.



           21           Q.  I look at the top where it says Account Ledger



           22      With Detail.  Do you see that upper left?



           23           A.  I see that.



           24           Q.  Right under it it says, TCFC, Inc.



  15:57    25           A.  That would be the company that produced the
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  15:57     1      ledger.



            2           Q.  Okay.  So this would -- in your -- as you sit



            3      here today, do you think this is part of the TCFC



            4      ledger?



  15:58     5           A.  I can't answer your question.



            6           Q.  But it is a breakout that the TCFC controller



            7      gave you of the cost of water and contract labor and



            8      other expenses for CWC?



            9           A.  For the first nine months of this year.



  15:58    10           Q.  Okay.  And did you have any reason to doubt



           11      that those are carried actually on the books of TCFC?



           12           A.  I don't know how they're carried on the books.



           13           Q.  So you don't even know if they're separate



           14      books?



  15:58    15           A.  There are separate books.  We have separate



           16      books for Community Water Company.  So that's what I



           17      asked for was the basic cash position of Community Water



           18      Company for the first nine months of this year.



           19           Q.  And this was printed out?



  15:58    20           A.  That's right.



           21           Q.  Going to Exhibit 1, I think I understand the



           22      first one.  Is that Stacy Wilson's salary?



           23           A.  Correct.



           24           Q.  And how did you get to the percent --



  15:59    25      33 percent?  Is that the time you think she devoted to



                                               236

�









  15:59     1      Community Water?



            2           A.  I've already given testimony to the fact that I



            3      think that underestimates the time she spent on



            4      Community Water.



  15:59     5           Q.  But that's time for Community Water, not the



            6      other way around?



            7           Never mind.  You think that -- let me back up.



            8      She's an employee of TCFC; correct?



            9           A.  Correct.



  15:59    10           Q.  And she's paid a salary by TCFC?



           11           A.  That's correct.



           12           Q.  And on this sheet you're telling us that



           13      somebody has estimated 33 percent of her time, which you



           14      think is an underestimation, is devoted to Community



  15:59    15      Water?



           16           A.  That's correct.



           17           Q.  Who determined the 33 percent that's on this



           18      exhibit?



           19           A.  It was an estimate.



  15:59    20           Q.  By who?



           21           A.  We don't punch a time clock.



           22           Q.  Who made it?



           23           A.  It was made by -- internally inside the



           24      company.



  15:59    25           Q.  Do you know?
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  15:59     1           A.  It was an estimate.



            2           Q.  Do you know who made it?



            3           A.  It was an estimate.  I don't know who made it.



            4           Q.  You've testified under oath that you think that



  15:59     5      estimate is low?



            6           A.  I sit in an office right next to Stacy.  I



            7      observed the amount of time that she spends on the phone



            8      and that she spends on billings, including with you and



            9      other customers, and so that's my estimation.  It is an



  16:00    10      underestimate of the time that she spends on Community



           11      Water.



           12           Q.  You missed my point.  I understand that.  But



           13      you haven't told me who came up with the estimate of 33



           14      percent.



  16:00    15           A.  I can't tell you that.



           16           Q.  Okay.  You're authenticating this document and



           17      you can't tell us that?



           18           A.  I've said what I have to say.



           19           Q.  Okay.  The next entry seems to be



  16:00    20      administrative allocation, 50,000, consistent every



           21      year.  Am I reading that correctly?



           22           A.  You are.



           23           Q.  And you think that's an underestimation also?



           24           A.  This is, I believe, an allocation to accounting



  16:00    25      time and other time spent by our other employees on
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  16:00     1      Community Water matters.



            2           Q.  Other TCFC employees?



            3           A.  Correct.



            4           Q.  Do you know who decided on $50,000 each year?



  16:01     5           A.  Again, it was an estimate by our accounting



            6      department.



            7           Q.  Somebody in the accounting department?



            8           A.  Yes.



            9           Q.  And you don't know who?



  16:01    10           A.  Likely Rebecca Christiansen.



           11           Q.  Okay.  I don't understand the burden.  What's



           12      that entry mean?



           13           A.  That would be the insurance and other



           14      incidentals of employment.



  16:01    15           Q.  Okay.  So am I reading this correctly then,



           16      that the 50,000, you're assuming that all of those are



           17      salaries and there would be this burden of employment



           18      taxes and things like that on it?



           19           A.  Correct.



  16:01    20           Q.  The off-site legal.  I don't understand Omni



           21      10 percent.  What does that mean?



           22           A.  So this is of the amount that we pay to our



           23      in-house counsel, Justin Atwater.  It's a percentage of



           24      our time that's allocated to Community Water.  Again, a



  16:01    25      gross underestimate of the time he spends at Community
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  16:01     1      Water.



            2           Q.  Where do you get the term, Omni?



            3           A.  That's the name of his company.



            4           MR. SAVAGE:  Okay.  That's all I have.  Thank you,



  16:02     5      sir.



            6           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Lange?



            7           MR. LANGE:  I have no questions.



            8           MS. MILLER:  And I have no questions either.  Thank



            9      you.



  16:02    10           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Anything else from you,



           11      Mr. Atwater?



           12           MR. ATWATER:  No.



           13           THE HEARING OFFICER:  You're excused.



           14      Mr. Lange.



  16:02    15           THE WITNESS:  Thank you very much for your time.  I



           16      appreciate it.



           17           THE HEARING OFFICER:  So returning to our regularly



           18      scheduled hearing.



           19           Ms. Schmid would you like to recall your witness?



  16:02    20           MS. SCHMID:  Yes, I would please.  Mr. Smith could



           21      you please take the witness stand again.



           22           (Mr. Smith returns to the witness stand.)



           23           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Smith, you're still under



           24      oath.



  16:02    25           THE WITNESS:  Okay.
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  16:02     1           THE HEARING OFFICER:  In terms of our examination,



            2      where were we?



            3           MR. ATWATER:  I believe I had completed.



            4           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Mr. Savage?



  16:03     5           MR. SAVAGE:  I have no questions.



            6           MR. LANGE:  I have no questions.



            7           MS. MILLER:  I have no questions either.  Thank



            8      you.



            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Schmid?



  16:03    10           MS. SCHMID:  I have some redirect questions, but I



           11      would like to reserve them, if I may, until after you



           12      have asked yours.



           13           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I don't have any.



           14           MS. SCHMID:  Okay.



  16:03    15           Q.  This will be very brief.  So Mr. Smith, do you



           16      recall Mr. Atwater's line of questions about what the



           17      Division did and did not do and about questions the



           18      Division did not ask of the company?



           19           A.  Yes.



  16:03    20           Q.  Do you understand that the purpose of today's



           21      hearing is to determine whether a regulated public



           22      utility should receive the requested interim rate



           23      increase?



           24           A.  Yes.



  16:03    25           Q.  Do you understand that the interim rate process
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  16:03     1      by its nature is on a truncated and expedited time



            2      schedule?



            3           A.  Yes.



            4           Q.  Do you understand that the process for the



  16:04     5      interim rate hearing is much less than the full 240 days



            6      awarded the time to determine final rates and for the



            7      commission to make its decision?



            8           A.  Yes.



            9           Q.  Do you understand that the words prima facie



  16:04    10      mean -- translated from the Latin -- at first look?



           11           A.  Yes.



           12           Q.  Do you understand that the company has the



           13      burden of proof to show that the rates requested



           14      including the interim rate are appropriate?



  16:04    15           A.  Yes.



           16           Q.  Do you understand that it is not the



           17      Divisions's duty to determine what information the



           18      company submits with its application, but it is the



           19      company's duty to prepare a full and complete



  16:04    20      application?



           21           A.  Yes.



           22           Q.  So based on that, is it still your testimony



           23      today that the company has failed to prove, using the



           24      prima facie standard on its face, that its interim rate



  16:05    25      request is reasonable and should be granted?
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  16:05     1           A.  I'm sorry.  Say that again.



            2           Q.  Okay.  I was going quite quickly.  Is it your



            3      testimony today that the company has failed to prove



            4      that the interim rate increase it requested has not been



  16:05     5      proven by the evidence the company has submitted?



            6           A.  Yes.



            7           MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  Those are all my redirect



            8      questions.



            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Smith.



  16:05    10           MS. SCHMID:  Mr. Smith also has an obligation.



           11      Could he please be excused for the remainder of the



           12      hearing?  He can stay if necessary, but if he could be



           13      excused it would be appreciated.



           14           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I have no objection to his



  16:06    15      departure.  Does anyone else?



           16           MR. ATWATER:  No objection.



           17           MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.



           18           MR. LANGE:  No objection.



           19           MS. MILLER:  No objection.



  16:06    20           MS. SCHMID:  The Division has nothing further.



           21      Thank you.



           22           THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Mr. Savage.



           23           MR. SAVAGE:  Thank you, Your Honor.



           24           (E. Scott Savage is sworn in as a witness.)



  16:06    25           THE WITNESS:  I have a couple of corrections in my
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  16:06     1      alternative proposal and direct testimony, and it seems



            2      like my calculator wasn't working very well, but on page



            3      five, paragraph 12, I talked about a fine imposed in the



            4      second paragraph of $600.  It's actually $1500.  And



  16:06     5      then starting on page 12 where I present my alternative



            6      proposal for retainment of a loan for the failed tank, I



            7      was using the $50 per month that was proposed in the



            8      meetings that I went to.  And it was for 18 months



            9      instead of 12.  And that generates $450,000.  And $50



  16:07    10      per month for 12 months would not generate the money



           11      that is estimated to be the cost of replacing the tank.



           12      If you want it for 12 months, it would take $90 a month



           13      for the 500 users for 12 months, or $60 a month for 18



           14      months to generate enough money to pay the current price



  16:07    15      for the tank.  I move for the admission into evidence of



           16      my alternative proposal and sworn direct testimony at



           17      this time.



           18           MS. SCHMID:  No objection.



           19           MR. ATWATER:  So the applicant previously objected



  16:08    20      and the motion was discussed.  It renews its objections



           21      set forth in that motion -- excuse me -- does not renew



           22      the motion, renews the objection.



           23           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Overruled.  Thank you.



           24      They're admitted.



  16:08    25           THE WITNESS:  The last thing I want to mention,
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  16:08     1      it's kind of been lost in the interesting journey we've



            2      had in finding out the fact that TCFC is in fact CWC.



            3      But one of the things I want to make sure, if this -- if



            4      the Public Service Commission were to impose an interim



  16:08     5      rate for the general capital improvements, the proposal



            6      for how the HOAs are to be billed and how that money is



            7      to be collected is patently unfair.



            8           As I read their proposal, they would send one bill,



            9      for example, to Plat B&D for all of the water usage of



  16:09    10      all 30 homeowners, and all of the water usage for the



           11      irrigation.  And then it would be up to Plat B&D, the



           12      HOA, to separately bill the members, the homeowners in



           13      its organization, and collect that money so that it



           14      could then pay the monthly bill.  That's transferring,



  16:09    15      of course, the accounting collection and administrative



           16      costs from the utility to the customers, and would place



           17      them at a disadvantage, vis a vis, the individual



           18      homeowners, and it leaves open the question as to what



           19      happens if one of my 30 homeowners doesn't pay their



  16:10    20      water bill.  Does that mean all 30 get their water shut



           21      off.



           22           It should be -- it should be a collective allocated



           23      and the tiers should all be done the way it is presently



           24      being done for the operational expense rate increase,



  16:10    25      which is the 30 individual homeowners are billed
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  16:10     1      separately for their own separate use by the utility.



            2      And then 1/30th of the irrigation water, which goes



            3      through two separate meters, not the individual



            4      homeowners' individual meters, but there is two separate



  16:10     5      meters for all of the sprinkling water for the whole



            6      area.



            7           The present rate requires that the homeowners



            8      association not be billed for that water, but 1/30th of



            9      the amount of that water isn't added to the bill of each



  16:11    10      of the individual homeowners.  And for consistency, the



           11      methodology should be the same for the operational rate



           12      that we have in place and any rate for capital



           13      improvements.



           14           So with that additional clarification of what I've



  16:11    15      stated, I would also like to state that I'm in complete



           16      agreement with Mr. Duncan's testimony.  I recognize the



           17      inter-generational inequity of not paying off a loan for



           18      this tank over the life of the tank.  I think that is



           19      the proper way to do it.



  16:11    20           I have tried to assist Mr. White who left, and CWC



           21      and TCFC, by supporting and offering an alternative plan



           22      that is very similar to the one they were proposing to



           23      the users or the customers of a $60 a month short-term



           24      temporary rate increase for 18 months, or a $90 rate



  16:12    25      increase for 12 months to repay the loan, to make it
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  16:12     1      easier for CWC to get money from an outside bank, a



            2      lending institution, or its parent, to be able to



            3      immediately get funds available to get this tank



            4      replaced.  That being said I open myself up to



  16:12     5      cross-examination if anybody has any.



            6           THE HEARING OFFICER:  We'll start with Mr.



            7      Atwater.



            8           MR. ATWATER:



            9           Q.  Thank you.  I think I just have one.



  16:12    10           A.  Okay.



           11           Q.  So you stated that you support Mr. Duncan's



           12      testimony and --



           13           A.  No, I said I agree with his overall general



           14      statement that there is an inter-generational problem if



  16:12    15      a capital improvement is not repaid over the life of the



           16      capital improvement.  If we repay -- we pay for this



           17      tank in 18 months, being the present users, that means



           18      I'm giving a benefit to some future homeowner that they



           19      won't have to pay for it.  And I recognize that.  And I



  16:13    20      think he's correct in his typical methodology.



           21           Q.  But you still stand by your alternate proposal



           22      as revised in your testimony today?



           23           A.  Yes.



           24           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.



  16:13    25           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Anything else?
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  16:13     1           MR. ATWATER:  No.



            2           MS. SCHMID:  No questions.



            3           MR. LANGE:  No questions.



            4           MS. MILLER:  No questions.



  16:13     5           MR. SAVAGE:  Any questions, Your Honor?



            6           THE HEARING OFFICER:  No.  Thank you, Mr. Savage.



            7           THE WITNESS:  Okay.



            8           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Lange.



            9           (Terry Lange is sworn in as a witness.)



  16:13    10           MR. LANGE:  So I have testimony filed and posted on



           11      the docket, and I just want to basically go over that



           12      and have that be admitted along with the testimony of



           13      Fran Amendola on behalf of Red Pine.  He's not here now.



           14      I want to have his testimony admitted also.  So I move



  16:14    15      to have that done.



           16           MR. ATWATER:  So I object -- sorry Terry.  So I



           17      renew my objection with respect to the provisions of



           18      Mr. Fran Amendola's testimony as discussed earlier.



           19           MS. SCHMID:  And I will object to the admission of



  16:14    20      Mr. Amendola's testimony since he is not present to be



           21      cross-examined.



           22           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yeah.  That's a reasonable



           23      objection.  To the extent that Mr. Atwater is reserving



           24      his objection with respect to Mr. Lange's filed



  16:14    25      testimony, it's overruled.  But we can't admit
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  16:14     1      Mr. Amendola's testimony as sworn evidence here in this



            2      hearing today without him being here to attest to its



            3      voracity or being subject to cross-examination.



            4           THE WITNESS:  Understood.  Okay.  So in my



  16:15     5      testimony I talk about a couple of different things



            6      which Scott Savage has mentioned.  So Red Pine, we're



            7      concerned about the practice of taking -- at Red Pine,



            8      60 currently individually metered owners and putting out



            9      one single collect bill for that.  We don't think that's



  16:15    10      right.  There is no way to really collect that money



           11      from the HOA really legally from it's CC&Rs.  The HOA



           12      has no legal authority to collect that money as such,



           13      nor does it have the legal authority to collect property



           14      taxes on behalf of Summit County, for instance.  So it's



  16:15    15      very similar to that.



           16           So we don't agree with this collective billing on



           17      that.



           18           As far as the tank and the separation of the tank



           19      from the general rate increase, we're in favor of having



  16:15    20      a shortened time frame.  We realize, of course, there



           21      isn't an equity in that.  But we're going to accept that



           22      because right now my house is on fire so-to-speak and,



           23      you know, I want water to put the flames out.  So just



           24      to kind of put that in very simple terms, so a shortened



  16:16    25      time frame that the commission would see fit to
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  16:16     1      authorize, whether it be 12 months, 18 months maybe, but



            2      the point here is to collect money up front to get this



            3      tank put in and do so on a very fast basis.  We really



            4      can't afford to go through another irrigation season



  16:16     5      without irrigating.  It's affecting property values.



            6      It's affecting sales.  It's just affecting the mindset



            7      of the people who live there.  It's very difficult to



            8      deal with that.  And why prolong that for another season



            9      and bring it into the year 2019 if we could cure that



  16:16    10      early in the year 2018.



           11           So it's just a matter of taking the numbers for



           12      that tank and dividing it by the customers, and not the



           13      ERUs, and assessing that over an appropriate time frame.



           14           Of course I recognize that, you know, the



  16:17    15      Divisions's wanting to spread that cost out because it's



           16      very equal to do that over the life of the product.  And



           17      I fully understand that, but in this case I think the



           18      commission should weigh in on the immediate needs, you



           19      know, right now, here and now, and to come up with



  16:17    20      something there that's going to make this tank happen



           21      sooner than later.



           22           I'm talking literally months that this thing -- if



           23      it could be shortened up by 5, 6, 7, 8 months, it should



           24      be done that way.  It's very, very important and I can't



  16:17    25      stress that enough.  But that's my testimony.
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  16:17     1           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Atwater, any cross?



            2           MR. ATWATER:  One question I should have asked of



            3      Mr. Savage, but I think it will be helpful for you to



            4      provide.



  16:17     5           You mentioned in your testimony that you are the



            6      president of the Red Pine HOA; is that correct?



            7           A.  That's correct.



            8           Q.  And what percentage of the customer base does



            9      Red Pine HOA represent?



  16:17    10           A.  So let me give you a little overall oversight



           11      here of the entire campus as such.  So Red Pine consists



           12      of 200 chalets, one bedroom and two bedrooms.  It



           13      consists of 60 townhomes, which happen to be



           14      individually metered, whereas the chalets are a shared



  16:18    15      meter.  And there is also an independent nonprofit



           16      organization called the Red Pine Clubhouse as such which



           17      functions and serves the needs of all 260 owners.



           18           So I am the president of the Red Pine Chalets.  I



           19      have the authorization for the townhomes to represent



  16:18    20      them.  They have their own HOA as such.  And so they



           21      have their own, I guess, budgets.  Their own dues



           22      collection based upon their needs.  And the clubhouse



           23      has its own dues based upon its needs.  And collectively



           24      together we contribute on a proportional basis to the



  16:18    25      needs of the rec center and -- the recreation center and
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  16:19     1      what its needs are.  So hopefully that explains.



            2           Q.  So in the aggregate you described, that



            3      represents what percentage of the customer base?  Is it



            4      greater than 50?  So 260 of 500?



  16:19     5           A.  I see what you're saying.  So we have 260 --



            6      let me figure that out.



            7           MR. SAVAGE:  More than 50.



            8           THE WITNESS:  Right.  A little bit more.  503.



            9           MR. ATWATER:



  16:19    10           Q.  503.



           11           A.  It's 51.886.



           12           Q.  And is your testimony that's provided today and



           13      written that has been submitted, on behalf of that



           14      51 percent?



  16:19    15           A.  That's correct.



           16           MR. ATWATER:  Okay.  Thank you.



           17           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Schmid?



           18           MS. SCHMID:  No questions.



           19           MR. SAVAGE:  No questions.



  16:19    20           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Miller?



           21           MS. MILLER:  I do have one question.  I probably



           22      should have asked the same question of Mr. Savage.



           23           Q.  Would it be correct to state that when



           24      customers receive their own monthly bill, that's a more



  16:20    25      effective tool to promote conservation than to have just
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  16:20     1      a lump sum provided on their HOA bill?



            2           A.  I think as an individual owner sees his own



            3      bill and decides whether or not it's within his



            4      parameters to pay it, if he's happy with it or if he



  16:20     5      should do something to conserve water so he would pay



            6      less so-to-speak.  It's easier to do it on the



            7      individual basis than it is on a collective because when



            8      you have a collective as such, it's been my experience



            9      that you tend to ignore those little subtleties of what



  16:20    10      can be done.  And you tend to lose the -- what shall I



           11      say -- the ability to manage that.  So you start to lose



           12      some interest in -- you just wind up accepting whatever



           13      happens.  And so anyhow, it's kind of a roundabout



           14      answer, but I believe that I have answered your



  16:21    15      question.



           16           Q.  Yeah, you did.  I would think that that would



           17      be a good tool for the company to promote rather than



           18      take it away is my point I guess.  You don't want to



           19      combine everybody's bill?



  16:21    20           A.  Well, if I may also suggest this.  I looked at



           21      some numbers for the Red Pine Townhomes, and the usage



           22      for 2016, and it ranges from zero up to an



           23      astronomically large number.  And from looking at a



           24      median standpoint or an arithmetic means standpoint,



  16:21    25      you've got one half of the customer base supporting the
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  16:21     1      additional water used by the second half of the customer



            2      base.  And is that fair and equitable?  I don't really



            3      think so.



            4           If I was only using $10,000 gallons a year, and now



  16:21     5      I'm expected to subsidize someone who is using



            6      275 gallons a year.  Because it's -- according to a



            7      single bill, you're going to take the entire bill and



            8      divide it by 60 people -- and this is as far as demand



            9      goes.  Everybody right now has their own base rate.  But



  16:22    10      as far as demand goes, if you're not using water why pay



           11      for somebody else who is using their own water.  That's



           12      my take.



           13           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Lange.  One



           14      question from me.  You mentioned your home being on



  16:22    15      fire.  I interpret that as meaning that the landscaping



           16      around your chalet -- is it -- that you live in?



           17           THE WITNESS:  Well, yeah.  It's pretty desolate.



           18      And more to point out, I have an immediate need right



           19      here right now.  Walking barefoot on glass would also be



  16:22    20      a good cause to have shoes, for instance.



           21           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Just so I understand the



           22      lifestyle impact that the customers are experiencing,



           23      it's primarily with respect to their inability to



           24      irrigate their landscaping?



  16:22    25           THE WITNESS:  That's correct.  And we've had some
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  16:22     1      reports back from very dissatisfied people who were



            2      under contract to sell their units, and when a



            3      perspective buyer now learns that, hey, there is no



            4      water going on and it's all up in the air, and it's



  16:23     5      going to be unsettled for how long, and rates are going



            6      to go up, they pull out of the deal.  And that causes



            7      harm too.



            8           MR. SAVAGE:  May I also address that because there



            9      is another aspect.  There is a significant fire hazard.



  16:23    10      We have 20 acres of weeds that the county has set aside



           11      as permanent open space.  It's not mowed.  And those



           12      weeds go right up to the edge of our property which used



           13      to be green and verdant.  And now we have brown tinder



           14      between the weeds and the field behind us and our



  16:23    15      houses.  And we have dry trees.  So there is a distinct



           16      fire hazard being posed as well as the aesthetics.



           17           And the fact we're losing money.  We have had trees



           18      killed because of this.  Fortunately none of our big



           19      ones have died yet, but we have lost some trees as well



  16:24    20      as the lawn being completely dry.



           21           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Savage.  To



           22      preserve the procedural integrity, I have nothing else



           23      for Mr. Lange.



           24           Does anyone else have anything for Mr. Lange?



  16:24    25           MR. ATWATER:  No.
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  16:24     1           THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'll go ahead and let



            2      Mr. Savage's statement just now stand in his capacity as



            3      a witness today.  Anybody else have any questions?



            4           MS. SCHMID:  No questions.



  16:24     5           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Miller.



            6           (Leanne Miller is sworn in as a witness.)



            7           MR. ATWATER:  Your Honor, may I restate my



            8      objection from earlier testimony regarding the testimony



            9      of Ms. Leanne Miller?



  16:24    10           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes.



           11           THE WITNESS:  Okay.  So I do request that my



           12      testimony be admitted into evidence and I do not have



           13      any additional comments to add.



           14           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any other objections?



  16:25    15           MS. SCHMID:  I would just like to clarify that Ms.



           16      Miller prepared the testimony and that she's swearing to



           17      it as her testimony here today.



           18           THE WITNESS:  Yes, I did prepare this testimony,



           19      and as president of the Hidden Creek HOA, I'm submitting



  16:25    20      it on their behalf.



           21           MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  With that I have no



           22      objection.



           23           MR. SAVAGE:  No objection.



           24           MR. LANGE:  No objections.



  16:25    25           THE HEARING OFFICER:  It's admitted.  Thank you.
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  16:25     1      Sorry.  Ms. Miller, did you wish to make any prepared



            2      statement or make any remarks?



            3           THE WITNESS:  No, I do not.



            4           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Anyone have any cross-



  16:25     5      examination for Ms. Miller?



            6           MR. ATWATER:



            7           Q.  So I have the same question I had for Terry



            8      which is, you are the president of the Hidden Creek HOA?



            9           A.  That's correct.



  16:25    10           Q.  And what percentage of the customer pool does



           11      Hidden Creek represent on an approximate basis?



           12           A.  We have 130 units so that's about 26 percent of



           13      the 503 customers.



           14           Q.  And your testimony today is on behalf of a



  16:26    15      representative of that 26 percent?



           16           A.  That's correct.



           17           Q.  Thank you.



           18           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Schmid?



           19           MS. SCHMID:  No questions.



  16:26    20           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Savage?



           21           MR. SAVAGE:  No questions.



           22           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Lange?



           23           MR. LANGE:  No questions.



           24           THE HEARING OFFICER:  And I don't have anything.



  16:26    25      Thank you, Ms. Miller.
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  16:26     1           I believe that concludes the presentation of the



            2      evidence.  There has been some expressed interest in



            3      having some time for concluding argument.  Mr. Atwater,



            4      do you know about how many minutes you'll require for



  16:26     5      that?



            6           MR. ATWATER:  Seven.  Would that be okay?



            7           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Schmid?



            8           MS. SCHMID:  I will take less than seven.



            9           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Savage?



  16:26    10           MR. SAVAGE:  Seven.



           11           MR. LANGE:  No more than two.



           12           MS. MILLER:  Less than two.



           13           THE HEARING OFFICER:  That is at maximum no more



           14      than 25 minutes, so we can handle it.



  16:26    15           Would you all like a short recess before we



           16      commence oral argument?



           17           MS. SCHMID:  The Division does not require a short



           18      recess.



           19           MR. ATWATER:  Does the scheduling conference



  16:27    20      contemplate public comments in this hearing?



           21           THE HEARING OFFICER:  No.



           22           MS. SCHMID:  Not for the interim rate hearing.



           23           MR. ATWATER:  I don't think we need a recess then.



           24      I just wanted to be sure of that.



  16:27    25           MR. SAVAGE:  I do not need a recess.
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  16:27     1           MR. LANGE:  No recess.



            2           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Sounds like there is no



            3      interest in a recess.



            4           Mr. Atwater, please proceed.



  16:27     5           MR. ATWATER:  So we appreciate the time that



            6      everyone spent today and we appreciate the efforts of



            7      all truly in getting us this far, and acknowledge that



            8      it's a team effort.  There is no way that this works for



            9      anybody unless everybody comes together and helps solve



  16:27    10      the problems at Community Water.



           11           As was mentioned in Ms. Lewis's testimony, we are



           12      here before the commission on an interim hearing basis



           13      for an interim rate increase.  And I just want to



           14      reiterate what the code 57 -- excuse me -- 547124A3



  16:28    15      states, evidence presented at the hearing held pursuant



           16      to this subsection need not encompass all the issues



           17      that may be considered in a rate case hearing held



           18      pursuant to subsection 2-D, but shall establish an



           19      adequate prima facie showing that the interim rate



  16:28    20      increase is justified.  We feel like the company has



           21      done that.



           22           The commission has the balancing act quite frankly



           23      here, and it's exacerbated by the fact that this public



           24      utility is very small and insignificant.  This



  16:28    25      proceeding would have been much easier if our name was
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  16:28     1      Rocky Mountain Power, but it's not.  So the balancing



            2      act between the concept of providing adequate water on a



            3      timely basis to the public versus protecting the



            4      pecuniary interest and financial interest of the company



  16:28     5      is critical.  And the Supreme Court of the United



            6      States, the 14th amendment, the 15th amendment makes it



            7      very clear that it would be a taking otherwise if that



            8      balancing act was not performed.



            9           We feel a little bit that -- not this proceeding



  16:29    10      necessarily, but that the scale appears to tilt largely



           11      in favor of the public concern, which is clearly an



           12      important concern, but so is the financial interest of



           13      the company as its constitutional right to own its



           14      private property and that the government cannot take



  16:29    15      that private property without substantial -- excuse



           16      me -- without just compensation.



           17           In addition, we are talking about -- there has been



           18      a lot of talk today, I tried to avoid it with my motion



           19      to strike, but was unsuccessful.  And I renewed that,



  16:29    20      and I respect the opinion of the commission for allowing



           21      it.  But there was a lot of talk that was allowed today



           22      about the circumstances and the histories of why we're



           23      here.  And I think it's important.  I'm glad that we



           24      were able to talk about it.  Everybody was able to see



  16:29    25      why we're here.  But never once has the company ever
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  16:30     1      allowed any of its customers to go without culinary



            2      water.  It has a backup plan.  It's expensive but its



            3      customers will not go without culinary water.



            4           Have they gone without irrigation water for some



  16:30     5      time?  Yes.  But the company has never let its customers



            6      go without the ability to drink, flush toilets and do



            7      other things which are really important.  And we



            8      understand that duty and responsibility.



            9           It's been detailed in the multiple testimonies



  16:30    10      today about all the things the company has done.  The



           11      company has not sat on its hands with its management.



           12      They have done significant lifting, expending



           13      significant dollars, especially for a company of this



           14      size.  To me it's remarkable, frankly, the effort that



  16:30    15      this management team has put forth in order to provide



           16      for the customers, and remarkable the effort the



           17      customers have put in to make this work.  It's no small



           18      feat.  I just wanted to acknowledge that.



           19           I do want to specifically in the last minute, I



  16:30    20      think that I have, address the tank, and reiterate what



           21      our position is.  I think it's clear that the one-time



           22      assessment is not favored.  And I hope the commission



           23      understands why we requested that in order to fund the



           24      tank immediately and give the customers the irrigation



  16:31    25      water that they've been requesting to save their lawns
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  16:31     1      and their trees.



            2           We cannot, however, under any circumstances,



            3      endorse them as the Division of Public Utilities has



            4      suggested.  It is just far too long.  We risk the chance



  16:31     5      of losing another season of irrigation.  And we would



            6      rather support the position supported by the intervenors



            7      provided today.



            8           And then regarding the general request, we feel



            9      like there has been sufficient evidence to understand



  16:31    10      the interim rate provided.  And that that evidence is



           11      included not only in today's testimony, but more



           12      importantly in the application.  If the application is



           13      read very carefully, it's sophisticated, but it comes



           14      from a very reputable engineering firm that we've spent



  16:32    15      thousands of dollars on -- the company has spent



           16      thousands of dollars on.  It's no mistake.  It's no



           17      accident.  It wasn't thrown together over night.  And it



           18      does provide ample evidence to allow for an interim rate



           19      increase, and the information required to make a



  16:32    20      determination is fully available.  Thank you, Your



           21      Honor.



           22           THE HEARING OFFICER:  One follow-up question,



           23      Mr. Atwater.



           24           In your view is the record clear that if the



  16:32    25      commission were inclined to adopt Mr. Savage, Mr. Lange
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  16:32     1      or Ms. Miller's proposal, and allow a special charge to



            2      bond or finance the replacement tank to be amortized



            3      over 12 or 18 months, can you tell me or represent to me



            4      that you're sure the company could obtain financing on



  16:32     5      those terms?



            6           MR. ATWATER:  So what I can represent is as



            7      Mr. Savage amended his testimony here today, that to the



            8      extent the commission accepts the dollar amount



            9      requested, so the $525,000 for the tank -- and that it



  16:33    10      be repaid over a short enough period of time -- and I



           11      think I understood Mr. White to indicate that a 12-month



           12      period -- that would be fine.  The question we still



           13      have is the rate of return.  Whether it's the



           14      3.39 percent under the Division of Drinking Water loan



  16:33    15      or whether it's something greater.



           16           And that would have to be one thing that would need



           17      to be clarified or taken back to a potential funding



           18      source to determine the rate.



           19           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Thank you,



  16:33    20      Mr. Atwater.



           21           Ms. Schmid?



           22           MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  As a regulated public



           23      utility, Community Water Company has certain rights and



           24      certain obligations.  Its rights are that it is subject



  16:33    25      to Public Service Commission jurisdiction currently that
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  16:33     1      provides oversight and a means of recovering reasonable



            2      and proven expenses -- an opportunity to recover those



            3      reasonable and proven expenses.  Its responsibilities as



            4      a regulated public utility are that Community Water must



  16:34     5      provide -- and I quote now from 54-3-1 -- "service that



            6      will be in all respects adequate, efficient, just and



            7      reasonable."



            8           Community Water comes before you today seeking a



            9      one-time special assessment and an interim rate increase



  16:34    10      to its general rates.  Community Water has not shown



           11      that its evidence supports a finding to -- a finding



           12      that interim rates, either to the general rate increase



           13      or for the special assessment, are justified.



           14           The standard is low.  It's a prima facie standard.



  16:35    15      But even that standard hasn't been met by the company.



           16      The Division has gone through a great deal of effort in



           17      trying to understand the company's application.  Just as



           18      much as if it were the application of a larger company.



           19           And on that note I will note that Community Water



  16:35    20      is one of the larger water companies.  Frequently water



           21      companies have only 35, 40 or even fewer connections.



           22      So Community Water is sophisticated by comparison.



           23           Community Water nonetheless has failed to prove its



           24      case that the interim rate and the special assessment



  16:35    25      are justified.  The Division is concerned with the
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  16:35     1      inter-generational inequities that would result from the



            2      special assessment.  The Division is concerned that the



            3      company seems to be abdicating its responsibility to run



            4      its company, and instead is shifting that responsibility



  16:36     5      to the Division.



            6           The company has stated that the Division has



            7      thwarted the efforts of the company to provide



            8      reasonable service.  That is not so.  The company



            9      determines and has set its own course, and any failure



  16:36    10      of the company to prove on a prima facie standard that



           11      the interim rates are not justified and the special



           12      assessment is not justified rests with the company, not



           13      with the Division.  Thank you.



           14           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Ms. Schmid.



  16:36    15      Does the Division have any recommendation of any remedy



           16      the PSC has jurisdiction to provide or any action it



           17      might take to alleviate the problems being experienced



           18      by the customers, aside from denying the instant



           19      request?



  16:37    20           MS. SCHMID:  Yes.  The Commission has the ability



           21      to approve settlements which are put before it by one or



           22      more -- by two or more parties.  For example, one remedy



           23      the commission could have is that if the parties



           24      submitted a settlement seeking approval of the



  16:37    25      interim -- sorry -- of the special assessment on the 12
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  16:37     1      to 18-month basis, the Division perhaps likely would not



            2      object to that as it would be a settlement.  And



            3      settlements can be approved by the Commission.



            4           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Ms. Schmid.



  16:37     5           MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.



            6           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Savage.



            7           MR. SAVAGE:  Yes.  We're going to accordingly



            8      address all of the other issues, but the critical issue



            9      to me is making sure we immediately get funding from the



  16:37    10      parent company, quote, unquote, for this tank.  And I



           11      think as -- some people may have wondered why I was



           12      asking a lot of the questions I did, but I think we've



           13      established unequivocally that A, Community Water has



           14      the duty that Ms. Schmid just pointed out, and that they



  16:38    15      have been derelict in that duty, and derelict in that



           16      duty since they were required by TCFC.



           17           Mr. Larry White says he thinks it's the customers



           18      fault that the infrastructure of CWC is in a bad state



           19      of repair.  It isn't.  It's the CWC's duty to be able to



  16:38    20      provide adequate water.



           21           As Ms. Schmid just pointed out, section 54-31 also



           22      says that they shall furnish such service,



           23      instrumentalities, equipment and facilities, as will



           24      promote the safety, comfort and even convenience of its



  16:39    25      patrons.  And instead they've gone years, after
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  16:39     1      representing in 2014 or 2015 that the system was in dire



            2      straits, and even years ago saying this tank was of



            3      concern.  And waiting after the tank failed for several



            4      months to even apply to the Commission for anything to



  16:39     5      do about it.



            6           And we now know that was all done by its parent.



            7      I'm not sure there is a CWC.  I'm not sure there is a



            8      Community Water.  It has no employees.  Its decisions



            9      are ultimately made by Mr. White who doesn't even list



  16:39    10      himself as having any position with the utility,



           11      Community Water.  He lists himself as the chief



           12      executive officer of the parent corporation.  It is the



           13      parent company that is funding the shortfalls of



           14      Community Water.  It is the parent company that has the



  16:39    15      accounting on its accounting system.  Not CWC's.  We



           16      look at the general ledger for TCFC and it has the



           17      ledger entries for Community Water.



           18           They have -- he testified as to, I think I



           19      mentioned, any shortfalls that TCFC covers it.  This



  16:40    20      whole problem -- and there is also statutes to say it's



           21      a crime for an individual to aid and abet a utility if



           22      they're not complying with its duty that Ms. Schmid just



           23      read.



           24           Certainly TCFC if not the alter ego in this



  16:40    25      circumstance, has aided and abetted and even directed
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  16:40     1      the operation of this public utility that has put us in



            2      this situation.  And I'm happy to not go down that road



            3      if TCFC and Mr. Atwater are willing to agree that the



            4      parent will put up the money that's needed short term if



  16:41     5      the users agree to have a short-term repayment, even



            6      with the long-term inequities of doing that.  That's a



            7      fine compromise with me.



            8           But if not, the Public Service Commission has the



            9      authority to order TCFC to do this.  Fund this money,



  16:41    10      get this dam tank operational, get it in place, and



           11      let's get going on it.  As to the general -- we have no



           12      idea about the ERUs.  We have no idea how much money



           13      they're actually going to need from the 3.6 million



           14      dollar fund.  We don't know how much the burden is going



  16:41    15      to be for these capital improvements.  We don't know



           16      whether or not they're all needed now, or if some of



           17      them can be deferred.  They seem to say, well, we can



           18      get the money, 3.6 million, let's use it all up.  But



           19      then they say, no, we're not going to use it all up.



  16:42    20      But then it sounds like they're going to make sure the



           21      entire system is a spanking clean essentially brand-new



           22      system.



           23           These are all the kinds of things that the



           24      supervision of the Division are essential to look into



  16:42    25      and make sure that the customers are not being
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  16:42     1      overcharged by the structure of any loan or any capital



            2      improvement, any repayment.  It hasn't been addressed in



            3      any way shape or form adequate for interim



            4      consideration.  And more importantly, as I stated in my



  16:42     5      testimony, there is no need to do it because the loan



            6      doesn't require a dollar to be repaid until January of



            7      2019.



            8           So I think it's just a no-brainer that there is no



            9      adequate showing for proceeding with an interim rate



  16:42    10      increase to cover the general capital expenditures.  I



           11      mentioned in my testimony -- and I'd just allude to it



           12      again -- that if we were to look at that, we've got to



           13      look at how the HOAs are being -- proposed to be



           14      treated, vis-a-vis individual homeowners, and make sure



  16:43    15      those are fair and equitable treatments.  With that, I



           16      appreciate the examiners time and will rest my case.



           17           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Savage.



           18           Mr. Lange.



           19           MR. LANGE:  Yes.



  16:43    20           Q.  Just as far as a general rate increase goes --



           21      and I said this in my testimony -- going from a



           22      connected customer right now -- 503 customers -- to an



           23      ERU system of 400 and some, is kind of like changing



           24      horses midstream, so to speak.  I think that stands in



  16:43    25      the way of actually even approving an interim rate case
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  16:43     1      as far as a general rate case goes.  And I think it's



            2      very difficult.  All those things have to be figured out



            3      before you could even impose an interim rate.  But as



            4      far as the tank goes, that is definitely number one on



  16:43     5      my list.  It's number one on Red Pine's list.  And I



            6      believe it's number one on the other HOAs too.



            7           And customer base as a whole, that needs to be



            8      addressed.  I think that the settlement thing -- a



            9      settlement has to be done prior to an approval and we



  16:44    10      should work out some kind of a settlement.  But this



           11      thing needs to be funded and to go forward forthwith, as



           12      quickly as possible.



           13           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Miller.



           14           MS. MILLER:  Okay.  So Hidden Creek understands and



  16:44    15      supports a need for immediate replacement of the storage



           16      tank, and I personally support the construction in the



           17      Bowen & Collins' study.  We don't expect a free ride,



           18      but we do need to reach a reasonable monthly payment



           19      plan.  And I would support entering into a settlement



  16:44    20      agreement if we could get a monthly rate over 12 to 18



           21      months that is reasonable.



           22           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.



           23           Mr. Atwater, as the applicant I'll offer you the



           24      last word if you want to exercise it.



  16:45    25           MR. ATWATER:  I think I will.  Just one minute if I
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  16:45     1      may.



            2           Again I want to thank everybody for participating



            3      in the process, but I am troubled by the fact that there



            4      is a lot of discussion about the company ignoring duties



  16:45     5      and that it's the only duty and the only issue that the



            6      Commission is balancing.



            7           I believe the record is very clear that the company



            8      has gone well above and beyond its duty, and that



            9      everyone needs to remember that the pecuniary and



  16:45    10      financial interests of the company are paramount.  If



           11      the company cannot pay its bills independent of its



           12      affiliates, it cannot be forced to do so by the



           13      Commission.  That's a constitutional right.  And I just



           14      want that to be very clear for everybody, that there is



  16:45    15      a balancing act.  It's not one-sided.  And that is --



           16      it's extremely important.  None of us can be forced to



           17      give up our own property rights.  That's the liberty of



           18      living in this country, and it's certainly applicable in



           19      this case.  Thanks.



  16:46    20           THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Atwater.  If



           21      there is nothing from anyone else, we are adjourned.



           22           MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.



           23           MR. ATWATER:  Thank you.



           24           MR. SAVAGE:  Thank you.



  16:46    25           MR. LANGE:  Thank you.
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  16:46     1           (The proceedings concluded at 4:46 p.m.)
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